
May 14, 2018 - City Council Regular Meeting - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

p       Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber
Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.

Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest

www. ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

City CoutlCil
4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Public Hearings

Mark Elliott, Vice Mayor
Appeals

Referrals and Reports from
Paul Akinjo Commissions and Committees

Steve Dresser All Other StafF Reports and/ or Action

Items
Martha Salcedo

Study Sessions
6. Council Communications

City Staff
Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager
Order of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador IVavarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

information by staff followed by City Council

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk questions and inquiries.  The applicant,  or their

authorized representative,  or interested residents,
Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer

may then speak on the item; each speaker may only
Cari James, Finance & Administrative speak once to each item.  At the close of public

Services Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Rebecca Schmidt, Community
Development Director Consent Calendar

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one
Director motion and one vote.  There will be no separate

James Hood, Police Chief
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or

interested resident so requests,  in which case the

item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and

considered separately.

MAY 14, 201 - City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the meeting.
To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, address and
number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the City Council,
please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and address. In
order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by the Mayor
for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each speaker may
only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to new material;

do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a proposed action in

court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public
hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or
prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so under
the Citizen' s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to the
commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have
expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called

upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from
taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item
meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation ( see
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, citvcouncil@ci. lathrop.ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide Web
Address: www.ci. lathrop.ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the City
Council Page or use the URL www.ci. lathroa.ca. us/ council/

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop,  on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.  Supplemental

documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk' s Office.
This agenda was posted at the following locations:   City Hall, Community Center, Generations
Center, Senior Center, and " J" Street Fire Department. The meetings of the Lathrop City Council
are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or accommodations to this
meeting.   [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II]   Interested persons must request the

accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the City Clerk
at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330
Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City's business is appreciated.

2



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, MAY 14, 2018

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: There wil/ be a C/osed Session commencin4 at 6: 00 o.m.  The ReQu/ar Meetin4

wi// reconvene at 7:00 a.m., or immediatelv followin4 the C/osed Session, whichever is/ ater.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956. 9( b)

5 Potential Case( s)

RECONVENE

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1. 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S)

1. 7. 1 CITY CLERK INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Statewide Direct Primary Election Day ] une 5, 2018

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 VOLUNTEER RECOGNITION AWARDS

Recipient for Youth Volunteer of the Year Award

o Aliyah Conley
Recipient for Senior Volunteer of the Year

o Linda Rose

Recipients for Volunteer Committee of the Year Award

May 14, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



o  . The Mayor' s Art Show Committee:

Joyce Gatto

Bennie Gatto

Cindy Martin
Tony Martin
Jim Monty
Tosh Ishihara

2. 2 SAN JOAQUIN REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT ( RTD) INFORMATIONAL

PRESENTATION

Receive Information Regarding RTD' S Role in the Community,
Ongoing Projects and Programs, and Service Benefits to Lathrop
Residents.

2. 3 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do
so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to
the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or
have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be

called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City
Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the
agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can,
however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond to
statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or report

on his or her own activities. ( See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)). Unless

directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered
at the meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC
COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL

HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALEWDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council and will
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the item

will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of April 9, 2018

4. 3 TREASURER' S REPORT MARCH 2O18

Approve Quarterly Treasurer's Investment Report for March 2018

May 14, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4.4 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 392 OF THE CITY

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO

MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 10 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC",  CHAPTER 10. 24

PARKING", SECTION 10. 24. 160 " VIOLATION PENALTY" TO ADD PAYMENT

PLAN OPTIONS

Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 18- 392 Amending Lathrop
Municipal Code Section 10. 24. 160 Entitled " Violation - Penalty" to Comply
with AB 503 and Adopt Payment Plan Options

4. 5 RATIFICATION OF THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS'

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

Adopt Resolution Ratifying the San Joaquin Council of Governments

SJCOG) Annual Financial Plan for FY 2018/ 19

4. 6 BAY ALARM COMPANY SECURITY,  FIRE ALARM, ACCESS CONTROL, AND

EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT

Adopt a Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Bay Alarm Company for
Security, Fire Alarm, Access Control, and Equipment Installation and
Maintenance Services

4. 7 ADJUSTMENT TO THE REPUBLIC SERVICES SOLID WASTE COLLECTION

RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018- 2019

Adopt Resolution to Authorize an Increase to Republic Services Collection

Rates for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019 Based on the Consumer Price Index for All

Urban Consumers

4. 8 AMENDMENT WITH WGR SOUTHWEST,  INC.  TO PROVIDE COMPLIANCE

SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CITY'S STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

SD 14- 10 AND A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopt a Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 with WGR Southwest, Inc.,
for Small Construction Project Review and Inspection Support Services for

the Phase II MS4 Storm Water Discharge Permit SD 14- 10 and a Related

Budget Amendment

4. 9 APPROVE BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION REQUEST FOR SGMA

COMPLIANCE CIP PW 16- 04

Approve a Basin Boundary Modification Request to Align the Eastern San
Joaquin and Tracy Subbasins with the City' s Limit and Associated CEQA
Determination for SGMA Compliance CIP PW 16- 04

4. 10 APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP FOR IWRMP

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES, CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 4

WITH EKI AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

Adopt a Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with De
Novo Planning Group for Environmental Consulting Services,  Contract

Amendment No. 4 with EKI for the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

and Related Budget Amendment PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08

May 14, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



4. 11 AGREEMENT WITH HYDROFOCUS,  INC.  FOR WASTEWATER DISCHARGE

REQUIREMENTS PERMIT COMPLIANCE

Adopt Resolution Approving an Agreement with HydroFocus,  Inc.  for

Groundwater Monitoring and Reporting Services for Waste Discharge
Requirements Permit Compliance for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019

4. 12 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 36 LOTS IN TRACT 3825 VILLAGE D" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF

RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3825 Village D" within East
Village, Totaling 36 Single Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

4. 13 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 31 LOTS IN TRACT 3874 VILLAGE " A" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF
RIVER ISLAIVDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3874 Village A" within East
Village, Totaling 31 Single Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

4. 14 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 24 LOTS IN TRACT 3913 VILLAGE " O" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF
RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3913 Village " O" within East
Village, Totaling 24 Single Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

4. 15 VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FOR THE LATHROP TOWNE CENTRE
PROJECT

Adopt a Resolution Affirming the Planning Commission' s Recommendation
to Approve the Vesting Tentative Parcel Map for the Proposed Lathrop
Towne Centre Project ( VTM- 17- 111)

4. 16 ISU SALE TO HEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. OF IOWA

Adopt Resolution Approving the Sale of 18 ISUs to Heartland Express, Inc.
of Iowa for a Proposed Truck Wash Located at APNs 196- 030- 029 and 196-
030- 31

4. 17 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FROM STUDEBAKER BROWN ELECTRIC FOR CIP

PS 17- 02 TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND MCKEE

BOULEVARD AND FOR CIP PS 17- 05 TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT HARLAN ROAD
AND STONEBRIDGE LANE

Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements from Studebaker Brown
Electric for CIP PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee
Boulevard and for CIP PS 17- 05 TrafFic Signal at Harlan Road and

Stonebridge Lane and Authorize the Filing of a Notice of Completion and
Release of Contract Retention

May 14, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



4. 18 RATIFY EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTIOIV CONTRACT WITH TEICHERT

CONSTRUCTION FOR REPAIRS TO THE CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN

SYSTEM EMERGENCY CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN REPAIR

Adopt a Resolution to Ratify City Manager' s Approval of an Emergency
Construction Contract with Teichert Construction for Repairs to the

Crossroads Storm Drain System and Approve Creation of CIP SD 18- 13 and

Related Budget Amendment

4. 19 APPROVE AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER No. 8 WITH CHARLES R. SIMPSON,

DBA BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL

Adopt a Resolution Approving Amendment to Task Order No. 8 with Charles
R.   Simpson,   dba BaseCamp Environmental to Prepare CEQA Initial

Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for a Warehousing and Distribution
Facility at 500 East Louise Avenue and Extend the Term of Master

Agreement dated June 17, 2013

4. 20 APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.   5 WITH VEOLIA TO THE WASTEWATER

TREATMENT PLANT OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

Adopt a Resolution Approving Amendment No.  5 with Veolia to the

Wastewater Plant Operation and Maintenance Agreement with Veolia Water

West Operation and Maintenance Agreement with Veolia Water West

Operating Services

4. 21 FISCAL YEAR 2018- 19 PROJECT LIST ASSOCIATED WITH SENATE BILL 1

Adopt a Resolution Approving Project List for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 Funded
by Senate Bill 1 ( SB 1) the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 and
Related Budget Amendment

4. 22 APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S REPORT AND DECLARING

INTENTION TO LEVY ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

FOR INDUSTRIAL LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT;   RESIDENTIAL

LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT;    MOSSDALE LANDSCAPE AND

LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT;     STONEBRIDGE LANDSCAPE

MAIfVTENANCE DISTRICT;   STONEBRIDGE DRAINAGE AND LIGHTING

DISTRICT; STORM DRAIN DISTRICT ZONE 1; AND STORM DRAIIV DISTRICT

ZONE lA

Council to Consider the Following:.
1.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for

the Industrial Lighting Maintenance District and Declaring Intention
to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

2.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for
the Residential Lighting Maintenance District and Declaring Intention
to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

3.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for
the Mossdale Larrdscape and Lighting Maintenance District and

Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year
2018/ 19

4.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for
the Stonebridge Landscape Maintenance District and the Stonebridge

Drainage & Lighting District and Declaring Intention to Levy Annual
Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

May 14, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

7



5.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for
the Storm Drain Districts Zones 1 and 1A and Declaring Intention to
Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

4. 23 APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S REPORT AND DECLARING

INTENTION TO LEVY ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

FOR LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO.   93- 1

WOODFIELD PARK)

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for

Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 93- 1 ( Woodfield Park) and
Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER 2018 CAPITAL

FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  A Resolution Adopting the City of Lathrop 2018 Capital Facilities Fees
Study Update

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL: Discuss Placing Surveillance Cameras at the
Entrance and Exit Points of the City

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)     

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Salcedo/ Akinjo)
Council of Governments ( Dresser/Dhaliwal)

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division (Akinjo/ Elliott)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission ( Dresser)

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Dhaliwal/Elliott)
Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo/ Dresser)
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency (Elliott/ Dresser)

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       AD70URNMENT

eresa Vargas, CM ity Clerk

May 14, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6

8



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018

7• 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a C/osed Session which commenced at 6:34 n.m.  The Reau/ar

Meetin4 reconvened at 7:11 p.m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 6: 34
p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956. 9( b)

2 Potential Case( s)

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 09 p. m.

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that direction was provided in
regards to Item 1. 2; no other reportable action was taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Elliott;

Councilmembers: Akinjo, Dresser, and Salcedo

Absent: None

1. 4 INVOCATION - Mayor Dhaliwal led a moment of silence.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Vice Mayor Elliott led the pledge of allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

City Manager Stephen Salvatore deferred announcements to City Clerk
Teresa Vargas.  Ms.  Vargas announced the DEA Drug Take Back event
scheduled for April 28, 2018, at the Lathrop Senior Center located at 15707
5th Street, from 10 a. m. to 2 p. m.; and a Community Visioning Workshop
meeting scheduled for April 16,  2018,  at the Lathrop City Hall Council

Chamber, commencing at 6: 00 p. m.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - None

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING SIKH COMMUNITY VAISAKHI

CELEBRATION

Mayor Dhaliwal,   accompanied by the City Council,   provided the

proclamation to members of the Sikh Community recognizing the Vaisakhi
Celebration held of April 13, 2018.

2. 2 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO JAIME HERNANDEZ

Mayor Dhaliwal,  accompanied by the Lathrop City Council,  presented a

plaque to Jaime Hernandez recognizing his 17 years of service and

commitment with the Lathrop Jr. Spartans as Founder and President. The
City Council expressed their appreciation and gratitude.

2. 3 PRESENTATION UPDATE ON MANTHEY ROAD BRIDGE PROJECT PS 12- 04

UPDATE

Senior Civil Engineer Michael King provided the presentation.  The City
Council received informational update related to the Manthey Road Bridge
Project PS 12- 04,  including project history,  funding summary,  project

summary, related environmental and technical studies, and the remaining
project development phases. A question and answer period followed.  No

other reportable action taken.

2. 4 MAYOR' S COMMITfEE REPORT( S)

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones reported the following
upcoming committee events and programs:

Breakfast with the Bunny
Scheduled for April 14, 2018, from 8: 00 a. m. to 12: 00 p. m. at
Valverde Park.

Beautification Day - Earth Day Celebration
Scheduled for April 21, 2018 at Valverde Park.

Volunteer Appreciation Dinner

Scheduled for April 27, 2018 at 6: 00 p. m. at Lathrop High School
Cafeteria.

Mayor's Art Show - Art Piece Registration

Art entries can be made on April 27, 2018, from 9: 00 a. m. to 4: 00

p. m. and April 28, 2018, from 9: 00 a. m. to 12: 00 p. m., at the

Lathrop Council Chamber.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



Mayor's Art Show Viewing
Scheduled from April 30 to May 11, 2018, in the Lathrop Council
Chamber.

Mayor's Art Show Reception

Scheduled for May 11, 2018, at 5: 00 p. m. in the Lathrop Council
Chamber.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Nellie Zavala ( Commission on Aging) reported her attendance to the April 2, 2018,
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging meeting,  in which information and

programs from the State of California Office of the Ombudsman was discussed.

Beau Grisham  ( President of the Lathrop Jr.  Spartans Youth Sports)  provided

information related to the Lathrop Jr.  Spartans Youth Sports programs,  and

expressed need for funding contributions to sustain the programs. Hailey Salazar
Behind the Fire LMFD)  invited the public to attend  " Breakfast with the

Firefighters" event scheduled on April 14, 2018, from 7: 00 a. m. to 11 a. m. at the

Lathrop Senior Center.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar,  by the following roll call vote unless
otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless
otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of March 12, 2018.

4. 3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 390 APPROVING

THE TRANSFER OF THE SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT, ADOPTED ON AUGUST 3, 2015, AND RICHLAND' S INTEREST

IN THE PHASE 2 EXPANSION OF THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY FUNDING AGREEMENT, DATED NOVEMBER 21, 2016,

FROM THE EXISTING AGREEMENT HOLDER, RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, INC.,
TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC.

Adopted Ordinance 18- 390 to assign and transfer the South Lathrop
Development Agreement and Funding Agreement to South Lathrop Land,
LLC.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



4.4 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 391 AMENDING

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 13 PUBLIC SERVICES", CHAPTER 13. 09

RECYCLED WATER SERVICE SYSTEM"

Adopted Ordinance 18- 391 approving an amendment to Title 13 Public

Services", Chapter 13. 09 " Recycled Water Service System" necessary to
update the recycled water system regulations to be consistent with the

City' s recycled water program.

4. 5 PLANNING FEE WAIVER REQUEST BY NEW LIFE CHURCH ( TUP- 18- 7)

Adopted Resolution 18- 4358 waiving the temporary use permit

processing fee and storage fee for New Life Church,  in the combined

amount of $392.

4. 6 RESOLUTION SUPPORTING PROPOSITION 69 AND OPPOSING REPEAL OF

THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT" ( SB 1 - BEALL)

Adopted Resolution 18- 4359 supporting Proposition 69 and opposing
repeal of " The Road Repair and Accountability Act" ( SB 1  -  Beall),  and

authorizing the Mayor to sign approval to join the coalition to protect local
transportation improvements.

4. 7 UPDATE OF JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Adopted Resolution 18- 4360 updating various job classifications for the
Public Works Department Operations and Maintenance stafF, the Projects

and Programs Manager classification,    Management Analyst I/ II

Confidential) classification, and eliminating the Management Analyst I/ II
non- confidential classification position.

4. 8 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 46 LOTS IN TRACT 3837 VILLAGE " P" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF

RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 18- 4361 approving Final Map for Tract 3837 Village
P" within East Village District, totaling 46 single family lots, Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,    LLC,

Acceptance of Quitclaim of Right of Way for Cohen Road, City of Lathrop
Annexation No.   6 CFD 2013,  and rejected the Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication for Mulholland Drive.

4. 9 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
SIA) FOR 114 CONDOMINIUM UNITS ( 9 LOTS) IN TRACT 3833 VILLAGE

L" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 18- 4362 approving Final Map for Tract 3833 Village
L" within East Village, Totaling 114 Single Family Condominium Units ( 9

Lots),    Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC, Quitclaim Deed to abandon a portion of Cohen Road,

and City of Lathrop Annexation No. 5 CFD 2013.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



4. 10 AUTHORIZE AMENDMENT IVO.   2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

AGREEMENT WITH WSP FOR THE MANTHEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT

PROJECT PS 12- 04

Adopted Resolution 18- 4363 approving Amendment No. 2 with WSP for
additional Preliminary Engineering and Environmental Compliance Services
for the Manthey Road Bridge Replacement Project, PS 12- 04.

4. 11 APPROVE INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE LICENSE FOR CAL- WASTE RECOVERY

SYSTEM

Adopted Resolution 18- 4364 approving an Industrial Solid Waste License
for Cal- Waste Recovery System.

4. 12 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS TO THE MULTI PARK PROJECT FROM DOMINGUEZ

LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4365 accepting improvements to the Multi- Park
Project for Libby Park, Basin Park, South Linear Park, and the Towne Centre
Drive traffic circle from Dominguez Landscape Services, Inc., and approving

the filing of a Notice of Completion and release of contract retention.

4. 13 ACCERT IMPROVEMENTS FOR LAS- 3 CONVERSION TO A PERCOLATION

BASIN FOR CROSSROADS DECOMMISSIONING WW 15- 20

Adopted Resolution 18- 4366 accepting improvements for the LAS- 3
conversion to a percolation basin by Richland Crossroads for the Crossroads
Decommissioning Project, WW 15- 20.

4. 14 APPROVE RECYCLED WATER USER AGREEMENT WITH RECLAMATION

DISTRICT 2062 ( RD 2062)

Adopted Resolution 18- 4367 approving a User Agreement with RD 2062
for the delivery and use of recycled water in the River Islands development
area.

4. 15 APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UIVDERSTANDING  ( MOU)  WITH STEWART

TRACT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABLE AGENCY ( GSA) TO PURSUE A BASIN

BOUNDARY MODIFICATION FOR THE SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER

MONITORING ACT ( SGMA) COMPLIANCE CIP PW 16- 04

Adopted Resolution 18- 4368 approving a MOU between the City of
Lathrop and Stewart Tract GSA regarding pursuing -a Basin Boundary
Modification Request in the Tracy Subbasin and Eastern San Joaquin
Subbasin, PW 16- 04.

4. 16 HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR CALENDAR YEAR
2017

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A questions and answer period ensued.
Community Development Director Rebecca Schmidt provided the

information.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



Adopted Resolution 18- 4369 accepting the Housing Element Annual
Progress Report for calendar year 2017, and authorizing the submittal of
the report to the Governor' s Office of Planning and Research and State
Department of Housing and Community Development.       

4. 17 APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.    7 WITH PACIFIC ADVANCED CIVIL

ENGINEERING,    INCORPORATED    ( PACE)    FOR ADDITIONAL DESIGN

MODIFICATIONS FOR THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY

LCTF) PHASE 2 EXPANSION CIP WW 14- 14

Adopted Resolution 18- 4370 approving Amendment No. 7 with PACE for
additional design modifications for the LCTF Phase 2 Expansion, WW 14-

14.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 CITY OF LATHROP AND CITY OF TRACY LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES
EVALUATION

City Manager Stephen Salvatore introduced City Consultant Mike Oliver,
President of Municipal Resource Group, LLC ( MRG).  Mr.  Salvatore began

the presentation with an overview and project background.

Finance Director Cari James and Mr. Oliver provided the remaining portion
of the presentation,  which included additional background information

related to the Law Enforcement Services Agreement with the San Joaquin

County SherifF's Office,  MRG  .project findings,  overview of a proposed

service model, projected cost of services, facility and staffing requirements,
method of addressing projected long- term needs for the City of Lathrop,
and potential next steps needed to develop and implement a new law
enforcement services agreement with the City of Tracy Police Department.
A question and answer period followed.

Jack Varrella ( Lathrop, CA) withdrew request to speak. Reverend Lu Davis
Lathrop,  CA)   requested information related to police staffing levels

proportional with the future growth of the City; expressed support for law
enforcement options with the greater cost savings potential; and urged City
to consider its own police department in the future as the City' s population
increases. Sherrie Kyle ( Lathrop, CA) expressed concern with unresolved

disputed overhead costs;  and commented on the value of institutional

knowledge by current County Sheriff Deputies. Michele Maddon ( Lathrop,
CA) expressed support for continuation of the law enforcement agreement
with San Joaquin County Sheriff's Office;  requested the City consider an
additional consultant to provide additional review of law enforcement
options. Christina Laughlin ( Lathrop, CA) expressed concern with potential
challenges the City may be faced with police recruitment;  expressed

support for continuation of the law enforcement agreement with San
Joaquin County Sheriff's Office. Reverend Lu Davis ( Lathrop, CA) returned
to the lector commented on wage differences between City of Tracy and
San Joaquin Sheriff's Office. The question and answer period continued.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



Mayor Dhaliwal stepped down from the dais at 9: 29 p. m. and returned at 9: 29 p. m.

The question and answer period continued.  Finance Director Cari James,

City Consultant Mike Oliver, and Dan Drummond ( MRG) provided additional
information. Bennie Gatto ( Lathrop, CA) commented on the importance of
considering cost savings options; expressed concerns with increasing costs
related to the San Joaquin County SherifF's Office Law Enforcement

Agreement.   Michele Maddon   ( Lathrop,   CA)   returned to the lector,

commented on previous comments made related to dispatch operations;
reiterated request for additional consultant to provide separate evaluation

of law enforcement options. City Manager Stephen Salvatore announced
that the City would be coordinating a Special City Council Meeting/ Study
Session in May to further discuss the potential options related to a law
enforcement service agreement between the City of Lathrop and City of
Tracy.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Dresser, the City Council received a report related to the evaluation of law
enforcement services options compiled by MRG and City stafF, considered
provisions of a potential agreement for law enforcement services by the
City of Tracy to the City of Lathrop, and adopted Resolution 18- 4371

authorizing Task Order  # 10 with MRG to prepare a potential law

enforcement service agreement between the City of Lathrop and City of
Tracy to be considered at a future City Council Meeting, and after the Study
Session to be scheduled in May.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 2 REGIONALIZATION OF WASTEWATER SYSTEM PRESENTATION BY PATRICK

PALUPA EXECUTIVE OFFICER,  WITH THE CENTRAL VALLEY REGIONAL

WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD, AND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH

ROBERTSON- BRYAN, INC

City Manager Stephen Salvatore introduced Patrick Palupa,  Executive

Officer, with the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, and
Michael Bryan,  Ph. D., with Robertson- Bryan, Inc.  Mr.  Salvatore provided

an overview of the item.

Mayor Dhaliwal stepped down from the dais at 9: 59 p. m. Mayor Dhaliwal returned to the
dais at 10: 04. p. m.

Mr.   Palupa and Mr.   Bryan provided the remaining portion of the

presentation,   which included environmental concerns related to the

Sacramento - San Joaquin Delta, concerns for proposed discharge to the

San Joaquin River,  and the Central Valley Water Board support of

regionalization of wastewater services between the City of Lathrop and City
of Manteca.   A question and answer period ensued throughout the

presentation.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo,  seconded by Councilmember
Dresser, the City Council received information related to regionalization of
wastewater systems between Lathrop and Manteca,   and adopted

Resolution 18- 4372 authoring an agreement with Robertson- Bryan, Inc.
to evaluate the feasibility and efFicacy of regionalization of Lathrop and
Manteca wastewater facilities, and the creation of CIP WW 18- 09.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 3 CITY COUNCIL AFFIRMATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S

RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE SIXTH ADDENDUM TO THE RIVER

ISLANDS SEIR,   RIVER ISLANDS VTM TRACT 3765,   PRELIMINARY

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, AND PRECISE PLAN LINE

Community Development Director Rebecca Schmidt provided the

presentation.   Susan Dell' Osso   ( River Islands Development)   provided

additional project information related to the Paradise Cut set- back levee.

Mayor Dhaliwal stepped down from the dais at 10: 44 p. m. and returned at 10: 44 pm.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Akinjo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4373 affirming the Planning
Commission' s recommendation to adopt the Sixth Addendum to the River

Islands Subsequent EIR,  approved the amended River Islands Vesting
Tentative Map Tract 3765  ( Large Lot), approved the revised Preliminary
Development Plan for Stage 2B of Tract 3694, and approved the revised

River Islands Precise Plan Line for Stage 2A of Tract 3694.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 4 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE OF

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO AMEND LATHROP

MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 10 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC", CHAPTER 10. 24

PARKING", SECTION 10. 24. 160 ` VIOLATION PENALTY" TO ADD PAYMENT

PLAN OPTIONS

Police Services Office Manager Carole Terras provided the presentation. A
question and answer period followed.  Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public

hearing. There were no speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing.
A question and answer period ensued.

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo,
the City Council:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduced and held first reading of an ordinance amending
Lathrop Municipal Code Section 10. 24. 160 entitled " Violation

Penalty" to add payment plan options.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Councilmember Dresser reported his attendance to recent regional

meetings, including the San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission meeting, in
which he was appointed as the new Chair, and the San Joaquin Area Flood

Control Agency.

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmembers thanked those in attendance.

7.       AD) OURNMENT - there being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 11: 03 p. m.

G

T resa Vargas, CMC,   it Clerk

April 9, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

17



1

18



i ITEM 4. 3    ;

ty of Lah-ro;p

Quarterly Investment Report
March 2018

This report presents a detailed discussion of the City' s investment portfolio as of March 31, 2018.  It includes all
investments managed by the City on its own behalf as well as the City' s Trustees.   The report provides

information on cash flows, broken down by both investment manager ( City or Trustee) and by percentage 
allocation within the portfolio.

As of March 31, 2018, the investment portfolio was in compliance with all state laws and the City' s Investment

Policy (see Attachment 1).

Current Portfolio Summary

As directed by the Investment Policy adopted by City Council, City staff strives to attain three primary goals with
the City' s investments as follows( in order of priority):

1.   Safety— Preservation of the principal of invested funds

2.   Liquidity—Ability to liquidate one or more of the City' s investments if unexpected expenditures arise
3.   Return—Attainment of a market rate of return

The majority of the portfolio is invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF), which is administered by
the California State Treasurer' s office.  LAIF prov,ides the City with an investment vehicle with yields that are

slightly greater than U,.S. Treasuries (T-bills) with a 2- year maturity or less.  LAIF is a high quality investment in
terms of safety, liquidity, and yield.  Additionally, LAIF is an " On Demand" account; meaning funds may be
withdrawn upon with 1 day notice, representing maximum liquidity.

In addition to LAIF, the City holds investments in Money Market Mutual Funds, Nonnegotiable Certificates of
Deposit, and State and Local Government Securities (SLGS). These investments are prudent investment choices

and are included in the City' s Investment Policy as allowable investments.

Each investment mentioned above has a specific maturity date.  However, much of the portfolio is On Demand.
The short weighted average maturity provides the City with a great deal of liquidity during this period of
heightened economic uncertainty and period of low investment yields. This liquidity places the City to invest in

longer term maturity investments once interest rates begin to move up toward their historical norms; overall
macroeconomic indicators signal-solid and consistent growth in future years.

The following table (Table: 1) provides a summary of the City' s cash and investments, by holding party, based on
recorded value as of March 31, 2018 compared with the prior quarter:

19



Table: 1

December 31, 2017 March 31, 2018

Holding Party Fund Amounts( 1)    % of Portfolio Fund Amounts( 1)     % of Portfolio

Investments/ cash held by the City 72, 310,491 65%     72, 904,378 66%

Investments held byTrustees 38, 594,717 35%     37, 984,837 34%

OTAL 110,905, 208 100%   110,889,216 100%

1)  Small variances are due to the summation and rounding of multiple figures to the nearest whole dollar

Please see the following pages ( Tables: 2 through 5) for a more detailed analysis of transactional additions and
reductions due to cash flow needs, debt service payments, and maturities/ rollovers of certain investments.

Revenues arrived during the quarter, per City staff expectations, are as follows: utility payments, property tax,
franchise fees, sales tax ( including Measure C), developer billing fees, grant reimbursements, building permit
fees, plan check fees, and Transient Occupancy Tax( TOT).

Significant payables paid out during the quarter include:

I. Nonrecurring Expenditure Capital Improvement Projects — General Government, Parks, Streets,

Water, and Wastewater

II. Recurring Expenditures
a.   Contractual— Park& Street Landscaping, and Water Treatment Services
b.   Intergovernmental payments — San Joaquin County ( Police Services), Lathrop Manteca Fire

District

Quarterly Economic Update

According to the latest projections from the business Forecasting Center at the University of the Pacific,

California' s economy will maintain steady growth despite a slight slowdown at the beginning of the year.
Consumer spending and. residential investment, which were expected to drive growth in 2017, have increased
less than expected but remain well positioned to support future growth.   Regionally, the Central Valley is

expected to show job growth due to the booming logistics sector as it has added jobs to the trucking and
warehousing industry.   In addition, the Center estimates that most Central Valley metro areas will average
single-digit unemployment in 2017.  The strengthening housing market is lending support to manufacturing,
which was hit by deep fecieral government spending cuts and slowing global demand.  Locally, the San Joaquin
Valley area experienced a decrease in unemployment rates ( San Joaquin County: 6. 6%; City of Lathrop: 6%).

While these rates are within the forecasted levels, caution is key to carry out with the business demands of the
City.

I certify that all of the investments reported herein are in accordance with the" City of Lathrop Investment Policy" adopted on November 5, 2012, with the
Government Code, and other contractual agreements. I further certify the investments reported herein provide for the ability of the City to meet cash
flow needs for the next six months.

e,      

S en Salvatore Cari lame

City Manager Director o Fina ce

20



TABLE: 2

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments
As of March 31, 2018

o

Local Agency Investment Fund 50,837, 153 0. 228% 55.49%   50,837, 153

Wells Fargo Money Market Mutual Funds 2, 787 301 0. 000% 3. 04% 2, 787,301

a o •    e

Union Bank 6 561 968 0. 027% 7. 16% 6, 561, 968

UMB Bank 381, 650 0.000% 0. 42%    381, 650

US Bank 0.025% 0. 00%    

SJ County Pooled Funds 274,557 0.260% 0.30%    274,557

PFM Asset Management 30, 273, 862 0. 000% 33. 05%   30,273, 862

BBVA Compass Bank 492, 801 0. 230% 0.54%    492,801

e a e  

Investments Held by the City and Trustees 91, 609, 291 0. 130%       100.00%   91, 609, 291

Cash in Checking Accounts- Recorded Value 19,279,925

Weighted Average Maturity of Portfolio (days):  1

One month benchmark for U. S. Treasuries:       0. 02%

Three month benchmark for U. S. Treasuries:     0.03%

Notes:

1) See Table: 4 for detailed investments held by the City.
2) See Table: 5 for detailed investments held by Trustees.

21



TABLE: 3

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Cash Flow Analysis

As of March 31, 2018

m

o

Local Agency Investment Fund ( 1)       50,837, 153 50,837, 153

Wells Fargo Money Market Mutual Funds ( 2) 2, 784,354 2, 947 2, 787,301

a

i e s

a e ' e ' 

BBVA Compass Bank 492,424 377 492,801

SJ County Pooled Funds 276, 122 1, 564)  $     274,557

UMB Bank 417, 842 237 36, 429)  $     381,650

Union Bank( 3)       7, 779,449 991,769 2, 209,251)  $  6, 561,968

US Bank

PFM Asset Management 30, 165, 251 1, 967,201 1, 858,591)  $ 30,273, 862

m e 1: I      1 I

1 1 1

IVotes:

1) LAIF interest income is paid quarterly( Mar/ Jun/ Sept/ Dec) and received in the following month( Apr/ Jul/ Oct/ Jan).

2) Property Tax, Building permit revenue, TOT, Developer payments, and Utility payments; nonrecurring expenses paid during the month: General
government, Parks, Streets, Wastewater, and Water CIPs; also, recurring expenses: Park& street landscape maintenance, and water treatment

services; lastly, intergovernmental payments and transfers: Police Services expenses, and SSJID SCSWSP O& M expenses.

3) Interest earnings, debt service payments.

22



TABLE: 4

CITY OF LATHROP

Investment Held by City Detail
As of March 31, 2018

e e  e- e

1'      o

Local Agency Investment Fund

Money Market Fund City
Acct No. 98- 39-437

N/ A 0.257%     Varies On Demand 50, 837, 153 50,837, 153

50,837,153   $  50,837, 153

Wells Fargo Nlutual Funds

Money Market Mutual Fund City Acct No.
12641627

N/ A 0. 000%     Varies On Demand 2, 787,301 2, 787, 301

2, 787,301   $   2,787,301

23



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATFiROP

Investments Held by Trustee Detail
As of March 31, 2018

Investments Held by Union Bank by Account

03-1 Series 2015- Mossdale Village Assessment District

Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2015- Redemption Fund 0. 010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand $      

Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2005/ 2015- Reserve Fund 0. 010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand $      240, 656   $      240,656

2000 North Harlan/ mprovement District 99-07

Money Market- Reserve Account 0. 010%   7/ 12/ 00 On Demand $       92, 284  $       92, 284

Money Market- Redemption Account 0. 010%   7/ 12/ 00 On Demand $      1   $      1

2003-2A Latirrop CFD

Money Market- Interest Account 0. 010%   12/ 12/ 03 On Demand $      7   $      7

LAIF- Interest Account 0. 257%   03/ 19/ 03 On Demand $      719, 202   $      719, 202

CDPH/ CDWR- SRF Loan

Agreement Account 0.000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand $ 4, 978   $ 4,978

Agreement Account- Reserve Fund 0. 000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand $      599,310  $      599, 310

2013- 1 Mossdale Village

2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 0.000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $    10   $    10

2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 0.000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $      947,936   $      947, 936

2013- 1 Special Tax Bonds

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0.000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $    60  $    60

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0.000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $      1   $      1'

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0.000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $      263, 114  $      263, 114

2015 Crossroads Series B

2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB RDP 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $      1   $      1

2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB Reserve 0.000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $      743, 065   $      743, 065

2015 Crossroads Series B- Improvements 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $   2,951,346   $    2, 951,346

2015 Crossroads Series B- COI Custodian Agreement 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $      

Total Investments Held by Trustee- Union Bank    $   6, 561,968   $   6, 561, 968

24



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee Detail
As of March 31, 2018

e-      .   

Investments Held by BBVA Compass Bank by Account

2012 Water Loan( Refunding of 2000 Water COPsJ
Certificate of Deposit- Reserve Fund 0. 230%   4/ 24/ 13 4/ 24/ 14   $      492,801   $      492,801

Total Investments Held by Trustee- BBVA Compass Bank   $     492,801   $     492,801

Investments Held by UMB Bank by Account

2006-1 Central Lathrop Phase I Insfrastructure CFD
Special Tax Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $      295, 315   $      295, 315

Interest Fund 0.000'   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $      1  $      1

TfEE Fee& Comp Exp 0.002%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $       86, 283   $       86, 283

Reserve Fund 0.000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $      0   $      0

Improvement Fund 0.000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $    51   $    51

Total Investments Held by Trustee - UMB Bank    $      381,650   $      381, 650

Investments Held by US Bank by Account

2001A Crossroads Assessment District( Reassessment& RefundingJ

Money Market- Redemption Account 0.000%   12/ 3/ 01 On Demand $      

LAIF- Reserve Account 0. 257%   12/ 3/ 01 On Demand $      

Total Investments Held by Trustee- US Bank    $      

Investments Held by San Joaquin County by Account

Sanitary Sewer Assessment District# 1

Pooled Funds- Redemption Account 0. 260%   10/ 1/ 87 On Demand $      274,557   $      274,557

Total Investments Held by Trustee- San Joaquin County   $      274,557   $      274,557

25



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investrnents Held by Trustee Detail
As of March 31, 2018

e-    .     

Investments Field by PFM Asset Management by Account

PFM Asset Management

Money Market Fund 0. 000%   5/ 28/ 15 05/ 28/ 15   $       21,995   $       21,995

US Treasury Notes 912828TC4 1. 00%    12/ 1/ 16 6/ 30/ 19   $   1, 019, 677  $    1, 019, 677

US Treasury Notes 9128282K5 1. 38%    7/ 31/ 17 7/ 31/ 19   $      296, 731  $      296,731

US Treasury Notes 912828WW6 1. 63%    7/ 31/ 14 7/ 31/ 19   $      645, 125   $      645, 125

US Treasury Notes 912828UL2 1. 38%    1/ 31/ 13 1/ 31/ 20   $     408,483   $      408,483

US Treasury Notes 912828H52 1. 25%    12/ 1/ 16 1/ 31/ 20   $      883, 477   $      883,477

US Treasury Notes 912828H52 1. 25%     2/ 2/ 15 1/ 31/ 20   $    1, 766, 954  $    1, 766,954

US Treasury Notes 912828W22 1. 38%    2/ 15/ 17 2/ 15/ 20   $      786, 656   $      786, 656

US Treasury Notes 912828J84 1. 38%    3/ 31/ 15 3/ 31/ 20   $    1, 178, 344  $    1, 178,344

US Treasury Notes 912828K58 1. 38%    4/ 30/ 15 4/ 30/ 20   $      980, 820   $      980,820

US Treasury Notes 912828XE5 1. 50%     6/ 1/ 15 5/ 31/ 20   $      417,596   $      417,596

US Treasury Notes 912828XH8 1. 63%    6/ 30/ 15 6/ 30/ 20   $   1, 501, 410   $    1, 501,410

US Treasury Notes 912828XM7 1. 63%    7/ 31/ 15 7/ 31/ 20   $      737, 959   $      737,959

US Treasury Notes 912828L32 1. 38%    8/ 31/ 15 8/ 31/ 20   $   1, 025, 964  $    1, 025, 964

US Treasury Notes 912828L99 1. 38%   10/ 31/ 15 10/ 31/ 20   $   1, 023, 996   $    1, 023, 996

US Treasury Notes 912828M98 1. 63%   11/ 30/ 15 11/ 30/ 20   $      588, 422   $      588,422

US Treasury Notes 912828N48 1. 75%   12/ 31/ 15 12/ 31/ 20   $      796, 552   $      796,552

US Treasury Notes 912828N48 1. 75%   12/ 31/ 15 12/ 31/ 20   $   1, 130, 908   $    1, 130,908

US Treasury Notes 912828N89 1. 38%    1/ 31/ 16 1/ 31/ 21   $      486, 114  $      486, 114

US Treasury Notes 912828N89 1. 38%    1/ 31/ 16 1/ 31/ 21   $      665, 976   $      665, 976

US Treasury Notes 912828C57 2. 25%    3/ 31/ 14 3/ 31/ 21   $      472,922   $      472,922

US Treasury Notes 912828C57 2. 25%    3/ 31/ 14 3/ 31/ 21   $      572, 484   $      572, 484

26



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee Detail
As of March 31, 201

Federal Agency Bond/ Note
FHLMC Reference Note 3137EAEA3 0. 83%     4/ 7/ 16 4/ 9/ 18    $       74, 985   $       74, 985

FHLB Global Notes 3130A9AE1 0. 88%    8/ 26/ 16 10/ 01/ 18   $      452,451   $      452,451

FHLMC Reference Note 3137EAED7 0. 88%    9/ 16/ 16 10/ 12/ 18   $      646, 381   $      646, 381

FHLB Notes 3130AAE46 1. 25%    12/ 7/ 16 01/ 16/ 19   $      551, 259   $      551, 259

FNMA Benchmark Note 3135G0J53 1. 00%    2/ 19/ 16 2/ 26/ 19   $      494, 760  $      494,760

FNMA Benchmark Note 3135GOJ53 1. 00%    4/ 28/ 16 2/ 26/ 19   $   2, 948, 770  $    2, 948, 770

FHLMC Notes 3137EACA5 3. 75%     3/ 2/ 16 3/ 27/ 19   $      999,844  $      999, 844

Freddie Mac Notes 3137EADZ9 1. 13%    4/ 27/ 16 4/ 15/ 19   $      148, 402  $      148, 402

FHLB Global Notes 3130A8DB6 1. 13%     6/ 2/ 16 6/ 21/ 19   $      345, 532  $      345, 532

FHLB Global Notes 3130A8D66 1. 13%    6/ 27/ 16 6/ 21/ 19   $      765, 106   $      765, 106

FHLB Global Notes 3130A8D66 1. 13%     6/ 3/ 16 6/ 21/ 19   $   1, 011, 914  $    1, 011,914

FHLMC Reference Note 3137EAEB1 0.88%    7/ 20/ 16 7/ 19/ 19   $      280, 105   $      280, 105

FHLMC Reference Note         3137EAEB1 0.88%    10/ 3/ 16 7/ 19/ 19   $      884, 543   $      884,543

FNMA Benchmark Note 3135GON33 0. 88%     8/ 2/ 16 08/ 02/ 19   $      883, 814   $      883, 814

FNMA Notes 3135GOP49 1. 00%     9/ 2/ 16 08/ 28/ 19   $   1, 514,448   $    1, 514,448

FNMA Notes 3135GOT29 1. 50%    2/ 28/ 17 2/ 28/ 20   $      295, 472   $      295, 472

FHLMCAgency Notes 3137EAEF2 1. 38%    4/ 20/ 17 4/ 20/ 20   $      490, 465   $      490,465

Interest

Accrued Interest 77, 050   $       77, 050

Total Investments Held by Trustee- PFM Asset Management    $  30, 273, 862   $  30, 273, 862

Investments made per CLSP Bond Indenture

27



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee Detail
As of March 31, 2018

Investments Held by Union Bank by Account

03-I Series 2015- Mossdale Villoge Assessment District

Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2015- Redemption Fund 0.010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand $      

Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2005/ 2015- Reserve Fund 0.010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand $      240, 656   $      240, 656

2000 North Harlan/ mprovement District 99-01

Money Market- Reserve Account 0.010%   7/ 12/ 00 On Demand $       92, 284   $       92, 284

Money Market- Redemption Account 0.010%   7/ 12/ 00 On Demand $      1   $      1

2003-2A Lathrop CFD

Money Market- Interest Account 0.010%   12/ 12/ 03 On Demand $      7   $      7

LAIF- Interest Account 0. 257%   03/ 19/ 03 On Demand $      719, 202   $      719, 202

CDPH/ CDWR- SRFLoan

Agreement Account 0.000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand $ 4, 978   $ 4,978

Agreement Account- Reserve Fund 0. 000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand $      599, 310   $      599, 310

2013- 1 Mossdale Village

2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $    10   $    10

2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $      947, 936   $      947, 936

2013- 15pecial Tax Bonds

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $    60   $    60

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $      1   $      1

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand $      263, 114  $      263, 114

2015 Crossroads Series B

2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB RDP 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $      1   $      1

2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB Reserve 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $      743, 065   $      743,065

2015 Crossroads Series B- Improvements 0. 000%,   9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $   2,951,346.  $    2, 951,346

2015 Crossroads Series B- COI Custodian Agreement 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand $      

Total Investments Held by Trustee - Union Bank    $   6,561,968   $   6, 561,968

28



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee Detail
As of IVlarch 31, 2018

Investments Held by BBVA Compass Bank by Account

2012 Water Coan( Refunding of2000 Water COPsJ
Certificate of Deposit- Reserve Fund 0. 230%   4/ 24/ 13 4/ 24/ 14   $      492,801   $      492, 801

Total Investments Held by Trustee- BBVA Compass Bank   $     492,801   $     492,801

Investments Held by UMB Bank by Account

i 2006-1 Central Lathrop Phase I/ nsfrastructure CFD
Special Tax Fund 0.000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $      295,315   $      295, 315

Interest Fund 0.000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $      1  $      1

TTEE Fee& Comp Exp 0.002%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $       86, 283   $       86, 283

Reserve Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $      0   $      0

Improvement Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand $    51   $    51

Total Investments Held by Trustee- UMB Bank    $     381,650   $      381,650

Investments Held by US Bank by Account

2001A Crossroads Assessment District( Reassessment& Refunding)

Money Market- Redemption Account 0.000%   12/ 3/ 01 On Demand $      

LAIF- Reserve Account 0. 257%   12/ 3/ 01 On Demand $      

Total Investments Held by Trustee- US Bank    $      

Investments Held by San Joaquin County by Account

Sanitary Sewer Assessment District f1
Pooled Funds- Redemption Account 0. 260%   10/ 1/ 87 On Demand $      274, 557   $      274, 557

Total Investments Held by Trustee- San Joaquin County   $      274,557   $      274, 557

29



30



ITEM 4.4

OIaDINAfVCE NO. 18- 39

AIV ORDINANCE OF HE CITY COl1RICIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ADOPTING
14N AMENDMEidT TO LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 10 / EHICLES 14ND

TR IFFIC", CI-IAPTER 10. 24 PARKING", SECTION 10. 24a160 VIOLATIOR -

PENALTY"  i"O COMPLY WITH S ATE ASSEMBLY BILL 503 AND ADOPT

PAYI IEIVT PLAIV OPTIONS

11Al/HEREAS, State Assembly Bill 503 was approved by the Governor on October
13, 2017 to remove barriers that prevent Californians from registering their vehicles
if they have been mailed a notice of delinquent parking penalties; and

WHEREAS, adding the cost of parking violations to the cost of registering a
motor vehicle can prevent indigent Californians from being able to afford their
registration fees; and

1IVHEREAS, AB 503 enables owners/ lessees who are able to prove indigence

to set up a payment plan without increased fines and allows owners/ lessees to file
an affidavit of non- use to prevent penalties exceeding 100 percent of the original
registration fee; and

11VHEREAS,  the City Council believes it is sound public policy to remove
barriers that prevent indigent persons with parking citation fines from registering
their vehicles;

NOW, THEfSEFORE, THE CI Y COl1NCIL OF TI E CITY OF LATHROP DOES
HEREBI( OIZDAIN 4S FOLLOW:

Section 1. lrnendment.

Chapter 10. 24. 160 of the LMC is hereby amended as follows:

10. 24. 160 / iolation—Penalty.

Pursuant to California Vehicle Code Section 40203. 5,  the following parking
penalties are established by ordinance or resolution by the city council:

A.       Lathrop Municipal Code: Chapter 10. 24.

B.       California Vehicle Code:  A violation of any California Vehicle Code
section shall be punishable at the rate of fifty- five dollars  ($ 55. 00)  per violation

unless otherwise specified. A violation of California Vehicle Code Section 22500( I) or

California Vehicle Code Section 22.507. 8 shall be punishable at the rate of two-
hundred eighty- five dollars ($ 285. 00) for each violation.

C.       Any person,  firm,  or corporation violating any of the provisions of
Section 10. 24. 150 shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction
thereof; shall be punishable as provided in Section 1. 16. 010.

Ordinance 18- 392 Page 1

31



D.       A violation of any other parking control or restriction not otherwise
contained in this chapter shall be punishable at the rate of fifty- five dollars ($ 55. 00)

per violation unless otherwise specified.

E.       Two types of Payment Plans are available for payment of parking fines.

Indic ent Pavment Plan

If approved, a $ 5. 00 fee will be added to the citation and all late charqes

and penalty assessments excluding state surcharges will be waivedL
contingent upon providing proof of indigence.     Community service is
not offered as an option,  in lieu of payment.    Acceptable proof of

indigence shall be one of the following:

Supplementation of SociaO Secur°itv/ State Su Oerr eratarY
Pavment;

Provide a copy of 2 most recent benefit check stubs or statements
and certification from countv Social Services office.

Ca/ WO eCS / Tribal TAMFc

Provide a copy of Golden State Advantage Card ( EBT

511IAP:

Provide a copy of Golden State Advantage Card ( EBT

Courr r Relief/ General ReOief/ General Assistance, CAPI:

Provide a copy of County Service Office Verification

If SS and /Wedi Cale

Provide a copy of Medi- cal Card

Income 125% ederai Povertv Leve! ( FPL):

Provide a copy of last income tax forms,  paystub and bank

statement showing income.

Non- Indigent Pavrnent Plan

If approved for a Non- Indigent Payment Plan, a $ 25. 00 fee will be added

to the citation.   Individuals seeking to place their parking citation on a
payment plan, exclusive of indigence status are not required to submit

supporting documentation.    Community Service is not offered as an
option, in lieu of payment.  ( Ord. 09- 294 §§ 2, 3; Ord. 09- 293 §§ 2, 3;
Ord. 04- 231 §§ 2, 3; Ord. 93- 104 Ord. 18-     )

Ordinance 18- 392 Page 2

32



Section 2.  Duty of Care. This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed

or given effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee
thereof a mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the
city so as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed
by law.

Section 3.  Severabilitv.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof
to any person or circumstance is held invalid,  the remainder of the Ordinance,

including the application of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances
shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect.  To this end,

provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence;

clause,  or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections,
subsections,  subdivisions,  paragraphs,  sentences,  clauses,  or phrases be held

unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable.

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become efFective on ] uly 1, 2018.

Section 5.    Publication.    The City Clerk shall certify to the introduction of this
ordinance and shall publish a summary thereof and post a certified copy of the full
ordinance in the office of the City Clerk at least five days prior to the adoption of the
proposed ordinance;  and within fifteen days after adoption,  the City Clerk shall
publish a summary of the ordinance with the names of the members of the City of
Lathrop City Council voting for and against the same.

Ordinance 18- 392 Page 3

33



THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the 9t'' day of April 2018, and was PASSED AND
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the 14tn
day of May 2018, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance 18- 392 Page 4

34



ITEM 4.5    '

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       RATIFICATION OF THE SAN 70AQUIN COUNCIL OF

GOVERNMENTS' ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Ratifying the San 7oaquin Council
of Governments ( S7COG) Annual Financial Plan for

FY 2018/ 19

BACKGROUND:

The San Joaquin Council of Governments' ( SJCOG) Annual Financial Plan ( AFP) for

Fiscal Year 2018/ 2019 was adopted by their Board on March 22,  2018.   The AFP

provides a detail of expenditures by cost category and line item comparing the
proposed 2018/ 2019 budgets with the current fiscal year's ( FY 2017/ 18) adopted

budget.

Every year, in anticipation of the new fiscal budget year, SJCOG provides a letter,
resolution,  and report requesting that each City ratify SJOCG' s Annual Financial
Plan for the upcoming fiscal year.  Attached and referenced herein as Attachment B

is the proposed Fiscal Year Budget for 2018/ 2019.

Similar requests from SJCOG have been submitted to participating Cities and
ratified annually for the past 17 years.     

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The SJCOG Joint Powers Agreement requires that the Annual Financial Plan be

delivered to its jurisdictional member agencies for ratification.    Therefore,  staff

recommends ratification of SJCOG' s Annual Financial Plan for Fiscal Year

2018/ 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No direct fiscal impact for the City of Lathrop.   However, the SJCOG letter dated

March 30, 2018, highlights the following significant changes to SJCOG' s budget for
FY 18/ 19 when compared to the prior FY 17/ 18:

General Fund Operating Revenues increased by $ 1, 033, 110;

Budgeted Expenses are $ 9, 787, 683;

Benefits increased by 6. 1%;
Services and Supplies increased by 2. 6%;
Training & Travel increased by 3. 9%;
Professional Services increased by 21. 8%; and

Fixed Assets were reduced by $ 150, 000.

35



CITY MAIVAGER' S REPORT

MAl( 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

Rp TIFICATION OF SJCOG NNUAL FINANCI L PLAIV FOR FY 18/ 19

ATTAC H f l E NTS:

A.  Resolution Ratifying the San Joaquin Council of Governments Annual
Financial Plan for FY 2017/ 18

B.  Letter from SJCOG Dated March 30, 2018

C.  SJCOG Resolution R- 18- 33 Adopting the FY 2018/ 19 AFP

A PPRO\// LS:

it/      i 8
resa Vargas Date

City Clerk

l
Cari Jame Date

Finance Direc or

l
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

0

S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

36



RE OLUTIOIV NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUle1CIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

R TIFI IRIG THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMEfNTS' ANNdJAL

FINANCIAL PL 4N FOR FY 2018/ 2019

10VHEREAS, the San Joaquin Council of Governments' ( SJCOG) Board

approved the Annual Financial Plan for SJCOG on March 22, 2018; and

1A/ WEREAS, the Annual Financial Plan provides a detail of expenditures by
cost category and line item comparing the proposed 2018/ 19 budgets with the
current fiscal year's ( FY 2017/ 18) adopted budget; and

WHEREAS, every year, in anticipation of the new fiscal budget year, SJCOG
provides a letter, resolution, and report from SJCOG requesting that each City ratify
their Annual Financial Plan for upcoming Fiscal Year; and

1A/ HEREAS, the SJCOG Joint Powers Agreement requires that the Financial

Plan be delivered to its member agencies for ratification;

NOaIV, THEREFOFtE, E IT RESOL!! ED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby ratifies the FY 2018/ 19 Annual financial Plan for the San Joaquin
Council of Governments.

PASSED AND DOPTED this 14th

day of May 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAI N:

Sonny Dhaliwal, I layor

A'TTEST: APPROVED AS TO ORIVI:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

37



s

S55 E. WeberAvenue •  Stockton, Califo» iia 95202 • P 209.235.0600 • F 209.235.0438 •  ivww.sjcog.oi•g

March.30, 2018

Stephen J Salvatore TTACHMENT ..
Kathe z leMiller Clty Of.I.atI1TOp .

c" A'R 390 Towrie Centre Drive

nob, rx; r a, Latluop, CA 95330     .       
VICE CHAIR

Andrew T. Chesley Deax 1VIr: Stephen Salvatore:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

te„ 1 e,. Age;1 les Enclosed is a summary of the San Joaquin Council of Governments' Annual Financial Plan
CITIES OF AFP) for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19. The Board adopted the Plan on March 22, 2018. A copy
LATHROP,   of the adopting resolution is enclosed. Pursuant to SJCOG's Joint Powers Agreement,

LODI,      following adoption of the budget by the SJCOG Board, it is to be delivered to member
MANTECA,   agencies for ratification by each governing body. Approval by governing bodies
STOCKfON,   representing 55% or more of the county's population is considered ratifieation.

TRACY,

THE COUNTY OF SAN
Therefore, SJCOG requests you place SJCOG's Annual Financial Plan for Fiscal Year

oa uiN 2018/ 19 on a forthcoming agenda prior to June 30, 2018 for approval.

The Annual Financial Plan implements the FY 2018/ 19 Overall Work Program( OWP)

that was also adopted by the SJCOG Board on March 22, 2016.

The attached Annual Financial Plan (AFP) provides a detail of expenditures by cost
category and line item comparing the proposed FY 2018/ 19 budgets with the current year
FY 2017/18) adopted budget, as most recently amended along with FY 2016/ 17 actual

expenditures. The Annual Financial Plan represents the general fund budget for SJCOG:

The revenues and expenditures in the AFP are the same as the Overall Work Program

OWP) presented in a traditional line item format compared to the work element format of
the OWP.

The attached includes a summary of revenues and expenditures in the AFP and schedules
detailing each of those categories ( Revenues, Service and Supplies, Trarisportation,
training and travel, Professional Services and Pass through).

Readers should note several differences between SJCOG and member agency' s budgets:
SJCOG revenue sources are quite differerit from our member agencies. For

example, Federal Highways Administration (FHWA) PL and Federal Transit

Administration (FTA) 5303 funds are only available to Metropolitan Planning
Organizations.

SJCOG employs staff on an at-will basis vis- a- vis civil service and has its own.
employee handbook and policies.

SJCOG has its own Financial and Accounting Policy guiding our financial matters
including procurement procedures.
As noted below, SJCOG offers a defined contribution retirement plan to its SJCOG

has no Ca1PERS or post employments benefit obligations except limited sick leave

38



SJCOG Annua] Financial Plan

Marcl 30, 2018

Page 2

conversion as noted.

The following assumptions are incorporated in the budget:
l.  Work will not begin and expenses will not be incurred unless anticipated revenue sources

are secured.

2.  SJCOG is fully staffed at 33 employees. The budget includes a 5% pool that can be drawn

upon by the Executive Director for merit-based increases. The fiill impact of that pool is
incorporated into the salary driven benefits (retirement, Medicare, disability).

3.  SJCOG has no significant liability exposure for post-employment benefits.
a.   The employee retirement program is a defined contribution program managed by

the International City Managers Association Retirement Program.
b.  SJCOG employee vacation accruals are capped at two times the indivicival' s anrinal

leave.

c:   Upon retirement (50 years of age/20 years of SJCOG employment), an employee

can convert accrued sick leave hours to pay for health care premiums until their
sick leave account is exhausted and is based upon the employee' s salary at
retirement. There is no inflation factor in post-retirement years. Payout is limited to

a maximum of one year' s value of documented premium costs per year.

REVENUES

Compared to the current year amended AFP, SJCOG general fund operating revenues have
increased $ 1, 033, 110 from$ 8, 754,573 to $9,787,683 or 10. 6°Io higher. Budgeted expenditures are

9;787, 683. Overall, federal funding for general fund activities is higher than FY 2017/ 18 due to
RSTP carrying over from FY 17/ 18, slight increases in FHWA planning funds (PL) and FTA
MPO planning funds ( 5303). In addition, $100,000 of previous year' s FTA funds is being
programmed. SJCOG receives the PL and 530 allocation estimates in a range. We are budgeting
on the low side of the range. The high end of the range could raise those two sources by $60,000.
This will not be determined until Caltrans receives the final apportionment and obligation

authority from US DOT.

State funding sources are $467,303 higher or 31. 35% primarily due to an allocation of SB 1
funding for both FY 17/ 18 and FY 18/ 19 and additional Freeway Service Patrol funding. In
addition, SJCOG received a Rural Planning Assistance allocation in the amount of$ 80,000. These
funds w'ill be spent by CALCOG.  Loca1 revenues are higher by $ 155, 433 or 3. 74°Io due to

increased sales tax-based revenues.

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Benefits are proposed to increase by 6. 1% $ 4, 135, 664 to $4,418,039, when

compared to FY 17/ 181evels. The primary reason for the increase is due to an increase in medical
and dental premiums. The budget includes a 5% pool for merit-based raises. The salary-driven
benefits adjust accordingly.

Services and Supplies is proposed to be increase slightly by 2.6°Io $ 1, 177, 200 to $ 1, 208,700 due

to increase in building maintenance and utilities and communication expenses. There is a
reclassification of$ 75,000 between Rents & Leases— Equipment and SJCOG Building Debt
Service Principal and Interest, however, the net change is zero.

T ansportation, travel and training is proposed to increase slightly by 3. 9% $ 4,500. This

includes all in and out-of-state travel, subsistence, training and rideshare incentive.

39



SJCOG Anmial Financial Plan

March 30, 2018

Page 3

Professional Services is increasing 21. 8°Io from$ 3, 121, 209 to $3, 990,444 reflecting the increase
in Route 99/ 120 PA & ED anticipated consulting work in the OWP. Approximately 1/ 3 of this
budget category pays for Route 99/ 120 PA.& ED consulting work. In addition, this is the category
furiding the CALCOG expenses.

Fixed Assets reduction of$ 150,000 marks the completion/ installation of the ERP Accounting
System impleinentation.

SJCOG staff would be pleased to appear before your policymakers to answer any questions they
might have regarding this matter. We request ratification prior to June 30, 2018 Please let me
know when this will be on your agenda. If you have any questions regardirig this matter, don't
hesitate to contact me at 235-0600.

Thank you for your assistanee.

Sincerely,     

STEVE DIAL

Deputy Executive Director/Chief Financial Officer

40



A'T'TACH IVIENT .
RESOLUTION

SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

R-18-33

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF THE 2018- 19

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Wf- REAS, the San Joaquin Council of Governments is required by the Joint Powers
Agreement to adopt a budget( Annual Financial Plan) annually, and

WHEREAS, the adopted budget is to be sent to the member agencies for ratification.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the San Joaquin Council of Governments

adopts the FY 2018- 19 Annual Financial Plan and directs the Executive Director to transmit it to

the member agencies for ratification.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of March 2018 by the following vote of the San
Joaquin Council of Governments, to wit:

AYES: Tesus Andrade, City of Stockton; Steve DeBrum, City of Manteca; Steve Dresser, City of
Lathrop; Bob Elliot, San Joaquin County; Elbert Holman, City of Stockton; Doug
Kuehne, City of Lodi; Susan Loftus, City of Stockton; Kathy Miller, San Joaquin County;
Walt Murken, City of Escalon; Chuck Winn, San Joaquin County; and Leo Zuber, City
of Ripon.

NOES:

ASSENT:  Robert Rickman, City of Tracy.

I
THE MII.LER

Ch '

41



San Joaquin Council of Governments

AfVNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

Fiscal Year 2018/ 2019

Adopted March 22, 2018

CHAIR

Supervisor Katherine Miller, County of San Joaquin

VICE- CHAIR

Mayor Robert Rickman, City of Tracy

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mayor Jeff Laugero City of Escalon

Councilmember poug Kuehne City of Lodi
Councilmember Leo Zuber City of Ripon
Councilmember Steve Dresser City of Lathrop
Councilmember Jesus Andrade City of Stockton
Supervisor Bob Elliott County of San Joaquin
Supervisor Chuck Winn County of San Joaquin
Vice Mayor Elbert Holman City of Stockton
Councilmember Susan Loftus City of Stockton
Mayor Stephen DeBrum City of Manteca

EX OFFICIO DIRECTORS

Ken Baxter Caltrans District 10

Gary Giovanetti, Director San Joaquin Regional Transit District

Victor Mow, Commissioner Port of Stockton

SUBMITTED BY:

Andrew T. Chesley
Executive Director

Steve Dial

Deputy Executive Director/
Chief Financial Officer

42



San Joaquin Council of Governments

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

Adopted March 22, 2018

FY 2016-17 FY 2017- 18 FY 2018- 19 - 

REVENUES Actual Amd# 2 Adopted 3/ 22/ 18 Change Change

Federal Grants 2, 685,619  $      3, 709, 166  $     4;119;540  $     410,374 9. 96%

State Grents 692,611  $      1, 023,492  $     1, 490,795  $     467,303 31.35

Local 3, 703,696  $      4,001,915  $     4,157,348  $     155,433 3. 74% .

Interest 9, 408  $  5, 000 :$ 5; 000  $ 0. 00%

Other sa,oia S ss,000 : S 1s, 000  $ o.00i

7, 145,358  $      8, 754,573 $     9, 787;683!.$   1, 033, 110 10.6%

EXPENDITURES

Salaries& Benefits $      3, 740,424  $      4,135, 664  $   ' 4,406;539'  $     270,875 6. 1%

Services& Supplies $      1, 020,985  $      1, 177,200  $    _ 1, 208,700" $      31,500 2. 6%

Office Expense  $ 232,487  $ 256,200  $,       256,200.  $ 0. 0%

Communications $ 64,516  $ 56, 000  $%       66;000  $      10, 000 15. 2%

Memberships $ 47,853  $ 56,000  $      , 56;000  $ 0. 0%

Maintenance- Equipment $  6, 185  $ 13, 000  $ 13,000: $ 0. 0%

Rents& Leases- Equipment $ 140;574  $ 300,000 °$       225,000  $     ( 75,000) 333%

Transportation,Trevel& Training( In& Out of State) $ 112,090  $ 110,000  $       114,500  $       4,500 3. 9%

Publications& Legal Notices $  9, 172  $  3, 000  $ ',     , 10,000:  $       7, 000 70.0%

Insurance $ 98, 108  $ 108,000 °$ ' ; K ' 108,000• $ 0. 0%

Building Operetions& Maintenance $ 177,727  $ 175, 000  $ ''  ,  185,000` $      10, 000 5. 4%

SJCOG Building Debt Service Principal and Interest $ 132,273  $ 100,000  $',      1Z5,000'  $      75, 000 42.9%

Professional Services $      2, 324,517  $      3, 121,209  $     3, 976,944  $     855,736 21.5%

CapitalOutlay $ 124,482  $ 320,500  $`      195;'S00` $    ( 125,000) 63. 9%

Unallocated/ Reserve

SJCOG OPERATING EXPENDITURES 7, 230,408  $      8, 754,573 $     9,787,683.] $   1,033, 110 10.6%

43



44



ITEM 4. 6

CYTY MAN GER' S REPORT

MI 41( 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGlJL 4R MEETING

ITEM:       BAY ALARM C01 1PAI iI(   SECURITY,   FIRE ALARM,

ACCESS CONTItOL,  ND EQUIPMEIVT ISl'ALL/ATION

AfVD MAINTENANCE SER\/ ICES AGREEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     a dopt a Itesolution Authorizing an Agreement with
ay Alarm Company for Security, Fire / larm, Acces

Control,      and Equipment Installation and

Maintenance Services

SUMMARY:

The City uses Bay Alarm Company for security, fire alarm, and access control services
at numerous City facilities. The current Bay Alarm Company agreement will expire at
the end of June 2018 and continued services are necessary to safeguard city facilities.
Obtaining additional quotes for similar services would require new equipment
installation, which would result in a substantially higher cost to the City. Therefore,
staff has negotiated new rates with Bay Alarm as shown on Table 1.

Table 1
x. .      

Add On .,
Proposed Facility - RI - ,     -  Total

Projected ` Annual Pumping°   Proposed
Term A nnual Cost Cost Station, .       Contract Cost

15t Year -  FY18/ 19      $ 71, 349 68, 495 68, 495

2" d Year - FY19/ 20      $ 71 349 65, 070 22, 800*   87 870

3 d Year - FY20/ 21      $ 71, 349 61, 166 7, 896 69, 062
4th Year - FY21/ 22      $ 71, 349 56 884 7, 344 64 228

includes one-time equipment installation fee of $14, 400

Bay Alarm' s proposal encompasses a 4- year term agreement with a potential cost
savings of up to 20% for existing services.

Tonight staff is recommending that the City Council approve the 4- year agreement
with Bay Alarm Company to provide security, fire alarm, and access control services
for City facilities along with equipment installation and new monitoring services at
the River Islands Pumping Station in 2019.

ACICG It011 N D:

Bay Alarm Company has provided security, fire alarm, and access control services at
numerous City facilities for over twenty years.   On January 24, 2011, City Council
approved an agreement with Bay Alarm Company to provide equipment and services
at City facilities for a term of five years.   Subsequently, Contract Amendments No' s
1- 5 added services for the City's Corporation Yard,  the Louise Avenue Water

Treatment Facility, Senior Center, Police Services Facility, Generations Center,

45



CITY MAIdAGER' REPORT PAGE 2

M# Y 14, 201 CITY COUIVCIL REC9UL/ IZ ME TINCa

BAY ALARM COMPANY ACFtEEMEIVT

and M3 Sub Station.  The current 3- year agreement with Bay Alarm Company,
approved by the City Council on August 17, 2015, will expire at the end of June,  `

2018.  Continued,  and new,  security,  fire alarm,  and access control services are

necessary to safeguard City facilities.

Staff has negotiated new rates for continued and new services, which are shown on

Table 2 below.

Table 2

St:te., .  ,
a

Currerat m  .

15t Year    2° d, Y ar  , ;:,,3 ax Year a
z°  . tn Yea;r°

Annual Annual Annual Annual Annuai

n ,..       °  .   -       , ee , n

n

Fee, _  ,        Fee.°      - •   Fee      .°     Fee
y, .         

Booster Station 1 2 263 2 173 2, 064 1, 940 1, 804

Booster Station 2 3 867 3 712 3, 527 3, 315 3, 083

Booster Station 3 3 670 3 524 3, 34,7 3 146 2 926

Booster Station 4 3 936 3, 779 3, 590 3 374 3 138

Cit Hall 6 150 5 904 5, 609 5 272 4 903

Communit Center 5 756 5 526 5, 250 4 935 4 589

Cor oration Yard 10, 007 9, 607 9, 127 8, 579 7, 978

Generations Center 5 904 5 668 5, 384 5, 061 4 707

Police Facilit 1, 358 1, 304 1, 238 1, 164 1, 083

Senior Center 935 897 853      801 745

Treatment Center 7, 477 7, 178 6, 819 6, 410 5, 961

Christo her Wa

Well 6 2 421 2 324 2, 208 2 075 1 930

Well7 2, 598 2, 494 2, 369 2, 227 2, 071

Well 8 2 765 2 654 2, 522.   2, 370 2 204

Well9 3, 306 3, 174 3, 015 2, 834 2, 636

Well 10 3, 503 3 363 3, 195 3 003 2, 793

Well 21 4 674 4, 487 4, 263 4 007 3 726

Stonebrid e 758 727 691 650 604

RI Pum in Station 0 0 8,400 7, 896 7,344

One time Equipment 14,400

Installation Fees

nnuai Fees     $ 71, 349>    $68.,495      $ 87,870. -    $ 69, 062       `$ 4, 228

REASON FOIt ItECOMMENDATION:

The current Bay Alarm Company security, fire alarm,  and access control services

agreement will expire at the end of June 2018 and continued, and new, services is

necessary to safeguard City facilities. Staff has negotiated new rates for up to a 4-
year term agreement with Bay Alarm Company. Staff recommends Council approve
the attached 4- year term agreement with Bay Atarm Company, which will decrease
the City' s annual expense for the security, fire alarm, and access control services up
to 20. 27%  for its existing services,  and approves new services and equipment

installation at the River Islands Pumping Station at the end of calendar year 2019.

46



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT _ PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

FISCAL IMPACT•

Security services fees are included in the FY 2018/ 19 budget. Approval of the Bay
Alarm Company Agreement will result in a cost savings to the City.

CITY COUNCIL GOALS:

This proposed action promotes A feeling of Safety," by ensuring security services
for City facilities.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Bay Alarm Company for Security, Fire
Alarm, Access Control, and Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services.

B.  Agreement with Bay Alarm Company for Security, Fire Alarm, Access Control, and
Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services

47



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

APPROVALS:

y-  -  g
T rnandes Date

nformation Technologies Manager

1    I
Cari J me Date

Director of Fi an e

y-  6-
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

5•Z• S

S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

48



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH BAY ALARM COMPANY FOR SECURITY,

FIRE ALARM, ACCESS CONTROL, AND EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION AND

MAINTENANCE SERVICES

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2011, City Council approved an agreement with
Bay Alarm to provide Security Alarm Equipment and Services to safeguard the City' s
facilities for a term of five years; and

WHEREAS, contract amendments numbers 1- 5 were subsequently approved
which added security services at additional City facilities; and

WHEREAS, on August 17, 2015, City Council approved a 3- year agreement
with Bay Alarm which expires on June 30, 2018 and continued, and new, services are
necessary; and

WHEREAS, Obtaining additional quotes for similar services would require
new equipment installation, which would result in a substantially higher cost to the
City; and

WHEREAS, Staff has negotiated lower service rates, for up to a 4- year term
agreement, for its existing facilities, along with equipment installation and new
monitoring service at the River Islands Pumping Station; and

WHEREAS, the 4- year term agreement with Bay Alarm reflects a cost .
savings of up to 20. 27% for existing services; and

WHEREAS, security system services are included in the fiscal year 2018- 19
budget; and

WHEREAS, staff requests City Council to approve a 4- year term agreement
with Bay Alarm Company which decreases the annual expense for security, fire
alarm, and access control system up to 20. 27% on the fourth year compared to

current rates for existing service and adds new services and equipment at the River
Islands Pumping Station in 2019.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby authorize a 4- year term agreement with Bay alarm Company
for security,  fire alarm,  access control systems,  and equipment installation and

maintenance services for an annual cost not to exceed  $ 68, 495 the first year,

87, 870 the second year ($ 73, 470 for system services and $ 14, 400 for equipment

installation), $ 69, 062 the third year, and $ 64, 228 the fourth year.

Page 1 of 2

49



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May, 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 2 of 2

50



AGREEMENT FOR SECURITY, FIRE ALARM, ACCESS CONTROL,

AND EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND BAY ALARM COMPANY

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 14th day of May, 2018 is by and
between Bay Alarm Company  ("CONTRACTOR")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a

California municipal corporation ("CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Security Systems Services, which will be required by this agreement;

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONTRACTOR as the most qualified to perform

these services;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is willing to render such security, fire alarm, access
control and equipment installation and maintenance services, as hereinafter defined,

on the following terms and conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONTRACTOR and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONTRACTOR agrees to perform services in conformance with scope of work,

Exhibit A, submitted by the CONTRACTOR, herein by reference.  CONTRACTOR

agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance with the standards of its
profession and CITY'S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONTRACTOR a total not to exceed amount of
68,495 for the first year, $ 87,870 for the second year ( includes $ 73,470 for

security services and $ 14,400 for equipment installation), $ 69, 062 for the third

year,  and $ 64,228 for the fourth year for the services incorporated herein by
reference, notwithstanding any contrary indications, which may be contained in
Exhibit" A". CONTRACTOR shall be paid within thirty( 30) days of receipt of billings
containing all information contained in Paragraph 5 below.   In no event shall

CONTRACTOR be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit °'A"

unless CITY's City Manager executes a written change order or authorization .
describing the extra work and payment terms prior to the commencement of the
work.

51



CITY OF LATHROP-

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is July 1st, 2018, and it shall terminate no
later than June 30, 2022 provided, CONTRACTOR shall be given thirty (30)
days' written notice of CITY's intention to renew or not to renew this agreement.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONTRACTOR, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONTRACTOR expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,
that CONTRACTOR is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONTRACTOR' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONTRACTOR shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services perFormed by more than one person. In no event shall CONTRACTOR
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task or for the entire Agreement,

unless modified by a properly executed change order.      

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONTRACTOR shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of
all significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder,
and shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to
monitor the perFormance of this Agreement.

7)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONTRACTOR. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein
may be assigned by CONTRACTOR without the prior written approval of CITY'S
City Manager.     CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract any portion of the

performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S City Manager.

8)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONTRACTOR shall assign only competent personnel to perform services
pursuant to this Agreement.   If CITY asks CONTRACTOR to remove a person

Page 2

52



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to

do so immediately, regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to
the CITY'S request.

The services shall be perFormed by,  or under the direct supervision,  of

CONTRACTOR's Authorized Representative:  Bill Metzinger,  CONTRACTOR

shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior written approval

by the CITY.

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers

and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONTRACTOR shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONTRACTOR has also been

obtained for the subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted

and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers'      Compensation.    CONTRACTOR shall,      at

CONTRACTOR' S sole cost and expense,   maintain Statutory
Workers'   Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by
CONTRACTOR.  Said Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance
and Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not
less than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONTRACTOR may
rely on a self-insurance program to meet these requirements
provided that the program of self-insurance complies fully with the
provisions of the California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is

provided, or the CONTRACTOR, if a program of self-insurance is

provided, shall waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for

loss arising from work performed under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement. If
Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

Page 3

53



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to

be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONTRACTOR, including the insider's general supervision of
CONTRACTOR;   products and completed operations of

CONTRACTOR;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONTRACTOR.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary

insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers

with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  (a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to CITY at

Page 4

54



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

CONTRACTOR'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONTRACTOR is notified of the change in

coverage.

d)      In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONTRACTOR
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

ii)      Order CONTRACTOR to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONTRACTOR
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONTRACTOR demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONTRACTOR' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONTRACTOR' S Responsibility

Notwithstanding anything contrary to anything contained in the Agreement
contractor ( Bay Alarm) agrees to defend and hold City of Lathrop harmless from
and against any and all loss, cost, liability and expense from third party claims
where any equipment provided and installed by Bay Alarm hereunder is the sole
and direct cause of any property damage or personal injury (as opposed to cases
where failure or malfunction of the system merely contributes to a loss or injury
started from another source), or where an employee of Contractor causes personal

injury or property damage in performing the installation or servicing of equipment
while on User's premises or where the loss or injury is caused by negligent acts or
omissions of installers or maintenance personnel of Contractor,  constituting

intentional and willful misconduct.  User shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold
Contractor harmless from and against any and all property loss claims including
all third party property losses except where any equipment provided and installed
by Bay Alarm hereunder is the sole and direct cause of any property damage or
personal injury ( as opposed to cases where failure or malfunction of the system
merely contributes to a loss or injury started from another source), or where an

employee of Contractor causes personal injury or property damage in performing
the installation or servicing of equipment while on User's premises or where the
loss or injury is caused by negligent acts or omissions of installers or maintenance

Page 5

55



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

personnel of Contractor, constituting intentional and willful misconduct..  For any
third party losses where Bay Alarm' s actions while on site are the sole and direct
cause of aforesaid loss vs equipment or monitoring failure, Bay Alarm has the duty
to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

11)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,   
is required of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONTRACTOR warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONTRACTOR shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

12)    Business Licenses

CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONTRACTOR may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  In the event of termination, the CONTRACTOR shall
be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of

termination; provided, however, that the CITY may condition payment of such
compensation upon CONTRACTOR' S delivery to the CITY of any or all
documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other

materials provided to CONTRACTOR or prepared by or for CONTRACTOR or the
CITY in connection with this Agreement.

14)    Fundinq

CONTRACTOR agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two

Page 6

56



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.
Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service
by facsimile transmission.

To City:     City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to: City of Lathrop
Information Technologies

390 Towne Centre

Lath rop, CA 95330

MAIN: ( 209) 941- 7340

FAX:   ( 209) 941- 7439

To CONTRACTOR:

BAY ALARM COMPANY

3819 Duck Creek Drive

Stockton CA 95215

Phone:      209) 465-1986

Fax:  209) 943-6083

16)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

Page 7

57



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

e)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties  -

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the perFormance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to
be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable,  the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

k)      Status of CONTRACTOR.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONTRACTOR acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY.

CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits
accorded or accruing to the City Council members,  officers or

employees of CITY, and CONTRACTOR expressly waives any and
all claims to such right and benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

Page 8

58



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time

in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to

be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a
legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against

the non- prevailing party.

17)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONTRACTOR shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be
obligated to pay CONTRACTOR for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

Page 9

59



CITY OF LATHROP—

BAY ALARM COMPANY AGREEMENT

18)    Signatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop - City Attorn

Salv r Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:       City of Lathrop
Finance Director

Cari James Date

Accepted By:      City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONTRACTOR: Bay Alarm Company
3819 Duck Creek Drive

Stockton CA 95215

Fed ID # 68- 0462287

Business License # 40237

I,r/ L  - l h-
Signature Date

N11 U'(- _  l(,+ 1 c., l Gl    ('. Y. if'  C s'./, N' Fr

Print Name and Title)

Page 10

60



Totel Annual Total Annual Total Annual Total Annual

Cost Cost Cost Cost

Current 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year

Acct7    Fee Descrtotfon Service Address Site Name Monthiv Annual Cost Site Total Contract Contract Co act Contract

2575042 6ayguard 2112 E Louise Ave Barn 82. 00  $    9BM1. 00  $  1, 882.48  $  1, 624.78  $  1, 543. 64  $   1, 450. 93  $   1, 349. 36

2599042 Bayguard 2112 E Louise Ave Corp Yard Parking Area 59. 04  $     708.48

7615142 ClosedC(fcuitN B02JSt Booster0l 702. 50  $   1, 230. 00    2, 263.20  $  2, 172.87  $  2, 064.04  $   1, 940.20  $   1, 804,38

2200042 Bayguard 802 J St Booster 01 86. 70  $   1, 033. 20

1615242 Closed Circuit N 18300 Hawtand Dr Booster 02 102. 50  $   1, 230, 00  $  2, 263.20  $  2, 172.67  $  2, 064.04  $   1, 940. 20  $   1, 804.38

2200242 6ayguard 18300 Howland Dr Booster02 88, 10  $   1, 033. 20

1615042 ClosedCircuitN 13711TracywoodAve Booster03 102. 50  $   1, 230. 00 S 2,263.20  $  2, 172.67  $  2,064. 04  $   1, 940.20  $   1, B04.38

2202542 Bayguard 13711 Tracywood Ave Booster 03 86. i0  $   1, 03320

2190742 Monitoring Fee Burgiar iB701 S Manthey Rd Booster 04 57.40  $     688, 80  $  3, 493.20  $  3, 353.47  $  3, 185.80  $   2,994.65  $   2, 785. 02

2190842 Giosad Clrcuit N 18101 S Manthey Rd Booster 04 147.80  $   7, 777. 20

2203142 Bayguard 18101 S Manthey Rd Boostsr 04 86. 10  $   1, 033. 20

2408642 Access Control 390 Towne Center City Hall 397.70  $   4,772. 40  $  5, 658.12  $  5, 431. 80  $  5, 160.21  $   4,850. 59  $   4, 511, 05

2409142 Monitoring Fee Burglar 990 Towne Center City Hall 65.60  $     787. 20

2409742 Tempereture Monitoring 390 Towne Center City Hall 8. 21  $      98. 52

2406D42 Accass Control 15557 Sth St Community Center 159.90  $   1, 91 B. BO  $  3,050.40  $  2,928.38  $  2,781. 96  $   2,615.05  $   2, 431. 99

24Q8142 Monitoring Fee 8urgiar 15557 5th St Community Center 94. 30  $   1, 131. 60

2207642 Access Control 2112 E Louise A e Corp Yard 282. 90  $   3, 394. 80  $  7,134.12  $  6, 848.76  $  6,506.32  $   6, 715.94     5, 687,82

2201742 Manitoring Fee Burgler 2112 E Louise Ave Corp Yard 188. 60  $   2,283.20

2201742 Temperature Monitorfng 2112 E Louise Ave Corp Yard 8.21 "$      98. 52

2351342 Bayguard 2112 E Louise Ave Corp Yard 114.80  $   1, 377.60

2540742 Monitoring Fee Burglar 450 Spartan Way Gensration Center 112.34  $   1, 348.08    4,280.40  $  4, 109. 18  $  3, 903.72  $   3,669.50  $   3, 412. 64

2541042 Access Control 450 Spartan Way Generation Canter 244.36  $   2,932.32

2434042 Monitoring Fee Burglar 155977th St Poltce Dept 57. 66  $     819.92  $  1, 357.92  $  1, 303.60  $  1238.42  $   1, 164. 12  $   1, 082. 63

2434242 Access Control 15597 7th St Police Dept 81. 50  $     738.00

2409342 Monitoring Fes Burglar 15707 5th St Senior Center 41. 00  $     492.00 S 492. 00  $    472.32  $    448. 70  $     421. 78  $     392. 26

2422342 Access Control 15707 5th St Sanior Center

2573742 Bayguard 13480 Siate St Stonebrfdge 63. 14  $     757.68 S 757.88  $    727.37  $    891. 00  $     649.54  $     604. 08

2943842 Manitaring Fee Burglar 18800 Christopher Wey New Water7reatment/Admin Fecllity    $ 125.00  $   1, 500. 00 5 3, 600.00  $  3,458.00  $  3, 283.20  $   3, 086.21  $   2, 8 0, 17

2944442 Access Control 18800 Christopher Way Water Treatment Facllity New Admin    $ 775.00  $   2, 100.00

2573642 Bayguard iB800ChristopherWey Violiat- TreatmentCenter 123,00  $   1, 478.00  $  2,971. 68  $  2,852.81  $  2,710. 17  $   2, 547. 56  $   2, 369. 23

2575342 Bayguard 1BBOOChrlstopherWay Violiat- TreatmentCenter 124.64  $   1, 495.68

1502442 Closed Circult N 2001 Park St Well O6 73, 80  $     885.60  $  2,420.64  $  2,323.81  $  2,207.62  $   2, 075.17 S 1, 929. 90

1507442 Monitoring Fee Burglar 2001 Park St Weil O6 41. 82  $     5oL94

2200742 Bayguard 2001 Park St Well06 86. 10  $   1, 033.20

EXHIBIT "A"      Page 1 of 17 All Accounts Except Fire

61



Total Annuai Total Mnual Total Annual Total Annual

Cost Cost Cost Cost

Current 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year

AcctH Fee Description Service Address Site Neme yyonthiv Annual Cost Slte Total Contrect Contract Contract Contract

222242 Monitoring Fee Burgiar 15600 5 5Th St Well 07 27. 88  $     334, 66  $  2, 597.76  $  2, 493.85  $  2,369.16  $   2, 227.01  $   2, 071. 12

1496842 Closed ClrcuitN 15800 S 5Th St We1107 102.50  $   1, 230. 00

2208442 Bayguard 15800 S 5Th St Well 07 86. 10  $   1, 033. 20

1501942 CloSed ClrcuitN 2450 LouiSeAve We1108 102.50  $   1, 230.00  $  2,765.04  $  2, 654.44  $  2, 521. 72  $   2, 37D.41  $   2, 204.48

1507242 Monitoring Fee Burg 2450 Louise Ave Well 08 41. 82  $     501. 84

2201542 Bayguard 2450LoulseAve We1108 86. 10  $   1, 033.20

1502842 Ciosed Clrcult N 2fi25 Yosemite Ave Well 09 102.50  $   1, 230. 00  $  2,883.20  $  2, 748. fi7  $  2, 611. 24  $   2, 454.56  $   2, 282.74

1507542 Monitoring Fee Burglar 2625 Yosemite Ave Wall 09 50. 00  $     800.00

2202442 Bayguard 2625 Yosemite Ave Weil 09 86. 10  $   1, 03320

1945fi42 Closed ClrcuitN 17400 Shideler PKWV Well 10 102.50  $   1, 230. 00  $  2,86320  $  2, 748. 67  $  2, 611. 24  $   2, 454. 56  $   2,282.74

1946742 Monitoring Fee Burglar 17400 Shideler PKWY Well 10 50. 00  $     600. 00

2203042 Bayguard 17400 Shideier PKWY Well 10 86. 10  $   1, 033.20

1431942 Monitoring Fee Burglar 78401 McKiniey Well21 65.60  $     767.20  $  3, 050. 40  $  2, 928. 38  $  2, 781. 96  $   2, 615. D5  $   2,431. 99

1503842 ClosedCircuitN 78401McKinley Well21 102.50  $   1, 230.00

2202942 Bayguard 18401 McKinley Well21 86. 10  $   1, 033.20

Access ConVol 9050 Stewerd Dr River Islends Pumpi g Stetion 250. 00  $   3, 000. 00 N/ A N/A 8, 400. 00  $   7, 896.00  $   7,343.28

8ayguard 905o Stewerd Dr River Islands Pumping Station 450. 00  $   5, 400. 00

Total Annual Cost:     S 57,837.84  $ 55,524. 33  $ 61, 148. 11  $  57, 479.22 S 53,455. 68

EXHIBIT "A"      Page 2 of 17 All Accounts Except Fire

62



Total Annual Totel nn I' Totat Anauat Total Annual

Cost Cost Cost Cost

1 Year Year 3 Year 4 Year

AcctH Fee Descrbtian rvice Address SRe Name Annual Cost Sfte Total Con ract Contract Contract CoMract

1111442 Monitoring Fee Fire 18300 Howland Dr Booster02 7626  $     915. 12  $  1, B03.92  $  1, 539.76  $   1, 462.78  $  1, 375.01  $  1, 278.76

iy11442 Sprinkier Inspecilon Services 18300 Howland Dr Booster02

61783014 Monitoring Fee Ffre 183D0 Howland Dr Boostet 02 57.40  $     688. 80

791242 Monitoring Fee Fire 13711 Trecywood Ave Booster03 117.26  $    1, 407.12 S 1, 407.12  $  1, 350.84    1, 283. 29  $  1206.30  $  1, 121. 86

791242 Sprinkler Inspection Services 13711 Tracywoad Ave Booster 03

2190542 Monftoring Fee Flre 18101 S Manthey Rd Booster 04 36.90  $     442,80  $    442•80  $    425. 09  $    403. 83  $    379. 60  $    353.03

2190542 Sprinkfer Inspection Services 18101 S Manthey Rd Booster 04

2408742 Monitoring Fee Flre 390 Towne Center Clty Hall 41. 00  $     492.60  $    492.00  $    472.32  $    448.70  $    421. 78  $    392,26

2408742 Sprinkler tnspection Services 390 Towne Center City Hall

2405242 Monitoring Fee Fire 15557 5th St Community Center 225. 5D  $   2,706.00  $  2, 706.00  $  2, 597.76  $  2,467.87  $  2, 319.80  $  2, 157.41

2405242 Sprinkler Inspection Services 15557 5lh St Community Canter

2201942 Monitoring Fee Fire 2112 E Louise Ave Corp Yard 53.30  $     839. 60  $  1, 180.80  $  1, 133.57  $  1, 076.89  $  1, 012.28  $    941. 42

2201942 Sprinkler tnspectlon Services 2112 E Louise Ave Corp Yard 45.10  $     541, 20

254 242 Monitoring Fee Fire 450 Spartan Way GeneraUon Center 135.30  $    1, 623. 60  $  1, 623.60  $  1, 558.68  $  1, 480.72  $  1, 391. 88  $  1, 294.45

2541242 Sprinkter Inspecdon Services 450 Spartan Way Generatlon Center

2409242 Monitaring Fee Fire 15707 5th St Senior Center 36.90  $     442.80  $    442.80  $    425.09  $    403:83  $    379.60  $    353. 03

2574842 Monitoring Fee Fire 78800 Christopher Wfly Violiat- Treatment Center    $  75.47  $     905.64  $    905.64  $    869.41  $    825.94  $    776.39  $    722.04

2574& 12 5prinkler inspection 5ervices 18600 Christopher Way Vlaliat- Treaiment Cemer

61783015 Monitorfng Fee Fire 2625 Yosemite Ave Well 09 36.90  $     442.80  $    442.80  $    425.09  $    403.83  $    379. 80  $    353. 03

1946442 Monitoring Fee Fire 17400 Shide{er PKWY Well 10 63. 30  $     639.60  $    639.60  $    614.02  $    583.32  $    548. 32  $    509.93

1431542 Monitoring Fee Fire 18401 McKinley Weil21 135.30  $    1, 623.60  $  1, 623.80  $  1, 558.66  $   1, 480.72  $   1, 391. 88  $  1, 294.45

Total Annual Cost:     $ 13,510,68  $ 12, 970.25  $ 12,321. 74 $ 11, 582.44  $ 10,77i.67

EXHIBIT "A"      Page 3 of 17
All FireAccounts

63



COMMERCIAL ALARM INSTALLATION AND SERViCES AGREEMENT

4836 K ly Iii., Oa t, G1946113     3819 Dudc Geek Drt Stodckii, U 4521 S     1590 S. leWis St., II IeNf1, A 928Q5       ( 5fM pUTUA1Ai1C flRE E1( iINGUtSHING[ OMCERN, TYPE 1 ll[ EN$ b0471

0 611 erty Oc, Pah o,( A 945 3       3415 Ormige GrmeAve., N. High nds,( A 95fib 01148 Standnrd ve., Glendak, fA 41201 fhllfORNIA CONTRA[ i0fl'SI1 115E N0. B80138

e
510 Myrlle ue, S S franduu;( 94080 a 2335 Lar ur ln, Sk A, Redding, fA 46002   140 S. Rod sler Ave., Sie D, Oatorb,[ A 911b1 AURM OPERATOR' S hC0 Ut 18

101 b tlegg 0.,Pddumo,( A 44454     2284 Gocdyea Ave., Ye xa, fA 93003     l l l 11 S. Broodwmj, Gwdmn,( A 40248

r,     129D Haiomenuood Ave, Ste D, Sumy de, G 44089 8205 Renson Rd, Sk FSm Diego, U 9Zl 11

840-610-140U

New System or Takeover   Hew Owncr  Addendum-Alferation Addition O Cancel Former Agreemen#-Alteration Addition

User hereby authorizes Bay Alarm Company hereinafter" Bay," ar assigns to install, maintain, and service a security system under ihe following candifions and agrees to pay the
instullation charge upon compleYron and the seruke charge in udvance at Bay' s address, for an iniiial periad of five I5 years, from date the System is operational. Thh agreemeni is
not for sale of a system.

User
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP- RIVER ISLANDS PUMPlNG STATIDN

phone

Address
950 STEWART ROAD

G 
LATHROP

Z P
95330

Bay wiN instal) the s} rstem(° System") dexr ed 5elorN and on the attached continaation page( s), and will mair ain and monitor, nnd pravide ather services pursuant to the terms and
mnditiuns of this agreement. Instaqation will begin approximotely 4 weeks, and will be complefed proximately weeks. Starting the
insta8ation of wiring d/ or deli ery of equipmeot to your premisas will constitute su6staniial commencement o the wark to he performed. User agrees to pay in additwn to chnrges
stated herein all tuxes, petm s, fees, or nny cnsts relating to this System imposed by nny govemmerrtal or regulatary 6ady or increases in harges made by the tdephane m any.
Oser undentands there mny be a dired# elephone compnny charge for the installatian of a telephone interFace jadc. Services to consist of the following only:

INSTALLAflON tHARGE AND PAYMENT:     TYPE SERVICE:    COMI 9UNiCAT{ON TYPE:

INTRUS{ON AIARM FIRE AI.ARM POTS iP uin Old ielephane Service)

TOTAL INSTALLATION CHARGE:     $  6,500.00      Manitaed Monita ed lnter t Prototal

OPENf OSING OPTIONS FIRE TEST FREQUfNCY D°

E•Aut ag
NFPA 12

0.00      641' Net PI Sprinkler Inspettion Servi e
W RELESS TRANSMI5518HDEPOStT UE AT SIG€lING Supervise( select one b I-pw! Bay x" ir pect— risers per quarler   

ol Cellubr Alarm Buck-UCentrol Stotion Ope Oosmg Other 9 P

DUE UPON[ OMPLETION U Ney omra
FIRE TEST 6EVICES

Digila) CellularAlarm Only

OF PREWIRE Q
um r uired)    

Panel Oidy
r

BAYLlN14 Punel& Fire Qevices

BALANCE DUE UPON BAYNET INDU$TRIN. MONIiORING

SYSTEM COMPLETION:   6,500.00            Retrigerofion
AttESS Temperature{ ontrol OTHER
VIDEO VERINCATION( addendum tequired) 

Othar

VIDEO NOTIHCAT(4N Iaddendum required) dTHfR

1 ' 1 0

MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE: $    250.00 puya6le quarterly in advance.
How to Get Service: Contaci Bay at 1- 500-470-1000. Bay will provide senrice as saon as reawna6ly possihle.

sasaad, toi oizf PAGE l OF7

EXHIBIT" A"     Page 4 of 17

64



USER:   
GOV. CIN OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

aooREss:    
9 0 STEWART ROAD

Tr
LATHROP

Z p.      
95330

If AN INTRUSION AIARM

Gloss brenk detectors, motinn dete tors, photo eledric beams are for area detection only. User io provide n clear paih.
Wireless Holdup Buttons- User is aware transmifiter push bulfon may cease operafing without notice and function is uffeded by baflery churge or disfiante from tontrol unit.

User agrees that 8ay i neither respansi6le nor liable and hoids Bay harmless from any consequentes assnciated with this device.
Wireless Devices- User is aware that it is llser's responsi6ility to maintain and replace transmitter 6atteries when necessary. Bay w l pravide ihis service for a fee if User so

desires.
Local authorities may require that you abfain a permit or license to use a monitored alarm system.( See paragraph 6)

IF A TAKEOVER/ tONNECT TO USER- OWNED DEVItES
Bnyta connett to and moniiar or cantrol User's owned equipment. Any work to be done on User owned equipment that exteeds one( 11 hour will 6e on a time plus material

hasis at Bay s̀ then prevailing rafe induding any repairs or modificatinns required to make System opemtional.
F A NEW OWNER LABOR AGREEMENi

Baytests and inspeds up ta ane( 1 hour only. Any additional work thot hns not baen contracted wil) be done on a time plus muterials bas ai Bay's then prevailing rate.
IF A UL CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED

User understands and agrees that UL charges Bny an nnnual fee fnr their services. User will reimburse Bay for the fee.
8aywill autamatically rertew agreement and ceriificate fnr same iniiial agreemeni term, unless notified thirty( 30) days in advnnce by User.

IF INDUSTRIAL MONITORIHG
llser to supply dry Set" C" pe contacts and conduit required for Bay connedion. Monthly chnrges include up to tavo( Z) signnl tra nmissions per trnnsmitter per mo h. An

excessive amount over artd a ove this will result in an additional charge per signal a6ave Bay's then prevailing rate.
IF BAYLINK IS SOLD
User will receive an email from Bay when their system sends a 6ypass/ trnubl% pen or close signal from their alarm sysiem. User understands that Bay tvill make reasnna6le

efforts to mmmunicate through email messages only.
1F SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED

omputer shall be supplied accarding to Bay's speciFitafions and shall he free from defed.
Oser understonds and agrees ihat a{though protecied by nppropriute safeguards, installing remote access dial-in soNware carries snme risk of access to and control of the

security rystem by unauthorized persons. It is the User s̀ respansibil'dy to keep the password, instnlled sofiware, ond modem under their cantral at all times.
If networking 5oftware is installed, it is the User's responsibility to pravide and maintain a netwnrk fihat can support any installed sofiwore by Boy.

If A CCTV SYSTEM

User is aware that there are certain rights ta privacy enja ed 6y employees and ihe pu6lic. As a cond'rfion to this installation, it is the User's responsibility to ensure compliance
with all opplica6le privocy laws. User agrees to provide s icient li hting to meet required scene illuminafions.

User n solely respon5i61e for providing and maintaining film and or video tape for CfTV systems.
NE'f'WORK CONNECTIVITY& TRANSMISStON FA{ ILITIES

User shall provide and mointoin operatianal an Eihemet Neiwnrk conneded CAT-5 or higher cable uuith a RJ- 45 plug terminafion at location speci ied 6y Bay. If required, Oser
will provide I. P. address, gatewny address ond su6mask. If the Internet or Wireless Transmission is used as a primary or secondnry tran5mi sion paih, User will provide, at your
expense, the necessary telecommunirntions tannections fadlities. The Internet, rndiu and cellular networks are mainiained and serviced by the app1im61e service provider und
are totany 6eyond Bay`s cantrol. Signal firansmission connediviiy and speed may vary due to traffic valumes, adverse weather, system outages and other circumstnnces beyond
our ontrol. Internet Cannediviiy can only 6e supparted through a PC with Internet Explorer. Mac's or other Browsers nre not compatible at this fime.
PROGRE55 BILLING

User understands and agrees that if there i5 u User caus imerruptiun( i.e. Oser coastruction delay, remadeling, prewire, no power availa6le, etc.) in Bay's ahility to start
and finish the instullntion and Bay must return at a later dnte to complete the installation, Bay will progre5s bill for a portian af work completed. A return trip charge may be
incurred.

VoIP TELEPHONE SERYICE

The use of VoIP tdephnne service moy interfere with the abil'rty of the System to transmit alarm signals ta our manitoring facility, ihe User must notify Bay in advance if con-
sidering the use of a managed VaIP service in order ta as5ure its a6ility to fundion. Ilser understnnds ihat DSL, unmanaged VoIP, ar ather intemet-based services not approved
in advante hy Bay may not be used.

SA840Eledronic( l/ 2012)    PAGE Z OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"     Page 5 of 17

65



USER:   
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRESS:    
950 STEWART ROAD

i,
LATHROP

Z P:      
95330

IF A FIRE SYSTEM

Smoke/ Heat detedors— for area or spot detectian only.
Bay to plan check and apply for city permits. User agrees to pay all city, permit, plan check, or drnwing charges ns required.
User understands and agrees that any additional devices required by the AHJ 6efore final aaeptance of Sysfem will be ai llser s̀ expense at Bay' s ihen preva ing rmes.
If P0T5 is used, User to provide two( 2) User-co rolled phone lines.
User to pravide dedicated 120YAC to the Fire Alarm Co rol Unit and assodated pawer supplies, and install breaker la ks for required pnwer.
If smoke detedors are installed and ihen 6ecome dirty due to tonstrudion that takes place, the User understands they ore responsible for repair and/ or replacement.
If Bay is unnble to gain access to the System for testing and inspedions, Oser understands there may be a return trip fee. Bay will not issue a credit for failed o no access

inspedions.

User understands and agree5lhat the auiomatic fire alarm devices and appliances that will be installed or are lomted on this property are pursuant to ihe approved shop
drmvings that will be or were previously 5u6mitted by Bay to the AH1 far this property+
Additional siate, other govemmeni agenry, inwrance inspedions or testing which requires Bay personnel to be on site will 6e charged on a time plus material basis, at Bay's

then prevailing rates.
Once System has 6een powered up and 5ysfem is programmed at BQJ s monilaring center the Monthly Service Fee is payable.
HVAC system pawer/ shut off is to be provided by mechanical and/ or eledrical contractors. Bay will monitor only.
If during the installation process the AHJ deems a fire watch is necessary while the System is being installed or temporarily inoperable, User to provide and pay for this

service.

Any painting nnd/ or potching is not included unless expressly stated oiherwise.
Additianal fees that are not included in the contrad are as follows: permit fees, odditional off hour inspedions or re-inspedion due to other contraded parties failure to shaw

and huve equipment rendy for inspe ion.
Bay shall instoll a fire alarm system based an the fades and Standards that were in effect at the time the System was designed, 6nsed on the presc ipfive requirements for

the aaupanry. Bay is not provi ing an engineering assessment. If an engineering assessment of risk hazards is required, the User should caniact a Registered Fre Proiection
Engineer.
If SPRINKLER INSPECTiON SERVICE

If 5prinkler Inspedion Service is provided, Bay will conduct the inspections in nccordance with Tide 19,( ofifornia Code of Regulations, Chapter 5, Artide 4.
Bay is not providing ar will notprovide design analysis of the premises sprinkler rystem through the Sprinkler Inspection Service inspediun. If a design analysis is desired ihe

User should cantnct a Registered ire Protedion Engineer.
IF fIRE INSPECTIONS ARE TQ BE PERFaRMED

Baywill perform fire inspections during normal 6usiness hours, Manday-Friday 9- 5. Inspedions performed after normal business hours are waila6le at a premium rate.
Depending on the type of inspection being performed, User understands and agrees it mny cause a disruption in business.

IF AN ADDENDUM- ALTERATION ADDITION QGREEMENT

User understands and agrees that Bay w11 leave 6alance of System as listed per previous agreemenis.
IF A CANCELS FORMER AGREEMENT
Conirad terms begin upon date the System and/ or Service is online.

SIGNS, DECALS AND SYSiEM COMMUNICATOR REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF BAY.

THE SYSTEM MUSi BE CONNERfU i0 A( POiS) P( AIN OLD TELEPHONE SERYICE LINE AND MAY NOT WORII WRH OTHER COMMUNICATION METHODS SUCH AS CELLULAR OR VOIP SERVItES.
see pamgrapb I 1)

5A840Eledronic( Ul/ 2012)    PAGE 3 OF 7

EXHIBIT" A"     Page 6 of 17

66



CONTINUATION PAGE

USER:    
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRESS:    950 STEWART ROAD t  LATHROP Z p.   95330

1) Bay Alarm ta Remove 2) Bay Alarm io Relocate 3) Bay Alarm to Install 4} Bay Alarm fo Connect 5} Leave Bnlunce of System

BAY ALARM TO INSTALL:

1 - NETWORK NODE( ELECTRICAL ROOM)

9- PROXIMITY READERS( DOOR 1- 9)

5- NETW RK CONTROL BLADES( ELECTRICAL ROOM

2- POWER SUPPLIES( ELECTRICAL ROOM)

4- BATTERIES{ ELECTRtCAL ROOM)

USER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING LOCK WORK.

USER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING AN NETWORK CONIVECTI N TO THE ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM.

llser desires na additionai protedian at this time, I. E CARD READER

if deposit is not received, Bay will schedule the contratt work/ servite once the deposit is recen+ed. If final payment is not received upon campletion of contro t work, Bay may
e ed not to adivate t e service unti " na payment is receiv  . You state at you ave receiv a comp efe copy o i is ngreement.
All terms on the follawing pnges, induding those limiting Boy`s lia6ility, and on all atta hments are part oF ihis agreement— read ihem 6efore you sign a( I pnges.

sasao de n oi oizt PAGE 4 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"     Page 7 of 17

67



USER:    
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRE55:     
950 STEWART ROAD

y.       
LATHROP

Z P.    
95330

1. TITLE, TERMINATION, REMOYAL Af SYSTEM: User acknowledges and agrees that this agreement is a service agreement only and the entire System shall ai nll times
remain the sole property of Bay. Oser will not damnge, encumber or dispose of the System or permit the System to be damaged, encumhered, taken from the premises, tampered
wiih or repaired by any but Bay's personnel. In ihe event of loss nr damage to the System ar any pnri thereof, User agrees to pay Bay the System' s reasnna6le replacement value
or the cast of repuir as ihe case may be. At ihe expiration or iermination of this agreement or in the event of User's default, User uuthorizes Bay tn enter User`s premises ond to
remove nll or any portian of ihe Sysiem. Bay may eled to a6andon nll or any portian of the System. Remaval of the Syslem shall 6e without prejudice to the colle tion of any and
all sums due under the entire agreement or extensions or renewals thereaf, including, 6ut not limited to recovery of loss of prafit fnr any unexpired term of this agreement. If
Bay elecls io remove the System ar any portion thereof, Bay agrees to condud such removal, in a workmanlike manner, hut Bay shall not be responsi6le for or hnve any obliga-
tion to repair minor damage to the premises fsuch as, but not limited ta, saew, fastener holes, paint or wall finishing domage) resulting from such removal. Unless abandoned 6y
Bay, User will retum the Sysiem to us in good cnndition, reasonable wenr and tear excepted. User agrees that instollalian af the System daes not create a fixture ta the premises.
This agreement is not fnr sale uf a Sy tem. If User defaults or oncels this agreement, ar this agreement is terminated in whnle or in part for any reason other than Bay' s defoult,
Bay shall 6e entiiled io colled and User shall pay to Buy:( i) all amaunts due to Bay for services performed nnd equipment provided ihrough the termination date of the agree-
ment, ond( ii all omounis to which Bay is entitled by law for ihe unexpired term of the agreement including loss of profiis.

2. ADDlTIONAL COSTS: User agrees to pay Bay's standard rate for past due or carrying charges and collecfion cost if payments are not made on fime or if installation charge
is paid on o periodic payment plon or pragress hilling. A reconned charge is to 6e paid hy User iF ihe Sysiem is disconneded because of a pasi due 6alance and User desires it recon-
nected. User to receive no credit if System is tempornrify disconneded nr out of service for any reason. If Oser defaults or cancels this agreement or the whole or any part of the
premizes herein involved is acquired ar candemned for any public or privnte use or purpose, the entire remainin bolance of the initial period or extension of this ngreement peri-
ad shall immediately become due and payahle. Bay assumes no liabil' f} for foilure ta perform 6ecause af lahor ispute5, riots, floods, fires, ads of God or any rnta trophe or on-
dition beyond our co ral and is not required to perfarm wark wfiile any such conditian exi ts. If it becomes necessary for Boy to institute legal praceedings to colled ony charges
as 5et forih herein, ihe unsuccessful party shnll pay to the successful party reasonable attorney' s fees and ndua) court cost wherein permitted by law: lf User fails to pay any obli-
gntions underthis agreemer when due, upon ten( 10) doys' written nofice, Bay may discannect the System. A re-connection fee in additian to all past due amaunts, will he required
prior io reactivating System.

3. BAY IS NOT AN INSl1RER. LI UIDATED DAMAGES, LIMITATION Of LIABILITY: For all Systems nnd services prnvided, it is understood artd agreed; tfiat Bay is not
an insurer, that insurance, if any, shall be abtained by the llser; that the paymenls provided for herein are 6ased salely on ihe value of the service as se# farth herein and are unre-
lated to the value of ihe User's properfy or other' s property lacated on User's premises; ihot Bay makes no guaranty or warranty, including any implied warranty of inerchanta6il-
iry ar fitnets fhat the equipment or services supplied will avert or prevent occurrences or the cor equences therefrom which the System or service is designed to defed or overt.
User acknowledges that it is impcadical and extremely difficult to fix the actunl damages, if any, which may proximately result from Bay's negligence, a failure to perform any of
the o61igalions herein, including, but noi limited to, insiollation, monitormg or repair service or other servites, or the failure of the System io properly opemte wiih r sulting loss
to Oser 6e ause of, among other things: a) The uncertain amount or value of IJser' s property or the property of others kept an the premises which may he lost, stolen, destruyed,
damuged or otherwise affeded by occurrences which the System or service is designed to deted or averh, b) The unceriainty of the response time of any police or fire deporfment,
should they be nofified as a result of a signal fram or at premises; c) The inabil' y to ascertain in advance what portion, if any, of any personal injury, denth, ar property loss would
6e proximately caused by Bay's failure tu perform or by its equipment to operate; d1 A CCN ar access coMrol system may nat observe, deted or prevent an unauthorized intru-
sion or enfry onto the premises; e) The nature of the service ta 6e perfnrmed by Bay. User understands and agrees that if Bay should be found lia61e far loss or dam-
age due ia fnilure of Buy to perform any of the obligations herein, including 6ut not limited to insfallotion, repair services, monitoring ar service, or the
feilure oF the System equi ent, or service in any resped whatsoever, or Ba s rtegligence then, Bay' s liab ity shall 6e limifed to a sum equa( to the
totul of one half the annua payment or Fifteen Hundred Dollars($ 1500. 00) w ' chever is the lesser, a5 rquidated damages and not as a penalty and this
fiability shall 6e exclume, and that the provisians of tws Sectian ahall apply if loss or damage, irrespecfire of cause or arigi y results directly or indi-
rectly to persons ar property, from performance or nonperformance of the obtigadons imposed by this agreement, or from negligence of Bay, its agents,
assigns or employees. User may obtain a( imitotion of liability fram Bay for a higher limitation of liabil'rty in lieu of the liquidated damages set forth ahove by paying an addi-
tionol fee to Boy. If User eleds this optinn, a rider will be added to ihis agreement which will set forfh the amount of the limitation of liahility and the amoum of the fee. Agreeing
to the limitation of liability dnes nat mean that Bay is an insurer.

4. THIRD PARTY tNDEMNIFICATtON: When User, in ihe ardinary course of husiness, has the property of aihers in its/ his custody, ar the System extends fa proted prop-
erry of others, User agrees to and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Bay, iis employees and agents for and against all cloims hrought by padies, other than the pnrties to
this agreement. This provision shall apply to oll tlaims regardless af cause including Bay' s performonce or failure io perfarm and induding defeds in produds, design, installntian,
moniioring, repair, service, aperation or nonoperatian of the System whether based upan negligence, warrnniy, contri6utian, indemnification, or strid or produd liahility on the part
af Bay, its employees or agenis, but this pravision shall not apply to daims for loss or damage which occur while an employee or agent of Bay is on User's premises and nre sole-
ly and diredly caused 6y such employee or agent.

5. SUBROGATION: So far as it is permitted by User' s properfy insurnnte covernge, User hereby relea5es, dischurges and agrees to hold Bay harmless fram any and al{ claims,
lin6ilities, damages, Insses or expenses, orising from or caused by any hazard covered 6y insurance in or an the User'S premises whether said daims are made by User, ha agents,
or insurnnce campu ry nr ather parties daiming under or ihrough Usec User agrees to indemnify Bay ngainst, defend and hald Bay harmless from, any action for subrogation which

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ARE CONTINUED ON THE NEXT PAGE

SA 640 Eledronic( 01/ 2012)    PAGE 5 4F 7

EXHIBIT "A"     Page 8 of 17

68



may be brought agair t Bay by any insurer or insurance ompany or its agents ar nssign5 including the pnyment of all dmm ges, expen5es, costs and attorney' s fees. User shall
notify his insurance carrier of the terms of this provision.

6. USER DUTIES: Yau will instrud all ather persons who may use the System on its proper use. You will test ihe System' s protedive devi es and send test signols to our Central
Sitrtion in accordante with our instructions at least monthly. If the System includes space proiedion( i. e. microwove, infrared, photobeams, or other such detedars) you will turn
off, control, or remove all things such as air canditioning systems and heoters that might interfere with such devices when they are turned on. If a problem in the System occurs
you will notify us. Authorities moy not respond. to on olarm, and/ ar you may 6e suhjed to a fine or penalry unless you have all necessary permiis and li enses for the use of ihe
System. You ogree ihat we may disclose the information of ihe instructions tn any governmentnl agenry hnving jurisdiction over ihe use and operation of the Sysiem. In ihe cose
of a fire olorm rystem, yau will notify us in writing of any change in your fire rating bureau or agenry. You are solely responsible for issuing and cantrolling access control cards
and programming changes tn the remote access system.

7. I1 STALLAT( ON: User wil) permit Bay 10 insfall the System during Bay' s normal 6usiness hours and will give Bay uninterrupted access tu User's premises. User agrees io
compensaie Bay for ony additional installation/ service visiis required as a result of cancellation, readiness ar unwailability to Bay' s current prevailing rate. User has upproved ihe
locations of where ihe control panel, audi6le devi es and all protedive devices will be installed. User has ihe affirmotive duty to inform Bay, prior io beginning of installation, of
every location at the premises where we should nat( becnuse of oncealed obstrudions or hazards such ns pipes, wires or as6estos) enter or drill hales. Upon request, User will repair
the premises( including fixing broken or loose doors and windows) reasonably necessary to facilitate the installation and operation of the System. If asbestos or other health hoz-
ardous material is encountered during instnllation, Bay will cease wark until User has, at User's sole expense, obtained dearance from a licensed asbestos removal or hazardous
material contrador ihat coniinuation of work will not pose any danger to Bay's personnel. In no case shall Bay be 1io61e for diuovery or exposure of hidden as6estas or other haz-
nrdous material, and User shall indemnify and hald Boy and its employees harmless from any claims brought against Bay and/ or iis employees by third pnrfies for damages, per-
sonal injury, death, emotional injury, whether adual or prospedive allegedly caused 6y the presence, spread, ingesiion or inhalation af any substance/ vapor on nr originating from
User's premises. If the System includes an exteriar nudible bell, horn or siren, it is designed to shut-off aRer sounding for not more thnn fifteen( 15) minutes. User will pravide
non- witched electricnl outlets for the System' s trnnsformers. Bay is not responsible if the instnllotion is delayed because of bad weather, labor disputes, unavailabiliiy of eledrical
power or telephone service, Acts of God or other reasons heyond Bay' s cantrol. After ihe compleiion of the System, User and a Bay representative will inspect it. If samething is
missing or not properly installed you the l)ser will notify Bay within ten( 10) dnys, otherwise the System will have been accepted 6y lJser.

8. REPAIR SERVICE:. Bay will provide all repairs necessitoted by ordinnry wear and tear io the Sy tem. Servi e will 6e provided as soan ns reasonnbly pos5ihle twenty-four
24) hours a day, seven( 7) days a week. This service daes not cover:( i) repairs that are needed 6ecouse of an accident, yaur failure ta properly use the System or muiniain your

premises, or if someone oiher than Bay attempts to repair or change the system; or( it? repairs that are needed for any otfier reason except a defed in the equipment or aur instal-
lotion. Bay moy su6stiiute materials of equal quality at time of repincemeni, may install recanditioned used pnrts, and may keap all replaced parts. Nancovered servi e will be
charged on n time ond maierial 6asis at nur then prevailing rates and will include a visit charge, and you agree ta pay far such noncovered services upon receipt of our invoice.

9. t IARGES, TAXES, RATE INCREASES: All harges set forth herein are hased upon existing federal, state and lo al taxes and utiliiy charges, including telephane ompa-
ny chorges, if nny. Bay shall have the right at any fime fn increase the monthly charges provided herein, to reflect any additional taxes, fees or chnrges provided herein, or charges
which hereaher may be imposed on Bny by ony utiliiy or governmental agenry relating to the service( s) provided under the terms of this agreemenf and User agrees to pny the
same. So that Bay may properly adjust fts rates to meet changing service costs and notwithstanding the terms and condiiians set forth herein after the expiraiinn of one( I) year
fram ihe dote af completion of installation and not more o6en than ance each twelve( 12) months, Bay may increase the monthly service charge 6y up to 1. 5 times the urrent
Bureau of La6or Statistics( nnsumer Price Index for oll urban cansumers( related areas} ar if this index is discontinued, a compara6le index as measured frnm the date of this
agreemetrt to the effective date of the increuse upon giving User notice in writing. The hilfing invoice setting forth the new churge shall 6e sufficient noti e of ihe increase. Not with-
sianding any other terms and conditions set forth in ihis agreement, so that Bay may properly adjust periodi charges to recover increases in its services costs which are not recov-
ered by increase pursuant to paragraph ahove, ot any time a$ er the expiration of one( 1] year from date of installntion, Bay may increase the mnnthly service charge to an amount
exceeding the charge provided in paragraph nbnve upon giving the User notice in writing. The billing invoice sefiing forth the new charge shal! be sufficient notice of the increase.
If User refuses rate increase, Bay has the right to rescind or reduce said rote increase. If Bay declines its right to reduce or rescind rate increase and if User is unwilling to pay such
additional monthly charges imposed pursuant to this suh- paragroph, User mny terminote this agreement upon giving written noiice to Bay within ten( 10) days from the effedive
date of the increase. Oser's failure io natify Bay within said ten( 10) days shall canstitute llser' s consent to the in rease pursuant to this 5ub- paragraph.

10. ASStGNEES/ SUBCONiRACTORS OF BAY: Bay may transfer or assign this ogreemenf to any oiher person ar entity including any finan ial institution or alarm compa-
ny. User may nat transfer this agreement to someone else( including someone who purchases or renis User' s premises) unless Bay upproves the lronsfer in writing. 8ay may use
su6 antractars to pravide insfallafion, repair or maniloring services. ihis Agreement, and particularly puragraphs 3, 4 and 5, shall apply to the work or services Bay' s assignees
or subconiradors provide, and shall apply to them and proted Bay's nssignees and subcontradors in the same monner as it applies to ond prnteds Bay.

1 l. MONITORtNG SERVICE:  When a signal from the System is received in 6ay' s Central Statian, Bay will try fo telephane the proper police or fire deparfment or oiher
emergenry personnel and the firsf availnble person un the Emergency Notification Lisi User gives us. You will notify us in writing of any changes in the instructions. User agrees
that Bay, at its discretion, may respond to alarms using Bay personnel in additian to or in lieu of police or User`5 representative. To avoid false alarms, Bay may( a} use the" lis-
ten- in" device of the System, if one has heen provided, or( h) call User' s premises first to determine if an odual emergenry exists befnre Bay calls any outhorities. If Bay has rea-
son to 6elieve ihat no adual emergenry exists, Bay may choose not to place such notifisation calls. Bay may discontinue any puri of this servi e if required to do so 6y governmen-
tal or insurance autharities. User acknawledges and agrees ihat both User nnd Bay nre required to comply with all laws, rufes and regulations regarding monitoring and alarm
response enaded or adopted 6y the governmental authoriiies having jurisdicfion over the System. If such authorities, now or in the future, require physical or visual verificatiun
ar multi-telephone verification( e. g. two- coll verificution or EN of any emergenry conditian before responding to a request for assistance, you ngree to subscri6e wiih us for such
service, ond you agree tn pay an additional monthly fee for such service that will be added to ihe current monthly fee. User consents to ihe tape recording af all telephonic com-
munications between Bay`s Central Statian and ser's premise5. Bay may charge User for non- emergenry 5ignals, use of premises keys or alarm response by Bay personnel. If Bay
holds premises keys, it is hereby authorized to enter and make a visual inspection of ihe interior af the premises or proteded area. User understands and agrees that Bay`s respnnse
agenis do nof have special arrest or law enfarcement powers nnd may ad only as ordinary dtizens. User acknnwledges ihat if Bay utilizes a digitnl communicator for the purpose
of sending alarm signals from User's premises to Bay' s Central Stalion, ihai the signals from User' s System are sent over User' s plain ald telephone service io Bay' s Central Station
and other telephone calls tannot 6e made when the System is activaied including 911 emergenry operator alls; and in the event User's telephone service is out of order, discon-

TERMS AP1D tONDITI0N5 ARE( ONTINl1ED ON THE NE T PAGE

SA 640 Eledranic( Ol/ 2012)    PAGE 6 0 F 7

EXHIBIT "A"     Page 9 of 17

69



neded, ploced on vacotion or otherwise interrupted, signals from User' s System will not be received in Bay' s[ entral Siation during any such interruption and the interruptian will
not be knawn to Bny. User further acknowledges and agrees that signals are sent over telephone ompany lines which are wholly beyond the control and jurisdidion of Bay and
are maintained and serviced 6y the applica6le telephone cornpany. User agree5 to pay all charges for all telephone services conneding llsers protected premises and Bny. User
acknowledges, that if wireless transmission becames inaperative for any reasan, signals will not be received in Bay' s Centrnl Statian. User ncknowledges that wireless transmission
mny he impaired or interrupied by atmospheric conditions, including eledricnl starms, power fnilures, or other conditions beyond the control of Bay.

12. EXCESSIVE ALARMS: In the event an exces5ive number of false alarms or service calls are caused 6y USer or in 1he event lJser in any manner misuses or a6uses the
System, Bay may, ot its sole discretion, deem same to 6e a material breach of contmd on the part of User and, at its option, he excused from further performance upon the giv-
ing nf ten( 10) days written notice tn llsec Bay' s excuse from performance shall nat affed its right fia recover damages fram User. In the event Bay dispatches an agent ta
respond to an alarm originating from llser' s premises where User inteationally, acddentally, or negligently has activated the alarm signal and no emer-
gency exists, or f Bay muke: any service aall caused by the inadverfence or negligence of User, User shall pny Bay n ser ice charge at Bay' s then pre-
vailing rates. User represen4s he fully onderstands that the equipmem, because of its sensitivity and nature, is subjed to the influence of external events
which are not within the control of Bay and which may cause the alarm tn activate. In the event a fine, penalty or fee is assessed against Bay or User 6y any gov-
emmental or municipal agency a5 a result of any alarm originating from llser' s premises, User agrees ta be responsi6le for payment af all auessments and/ or reimhurse Bay for
Bay assessments. Any or all such alarms shall not excuse aey of the ob(igaiions of User as set forth in the agreement.

13. DISCONNECT POLICY: User here6y nuthoriies Bay to mnnua( ly or automatically disconned the System if so ordered by a pu6lic offitial nr regulation or for nuisance or
eledricol reasons or if Bay is unable to notify Oser at emergenry num6ers listed or if User declines or fails to nrrive at premises within 30 minutes after notification. User agrees
to hold Bay harmless and to indemnify 8ay for any damage, loss, or lia6iliiy which may result f om the turning aff of the System.

14. tONTROI COMMUNItATOR: User acknowledges nnd agrees thnt Bay reserves the right ta access the digital cnntrol communicator by way nf remofe programming or
physical access in order to perform diagnostics, change and/ ar update information or disconnect service upon the termination ar expiration of this agreement.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This agreement shall automatically, without a tion 6y either party, extend and renew itself under ihe same terms and conditions for successive peri-
ads of two i7) years each afier the initial period unless either parfy gives io ihe other at least thirty( 301 days rvritten notice, prior ta expirmion date, or its intenHan io terminate
this agreement upon its originnl ar any renewed expirutian date. It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that' rf there is any conflid between this agree-
ment tind User' s purchase order or any other document or Bay literature, this agreement will gavern, whether such purchase arder or other dncument is priar or subsequent ta this
agreement unless expressly superceded or reploced 6y a su6sequent agreement. In the event any provisions ar parts of this agreement shall be unenforcea6le, the parfies under-
stand nnd agree that the remaining provisions and paris shall cominue in full force and effed. There are no ver6al understandings changing or modifying this agreement_ If User
concels agreement before installation 6egins, User agrees to poy an administrative charge.

16. GOVERNBNG LA1N: This writing is irrtended hy the parties as a fina) expression of lheir agreement and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms thereof. This
agreement supersedes all prior representations, understandings or agreements of the parfies and the pafies rely only upon the contents of this agreement in executing it. This
agreemeni can only 6e modified in writing signed by the pariies or their duly nuihorized agent. No waiver ar 6reach of any term or conditian of this agreement shafl be conslrued
to 6e a waiver of any suueeding 6reach. Oser agrees that this agreement is performed in the state of Colifornia and shall 6e governed by the laws of Califnrnia. User agrees that
any and all legnl proceedings will have Contra Costa County as the place of venue.

17. LEGAL WAIVERS, REFERENCE: Bath parties hereby agree that no suifi or adion thut relates in any way to this agreement( whether 6ased upon contrad, negligence or
otherwise) shall 6e 6rought against the other more than one( 1) year nfier the accrual af the cause nf adian therefore. Both parties agree that no lawsuit or any other legal pro-
ceeding conneded with this Agreement shall he 6rought or filed more than ane( 1) year aNer' the inddent giving rise to the claim occurred. Any controversy, dispute, or daim
hetween the pnrties arising ouf af or relating to this Agreement,( other than actions brought hy Bay in smnll claims court to collect umounts due under this Agreement) will 6e set-
tled hy a reference proceeding in[ ontrn Cosfo County[ alifarnia, in accordance wit6 the provisions of Secfiinns b36, et seq and b41 thraugh 645. 1, and of the Califnrnia Code of
Gvil Prucedure, or their successor sections, which shall torutitute the exclusive remedy for the resolution of any coniroverry, dispute, or claim concerning this Agreement, including
whelher such cantrnversy, dispuie, or claim is su6jed to the reference praceeding. The referee shalf he appointed to sit as a temporary Judge with all uf the powers af a tempo-
rary Judge authorized by law. tn ihe event that the ena6ling legislation, which provides for the appniniment of a referee is repealed and no successor siatute is enaded, any dis-
pute hetaveen the pariies that wauld otherwise be determined by a reference pracedure herein, will he resolved and determined by 6inding ar6itrotinn. Thnt orbitration wil( 6e con-
duded 6y a retired ludge af ihe Superior Courf in accordance wiih Sedion 1280 to 1294. 2 of the California Cade of Gvil Procedure, as amended fram time to time.

18. IMAG9NG. Oser agrees that Bay may save and store all agreemenis and oiher documents executed by User in nn eledronic media and all such agreements and other dac-
uments shall 6e deemed to be, and may be used by Bny as, originals and shall 6e given the same farce and effect as ihe paper-form original.

19. BAY' S l.ICENSES: Alarm company operators are ficensed nnd regulnted by the Bureau of Searify and Invesfiigative Services, Department of Cunsumer Affairs,
Sacramento, CA 95814. Cnn4ractors are required 6y law to be licensed nnd regulated hy the Contractors' State Litense Board which has jurisdiction to investigate
complaints agai st contraetors if o campinint regarding a patent act ar omission is iled within faur( 4) years of the da4e of the alleged aialation. A complaint
regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed withi ten( 10) years af the dnte of the alleged violafion. Any questions concern-
ing a contractor may he referred to the Registrar, Contractors' Sgate Li ense Board, P.O. Box 2600, Saeramento, CA 95826.
gp p(AR; Please Read Entire Agreemenl

SEAN BITHELL r     
USER SIGN, DATE& PRINT NAME HERE  DATE

User Understands ond agrees by signing below User is bound to M D YEAR
SALES REPRESEIdTAT1VE AGENT#       a{I terms and conditions on all pages of this agreement l-/.

BY:

APPROVED i0ffice llse Only) DATE AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE TfTLE

ihis agreement will not be effedive unfil either approved by one of Bcry' s mnnagers, or Bay
6egins ihe installation af the equipment or initiates setvice. In the ever of disapproval, 8ay' s
unly n6ligatian shall be to refund amr manies paid by User to Bay. User acknowledges and

SIGNER`5 NAME( PRINTED OR TYPED
agrees that User will not receive a copy of this agreement 5igned by Bay' s tAanager, and sud       

ORP  LL( SOLE PRDPRIETOR PARINERSHIP OTHERlack of reteipt shall not, in amr way, invalidafe or othenNisa affect this agreement.
SA840dedronic( 01/ 2D12)    PAGE 7 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 10 of 17

70



COMMERCIAL ALARM INSTALLATION AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

983d Ily 1 6, Oa t, U 94603      3819 alc Gcek Ur, iiodctoq U 95215     1$ 90$. IEWiS 51., II tEBp, fA 92 15 CSFM AUi0Ai11TIC FlRE EXiiNGUISHING COHCERN, TYPE 1 t1tEN5E, A-0471

b0 Beny Qr, Pad eco,! A 44553       3415 Gmr Are., N. I nds,( A 956dU o 1118 Siundnrd Ave., Gk, dak, U 91201 GLIFORNIA COHIAAROR' S tl NSE H0. SB0138

510 Mntla Avs, S Sm hundsm, G 9408D o 2335 Lorksp ln, Sb A, Red ng,( A 96602   740 S. Rachester AYe., e D, Omario, G 91161 AIANM OPEAATORS ACO OC la

01016( la,g U, Pelduma, fA 949 4     2264 Goodye Ave, Ye a, tk 930U3      11111 S. Bro dway, Gmdeno,( k 902 8
1290 fl d Are., S D, Sunnyrde, fA 94U89 82Q5 Rnnsan Rd, Ste F Sm Oiego, G 92111

soo-sta ooa

p New System or Takeover   New Owner   Addeedum- Alteration Addition   Cancet Former Agresment-Alteration Additian

User hereby authorizes Bay Alarm Company hereinaBer" Bay; ar nssigns ta insiall, maintaia, and service a security system uader the fallowing condifio u and ngrees to pay t e
installation charge u n completion and the service charge in advance at Bay' s address, for an initial period flf five i5) years, from dafe ihe System is aperational. This agreement is
not far sale of a system.

User
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER tSLANDS PUMPING STATION      

o

Address
950 STEWART ROAD

G 
LATHROP

Zip
9533Q

Bay wi instal) the system(° System") described below and on the attached cantinuation pageis), and wi8 mai ain and monitor, and provide a her servites pursuant to the terms and
conditions of ihis agreement. lnsfailation vn l begin appraximately 4 weeks, and w+ 6e completed approximately

5 weeks. Starting the
instaliniion of wiring and/ or deiivery of equipmem to your premises will constitute su6s#mifial commencement of the work to 6e performed. User agrees to pay in addition to charges
stated herein all taxes, permiis, fees, or any costs relating to this System imQosed by any gavernmental ar regulatory hady or increases in charges made hy the telephone company.
User understands there mny be a red telephone company charge for the installation of a telephone interface jack. Services to cansist of the following only:

INSTSLLAflON CNARGE AND PRYN4ENT:     TYPE SERVItE:    CUMMUNIUTION TYPE:

INTRUSION ALARM fIRE ALARM 0 POTS( Pinin Old Telephone Service)
TOTAI 1NSTALUQION CHARGE:     $  7,900.00      Nlonitored Monitored i

a
et Protaol

OPfN CI,OSING OPTIONS FIRE TEST FREAUENCY

E- utaag NfPA 12
BayNef PI Sprnkler Inspedion Service

DEPOSIT DUE AT SIGNIRIG 0.00      Supenrise( seled one belyw! 8ay wi inspazt— sers per quarter wIRElE55 TRANSMI5510N
Centra Station 0 fl u g Other Digital Cellulor Alarm Back- Upu

DUE UPON[ OMPLETIOP!   Us r Keyp d Conira Oigital Cellulot Alarm Ordy
Uideo( dddendum required}    FIRE TEST OEVICES

p herOE PREWIR@ 0 Pane! 0

O BAYLINK Panel re Devices

BAIAN( E DUE UPON BAYHET NDU TRIAL MONtTORING

SYSTEM COMPLEiION:    7 900.00     R rigeration
a A[ CESS Temperature tontrol QTHFlt

YIDEO YERIFICAtIUN{ addendum required) 
YIDEO NOTIf1CATI0H( addendum requ edl OTHER

CATCHVIEW

1 '     

MONiHLY SERVKE CHARGE: $    450.00 Puyable qearter#y in advaace.
How to Get S rvice: Contad Bay at 1- 800-470-1000. Bay will provide serv e as soon as teawnably possible.

sn eao ds, co zoi    PAGE 1 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"  Page 11 of 17

71



USER:   
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRESS:    
950 STEWART ROAD

T,       
LATHROP

Z P:      
95330

iF AN INTRUSION ALARM

Glass break detectors, motian detectors, phota electric heams ore for areo detection only. User to provide a clear path.
Wireleu Haldup Buttons- User i5 aware transmitter push button may cease operating without notice and function is affeded by boitery charge or d' tance from control unit.

User ogrees thut Bay is neither responsible nor 1ia61e and holds Bay harmless fram any conseqoences assadated with this device.
Wireless Devices- USer is aware that it is User's responsihility ta maiotain and replace transmitter batteries when ne essary. Bay wJl provide this senrice for a fee if Oser so

desires.

Local auihoriiies may require that you obtain a permit or license to use a monitored alarm system.( See paragraph 6)
IF A TAKEOVER/ CONNECT TO USER- OWNED DEVICES

Buy to conned to and manitw nr control User's owned equipment. Any wark to be done on User owned equipment fhat exceeds one il) hour will 6e on a time plus material
6nsis ai Bay s̀ ihen prevailing rate including any repairs or modifications required to make Sysfem operational.
1F A NEW OWNER WBOR AGREEMENT

Baytests and inspects up tu one( 1) hour only. My additionol work that has not been cuntraded will be done on a time plus materials basis at Bay's then prevailing rate.
If A UL CERTI ICATE IS ISSUED

User understands ond agrees that UL charges Bny an annuol fee fnr their services. User will reimburse Bay for the fee.
8ay will automatically renew agreement and ceriificate for same initial agreement term, unless notified thirty( 30) days in advance by User.

If tNDUSiRIAI MONITORING

User to supply dry set" t"type cantacts and conduit required for Bay connedion. Monfhly charges include up to two( 2) signal hansmissions per transmitter per month. M
excessive amount over and above this will result in an additional churge per signal a6ove Bay's then prevailing rate.
IF BAYLINK IS SOLD

User will receive an email from Bay when their system sends a 6ypass/ trouhle/ open or close signal from iheir alarm system. User understands ihat Bay will make reasona6le
efforts to communicate through email me sages only.
IF SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED

Computer shall 6e supplied according to Bay's speciFications and shall 6e free from defed.
User understands and agrees that alfhough proteded by appropriate safeguards, instolling remote occess dial- in sofiware carries some risk of aaess to and control of the

sesurity syslem 6y unauthorized peRons. It is the User' s responsibil' ty to keep the password, installed software, and mndem under their control at ull times.
If networking sofiware is installed, it is the User' s responsibiliiy to provide and maintain a netwark th t can support any instnlled softwnre by Ba}r.

IF A tCTV SYSTEM

User is aware that there are certain rights to privary enjayed by employees and the public. As a condition to this installation, it is the User'S responsibility to ensure compliance
with all applicable privacy Imvs. Oser agrees to provide sufficient li hting io meet required scene illuminations.

User is salely respansihle for praviding ond maintaining film and or video tape for fCTV systems.
HETWORK CONNECTIVI'FY& TRANSMISSION fACILITIES

User shall provide and mairrtain aperational an Eihemet Neiwark conneded[ ATS or higher mhle with a RJ-05 plug termination at( acation specified by Bay. If required, User
will pravide I. P. address, gateway nddreu and submask. If ihe Internet or Wireless Transmission is used as a primary or secondary transmission path, User will provide, at your
expense, the necessary telecommunications connectiom facilities. The IMernet, radio and cellular networks are maintained and seNiced by the applicable service provider and
are totally beyand Bay' s cantrnl. Signal transmission conne iv'1y nnd speed may vary due to tra$ ic volumes, adverse weather, rystem oufages and other circumstnnces 6eyond
aur wntrol. Internet Cannedivity can only be 5upported thraugh a PC with Internet Explorer. Mac's or ather Browsers a e not campatible at this iime.
PROGRESS BILLING

User understnnds and agrees ihat if there is a User caused imerruption ii.e. llser rnnstrudion delay, remodeling, prewire, no power available, etc.) in Bay's a6ility to start
and finish the installation and Bay must return at a later date to complete the insiallation, Bny will pragress h l for a portion af work mmpleted. A retum trip charge moy be
incurred.

VoIP TELEPHONE SERVICE

The use of VoIP telephone service may interfere with the ability of the System to transmit alarm signals to our monitoring fncility. The User must notify Bay in advance if con-
sidering the use of a managed VoIP service in order to assure its ability to fundion. User understands that DSL, unmanaged VaIP, or niher intemet-based services not approved
in advance by Boy may not be used.

Sd840Eledrani( 01/ 2012    PAGE Z OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 12 of 17

72



USER:   
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRESS:    
950 STEWART ROAD

Y
LATHROP

Z P.      
95330

IF A fIRE SYSTEM
Smoke/ He tdetedors— for area or spot detection only.
Bayto plan check and apply for city permits. User agrees to pay ai) city, permit, pinn c6eck, or drawing d arges as required.
User understands and agrees th t any additional devices required hy ihe AH1 before fina) oaepionce of System will 6e ai User' s expense nt Bay`s then prevailing rates.
ff POTS is used, User to provide iwo( 21 User-controlled phone lines.
Userto pravide dedicated 12DVAC io the fire Alarm Contral Unit and as5oaafed power supplies, and install breaker locks for required power.
If smoke detedors nre installed and then 6ecame dirty due to construdion that takes place, ihe User understands ihey ore respunsihle for repair andJor replacement.
If Bny is unable to gain access to the Sysiem for testing and inspedions, User unde stands there may be a return trip fee. Bay w l not issue a credit for failed or no access

inspedions.

User understands and ogrees that the nutomatic fire alarm devices and appliances Ihat wil) 6e insfalled or ore located on this property are punuant to fhe approved shop
drawings ihat will he or were previously su6mitted hy Bay to the AH1 for this property.
Additional sfate, other govemment agenry, insurance inspedions or tesfing whi h requires Bay persannel ta be an site will 6e charged on a iime plus m terial 6asis, at 6ay's

then prevailing rates.
Once System has been powered up and Sysiem is pragrammed at Bay' s manitoring center the Monthly Service Fee is paya6le.
HVACsystem power/ shut off is to be provided by mechanical and/ or electrical mntradors. Bay will monitor only.
If during the installotion process the AHJ deems a fire w tch is netessary while the System is 6eing installed or temporarily inopera6le, User to provide and pay for this

service.

Any painting and/ or patching is not included unless expressly staied otherwise.       
Additional fees thm are not included in the cantrad ore as follaws: permit fees, additiona) off hour inspedions or re- inspedinn due to other contraded partie5 failure to shuw

nnd have equipment rendy for inspedion.
Buy sholl instnll a fire alurm system based on the Codes and Standard5 that were in effed at the time ihe System wos designed, 6ased on ihe presaiptive requirements far

the occupanry. Bay is not pruviding nn engineering assessment. If an engineering assessmeat af risk hozurds is required, the User should tontad a Registered Fire Protection
Engineer.
1F SPRINKIER INSPfCTION SERVICE

If Sprinkler Inspectian Service is provided, Bay wili onduct the inspedions in acmrdance with Title 19,( alifomia Code of Regulations, Chapter 5, A licle 4.
Boy is not providing or will notprovide design analysis of the premises sprinkler system through ihe 5prinkler Inspection Service in5pedion. If a design analysis is desired the
ser shoufd contact a Regisiered fiire Protedion Engineer.

If FIRE INSPECTIONS ARE TO BE PERFORMED
Baywill perform fire inspedions during normal 6usiness hours, Mond  - Friday 9- 5. lnspectioris performed after normal business hours are available at a premium rate.s

Depending on fihe type of inspection 6eing performed, User understan s and agrees it may cause a disruption in 6usiness.
IF A(d ADDENDUM-ALTERATION ADDITION AGREEMENT

User understands and agrees that Bay will lewe 6alance of System as listed per previous agreements.
If A CANtELS FORMER AGREEMENT
tontrad terms 6egin upon date the System and/ or Service i5 online.

51GN5, DECALS AND SYSiEM COMMUNICATOR REMIdIN THE PROPERTY OF BAv

1HE 5Y5TEM MIlSi BE CONNEftEQ TO A iP0T5 PLAIN OLD TELEPHONE SERVICE UNE AND MAY NOT WORR WRH OTHER COMMUNICdTION METHODS SUCH AS CELLULdR OR YOIP SERVICES.
see perugioph llJ

SA840EIedranic 01/ 20121 PAGE 3 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 13 of 17

73



CONTINUATION PAGE

USER:    
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP - RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRESS:    
950 STEWART ROAD LATHROP Z P.   95330

1 j Bny Alnrm ta Remove 2} Bay Alarm to Relocate 3) Bay Alarm to Instalf 4) Bay Alarm to Conned SJ Lewe Balance of System

BAY ALARM TO INSTALL:

2- BAYGUARD CONTROL PANELS (CENTER OF YARD)

1 - KEYPADS FRONT ENTRY

26- MOTION VIEWERS FENCE POST 1- 26

BAY ALARM TO PROGRAM:

BAYNET

CATCHVIEW

User desires no additional protettion nt this time, I. E MOTION VIEWER

f deposii is not received, Bay will schedule the contmd wark/ service ance the deposit is received. If finai payment is not received upon campletian af contract wark, Bay may
e ed not ta adivate t e servite unfi ' na payment is receive . You state that you ave receive a comp ete copy o t is agreement.
All terms on ihe following pages, including those limiting Bay`s liahility, and on all uttachments are part of this agreement— read them before you sign all pages.

saeaode eai oiz      PAGE 4 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 14 of 17

74



USER:    
GOV. CITY OF LATHROP — RIVER ISLANDS PUMPING STATION

ADDRESS:     
950 STEWART ROAD

n:       
LATHROP

Z P.    
95330

1. TITLE, TERMIPlATION, REMOYAL OF SYSTEM: User a knowledges and agrees that this agreement is a service agreement only and the entire System shall nt all times
emain the sole properfy uf 8ay. llser will not damage, encum6er or dispose of the System or permit the System to be damaged, encumbered, taken from ihe premises, iampered

with or repnired by nny but Boy' s personnel. In ihe event of loss ar damage to the System ar any part ihereof, llser ngrees to pay Bay the System' s reasanable repla ement value
or the cost of repair as the case may be. At the expirafion or termination of this agreement or in the event of User' s default, User authnrizes Bay ta enter User's premises and to
remove all or any porlian of tfie System. Bay may eled ta abandon all or any portion of the System. Removal of ihe System shall be without prejudice to the calledion of nny and
all sums due under the entire agreement or extensions or renewals thereof, including, 6ut not limited to recavery of loss of prnfiis for nny unexpired term of this agreemenf. If
Bay eleds to remove the Sysiem or any portion thereof, Bay agrees to condud such removal, in a workmanlike manner, hut Bay 5hall not be responsihle for or have any obliga-
tion to repair minor damage to the premises( such as, but not limited ta, screw, fastener holes, paint or wal) finishing damage) resulting from such removnl. Unless a6andoned by
Bay, User will return the 5ystem to us in good canditinn, reasonable wear and tear excepted. User agrees that installaiian of the System does not create a fixture to the premises.
This agreement is nnt fnr sale of a System. If Oser defaults or cancels this agreemenl, nr this agreement is terminated in whole or in parfi for any reason other than Bay's defauft,
Bay shall he entitled io collect and User 5hall poy to Bay:( i) all nmount5 due io Bay for services performed and equipment provided through the terminaiion dote of the agree-
ment, nnd fii) all amounts to which Bay is entitled by low for the unexpired term of the agreement including loss of profits.

2. ADDITIONAL COSTS: User agrees to pay Bay's stondard rate far past due or carrying charges and colfectian cost if paymenis are not made an 6me or if installation tharge
is paid nn a periodic payment plan or progress 6illing. A reconned charge is io he pnid hy Ilser if ihe System is discanneded becnuse of a past due balance and User desires it recon-
neded. User to receive no Qedif if System is iemporarily disconnecfed or out af service for any reasan. If User defaults ar cancels this agreement or the whale or any part of the
premises herein involved is acquired or candemned for any pu6lic or private u5e or purpase, the entire remaining balance of the initial period or extension of this agreement peri-
od shall immediately 6ecome due and paynhle. Bay assumes no( iability for failure fo perform because of labor disputes, riots, floods, fires, acis of God or any catastrophe or on-
dition beyond our control and is not required to perfarm work while any such condition exists. If it hecomes necessary for Bay to institute lega) proceedings ia colled any charges
os sei forth herein, ihe unsuccessful party shall pay ta the successful party rea5ona61e aflorney`s fees and ndual court cost wherein permitted by law. If User fails to pay any o61i-
gations under this agreement when due, upon ten 110) days' written notice, Bny may diuonned the System. A re-connedion fee in addition to all past due amaunis, will he required
prior to readivoting System.

3. BAY 15 NOT AN INSURER. LIQUIDATED DAiIAAGES, 1111A1TATI0N Of LIABILITY: Far all Systems nnd services provided, it is understood nnd agreed; that Bay is nat
an insurer, thai irtsurance, if any, shall be abtained by the User,thai the paymenfis provided far herein are 6ased solely on the value af the service as set forth herein and are unre-
lated to the value of the User's praperty or other's property located on User's premises; that Bay makes no guaranty ar warrantg including any implied warranty of inerchantabil-
ity or fitness ihat the equipment or sarvices supplied will avert or prevent otcurrences or the consequences therefrom whi h the System or senrice is designed to deted or avert.
User acknawledges th t it is impradical and extremely difficult to fix the adual damages, if any, which may proximately result from Bay's negligence, a failure to perform any of
the abligations herein, including, but not limited to, installation, manitoring or repair service or other services, ar the failure of the Sysiem to properly operate with resulting loss
to User hetause of, among other ihings: a} The uncertain amount or volue of Oser's properfiy nr the properly af others kepi an the premises which may 6e lost, stalen, destroyed,
damaged ar atherwise affeded 6y occurrences which the System or service is designed to deted or avert; b) The uncertainty of the response time of any palice or fire department,
should they 6e notified as o result of a signal from or at premises; c The ina6ility to ascertain in advance what portion, if nny, nf any personal injury, denth, or property loss wnuld
he proximately caused hy Bay`s failure to perfarm or hy its equipment fo aperate; d) A( CfV ar ac ess cantrnl sysiem may not ohserve, detect or prevent an unautharized inlru-
sion or entry onto the premises; e) The naiure of the service to 6e perfarmed 6y Bay. Oser understnnds and agrees that if Bay should be found lioble for loss or dam-
age due to 4 ilure of Bay to perform any of the obligations herein, including 6ut not limited to instaltation, repair services, monitoring or service, or the
fnilure of the System equipment, or service in any resPed whatsoever, or Bay' s negligence then, Bay`s liabi(ity shall 6e limited to a sum equal to the
total of one half the annual papment or Fifteen Hundred Do( lars($ 1500.00) whichever is the lesser, as liquiduted damages and no4 as a penalty and fhis
Iia6iGty shnll be exciusive, and that the provisions o this Section shalt npply if toss or damage, Frrespectnae of cause or origin, results directly or indi-
eectly to persons or property, from performance or nonperformance of the obligations imposed by this agreement, or frum negligence oF Bay, its agents,
assi ns or employses. User may obtain a limitafiion of fiability from Boy for a higher limiiation of liability in lieu of the liquidated damages set forth a6ove by paying an addi-
tiona fee to Bay. If Use eleds this option, a rider will be added to this agreement which will set fnrth the amnunt of the limitaiion of liability and the amount of the fee. Agreeing
to the limitaiion of liahility dae not mean that Bay is an insurer.

4. THIRD PARTY lP1DENINIFICATIQN: When User, in the ordinary course of 6usiness, has the property of others in its/ his custody, or the System extends to prated prop-
eriy af others, User agrees to and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Bay, its employees and agents for and against all laims braught hy parties, other than the pnrties to
this agreement. This provision shall npply fo all claims regordless of cause including Boy' s performance ar failure to perform and including defeds in produds, de5ign, installatian,
moniioring, repair, service, operation or nonoperatian of the System whether based upon negligence, warrnnty, ontrihution, indemnification, ar strid or pradud lia6ility on the part
of Bay, its employees or agents, but this provision shall not apply to claims far lass or damage which occur whife un employee or agent of Bay is on User' s premises and are sole-
ly and directly caused by wc6 employee or agent.

5. SUBROGATION: Sa far as it is permitted by User' s property insurnnce cnverage, User hereby releases, dischnrges and agrees fo ho d Bay harm(ess from any and all daims,
lia6ilities, damages, Insses or expenses, arising fram or caused by any hnzard covered 6y insuran e in or ort the User' S premises w6ether said daims are made by User, his agents,
or insurance company nr oiher parties daiming under or through User. Oser agrees to indemnify Bay ngainst, defend and hold Bay harmless from, any adion for subrogation which

TERMS AND fONDITIONS ARE CONTINUED ON THE NEXT PAGE

5A840qedronic( Ol/ 2012}    PAGE 5 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 15 of 17

75



may be brought against Bay by any insurer ar insurance company or its agenfs or assigns including the paymant af all damages, expenses, costs and attorney's fees. User shall
notify his insurance carrier af the terms of this pravisian.

b. USER DUTIES: You will instrud all ather persons who may use the System on its proper use. Yau will test fhe System' s protedive devices and send test signah to our Central
Station in accordan e with our instructinns at least monthly. If ihe System includes space protedion( i. e. mitrowave, infrared, photo6eams, or other such detedors) you will turn
off, control, or remove all ihings such as air cnnditioning systems and heaters ihat might interfere with such devices when they are turned on. If a problem in the Sysfiem accurs
you will noiify us. Auihorities may nnt respond to an alarm, and/ or you may be subjed to a fine or penulty unless you have all necessary permits and( itenses for the use of the
System. You agree that we may disclose the information of the instructions to any governmental agenry having jurisdidion over the use and operation af the System. In the cnse
nf a fire alarm system, you will nofiify us in writing of any change in yaur fire rating bureau or agenry. You are solely responsihle for issuing and controlling access control cards
and programming thanges to the remote access system.

7. INSTALL TIONa User w I permit 9ay to install the System during Bny's narmal business hours and will give Bay uninterrupted access to User's premises. User agrees to
compensnte Bay for any additionnl installation/ service visiis required os a result of cancellafiion, readiness or urtavaila6ility io Bay' s current prevniling rate. lJser has approved the
locations af where the control panel, audi6le devices and all protedive devices will 6e installed. User has ihe affirmative duty ta inform Bay, prior to beginning of installaiian, af
every locmion at ihe premises where we should not{ because of concealed o6strudions or hazards such as pipes, wires or as6estosl enter or dril) holes. Upan request, User will repair
the premises( including fixing broken ar loose daors and windows) reasonably necessary to facifitaie the installatinn and operation of the System. If as6eslos or other health haz-
ardaus mnterial is encauntered during installa ion, Bay will cease wark until User has, at Users sole expense, o6tained clearance from a licensed asbestos remnval or hazardous
materinl contrador that continuaiion of work will not pose any danger to Bay's personnel. In no case shall Bay he liab(e for discovery or exposure of hidden as6estos or oiher haz-
urdous material, and Oser shnll indemnify and hald Bay nnd its employees harmless from nny claims brought against Bay nndlor its employees 6y third parties for damages, per-
sanal injury, death, emotional injury, whether ndual or prospedive allegedly caused by the presence, spread, inge iion or inhalatiun of any suhstance/ vapor on or originating from
User's premises. If tha 5ystem includes an exteriar audi6le bell, horn or siren, it is designed to shut-off afler saunding for noi mnre than fifteen( 15) minutes. User will provide
non-swifched electrical outlets for the System' s transformers. Bay is not responsible if! he instollation is delayed betause af bfld weather,( abor disputes, unavailahil'dy of electrica)
power or telephone service, Acts of Gad or other reasons 6eyond Bay' s cantrol. After the completion of ihe System, User and a Bay representotive will insped it. If samething is
missing or not properly installed you the l)ser will notify Boy wtlhin ten( 10) days, athenvise ihe System will have been accepted 6y llser.

8. REPAIR SERVICE: Bay will pravide al! repair necessitated hy.ordinary wear and tear to the System. Service will 6e pravided ns saon as reasonably possihle twenty- four
24) hours a day, seven( 1) duys a week. This service does noi caver:( il repairs that are needed because of an accident, your failure io properly use the System or maintain your

premises, nr if someone other ihan Bay attempts to repair or hange the sysiem; or fn) repairs ihat are needed for any other reason except a defed in the equipment or our instal-
latian. Bay may su6stitute materials of equal quality af iime of repincement, mny install reconditioned used ports, and may keep all repinced parts. Noncovered service will be
chnrged on a time and materinl basis at our then prevailing rmes and will include a visit chnrge, and you agree to pay for such noncovered services upon receipt of our invoice.

4. CHAR6ES, TAXES, RATE INCREASES: All charges set forth herein are hased upon existing federal, sfate and local iaxes and uiility charges, including telephone compa-
ny charges, if ony. Bay shall have the right at any time to increase the monthly charges provided herein, ta refled any additianal taxes, fees ar charges provided herein, or charges
which hereafter may 6e impo ed on Bay 6y any utility ar governmental agenry relaiing to ihe service( s prnvided under the terms of this agreement and llser ngrees to pay the
same. So ihat Bay may properly adjust its rates io meet changing service costs and notwithstanding the terms and conditions set forth herein after the expiration of one( 1} year
from the dute of campletion of installatian ond not more often than once ea h twelve( 12) month5, Bay may inaease the monthly service tharge 6y up to 1. 5 times 1he turrent
Bureau of Lahor Staflstics[ ansumer Price Index far oll urban consumers( reloted areas? or if this index is discontinued, a campara6le index as mensured from the date of this
agreement to the effedive date of ihe increase upon giving User notice in writing. The 6illing invoice seriing forfh the new chnrge shall he sufficient natice of ihe increase. Not with-
sianding any other terms and conditions set forth in this agreement, so thai Bay may prnperly adjust periadic charges to recover increases in Rs service5 cosis which are not recov-
ered by increase pursuant io paragraph a6ove, at any fime n$ er the expiration of ane( 1) year from date of installatian, Buy may increase the monthly service charge to an amount
exceeding the charge provided in paragraph above upun giving the User notice in wriiing. The hilling invoice setting forth the new chnrge shafl 6e suffitient notice of the intrease.
If User refuses rate increase, Bay has the right io rescind ar reduce said rate increase. If Bay declines ifs righi to reduce or rescind rate increase and if llser is unwilling io pay such
additional monthly charges imposed pursuant to this suh- paragrnph, lJser may terminate this agreement upon giving written noiice io Bay within ten( 10) days fram the effedive
date af the increaie. User's failure to notify Bay within said ten( 10) day5 shall constituie User' s consent to the incrense pursuant ta this 5u5- poragraph.

1 D. ASSIGNEES/ SUBCOtdTRACTORS OF BAY: 8ay muy transfer or assign this ogreement fo any other persan or entity intluding any financial institution or alarm compn-
ny. User may noi tronsfer this agreement to someone else( including sameone who purchases or rents User' s premises) unless 8ay approves ihe transfer in writing. Bay may use
subcantrodars to pravide installotinn, repair or muniioring services. This Agreement, and particularly paragraphs 3, 4 and 5, shall apply to the work ar 5ervice5 6ay' s assignees
or su6cantradors provide, and shall apply to them and proted Bay's assignees and subcontradars in the same manner as it applies to and prateds Boy.

11. MONITORING SERVICE:  When a signal from the 5ysiem is received in Bay's Centrnl Station, Boy will hy to telephone the proper police or fire department or other
emergenry personnel and the first available person on the Emergenry Notificotion list User gives us. You will natify us in wriiing of any changes in the instru tions. User agrees
that Bay, ut its discretion, may respond to alarms using Bay personnel in addition to or in lieu of police or User's representative. To avoid false alarms, Bny may( a) use the" lis-
fen- in" device of the System, if one has 6een provided, or( h) call User's premises first ta determine if an adual emergenry sxists before Bay calls any authorities. If Bay has rea-
son to helieve th t no actual emergenry exists, Boy may choose not to place such noiificalion calls. Bny may discontinue any part of this seroice ff required to do so by governmen-
tnl or insurance authorifies. User acknowledges and agrees that 6ath User and Bay ore required to comply with all laws, rules and regulations regarding monitoring and alarm
response enacted ar ndopted by the government'nl authorities having jurisdiction over the 5ysiem. If su h nuthorities, now or in ihe future, require physical or visual verificatinn
ar multi-telephnne verrficatian( e. g. two- call verification or ECV1 of any emergenry candition 6efore responding io a request far assistance, you agree to subscribe with us for such
service, and yau agree to pay an udditional monthly fee far such service that will be added to the current monthly fee. llser consents to ihe tape recording of all telephonic cnm-
municafiions between Bay`s Central Staiion and User' s premises. Bay rooy charge User for non- emergenry signals, use of premises keys or alarm respanse 6y Bay personnel. If Bay
holds premises keys, ii is hereby authorized to enter and make a visual inspectian of the interior of the premises ar protected area. lJser understands nnd agrees that Bay's response
agents do not hwe special arrest or law enforcement powers and may act only as ordinary dtizens. User acknawledges ihat if Bay utilizes a digital communicatar far ihe purpose
of sending alarm signols fram User's premises to Bny's Central Stulion, that the signnls from User' s System are sent over User' s plain old telephane service to Bay' s Central Siation
and ather telephone calls cannot 6e rnade when the System is activated including 911 emergenry operator alls; and in the event User' s telephone service is out of order, discon-

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ARE CONTINOED ON THE NEXT PAGE

SA 64U Eledranit( Ol/ 2011)    PAGE 6 OF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 16 of 17

76



neded, placed on vacotion or otherwise interrupted, signnls from User's 5ystem will not 6e received in Bcry`s( eniral Station during any such interruption and the interruption will
not be knawn to Bay. User further acknowledges and agrees that iignals are sent uver telephone amparry lines which are wholly beyond ihe control and jurisdidion of Bay and
are maintained and serviced by the applicable felephone company. User agrees ta pay all charges for al) telephane services cannecting User' s prntected premises and Bny. User
acknawledges, that if wireless transmission becomes inoperative far amr reason, signals wiil not be received in Bay' s Central Station. User acknovrledges that wireless transmission
muy( impaired or interrupted by atmospheric conditions, induding electrical storms, power failures, or other conditions beyond 1he control of B ry.

12. EXCESSIVE ALARMS: In the event an excessive numher of false alarms or service talls are caused 6y Oser ar in the event Oser in any mnnner misuses or abu5es the
System, Bay may, at its sole discretion, deem some to be a material breach of contmd on the part of User and, at iis opiion, be excused from further performance upan the giv-
ing nf ten i1dl days written nofice to Usec Bay' s excuse from performance shall nof affed its right to recover damages from User. In the event Bny dispatches nn agenf to
respond to en olarm originating hom User' s remises where User intentionaqy, acddeotally, or negligently has activated the alarm signaf and eo emer-
gency exisis, or if Bay makes any service wtl caosed by the inadvertence or negligence of User, User shall pay Bay a service charge at Bay' s then pre-
eailing rates. User represents he fdlly understands that fhe equipment, becaose af its sensitiviry and nature, is subject to ihe influence of external events
which are not witfiin the control of Bay and which may cause the alarm to activute. In the event a fine, penalty ar fee is assessed against Bay or User 6y any gov-
ernmental ar munidpal agency as a result of any alarm originating ram Oser's premises, User agrees fio 6e responsi6le for payment nf al) assessments and/ or reimburse Bay for
Bay assessments. Any or all such alarms shall nof-excuse any of the obligafiuns of User as set forih in the agreement.

13. DISCONNECT POLICY: User here6y authorizes Bay to manually u automafiimlly disconned the System if so ordered 6y a pu6lic official or regulafiion or for nuisante or
eledriml reasons or if Bay is unable to nofify User at emergenry nemhers listed ar if tlser dec nes or fails to orrive at premises within 30 minutes after notification. User agrees
to hnld Bay harmless and tfl indemnify Bay for nny damage, loss, or lin6iliiy which may resu(t from the turning off of the System.

l4. t0AlTROL tOMMUNItATOR: llser aclinowledges and agrees fhat Bay reserves the right to aaess the digitnl control commanicator 6y way of remote programming ar
physical aaess in order fio perform diagnoslics, chnnge nnd/ or updnte information or distonnect service upon the termination ur expiratian of this agreement.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This ngreement sha(I automaticnlly, wiihout actian 6y either party, extend and renew itself under the same terms ond conditions for suctessive peri-
ods of two t2) years each nfter the initial period unless either pnrty gives to the other m least thirty{ 30) days written natice, priar tn expiration date, or it intention to terminate
this agreement upon iis origina) or any renewed expiration dafie. It is understood and agreed 6y and between the parties hereto, thot if there is any conflid 6etween this agree-
ment and Oser's purthase order or ony other do ument or Bay literature, th agreement will gnvern, whether such purchase arder or other dncument is prior ar subsequent to ihis
agreement unless expressly superceded or replated by a suhsequen( agreement. In the event any provisions nr parts of this ngreement shaN be unenforcea5le, the pnrties under-
stand and agree that ihe remai ing praviyons and part5 shn(I co inue in fu1) force and effed. There are no ver6a) undersfiandings changing or modifying this agreement.! f User
cantels agreement 6efore installation 6egins, User ngrees to pay on udministrative charge.

16. GOVERNING LAW: This writing is iMended hy the padies as a final expressinn of their agreement and as a complete and exclusive statement of the ternu thereof. This
agresmeat supersedes all pria represenfations, understandings or agreemer s of the partier, nnd the parties rely only upon the confients of this ngreemenfi in execeting it. This
agreement can only be modified in wrling sign by the pariies or their duly authorzed agem. Na woiver or btea h of any ierm or rondition of this agreement shall be ronstrued
fo 6e a waiver of nny succeeding 6reach. User ogrees that this agreement is performed in the staie of California and sfiall he governed by the laws of California. User agrees that
any and a1) legol proceedings will have Contm Costa tounty as the p(ace of venue.

17. LEGA! WAIVERS, REFERENCE: Both parties hereby ag ee fhat no suit or action that relates in any way to this agreemenfi( whether based upan cantrad, negligence or
otherwise) shaH 6e brought against the other more than one( 1) year after ihe accrual af the cause oF adion therefnre. Both parties ngree that no( awsuit or any other legal pro-
ceeding conneded with this Agreement shall 6e hrought or filed mnre than one( 1] year after the inddent g'aing rise io the claim occurred. Any controversy, dispute, or claim
6eiween the parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement,{ other than adians brougM 6y Bay in smdll daims caurt to collect amounts due under this Agreemer) will 6e set-
tled 6y a reference proceeding in Contra Costa County California, in accnrdance wiih the provisions o Sections b38, et seq and b41 through 645. 1, and of the California Code of
Gvil Procedure, or their suaessor sedions, which shal) constitute the exclusive remedy ar the resolutian af any controversy, dispule, or claim concerning this Agreement, induding
whether such controversy, aispuie, or daim is subjed to the reference proceeding. The referee shall 6e appointed fio sit as a temporary ludge with all of fihe powers of a tempa
rary ludge autharized 6y law In the event th t the enabling legislation, which provi es for ihe appoi ent of a referee is repealed and no successor statute i5 enaded, any dis-
pute 6eiween the parties that would ntherwise be determined by a reference procedure herein, wili 6e resolved and determined by 6inding arhitration. That ar6itration will be con-
du ted by a retired ludge of ihe Superiar[ ourt in accordaace with Sectian 1280 to l Y94.2 of the California fode o# Gvil Protedure, as amended frum time tu time.

18. 1MAGING: User agrees that Bay may swe and store al) agreemenis and other documents executed! ry Oser in an eledronic medin and all such agresme and ot er doo-
umems shall 6e deemed to 6e,. and may be u5ed by Bay ns, originals and shail 6e given the 5ume farce and effect as the poper-form original.

19. BAY' S LftENSES: Alarm company operators are licensed and regulated 6y the Bureao of Securifiy and Investigative Services, Department of tansamer Affairs,
Sacramen% CA 95814. Contructors are required by law to be licensed aed regnlated 6y the Caetractors' State Licease Board whic 6as jurisdiction to tovestigate
compinints against contmctors if a complaint regarding a patent act or omission is iled withia faur( 4a years of the date of the apeged violatioa. A rnmplsdnt
regarding a lateat act or amission pertaimng ro structura! defects must be iled within ten( 10) years af the.date of the alteged violation. Any questions concern-
ing a contractor may be referred to the Registrnr, tontrators' State License Board, P.O. Box 2600, Sacramento, CQ 93826.
BAY ALARM• Piease Read Entire Agreemem

SEAN BITHELL 81185
USER S1GN, DATE& PRINT NAME HERE y DAtE
Z User Ilnderstands nnd agrees 6y signing belaw User a baund to M Q YEAR

SALES REPRESENTATIVE A6ENT#       nll terms and cooditians on all poges of this agreement# 1-' J.

BI(:

APPROVED  ( Offite O e Only) DATE AOTHORIZED SIGNATURE TI E

Tha agreement n'll not 6e effedive untif eiiher approved by one of Bay' S managers, or.Bay
the installation of the equipm t or initiaies service. In ihe eve of disapproval, Bay' s

on obPgatian shall 6e to refund any monies paid hy User to Bay. User acknawledges nnd
SIGNER' S NAME( PRI iED OR TYPED)

ngrees that User will not raeive a copy of ihu agreemant signed 6y Bo ls Manuger, and such       
ORP  LLC 50LE PROPRIETQR  PARTNERSHIP OTHERfock nf receipt shall not, in an}r way, invalidate ar oiherwise affect this agreement.

snaao r ta 2or    PAGE 1 QF 7

EXHIBIT "A"    Page 17 of 17

77



i

78



ITEM 4.7    ;

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

May 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:   AD7USTMENT TO THE REPUBLIC

SERVICES SOLID WASTE COLLECTION

RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018- 2019

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution to Authorize an

Increase to Republic Services Collection

Rates for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019 Based

on the Consumer Price Index for All

Urban Consumers

SUMMARY

Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170 and Section 26 of the Agreement between
the City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation   (Agreement),   now doing
business as Republic Services,   provide the City Council shall determine the
maximum solid waste collection rates.   Section 26 of the Agreement also provides

collection rates shall be reviewed annually and any adjustment to the maximum
solid waste collection rates is to be based on the Consumer Price Index for All
Urban Consumers ( CPI- U) for the San Francisco- Oakland- San Jose, California area,
not to exceed 4. 0%.

On May 1,  2018,  staff received a request from Republic Services to adjust their
commercial and residential rates.   The proposed 3. 6%  increase is based on the
annual CPI- U percentage change over the last year, ending February 1, 2018.  The

increase would apply to all customer classes effective on July 1, 2018.

BACKGROUND:  

On October 21,  2003,  City Council approved an Agreement between the City of
Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation   (Agreement),  now doing business as
Republic Services, to provide the necessary collection, transportation and disposal

of solid waste generated within the City limit and for compliance with the source
reduction and recycling elements of the City' s Waste Management Plan.

On June 2, 2009, City Council approved Amendment No.  1 to the Agreement with

Republic Services extending the contract term for an additional 5 years.

On June 2, 2014 City Council approved Amendment No.  2 to the Agreement with
Republic Services to continue to provide the necessary collection,  transportation

and disposal of solid waste generated within the City limit for an additional 5 years.

Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170 and Section 26 of the Agreement provide
the City Council shall determine the maximum solid waste collection rates.
Section 26 of the Agreement also provides collection rates shall be reviewed

annually and any adjustment to the maximum solid waste collection rates is to be

79



CITY MAN GEF2' S REPORT PAGE Z

1 9AY 14, 2018 CITY GOUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

I EPU LIC SEFZ lICES CPY- U AD7USTMENT FOR Fl( 2018- 2019

based on the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers ( CPI- U) for the San

Francisco- Oakland- San Jose, California area, not to exceed 4. 0%.

On May 1,  2018,  staff received a request from Republic Services to adjust their

commercial and residential rates based on the increase of the CPI- U.  The CPI- U for

the period of February 1, 2017 through February 1, 2018 increased 3. 6%.

The maximum allowable rate request is as follows:

ST 4/ VD.4RD RESIDENTI 4 RAT' S:

8 a        % 6 a g '- e o ' .          8

S    i          s  ,   '''  .' W_'` ,'
r,^ r  "  ,     ,,      a     ' e

a a y:ua+  ax. e_    .€ k. ... aw s  s,..   ?-.. a

rnall - 30 yal 28. 20       

y   '$

29. 22 1. 02

Medium - 60 gal 30. 66 31. 76 1. 10

Large - 90 al 35. 31 3fi. 5       1. 27

SE IIIOR RESIDENTIAL R I TLS:

3::*  ,', x€'§   r        rz..    v=' ,,- s..'-aY    ^    g"v̀, ,

o y,,,..  
s  -   ... K=."'-.

D         `   0 6 9 0   u e ," „       5

a       
t i-an.    ,  :       

s• 
3. .` »^ s .,,     .= v

o-,

w  ;  

a``

p'. ,  ' . i%      .,',s"     
r

5S5rnall - 30 yal 20. 42 21. 1C 0. 74

Medium - 60 al 22. 20 23. 00 0. 0

Large - 90 al 25. 53 2fia45 0. 52

IVIOBILE HONl'/ TRAILER PARK 1. 4TES:

o
g   

g t J    a a a   - c a   :    `   '  

r'' ,''`  . a  3':..,.  r*- `, f  x     ,

c v.      ; r,r.. r             
a   

x , 9 s 
f.   ' `'        ,      ,

i, v      ..•, z ar,, r,  ry ,,, 4x.      .    `_,..,. t 3'"..  .
w,'''     <     a:-;,': k: ti

Small - 30 al 22. 97 23. 0 0. 3

Mlediurr - 60 al 23. 49 24.34 0. 85

Large - 90 gal 27. 60 8. 59 0. 99

SENIOR MO ILE HOlIVIE/ TRAILE62 Pa4R/ C R I TES;

I
t •  

o D o   ' a o  e  +'     5
ss'. 

a a z    

wR       .,   , ..    Y§cz"+*.         > 
zt „,* r     * t s-,

fa  §  

u  .

z y   '     .;    
r,  

t.     s.      a'

Small - 30 al 16. 64 17. 24 0. 60

Medium - 60 al Y7. 01 17. 62 0. 61

Larc e - 90 gal 1J. 99 20. 71 0. 72

80



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COIDNCIL FtEGULAR MEETING

REPUBLYC SERVYCES CPI- U AD7USTMENT FOR FY 201- 2019

COMMERCIAL RATES - CURRENT R.4TES:

s.     

o 1t       m e       

x r ,  tr

t

b

p t n            

j

C.' FN,  ,
c3.+: a° ,..* 3    ' i+ni           '• d R̀a s   ,     . a. n  €. n._n.. .    n w.   u  + v.....e a. M.,. L!°%

1 Cu. Yd      $ 79. 79      $ 121. 59    $ 163. 37      $ 205. 11    $ 246.89 100 Ibs.

2 Cu. Yd      $ 102. 5    $ 157. 57    $ 216. 42      $ 267. 59    $ 322.59 200 Ibs.

3 Cu. Yd      $ 130. 05    $207, 82    $ 299. 81       $409. 23    $ 518.74 350 Ibs.

4 Cu. Ycl      $ 162. 32    $267. 59    $ 413. 22      $ 55. 93    $ 701. 97 400 Ibs.

5 Cu. Yd      $ 200. 91    $ 385. 99    $ 571. 08      $ 756. 17    $ 341. 28 600 Ibs.

6 Cu. Yd      $ 238. 21    $ 464. 79    $ 691. f:7      $ 918.49    $ 1, 145a37 650 Ibs.

L  . Cart      $ 33. 99 N/ A IV/      N/ A N/      N/ A

CO/NNIERC,I 4L IaATES - PROPOSED R I TES:

s...      .; 
m,..:   

m     ,    _    zo   -  _      ..      m z       - -      

1 Cu. Yd      $ 2. 66      $ 125. 97    $ 169. 25      $ 212.49    $ 255. 78 100 Ibs.

2 Cu. Yc9      $ 106. 27   $ 163. 24    $224. 21      $ 277. 22    $ 334. 20 200 Ibs.

3 Cu. Yd      $ 134. 73   $ 215. 30    $310.60      $ 423. 96    $ 537.41 350 Ibs.

4 Cu. Yd      $ 168. 16   $ 277. 22    $428. 10      $ 579: 05    $ 727. 24 400 Ibs.

5 Cu. Yd      $ 208. 14   $ 399.89    $591. 64      $ 7 3. 39    $ 975. 17 6A0 Ibs.

6 Cu. 1( d      $ 246079   $ 481. 52    $716.57      $ 951. 56    $ 1, 186. 60 650 Ibso

Lg. Cart      $ 35. 21 N/ A N/ A N/ A N/ A N/ A

Weights in excess of these maximum amounts per bin per pick up will be charged
an additional $8, 00 per extra 100 pounds.

COUNCIL GOALS ADV 4NCED BY TFiIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Public Safetv by maintaining contract requirements for
solid waste management within the City of Lathrop.

FISCAL IMPACT:     

Pursuant to Section 27 of the Agreement between the City of Lathrop and Lathrop
Sunrise Sanitation, now doing business as Republic Services, and Lathrop Municipal
Code Section 8. 16. 180,  Republic Services shall remit to the City of Lathrop a
Franchise Fee of seven  ( 7%)  percent and a AB939 Recycling Fee of three  ( 3%)

percent of the gross revenue collected within ten ( 10) days following the completion
of each calendar month.

81



CITY MAIOIAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

MAY 14, 201 CITY COUfVCIL REGULAR MEETIIVG

FtEPUBLIC SERVICES CPI- l! AD) l1STMENT FOR FY 2018- 2019

l'T14CH M EMT:

A.  Resolution Authorizing an Increase of the Republic Services Collection Rates
Based on the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the San

Francisco- Oakland- San Jose Area for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019

B.  Letter from Republic Services

82



CITY MANAGER' S I EPORT P 4GE 5

MAY 14, 201 CITI( COUNCIL REGULAR MEETYN( 9

REPUBLIC SERi/ ICES CPI- ll AD7USTMENT FOR FY 201- 2019

APPROVALS:

1 C' C i          D/

I  ox      Da

Senior Ad F is.tca'  e Assistant

1

Cari Jam s Date

Director o Fi ance

I 
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s• • s

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

83



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE OF THE REPUBLIC SERVICES COLLECTION

RATES, BASED ON THE CONSUMER PRICE INDEX FOR ALL URBAN

CONSUMERS FOR THE SAN FRANCISCO- OAKLAND- SAN JOSE AREA FOR

FISCAL YEAR 2018- 2019

WHEREAS,  on October 21,  2003,  City Council approved an Agreement
between the City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation  ( Agreement),  now

doing business as Republic Services,   to provide the necessary collection,

transportation and disposal of solid waste generated within the City limit and for
compliance with the source reduction and recycling elements of the City' s Waste
Management Plan; and

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2009, City Council approved Amendment No. 1 to the

Agreement with Republic Services extending the contract term for an additional 5
years; and

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2014 City Council approved Amendment No. 2 to the
Agreement with Republic Services to continue to provide the necessary collection,
transportation and disposal of solid waste generated within the City limit for an
additional 5 years; and

WHEREAS, Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170 and Section 26 of the
original Agreement provide the City Council shall determine the maximum solid
waste collection rates; and

WHEREAS, Section 26 of the Agreement also provides collection rates shall

be reviewed annually and any adjustment to the maximum solid waste collection
rates is to be based on the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers ( CPI- U)

for the San Francisco- Oakland- San Jose, California area, not to exceed 4. 0%; and

WHEREAS, the last rate increase approved by City Council was for fiscal
year 2016- 2017 where commercial and residential rates were increased by 2. 67%
effective July 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2018, staff received a request from Republic Services

to adjust their commercial and residential rates pursuant to Section 26 of the
Agreement; and

WHEREAS,  the change in the CPI- U for the period of February 1,  2017
through February 1, 2018 was 3. 6%; and

WHEREAS, the 3. 6% rate increase shall take effect on July 1,  2018 for all

customer classes; and

84



WHEREAS,  pursuant to Section 27 of the Agreement between the City of
Lathrop and Republic Services and Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 180

Republic Services shall remit to the City of Lathrop a Franchise Fee of seven ( 7%)

percent and a AB939 Recycling Fee of three  (3%)  percent of the gross revenue

collected within ten ( 10) days following the completion of each calendar month;

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED, that to the extent that the solid

waste hauler gives notice pursuant to Section 26 of the Agreement, and pursuant to

Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170, the City' s franchised solid waste hauler
shall not be permitted to charge fees any higher than specified for each customer
type listed:

STANDARD RESIDENTIAL RATES:

Contai er 5ize Current Rate Projvosecl 3:° lo Differ nce
Ita e..increase:

n            
nS„.       

x.

Sma/ I - 30 a/ 28.20 29,22 I.02

Medium - 60 a/    $ 30,66 3I,76 Z. IO

Lar e - 90 a/ 35,3I 36.58 Z, 27

SENIOR RESIDENTIAL RATES;

Con tainer Size Cur rent Rate Propa ec! 3.% a Di eren =e
Ra#e 1"ncrease

Sma// - 30 a/ 20,42 21. Z6 0.74

Medium - 60 a/    $ 22,20 23,00 0.80

Lar e - 90 a/ 25.53 26.45 0.52

MOBILE HOME/ TRAILER PARK RATES:

Container Size C rrent Rate Proposed 3:6'%       l iffe ence
ltate Increase

Sma// - 30 al 22.97 23.80 0.83

Medium - 60 a/    $ 23.49 24.34 0.85

Lar e - 90 a/ 27,60 28.59 0,99

SENIOR MOBILE HOME/ TRAILER PARK RATES:

Container 5ize Current Rae Propase     . 6'%       Difference

Ra e Tncrease

Sma// - 30 a/ Z 6.64 17.24 0.60

Medium - 60 a/    $ 17.OZ Z7.62 0.6I

Lar e - 90 a/ Z 9. 99 20.71 0,72

85



CO/NMERC.IAL RATES - CURRENP RATES:

Confa n r OneJWk  Two/ Wk  .Three/ Wk Fou Wk  F ve/ INk   INax/ Wt"
E        ffi „„ r"`°     '. zt      `+`

t°'`    
as x°'  a     '   z .,„ t.     

S/Ze    ;   ::   
v

5  ,'    ,       :
A-  ' " ;.  `«,

h  

3.,       - t..  -       z,    r    _, c   "     .. c t r r a>

1 Cu. Yd     $ 79m79      $ I21.s9    $I63.37     $ 205,II    $246,89 100 /bs.

2 Cu. Yd     $ 102.58   $ 157.57   $ 216.42      $ 267.59    $ 322.59 200 /bs.

3 Cu. Yd     $ I30.05   $ 207.82    $299.8I      $409.23    $5Z8,74 350 /bs.

4 Cu. Yd     $ Z62.32   $ 267059    $ 4I3.22      $ 558.93    $ 70. 97 400 /bs.

5 Cu. Yd     $ 200.91    $ 385,99    $ 57Z. 0      $ 756.y7    $94I.28 600 /bs,

6 Cu. Yd     $ 238.2I    $464.79    $691, 67      $93. 49    $ 1, 145.37 650 /bs.

Lg. Cart      $33.99 N/ A IV/ A N/ A N/ A N/ A

COP9MERC%AL RATES - PROPOSED R 17"ES;

a%,     r              z-.:     ^ x'    u3

Container Onej Wk Two Wk Three%Wk Four W,k  Fiv/ Wk,  Max/ Wt*
a        ?   ,   ,      "   '  , e  `,"  r`   

a       
S ae

r    ,
h     ;„        .

s=,  
a   i     n;,,    r    ,; t.`    S;      5','". '£

1 Cu, Yc/     $ 82.66     $ I25.97   $.Y69,25      $2Z2e49    $ 255.78 Z00 /bs.

2 Cu. Yc     $ 106,27   $163.24   $ 224.21      $ 277,22    $ 334.20 200 /bse

3 Cu. Yd     $ I34,73   $ 2I5.30   $ 3 0, 60      $ 423.96    $ 537.4       3S0 /bs,

4 Cu. Yd     $ 168.16   $ 277.22   $ 428.10      $ 579,05    $727.24 400 /bs,

5 Cu. Yd     $ 208.14   $ 399.89   $ 591. 64      $ 83,39    $ 975,17 600 /bs,

6 Cu. Yd     $ 246.79   $ 48I.52   $ 716.57      $951, 56    $ 1, 1 6. 60 650 /bs.

Lg. Cart      $35.2I N/ A N/ A 111/ A N/ A N/ A

Weights in excess of these maximum amounts per bin per pick up will be charged
an additional 8. 00 per extra 100 pounds.

86



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May, 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

4TTEST: APPRO!/ ED / TO FORMa

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

87



r cH    

u L,,   1' 145 W CharterWay, 5tockton, CA 95206
SEAV/CES o 2U9- 466=5192 f 2Q9- 4 5-0639 republicservices.com

Nlay 1, 2018
Emilia Knox

City of La hrop
390 Tow e Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

Dea Ms: Knox;

Pursuant to Section 26 of the " Agreement Between the. City of .Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise
Sanitation Corporation". the collection rates shall 6e reviewed annually during the month of May
and adjusted effective July 1.  The.,agreem.ent allows. for.an adjustment based, on the prior year
change i the Consuriier Price index for the San Francisco-0akland-San Jose; all urban consumer

as published bythe United States Department of Labor, Bureau of LaborStatistics. The.change in
the CPI forthe period Fetiruary 1, 2017 through February 1, 2018 was 3:6%.

Attached please find the proposed new colfection rates effective July 1, 2018. Thank you for the
continued con dence in Repubfic Senrices of Lathrop, as always we will continue fo, strive to
provide professional solid waste services, Shoulii you have any questions, please do not hesitate
to call me at( 209j 466-5192..

Sincerelyl

I
Republic Services of Lathrap

Kevin BaIso

Enclosur

f
88



Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Rates Effective 7/ 1/ 17 (Current)
1/ WK 2/ WK 3!! NK 4NilK 5MlK Max Wt/ Lbs

7 YD     ..  a         ,   $ 79,79.   '   1:21. 59    . $ 1q63. 37 .     $ 205.1` 1   ,  ,,$ 246.89 ,   ,
a'=° 

1x00    ;

2 YD 102.58 157.57 216.42 267.59• 322.59 '  200     •,

3 Y.     -    ` 
a    =>$ 130.OS  ;  207.82'  a a 99.81:  ;  409.23 ` a ,: ' 518.74.  ,`_ ,    ;350  ';. `'

4 YD 162.32 267.59 413.22 558.93' 7.01: 97 400    

5YD  "  -           $ 20Q,91      $ 385.99:     =$ 571`.p8       $ 756. 7    .$ 941. 28   ;  ' ` 60Q  _ ,:

6 YD 238.21 464.79 691. 67 918.49       $ 1; 145.37    °      650

LG. CART 33.99  '      ,° e , ,

Residential Service Weekly Recycling and Green Waste
STANDARD SENIOR MHP/ TRAILER MHP SENIOR

SMALL- 30  .        $ 28.20 .°     $ 20.42  ':     $ 22.97-  .  `` 16:6'- '

MEDIUM - 60 30.66 . 22.20 23.49` 17.01
4

LARGE=-90            35:31  .
y    $

25..53 ,     ; 27.60.- a  , °$ 19,99  ;

Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Rates Effective 7/ 1/ 1 S ( Proposed)
1/ WK 2/ WK 3/ WK : 4/ WK SMIK    ,  , Max Wt/ Lbs

1 YD  82.66 °     1t2S: 97° p. a  $ 1 69:25=_   • 212.49 e ,   255.78 . '   '' 100    

2 YD 106.27 163.24      ` $ 224.21 277.22
a      $

334.20 200

3 YD          134.73     $ 21 5,30    ' $ 310.60-:  $ 423:96   ' .` 537,4 1̀           350 .>

4 YD 168.16 277.22 .       $ 42$. 10 579.05 727.24 400

5 YD`      
u  ,       

208.14= °   $ 399.89  .  $ 5,91. 64-'     783.39    ` 975.,17         600 e :  

6 YD 246.79    .  $ 481. 52 716.57  `      $ 951. 56'      1, 186.60 650
r d s

LG. CAI T°  35.21  ,,     .    

Residential Service Weekly Recycling and Green Waste
STANDARD.     SENIOR  .  MH P/ TRAILER MHP SENIOR

SMALL- 3Q. .       29.22        $ 21. 16'      , 23.80.    n' $ 1, 7.24";.
MEDIUM - 60 31 J6 23.00 24.34 17.62

LARGE= 90 36.58        $ 26.A 5       `$ 2$,59     $ 20J1. ;

89



1

90



ITEM 4.8 ',

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: AMENDMENT WITH WGR SOUTHWEST, INC. TO,

PROVIDE COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR

THE CITY' S STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

SD 14- 10 AND A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1
with WGR Southwest,     Inc.,     for Small

Construction Project Review and Inspection

Support Services for the Phase II MS4 Storm

Water Discharge Permit SD 14- 10 and a Related

Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

On February 12,  2018 City Council approved an agreement for plan review and
inspection services for the storm water discharge permit compliance tasks related to

new development for large projects, defined as greater than an acre of soil disturbance.
Approval of Amendment No. 1 with WGR Southwest, Inc. ( WGR) and a related budget

amendment is requested for WGR to provide small construction project review and

inspection support services for the City' s Phase II MS4 storm water discharge permit
compliance program SD 14- 10.  The cost for these services is not to exceed $ 31, 200 to

be paid from funds collected from development plan check and inspection fees for

storm water permit compliance.

BACKGROUND:

The current Phase II Small MS4 General Permit was adopted by the State Water
Resources Control Board on February 5, 2013 and became effective on ] uly 1, 2013.
The Permit has many components and the City is required to implement these
components in stages over the five- year implementation period of the Permit.

WGR has provided storm water permit compliance support to the City since May 31,
2007.  On February 12, 2018 Council renewed an agreement with WGR for continued
management and implementation of the Phase II MS4 Permit compliance program

through June 30,  2019.    Also,  on February 12,  2018 City Council approved an
agreement for plan review and inspection services for the storm water discharge permit

compliance tasks related to new development for large projects, defined as greater

than an acre of soil disturbance.    Amendment No 1 to the plan review services and

inspection services is requested for WGR to provide small construction project review

and support services for projects with less than an acre of soil disturbance.

91



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AMENDMENT WITH WGR SOUTHWEST, INC. TO PROVIDE COMPLIANCE

SUPPORT FOR THE CITY' S STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

WGR has provided a proposal for plan review and inspection services for the storm

water discharge permit compliance tasks related to new development for small

construction projects for a cost not to exceed $ 31, 200 based on the current volume of

small construction projects

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Amendment No. 1 with WGR is needed for the City to achieve compliance
with the City' s Phase II Small MS4 General Permit for small construction projects with
less than an acre of soil disturbance.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost for Amendment No. 1 with WGR to provide Small Construction Project Review

and Inspection Support services is not to exceed $ 31, 200 and is to be paid from funds

collected from development plan check and inspection fees for storm water permit

compliance.

Funds approved in the City' s budget for storm water discharge permit compliance for
the current and 2018/ 2019 FY are insufficient to authorize this amendment and will

need to be supplemented by allocating plan check/ inspection fees to the Storm Water
Discharge Permit Regulatory Compliance Program SD 14- 10 through the following
budget amendment;

Staff Requests the following budget amendment:    

Increase Revenue

1010- 50- 04- 341- 02- 02 31, 200. 00

Increase Appropriations

1010- 50- 04- 420- 01- 00 31, 200. 00

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Amendment No.  1 with WGR Southwest, Inc., for Small

Construction Project Review and Inspection Support Services for the Phase II

MS4 Storm Water Discharge Permit SD 14- 10 and a Related Budget Amendment

B.  Amendment No.  1 with WGR Southwest, Inc., for Small Construction Project

Review and Inspection Support Services for the Phase II MS4 Storm Water

Discharge Permit SD 14- 10 and a Related Budget Amendment

92



CITY MANAGER' S I IEPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MENDMENT WITfi WGR SOUTHWEST, INC. TO PROVIDE COMPLIANCE

SUPPORT FOlt THE CITY°S STORM WAYEIt DISCHAItGE PERMIT

APP1aOVs4L.S:

f       '%   

Greg G'  son Date

Senior Civil Engineer

l/  
Cari James Date

Director of Finan e

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

8
S   en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

93



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH WGR SOUTHWEST, INC., FOR SMALL

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT REVIEW AND INSPECTION SUPPORT SERVICES

FOR THE PHASE II MS4 STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT SD 14- 10 AND

A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the current Phase II Small MS4 General Permit for storm water

discharge was adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board  ( SWRCB)  on

February 5, 2013 and became effective on July 1, 2013; and

WHEREAS, WGR Southwest Inc.,  ( WGR)  has provided storm water permit

compliance support to the City since May 31, 2007, and are uniquely familiar with
the City' s storm water programs and their implementation; and

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2018 Council renewed an agreement with WGR
for continued management and implementation of the Phase II MS4 Permit

compliance program through June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, on February 12,  2018 Council approved an agreement for plan

review and inspection services for the storm water discharge permit compliance tasks

related to new development for large projects, defined as greater than an acre of soil

disturbance; and

WHEREAS, Amendment No.  1 to the plan review and inspection services is

requested for WGR to provide small construction project review and support services

for projects with less than an acre of soil disturbance; and

WHEREAS,  WGR has provided a proposal for plan review and inspection

services for the storm water discharge permit compliance tasks related to new

development for small construction projects for a cost not to exceed $ 31, 200 based

on the current volume of small construction projects; and

WHEREAS, funds approved in the City' s budget for storm water discharge
permit compliance for the current and 2018/ 2019 FY are insufficient to authorize

Amendment No. 1 and will need to be supplemented by allocating storm water plan
check/ inspection fees to the Storm Water Discharge Permit Regulatory Compliance
Program SD 14- 10 through the following budget amendment;

Staff requests the following budget amendment:

Increase Revenue

1010- 50- 04- 341- 02- 02 31, 200. 00

Increase Appropriations

1010- 50- 04- 420- 01- 00 31, 200. 00

94



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve an Amendment No. 1 with WGR to provide plan review
and inspection services storm water discharge permit compliance tasks related to

new development for small construction projects not to exceed $ 31, 200 to be funded

from development plan check and inspection fees for storm water permit compliance

SD 14- 10 and related budget amendment.

95



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

TTEST: PPItOVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

96



A HMEN`    

AMENDMENT NO. 1

TO THE AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE STORM WATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN, EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN,

AND POST CONSTRUCTION SUBMITTAL REVIEWS RELATED TO

STORM WATER PERMIT COMPLIANCE

SERVICES WITH WGR SOUTHWEST, INC.

FOR

SMALL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT REVIEW AND INSPECTION

SUPPORT SERVICES

This Amendment ( hereinafter "AMENDMENT NO. 1") to the agreement between

WGR Southwest,  Inc.  and the City of Lathrop dated February 12, 2018 ( hereinafter

AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this May 14, 2018, is by and between WGR
Southwest, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal

corporation ("CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specifically trained, experienced, and competent
to review small construction project review and inspection support services, which will

be required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS,  on February 12,  2018 CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

AGREEMENT to perform SWPPP,  ESCP and post construction submittal reviews

related to storm water discharge permit compliance; and.

WHEREAS,  CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications;

and

WHEREAS, Consultant provided the City with a scope of work to provide small
construction project review and inspection support services not to exceed $31, 200; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and CITY agree as follows;

AMENDMENT NO. 1 to AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.  Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT for Consulting is
hereby amended to add the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform additional services in conformance with the

scope of work and fee,  submitted by the CONSULTANT,  attached hereto as
Exhibit " A" and incorporated fully herein by this reference.  The aforementioned

work is in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT dated

February 12, 2018 for Professional Consulting Services.

Page 1 of 3

97



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WGR SOUTHWEST, INC.

The scope of work is hereby amended by adding Exhibit " A" attached hereto.
CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these seevices in accordance with
the upmost standards of its profession and the CITY'S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.     Section  ( 2)  of the AGREEMENT for Consulting
Services is hereby amended as follows:

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional sum not to exceed
31, 200 for the Professional Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit " A" of this

AMENDMENT NO.  1.   CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty ( 30) days of

receipt of progress billings containing all information contained in Paragraph 5 of
the original AGREEMENT.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to

compensation for work not included in the original scope of work,  and this

AMENDMENT NO. 1 unless a written change order or authorization describing
the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY'S Authorized
Representative prior to the commencement of the work.

3)      Effective Date and Term.   Section   (3)   of the AGREEMENT for

Consulting is hereby amended as follows:

The effective date of AMENDMENT NO.  1 is May 14+,  2018,  and it shall

terminate no later than June 30,   2019.   All other terms of the original

AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect.

4)      Applicabilitv To Oriqinal Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated May 14, 2018 are
still in effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT is
incorporated by reference herein.

Siqnatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO.  1 represent and warrant that
they have the right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to
execute this AMENDMENT NO. 1 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and

be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3

98



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WGR SOUTHWEST, INC.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

J II
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Senior Civil Engineer

Greg Gibson Date

Accepted By
City Manager
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

CONSULTANT:   WGR Southwest, Inc.

11780 N Hwy 99
Lodi, CA 95240

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 3 of 3

99



EXHIBIT G6   "

Not Your Tj ica! Constdtarct

April 16, 2018

Mr. Gregory W. Gibson
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Center Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

RE:     Small Construction Project Review and Inspection Support

Dear Mr. Gibson,

WGR Southwest, Inc. ( WGR) is pleased to provide you with this proposal for construction project

Small Erosion and Sediment Control Plan  ( ESCP)  &  small project post-construction submittal

reviews and corresponding small project construction site compliance inspections.

The number of reviews and inspections are estimated based on the level of supported indicated by the
City and current volume of active small construction projects.

Small Project ESCP Submittal Review for Compliance 250/ review Based on projected utilization, WGR

with Cit  & State Re uirements assumes 60 reviews($ 15, 000)

Small Project Post-Construction Submittal Reviews for 150/ review Based on projected utilization, WGR

projects that create or replace between 2, 500— 5, 000 sqft. assumes 12 reviews($ 1, 800)

of im ervious surface.

Small Project Construction Inspections- Each approved     $ 120/ inspection WGR assumes 120 inspections( 60 pre-

small project will receive a pre- construction and post-    construction inspections& 60 post-

construction inspection to ensure compliance with their construction inspections) through June

a roved ESCP.      2019($ 14,400)

We thank you for this additional opportunity to serve you.  If I can answer any questions concerning
our proposal or the MS4 permit requirements, please do not hesitate to call me or to schedule a

meeting to discuss the proposed scope of work.

Respectfully submitted,
WGR Southwest, Inc.

John M. Teravskis, CPESC, QSD/QSP, QISP, ToR

Senior Compliance Specialist and

Operations Manager for Northern California

11780 N. Hwy. 99 • Lodi, CA 95240 • ( 209) 334- 5363 • Fax( 209) 334- 5374

Los Alamitos, CA • Lodi, CA

100



ITEM 4.9
i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 REGULAR.CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION

REQUEST FOR SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER

MANAGEMENT ACT COMPLIANCE CIP PW 16- 04

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving Basin Boundary
Modification Request to Align the Eastern San

7oaquin and Tracy Subbasins with the City' s Limit
and Associated CEQA Determination for Sustainable

Groundwater Management Act Compliance CIP PW

16- 04

SUMMARY:

The City overlies two groundwater subbasins of the San Joaquin Valley Basin
designated by the Department of Water Resources ( DWR); the Tracy Subbasin, and
the Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin ( ESJS).  Approval of a Basin Boundary Modification
Request ( BBMR) to align the Eastern San Joaquin and Tracy groundwater subbasins
with the City' s limit and associated CEQA determination is requested in order to more
effectively achieve Sustainable Groundwater Management Act ( SGMA) compliance.

BACKGROUND:

In 2014 the SGMA was enacted and requires local agencies to form a Groundwater

Sustainability Agency ( GSA).  The City' s water service area overlies two groundwater
subbasins, the Tracy Subbasin and the Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin, the shared

border of which is delineated along the San Joaquin River.

The City has formed the City of Lathrop GSA, an exclusive GSA for its jurisdiction
within the Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin.  RD 2062 and a portion of RD 2107 service

areas are located within the City on the Stewart Tract, bounded by the San Joaquin
Paradise Cut and Old River.   RD 2062 and RD 2107 have formed the Stewart Tract

GSA, an exclusive GSA overlaying the portion of the City within the Tracy Subbasin.

As authorized by SGMA,  local agencies may request that basin boundaries be
modified. On January 29, 2018 an agreement with EKI Environment & Water, Inc.

was approved to assist the City prepare a draft basin boundary modification request
which argues, among other things, that including the entire City within the Tracy
Subbasin would promote sustainable groundwater management, which is consistent

with the standards by which a jurisdictional modification df a basin may be approved
by DWR under the Basin Boundary Regulations. On April 9, 2018 Council approved a
Memorandum of Understanding  ( MOU)  between City of Lathrop and Stewart Tract
Groundwater Sustainability Agency ( GSA) to pursue the BBMR, and cooperate to form
a multi- agency GSA and develop a Groundwater Sustainability Plan in the Tracy
Subbasin, as provided by SGMA.

101



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

APPROVE BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION FOR SGMA COMPLIANCE CIP

PW 16- 04

Staff has reviewed CEQA requirements and determined that the project is exempt,

and recommends a Notice of Exemption to be filed with the San Joaquin County
Recorder's OfFice.

CEQA REVIEW:

The basin boundary modification is exempt from the California Environmental Quality
Act ( CEQA) because the project is an internal, jurisdictional boundary modification
under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act ( SGMA) that is not a scientific

modification but promotes sustainable groundwater management.  The boundary
modification continues existing uses and does not result in a change in management
of groundwater resources or a physical change in the groundwater basin. The basin

boundary modification is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to § 15307 as an

action taken by a regulatory agency as authorized by SGMA to assure the
maintenance, restoration, or enhancement of a natural resource where the regulatory
process involves procedures for the protection of the environment;   and also

categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to § 15308 of the CEQA Guidelines as an

action taken by a regulatory agency as authorized by state law to assure the
maintenance, restoration, enhancement, or protection of the environment where the

regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the environment.

RECOMMENDATION:

Consolidation of the City into the Tracy Subbasin is desired to more effectively
achieve SGMA compliance.   Staff requests Council to approve a BBMR to align the

Eastern San Joaquin and Tracy groundwater subbasins and associated determination
the project is exempt from CEQA requirements.

CITY COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

A Feeling of Safetv and Economic Growth to provide clean, safe drinking water for
City customers, and to secure water supplies needed to support development.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impacts are immediately associated with this action.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Basin Boundary Modification Request to Align the Eastern
San ) oaquin and Tracy Subbasins with the City' s Limit and Associated CEQA
Determination for SGMA Compliance CIP PW 16- 04

B.       Basin Boundary Modification Request to Align the Eastern San Joaquin and
Tracy Subbasins with the City' s Limit

102



CYTY iWANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 REf;UL R CITY COUIVCIL MEETING

PPROVE BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION FOI SGMA COMPLIANCE CIP

PW 16- 04

APPEtOVALS:

r      y   s

Greg Gib n Date

Senior Civil Engineer

3 0 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

5•• l

Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

103



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION REQUEST TO ALIGN THE

EASTERN SAN ] OAQUIN AND TRACY SUBBASINS WITH THE CITY' S LIMIT

AND ASSOCIATED CEQA DETERMINATION FOR SGMA COMPLIANCE

CIP PW 16- 04

WHEREAS,  in 2014 the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act ( Water

Code Section 10720 et seq.) ( SGMA) was enacted and requires local agencies to form

a Groundwater Sustainability Agency ( GSA); and

WHEREAS, the City' s water service area overlies two groundwater subbasins
of the San Joaquin Valley Basin the Tracy Subbasin and the Eastern San Joaquin
Subbasin, the shared border of which is delineated along the San Joaquin River; and

WHEREAS, the City has formed the City of Lathrop GSA, an exclusive GSA for
its jurisdiction within the Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin; and

WHEREAS, RD 2062 and a portion of RD 2107 service areas are located within

the City on the Stewart Tract,  bounded by the San Joaquin Paradise Cut and Old
River.  RD 2062 and RD 2107 have formed the Stewart Tract GSA, an exclusive GSA

overlaying the portion of the City within the Tracy Subbasin; and

WHEREAS,  as authorized by SGMA,  local agencies may request that basin
boundaries be modified; and

WHEREAS, on January 29, 2018 an agreement with EKI Environment & Water,

Inc.  was approved to assist the City prepare a draft basin boundary modification
request which argues, among other things, that including the entire City within the
Tracy Subbasin would promote sustainable groundwater management,  which is

consistent with the standards by which a jurisdictional modification of a basin may
be approved by DWR under the Basin Boundary Regulations; and

WHEREAS,   on April 9,   2018 Council approved a Memorandum of

Understanding  ( MOU)  between City of Lathrop and Stewart Tract Groundwater
Sustainability Agency ( GSA) to pursue the BBMR, and cooperate to form a multi-

agency GSA and develop a Groundwater Sustainability Plan in the Tracy Subbasin,
as provided by SGMA; and

WHEREAS,  the basin boundary modification is categorically exempt from
CEQA pursuant to § 15307 as an action taken by a regulatory agency as authorized
by Sustainable Groundwater Management Act ( SGMA) to assure the maintenance,

restoration,  or enhancement of a natural resource where the regulatory process
involves procedures for the protection of the environment;  and also categorically
exempt from CEQA pursuant to § 15308 of the CEQA Guidelines as an action taken

by a regulatory agency as authorized by state law to assure the maintenance,
restoration,  enhancement,  or protection of the environment where the regulatory
process involves procedures for protection of the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves a Basin Boundary Modification Request to align the Eastern
San Joaquin and Tracy groundwater subbasins and determines the project is exempt
from CEQA requirements.

104



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14t" day of May, 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FQRM:     Q TTEST:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

105



Lathrop City Of- 5- 022. 01 SAN JOAQUIN VAL EY- EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN, 5- 022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- TRACY

A. Applicant lnforrnation
TTACHII+ N''  ' PS °

Requesting Agency Information

Agency Name:      Lathrop City Of

Address:    390 Towne Centre Drive

City: Lathrop Zip: 95330

Work Phone: 209) 941- 7220 Cell Phone:

Email:      ssalvatore@ci. lathrop.ca.us Fax:

Revision Request Manager Information

Person Name:      Stephen Salvatore

Address:    390 Towne Centre Drive

City: Lathrop Zip: 95330

Work Phone: 209) 941- 7220 Cell Phone:

Email:      ssalvatore@ci. lathrop.ca.us Fax:

a GroirridvraterBescn 2 003--       
SE)lSUN-FAIRFS_EL6VALLEY    '',      

s

t;,,..,.F GrauniN ater Basm 5- 021 6E     r

SAG`yEZA141EPtTOVAlIEY Sd, b:SlO x Y     '  
t

M

B
x        

i
3      "      

a

GrouncfwatefBasin.- 0      0    '     

ti\   --

PITTSBURG A Nt't l` t, ,  r

f

i
1r           r i1$ i     

y     
i       

Gtqundvrater 8asm- 2 0 5 x

CL3AYTQN VACtE f ,,
y

a.;    `"    `  
r    ..'     T `

x',    .    
x   _-     j  '+     

w 

r
s

d
f '     4. " 9      l. x L   '' 4+           5 3.  k 1

Groundx ter Bas n 2 Op6 A

YGNA VACLEY `' rJ., I. 3ytOn r          {,"     r
SrYr    „ 

y    ,       s x

f . i Ez z ta sr-   Groundvi'Siier 6 En a 22 fais

Shl+[Jd A4tJtA! Vi's ElEY] F S' fERI+I SfaN JdAC1USPf

y RcL C BI(:'       '       '.   r
k a k  ,    =-       ,     

42a,=   ,;;   s      -    ,      4 t?` `   ,  
i   _ _ ` a-      y       ,, 

a ,'.
s x

i„ y,  P

P peao
r-

ah 6whr6      
GScufltivtaterB tnr 422.45 a  

r

t    

ySfata
Pf, 11s.       

hl. t0,4'fl!1[ ht4att E'd' 7 tAGY n
k'

fi

x

a'-h f 5       ; t k t F

Y,
3  :'      l :> 

3

4

y.'       
S

C,roundw trr;B s n 2 07        r s     '     

r'    SAhLRAl41 VX1LLE'ff  '- s
k a i3' '    ,

S  
r' v1C+It

iiie    , r     ."
an Ramon       +      r- r

4 k` -F    < ' t      _  r s
t

1
5y.   h,. .'i

d   , 

AJ
a

6118 Basin      a 1r C' i, 4,
Bounda r    i : 

r
a t

i,( , d i tr      '  i 1

Selected BasinCs)/  "'       
1 13

t,  Sub6a'sin( s)         
a ` i   "";"

1 GroundwaterBa '}' 2 ' 0.'    GSoiindwaterBasm 5-022t12       !

Proposed Basin ERP4faRE VALL Y `` t SAN JQADUIN VALLEY : hTOaESTO ;

BOUIIdBry a
t.;  

s t       _,  f  tc 11 3' 1r

E tb^i r i-       "
F      

a r,       3`+  rv so[ nilu tuB in 502207 J  '

0.    3   _ 6 i     ,  Grcundwater Basm. Z 11_  a Q ; s-      =  SA. JCI nIN VALLEY DELTA 1EPlU{ STA    
t`   SUFI, WALLEY•     7 s

J _     
r Califomia Department of Water Resources Esn HERE Garmin  ..  

t      _    _     a

106



e crip ion o Prop d  oundary dific tion

1. 5hort Description

Jurisdictional request to align the Eastern San Joaquin and Tracy Subbasins with the City of Lathrop's City Limit.

2. Type of basin boundary revision

jJurisdiction Internal
i

3. Provide a narrative overview of the boundary modification request and how the resulting modification would affect likelihood of
sustainable management.

This boundary modification request would modify the boundaries of the Eastern San Joaquin( ESJ) Subbasin and the Tracy Subbasin to align
with the City of Lathrop' s( City's) City Limit, which is generally contiguous and included within the City's water service area. The current basin
boundaries split the City' s service area between two groundwater basins, requiring two Groundwater Sustainability Agencies( GSAs)( i. e., the
City of Lathrop GSA and the Stewart Tract GSA) to cover the City, and the development and implementation of two Groundwater Sustainability
Plans( GSPs). This boundary modification request is founded on a body of evidence that demonstrates that the modification promotes
continued sustainable groundwater management. The City has a proven track record of sustainable groundwater management within its
service area, and is committed to the sustainable management of groundwater in future. This commitment is articulated in the Memorandum of

Understanding( MOU) between the City and Reclamation District( RD) 2062( i. e:, the Stewart Tract GSA) that formalizes their intent to form a

joint GSA covering the entire City and to coordinate GSP development within the Tracy Subbasin. Further, the proposed boundary modification
will not change conditions in the affected basins or impact the ability of groundwater to be managed sustainably in those basins.

Attachment(s):

4. List of the existing basin(s)/ subbasin(s) to be modified by this request

5-022. 01 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN

5- 022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- TRACY

5. Provide the proposed name for the new basin(s) or subbasin(s)

C.  niti l Notification and Conlbination o Requests

1. Was an initial notification submitted to the Department?

I Yes

List of submitted initial notification for the selected basin( s)/subbasin(s).

Local Agency Potential Basin(s)/Subbasin( s)

Eastern San Joaquin County 5- 022. 16 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- COSUMNES, 5- 022.01 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- EASTERN
Groundwater Basin Authority SAN JOAQUIN

Northern Delta GSA 5- 021. 65 SACRAMENTO VALLEY- SOUTH AMERICAN, 5- 022. 01 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY-

EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN, 5- 021. 66 SACRAMENTO VALLEY- SOLANO

Lathrop City Of 5- 022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- TRACY, 5-022.01 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- EASTERN SAN
JOAQUIN

San Luis& Delta-Mendota Water 5- 022. 07 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- DELTA- MENDOTA, 5- 022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY-

Authority TRACY

Brentwood City Of 5-022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- TRACY

5- 022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- TRACY, 5- 021. 66 SACRAMENTO VALLEY- SOLANO

Brentwood City Of 5-022. 15 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY- TRACY

2. Does this application include a combination of requests?

INo

107



Req red  oc ent f r Ail difi ation

1. A copy of the statutory or other legal authority under which the requesting agency was created with specific citations to the provisions
setting forth the duties and responsibilities of the agency.

Attachment(s):

a size: 1

D1_ Lathrop_GSA_Resolution.pdf( 149. 6k6) Uploaded on 04/ 19/ 2018 at 06:48PM

2. A copy of the signed resolution adopted by the requesting agency formally initiating the boundary modification request process.

Attachment(s):

o size: l

D2_ BBMR Resolution No. 98-4335.pdf( 466.8kB) Uploaded on 04/25/2018 at 10: 15AM

3. A map of adequate scale( no greater than 1: 24, 000; e. g., 1: 10,000 is not acceptable) showing the proposed modified basin boundary in
relation to the existing Bulletin- 118 basin boundary and the local agencies that are within or bordering the existing and proposed basin.

Attachment(s):

size: 1

Fig1_ Proposed_Boundary_with_Local_Agencies.pdf( 2. 4AA6) Uploaded on 04/25/ 2018 at 10: 03AM

4. A GIS shapefile of the proposed modified groundwater basin boundaries. Download Existing B118 basin shape file DWR Spatial Data
Standards

Attachment(s):

size: 1

D4_ ProposedTracyESJBoundaries.zip( 285.6kB) Uploaded on 04/20/2018 at 02: 37PM

5. A GIS shapefile of the political boundaries of any affected or adjacent local agency. Download water agency shape file

Attachment(s):

size: 1

D5_WaterDistricts.zip( 407. 1 kB) Uploaded on 04/20/2018 at 02:45PM

6. Any information, if necessary, to enable DWR to satisfy the requirements of a responsible agency pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act.

City of Lathrop has determined that CEQA does not apply to this request due to statutory exemptions included under 14 CCR Section 15378

b)( 5) and 15061 ( b)( 3). More information is included in the attached draft Notice of Exemption, which will be filed with San Joaquin County in
May 2018.

Attachment(s):

size: 1

D6_ CEQA Notice of Exemption. pdf( 197kB) Uploaded on 04/20l2018 at 02: 38PM

E.  Gener l inforr ation

1. Describe the lateral boundaries of the alluvial aquifer or aquifers that form the groundwater basin and the definable bottom of the basin.

The description must be in terms that are clear, definite, and sufficiently detailed to allow an authoritative map of the proposed basin
boundaries to be plotted using the given description.

Attachment(s):

size: 1

E1_ Basin Boundary Descriptions. pdf( 477.7kB) Uploaded on 04/ 20/ 2018 at 02:45PM

F.  Notice and Consultation

1. List all local agencies and public water systems affected by the basin(s) modification request.

The following local agency and publicwater system are affected by the basin modification request:( 1) Sharpe Army Depot, and( 2) JR Simplot
Co Public Water System.

108



Attachment(s):

size: 1

F1_ Public fVotification Contact List.pdf( 289.8kB) Uploaded on 04/ 20/2018 at 02: 45PM

2. Explain the methods used to identify interested local agencies and public water systems in the affected basin(s):

Local agencies and public water systems affected by the modification request were identified using GIS shapefiles of districUwater system
boundaries( Source: U. S. Bureau of Reciamation MPGIS Service Center in coordination with the California Department of Water Resources)

as weli as California's Safe Drinking Water information System. The criteria used for identifying affected agencies or public water systems was

to identify those agencies and systems" whose jurisdictional area would, as a resuit of a boundary modification, include more, fewer, or
different basins or subbasins than without the modification"( CWC Section 341( c) and( d)). Additional interested parties identified for

stakeholder engagement inciuded local agencies and public water systems in the City's Sphere of influence and Area of Interest, as wei as all
of the 31 GSAs in the affected basins.

3. Provide information regarding the nature of consultations with affected or interested agencies. Attach and cite any copies of

correspondences with local agencies and pubiic water systems and/or any other persons or entities consuited.

A notice letter was sent to the two affected or interested agencies listed above in March 2018 to notify them regarding the potential Basin
Boundary Modification Request and soliciting their feedback. To date, letters of support were received from Byron- Bethany Irrigation District

and Westside irrigation District, and are aftached hereto. This section will be updated when the City receives additional letters of support by
the basin boundary modification submittal deadline of 30 June 2018. In addition, the City met individually with the following entities who

expressed verbal support for the City's Basin Boundary Modification Request:( 1) County of San Joaquin during January and February 2018;
2) Stewart Tract GSA on 20 February 2018 and 7 March 2018;( 3) Sharpe Army Depot on 8 March 2018;( 4) JR Simplot Public Water System

on 15 March 2018;( 5) Stockton East Water District during March 2018; and( 6) DWR on 16 February and 9 Apri12018.

Attachment(s):

size: 4

F3_ Letters of 5upport.pdf( 64.8kB} Uploaded on 04/20/ 2018 at 02:47PM

F3_ Mailed Notifications to Affected Systems and Agencies.pdf( 546. 5kB) Uploaded on 04/2312018 at 11: 50AM

F3_ IVlailed Notifications to Interested Parties.pdf( 13.9MB) Uploaded on 04/ 23/ 2018 at 11: 50AM

F3_ Emaii fVotification to Affected and Interested Agencies. pdf( 374.6k6) Uploaded on 04/2312098 at 11: 50AM

4. Provide a summary of all public meetings at which the proposed boundary modification was discussed or considered by the requesting
agency. Attach and cite any copies of agendas and notices published.

The proposed boundary modification was discussed during the following public meetings:( 1) February 14 ESJ Groundwater Authority
meeting;( 2) March 14 ESJ Groundwater Authority meeting;( 3) April 11 ESJ Groundwater Authority meeting;( 4) January 29 City Council
meeting, and( 5) April 9 City Council meeting.

Attachment(s):

size: 6

Lathrop CC 29- 01- 2018_Agenda.pdf( 2MB) Uploaded on 04/23/ 2018 at 11: 51AM

Lathrop CC 29- 01- 2018_ Minutes. pdf( 386.4kB) Uploaded on 04/ 23/ 2018 at 11: 51AM

Lathrop CC 09- 04-2018_Agenda.pdf( 2. 6MB) Uploaded on 04/ 23/ 2018 at 11: 51AM
ESJ GWA 02142018 Agenda.pdf( 4MB) Uploaded on 04l23/2018 at 11: 51AM

ESJ GWA 03142018 Agenda and 02142018 Minutes.pdf( 3. 8MB) Uploaded on 04/23/ 2018 at 11: 51AM

ESJ GWA 04112018 Agenda and 03142018 Minutes.pdf{ 4.7MB) Uploaded on 04/23/ 2078 at 11: 51AM

5. Attach a copy of all comments regarding the proposed boundary modification received by the requesting agency and a summary of any
responses made by the requesting agency.

The City of Lathrop did not receive any comments regarding the proposed boundary modification.

General Existing roundwater Management

All requests forjurisdictional modification pursuant to Section 342.4 MUST include responses to the following questions.

1. Explain how sustainable groundwater management exists or could likely be achieved in the basin:

Attachment(s):

size: 4

Fig2_LathropWaterRWlnfrastructure.pdf( 2. 5NiB) Uploaded on 04125l2018 at 10: 06AM

Fig3_Lathrop_Hydrographs. pdf( 2. 7M6) Uploaded on 04/25/ 2018 at 10: 06AM

Fig4_GICIMA_S2007_2017_ Change.pdf( 2. 1MB) Uploaded on 04/25/2018 at 10: 06AM

G1_ Achieving Sustainable Groundwater Management.pdf( 406. 1 kB) Uploaded on 04/2412018 at 05: 44PM

109



2. Explain how the proposed boundary modification would affect the ability of adjacent groundwater basins to sustainably manage
groundwater in those groundwater basins.

As mentioned in Section G1, the City is the third smallest City in San Joaquin County and its groundwater pumping only accounts for about

0. 4°/o of the total groundwater pumping in the ESJ Subbasin. Therefore, this request will have a minimal impact on either basin' s ability to

achieve sustainable groundwater management. As evidenced by their letters of support, agencies in the affected basins recognize the difficulty

that the City would otherwise face in managing SGMA compliance in tvvo basins, and support the change to the groundwater basin
boundaries. The Ciry has been working with the ESJ JPA member agencies to minimize any potential administrative and financial impact of

the basin boundary modification. In the Tracy Subbasin, the Gity has participated in SGMA discussions as an interested party and in
coordination with the Stewart Tract GSA. Familiarity with the SGMA process in the Tracy Subbasin and the partner agencies there will allow
the City to smoothly transition its support to SGMA compliance efforts in the Tracy Subbasin.

3. Provide a historical summary of the sustainable management of groundwater levels in the proposed basin(s) or subbasin(s).

Attachment(s):

size: 5

Fig3_Lathrop_ Hydrographs.pdf( 2. 7M6) Uploaded on 04I25/ 2018 at 10: 07AM
Fig4_GICIMA_S2007_ 2017_Change.pdf( 2. 1MB) Upioaded on 04/ 25/2018 at 10: 07AM

Fig5_SJC_ Fa112016_ GWE. pdf( 4.8M6) Uploaded on 04/ 25/2018 at 10: 07AM

G3_ Tracy_Summary of Groundwater Conditions.pdf( 3. 4M6) Uploaded on 04/ 24/ 2018 at 05:44PM
G3_ Historical Sustainable Management of Groundwater Levels. pdf( 529.2kB) Upioaded on 04/24/ 2018 at 05: 45PM

4. Discuss potential impacts to state programs resulting from the proposed boundary modification, including, but not limited to, the
California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring( CASGEM), Groundwater Nianagement Plans developed pursuant to AB 3030,
Groundwater Sustainability Plans developed pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, any applicable state or
regional board plans, and other water management and land use programs.

No state programs will be affected as a result of the proposed boundary modification. San Joaquin County will continue to be the CASGEM
monitoring entity for the areas underlaying the City in both affected basins.

H.  Local Support

All requests for boundary modification must include the following:

1. Provide any evidence that sufficient information was provided to affected agencies and systems regarding the proposed boundary
modification.

As mentioned in Section F3, a notice letter was sent to the affected agency and affected system( i. e. Sharpe Army Depot and JR Simplot Co
Public Water System) in March 2018 to notify them regarding the potential basin boundary modification request and soliciting their feedback. In
addition, the City met individualiy with Sharpe Army Depot and JR Simplot Co Public Water System on 8 March 201 S and 15 March 2018,
respectively.

Attachment(s):

size: 1

F3_ Mailed Notifications to Affected Systems and Agencies. pdf( 546.5kB) Uploaded on 04l23/2018 at 11: SSAM

2. Provide a Iist of all affected agencies and affected systems that submitted comments andlor documents in support or opposition to the

proposed boundary. The agency submitting their support or opposition for a boundary modification must provide a copy of a resolution
formally adopted by the decision-making body of the affected agency or system or a letter signed by an executive officer or other
official with appropriate delegated authority who represents the agency or system. Attach copies of the resolution andlor signed letter
detailing the support or opposition submitted.

No comments in support or' opposition rrere submitted by the affected agency and affected system. This section will be updated if additional

comments were received by the City by the basin boundary modification submittal deadline of 30 June 2018.

3. Provide any evidence that rebuts any opposition to the proposed boundary modification.

INo opposition has been expressed with respect to the proposed boundary modification.

1

I.  Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model

Requests for boundary modification, must include a document or text to a clearly defined hydrogeologic conceptual model demonstrating each of the
following:

110



1. Principal aquifer units within requested basin.

2. Lateral boundaries of the proposed basin, inciuding:

A. Geologic features that significantly impede or impact groundwater flow.

B. Aquifer characteristics that significantly impede or impact groundwater flow.

C. Significant geologic and hydrologic features and conditions of the principle aquifer units, as appropriate, including intormation
regarding the confined or unconfined nature of the aquifer, facies changes, truncation of units, the presence of fauits or folds that

impede groundwater flow, or other groundwater flow restricting features.

D. Key surtace water 6odies, groundwater divides and significant recharge sources.

3. Recharge and discharge areas within the basin.

4. Definable bottom of the basin or subbasin.

The department may waive this requirement for an internai boundary modification if the requesting agency is able to demonstrate that the
proposed boundary modification is unlikely to affect sustainable groundwater management.

It is requested that the Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model requirement be waived for this internal boundary modification. This modification does not
introduce any new hydrologic or geologic features that would impact sustainable groundwater management in any of the affected basins. In the
City' s meeting with DWR on 16 February 2018, DWR recommended that the City not present scientific evidence in support of this jurisdictional
request.

L. " echnical Studies for AI Jurisdictio a odifica ions

Requests for a jurisdictional boundary must attach or provide a URL or upload a file for the following:

1. A water management plan that covers or is in the immediate vicinity of the proposed basin or portion of the proposed basin and
satisfies the requirement of Water Code sections 10753.7(a) or 10727 by attaching one of the following:

A An adopted groundwater management plan, a basin wide management plan, or other integrated regional water management
program or plan.

B. Management pursuant to an adjudication action.

C. One or more technical studies that cover the relevant portion of a basin or subbasin and adjacent areas.

Attachment(s):

size: 2

L1_ CityoffracyRegional_GWMP_ 2007. pdf( 188.4MB) Uploaded on 04/ 24/ 2018 at 05: 49PM

L1_ EasternSanJoaquinGW6_ GWMP_ 2004.pdf( 7. 8M6) Uploaded on 04/24/2018 at 05:45PM

2. A statement of the existing and planned coordination of sustainable groundwater management activities and responsibilities where
required.

The City has signed a MOU with RD 2062 to cooperate in forming a multi- agency GSA covering the existing City of Lathrop GSA and Stewart
Tract GSA and thereafter in GSP development in the Tracy Subbasin, if the proposed modification is approved by DWR. The MOU was
approved by Lathrop City Council on April 9, 2018.

Attachment(s):

size: 1

L2 MOU_ Lathrop_RD2062. pdf( 50.4kB) Uploaded on 04/ 26/ 2018 at 01: 10PM

Created on 04/ 19/ 2018 at 6: 44PM, last modified on 04/30/2018 at 19: 32AM and page generated on 04/30/2018 at 11: 32AM

111



SELECTED ATTACHMENTS TO BE UPLOADED WITH THE

BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION REQUEST

112



NOTICE OF EXEMPTION Appendix E

To:       From:

County Clerk City of Lathrop, Community Development Dept.
County of San Joaquin Planning Division
44 N. San Joaquin St# 260 390 Towne Center Drive
Stockton, CA 95202 Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone: 209- 941- 7200

To ( if applicable):

Office of Planning and Research
P. O. Box 3044, Room 113

Sacramento, CA 95812-3044

Project Title: City of Lathrop, Basin Boundary Modification —Jurisdictional Internal.

Project Applicant: City of Lathrop

Project Location - Specific: Citywide.

Project Location— City: Lathrop Project Location— County:  San Joaquin

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project:

Jurisdictional Internal Boundary Modification to align the Eastern San Joaquin and Tracy Subbasins with the City
of Lathrop' s City Limit as afforded by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act ( SGMA), ( Part 2.74 of

Division 6 of the Water Code, beginning with Section 10720)

Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Lathrop

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: City of Lathrop

Exempt Status:

Ministerial (Sec. 21080( b)( 1); 15268);

Declared Emergency( Sec. 21080( b)( 3); 15269(a));

Emergency Project( Sec. 21080( b)( 4); 15269(b)( c));
0 Categorical Exemption. State type and section number: § 15307 & 15308

Statutory Exemptions. State code number:

Reasons why project is exempt:     

The basin boundary modification is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because the
project is an internal, jurisdictional boundary modification under the SGMA that is not a scientific modification but
promotes sustainable groundwater management. The boundary modification continues existing uses and does
not result in a change in management of groundwater resources or a physical change in the groundwater basin.

The basin boundary modification is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15307 as an action taken
by a regulatory agency as authorized by SGMA to assure the maintenance, restoration, or enhancement of a
natural resource where the regulatory process involves procedures for the protection of the enyironment; and also
categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15308 of the CEQA Guidelines as an action taken by a
regulatory agency as authorized by state law to assure the maintenance, restoration, enhancement, or protection
of the environment where the regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the environment.

Mark Meissner 209) 941- 7266

Lead Agency Contact Person:  Area Code/telephone/Extension:

Assistant Communitv Development Director
Signature (City of Lathrop)       Title:

Date:

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code.    Date Received for filing at OPR:
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152. 1, Public Resources Code.

113



Lathrop BBMR Public Notification Contact List
Affected Agencies/ Systems

Sharpe Army Depot E5J Daniel Dickinson 214) 312- 4171 dickinsondb@aafes. com 0 L7

JR Simplot Co( PWSID CA3900810) ESJ Ryan Mock 209) 858- 6470 PO BOX 198, Lathrop, CA 0

Agencies/ Systems within Lathrop's 501& A01

Stewart Tract Groundwater Sustainability Agency Tracy Ryan Alameda 209) 879-7900 ralameda@riverislands. com o 0

Haven Acres River Club Inc( PWSID CA3900813)    ESJ Anna Martinez 209) 607- 9732 1691 W Frewert Rd, Lathrop, CA
The River Mill( PWSID CA3901365) ESJ     --       209) 983- 9114 PO BOX 682, French Camp, CA L7       

T51 Trans System Inc( PWSID CA3901453)  ESJ Eddie Lawson 209) 983- 8654 707 E Roth Rd, French Camp, CA 0       

All GSAs within Tracy and ESI Subbasins

Central Delta Water Agency ESJ George Biagi, Jr.  209) 481-5201 gbiagi@deltabluegrass. com

Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District E5J Grant Thompson 209) 639- 1580 gtom@velociter. net

City of Manteca E5J Rich Silverman 209) 456-8017 rsilverman@ci. manteca. ca. us

EastsideSanJoa uinGroundwaterSustainabilityAgency ES1 RussThomas 209) 480-8968 rthomasccwd@hotmail. com

Lathrop City Of E51 Steve Salvatore 209) 941- 7220 ssalvatore@ci. lathrop. ca. us
linden County Water District ESJ David Fletcher 209) 887- 3202 dgfpe@comcast.net

Lockeford Community5ervice District ESJ Mike Henry 209) 712-4014 midot@att.net 0       

Lodi City Of E51 Alan Nakanishi 209) 333- 6702 anakanishi@lodi. gov 0       

North San Joaquin Water Conservation District ESJ Tom Flinn 209) 663- 8760 tomflinn2@me. com 0       

Oakdale Irrigation District ESJ Eric Thorburn 209) 840-5525 ethorbum@oakdaleirrigation. com

San Joaquin County- ES1 ESJ Brandon Nakagawa       ( 209) 468-3089 bnakagawa@sjgov.org 0       

San Joaquin County No. 2( Cal Water)     ESJ John Freeman 209 547- 7900 jfreeman@calwater. com 0       

South Delta WaterAgency E5J John Herrick 209) 956-0150 jherrlaw@aol. com

South San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency ESJ Dale Kuil 209J 670-5829 dkuil@ssjid. com 0       

Stockton City Of ESJ Elbert Holman 209) 937- 8244 hoytjr63@yahoo. com

Stockton East Water District E5J Melvin Panizza 209) 948- 0333 melpanizza@aol.com 0

Woodbridge Irrigation District ES1 Anders Christensen       ( 209) 625- 8438 widirrigation@gmail. com

Banta- Carbona Irrigation District Tracy David Weisenberg 209) 835- 4670 bcid@inreach. com 0       

Byron- Bethany Irrigation District Tracy Kelley Geyer 209) 608- 1428 k. geyer@bbid. org 0       

City of Antioch Tracy Scott Buenting 925) 779- 6129 sbuenting@ci. antioch. ca. us

City of Brentwood Tracy Chris Ehlers 925) 516-6030 cehlers@brentwoodca. gov

Contra Costa County Tracy Ryan Hernandez 925) 674-7824 ryan. hernandez@dcd. cccounty. us
Diablo Water District Tracy Mike Yeraka 925) 625- 3798 mikegml@aol. com

Discovery Bay Community Services District Tracy Michael Davies 925) 634- 1131 mdavies@todb. ca.gov

East Contra Costa Irrigation District Tracy Patricia Corey 925) 634- 3544 patcorey@cwo. com 0       

San Joaquin County- Tracy Tracy Brandon Nakagawa       ( 209) 468- 3089 bnakagawa@sjgov. org L7

Stewart Tract GSA Tracy Ryan Alameda 209) 879-7900 ralameda@riverislands. com 0       

Tracy City Of Tracy Steve Bayley 209) 831-6356 SteveB@ci. tracy.ca. us
West Side Irrigation District Tracy Rick Gilmore 209) 835-0503 r. gilmore@bbid. org

County of Sacramento Tracy Keery Schmitz 916) 874-4681 schmitzk@SacCounty. NET

114



E.  General Information

1.  Describe the lateral boundaries of the alluvial aquifer or aquifers that form the groundwater basin
and the definable bottom of the basin. The description must be in terms that are clear, definite,

and sufficiently detailed to allow an authoritative map of the proposed basin boundaries ro be
plotted using the given description.

Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin

The Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin is defined by the areal extent of unconsolidated to semiconsolidated

sedimentary deposits described as follows.

As defined by DWR in its California Groundwater—Bulletin 118, Update 2003 and updated in the Bulletin

118- Interim Update 2016, the Eastern San Joaquin ( ESJ) Subbasin is bounded by the Stanislaus River on

the south, consolidated bedrock on the east, and the San Joaquin County line on the north. There is no
proposed revision to the existing southern, eastern, and northern boundaries of the ESJ Subbasin as part

of this request.

The western boundary( from north to south) of the proposed boundary follows the San Joaquin River

i. e., the current boundary) to the intersection with the northern border of the City of Lathrop. From this
intersection, the proposed boundary deviates to the west following City of Lathrop' s boundary until it
crosses the San Joaquin River, and then follows the San Joaquin River to the south ( i. e., the current

boundary).

Tracv Subbasin

The Tracy Subbasin is defined by the areal extent of unconsolidated to semiconsolidated sedimentary
deposits described as follows.

The Tracy Subbasin is bounded on the east by the Mokelumne and San Joaquin Rivers and on the west

by the Diablo Range, as defined by DWR in its California Groundwater—Bulletin 118, Update 2003. A

modification to the southern boundary was approved and documented in the Bulletin 118- Interim

Update 2016,. The southern boundary of the Tracy Subbasin ( from east to west) follows the San Joaquin
Stanislaus County line, deviates north following the West Stanislaus Irrigation District and Del Puerto

Water District boundaries, then continues following the San Joaquin— Stanislaus County line. There is no

proposed revision to the existing eastern, southern, and western boundaries of the Tracy Subbasin as
part ofthis request.

The eastern boundary( from north to south) of the proposed Tracy Subbasin boundary follows the San

Joaquin River( i. e., the current boundary) to the intersection with the northern border of the City of
Lathrop. From this intersection, the proposed boundary deviates to the east following City of Lathrop' s
boundary until it crosses the San Joaquin River, and then follows the San Joaquin River to the south ( i. e.,
the current boundary).

115



G. General Existing Groundwater Management
1.  Explain how sustainable groundwater manaqement exists or could likely be achieved in the basin.

The City of Lathrop' s water system infrastructure serves water to customers throughout its service area,

which overlies both the Eastern San Joaquin ( ESJ) Subbasin and the Tracy Subbasin. The City operates five
active groundwater wells, which on average supply 3, 600 acre- feet per year (AFY), or 90% of the City' s

current water demand. Based on the estimated basin- wide pumping in the 2004 ESJ Groundwater
Management Plan, the City' s groundwater use only represents approximately 0. 4% of the total

groundwater pumping in the ESJ Subbasin. Lathrop has invested in a reliable surface water supply( i. e. the

South County Water Supply Project[ SCWSP]) to meet much of its projected demands and has no plans to

install new groundwater supply wells. The City has a contractual allocation of 6, 887 AFYl as part of SCWSP-
Phase 1 and will be entitled to 10, 671 AFY after completion of SCWSP- Phase 2.

The City also operates a recycled water distribution system that supplies recycled water for both urban

and agricultural irrigation. The current recycled water system consists of approximately 30 miles of

recycled water pipeline with a distribution capacity of 1. 0 million gallons per day. Notably, the City
contributes to groundwater recharge in both underlying basins via percolation of applied surface water

and recycled water. Figure 2 shows the City' s existing water and recycled water system infrastructure.

As part of routine operations, the City collects water level and water quality data from its municipal supply
wells and other monitoring wells it has installed and maintained throughout the City. Those data are
maintained by Public Works.

As described in further detail in Section G3, the City has participated in groundwater management and

planning efforts in both the Tracy and ESJ Subbasins, including groundwater sustainability agency ( GSA)
formation and participation in regular basin- scale meetings. At the local scale the City has invested in
master planning and groundwater investigation and modeling efforts to better optimize its groundwater

resources from a quantity, quality and sustainability standpoint.

Despite well- documented overdraft conditions in the majority of the ESJ Subbasin ( see Section G3),
groundwater levels beneath the City have been stable for decades ( Figure 3), demonstrating long-term

sustainable management of the groundwater resource. In fact, there has been up to a 10- foot increase in
groundwater levels within and proximate to the City over the past 10 years ( Figure 4). Further, as shown

on Fall 2016 groundwater elevation contours for San Joaquin County ( Figure 5), groundwater elevations

remain elevated beneath the City indicating that Lathrop is not causing or contributing to any
groundwater overdraft in the ESJ or Tracy Subbasins.

The City' s jurisdictional area is currently covered by the City of Lathrop GSA in the ESJ Subbasin and by the
Stewart Tract GSA in the Tracy Subbasin. The ESJ subbasin is designated as high priority and critically-
overdrafted and thus is subject to an accelerated compliance timeline under the Sustainable Groundwater

Management Act (SGMA). In the ESJ Subbasin, the City has been coordinating SGMA compliance with 17

other GSAs through the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority, a Joint Powers Authority. The Tracy
Subbasin is a medium priority basin, and is therefore subject to the January 2022 Groundwater

1 Post City' s sale of 1, 120 AFY SCWSP contractual allocation to the City of Tracy in August 2013.

116



Sustainability Plan ( GSP) adoption deadline. The City has been coordinating with Stewart Tract GSA and

has participated in SGMA discussions in the Tracy Subbasin as an interested party.

Lathrop is the third smallest City in San Joaquin County and groundwater has been managed sustainably
by the City for decades, as evidenced by the available groundwater level data and the City' s investments

in recycled water and surface water. It does not make sense for the City' s rate payers to support two GSAs,
two GSPs, and the on- going management of two different groundwater basins. Therefore, the request to

consolidate the City into the Tracy Subbasin, which has more similar characteristics and conditions as are

found in the City ( see similar groundwater level trends, Figure 4), will allow the City to have a single GSA
covering its entire jurisdictional area ( see the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and
Stewart Tract GSA) and increase the City' s ability to efficiently and sustainably manage groundwater. The

City' s interest in pursuing this request is to look out for the long- term interests of the City' s water
customers, and to continue sustainable management of its local groundwater resources.

117



G. General Existing Groundwater Management
3.  Provide a historical summary of the sustainable manaqement of qroundwater levels in the

proposed basin( sJ or subbasin(s).

Sustainable Mana ement of Groundwater Within the Citv of Lathrop

The City of Lathrop' s water system infrastructure serves water to customers throughout its service area,

which overlies both the Eastern San Joaquin ( ESJ) Subbasin and the Tracy Subbasin. The City operates five
active groundwater wells, which on average supply 3, 600 acre- feet per year (AFY), or 90% of the City' s

current water demand. Based on the estimated basin- wide pumping in the 2004 ESJ Groundwater
Management Plan, the City' s groundwater use only represents approximately 0. 4% of the total

groundwater pumping in the ESJ Subbasin. Lathrop has invested in a reliable surface water supply( i. e. the

South County Water Supply Project [ SCWSP]) to meet much of its projected demands and has no plans to

install new groundwater supply wells. The City has a contractual allocation of 6, 887 AFY1 as part of SCWSP-
Phase 1 and will be entitled to 10, 671 AFY after completion of SCWSP- Phase 2.    

The City also operates a recycled water distribution system that supplies recycled water for both urban

and agricultural irrigation. The current recycled water system consists of approximately 30 miles of

recycled water pipeline with a distribution capacity of 1. 0 million gallons per day. Notably, the City

contributes to groundwater recharge in both underlying basins via percolation of applied surface water

and recycled water. Figure 2 shows the City' s existing water and recycled water system infrastructure.

As part of routine operations, the City collects water level and water quality data from its municipal supply

wells and other monitoring wells it has installed and maintained throughout the City. Those data are

maintained by Public Works.

Figure 3 shows long- term groundwater elevation data from the California Statewide Groundwater

Elevation Monitoring ( CASGEM) program in the vicinity of Lathrop. Despite well- documented overdraft

conditions in the ESJ Subbasin, groundwater levels beneath the City have been stable for decades. Over

the past 10 years, there has been up to a 10- foot increase in groundwater levels observed beneath the

City ( Figure 4). Groundwater levels also remain relatively stable throughout the year. For example, fall

water levels, after the higher-use summer months, average only about three feet lower than groundwater

elevations in the spring.

As shown on Fall 2016 groundwater elevation contours for the San Joaquin County ( Figure 5), the

groundwater table generally slopes from southeast to northwest underlying the southern portion of the

City and from south to north underlying the northern portion of the City. The highest groundwater

elevations occur near Yosemite Avenue, east of McKinley Avenue, while the lowest groundwater

elevations occur along Roth Road, with some localized variations due to industrial and municipal

groundwater pumping operations (Figure 3). As shown on Figure 5, groundwater elevations are elevated

beneath the City, indicating that Lathrop is managing its local groundwater resources sustainability and
not causing or contributing to any groundwater overdraft in the ESJ or Tracy Subbasins.

1 Post City' s sale of 1, 120 AFY SCWSP contractual allocation to the City of Tracy in August 2013.

118



As described in further detail below, the City has participated in groundwater management and planning

efforts in both the Tracy and ESJ Subbasins, including groundwater sustainability agency( GSA) formation
and participation in regular, basin- scale meetings. At the local scale the City has invested in master
planning and groundwater investigation and modeling efforts to better optimize its groundwater

resources from a quantity, quality and sustainability standpoint. The following lists the City' s recent
groundwater planning and investigation efforts.

Groundwater Model Development: In 2004, the City developed a flow and particle tracking

model ( SGI Model) to model groundwater flow in the vicinity of Lathrop. The purpose of the SGI
Model was to analyze the potential migration of high total dissolved solids ( TDS) water towards

the City' s service area. The SGI Model was later updated and refined as part of the City' s 2009

WaterSupply Study and its 2015 Arsenic and Uranium Study( see below).

o Sentrv Wells: In 2008, the City constructed two monitoring wells ( Sentry Wells) east of the San

Joaquin River to address data gaps related to groundwater quality characterization for the 2009

WaterSupply5tudy. The wells have been routinely monitored since 2008.

2009 Water Suppiv Study: In 2009, the City conducted a comprehensive water supply planning
effort to ensure adequate water supplies would be available to meet anticipated water demand

in the City. As part of the Water Supply Study( WSS), the City investigated trends in groundwater

flow and quality using the SGI Model and data collected from the Sentry Wells. The WSS

concluded that the City had sufficient supply to meet anticipated demands through continued
implementation of conjunctive use of its surface and groundwater supplies. The W55 also

recommended that the City invest in the development of non- potable water supplies ( i. e.,
recycled water).

2015 Arsenic and Uranium Studv: In 2015, the City investigated the extent of naturally-occurring

arsenic and uranium near Well 21 and evaluated the feasibility of constructing a well field near

Well 21. As part of the effort, the City conducted a broad water sampling of water quality at known
private and municipal wells. The SGI Model was also updated as part ofthat effort.

2015 Urban Water Mana ement Plan ( UWMP): In its 2015 UWMP, the City identified existing

and planned surface water, groundwater, and recycled water sources to meet the City' s projected
water demands through 2040. The UWMP discussed groundwater conditions and management

in the ESJ and Tracy Subbasins, as well as within the City. The UWMP was developed in

coordination of the City' s recent infrastructure master planning process described below.

2018 Inte rated Water Resources Master Plannin: The City is currently in the process of

completing a comprehensive update to the City' s water, wastewater, and recycled water master
plans. The master plans provide a systemized and unified process to forecast future water

demand, wastewater flows, and recycled water demands; evaluate the water supply reliability,
water quality trends, and other factors; and address the interdependencies of water resources

infrastructure needs. The water master plan is an update to the City' s previous water master

planning efforts during 2001, 2006, and 2013.

119



Sustainable Management of Groundwater in the ESJ Subbasin

The ESJ Subbasin is designated as a high priority critically-overdraft basin in the Department of Water
Resources' ( DWR' s) Bulletin 118- Interim Update 2016, which is a continued designation from the DWR

Bulletin 118 updates in 1980 and 2003. According to the ESJ Groundwater Authority in its 2017
Proposition 1 Grant Application for the ES1 Subbasin, groundwater levels have dropped more than 100

feet in some areas relative to pre- development levels. Figures 2- 1 through 2- 4 of the attached ESJ

Groundwater Management Plan ( GWMP) in Section L1 show a significant cone of depression centered

east of Stockton. The most recent Groundwater Report for the ESJ Subbasin produced by San Joaquin

County is also attached and shows groundwater conditions during Fall 2016, which show a similar
interpretation of groundwater conditions in the ESJ Subbasin ( see also Figure 5).

In 2001, agencies in the ESJ Subbasin came together to form the Northeastern San Joaquin County
Groundwater Basin Authority( GBA) to develop a consensus- based approach to water resources planning
and conjunctive water management. The GBA prepared the ESJ GWMP in September 2004, which is

compliant with the requirements of Senate Bill ( SB) 1938. The planning area of the ESJ GWMP includes

the portion of the then ESJ Subbasin underlying San Joaquin County ( prior to the 2016 basin boundary
modification), including the eastern portion of the City. Various local agencies and interest groups were

actively involved in the planning process, including the City.

Since SGMA was enacted in 2014, the GBA, through the leadership of San Joaquin County, has taken the

lead on SGMA planning in the ESJ Subbasin. The GBA established a SGMA Working Group in August 2015
to pursue a coordinated approach to SGMA implementation within the ESJ Subbasin, and the group has

held monthly meetings since then. In addition, an Ad Hoc Technical Review Committee meets regularly.

The Lathrop City Council approved the Cityjoining the GBA and participating in the SGMA Working Group
in September 2015.

The GBA members developed a Joint Powers Authority( JPA) " for the purpose of coordinating the various

GSAs' management of the Basin, in accordance with SGMA." The details of the JPA were finalized in early
2017 and included the establishment of the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority  ( ESJ

Groundwater Authority), composed of the JPA member agencies. To date, the City is a signatory to the

JPA and has coordinated with other GSAs in the ESJ Subbasin through the ESJ Groundwater Authority,
which has become the major forum of basin- wide groundwater management since its formation in 2017.

Sustainable Manasement of Groundwater in the Tracv Subbasin

The Tracy Subbasin consists of two primary aquifers: a shallow, unconfined aquifer and a deeper confined

aquifer. Groundwater elevations in the unconfined aquifer have been relatively stable over time, and
groundwater flows from south to north. Groundwater elevations in the confined aquifer are monitored

by the City of Tracy, who operates several production wells for municipal use. Historically, groundwater
production by the City of Tracy has resulted in a pumping depression. In its most recent UWMP, however,

the City of Tracy reported that groundwater elevations have risen steadily in the past decade and the

pumping depression has decreased in size as the City has reduced its reliance on groundwater. This

general increase in groundwater levels is shown on Figures 11 through 37 in the City ofTracy' s Summary
of Groundwater Conditions, October 2011 through September 2013, attached hereto.

120



In the Tracy Subbasin, Byron- Bethany Irrigation District, Banta- Carbona Irrigation District, the City of

Tracy, and San Joaquin County formed a Groundwater Advisory Committee to facilitate the development

of a regional groundwater management plan for the Tracy Subbasin. The City of Tracy received a grant

from DWR to develop the plan, and in 2007 the entities adopted the Tracy GWMP( attached in Section L1).

The planning area of the Tracy GWMP encompasses the portion of the Tracy Subbasin underlying San

Joaquin County, including the western portion of the City.

The Tracy GWMP concluded that the Tracy Subbasin is" full", but experiences groundwater quality issues
in portions of the basin associated with nitrate, boron, sulfate, chloride, and total dissolved solids (TDS).

As such, many of the groundwater management options that were recommended focused on sustaining

and protecting basin recharge as well as managing pumping in order to improve water quality within the
basin.

Since 2015, thirteen exclusive GSAs have been formed in the Tracy Subbasin, covering the entire Tracy

Subbasin. In 2016, local agencies in the Tracy Subbasin supported a basin boundary modification to move

two straddling water districts entirely into the Delta- Mendota Subbasin, increasing their ability to

sustainability manage groundwater under SGMA. In late 2017, the Tracy Subbasin GSAs supported the

City of Brentwood GSA in applying for the Proposition 1 Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant for
completing a basin- wide Groundwater Sustainability Plan by 31 January 2022.

121



4
0

Le end

c 
voio

f...       1
E County Boundaries

soia o Proposed Basin Boundary Modificationi W 

9;,  Existing DWR Tracy and Eastem San Joaquin
u       

l     ,,,    3 Subbasins

Local Agencies

Sharpe Army Depot

w,`    . 0 Soulh Delta WaterAgency
South San Joaquin Irrigation District

i o .
o Slockton East Water District

m

Eastern S"an Joaquin Subbasin d 
yo

E .,..   
a.,.     ....,      n a

a"
DV1IR 5- 22. 01) 0 c tY or a n oP

5  "       0 City of Manteca
City of Stockton

r

0 Oakwood Lake Water District

Tracy Subbasin -     
N  ,

DWR 5 22. 15),...    Abbreviations

DWR   = California Department of Water Resources

rs Notes
f '   

1. All locations are approximate.
J

I,   .     

G

Sources

y 1. Groundwater basins from DWR' s Final 2016 8ulletin 118

j 
1,       s Groundwater Basin Boundaries, downloaded
i'           s P

24 October 2016. Basin boundaries reflect the final

os a r' f-\,;   j ds revisions approved as part of the 2016 basin boundary
co

ra

eda v;     F

modification process.

P am 2. Water district boundaries obtained from U. S. 8ureau of

Reclamation MPGIS Service Center in coordination with
E DWR.

i 3. Public water systems boundaries obtained from California
r"°"«""°A- y°.   

Environmental Health Tracking Program' s Drinking Water
o+++-.:-   ;   g Systems Geographic Reporting Tool.e

4. Basemap layers obtained from ESRI, accessed
24Apri12018.n

1       ..
r.„ n-:.

e

o e z

G      ,.,.t
9y tl

Approvimeta Scale n Miles)

LL

Proposed Basin Boundary Modification
s"     w„    Tracy and Eastern San Joaquin Subbasins

I

gI3
a

s
a

s.,`     

I  _
San Jaaqun C untyhCA

aiamon     
t

r;  

5
Ma``

ed

KI
environment

AP 12018
r. e, .: i       „... .   EKI 880009. 00

sa rs cie a M,„       
water Figure 1

122



Leqend

L    Cit LimitY

l,  w Produchon Well

Percolation Basins

Existing( by 2018)

I Recycled Water Irrigation Use Areas

Existing

t,g.:, y
i is, NL:    i Exisling( by 2018)

Near-Term

i i Groundwater Basins
I

II ''''' Eastem San Joaquin Subbasin( DWR 5- 022. 01)   
I

1 I .. Tracy Subbasin( DWR 5- 022. 15)

I III
I1

F».;       

i....,..,.,,
i``  i.\  r 

r

Well 7

S 1 WJ i
i

I+       i Well6.W  1

I i WellB
f Iw,  _

I J'    

R'            Well10
LW

WJ Well 9

1

I     "  vv il2t_   ,_ .   
w       

Abbreviations

wr;      

DWR   = Department of Water Resources

y..       
f_        Notes

J 1. All locations are approximate.

4

Sources

1. Basemap provided by ESRI' s ArcGIS Online,
24 April 2018.

E

s    
t_  , N

o i 2

aj A   ,-- , AOP,ox ma e, a,,,M, s;

Groundwater Extraction and

g Recharge Locations

J
City oF Lathrop

San Joaquin CouMy, CA

environment
Apn120t8

880009.00

a I & water Figure 2

123



oce„ ero, u  ~     o, so co coo: x sar wao, u
egend

aisae um u a s

g City Limity -     —     ..  

I L--y w'
W I

r       CASGEM or Woluntary Wellsi 3
E 

E

I
Y',,     

4 4 -..    Ground Surface Elevation
w f...—_ ytlt y. y' iµ..-+.t..y'. y

t iJ..,' v.ti+      d IT.—   .__—       W t F s
I t" r,-...r

y P ,  . r          
i i   :     .. i-            . ir  ..^ r}`'"      t  --    -- yrr_   _.   -   

G d EI1     6 z      ,  '' r     „          E

4

roun water evation TrendlineS
I     ,     a        

i'.;}    ; t•       ;,  s ry r
v

w— =     
W       - dwater Basms

m a s  r    4 a a  '  '     s .    a 5  ,  .      Easlem San Joaquin Subbasin( DWR 5- 022.01)

G ro

Tracy Subbasin( DWR 5- 022. 15)

01501EIKIOIM

y _.      —_ _.   ._  .  .   . _.       

y

i
I.

u  '_--_    . .... .. 

i

wt,,   O
r       ...

N    \    .'..,,.. w.  
M1

tn ti yt   ' M r
ti':/.

vti w r. y—' '

8 a iti..,    
x.«

Mr     .__.._..._.._9 M L I: Y' Y Y       _  "   t il z x  .    .  .  ..

3      ` 

v  ,  „  .    t  .  .. ,  ,.  

f t
7 I

I 1

0150lEIiN001M e`.._  
601Et] MOiMV

f

E     . .._ .    . .       

l...  1
yM    '` ,+   

I
AI

c r

A'.   .',  ••    ....
1....`

r,

rl'\
1     t   

I
y.—v.--__.....-.-

x I-    ,
r       ..   

a

w   

N`~ :%  _.'.

r

I o
M, _      

x 

g  ,  .  i i i dl  .  c  .  .      

Y+   

f'     
y

A a  .  v i i 3 . .. r   

i Abbreviations

o go m

DWR  = Department of Water Resources

c 1 ' o a„  

Notes

r I ti  ,     i 1. All locations are approximate.

a 6 r•      .      2. Data shown for CASGEM or voluntary wells
1.. r..,....,-_,       

j

r''-`"••+.;5  -.._.——_-------_.__. 1 wi t h m o re th a n 3 0 ye a rs o f reco rd a n d d at a
post-2000 within two miles of the City of Lathrop.

w  ,       so esw :   

a    $ ;  x  .  ,      r- q      -   1. Basemap provided by ESRI' s ArcGIS Online,
24 Apri1 2018.

e

o
OtEtYID t OTSO6EOtPo01M l50{ E11JW1M O15MENLUUIM

e s.• ., 0 2 4

AI Miles

F F "    E riY.ti W+: Nt^..r-.M.+ v-._    Ar r..[•       

Y' j-tlS!h-' YT̀—LL 8  . L .   _   .. f•. r. w  • i+.A _.___        ..,  
t r..   . 

9. S' w r..+:+?.;wr+.+:'•       x
i '

Nv'  .
K-..__     _,

t

I Groundwater Elevation
r

4

i
I

W 

I

in the v a Hyof
athpos

a nitY p
Y

o .  ,..._,      -__-----     
r

g      <...  

b.    

Ciry of Lathrop

8 y

y     .  + 

3 w  .  .  a 3 t  . j  ;, a

LL    ,  .  

3  i 3 4  .. p ,    3 e 3 i   ..  <      

San JoaQuin

CApr 1278

ent

Figure 3

v

environm

d

water

124



I egend
i Q Existing DWR Tracy and Eastem San JoaquinSubbasins

r ....

Mw      

I 0 City of Lathrop
r

y      2  "`" n

Change in Groundwater Elevation,

Spring 2007- Spring 2017

E  Increase Greater Than 10 ft

r
Increase 2. 5 to 10 it

a    5 fChan e 2 tf "   9

O       .      ,,,,,  -`' Fs Decrease 2. 5 to 10 ft

y,tl

Decrease Greater Than 10 ft

i.   

1     

w. 

Abbreviations

DWR   = Department of Water Resources

a:.       ,..       

i6
Notes

t. All locations are approximate.

e i  - 
t     `  i

R,;.._,    Sources

t   '"  1. Groundwater elevation chan9e data obtained from DWR

C i  g t Groundwater Infromation Center, accessed

y 9 February 2018.
2. Groundwater basins from DWR' s Final 2016 Bulletin 118

l'       F Groundwater Basin Boundaries, downloaded

M' I 24 October 2016. Basin boundaries reflect lhe final
Imc, .   

r revisions approved as part of the 2016 basin boundary  !

U    `
y, a.   `.  "      

3. easelma

tion process.

r.« k,    

p provided by ESRI' s ArcGIS Online,
24Apri12018.

o

8 N
ry C;  ,;:;>     ,,...,       o s z

f

e

r...

w
er/ 1 w      

c o•     
n• n A   `   (APO ox le Sceie in Mile!      

U

s,:      
Spring 2007- Spring 2017 Change in

4 /     i b         Groundwater Elevation

Y   '. .     .    . " ?             City af La hropav

x

w.    ..    .  . .

f_   .    4     . ... '. V'     
San Jo q n

g 

r. ,      . 

s..' i
nd.,       .      ,  

ruim.   

ent
CApi 12018

i  ..;_  -.^,._'. _   .. ...;
nr. ia,.... ___ _ _.. ..  .'      ' .;<:. .      environm B80009. 00

a ui

scwater Figure4
s    `

125



L-CL

Elevahon of Groundwater

1  ;'^

O isting DWR Tracy and Eastem San Joaquinzp _ Subbasins

Wate   
I p Ciry of Lathrop

Ma%or Roads/Highways B Freeways

IQ City Limrts 5`

1 County Lim t
irrlgatlon DJstr7cts

CSJWCD

NSJWCD I-'"'     
0

NSJWCDMIID
5 I

SEW/ WI     
w

SSJID

WID r
O

r.      i

t       "'_,/

N    "'    

J

J/    

J

d   '
s

T_,
w,.

N.     

e

io^.   Abbreviations

Sp"--._ D1NR   = Department of Water Resources

L..
1_--.  - .     -     I No es

I
1. All locations are approximate.

0   Sources
H`>,•   

1. Groundwater elevation contours obtained from San

Joaquin County Groundwater Report for Fall 2016.
2. Groundwater basins from DWR' s Final 2016 Bulletin 118

a Groundwaler Basin Boundaries, downloaded

Nr,_-      4 24 October 2016. Basin boundaries re0ect the final
i

J z
Y revisions approved as paR of the 2016 basin boundary

modification process.

3. Basemap provided by ESRI' s ArcG15 Online,
I        '`" F     —       

s
24 April 2018.

w    :     

1 nJp      `

a
o, N o

a0 t r N o s e
O

bI

y

r      '            A ApproKuna a Scala in Mnes

w
Fall 2016 Groundwater Elevation Contours

r,     San Joaquin County Groundwater Report
R 1     

I

i City of Lathrop
f

San Joaquin County, CA

eki
environment aa000 oo

30--.,.  water Figure 5

126



ITEM 4. 10

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH DE NOVO PLANNING
GROUP FOR IWRMP ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING
SERVICES, CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 4 WITH EKI
AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT PW 10- 10 AND
WW 15- 08

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving a Professional

Services Agreement with De Novo Planning Group
for Environmental Consulting Services,   Contract

Amendment No. 4 with EICI for the Integrated Water
Resources Master Plan and Related Budget

Amendment PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08

SUMMARY:  

Approval of an agreement with De Novo Planning Group is requested to provide
environmental consulting services to prepare a Programmatic Environmental Impact
Report  ( EIR)  for California Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA)  compliance for the

Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP).  De Novo provided a scope of work

at staffs request for a comprehensive update to the City' s water, sewer and recycled
water master plan documents.  The cost for De Novo to provide the IWRMP

environmental consulting services is  $ 74, 985.    In addition,  approval of Contract

Amendment No.  4 with EKI in the amount of  $63, 000 is requested to provide

additional engineering consulting services to support the IWRMP during the final
phase of the project.  The cost for Contract Amendment No. 4 with EKI is $ 63, 000.

A budget amendment in the amount of $ 137, 985 is requested to transfer funds from

the Water Fund 5600, Wastewater Fund 6110 and Fund 6060 to the PW 10- 10 and

WW 15- 08 for the City' s water and wastewater master plan updates.

BACKGROUND:

A comprehensive update to the City' s water, sewer and recycled water master plan
documents is needed to forecast and update water and sewer demand projections,
address changes in regulatory requirements,  population and growth projections,

proposed land use, climate change and other factors.  In May 2016, the City approved
an agreement with EKI to prepare the IWRMP and the draft IWRMP; documents were
completed in early March 2018.  Implementation ofthe Draft IWRMP is a discretionary
project for the City, and is therefore subject to environmental review under CEQA.
Completion of CEQA is required prior to formal adoption by the City.

On March 6, 2018, Staff issued a Request for Proposals ( RFP) for qualified, interested
firms to submit a proposal for the preparation of a Programmatic Environmental
Impact Report for IWRMP CEQA compliance.  On March 29, 2018 two proposals were

received.   After review and ranking of the proposals by a selection committee, De

127



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP FOR IWRMP
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES, CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 4

WITH EKI AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

Novo was determined to be the best qualified firm to provide the environmental

consulting services for a cost not to exceed $ 74, 985.

On February 12, 2018 Council approved Contract Amendments No. 2 and No. 3 with
EKI to develop a Tracking Tool to compile and track historical water and wastewater
capacity allocations on a parcel level,  and additional engineering services IWRMP
revisions to include the California Military Department' s cantonment at the former
Sharpe Army Depot.   Approval of a contract amendment with EKI is requested to

further support the IWRMP development during the completion of the EIR and to
assist finalizing the IWRMP documents for Council adoption.   The cost for Contract

Amendment No. 4 with EKI is $ 63, 000.

RECOMMENDATION:

After review and ranking of the proposals by a selection committee, De Novo was

determined to be the best qualified firm to provide the environmental consulting
services.    Approval of an agreement with De Novo is requested to prepare a

Programmatic EIR for CEQA compliance for the IWMRP.

Approval of Contract Amendment No. 4 with EKI is requested to provide additional

engineering consulting services to further support the IWRMP development during
the final phase of the project

A budget amendment in the amount of $137, 985 is requested to transfer funds from

Fund 5600 Water and Fund 6080 to the PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08 for the City' s water
and wastewater master plan updates.

CITY COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

A Feeling of Safetx and Economic Growth to address changed conditions for the City' s
master plan to provide additional water, sewer and recycled water capacity needed
for new development in the City while maintaining safe, reliable utility services for
the existing users.

128



CITI( M14NAGEL' S IaEPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAFt MEETIfdG

APPlZOVE AGI2EEMENT WITH DE NO\/ O PLANNING GROUP FOR IWRMP
EN\/ IRONMENTAL CONSULTIFHG SEF VICES, CONTR14CT AMENDMENI' NO. 4
VIIITH EKI AIVD I ELATED BUDGET AN9EIVDMENT P1A/ 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

FISCAL II IIPACT:

The cost for the agreement with De Novo to prepare a Programmatic Environmental
Impact Report for CEQA compliance for the IWMRP is a cost not to exceed $ 74, 985.

The cost for Contract Amendment No. 4 with EKI is not to exceed $ 63, 000.  The total

cost of these services is $ 137, 985 and will require a budget amendment from Fund
5600 in the amount of $45, 995 to the Water Master Plan Update PW 10- 10 and from
Fund 6110 in the amount of $45, 995 and from Fund 6060 in the amount of $45, 995

to pay for the Wastewater and Recycled Water Master Plan Update WW 15- 08:

Staff requests the following budget Amendment:

Increase Transfer Out 5600- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 995

6110- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 995

6060- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 995

Increase Transfer In 5690- 9900- 393- 0000 45, 995

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 91, 990

Increase Appropriation 5690- 8000- 420- 8600, PW 10- 10 45, 995

6090- 8000- 420- 8600, WW 15- 08 91, 990

4TTAC FI M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with De Novo

Planning Group for Environmental Consulting Services, Contract Amendment

No. 4 with EKI for the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan and Related
Budget Amendment PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08

B.       Professional Services Agreement with De Novo to Prepare a Programmatic EIR

for the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan - CIPs PW 10- 10 and WW 15-

08

C.       Contract ACnendment No.  4 with EKI for the Integrated Water Resources
Master Plan and Related Budget Amendment PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08

129



CITY MAIVAGER' REPORT PAGE 4

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPIZOVE AGREEMERIT WITH DE NOVO PLAIVNING GROUP FOR IWRMP
ENVIROWMENTAL CONSULTING SEI3VICES, CONTRACY AMENDMENT NO. 4
V1/ ITH EKI AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMEINT PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 0

APPIZOVALS:

a--     S of! S

Greg Gibso Date

Senior Civ' ineer

g
Cari James Date

Director of in nce

r ry

t` v I
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

7 • d

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

130



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DE NOVO

PLANNING GROUP FOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES,

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 4 WITH EKI FOR THE INTEGRATED WATER

RESOURCES MASTER PLAN AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

WHEREAS, a comprehensive update to the City' s water, sewer and recycled
water master plan documents is needed to forecast and update water and sewer

demand projections,  address changes in regulatory requirements,  population and

growth projections, proposed land use, climate change and other factors; and

WHEREAS,  collectively,  these documents known as the Integrated Water

Resources Master Plan  ( IWRMP),  are a component of the City' s General Plan and
are used as the basis for regulatory compliance documents,  and are used to

support utility operations, budget, rate studies, land use planning and development
fees; and

WHEREAS,  in _May 2016,  the City approved an agreement with EKI to
prepare the IWRMP, and in March 2018 EKI completed the draft IWRMP documents;

and

WHEREAS, implementation of the Draft IWRMP is a discretionary project for
the City,  and is therefore subject to environmental review under CEQA,  and

completion of CEQA is required prior to formal adoption of the IWRMP by the City;
and

WHEREAS, on March 6, 2018, Staff issued a Request for Prop.osals ( RFP) for

qualified,   interested firms to submit a proposal for the preparation of a

Programmatic Environmental Impact Report for IWRMP CEQA compliance; and

WHEREAS,  after review and ranking of the proposals by a selection

committee, De Novo Planning Group was determined to be the best qualified firm to
provide the environmental consulting services; and

WHEREAS,   the cost for De Novo Planning Group to provide the

environmental consulting services for the IWRMP CEQA compliance is not to exceed
74, 985; and

WHEREAS,  Approval of Contract Amendment No.  4 in the amount of

63, 000 with EKI is requested to provide additional engineering consulting services
to support the IWRMP development during the final phase of the project; and

131



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves an agreement with De Novo Planning Group to provide
environmental consulting services to prepare a Programmatic Environmental Impact
Report for California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) compliance for the IWRMP

for a not- to- exceed cost of $74, 985, and Contract Amendment IVo. 4 in the amount

of $63, 000 with EKI is hereby approved to provide additional engineering consulting
services to further support the IWRMP development during the final phase of the
project;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  the cost for the agreement with De Novo to

prepare a Programmatic Environmental Impact Report for CEQA compliance
for the IWMRP is a cost not to exceed  $ 74, 985.    The cost for Contract

Amendment No. 4 with EKI is not to exceed $ 63, 000.  The total cost of these

services is $ 137, 985 and will require a budget amendment Water Fund 5600
and the Wastewater Fund 6110 and Fund 6060:

StafF requests the following budget Amendment:

Increase Transfer Out 5600- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 995

6110- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 995

6060- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 995

Increase Transfer In 5690- 9900- 393- 0000 45, 995

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 91, 990

Increase Appropriation 5690- 8000- 420- 8600, PW 10- 10     $ 45, 995

6090- 8000- 420- 8600, WW 15- 08    $91, 990

132



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSEIVT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPRO\/ E   S TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

133



I ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP

TO PREPARE A PROGRAMMATIC ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

FOR THE INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER PLAN UPDATE

PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 14th day of May, 2018, is by and
between De Novo Planning Group (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a

California municipal corporation ("CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
provide environmental consulting services to prepare a Programmatic Environmental
Impact Report EIR for California Environmental Act ( CEQA) for the Integrated Water

Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP) CIP PW 10- 10 and WW15-08 for the City's water and
wastewater master plan updates, which will be required by this agreement;

WHEREAS, on March 6, 2018, staff issued a Request for Proposals for qualified,

interested firms to submit a proposal for preparation of a Programmatic Environmental

Impact Report for IWRMP CEQA compliance; and

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2018 two proposals were received, after review and

ranking of the proposals by a selection committee, De Novo was determined to be the best
qualified firm to provide the environmental consulting services for a cost not to exceed

74,985; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Engineering
Consulting Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform services in conformance with the scope of work

submitted by the CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Attachment " A" and
incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,

and CITY'S satisfaction.

134



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 74,985 for the

services to prepare a Programmatic Environmental Impact Report EIR for California
Environmental Act  (CEQA)  for. the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

IWRMP)  CIP PW 10- 10 and WW15-08 as set forth in Attachment  "A"  and

incorporated herein by reference, notwithstanding any contrary indications which
may be contained in CONSULTANT' S proposal.   CONSULTANT shall be paid

within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to
Paragraph 5 below. Compensation for any task must be equal or less than the
percentage complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to

compensation for work not included in Attachment "A", Scope of Work, unless a

written change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms
has been executed by CITY's authorized representative prior to the commencement
of the work.  Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is May 14th, 2018, and it shall terminate no
later than June 30, 2019.

4)       Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in Attachment   "A"   to City's satisfaction.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,
that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs.

CONSULTANT'S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section (2) for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a
properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitorthe
performance of this Agreement.

Page 2

135



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER  .

PLAN UPDATE

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perForm services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for underthis Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY'S request.

The services shall be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,

CONSULTANT's Authorized Representative: Steve McMurtry, CONSULTANT shall
not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior written approval by the
CITY.

8)      Assianment and Subcontractinq.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neitherthis Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S Public
Works Director.     CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S Public Works
Director.

9)      Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections( a) through (c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the

subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance

shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self-insurance program to meetthese requirements provided that

the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.

Page 3

136



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES IVIASTER

PLAN UPDATE

The insurer,  if insurance is provided,  or the CONSULTANT,  if a

program of self- insurance is provided,  shall waive all rights of

subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work performed
under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance forthe
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.  If a

Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,   including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of

CONSULTANT,      including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.     

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

Page 4

137



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California-admitted insurers with

a Best's rating of no less than A:VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed
150,000 per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after   

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.

Page 5

138



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the
CONSULTANT'S cost,    any extended reporting

provisions of the policy should the CONSULTANT
cancel or not renew the coverage,   so long as

commercially available at reasonable rates.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self- insured retentions not exceeding$ 100,000 except with

concurrence of the CITY.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  (a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in
coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due underthe
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

Page 6

139



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv.

As to the CONSULTANT'S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that (b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.  It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised

of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in

accordance with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY,  its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Standard of Care.

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be performed under

this Agreement, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of

practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

Page 7

140



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

While CONSULTANTwill perform in reasonable accordance with standards in effect

at the time its services are performed, it is recognized that such standards may
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information supplied

by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral or written
reports of the findings made.

12)    Licenses.

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTAfVT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

13)    Business Licenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)    Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty (30) days written notification to other party.  In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services

performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes,  and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)    Fundinq.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal af this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

Page 8

141



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

16)    Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX: (209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:      De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Lane, Suite 106

EI Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Phone:    ( 916) 580- 9818

ATTN:      Steve McMurtry, Principal
17)    Miscellaneous.

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

Page 9

142



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)'       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

Page 10

143



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER
PLAN UPDATE

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be

performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a
legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

n)      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non- prevailing party.

18)    General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT' S sub-consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY,  CONSULTANT and its sub-consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor's Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractorto
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

19)    Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written "Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page 11

144



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

20)    Cost Estimates.

Any statements of estimated construction costs or future operation and

maintenance costs furnished by CONSULTANT are predicted costs and are based
on professional opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and other factors which
could not be anticipated at the time of preparation of the particular estimate.

21)    CADD Documents.

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting (CADD) documents, drawings and data
files provided by CONSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, computer disk or
other electronic media, in accordance with the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy to CITY do not constitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
professional work product.       Only the original paper prints constitute

CONSULTANT'S professional work product. Because the electronic media may be
damaged during transfer or altered, the paper prints shall control where there are
any differences between the paper prints and the electronic media.  CONSULTANT

makes no warranties, either express or implied, of the merchantability, applicability,
compatibility with CITY'S computer equipment or software,  or fitness for any
particular purpose for the electronic media or that the electronic media contain no

defects or are virus free.

Modification or use by CITY of any documents or electronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or project other than the project subject to this
Agreement shall be at CITY'S sole risk.   CITY agrees to indemnify and hold
CONSULTANT harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising from any reuse or modification of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the prior written
consent of CONSULTANT.

22)    Siqnatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right, . power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 12

145



CITY OF LATHROP= CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP — INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER

PLAN UPDATE

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorne

I 
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Senior Civil Engineer

Greg Gibson Date

Accepted By:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Lane, Suite 106

EI Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Fed I D

Lathrop Bus License

Steve McMurtry Date

Page 13

146



D       avc    Planning Grr up

A Land llse Plannin, esign, and Environmental Firm

March 29, ZOIB

Attn: Greg Gibson. Senior Civit Engineer

City of Lathrop- Public Works Departrnent
390 Tawne Centre Drive

Lathrop CA. 95330

SU JECT: Budget Proposal f r the Lathrop Integcated Wate r Resourtes WWaster PEan EIFt

Please find the enclosed budget for the Eathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Pian EIR.  The budget is

st uctured according to the RFP request with a breakdown of the fe into labor( by billing classification), and direct
costs/ expenses. Separately we have included a ra4e schedule and a table that identi ies the staff assigned to the

project and their posi4ion. The total not-to-exceed cost for the entire project is 74 485. This includes atl labor and

expenses. V1le have no markup and no subconsultants.

This is proposal is signed by a Principal of our firm with the authorization and authority to negotiate and execute
contracts on behalf of the frm. We have receivecf the original Request for Proposal and Addendum 1.

Speaking for the entire De Novo Team, we truly appreciate bein considered for this project. We trust that the

enclosed information is adequate for your evaluation, but should you need anything eise, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 91fi-580-9818.

Sincerely,
f>   ,;.

f` 

f' .

DE fdOVO PI.ANNif3G GROUP

Steve McMurtry, Principal

DE N VO PLAtdNING GROUP

smcmurtry@denovoplarning. cam  SE! 916 S80 9818

147



De Novo Pianning Group Budget P oposal
Lathrop iVVRMP EiR

6 ..    ' s;` xi
4.'.           

rE
aa" n     ,.+

4',. . m'°  ,     a,r`." ks  `  +,'  f,r

yq

a  
qQ± 

a¢" a  
gM{      

Yy3  °       
r§.`     Rt„  

i '         "`     '.",+
r9d'la$ ylf        CtY t + vA      . Dd'' h. Y     At1: F"a   ..

q'     

xn. a:. r ..

4k.     x# kS YPA'iR`   ..       _     x,.. i ix sz+  ..
Y n5 ldbC$

p;'
M'. ' n. b vs. s. : n         i"ti  31" i:

z",.`,Task 1 and 2: Pra' cct Descri tianlinitial Stud lN Pt ia     , .,. o.,...'   

r'     x

Projectl c tinn und Alkmativead,       A 12,_ 0. ss1' 800'..,       S1, 00..

s' llnitialStuclylNOP",,,._:... .`.; ,      13 AO 0 6 yiiS6,280 S60D c ,. 56.884

Txhnical    [ tsCLQARev eFvr;  ,     4 A 0 0 5a. D00 ";;      1, OQ0

t 5ribla/at._.,::._. muw,.  __. a...` w......_ ',•:--._._.:._._ u.       1tl 56 6     „ WtS9, 080. w;    5600 i.'; S9,6d0;.

Tas 3 uad 4:    ing as d A e Coasultotion i.. w..._..._
w.__.._  .____.._  .__...._. .__..._ u..    .......,   ,.,.... ._._.. m _.._.___ m

a' Scoin Mat3n .,,.`..,.     6 6 0 0 t_; I; 5003„;    5175 S1, b75f,,„

p en Co sultatior    2 4 0 0       ' yS700 S25 s5725k ,:.`;

SarblofAt r...: w w  - .:.  .., .,:,.. . ..._;`. ,._  ... . ..  ,-:+ 8 10 0 D 4; : S2,? OO r, ,;;    5200     [ : SI,400 e' w:

Tas 5 ndb: DraR BIR._._.., ;, m.,.  _:._;. ._.._. _: w._ . ....' ..': v'_ .,. '..:_ e::___,.'. .. W'     __:"     i

Exxutive3ummary ho 3acdon<. .. 2 4 4       .   . 5700 5700.._"; s

n« n uon , ::..  a a u a     , :_ sr, 2a si,no:...

FiiologicalRtsourcesi%' 6 0 A 4 u:
S3, 620s,`;r 53. 620 , u

Cultwa! and Tdbal Resourccs. " 6 l6 0 0     ; 52, 500_ rd w;S2, 500:_v

Gcolo . 3oils. nhdMitretols,._.,. 6 16 1
u,>;

52, 580,. 4 iS2.S 0" au

Hazerds aad Ham rfauslvinlerials3". .,._,    6 16 0 0     ^ S2, 5UD,"" s 2,504;. I

Hydroiogy and Water usli , .,_: u  . ... : . ,.. ..;;.. . w..„ 6 16 2     ,,.., 52,650;'.:'     S2,6dOr.:. 2's

Util3tIes 8 22 0 2     _ W"jS3, 560:";;      Ewu3$ 3, 560" :

Afttmativea;;'..      8 22 3,40U "; S3 4W_ uHr

f. xOther.,._.,x_'> ,r_....    a 8 32 0 0      "; 54 400 4.400; '

i tldrtiin Urrift Piod'ucNoA _ v_._......_. __      f 2 4 0 0      '=° 37U0._.. s.'      5700

Scrcenctiock Dt àR E1R{ 2)_... ...< m   _.....:_    _ ,... .._;, W 12 AO 2 4     ,'; S6,320 SG.320

PubiicReviewDraftElFt,  ..    b 0 2      _: 5, 960 S1. 00Q     ;;.' 53.960 ";

Seablotaa! "   m; 4 FI 21T 1d 19    ; r J3T,610, t.=,    SI,000    : 5538,610 -

uiasks 7: R W Comment' Admin Finaf EIR.,  L. :' s._._.:..;::..-..   LL 

Admin Final EIR .      16 32,>    . 6    .. 4       S6, SZU    6,520

Sk& acl   16 32 6 4     '`" s530 SD      ; ..; 6,520;';

Tss: Noticrs/ Find'sags 5tatement of Oxertiding Consideratioas a '_'._    

5cmcncheckF na1HIR"„        20  24 2 2    S5,760u , s_ a. T D

M Final EIK.,_  . 8 10 0 0       52, 200,:   SE. ODO    a; 53, 2z . ,.. . . x. _. r.....<.. ,_ .. ..  ,....,.

pFindin oPFncUStntementofOverndingCotts7derations 8 14 0             ,:', 1 S2.b4(i1;. m

6 Seeblolal__. u`^        36 4    1 1     , ;' if0,360ey.    5, 000 xS11; 580
w........,.... . _ w.._.,.,__

ws

E:": Tusk 9; Pro' ect Coordination Mxetia egement w..___..  _._,...._.,..__._..,._..._. u.,.. .._,,.._,_..._     _ a..       ._..,_....__.     ..__

m i QC f-0.' 8.. .      f 1 1 3 „« SQ       n3S2$.._......, n

C„'• Monthly.Coafererieccalls._ .__ _,._..__': d 0
v..::

isz. rv:' S2, 0:,"

PubEic Eleasfngs( PC and Council]( Z mati      .  r       5 0 4 D
y :<

5750 5300      .:•: 3 SI; 050 :,;:

ProjcctM rntonto Admin, 14 5 1 I     ,; 52, 780r._:'    125     : 51, 405 .

z; Spblodalr:.,._:: , v       18 1    d 3,7dD  - r 5415 m3; 36,305„;,;`;s

II?IIYO Cd'' II' 07C.
w.,

0 s 3Ti.
w.,,

35.,_:";,', 3Z     - 71, 760  3225 574;985

148



ri_ m   .      
A      

D8 R1UV0 RATFS j
r

FEESCHEDULE

RATES BY FDOS[ T90N

I 4' , `:.'.   '      .. 0,'.      F

g,_.-.-- a- v-x.„ r-
g      .       . 

Pro ect;Mana e/=,Pnncipai Planner  ;, _   , ;     , .-   
g ,, :   

r;

S150
u  ..,     s     :

Senior Planner I15

Sen or Desigrie 115
w .,; n      .,,_ ..,:    ,   w   -.- . v_.=_ _  _,., a.   _ . . . ,

a Associate Planner 100

Assoaate Designer
y$

i00       

Biologist 100

AssistantPlanner x g5
a, H.:: .

Graphics/ GIS 5ervices

Adininistrative
8d

w.     .,. .      .. ..  :  .    75
Expert Witness/ Legal Work 290

Mileage( when'applicable)    ` Y       ,
v; IRS Standard,Mileage;.Rate

uti,m     ,,,.   x.» v.    , _.  . ,

Services and Expenses( printing, shipping, etc.   Actual cost

E tSONNEL peSSIGNED - P' pSIT[ O IS

Steve McMurtry Princ pal Planner

Ben R tch e   Pnnc pal;Pianner      w
BethThompson j Principai Planner

Elise Carroll} Assocate Planner
u

n,...    - 

William Crenshaw i       Associate Planner i

Josh Sm th _ 
r   # y$:,,         

Associate'Plannei
q x a__.

i

I
i
d

t

a

i

3

t
at

f

3

f

t

1

De Novo Planning Group       w.   1,   

149



z ,

z ,,,  _  ,     . 

t F  . m.   :-   ,..   .     
a u.

n     

r P
w

u

r;       >     .,,           ...    
S^,-       _   5

t.,.' 4-
t

3
1,  k lf   ''  ` i:     ...

y. '' P"   ' '
A,.     y'•

z    .".-., c  . -

a:.., ..,.:: x
o   

X   ..- .

r a      z    --    ` -   w

s  ;,.   ,. +.; ..:   ,.    ,.  ,;

s  .;     r
r

3     = 3   .«"

t.      w

i'"   :^   '   c'.. ,? T`   -  c.*-   ,      

Propvsal for Pro ess onatS rv cesto

Prepiare an Env rcnri ent l I npact Report forthe

La h:op Integrated Water Resou ces Master Plan
e    `    rv.

x ;  
t K   ,       C"   '" } z,; : r.a..   

ii    ,' ,.   :       
e$• r a. '

G t       t F

Y  . '  
a   "

r ..      :"• .. 

r,... _    -         :-       *

h r

a a

y.   .b  
Rf.    

F   ,

y:;--'•' i:  .    1•      

r g        

sy`„-..       
ic   

r

r      

i,tir':.

s..
r,

t  .)      
t'-   .. 

a:;       i'., '    a ;,:_

d1. 4+.:

ti:     
j

R

2

i
YC 7   .

s

r--r      Z.  

S' .i
s..-:'.

s. r

T

i  ' i

SUbl111lt t Qi`  "   '  `       
ffi"`     '`       "   `    

f     ;      

r,: ;             •  '    ``   '      
r: e

x     _' 

Attn: Greg:Gibson..
F

emor Ciuil Engineer

City af Lathrop- Pub1 cFWorks epartment 
n    r    .   v

3 O Towne Centre Or ve..   .-

lathr o CA. 95330 x̀

Sak rriitteii by   `r  _    
m.    ,  _..  _       -

r   .  .:    

De No` o.Plannmg Graup
ffin

a   91 d t.. d vii e mi ttaf Fkm
t, 

t 3s c x
c  .'   '   

t   ``       r'  =-        '?;    s
v,  

rr                 "` k`      .'             IOZO EI.' 95762
wy

0
a   

s .

ri,

150



kd R;..
y

aa. r,a.. 

1       ( 44r r y, ,        a

a.      
r.;,

e ``.  ,  ,  

w.,  

o - P

t.,         
v

x; .

q

E*     ;' s:.   t =

t

y,     
t  ,a

m

n    
fx:.' 

t

r•     t      ,
r    "  r r

u'.."."'.'     ..,     '
m  

n`          

sj:, e
4,  

z'„..    

t

a.,       

zv z _ y,=...     '

n      .     ... 

fl

r

9     -, t

r r_' er
a         x s.,,,. zs s.

a  . 

E 

g,'" `    ,   

a;& L` '  s   sa    3 s,,       ,
c3x;,„       . 1 3

x g g    : „      .       ..       ,    s. - x x
r r..

y
m

e      ', r

r
y,   

x.

s ua 

w„  .'..
w, .,_ ... .  .  >.... w. ,, . . a;   .,  .,..:.    `. ....      , .

v`..';` ` '  

a.., av.       .       sr.b`..
x';

151



De IVova Planning Group

h Land Use Vlanning, Design, and Environmen[ al Firm

March 29, 2018

Attn: Greg Gibson. Senior Civil Engineer
City of Lathrop- Public Works Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop G4. 95330

SUB3ECT: Proposal to prepare an Envtronmental Impact Report for the

Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

5peaking on behalf of the entire De Novo Planning Team, we would like to thank yau for the opportunity to submit
this proposal for the above referenced project. Based on our review of the RFP, our extensive knowledge of the

City of Lathrop, and our evaluation of project materials we are confident that we have assemhled a first-class team

to undertake this important project and deliver the City with a certifted EIR according to your timeline.

The enclosed proposal includes all of the information requested in the RFP, incletding a project understanding,
detailed scope oE' work, projett timeline, qualifications, and details of our management and team. The budget is

provided in a separate sealed envelope as requested in the RFP.

Our team will be managed by Steve McMurtry, a Principal with our firm that has extensive experience preparing
EIRs. Our intent is to prepare a fegally defensible EIR that fully addresses the concerns of alI citizens and public

agencies. We have proposed to utilize the NQP and Scoping Process to narrow the focus of the EIR to just the most

relevant topics. This approach will maximize efflciency and save the City vafuable funds.

We are confident that our experience, retord of success, and Principal- level attention to the project will prove to

be eutremely valuable to the City. We encourage you to contact our references regarding uur ability to provide our
services at the highest level of legal adequacy.

This p oposal is signed hy a Principal with the authorization and authority to negotiate and execute contracts on
behalf of the firm.

Speakin for the entire De Novo 7eam, we truly appreciate being considered for this project. We t ust that the
enclosed information is adequate for your evaluation, but should yov need anything else, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 916-580-9818.

Sincerely,

l N'°_

DE NOVQ PWNNING GROUP

Steve McMurtry, Principal

pE NOVO PLANNING 6ROUP

smcmurtry@denovoplanning. com  TEL 916 584 9818

152



jCity of Lathrop: Integcated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Proposal i:   

E F O1 T' 1' I'S

A.  Pr ject Understanding............................ve........................... m......... m................. 3

ProjectDescripcion.............................................................................................................3

Project Team.....o................................................. m................ e........................... 4

OurFirm  .............................................................................................................................4

OurTeam .............................................................................................................................4

De Ivovo Key Team Members..........................................................................................5

C.  Detailed Scope of Work...........................oa......................... a......... a................. 7

TaskI —Project Description and Alternatives................................................................7

Task2 Prepare Notice of Preparatian.............................................................................7

Task3 —Conduct Scoping P'[ eetireg........................................ e......................................... 8

Task 4— Conduct Agency Consultation..........................................................................8

Task 5— Administrative Draft Environmental Impact Report.....................................8

Task 6— Public Draft EnvironmentaE Impact Report...................................................I 2

Task 7— Prepare Response to Comments/Administrative Final EIR....................... I 2

Task8— Public Fina[ EIR................................................................................................... I 3

Task 9— Project Coordination Meetings and Project Management.........................I

Assumptions........................................................................................................................I 4

D.  Project Schedule. e......................................... o......................................... o...... i 5

E.  Experience........ oe................. a......>...>........................... o......... a........ a................ I 6

ProjectExperience and References................................................................................46

OtherExperience..............................................................................................................I 8

FB Conflicts of lnterest................o.......................... o............. o................>............ 20

C4.  Proprietary In ormation.... o... e....................................................................... 20

H.  I nsu Pance........................................................................ s......:.... a.................... 20

I.   Contract Ex eptions......................................o.....................,... e..................... 20

De Novo Planning Group

153



ii          City of Lathrog: Integrated Water Resources 1Vlaster Plan EIR Progosal

This page intentionQtly! eft blank.

De Novo Ptanning Group

154



City of Lathrop: Integrated WaterResources Master Plan EIR Prop sal 3,.  ,

l s   S Ji:i A i 11 11Wt.Y

XOJ S OIIl, .._.

We understand that the City of I. athrop ( City) proposes to prepare a Programmatic EIR for
the Draft Integrated Water Resources Management Plan.  For the past year, the City has been
working with its consulcant EKI to ptepare a comprehensive update to the City's water, sewer      . _
and recyeted water master plan docur ents in order to support growth in the City while
maintaining safe, reliable utility services for existing users. Collectively, these documents are
referred to as the City's lntegrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRPIP).

A comprehensive update to the City's water, sewer and recycled water master plan documenu
is needed to forecast and update water and sewer demand projections, address changes in

reguEaeory requirements, population and growth projettions, proposed land use, climate change
and other factors. TF e last comprehensive update of the City's water, sewer a d recycfed
master plans were prepared in 2001 and they have been amended numerous times. A Water
Supply Study was prepared and adopted by the City in 2009 to serve as the basis for futu e
water planning documenu. A drak Water Master Plan was prepared for the City in 2013, but
was never finalized and adopted. Over the course of time, numerous amendmen. s to the master

pians and changes have occurred that necessitate a comprei ensive update to these documents.

The IDraft IWRMP has identified signi icant changes from previously approved master plan
documenu. Same of these changes include:

Changes in demand faaors for vrater sewer and assotiated recycled water storage and

disposal capacity.
Changes in land use and growth projections from the General Plan.

Closure of the Sharpe Army Depot and need far City ta provide water and sewer service
to the AAFES and other organizations at the military base.
Potent al reductions eo City water supplies due to Sustainable Groundwater Management
Act implementation, and currailment of South San Joaquin Irrigation Disuict surface water

rights.    

Consalidation of existing p oposed wastewater veatment facilities into a single facility and
associaced rerycled water system used for land disposal of effluent

Need for additional treatment of groundwater for arsenic, manganese, uranium and other
constituents of concern.

De Novo Planning Group

155



City of Lathrap: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Proposal
G :,>,.._

F tO CrI' E S
m

i .      

rF°.    ; . .  ..   

De Novo Planning Group is a land use planning, urban design, and environmental firm serving
California communities fram our northern and southern California offices.   Our team has

successfully completed hundreds of projects consisting of environmental impact reports,
negative declarations, initial studies, NEPA analyses, climate action plans, biological assessments,

wetland delineations, general plans, specific plans, housing eleme ts, and development projects
throughout California. We have also served as legal support and expert witnesses for projects

which makes De Novo particutarly well- suited for this projece.
m.,   

Orx Te

Our greatest strength is that De Jovo' s principals have a proven track record of working to
complete environmental teview on budget ar d on time for many environmental projects
throughout California.     

An overview of our team is provided below. Steve McMurery will serve as the Project f" lanager
and the principal cvntact for the City.   Mr. McMurtry has significant experience providing
environmenta) sen ices to jurisdictions throughout California, including the Sacramento Val{ey
region. He has specifically been in olved in supporting law firms in litigation through legal
research and expert witness testimony in depositions and trial. Mr. McMurtry brings a wealth
of knowledge related to CEQA, which will provide instrumental in preparing a legally defensible
EOR. De Novo principal Ben Ritchie will serve as co- project manager and our team will b

supported by several technical team rnembers,  Beth Thompson,  Elise Ca roll,  William

Crenshaw, and Josh Smith.

e . 
1  \ 

r _   . . .     .,._.       ..--..—,.-.__-.,-_..:._

De,Novo,Planning Principal- m charge and    . Steve McMurtry, Principal      '
Project' Management

De Novo Planning Co-Project Management
Ben Ritchie,. Principal

De Novo`Plan nin     
Q ality Assurance/Control

S th Thompson, Principal

De Novo Planning Elise Carroll, Associate

Technical Assistance William Crens iaw, Associate  `

Josh Smith, Associate

De Novo PIanning Group

156



City of Lathrop: Integrated Water Resources Niaster Plan EIR Proposal u   ;  ,
E:-

D Nov DF e  ` Te _  1
P

y,       - r._. .;..:._. _  

Our project team is led by our three founding principals: Steve McMurtry, Beth Thompson, and
en Ritchie.  Mr. McNlurtry will serve as the primary lead and contact for t e City. Mr. Ritchie

will serve as co- project rnanager.

Sfeve McMurtry- Project Manager/ Principal Plrznner

Steve has successfully led multidisciplinary teams to complete
a    f:      a;,

hundreds of environmental, transportation and land use planning,
and development projects throughout California.   Steve' s

4 

experience includes service in engineering and planning firms, as   '    
well as m the construction industry.   His environmental a    

r."  "    
s`.

experience encompasses fietd research,   public outreach,

mitigation developme t,  document writing,  and permitting.    t  , '

During his tenure in the canstruction industry he was responsible       . 
far planning, design, and construction of projects valued over$ 300 million, which included the
construction of roadways, utilities, pump stations, parks, and trails. Steve graduated fram Cal
Poly San Luis Obispo with a bachetor' s degree in Natura) Resource Management with graduate
studies in Biological Sciences at San Jose State University.

Ben Ratchfe- Prirrclpal Planner

i
Ben is a Frincipa{ with De I Sovo and is responsible for the

u        I     4  

management of complex CEQA and NEPA projects, climate

action plans,  sustainable policy development,  general plan

updates,  specific plans,  redevelopment plans,  and municipal

service reviews. His experience includes residentiaf, commercial,
mixed- use,   transportation,   annexation and redeveloprnent

projecu throughout California.   Ben has served as an

Erevironmental Coordinator for municipalities, which included
p;      ,  

f oversight of an Environmeneal Planning Division.  Ben graduated
4       A._.

from Cat Poly, San Luis Obispo with a bachelor s degree in
Political 5cience and a Master of City and Regio al Planning ( MCRP) where E e received the
CaSifornia Planning Foundation Scholarship for Acadernic Excellence.

Betlt Thompsan - Principal Planner

Beth is a Principal with De Novo Planning Group with 20 years   ,,, 
of experience. Her primary responsibiiities include managing and
preparing CEQA and NEPA documentation for a range of project
types and managing long- range plannin projects.  Beth' s CEQA y

experience indudes residentiai and commercial developmenu,  y •`     i

resort,  hos ital,  and school ro'eets as well as lon - ran eP P I g g

planning projecu,   includi g general plans,   specific plans,

agricultural policies,  transportaeion and infrastructure,  and a;
r

housing elements. h-

De Novo Planning Group

157



y ;       

City of Lathrop: ntegrated Iater Resaurces Master Plan EIR Praposal

Elise C'arroll- Assaciate Planner

Elise specialiaes in environmentaf impact reports and urban planning for both the public and
private sactors. As an experienced environmental impact assessment practitioner (CEQA and

NEPA), Elise analyzes and summarizes the environmgneal impacts of existing and propased
developmenrs. On behalf of De Nov Planning Group. she regularly provides informative
research summaries and mitigation reeommendations to public and private agencies. Elise holds

a bachelor's of science degree from University of California, Davis in Environmental Policy
Analysis and Planning{ with an emphasis in Urban & Regional Planning).

Willirsm Crensha v--. ssocirate Plarzner

William is responsib(e for project support in the preparation of environmenral documents and
General Plans.  Wiiliam' s previous experience includes service with several nonprofit

environmentaf organizations and work in the construction industry. His expe ience includes
pub[ ic outreach, research environmenta) document writing, and poficy preparation. V1/ illiam
graduated from UCIA in 20l I with a Bachelor's Degree in Geography, and continued his
studies at Cal Pofy San Luis 4bispo where he received a Master of City and itegional P6anning.
Throughout his aeademic endeavors, Mr. Crenshaw+ received multiple ho ors including two
UC1.A sc olarship recognition awarcls as well as the 20l 3 Errett isher Foundation Scholarship.

Jash Sr tith Assaciate Plrznner

Josh and is responsible for the preparation of CEQA/ NEPA documents, climate change plannin

fo local governments, and the development of sustainability plans and reports. His experience
includes the development of Climate Actian Plans, Energy Action Plans, the assessment of air
quality and noise impacts n ise monitoring, and traffic cou t surveys. He has substantial
experience developing greenhouse gas ( GHG} inventories and context-specific GI-OG mitigation
m asures, as well as developing custom air pollutant emissions calculators for complex projects,
Josh graduated from UC l avis in 2010 with a 8achelor's of Science in Ea vironmantal Policy
Analysis & Planning.

De Navo' lanning Group

158



City of Lathrop: Integrated VJater Reso arces R Iaster Plan EIR Praposal k7   '

ET., ED C PE (' C

Natc The foltowfng scnpe( alkws the C+ty's Suggested Scope ofServices, with aa exception. To save the Gty vafuabfe( ees, we propose
w minimiae the namber o poper copy detiveroWes to the extent feasibte. We proposed tn detiver afl Adminisuative Dra(t deliverobles
in a efectronrc form and via email. We propose that the majority ojpubtic defiNerabks be proveded vio a CD and appropriate CEQ/l
notice( or pubtk distribution. We propose thot the City use their website cs the deartnghouse for aN loral agencies and interested porties
tn obtain un electronic copy aia dawnload. This scope divergence is estimated tn save ihe Gty over s2,000 ie printing ood shipping wst

n x

s _` ro# Des ripffi   d .t A   s _..
Y     ..    _...__.

Projeet Descriptian and Proposed 1. lternatives

De Novo will prepare a detailed description including text and graphics utilizing project
information provided by the City and Applican The project description will include a regional

and lacai setting, project history, description of existing and planned land uses, statement of
project objectives, and a description of project characteristics and impartant features. A

description of City discretionary actions and entitlemenu will be provided as well as a list of    -
responsible and other agencies expected co use the product document in decision making and
a list of outside agency approvals for which the prodnct document wiA be used. The Project
Description wip also include a proposed list of Alternatives. We will provide the draft project

desc iption to the City for review and comment. Upon receipt of comrnents fram the Ciry, we
will finalize the praject description for use in the Notice of Preparation ( NOP}/ lnitial Study.

Detiverables: One electronic copy afthe Project Destripiion and Attecnatives provided vio emoil
AA Administrotive Dra t dotuments wi11 be provided electronically in MS Word and/or PDF
formaL

I' k 2 Pr p No ofrP p. i a n,
t ,.. ,    M.. .  .  ...    aw r_ _ . u.  , _,  _  ,. . . ._      _  r,

Natice of Preparation/ Initial Study
De Nova wiil prepare the Notice of Preparation/ lnitial Study that will define the scope of the
environmental analysis. The NOP will pravide a detailed description of the Project The (nitial

Study and wi11 clearly identify environmenral issues that will be analyzed in the Draft EIR. The
General Plan EIR will be used to streamline the environmental review of the proposed Project,

where feasible and appropriate. The Notice of Preparatian/ Initial Study will provide a detailed
description of impacu that are anticipated to be less than significant or no impact and that will

not be addressed in detail in the Draft EIR.

We anticipate that the Initial Study/ NQP will scope out the following environmental topics:
Aesthetics, Mineral Resaurces, Recreation, and Traffic.

An administrative draft of the NOP/ lnitial Study will be prepared for City review. Upon two
reviaws by Ciry staff of the NOP and Initial Study De Novo wiU prepare the final NOP/lnitial
Study fo public distributic n by the City.

De(iverobfes: One electronic copy of Admin Droft lnitia! Swdy/NOP provided via emaif A11
Admirristrutive Droft documents wi!! be provided efectronically in MS Word and/or PDF format

De Novo Ptanning Graup

159



City of Lathro: Integrated Water R sources Nlaster Plan EIR PraposalE
4  ;    

De Novo wilt de iver frfteen (! 5) ropies to the State CJearinghouse for ublic review. We will

provide the City u i1! twenty{ 20) CDs for the City to distribute local y and to pface on the City
website. We will provide the City with an electronic copy afthe NOP to publish in the newspoper
and to deliver to the County Clerk

Notc We anticipate ihat the Gty will defiver the Notke ofPreporatien w the County Clerk and th local newspaper.

3— o dn S
o... . .    . .    ,       ,   ___._     .  ,_ y..      m  :

During tiie 30- day public review period foc the NOP, De Novo wi11 facilitate a scoping meeting.
The date, time, and location wikl be coordinated with' the City staff. The coromenu provided
through the scoping meeting will be incorporated into the Draft EIR.

Deliverables: One () pubfic scoping meeting.

w

T sk4;:  o i t=A C s a8       
w. m v     .. _.    _r  _        

f

Du ing the 30-day public review period for the N P, De Novo wiil consult with any appropriate
agencies or tribes. The appropriate list of agenciesltribes wil! be coordinated with the City staff.
The comments provided through the consultation will be incorporated into the Draft EIR.

Deliverables: Summary of agency commenu provided/ incorporated into ihe Draft E!R

T`. s 5c ,._„t w. .. ,  ` '

v< r_ ..E _.....__... 
y_ .... .   ,.. w.._..

The Draft EIR will be a Program EIR prepared consistent with the requirements of CEQA and
the State CEQA Guidelines. The Draft E1R wiU be a readable, useful document that clearly
describes the direct and indirect environmenta) effeets of the proposed Project The Draft EIR
wiU consist of the chapters described below.     

Executive Summary
This section wifl summarize the characteristics of the Project, describe areas of controversy
and provide a concise summary matrix vf the Project's environmenta{ impacu and associated
rnitigation measures as required under State CEQA Guidelines § I 5123. Alternatives to the

Project will be summarized and the environmentafly superior alternative wilf be identified.

Chapter 1: Introduction 

This section will describe the purpose of the E1R, CEQA Guideline5 and Public Resou ce Code
requiremenu fv a P ogram E1R, environmenta! issues addressed adequately nnder the General
Plan EIR, document organization, and the E1R rev'sew and certification process.

Chapter 2: Project Description

Tfiis section of the Draft EIR will consist of a detailed description of the Project, inctuding the
location,  proposed actions, construction and operational details, the project's goals and
object'sves, and the relationship of the project ta the Geaera! Plan. This section will also present
the City's and other agency invotvement in the project approval process. and the use of the EIR

De Novo Planning Group

160



City of Lathrop: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Proposal s9:   

by othe agencies. This section wifl be consistent with the requirements of State CEQA
Guidelines § 15 I 24.

Chapter 3: Environmental Setting, Impacts, and. 1 Iitigation 1bleasures
This section wilf provide the baseline setting, generat assumptions, and environmental analysis
used in determ9ning the environmental effects of the proposed projecG For each e vironrnenta{
issue area, the following key components will be discussed in detail:

Existing Setting This component will describe the existing environmenral conditions within
and around the City as they pertain to the Project and Project area.

Regulatory ram worfk—This component will address federal, state, and local regulations,

programs, and/or plans that apply to the Project De P lovo Planning Group will review and
summarize relevant federat, state, and Iocal laws and relevant programs and plans adopted by
resource agencies ( US Fish and Wildlife Service, US Army Corps of Engineers, California
Department of Fish and Wildlife, Caltrans), service providers, and the City ( General Plan,
Municipal Code. adopted plans and guidelines for traffic, stormwater, etc.).

Thresholds of Significance  —  Thresholds of significance will be identified for each

environmental topic based on the requiremenu of CEQA, City policies and standards, and
applicable standards of other agencies ( CDFW, Caitrans, etc.)

Irr pacts.and 1Nitigation Measures The analysis in the E! R wiN address t(}e following issue
areas:

8iological Resources: We wil{ run an updated database search. incfudBng a search ofi the California
Natural Diversity Database  ( CNDD),  the California Native Piant Society' s Electronic

Inveneoo-y, the California Wild6ife- Habitat Relationships database, and the United States Fish and
Wildlif Service' s list of special- status species with potentia) to occur in the region. Because of
the programmatic nature of the proposed project, we do not anticipate the need for field
surveys.

We will report che findings of the assessmene in an EiR chapter. This EIR section will present

the regukatory setting, including a summary of all relevant federat, state, and local ( aws and
egulations that apply to the protection of biological resources, and will provide an analysts

including the methodology. thresholds of signlficance, and a summary of local biofogical
resources, including descrlptions and mapping of plans communities, the as ociated plant and
wildlife species, and sensitive biologica{ resourc s knowrn to occur, or with the potential to

occur in the project vicinity. The biological resources analysis will conclude with a consistency
analysis, eumulative impact analysis, and a discussion off feasible mitigatian measures that should
be implemented in order to reduce impacts on biologica) resources a d to ensure compliance
with the federa6 and state regulations.

C Ir ra) and Tr ba! Caftura! Resources: We will review the City' s list of Triba{ Organi tions that

have requested to be consulted during CEQA projects. In addition, we will request a list from

De Novo Planning Group

161



10._  ,       City oFLathrap: Integrated Nater Resources Master PIan EIR Proposal

the Native American Heritage Commission. We will prepare letters that will be sent certified

mail to each Tribal Organization notifying them of the project and tf e opportunity to consult
on the praject if interested.  We witl coordinate with City staff relative to any Tribal
Organizations tbat respond with a consultation request and establish times to meet with and

accept comment from the Tribal Organizations.

The EIR section vvill include a cultural background, research and field strategy, regutatory
context, resulu of the resea ch, record search, and field work, results of tribal consultation,

conclusions and recommendations.

GeolopyLSails: The wark for this section will include a description of the applicable regulatory
setting, a description of the existing geologic and soils conditions on and around the Project
area, an evaluation of geologic hazards at the Projett area, a description of tF e nature and

general characteristics of the subsurface conditions within tE e project area, and the provision

of findings and potential mitigation strategies to address any geotechnical concerns or potential
hazards.

N zards/ d- lazardous Materials:   The De Novo team will prepare an environmenta! hazards

evaluation in accordance with accepted guidelines for the preparatio  of an EIR.  The

environmental hazards evaluation wil)  indade a review of hazardous site databases  ( i. e.

California Environmental Protection Agency's ( Cal EPA) Cortese List, Department of Toxic
Substances Control Envirostor, State Water Resources Control Board Geotracker, Cal- EPA' s

CAL-SITES Abandoned Site Program Information System).

This section of the EIR will present the methodology, thresholds of s9gnificance, impact analysis,
and a discussion of feasible mitigation measures that should be implemented to reduce impacts,

as applicable. Federal, state, and Covnty laws and policies that regulat hazardous materials use,
storage, and transportat'san, includ9ng fuels and other hazardaus materials associated with the
operation of the proposed fueting facility, will be described. The analysis will address potential
impacts assaciated with exposure to existing hazards and hazardous materials as haaards
associated with project construction and operation.  Based on the fndings in tf e evaluatian,

we will propose rnitigation, as appticable, to address identified impacu.

Flvdrofogy and Water QuolitX.: This section of the EIR will present the existing FEI"1A lood zones,
levee protection improvements, reclamation districts, and risk of looding in the project area
and general vicinity. We vvill consutt with the applicable reclamation district Ef needed. We will
also review the project plans and other existing information to evaluate the potential
construction and operational impacts of the proposed project on water quality. We will
describe the surface drainage patterns af the project area and adjoining a eas; and identify
surface water quality in the project area based on existing and available data. We will identify
303D listed impaired water bodies in the vicinity of the p oject area Conformiry of the
proposed project to water quality regulations will also be discussed. Mitigation measures will
be developed to incorporate Best Management Practices  ( BMPs),  consistent with the

require ents of the Regional Water Quaiity Control Board ( RWQCB) to reduce the potential
for site runoff.

De Novo Pianning Groug

162



r '      

City of Lathrop: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Proposal 1;. 

This section wrill provide an anaiysis including the methcdology, threshotds of significance, a
consistency analysis, cumulative impact analysis, and a discussion of feasible mitigation measures
that should be implemented to reduce impacu associated with hydrology and water quality.

UU7ities:  The Pr-oject would increase the demand for utilities, including water service, sewer,
storm water facilities, and solid waste collection and disposal. As part of the EIR work effort,

util9ty providers will be contacted to provide documentation regarding existing service levels,
equipment and facilities, curr-ent service capacity, existing serviee boundaries, and planned
service expansions. De Novo will review relevant master plans and environmental documents

prepared by public service and utility providers and the Project infnstructure and utility plans
and any capacity assessments to ensure that impacts are adequately identified and analyzed.

The EIR rwill describe adopted policies, programs. and standards associated with the provision
of utilities.  The anatysis of utitities impacts will identify the water, sewer, and storm water
improvements proposed by the Project, any additional im rdvements identified by service
providers, and wi11 determine whether significant environmenta! impacu would occur with

Project implernentation. lf significant impacts are identifed, appropriate mitigation measures
will be recommended.

Chapter 4:  Cumulative Impacts

De Novo will assess the impacts of the Project in combination with other known, app oved or
reasonably foreseeable projecu in the region and development forecast by the General Plan.
This analysis will be performed consistent with State CEQA Guidelines and be based on a list

of known development and planning projecu in the regian, development forecasu contained in
the City' s General Pian, as well as consideration of General Plans in the region. The analysis
will be based on existing available information and information developed for the Project in any
technica) eports.

Chapter 5:  Other CEQA Requirements

The chapter will address other topics required by CEQA including growth- inducing impacts of
the project,  significant irreversible environmental e fects,  a summary of significant and

unavoidable impacu of the project, and a sumrtaary of impacts that are less than significant or
of no impact

This section wiU also provide a brief analysis of topics that were determined to be less then

significant in the Initial Study. We anticipate that the Initia) Study will identify cereain CEQA
topics that will not have a significant environmentaL impact and will not require more detailed

analysis. The following is a list of those topics: Aesthetics, Agricultural and Forest Resources,
Air Quality, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy, Land Use and Planning, Population and
Housing, Mineral Resources, Noise, Public Services and Recreation, and Traffic.

Chapter$:      Alternatives Analysis

De Nava will coordinate with City staff in the development of up to three alternatives to the
proposed project We anticipate that the Alternatives will include: No Build, No Project

Existing Master Plans), and the Proposed project ( Proposed Master Plans). The alternatives

De Nova Planning Group

163



1  ,       City of Lathrop: Integrated Water Resources Nlaster Plan EI 2. Proposali_ :---,•: :

analysis in the Draft EIR wifl focus on alternatives that avoid or minimize environmental effects

as compared to the Project These alternatives will 6e described qualitatively. The alternatives
analysis vvill quaiitatively address the extent that the alternatives can achieve project objectives
or reduce adverse impacts in contrast with the Project

This analysis will be presented in a separate chapter of the E[ R and will include a comparative

matrix of the alternatives to the proposed Project based on the significant environmental effects

identified in the Draft EIR.

Chapter 7: Report Preparers and References

This chapter will identify all persons assisting in the preparation of the ElR as well as agencies
and materials referenceci for preparation of the EIR.

DeliverQbles: All Administrative Draft documenu wifl be provided electronicQlly in MS Word
and/ or PDF farmctt. Submrttal wiR be vio emoiL

as 6:  JPnb c      En a     a '  pa R. port   -       z._._.  _..__ _. e..... r--..._ ...  _;.: U .. ,_...    

Upon receiving a single consolidated set of commenu on the Administrative Draft EIR, the De
Novo team will make the edits and generate a " Screencheck Draft EIR" for City review before
Drak ElR production and public review. Our scope anticipates a second " Screencheck Draft
EIR" may be necessary to ensure all comments have been addressed.  Any fnal City ediu will
be incorporated into the Draft EIR. This scope assumes that no additional technical analysis is

necesSary as a result of the Administrative Draft or Screencheck comments. The Dra t EIR will
be provided to the City in electronic format for distribution to agencies and the public.  De

Novo will distribute copies to the State Clearinghouse on behalf of the Ciry.

Defiverobles: Fifteen { IS) copies delrvered by De Novo to the State Cleoringhouse. Twenry( ZO)
CDs Qnd fiae ( S) hard copies af the Draft ElR mailed to the City. We wi!! rovide the Ciiy wrth
an electranic copy ofthe Notice ofAvatlabirity to puhlish In the news aper and ro deliver to the
County Clerdc

Notc We anticipate that the City wifl defiver the Notice ofAvailobility m the ounty Qerk ond the local newspaper.

ask 7.  P   R. s o a.s to   ts/ A:    ,  : v' E     Ii
vt.<_n  ,, P_.       _  

M. ..     _    _.  ,o .. _._.    a.- r.._.:r   .  ..  .,    _       _   d

Administrative Draft FEIR

At the conclusion of the Drak EIR public review period, the De Novo team will respond co all

written comments on the Draft EIR received by the City, including verbal comments recordeei
at the public hearing.   The Final EIR document will include an introduction chapter that

describes the information provided in the doeument and summarizes the CEQA process for

the Project The second chapter will include the comment letters and responses to Draft EIR

comments. The third chapter will identify all revisions to the Drah EfR ( text to be revised will
be shown as an excerpt demarcated with underline for r ew text and+ I e g# for deleted
text).

De Novo Planning Group

164



City ofLathrop: Integrated Water R sources Master Pian EIR Proposal r 3: '

With respect to the Final EIR and Response to Commenu the De Novo team anticipates up
ta 20 comment letters of normal detaif ( one or two pages in length) and up to t 0 comment
letters of greater detail ( up to 10 pages in length), based upon our prior experience with

projects of similar scope. Excess comments and/ or complex comments that require additional

technical analysis will be considered outside of this scope of work and cost estimate.

De Novo will prepare a mitigation monitoring and reporting program ( INMRP) that describes
the mitigation measures that will be adopted in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on

the environment The MMRP will identify the tiRaing, responsible party, and implementation
actian for each mitigation measure in the EIR. The fNIMRP will be incorporated into the FEIR.

Deliverabfes: All Administrative Draft documents will be rovided elecironitafly in MS Word
andlor PDF formcn. Submittal wif! be vio emoil.

5. 

T s    Pnb '' EI$t

Finai Environmental Impact Report

The Administrative Final E1R wi{ I be submitted for City review.  nce we receive City suff
comments we will prepare a Screencheck version for City review. We assume one round of
City review of the Administrative Final EIR and one round of City review of the Screencheck
Final EIR prior to public ei ase.  1f'his scope assumes that Ciry comrnents are provided as a
single co solidat d set of commenu and that no additional technicaf analysis is necessary as a
result of the Administrative Draft or Screencheck comments.

The Final EIR will include a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and the Re ponse to
Commenu.

CEQA Findings: Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations
The De Novo Team will prepare CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding
Considerations ( Findings/ SOC) pursuant to requi emenu of Pubfic Resources Code §§21081
and 21094 and State CEQA Guidelines §§ 15091 and I 5093. The SOC wil[ tnclude specific

reasons to support City approval of the project based on the Final EIR and substantial evidence
in the City' s record. The FindingslSOC will be prepared using the format preferred by the Ciry
and will be provided to City staff for an administrative review. Comments received from staff

regarding the Administrative Findings will be incorporated into the final Findings for use by the
City at the public hearings.

Notice of Determination

De Novo will prepare the Notice of Determination ( NOD) for flling with the Counry Clerk
and State Clearinghouse upon Project adoptian.  7he NOD will be provided to the City in
electronic format for signatures and filing with the appropriate fees at the County Clerk. Our
scope does not include the fi[ ing fees. Once the NOD is signed, we wilE abtain a copy and
deliver it with the State Clearinghouse.

De Novo Planning Group

165



i  '         City of Lathrap: Integrated Water Resources Ivgaster Plan EIR Propasal

Deliderables: Up to twen2y ( 20) CDs and five { 5) hard copies of the Fno! FJR mailed to the
Crty. The Findrngs/ SOC wi!! be provided electronicully via email. One eleceronic copy ofthe NOD.
De fVovo wi!! subrnit the signed IOD to the SCH.

as 9`—P° je t C or a xox 1
w ... s;.: P, t IVt ge. t

The De iVovo team will attend the following rr eecings:

One ( I) kick-off conference call

One ( I) scoping meeting( shown under Task 3)
Monthiy call to discuss projea status
Two (2) public hearings

De Nova will be responsible far preparing and presenting the CEQA documentation at sraff-
Isvel and public meetingslhearings. We will be responsible for power poinu, handout materials

and graphics as needed. W/ e anticipate that the Project Manager will be required for each

meeting.

r:_ .     _. _ 
r    ..   

i

r S  .  IlS 1

This proposal is based on the following assumptions. We propose to prepare the environmental
documents based on the body of statutes, guidelines, and case law that are in affect at the time
the contraa is executed. Any significant revision to the project after Ciry and the Applicant
Team approve the project description is considered outside of the scope of this proposal. Any
additiona) wark t6 at is requested by City or the Project Applicant Team that is outside of the
scope of this proposal may require a contract amendmen Additional meetings not identified

in this proposal are outside of the scope, but can be accommodated on a time and materials

basis. We anticipate timely cooperat'son witfi the client, lead agency staff, a d other responsible
agency staf. If work is halted or delayed for thirty ( 30) days or more, De Novo shall be
reiunbursed for cosu to date and the time required to re-familiariz staff wit the proje ( n

the event that the enbironmental document receives a legal challenge, De Novo will provide

assistance to the legal defense on a time and materials basis. The City and Project Applicant
Team wilf provide the De Novo team with a single, consolidated set of comments on all draft
documenu within one week.  If additional time is needed to review documents. the schedule

shall be extended accordingly. The City and Applicant Team will provide relevant G1S data,
technical reports, and retevant City planning dacuments to the De Novo team promptly at the
start of tfie Project and throughout the Project as eports and documents are revised at no
cost

De Navo Planning Cyroup

166



r

City of Lathrop: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Praposal 5- 

I7.   PIZOJEC'I` C I.TI_,E

The following schedute would deliver the certified EIR under a realistic dmeiine based on the De Novo Team' s experience compdeting
comparabie EfRs, but there are numerous opportunities to expedite the pracess if desired, The De Novo Team is comprised primarily of
Principat- level" team members, which altows us to be extremely efficien. 7he schedule pravides the time necessary to complete administrative

draft and screencheck versions of each document, adequate time for City sraff to review each draft document, required statutory public review
periods, and public meetings/hearings. The tfineline does anticipate a prompt start date and timely cooperation by the City, responsible and
resource agencies, and utifity/service providers throughouc the process. To successfully deliver the project on time and on budget it is tmperative
that the De Novo Team receives one set of consolidated comments on each internal draft within the timeframe specified in the project schedule.

Tasks Weedcs 2018 2019

Project Kickol  1

Tnitial Study, NOP, Scoping Meeting 6      ,       Ql   

Administrative Draft EIR 20

i    :

4

Public Draft EIR 6 i: ; ,

Admiuistrative Final EIR 10

Puhlic F al EIR 6

Noticing/ Findings/ SOC/ Approval Hearings 6 x:

Project Mauagement and Administration

Oe Novo Team Work Penod e NovolCity Sta7 Conference Call

City Review f Public Nleetinglhlearing

Public Review Period W Public Re iew Document

AdminlScreen Dratt eocumen4 or Memo

De Novo Planning Group

167



7:6'  '       City of Lathrop: Integrated IJater Resources Iviaster Plan EIR Proposal

E CE

De Novo Planning Groap has considerable experience working on projects in the City of
Lathrop. We are currently in the process of preparing a comprehensive Generai Plan Update
ae d are very familiar with the land use and infrastructure throughout the Ciry.

d,      .  , ,_.     ,.    .    

P o, c en d Ref mc s
w.__  

The following is a select summary of recent EIR experience. These select projecu represent
farge cornplex planning projects that included community dpposition and potential legal
challenges. A more comprehensive list of other projects follows. We arg happy to provide
additiona! references if requested.

City of Lathrop, South Lathrop Specific Plan EIR

De Novo completed the EIR for the South Lathrop
F ",.,   <<  _

r^    Specific Plan ( SLSP). Seeve McMurtry led the team anci
Y

Ben Ritchie and Beth Thompson provided technical
a 

r.

4

support.  Encompassing 315 acres, the SLSP provides
a:-;,  ' .   infrastructure and services to adequately and

n, `_._"`..-.  ,,_.  !__.       a,  ,.      responsibly support development Land use
T : w    9-   -'   } '

n.   

designations within the Plan Area incl de commercia0
o`;'_"   

office ( 10 acres), limited industrial ( 222 acres), open
T ..,_..._._w  •..=-=_

space ( 31. 5 acres), and related public facilities ( 51. 5

acres}. The praject anticipates development of 4M square feet of employment-generating uses.

Reference:

Community Develapment Depare ent Rebecca Willis
390 Towne Centre Drive Community Development Director
Lathrop, CA 95330 209) 94 I- 7267

rwillis@ci.lathrop.ca.us

City of Brentwood, Priority Area 1 ( PA- 1) Specific Plan and EIR

De Novo is preparing a Specific Plan and Environmental impacti t         

g   ,;     '"    

Report for the Priority Area I ( PA- I). Ben Ritcfiie is leading the
j; _   Specific Plan project team, and Steve McMurtry is leading the

q;   EIR team.  PA I is a 373-acre project site located in the

T'    norchwest corner of Brentwood, and is a projected focal point
g    for jobs and mixed- u se develo ment The S ec ific Plan wi l fP P

1     ;  '   •   create the precise criteria for the growth and developrnent of

r  ,  . ;       PA- I by establishing a vision for the area,  ide tifying uses
ix- ,     °   

y      desired and allowed in PA- I, and plan ing for infrastructure
irnprovemenes to support future development

Dc Novo Planning Group

168



City of Lathrap: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Proposal I?  ,

Reference:

City of Brentwood Erik fVolthenius

Planning Department Planning P'lanager
150 City Park Way 925) 516- 5137

Brentwood, CA 94513 enolthenius@brentwood.ca.gov

City of Davis — Cannery Master Plan EIR

q,      
The De Novo team completed a detailed and complex

Y praject-levet EIR for the Cannery Project in C3avis. The
M

Cannery praject consists of redevelopment and reuse off a7'

1;      --   ''_"    100-acre industrial site, formeriy used as a tomato cannery_
The project includes approximately 550 residential units,
136 000 s uare feet of mixed commercial and o c s ace

r     -  
9 e P    

parks, extensive bicycle networks, and urban farm, and a wide3.} L

range of off-site infrastructu e improvements.  The project
a   '    

received an exce tionall hi h level of ubfic scrutin andP Y g P Y

i :# ._   underwent several significant changes during development of
Y  , #    

the EIR.  The project received an exceptionally high l vel ofy,.,

public scrutiny and underwent several significant changes

a., .
z.       during development of the EIR.  De Novo successfully

r r  - R-°   addressed a wide range af complex environmental issues in

the IR, and the EIR was successfully certified by the City Council in November 2013. The
American Planning Association has labeled the project as one of the most " Innovative Nevr
Smart Growth Communities" in the country.

City of Manteca Oakwood Landing Master Plan EIR
De NOVO Planning Group prepared an EIR for the

ir  {

m`"`    ,   

Oakwood Landing project in Manteca.  The project

encompassed 258.29 acres and included 290 high density
g        

residential units and up to 975 low density residentialf

q;   `; - `'` units. Additionally, the proposed Project includes 13. 0
a ,,,

Fk     ,,   ;;   
acres of general commercial uses anticipated to provide

3 _  up to approximately 237,838 square feet of commercial.

a y'    '    The Project would provide approximately I 6.06 acres of
ur `,    

parklan d and woul d maintain approximate ly 6.77 acres of
open space.

Referente:

City of Manteca Greg Showerman
Community Development Department Corremunity Development Director

OO l West Center Street 209) 456-8500

Manteca. CA 95337 gshowerman@ci.manteca.ca.us

De Novo Planning Group

169



f1$':`,       City of Lat u-op: Integrated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Praposalr. :_:«  

O r E'XpC1'1 Y e      ' 
k.__.____     t---. _.,__  _ .. .    . . .. .  _     .__..   _    

De Novo Planning Croup has prepared countless planning,  design,  and environmental

documents for projects since our incorporation. Additionally, the Principals have extensive
experience managing environmental documents while employed at large consulting firms. Below
is a brief list of projecu:

Hospital Projects

City of Jackson, Sutter Amadar Haspital Expansion EIR.
City of Monterey, tammunity Hospitai of Monterey Peninsula Expansion EIR.

Mixed Use Prajects

City of Manteca, 2016. Famity Entertainment Zone EIR.
City of Clearlake, Provinsalia Spec c Plan EIR.

City of Los Banas, Stonecreek Area Plan EIR.
City of Madera, Ventana Specific Plan and Environmental lmpac# Report.

City of Merced, 5- Srid es Specifit Plan and EIR.
City of Gilroy, Glen toma Ranch Specific Pian EIR.
City of Gifroy, Hecker Pass Specific Plan/ South Valley Cammunity Church EIR.
City of Turlock, Morgan Ranch Specific Plan EIR.
County of Monterey, Rancho San Juan Spetif c Plan EIR.

Schaols/ Parks Projects

Clty of Traty. 2010. Holly 5ugar Sports Park EIR/ Ei5( CEQA/ NEPA)
Stockton Unified School District. 2009. Franklin High S hoal Improvements Project MND.

5tockton Unified School District. 2009. thavez High School Improvements Project MfVD.

Novato Unified School District, Hamilton Elementary School Expansion Project MND.
Novato Unifed School District, PBC Partels 2 and 3 ( Charter High 5chool and Distrid Food anci
Maintenance Services) MND.

Energy/ Iine Projects

Shasta County. Z012. Ste ta Pacific Industries Cogeneratian Pfant EIR.
Imperial Caunty. 2011. Campo Verde Solar Energy Project EIR/ EIS.

imperial County. 2010. Centinella 5olar Energy Project EIR/ EIS.
Shasta[ ounty. 201Z. Moody Flats Mine EIR.

Kern County, Famosa Ethanol Plant EIR
Imperial County, Pacific Ethanol Plant EIR

Imperia) County, Cilian Ethanol Plant EIR

Commercial Development Projects

City of Lathrap, 2016. Pilot Flying J Travel Center EIR.
City of Modesto. 2010. Bertolotti Transfer Station IS/ MND.

City of Jackson, Home Depot EIR.

EI Oorado County, Circle K and 76 Gas Station EIR.
Imperial County, Calexico-Imperial County Enterprise Zone EIR.    

ty of Elk Grove, Laguna Ridge Town Centef Supplemental EIR.

Residential Develapment Projects

City of Manteca, 20i6. Oakwood Trails EIR.
Amador Caunty, Lake Comanche Mitigated Negative Declaration.

De Novo Planning Group

170



Ci of Lathro Inte ated Water Resources Master Plan EIR Pro osal W19 :tY p      '    p

City of Elk Grove, Be11 South Environmental Impact Report.

City of Elk Grove, High Density Residential General Plan Amendment and Rezone EIR.

City of Elk Grove, Sterling Me dows EIR.
City of Placerville, Fairway Pines EIR.
Colusa County, Reddington Ranch 5ubdivision Mitiga#ed Negative Declaration.

Colusa County, Steinbuch Subdivision Mitigated Negative Declaration.
Lake County. Valley Oalts Oevefopment EIR.

Mono County, Rodeo Grounds Specific Plan EIR.

fdevada County, Wnlf Creek Estates Revised Drah EIR.
Town of Trutkee, Gregory Creek IR.
Town of Truckee, Old Greenwood FEIR Addendum.

Town ofTrutkee, Tahoe Boca Subdivision EIR.

Specical District Projects

Paradise trrigation District. Z012. Water Rights Extension and Sphere of Snfluence Annex. EIR.

Pebble Beach Community Service District Facilities lmprovements CEQA Documents.

Nipomo Community Services District Expansion EIR.
Paradise Irrigation District, Water istriet Atquisition and 501 Expansion ND.

Transportation Projects

Butte County Association of Government. 2012. 2Q12 8utte County MTP and SCS EIR.
Butte County Assaci tion of Governments/ Caltrans. 2009. State Route 99/ Nea{ Road I tersection
P oject CEQA/ NEPA compliante and Caltrans technical studies.

Butte County Association of Govemment. 2008. 2008 Butte County RTP EIR:
Yuba County/ CaEtran. 2011. State Route 70/ Feather itiver Boulevard Interchange Project CEClp/ NEPA
compliance.

Nevada CauntyTransportation Cammission. 20 0. 2010 Nevada County RTP EIR.
City ofTracy. 2022. MacArthur Drive Widening Project CEQA/ NEPA compliance.
County of Fresno. 201].. Belmant Avenue Widening Project Natural Environmental Study.
County af Fresno. 2011. San Die o Avenue Widening Projec# Natural Environmental Study.
City of Jackson/ Amador County 7ransportation Commission. 2U12. City of Jackson Circulation
Improvement Program Environmenta! 5creening and CEQp.
Calaveras Council of Governments. 2012. 2012 Calaveras Co. RTP CEQA.

Maripasa County Transportation Commission. 2U12. Z012 Mariposa County RTP CEQA.
Amador County Transp. Cammission. 2009. Plymauth Transportation Improvement Project.
Amador County Trans. Commission. 2010. SR 88/ Plne Grove Corridor Imprnvement Project.
City of Manteca. 2009. Circulation Element Update EIR.
San loaquin Councll of Governments. 2011. SJCOG 2011 Regional Transportation Plan EIR.

Shasta County Regional Transportation Planning Agency. 2010. 2010 Shasta County RTP EIR.

Long-Range Planning
City of Campbell, 2016. Campbell General Plan Update.

City of Milpitas, 2U16. Milpitas General Plan Update.

City of Manteca, Z816. Manteca General Plan Update.

City of Sebastopol, Z016. Sebastopol General Plan Update.
City of Martinet. 2016. Martinez General Plan Update EIR.

City of Manteca, 2016. General Plan and Zoning llpdates for SB5 Compliance.
County of Colusa. 2013, Colusa County Zoning Ordinance.
City ot.Brentwood, 2013, Brentwood General Plan Update.

County of Colusa. 2012, Colusa County 2035 General Plan Update.

De Novo Planning Group

171



i

0`' ;       City of Lathrap: Integrated 7Vater Resources Master Plan ETR Proposal

City of Cotati. 2012. City of Cotati 2035 General Plan Update.

City of Foster Gty. 2012. Foster City General Plan Update E1R.

City of Lakeport. 2010. Lakepore General Plan Ar nual Report.

City of Ha1f Moon Bay. 2010. Half Moon Bay Sign Code.

City of Lakeport, Lakepart General P1an Update.

Housing Etements
Ciry of Lathrop. 2016. Housing Eleme t.

ity of Ripon. 2015. Housing Element.
City of Winters. 2013. Housing Element.
City of Navato. 2013. Housing Element Update EIR.
City of Half Maon Bay. 2010. liousing Element.
City of Cotati, 2012 Housing Element.
City of Brentwood, 2013 Housing Element

Town of Paradise, 2009 Housing Element
City of Escalon, 2009 Housing Element

City of Lakeport, 2009 Fiousing Element
County of CoEusa, 2049 Mousing Element

Expert bVitness Testinzany

We have served as expere witraesses and litigation support on cases for the following faw firms:

Best, Best, and Krie er- Sacramento

Richards, Watson, Gershon— Los Angeles

k'.    CC N E`. I` TS F II T' S'I'

C e Novo does not have any conflicts of interest

PI I'' X  '      O I'd

Nothing contained in this proposal is proprietary, and the proposai shaq become the property
of the Ci+.

I$. SIT T E

De Novo has the appropriate insurance coverage for general liability, auta liability, professional
liability, and workers compensation insurance to meet th City's requirements. The City wilf
be named as an additional insured.

Im     N EXCE' rIONs

We request no cantract exceptions.

De Novo Planning Graup

172



ATTACHMEN I c 

AMENDMENT NO. 4

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC.

BUDGET AUGMENTATION FOR THE

INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCE MASTER PLAN

PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

This Contract Amendment ( hereinafter "AMENDMENT") to the agreement

between EKI Environment & Water, Inc. (EKI) and the City of Lathrop dated May
2, 2016, (hereinafter" AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this May 14, 2018, is
by and between EKI, (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California

municipal corporation ("CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,   CONSULTANT is specially trained,   experienced and

competent to assist the City to provide engineering consulting services required by
this agreement; and

WHEREAS,  on May 2,  2016 City Council approved AGREEMENT for
CONSULTANT to prepare the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan Update

funded by two CIP' s PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08 for a sum not to exceed $ 750,000

to CONSULTANT; and

WHEREAS,   on January 12, ,2018 Amendment No:  1 was issued for

CONSULTANT to prepare the Wastewater Flow Monitoring Study not to exceed
49,500 and was ratified by City Council on January 29, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  on February 12,  2018 Amendment No.  2 was issued for

CONSULTANTto prepare a Hydraulic Modeling Evaluation and IWRMP Revisions
to include the California Military Department' s cantonment at the former Sharpe
Army Depot for a fee not to exceed $ 12, 100; and

WHEREAS,  on February 12,  2018 Amendment No.  3 was issued for

CONSULTANT to develop a tracking tool to compile and track historical water and
wastewater capacity allocations on a parcel level basis for a fee not to exceed

15, 500; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has provided a scope of work not to exceed

63,000 for Amendment No.  4 to provide additional engineering consulting
services to further develop the IWRMP during the final phase of the project to
complete California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) compliance and approval
of final IWRMP documents.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and CITY agree as follows;

Page 1 of 3

173



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC.

AMENDMENT No. 4 to AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.     Section   (1)   of the AGREEMENT for

Consulting is hereby amended as follows:  

CONSULTANT agrees to perform additional services in conformance with
the scope of work and fee dated May 1,  2018 submitted by the
CONSULTANT, attached hereto as Exhibit "A".

The aforementioned work is in addition to the scope of work in the original

AGREEMENT dated May 2,  2016 for the Integrated Water Resources

Master Plan Update.   The scope of work is hereby amended by adding
Exhibit " A".  CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in
accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and the CITY'S

satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.   Section ( 2) of the Agreement for Consulting
Services is hereby amended as follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 890,000

750,000 for the original AGREEMENT, $49,500 for AMENDMENT No. 1,

12, 100 for Amendment No. 2, $ 15,500 for Amendment No. 3, and $ 63,000

for Amendment No. 4) on a time and material basis as detailed in Exhibit

A".  CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings
containing all information contained in Paragraph 5 of the original

AGREEMENT. Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the
percentage of task complete.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled

to compensation for work not included in the original scope of work or this

AMENDMENT unless a written change order or authorization describing the
extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY'S Authorized
Representative prior to the commencement of the work.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of AMENDMENT No.  4 is May 14,  2018,  and shall

terminate no later than June 30,  2019.  All other terms of the original

AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect.

4)      Applicabilitv To Oriqinal Consultant Aqreement

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated May 2, 2016
are still in effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said
AGREEMENT is incorporated by reference herein.

5)      Siqnatures

Page 2 of 3

174



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC.

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT represent and warrant that
they have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and
to execute this AMENDMENT on behalf of the respective legal entities of

he CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the

benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective
successors and assigns.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lat p

z l
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop

Greg Gibson Date

Senior Civil Engineer

Approved By:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive,

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Erler & Kalinowski, Inc.

1870 Ogden Drive

Burlingame, CA 94010-5306

Fed ID #

Business License #

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 3 of 3

175



EXHIBIT 66   o,

environment

water
577 Airport Blvd. Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

650) 292-9100

ekiconsult.com

1 May 2018

Greg Gibson
Senior Civil Engineer

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Proposed Budget Augmentation for Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

City of Lathrop
EKI B8-090)

EKI Environment & Water, Inc. ( EKI; formerly known as Erler & Kalinowski, Inc.) is pleased to

submit this proposed budget augmentation for providing the City of Lathrop ( City) continued
support with finalizing the 2018 Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP). This budget
augmentation includes ( 1) additional scope items required to prepare the Draft IWRMP, ( 2)

technical support for the preparation of the Environmental Impact Report ( EIR) for the IWRMP,

and ( 3) as- needed consulting services to assist in finalizing the IWRMP.

BACKGROUND

EKI has completed the Draft IWRMP under a previously approved scope of work for Phase 2 of
the IWRMP dated 7 February 2017.  EKI is currently updating the Draft IWRMP under separate

scopes of work to incorporate both findings from a wastewater flow monitoring study and an

evaluation of connecting the California Military Department at Sharpe Army Depot to the City' s
water and wastewater systems.

Prior to formal adoption of the final IWRMP by the City, the IWRMP needs to undergo California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) environmental review.  The City and its consultant De Novo
Planning Group will prepare a Programmatic EIR for the IWRMP which is intended to meet the
CEQA requirements. The EIR is anticipated to be completed by February 2019.

In preparation of the Draft IWRMP, at the City' s request, EKI performed additional tasks that

were not included in the 7 February 2017 scope of work. In addition, the project duration was

extended due to difficulty in obtaining the required information from the City and other
stakeholders and as a result of extended City review periods. Therefore, a budget augmentation
is needed to cover the additional tasks required to complete the Draft IWRMP.  An explanation

of these additional tasks and the resulting proposed budget augmentation is provided in Task 1,
below.

The City has also requested assistance in managing the preparation of this CEQA documentation
to ensure that the technical materials in the document are accurately represented and any

Formerly known as Erler 8 Kalinowski, Inc.

Oakland, CA( 510) 560- 4822• Larkspur, CA( 415) 464- 9245• Sacramento, CA( 976) 905- 2388

EI Segundo, CA( 310) 857- 1600• Centennial, CO( 303) 796- 0556• Salem, NH( 603) 378- 2793

176



City of Lathrop environment
Budget Augmentation for IWRMP Waj'gr

1 May 2018
Page 2 of 5

proposed mitigation measures are appropriate (Task 2). This budget amendment also includes a

task for EKI to provide consulting services on an as- needed basis to address issues related to the
IWRMP prior to formal adoption by the City( Task 3).

EKI' s scope of work for the budget augmentation is presented below.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF Vi/ORK

Task 1— Bud et Au mentation for Additional Tasks Performed to Develop the Draft IWRMP

Provided below is a discussion of the tasks from the 7 February 2017 proposal for which
additional work was added to the scope after the approval of the proposal.  As a result of this

additional work, additional budget is needed to complete our scope.

Task 9— Phase 2 Prolect Mana ement:

This original scope for this task included eight (8) progress meetings and miscellaneous

project management tasks over the project duration. However, due to the extended

project schedule and coordination efforts, EKI participated in 11 progress meetings and

20 weekly coordination meetings. Additionally, EKI performed six more months of project
management tasks than originally anticipated. It is estimated that approximately$ 4,500

of additional budget was expended on this task beyond what was anticipated during the
preparation of the proposal.

Task 10— Phase 2 Stakeholder En agement:

This original scope for this task included two (2) group stakeholder meetings and ongoing
coordination. However, EKI participated in four (4) individual stakeholder meetings. In

addition, EKI performed the following additional stakeholder engagement tasks:
o EKI reviewed Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) recycled water infrastructure

plans, performed a preliminary round of recycled water modeling prior to starting
the recycled water master plan update, and prepared a technical memorandum;

o EKI prepared a revised South Lathrop hydraulic modeling evaluation technical
memorandum;

o EKI performed more extensive coordination with River Islands to obtain

infrastructure information;

o EKI participated in multiple outreach efforts with developers to verify
development and infrastructure assumptions; and

o EKI coordinated with Army & Air Force Exchange Services ( AAFES) and reviewed

their water demand and wastewater flow projection assumptions.

177



City of Lathrop environment
Budget Augmentation for IWRMP WateC

1 May 2018
Page 3 of 5

It is estimated that approximately$ 9, 000 of additional budget was expended on this task
beyond what was anticipated during the preparation of the proposal.

Task 11— Water System Master Plan Update:

In preparation of the Water System Master Plan Update, EKI performed the following
additional tasks that were not anticipated in the original proposal:

o EKI performed one extra day of hydrant testing because the meters provided by
the City during the first day of testing were determined to have been faulty;

o EKI reformatted all report figures at the City' s request;
o EKI prepared materials for and participated in multiple technical to present

findings of the water system master plan because of the extended City review

period and limited availability of key staff.

It is estimated that approximately$ 5, 000 of additional budget was expended on this task
beyond what was anticipated during the preparation of the proposal.

Task 12— Wastewater System Master Plan Update:

In preparation of the Wastewater System Master Plan Update,  EKI performed the

following additional tasks that were not anticipated in the original proposal:
o EKI revised and reran the hydraulic model and revised the Wastewater System

Master Plan to model wastewater flows from California Natural Products to equal

their available allocation instead of a calculated flow based on the industrial land

use factor;

o EKI reformatted all report figures at the City' s request;
o EKI prepared materials for and participated in multiple technical to present

findings of the water system master plan because of the extended City review
period and limited availability of key staff.

It is estimated that approximately$ 5, 500 of additional budget was expended on this task
beyond what was anticipated during the preparation of the proposal.

Task 13— Recycled Water System Master Plan Update:

In preparation of the Recycled Water System Master Plan, at the City' s request, EKI

performed multiple reviews of the Recycled Water Technical Memorandum prepared by
PACE. These reviews had not been anticipated in the original proposal. It is estimated that

approximately $ 2, 000 of additional budget was expended on this task beyond what was
anticipated during the preparation of the proposal.

178



City of Lathrop

I
environment

Budget Augmentation for IWRMP water

1 May 2018
Page 4 of 5

Task 14— Supqlemental Technical Services:

As part of this task, EKI was scoped with importing the City' s 2016 water billing data into
EKI' s database and adding this data to the water demand evaluation. However, the first

set of 2016 billing data provided by the City included an incomplete set of records in
October through December 2016. EKI spent additional effort above originally anticipated

to identify this missing data, process the preliminary 2016 demand factors based on
October 2015 - September 2016 data, and reimport and process the full 2016 data set

after an updated set of the data was provided by the City.  It is estimated that
approximately $2, 000 of additional budget was expended on this task beyond what was
anticipated during the preparation of the proposal.

In total, it is estimated that approximately $ 28,000 of additional budget was expended to

complete IWRMP Tasks 10 through 14.

Task 2— CEQA Support

The City has requested that EKI assist the City in managing the preparation of this CEQA
documentation. EKI CEQA support tasks will include the following:

Review of the project description for accuracy with the IWRMP;

Review of the Administrative Draft EIR for accuracy and applicability of proposed
mitigation measures; and

Participation in up to two conference calls with the City and' its CEQA consultant.

Task 3— As- Needed Consultin Services

EKI will provide consulting services on an as- needed basis to carry the project through the IWRMP
adoption by the City including regular communications,  project coordination,  stakeholder

outreach, and technical support on various water, wastewater, and recycled water planning-

related issues. For budgeting purposes, EKI assumes that IWRMP adoption will be completed
within by February 2019 and that no major revisions to the hydraulic model or IWRMP findings
will be requested by the City.

COMPENSATION

We propose that compensation for consulting services by EKI be on a time and expense

reimbursement basis in accordance with our current Schedule of Charges, dated 1 January 2018 .
Attachment B).   Based on the Scope of Work described above, we propose a total budget

augmentation of$ 63, 000, as shown by task in Table 1.

179



City of Lathrop

I
environment

Budget Augmentation for IWRMP water

1 May 2018
Page 5 of 5

Table 1. Proposed Cost by Tasks

r ,.,;a, d   ;    ;

Task Description Task Total

k. u

1
Budget Augmentation for Additional Tasks Performed to Develop the Draft

Zg 000
IWRMP

2 CEQA Support 10,000

3 As- Needed Consulting Services 25, 000

Total Estimated Budget 63,000

PROJECT SCHEDULE

EKI is available to initiate work upon receiving authorization from the City. This proposal coved
work through adoption of the IWRMP, which is anticipated in February 2019.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Except as specifically modified above, all other terms of our 2 May 2016 Agreement shall remain
in full force and effect. If this proposal meets with your approval, please send us an Agreement

Amendment to review and execute.

If this proposal meets with your approval, please send us an Agreement Amendment to review

and execute.

We are pleased to have the opportunity to continue to work with the City of Lathrop. Please call
us at( 650) 292- 9100 if you have any questions or wish to discuss these matters in greater detail.

Very truly yours,

ERLER & KALINO SKI, INC.

J n than Sutter, P. E.

P ject Manager

6%I    f /

Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

Vice President

180



ITEM 4. 11 i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       AGREEMENT WITH HYDROFOCUS,     INC.     FOR

WASTEWATER DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS PERMIT

COMPLIANCE

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving an Agreement with

HydroFocus,  Inc.  for Groundwater Monitoring and
Reporting Services for Waste Discharge

Requirements Permit Compliance for the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility for Fiscal Year

2018-2019

SUMMARY:

Professional services with HydroFocus, Inc. ( HydroFocus) are necessary to continue
providing groundwater and water supply monitoring and reporting services to
maintain compliance with the Waste Discharge Requirements ( WDRs) set forth by
the Regional Water Quality Control Board  ( RWQCB) to protect the public' s health

and the environment.    The proposed agreement is for HydroFocus to continue

groundwater and water supply monitoring services during FY 2018- 2019.    The

annual cost of these services is not to exceed $ 71, 090 in accordance with the scope

and fee proposal provided by HydroFocus Funds to pay for these services will be
included in the FY 2018- 2019.

BACKGROUND:

HydroFocus has been providing groundwater and water supply monitoring and
reporting services to assist the City of Lathrop in meeting the provisions of the
Waste Discharge Requirements    (WDRs)   for the Crossroads and Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility  ( LCTF)  wastewater treatment plants since 2005.

The RWQCB approved a new permit in May 2016 that consolidated the monitoring
requirements for the LCTF and Crossroads facilities under a single permit.  The cost

for the HydroFocus agreement for services needed for permit compliance for
groundwater monitoring and reporting requirements for FY 2018- 19 is $ 71, 090.

181



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COU.NCIL MEETIIVG

AGREEMENT WITH HYDROFOCUS, INC. FOR WASTEWATER DISCHARGE
REQUIREMENTS PERMIT COMPLIANCE

REASON FORRECOMMENDATION:

Groundwater and water supply monitoring services are needed for compliance with
the Waste Discharge Requirements ( WDRs) for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility  ( LCTF)  and Crossroads wastewater treatment facilities to ensure that the

City' s land application of recycled water does not degrade water resources.

HydroFocus has been providing these services to assist the City with permit
compliance with the WDRs since 2005 and has developed a unique knowledge base
of the City' s groundwater monitoring permit requirements.     Pending budget
approval, Staff requests City Council to authorize the City Manager to approve an
agreement with HydroFocus for the attached scope of services and a revised scope

and fee in order for HydroFocus to continue to provide groundwater and water

supply monitoring and reporting services for the FY 2018- 2019.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Public Safetv by maintaining compliance with Waste
Discharge Requirements which protect public health and the environment.

FISCAL IMPACT:

In accordance with the scope and fee proposal by HydroFocus, the annual cost of

services is $ 71, 090.   Funds to pay for these services will be included in the budget
for FY 2018- 2019 to be paid from Fund 608- 5034- 452- 2001 and Fund 605- 5031-
452- 2001.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving an Agreement with HydroFocus for Groundwater and
Water Supply Monitoring and Reporting Services for Waste Discharge

Requirements Permit Compliance for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019

B.  Agreement with HydroFocus for Groundwater and Water Supply Monitoring
and Reporting Services for Waste Discharge Requirements Permit Compliance
for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility for Fiscal Year 2018- 219

182



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUfVCIL MEETING

i4GREEMENT Ve/ ITH HYDROFOCUS, INC. FOR VI/ ASTEWATER DISCHARGE

REQUIREMENTS PERMIT COMPLIANCE

APPa20VA LS:

1- d`/ `/ b'

Greg Gi n Date

Senior Civil Engineer

I J
Cari ames Date

Director of Fina ce

12 1
Salvador V. Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s8

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

183



RESOLUTION NO.  18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

TO APPROVE AN AGREEMENT WITH HYDROFOCUS, INC. FOR

GROUNDWATER MONITORING AND REPORTING SERVICES FOR WASTE

DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS PERMIT COMPLIANCE FOR THE LATHROP

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018- 2019

WHEREAS, groundwater and water supply monitoring services are needed to
meet Waste Discharge Requirements   ( WDRs)   for the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility ( LCTF) that are set forth by the Regional Water Quality Control
Board ( RWQCB) to protect the public' s health and the environment; and

WHEREAS, HydroFocus, Inc.  (HydroFocus) has been providing groundwater
and water supply monitoring services to assist the City of Lathrop to meet the
provisions of the Waste Discharge Requirements   ( WDRs)   for the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility   ( LCTF)   and Crossroads wastewater treatment

plants since 2005; and

WHEREAS, the RWQCB adopted a new permit in May 2016 that consolidated
the monitoring requirements for the LCTF and Crossroads facilities under a single
permit; and

WHEREAS,  HydroFocus has provided a scope and fee proposal to provide

services for groundwater monitoring and reporting required under the new permit
for FY 2018- 2019 for a cost of $71, 090; and

WHEREAS,  appropriations in Fund 608- 5034- 452- 2001 and in Fund 605-

5031- 452- 2001, to be included in the FY 2018- 2019 budget to pay for the cost of
these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pending budget approval, the City
Council of the City of Lathrop approves an agreement with HydroFocus for

groundwater and water supply monitoring and reporting services for Waste

Discharge Requirements permit compliance for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019 for a cost not to exceed $ 71, 090.

184



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

185



r.c°   Q

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR HYDROLOGIC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

FOR GROUNDWATER AND WATER SUPPLY MONITORING AND

REPORTING FOR FY 2018-2019

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 1 st day of July, 2018, is by and
between HydroFocus, Incorporated (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a

California municipal corporation ("CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Groundwater and Water Supply Monitoring and Reporting for Waste Discharge
Requirements Permit Compliance, which will be required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Groundwater and Water Supply
Monitoring and Reporting for Waste Discharge Requirements Permit Compliance, as
hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform quarterly groundwater monitoring and reporting
for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility for the Waste Discharge

Requirements Permit Compliance in accordance with the scope of work and fee
proposal provided by CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit " A" and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession and CITY'S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 71, 090 (for the

services, time, and materials set forth in Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by
reference.  CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum due and payable
within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to
Paragraph 5 below.

186



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included

in Exhibit " A",  Scope of Work,  unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY's City
Manager prior to the commencement of the work. In no event shall CONSULTANT

be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit "A", Scope of Work,

unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra work and
payment terms has been executed by CITY's authorized representative prior to the
commencement of the work.   Payment is made based on a time and materials

basis.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is July 1, 2018 and it shall terminate no
later than June 30, 2019.  Additional extensions or renewals of this contract after

the first year of this agreement shall be based upon the agreement of the parties

at that time.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,
that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for_duplicate
services performed by more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the maximum amount of compensation
provided in section (2) for either task or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by
a properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessaryto enable CITYto monitorthe

performance of this Agreement.

2

187



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement.

The services shall be performed by,  or under the direct supervision,  of

CONSULTANT's Authorized Representative John Fio, CONSULTANT shall not

replace its Authorized Representative without the prior written approval by the CITY.

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S City
Manager.

CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated
and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors noted in the proposal, without

prior written approval of the CITY'S City Manager.

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections (a) through (c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the

subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made part of

this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT'S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.   Said Statutory
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance
shall be provided with limits of not less than one million dollars.  In the

alternative, CONSULTANT may rely on a self- insurance program to
meet these requirements provided that the program of self-insurance

complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor Code.  The

insurer, if insurance is provided, orthe CONSULTANT, if a program of

self- insurance is provided, shall waive all rights of subrogation against

the CITY for loss arising from work performed under this Agreement.

3

188



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance forthe
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto). 

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of
CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

4

189



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California-admitted insurers with

a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liability.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost
and expense, shall maintain.forthe period covered bythisAgreement

professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150,000 per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage.

5

190



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.    CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self- insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY's City Manager,  CONSULTANT may
increase such deductibles or self- insured retentions with respect to

CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  The CITY's

City Manager may condition approval of an increase in deductible or
self- insured retention levels upon a requirement that CONSULTANT

procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related

investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses that is

satisfactory in all respects to each of them.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  (a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement;

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

6

191



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibility

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that (a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, (b) CITY

relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful

and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.  It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised

of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT'S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY,  its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

CITY shall indemnify, defend, and hold CONSULTANT, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CITY, its employees, subcontractors, or agents.

11)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and

in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during the
term of this Agreement,  and that any applicable bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

7

192



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

12)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall
be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of

termination;  provided,  however, that the CITY may condition payment of such
compensation upon CONSULTANT'S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,
photographs,  computer software,  video and audio tapes,  and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSUL.TANT or the CITY in
connection with this Agreement.

14)    Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

8

193



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN: ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:   (209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:      HydroFocus, Incorporated

P. O. Box 2401

Davis, CA 95618

Phone:       530) 756-2840

Fax:   530) 756-2687

16)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these
specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

g)      Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

9

194



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be

performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a
legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

10

195



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non- prevailing party.

17)    Dispute Resolution

The parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of or
relating to this Agreement promptly by negotiation between representatives of
HydroFocus,  Inc.  and the Subcontractor who have authority to settle the
controversy.  Any party may give the other party written notice of any dispute not
resolved in the normal course of business. Within fifteen [ 15] days after delivery of
the notice, the receiving party shall submit to the other a written response.  The

notice and the response shall include (a) a statement of each party's position and a
summary of arguments supporting that position, and ( b) the name and title of the
person who will represent that party and of any other person who will accompany
the representative.  Within thirty [ 30] days after delivery of the disputing party's
notice, the representatives of both parties shall meet at a mutually acceptable time
and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to attempt
to resolve the dispute. All reasonable requests for information made by one party to
the other will be honored.  All negotiations pursuant to this clause are confidential

and shall be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of
applicable rules of evidence.

If the dispute has not been resolved by negotiation within forty-five [45] days of the
disputing party's notice, or if the parties failed to meet within thirty [30] days, the
parties shall endeavor to settle the dispute by mediation.  The mediation shall be

conducted by a professional or community mediation service reasonably acceptable
to both parties ( acceptance of which shall not be withheld unreasonably).   The

mediation shall take place in San Joaquin County no later than thirty[ 30] days after
the request of the mediation has first been made.  If the parties do not resolve the

dispute within twenty[ 20] days after the commencement of the mediation, only then
shall a party be authorized under this.Agreement to pursue other remedies available
to it under applicable law.   The forgoing shall not prevent a party from seeking
temporary injunctive or other equitable relief while the dispute resolution or
mediation attempts are pending. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses
in connection with the mediation except that the fees of the professional mediation

service shall be borne equally by both parties.

18)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written "Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

11

196



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

HYDROFOCUS, INCORPORATED

19)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorn

2 1
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: Cit r of Lathrop
Senior Civil Engineer

Greg Gibson Date

Accepted By
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   HydroFocus, Incorporated

P. O. Box 2401

Davis, CA 95618

Fed I D # 94-3289577

Bus Licenses # 12- 1432

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

12

197



XHIBIT"  / 

HydroFocus, Inc. Proposed Scope of Work

2018- 2019 Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Groundwater
Monitoring and Reporting,

City of Lathrop, WDRs No. R5- 2015- 0028

On May 2, 2016, the Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) adopted the new
Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) and Monitoring and Reporting Plan ( MRP) for

the Consolidated Treatment Facility (CTF). 1 The adopted MRP modified the monitoring
well network and reduced the monitoring and reporting frequency from quarterly to
semiannually, except for newly installed wells where quarterly monitoring was to
continue. On February 1, 2018, the RWQCB approved a change in the monitoring
frequency from quarterly to semiannually for four newly installed compliance wells
located at former LAS- 2 and LAS- 3. Two newly installed Central Lathrop Specific Plan
CLSP) wells still require five (5) more quarterly sampling events to reach the eight (8)

quarter minimum before a reduction in monitoring frequency can be requested. This
SOW is for continued CTF groundwater monitoring and reporting.

Task 1 of this Scope of Work( SOW) for the City of Lathrop is for CTF WDRs Permit
Compliance and includes:

Required annual and semiannual groundwater monitoring and reporting events; and

Required quarterly sampling of newly installed wells ( CLSP- 11 and CLSP- 12). These
wells were installed in August 2017 and sampled for three (3) quarters as part of the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CSLP) expansion. This SOW therefore also includes

continued sampling of these two wells ( including 2" d Quarter 2018) to maintain the
required consecutive quarterly sampling schedule for new wells. Additionally, other
CLSP monitoring wells will be monitored semiannually due to start- up of storage and
disposal operations in the CLSP area.

Throughout the performance period, HydroFocus is requested to review and provide

comment on issues related to groundwater conditions, the MRP, monitoring well
network modifications ( e. g., well destruction plan review, well destruction and
installation reports, and WDR and MRP review). Task 1 includes estimated costs for

these incidental permit compliance and report review needs based on requests from

previous years.

The City' s Engineering Feasibility Study Findings Report, Former Land Application Area
LAS- 2 submitted to the RWQCB in December 2016 recommended semiannual water

quality monitoring of down- gradient Mossdale wells MWM- 5, - 8, - 9, and - 13. During the

1 The WDRs have been revised and are scheduled to be considered by the Regional Water Quality Control
Board in April and could be adopted before this SOW goes into effect at the start of the new Fiscal Year

July 1, 2018). The tentative WDRs reviewed by HydroFocus, Inc. did not included changes that would
affect the MRP or this SOW.

1 -

198



2017- 18 Fiscal Year, the wells were monitored semiannually. Accordingly, Task 2 of this

SOW includes continued semiannual monitoring and reporting for these wells.

The performance period for this work is July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 and the cost
estimates are summarized below.

Task Description Cost

Task 1: One ( 1) annual ( Fall 2018) and one ( 1) semiannual (Spring

2019) Sampling and Reporting events for the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility; including annual well inspection, monitoring of

67, 110

CLSP area wells, and three (3) additional quarterly sampling events

for new CLSP area monitoring wells.

Task 2: Monitoring four( 4) existing Mossdale wells per the City' s
LAS- 2 Engineering Feasibility Study.      

3, 980

TOTAL 71, 090

Task 1: Groundwater Monitorin and Reportin for the CTF

For cost estimating purposes, we assumed monitoring and reporting for Mossdale, River
Islands, CTF/ MBR Facility, Pond S6, and CLSP Land Development Areas only. FGL

Environmental ( FGL) shall provide all water level and water quality monitoring data
collection and analytical services under this SOW. Accordingly, FGL provided to
HydroFocus the estimated costs to collect the required data in accordance with the

City' s approved Sampling and Analysis Plan ( SAP) provided in Exhibit A.

During the performance period, the WDRs require semiannual monitoring for the CTF
monitoring wells and quarterly monitoring for new wells CLSP- 11 and CLSP- 12. The
monitoring results shall be summarized in two individual reports (one semiannual report
and one annual report). The required monitoring and reporting schedule is as follows.

Year Report Months in Period Due Date

2018 Annual July- December Feb. 1, 2019

2019 Semiannual January-June Aug. 1, 2019

2 -

199



Groundwater monitoring includes water level measurements, water quality sampling
from monitoring wells, and water quality sampling from four recycled water storage
ponds. 2 Duplicates and blanks as specified in the approved SAP; a minimum of 10

percent of the total samples shall be field duplicates and a minimum of 10 percent shall

be field blanks. The sampling breakdown follows:

2018 2019

3rd Qtr
4th Qtr

1st Qtr
2nd Qtr Total

Annual)   Semiannual)

Water Level Measurement Sites 0
261 0

47Z 73

Well Sample Collection Sites 2 26 2 22 52

Pond Sample Collection Sites 0 4 0 1 5

Quality Control Sites 1 3 1 2 7

1.   Fourth Quarter 2018 water level data from wells not sampled by FGL will be provided by HydroFocus
as part of the annual well inspection.

2.   River Islands monitoring well water level data has been provided by River Islands' consultant( ENGEO,
Inc.). This SOW assumes River Islands shall continue to provide water level data for the Z018- 2019

performance period.

HydroFocus separated the CTF groundwater monitoring and reporting task into five
subtasks: A) Groundwater Monitoring and Laboratory Analysis performed by FGL, B)

Sampling Coordination and Oversight by HydroFocus, C) Well Inspection and
Maintenance Coordination by HydroFocus, D) Reporting by HydroFocus ( semiannual and
annual groundwater monitoring reports), and E) Groundwater Monitoring and

Reporting Activities for CTF Permit Compliance by HydroFocus. The estimated material,
labor, and analytical costs for the five subtasks are $ 67, 110.

z In addition to the monitoring requirements specified in the MRP, this SOW includes monitoring of
groundwater in select welis adjacent to storage ponds, sampling of recycled water storage ponds, and

analysis of wastewater indicator constituents. Monitoring of groundwater in welis adjacent to storage

ponds can identify possible leaks( for example in 2007, groundwater quality changes owing to a leak in the
Pond S4 linerwere detected in samples from monitoring well MBRMW- 1). Sample collection and analysis
of pond water provides the chemical composition of water applied to the LAAs, and wastewater indicators

stable isotopes and bromide ion) can detect the presence of recycled water in shallow groundwater.

3 -

200



A) Groundwater Monitoring and Laboratory Analysisl for 2018- 19 ( 4 events)

Task Cost( per event)
z

Total

4 events) 3

Field Measurements 1, 224 4, 896

Well Sampling 1, 283 5, 132

Pond Sampling 31 124

Field Filtering 456 1, 824

Water Level Only
Measurements4 156 624

Laboratory
Analysiss

Cations/ Anions 1, 646 6, 584

Nitrogen Constituents 1, 048 4,192

Total Coliform 527 2, 108

Total trihalomethane (TTHM)   850 3, 400

Wastewater Indicators6 638 2, 552

Subtotal 7, 860       $ 31,440

1.   Sample collection and laboratory analysis will be performed by FGL.
2.   Costs vary depending on event. Costs shown here are average costs for two semiannual events and

two quarterly events.
3.   Includes 2" d Quarter 2018 sampling and analytical costs for CLSP- 11 and CLSP- 12 to maintain the

quarterly sampling schedule required for new wells. Accordingly, these wells will be sampled for five
quarters.

4.   Water level only measurements during 4th quarter will be collected by HydroFocus personnel during
the annual well inspection.

5.   Includes minimum constituent list required by MRP as well as TTHM and wastewater indicators.
Hardness will be calculated from cation results.

6.   Wastewater indicators include stable isotopes.

B) Sampling Coordination and Oversight (4 events)

Task
Hours

Cost( per event)
Total

per event) 4 events)

Sampling Coordination/ Oversight 4 430 1, 720

During the annual sampling event, in addition to the active monitoring network wells, all

monitoring wells for which the City has approved access3 will be inspected by
HydroFocus personnel and identified maintenance needs communicated to the City of

Lathrop Public Works Operations and Maintenance Department. Inspection includes

collecting the annual water level measurement.

C) Well Inspection and Maintenance Coordination (1 event)

Task
Hours Cost Total

per event)     ( per event)       ( 1 event)

Well Inspection and Maintenance Coordination 68 7, 110 7, 110

3 These include North Lathrop and South Lathrop monitoring wells

4 -

201



During the performance period, one annual and one semiannual report shall be
prepared and submitted to the City. A draft semiannual report shall be provided
electronically to the City for review at least 5 working days prior to the report due date.
The final semiannual report shall be submitted by HydroFocus to the City for submittal
to the RWQCB by the City. A draft annual report shall be provided to the City
electronically 10 days prior to the report due date; the final annual report shall be
provided to the City electronically five days prior to the report due date to facilitate
production and submittal to the RWQCB by the City.

D) Reporting( 2 reports)

Task
Hours

Cost( per report)       
Total

per report) 2 reports)

Data entry and QA/ QC 32 2, 573 5, 146

Figures and maps 10 878 1, 756

Analysis and reporting 61 8, 339       $ 16, 678

Production and distribution 3 380 760

Subtotal 106 12, 170       $ 24,340

This scope does not include the collection and reporting of additional non- groundwater
data required for the CTF Annual Report ( i. e., pond and land application data,

summaries of sludge and/ or solid waste disposal, sludge monitoring results, copies of
plant operator certification, and forecasted plant flows).

E) Groundwater Monitoring and Reporting Activities for CTF Permit Compliance

Throughout the performance period, HydroFocus is requested to review and provide

comment on issues related to groundwater conditions, the MRP, monitoring well

network modifications, and so forth. This typically includes tasks such as review of well
destruction plans, well destruction and installation reports, and WDR and MRP review.

Estimated costs for Permit Compliance and Report Review based on past requests is

2, 500.

Task 2: Monitoring at four Mossdale wells per En ineerin Feasibilitv Studv, pendin

approval bV RWQCB

As part of the City' s Engineering Feasibility Study Findings Report, Former Land
Application Area LAS-2, four (4) down- gradient Mossdale monitoring wells were
recommended for semiannual water quality monitoring (MWM- 5, - 8, - 9, and - 13).

This task includes costs associated with: A) Groundwater Monitoring and Laboratory

Analysis performed by FGL, and B) Reporting by HydroFocus ( included in semiannual
and annual groundwater monitoring reports).

Groundwater monitoring includes water level measurements and water quality
sampling from the monitoring wells. As part of the CTF monitoring and reporting (Task

5 -

202



1), well MWM- 5 is sampled annually, therefore this task includes one additional
monitoring event for well MWM- 5, and both annual and semiannual monitoring events
for wells MWM- 8, - 9, and - 13. The semiannual event will only include analysis for a
partial list of monitored constituents. Duplicates and blanks shall be coilected as

specified in the approved SAP; a minimum of 10 percent of the total samples shall be

field duplicates and a minimum of 10 percent shall be field blanks. The total estimated

sampling and analytical cost is$ 1, 930 ($ 965 per event).

During the performance period, results from Task 2 groundwater monitoring will be
included in the annual and semiannual CTF monitoring reports. Estimated cost for Data

Entry, QA/ QC, analysis, and incorporation into the report is $ 2, 050 ($ 1, 025 per report).

The total estimated cost for this task is$ 3, 980.

Groundwater Monitoring, Laboratory Analysisl, and Reporting for 2018- 19 ( 2 events)

Task Cost( per event)
Z

Total

2 events)

Field Measurements 291 582

Well Sampling 333 666  ,

Field Filtering 88 176

Laboratory
Analysis3

Cations/ Anions 209 418

Nitrogen Constituents 42 84

Sampling and Analytical Subtotal 965 1, 930

Reporting 1, 025 2, 050

Subtotal 1, 980 3, 980

1.   Sample collection and laboratory analysis will be performed by FGL.
2.   Costs vary depending on event. Costs shown here are average costs for two semiannual events.
3.   Minimum constituent list required by Engineering Feasibility Study. Semiannual analysis of TDS, Na,

CI, and NOs and annual analysis of standard cation/ anions as required by the MRP.

6 -

203



Exhibit A

I. Groundwater Sampling and Analysis Plan (SAP)

Water levels and well-water samples shall be collected from approved wells and

reported quarterly to the RWQCB.  Data collection shall utilize the protocols

described in this Groundwater Sampling and Analysis Plan ( SAP).

Groundwater Samplinq Plan

Quarferly groundwater sample collection, handling, and sampling procedures
shall utilize the following protocols

8.

1.  A "Well Purging and Sample Log" shall be completed for each sampling
site.  An example log is included in Appendix A.

2.  Measure water levels in well upon arrival at the site.  Water levels are

measured by electronic sounding or steel tape and recorded to the
nearest 0. 01 feet. The sounder or tape is cleaned with dilute bleach

solution prior to each use to minimize coliform contamination. Calculate

volume of water contained in casing.

3.  Calibrate the multi- meter probes at each site using appropriate standards.
Preliminary measurements of specific conductance are made to select the
calibration standard closest to the specific conductance of the well water

within 125- 1, 500 µ S/ cm, depending on the well water conductance).

4.  The wells are purged and sampled using a submersible pump and
dedicated plastic tubing at each well.  The submersible pump is triple-
rinsed with de- ionized water between wells.  Evacuate a minimum of three

well casing volumes from each well prior to collecting the sample.  Field

parameters ( pH, specific conductance, temperature, dissolved oxygen,

and oxidation- reduction potential) are monitored using a multi- meter and
flow cell during purging ( i. e., at the beginning and then following each
casing volume).  Stabilization of these parameters indicates the collected

water is representative of groundwater.

5.  If well yield is insufficient to produce three-casing volumes in a reasonable
time, the well shall be evacuated and then sampled after recovery.

6.  When conditions allow, purge water will be spread on land or the disposal

area.  Otherwise, purge water will be collected in a tank or drum and

transported for spreading at the nearest disposal field.

U. S. Geological Survey, 1978, National Handbook of recommended methods for water-data
acquisition.

8 Wood, W.W., 1981, Guidelines for collection and field analysis of groundwater samples for
selected unstable constituents, U. S. Geol. Survey Techniques of Water Resources Investigations,
Book 1, Chapter d2.

9 -

204



7.  Following the collection of all other samples, the submersible pump is
removed and the sample for total coliform analysis is collected.  The

coliform analysis sample is collected using a new disposable bailer at
each well.

8.  Samples to be analyzed for dissolved constituents are filtered in the field

using 0. 45- m capsule filters. The capsule filters are certified to meet EPA

standards for trace metal analysis. Sample bottles and sampling
equipment are rinsed thoroughly three times with the water to be sampled
prior to sample collection. Bottles pretreated with preservatives are not

rinsed prior to sample collection.  Clear sample bottles and vials may be
used for all constituents, with the exception of trihalomethanes, EDTA,

and caffeine which require amber bottles.

9.  General sample processing and treatment instructions follow.

Filtered samples for TDS are collected in 250-mL polyethylene bottles and

immediately placed on ice.

Filtered samples for cations and metals are collected in 250-mL

polyethylene bottles, acidified in the field with nitric acid added to obtain a

pH of less than 2, and immediately placed on ice.

Filtered samples for anions are collected in 250-mL polyethylene bottles

and immediately placed on ice.

Filtered samples for nitrogen, ammonia, and phosphate are collected in

500- mL polyethylene bottles, acidified with sulfuric acid to a pH of less

than 2, and immediately placed on ice.

Unfiltered samples for total coliform are collected in 125- mL plastic bottles

containing a dechlorinating agent added by the laboratory and
immediately placed on ice.

Alkalinity is determined by the lab on unfiltered samples. The sample is
collected in a 250-mL polyethylene bottle and placed on ice.

Unfiltered samples for trihalomethanes are collected in 40 mL amber glass

vials supplied by the lab and pretreated with sodium thiosulfate. Vials are
filled to the rim with no air bubbles present when sealed.

Unfiltered samples for the determination of stable oxygen- 18 and

deuterium isotopic composition are collected in 250-mL polyethylene

bottles.

10 -

205



Filtered samples for boron stable isotope analysis are collected in 250-mL

polyethylene bottles.  The caps are sealed with tape.

Filtered samples for EDTA analysis are collected in 1000- mL I- Chem

Series 200 amber glass bottles.  The sample bottle is filled to the bottom

of the bottle neck, placed on ice and sent immediately to the analyzing
laboratory.   

Unfiltered samples for caffeine analysis are collected in two 1000-mL

amber pre- preserved glass bottles.  The sample bottle is filled to the top
leaving no head space.  The bottle is placed on ice and immediately
shipped to the analyzing laboratory.

10. Field personnel collect ten percent of the total samples for quality assurance
purposes (duplicate and field blank samples).  Duplicate samples are

collected and processed in the field and analyzed to evaluate the

heterogeneity of the matrices.  The duplicate samples are submitted to the

laboratory with dummy site identifiers.  Field blank samples are processed in

the field identically as the other samples using de- ionized water as sample
water.  The field blank samples are submitted to the laboratory with dummy
site identifiers

11. A11 samples are to be promptly delivered to the analytical laboratory under
standard chain- of-custody control for analysis within the prescribed holding
times.

Constituent Analvsis Plan

Table 2 below reports the constituent list, sample processing, and analytical
methods. The list was developed as follows.

Field parameters collected during sampling to confirm water produced is
representative of groundwater.

Constituents of concern identified in the Waste Discharge Requirements

under Groundwater Limitations.

Constituents of concern identified in the Waste Discharge Requirements

under the Groundwater Monitoring and Reporting Program.

Constituents reportedly detected in monitoring well water samples at levels
that exceed State and/ or Federal EPA MCL's.

Constituents commonly found in wastewater.

11 -

206



Most constituents listed in Table 2 occur naturally in the environment.  Because

well water may represent a mixture of pre-project groundwater and reclaimed
water, it can be advantageous to distinguish between natural changes in

constituent concentrations from those directly attributed to land disposal of
treated wastewater.  A partial list of possible indicator parameters includes:

Chloride, bromide, 
fluoride9 o

Caffeine

Ethylenediaminetetraacetic acid ( EDTA)
1z.

Stable isotopes of oxygen and hydrogen 3.
Boron isotopes

a

Reliable indicator parameters can be identified by conducting a reconnaissance
of pre- project groundwater, San Joaquin River water (the historical irrigation
water source), municipal supply water, and reclaimed water.  The most
successful indicators can then be included as part of the monitoring program to
identify water samples influenced by reclaimed water.

9

Stanley N. Davis, Donald O. Whittemore, and June Fabryka- Martin, " Uses of Chloride/ Bromide
Ratios in Studies of Potable Water", Journal of Ground Water, 1998, pp. 338-350.
10 Avner Vengosh and Irena Pankratov, "Chloride/ Bromide and Chloride/Fluoride Ratios of
Domestic Sewage Effluents and Associated Contaminated Ground Water", Journal of Ground

Water, 1998, pp. 815- 824.
Ralph L. Seiler, Steven D. Zaugg, James M. Thomas, and Darcy L. Howcroft, "Caffeine and

Pharmaceuticals as Indicators of Waste Water Contamination in Wells", Journal of Ground Water,

1999, pp. 405- 410.
Z Barber, Larry, II. And others, "Organic Constituents that Persist During Aquifer Storage and

Recovery of Reclaimed Water in Los Angeles County, California", in Conjuctive Use of Water
Resources, Aquifer Storage and Recovery, AWRA Symposium Proceedings, 1997.
13 R. Aravena, M. L. Evans, and J. A. Cherry, "Stable Isotopes of Oxygen and Nitrogen in Source
Identification of Nitrate from Septic Systems", Journal of Ground Water, 1993, pp. 180- 86.
14 A. Vengosh, K. G. Heumann, S. Juraske, and R. Kasher, "Boron Isotope Application for Tracing
Sources of Contamination in Groundwater", Environmental Science and Technology, 1994, pp.
1968-74.

12 -

207



Table 2. Constituent List, Sam le Processin and Anal tical Methods.

Constituent Samplinq Analvtical

Mefer/

o EPA Recommended
Name Units Processing Container Preservative

Standard Defection Limit

Method

YSI Model

A
pH2

u HS Unfiltered None None 556 MPS 0. 01

meter

YSI Model

B
Temperature2      °

C Unfiltered None None 556 MPS 0. 1

meter

Electrical
YSI Model

B
ConductivityZ    µ S/cm Unfiltered None None 556 MPS 10

meter

Dissolved
YSI Model

B
Oxygenz mg/ L Unfiltered None None 556 MPS 0. 1

meter

Oxidation-     YSI Model

B Reduction mV Unfiltered None None 556 MPS 0. 1
Potential2

meter

Total
250 mL

A Dissolved mg/ L Filtered
polyethylene

None SM 2540C 10

Solids

Standard
250 mL

Cations3 mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200.7 0. 5

a)

Standard
250 mL

Anions4 mg/ L Filtered polyethylene None 300. 0 1

b)

Alkalinity 250 mL
C    ( HCO3i CO3,      mg/ L Unfiltered

polyethylene
None 2320B 10

OH and total)

A CIform
MPN/     

Unfiltered
125 mL

chloDnating SM 9221 B 2

Organisms
100 ml plastic

agent

Ammonia as
500 mL

A
N

mg/ L Filtered polyethylene H2SO4 350. 1 0. 1

c)

Nitrate as
500 mL

A
Nitrogen

mg/ L Filtered polyethylene H2SO4 353.2 0. 1

c)

Nitrate +    500 mL

A Nitrtte as mg/ L Filtered polyethylene H2SO4 353.2 0. 1

Nitrogen

Total Kjeldahl
500 mL

Nitrogen
mg/ L Filtered polyethylene H2SO4 351. 2 0. 1

c)

13 -

208



Table 2 cont.  Constituent List, Sam le Processin and Anal tical Methods.

Constituent Samplinq Analvtical

Meter/

o EPA Recommended
Name Units Processing Container Preservative

Standard Detection Limit

a Mefhod

Trihalomethanes 40 mL VOC
totals E g/ L Unfiltered

amber vial ( d)      
NaZS203 524. 2 0. 5

A Bromoform    µ g/ L Unfiltered
40 mL VOC

NazSz03 524. 2 0. 5
amber vial d)

A
Bromodichloro-    µ

9     Unfiltered
40 mL VOC

NaZSz03 524. 2 0. 5
methane amber vial ( d)

A Chloroform    µ g/ L Unfiltered
40 mL VOC

NazSz03 524.2 0. 5
amber vial d

A
Dibromochloro-    µ

9     Unfiltered
40 mL VOC

NazSz03 524.2 0. 5
methane amber vial ( d)

500 mL

D ortho-Phosphate mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HzSO4 365. 1 0. 05

c)

250 mL

D Fluoride mg/ L Filtered polyethylene None 300. 0 0. 05

b)

D Bromide mg/ L     Filtered
250 mL

None 300. 1 0. 01
ol eth lene

250 mL
A Boron mg/ L Filtered polyethylene None 200. 7 0. 01

a

250 mL

E Arsenic mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 008

a

250 mL

E Chromium —total mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 005

a)

250 mL

E Barium mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 001

a

250 mL

E Thallium mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 001

a

250 mL

A Iron mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 7 0. 02

a

250 mL

A Manganese mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 001

a

250 mL
E Aluminum mg/ L     Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 01

a)

14 -

209



Table 2.  cont.  Constituent List, Sam le Processin and Anal tical Methods.

Constituent Samplinq Analvtical

Meter/ EPA
o Recommended

Name Units Processing Container Preservative Standard
Detecfion Limit

Method

250 mL

E Lead mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 001

a)

250 mL

E Nickel mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 002

a)

250 mL

E Zinc mg/ L Filtered polyethylene HNO3 200. 8 0. 01

a)

p
Oxygen-   Per

Unfiltered
250 mL

None
Mass

0. 1
18/ Deuterium mil polyethylene Spectrometry

D Boron- 11
Per

Filtered
250 mL

None
Mass

0. 1
mil pol eth lene Spectromet

Caffeine g/ L Unfiltered
2- 1000 mL

HCI 525. 2 0. 05
amber lass

Gas

D EDTA g/ L Filtered
1000 mL

None Chromatography 0. 1
amber glass Mass

S ectromet

Purpose for including constituent:
A- Specified in WDR' s Groundwater Limitations.

B- Field parameters.

C - Specified in WDR's Groundwater Monitoring and Reporting Program requirements.
D - Wastewater and/ or potential recycled water indicator.

E- Detected in previous monitoring data at levels that exceed MCL' s.

Footnotes in Table:

Some constituent groups are typically analyzed from a single sample container. These
groups are identified using a common letter in the container column: ( a), ( b), ( c) or( d).

Sample volumes should always be verified with the laboratory prior to sample collection.
Clear containers may be used for all constituents with the exception of TTHMs, caffeine, and
EDTA which require amber vials and bottles, respectively.

Z
pH, Temperature, Electrical Conductivity, Dissolved Oxygen, and Oxidation- Reduction
Potential should be measured immediately in the field.

3
Standard Cations include calcium, magnesium, sodium and potassium.

4
Standard Anions include Chloride and Sulfate.

5
EPA Method 8260B is for solid waste; the equivalent method for water is EPA Method 524.2.

15 -

210



C     ,  

4,    1`    

K    

t        

l

j
T

MWM- 25
m„.\..,

f

MWM- 23
a.   

MWM- 24      ,. f.`. ,   
MWM- 26v r„

L 
MWM- 21

MWM- 22      
MWM- 20 MWM_  :

g

MWM- 16      MWM-17

r'

MWM- 15

MWM- 14 MWM- 12

MWM- 11

EXPLANATION MWM- 13

Monitoring Well
MWM- 10 c a"       

r

Approved Network

Other
MWM7

MWM- 6
MWM- 8Disposal Area F_:;= i:       •

j' T MWM- 9
Existing Agricultural T

Existin Landsca e
y    ' y  

n 9 P

Existing Storage Pond MWM-4     MWM-5

Planned Landscape
MWM- 2

MWM-

1
r

MWM- 1

0 1, 000 2, 000

I i i i I i i i I

Feet

HYDR FOCUS?      Monitoring Wells and Existing and Planned Disposal Figure

Areas, Mossdale. 3( b)

PROJECT: 5023 DATE: 1/ 31/ 07

211



Rr'., 

OId    ... Y Jo

MVN2- 10
G    " U.    . j  < r. j-.

a; i
MWR-9

r

i      „ . 
i yr

r*

Sfe
e5¢ 

M WR-8      
e i

N

drtAve_ 
Qaa.'     ti    _.  ,

l
MWR

30r,-     
w. 

ohe
R      ?.

i       

r  -:-' 
MWR-29J a

o,
h

r.     ;:       

r
a'

r
1

a" a   ,....+   
t ,    J  e "_._,` 

A30)  .  MWR27
i

c,.   e,,.  

O   MWR- 32 MVJR- 28
4_  

A31)     •    
s MWR- 7

If J,. y«br1 i MWR- 12            
G

EXPLANATION
Mwa- 3,    r.;

Monitoring Well 4<

F

M  

HApproved Network
j

i t.     .Olher s-       

MWR- 2          

L,C.
Surface Water Monitoring Site I

Drainage Ditch y,;....   M R_5

r'f

Disposal Area j F   - `
y 

M      . I

ExistingAgricultural w         

1 '  
Planned Agricultural j       MwR-a          

z       V 
ti

Planned Landscape a ,  

c,;       
E

Planned Storage Pond zx~:  

Mwrt- i

MWR-3  `       
s MWR- 26

io,_       
o

MWR- 25   MwR- 2a e-
oe

A28)   a°j  .
0 2, 500 5, 000 r'° `

l i i i I i i i I

Feet
MwR-23

1

HYDROFOCUS?       Monitoring Sites and Existing and Planned Disposal Areas, River Islands.      Figure

3( c)

PROJECT: 5023 DATE: 1/ 31/ 07

212



v

G'alifarnia

Natural o

Praducts

CNPj i

Lathrop Rd.      

i      RMW-3     
o ' c,

Im
i`<      
D

m

RMW-2
RMW-1

i

i

j

I
RMW-5

I

Pond S6

RMW-4

i,

Califorriia
EXPLANATION Natura

Monitoring Well i
Products

CNP)

Approved Network I Application

i Areas

Other

i

Existing Storage Pond

s

Planned Storage Pond

i

0 500 1, 000

I           I            I Louise Ave.
Feet

YDR4Focus? Monitoring Wells and Existing and Planned Disposal Figure

Ponds, East Lathrop Area.    3(d)

PROJECT: 5023 DATE: 1/ 31/ 07

213



EXPLANATION

Monitoring Well
Approved Network

Other

Disposal Area

Existing Agricultural

Existing Storage Pond

Planned Storage Pond

0 500 1, 000

I i I I

Feet

IVyWM- 9

MWM- 8  

KMW-

MBRMW-  
V111HM/ 5

i

MBRMW- 1

BRMW-3

MBRMW-2
r

WRP- 1 and - 2 Wastewater

Treatment Plant

ix

a,

T

HYDRC FOCUS?     Monitoring Wells and Planned and Existing Ponds, WRP- 1 Figure
and - 2 Wastewater Treatment Plant and South Lathrop Areas.     3( e)

PROJECT: 5023 DATE: 1/ 31/ 07

214



ITEM 4. 1.

CITY MANAGEIt' S REPORT

M14Y 14, 2Q1, CITY COUN IL ItEGULAR MEETIIVG

ITEM:       PPItOVAL OF FIIOIAL MAP   AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT 14GREEMENT ( SI)  FOR 36 LOTS YIV

TFtACT 3825 VILLAGE " D" WITHIIV EAST VILL IGE OF

RIVER I LAIVDS

RECOMMEND TIOI i:     dopt Re olution Approving Final Map for Tract 3825
Village  " D"  nrithin East Village,  Yotaling 36 Single
Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement nrith River Islands Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694 ( VTM 3694), Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop, which included a Neighborhood
Design Plan, Architectural Guidelines, Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and Parks. Master

Plan for the East Village neighborhood located west of the Community South River
Bend ( CSRB)  neighborhood by Resolution No.  15- 3912 and an Amendment to the

West Lathrop Specific Plan and River Islands Urban Design Concept by Ordinance No.
15- 344.

This proposed Final Map Tract 3825 will be the first tract map for the Village D" area
for New Home Company, an existing River Islands builder currently developing the
Tidewater neighborhood in adjacent Village " E." Tidewater spans both Villages " D"

and " E" which consists of ( 36) 55' x90' single- family lots. A Vicinity Map is included
as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3825
Village D" and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( Attachment C) with River

Islands Development, LLC ( River Islands").

BACKGROUND:

The land for Tract 3825 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with updated
conditions of approval.  On September 20,  2017,  by Resolution No.  17- 01,  the

Planning Commission approved an amendment to the East Village Architectural
Design Guidelines and Development Standards  ( DG/ DS)  to accommodate the

bungalows product within Village " L" ( Tract 3833). River Islands, as the subdivider,

is in compliance with the most current conditions of approval.

215



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3825 VILLAGE D" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3825 requires that security ( cash or

bonds) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village " D."

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off-site Agreement") that was approved by the
City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off-site Agreement is still valid
for certain improvements.  Tract 3825 will not trigger any additional off-site

improvements and the Off-site Agreement will apply to Tract 3825 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off-site
improvements.

All in- tract improvements have been completed, other than thermoplastic striping.
All of the infrastructure for Villages D" and " E" were guarantee with performance

and labor and materials bonds posted with Tract 3826 in 2016. As a result, the SIA

for Tract 3825 reaffirms the posting performance and labor and materials bonds first
required by the SIA for Tract 3826 and also allows for the substitution of the bonds
with another security, since the value of the remaining amount of infrastructure is
less than $ 10, 000. Acceptance of all public improvements will be processed by staff
at a later date when the unfinished improvements are complete. At that time, River
Islands will be required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds as a warranty for
the completed infrastructure.

Finally, before the Final Map Tract 3825 is recorded, River Islands must also satisfy
the Escrow Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required fees are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has substantially completed the street and utility improvements within
the entirety of Village " D." Prior to acceptance of public improvements within Village

D" the already posted security will remain in full force and effect. River Islands shall
provide a 10% maintenance bond to guarantee the full improvements ( completed

and uncompleted) for one year.  Prior to acceptance of these improvements, River

Islands has provided the tract map,  the tract improvement plans,  all required

documents and all fees for Tract 3825.  

This includes the following documents and fees:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Tract 3825 Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 3826

216



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3825 VILLAGE D" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided Completed

with 3826

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.      Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off-site improvements to serve this Tract 3825 have already been
completed including construction of levees,   participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off-site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded,  River Islands must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club
are made under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

217



CITY MANAGEFt' S REPORT Page 4

I IAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIIVC;

INAL MAP FOR YFtACT 3825 VILLAGE D" TOTALIIoIG 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AIVD A SYA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

UDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance. River Islands is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff
time required to process their request.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3825 Village " D" within East Village

District,  Totaling 36 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.       Tract 3825 Village " D" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company forTract 3825,
Village " D"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3825 Village D"

218



CITI Me41VAGER' S REPORT Page 5

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIIVG

FINAL MAP FOIS TItACT 3825 VILLAGE " D" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SI/A WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

1PPROV 4L

Glen Gebhardt Date

City n in

lr
Cari James Date

Finance Direc or

y--3a- 8
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

F3      '
S n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

219



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTIOM OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPROVING A FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3825 IN VILLAGE " D"

TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT
AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map ( VTM) No. 3694 with Conditions of Approval for a residential and commercial
development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) and the

River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3825, the proposed subdivision, is part of the East Village

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 36 lots covered by VTM
No. 3694, located on the west side of the San Joaquin River, north of Union Pacific
Railroad; and

WHEREAS,  in its review of Tract 3825,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 3825 on June 30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, River Islands Development, LLC, has completed or has guaranteed
completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3825,  as identified on the

approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion of all

required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and
River Islands Development,   LLC,   and provision of security by River Islands

Development, LLC, for unfinished and deferred improvements are required prior to
final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by River
Islands Development, LLC, and presented to the City for approval and signature; and       

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the River Islands

Development, LLC, obligation to maintain all improvements and repair or correct any
defective work; and

WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS,  off-site improvements were guaranteed with the Dedication,

Inspection and Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements ( Off-site Agreement),

approved by City Council on September 30, 2013; and

220



WHEREAS, City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of VTM
3694 required for approval of Final Map 3825 have been met,  including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off-Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract
3825 is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM No. 3694, is technically correct
and complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS,   River Islands Development,   LLC,   will satisfy the escrow

requirements to fund the Settlement Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for
Tract 3825; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that makes and accepts the following actions:

1.       That the Final Map for Tract 3825 Village ' D" is hereby approved as submitted
as part of the public record with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County
Clerk Office.

2.       That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, in substantially the
form as attached to the May 14, 2018 staff report, the file executed copy will be filed
with the City Clerk.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 14th
day of May, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO ORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk a va or avarrete, City Attorney

221



Attachment re

h I
TE: T  l F,S,.::=.,.-,      t

T— 
td' ''

i§ 
I. f.[ n   ,'}/ t       

1   

l

Ii

T I 4.t i    m i_Fi i   J J is:

y1
A

II k  . L 5             - 
i   1 1

I            it.=  Ir
z      :       . i

st  ; I
3  eT

1~

1

r
r...,—.__-    .       

I
k    !'.  ._—  

f

g"              l  = F t--r

i„"""       i.. 1_      i
K

i
a     }

r g G  ;'  s.,

1       f___.  _-,
ffi       

r"' '    4 ai.?.DC-, i, G I1"

l C 3 2  `.:.. 
4 F--;      

T
R s'

am{°     

c. s a

t     Q

sa

r``  F    I. -'"     ,'   ¢
4  `,  

3:"   .<..,  
w.  

K

Cai f.; I1' t: 6  yi.. i i ' a'J i
I

p
3-: a y       „  ...      

r,   l- 1         '    
U,' ldIY ALL, GUni 3        C.: KI, n:;. lvUi7 g vi

I      
n f i 1

c   es ri

M....

Y= a}_--=    
I

a.:,,...    i' ACi 3 75     ir      __  

LLI             1« i/ i

ti

F,: h,; u.      F.; T i Cl, 1 ;<    ..,;.-,-.:,,:;     s T

i g

f

A1--
I_

i

n....,s.         ...,.. m..,..,      '._ __--_   ,.,--. t.--  — M.. ... ....,,-   _

LAKESIDE DRIVE

asffi' mdmm,+.+ c.:. m e5m lrr.u. ua. wmam a caw-       ss eammn.sn.w.aa:. w   wu rmo mmm t s mm0
7       a m a 0

I Q a     ,       i I   !   I I 5 7  6   ? 9      ` u ti 72 Ys ie . i   . B
2. f

z, I s n  =;   I- _ TRACT 3826. 
6   , g

TRACT 3893   HUNTINGTON WAY HUNTINGTON WAY TRACT 3825 dTRACT 3892 a
5., 9 a`   et   a, a      ,,,   ,       3,      ILLAG      .    .     

VILLAG'E'`Ey ¢ ,,  A;, ,  w W   

9:  : u o ,, , ;-  -    ,    ,.     o
w o w W

o  ,: v a;  ¢   i a _,^ o Z s»  
E

3 '  

o o   ;:
a ie  a ; a o r; r, il : s   

o
aa ,  : _  Q     

u ts Z
U v  , n. aa Z t ot u 2 u n  2 i  ¢      w   ,^ 21 3" N W IB tE e !: t .—  G   n        U 8r k      o.      q-    w ea o a            3 a.

s

o  . 72. y.   ; i a  `
n 5 s "? e  ' a

iP   t
i F

C 2c; i . 35   
a'  

s i5 e : 2_  w i    ._   w  
Cii

Lrs'    
v      @           Y `•— 0

g LOCKSLEY DRIVE  !     ANSLEY DRI4E
oVa IV

i_'  i   . n              s      a z  to    

in e  

7 d   ,  + 5 i5  a

3 e a. .. o A 7i  : a.  c 2    
4' _      :

5 rs  _ 3  . 2  ? t     i i i7 i2 A     , i        

4   

1p L

y;      

e0" 

D l 
w aa

V 0 

I 20

222



lttachment "C"    I

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY,

FOR 36 RESIDENTIAL L'OTS IN TRACT 3825 VILLAGE "D"

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
14th day ofMay, 2018, by and between the

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation. of the State of California (" CITY"), and River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" SUBDIVIDER").

B.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and
CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3825. However, SUBDIVIDER
has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tract
3825 and the adjacent Tracts of 3826, 3892 and 3893 as part of the Village " D" and Village " E"
area of the East Village District of River Islands. The value of the original unfinished portion of
improvements at the time of approval of the Tract 3826 Subdivision Improvement Agreement

SIA") totaled $932,964 and both performance and labor and materials ( payment) bonds were

posted by SUBDIVIDER with the approval of Tract 3826. This SIA for Tract 3825 reaffirms the
already posted security provided with Tract 3826, which will stay in full force and effect unless
substituted with different security approved by the City Engineer as outlined in this Tract 3826
SIA.

C.       At its September 30, 2013, meeting, the City Council approved an Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication of Easement for Roadway Purposes and approved an Agreement for Dedication,
Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements for certain backbone roads and

improvements, including Lakeside Drive that provides public right of way access to Tract 3825
and adjacent tracts. Tract 3825 Final Map shall dedicate those roads not dedicated with previous
tracts in the East Village District and not covered by the Irrevocable Offer: of Dedication for
Easemenf for Roadway Purposes for streets serving as access to Tract 3825.

D.       SUBDIVIDER completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tracts 3825 and

the adjacent Tracts of 3826, 3892 and 3893 at the time of approval for Tract 3826. These
improvements were made in accordance with the separate set of joint trench improvement plans

and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design, Inc. The street, sidewalk, underground
utility, storm drainage, street light and joint trench improvements ( hereinafter " Improvements")
were only partially constructed as part of the required infrastructure for 3825 and the adjacent

223



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Developmerit, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 2 of 13

Tracts of 3826, 3892 and 3893. Only the deferred and unfinished improvements for these tracts
are necessary to provide access to these tracts.  As a result, the amount bonded with the prior

approval of Tract 3826 was 120% of the unfinished improvements at the time Tract 3826 was

approved($ 933,100 X 120%_$ 1, 119,720—performance bond amount). The corresponding labor
and materials bond amount was 50% of the performance bond amount ($ 1; 119, 720 X 50% _ $

559,860). These bonds shall remain in full force and effect unless substituted with different

security at the discretion of the City Engineer.  Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with
CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

E.       The term " Improvements" as used in this Agreement means all improvements necessary
for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3892 and 3893. As a result, the total value ofpublic improvements for these
tracts is$ 2, 953,000 as shown in Exhibit E to this Agreement. The required Maintenance Bond for
Tract 3873 shall be equal to 10% of the cost of Improvements as shown in Exhibit E; ($ 2,953,000

X 10% _ $ 295,300 — maintenance bond amount).   The maintenance bond shall be posted to

guarantee maintenance of all improvements for a full year following acceptance by CITY.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of CITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms ofthis Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect. in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the East Village neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A.including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above-referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the

CITY' S Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the
California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the first home constructed in Tract 3825 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title ofTract 3825 associated with the filing of
Tract 3825 or prior to the completion and occupancy of the first home associated with Tract 3825,
whichever comes first. Such occupancy shall be documented by CITY in the form of a Certificate
of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY or its agents shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/or materials therein.

224



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 3 of 13

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDNIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. Prior to acceptance of the Improvements,

SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Maintenance Bond in the amount of
295,300,  equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the Improvements for the entire area as

summarized in Recital F to insure SUBDIVIDER' S repair and maintenance of the Improvements

in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be released at the

end of the one ( 1) year guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recital D were required to

provide access and required utilities to Tract 3825 and are associated with adjacent tracts as

otherwise described in this Agreement, as well as backbone roads associated with the Agreement

for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee -of Public Streets and Improvements referenced in

Recital D, the security required by the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of
Public Streets and Improvements shall remain in place until the backbone improvements

associated with that agreement are complete and accepted by CITY or as is further described by
the conditions below:

a. Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit D, are required and rehabilitation is guaranteed

by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed prior
to release of security previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

8. If SUBDIVIDER., in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construcfion of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement or fails to repair, replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may but is not required to proceed to complete
and/ or repair, replace or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for such
service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein as is
necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace and/or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

225



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 4 of 13

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDNIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials, repair and

maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER.

In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an action to compel performance of this
Agreement or to recover costs of completing such improvements,  SUBDNIDER shall pay
reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in
connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements were partially complete at the time ofperformance bonds were
first posted for Villages " D" and " E" with Tract 3826, SUBDNIDER is required to reaffirm the
Performance and Labor& Materials bonds to guarantee the deferred and unfinished iinprovements

associated with all tracts in Villages" D" and" E." The amount of the currently posted performance
bond is equal to 120% of the amount of unfinished and deferred improvements at the time Tract

3826 was approved, as shown in Exhibit E ($ 933, 100X 120% _ $ 1, 119,720— performance bond

amount. The corresponding labor and materials bond amount was 50% of the performance bond

amount($ 1, 119,720X 50%) _ $ 559,860. These bonds shall remain in full force and effect unless

substituted with different security at the discretion of the City Engineer.  Further, SUBDIVIDER
shall also comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and
incorporated herein with a new certificate of insurance required.

10.      Any alterations made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part hereof.The above- referenced sureties hereby
consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER andlor SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors or by any

226



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 5 of 13

one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by or acting as agent for SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors or subcontractors.

SUBDIVIDER shall at its own cost and expense defend any and all actions, suits or legal
proceedings or any type that may be brought or instituted against CITY and indemnities on any
claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered
against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such action, suit or legal proceedings resulting from or
alleged to 1 ave resulted from SUBDIVIDER' S performance or non-performance of its duties and
obligations under this Agreement or from the negligent act or omission of itself, its agents,

contractors, representatives, servants or employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify
and hold harmless set forth in,this section is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any
indemnity has prepared, supplied or approved any plan or specification in connection with this
work or subdivision whether or not any such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering
any of these matters. CITY does not and shall not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which
it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by
CITY of any deposit with CITY by SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by
SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered or alleged
to have been suffered by reason of any of the aforesaid operations referred to 'in this paragraph
regardless of whether or not CITY has prepared,  supplied or approved of plans and/or

specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors
are or shall be considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts (" CFD") to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are aecepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year or up to a one ( l) year period,
whichever is needed to erisure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.   

227



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 6 of 13

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' S expense, obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of

Ixnprovement construction,  SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws. whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3825.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation ofany part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

228



Subdivision Ixnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City ofLathrop for

Final Map Tract 3825
Page 7 of 13

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns
of the parties.   

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an aet is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last day. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of such
action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin.

ATTAGHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A:  FINAL MAP - TRACT 3825

EXHIBIT B:   ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3825

EXHIBIT C:   CITY 1NSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/PARADISE/STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

229



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 8 of 13

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 14th
day

of May, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Stephen J. Salvatore

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:

vador Navarrete

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC,

a California Gmited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso

President

SUBDIVIDER"

230



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 9 of 13

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP- TRACT 3825

231



s

TRACT 3825
W

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
inuQ vE

VILLAGE D

A lIXfW ff MDCO R:LI]! 0
r

PAR L 4( 2 WP fll RD

an ar uw siw, aaM ow+n; Wi O       P

OWNER'S STATEMENT
7° 1°  

Tc umoortn. oas xoear sr ix,T r ac ee arnes s uu. ac wo miuen iuo PROJECT ..
oeruEo nw uc onmi eoao r ue oF c oemrn r w o m Fn, nucr a, 

SffE      `x+ oS viug m. w C. Ctt W uAa ulfvwA op exG ff eq r( p smS tro rE E N G 1 N fi 1 N G
fE]]mf IIT 10 11E MlPNG110M MO FilIC OF 16 F1UL WP M 11E 6illi 611E OOUMtt IENOIX

n

ff SAl1, pAd 1 lG/ IfY, CJYFOIUiI

9[ U OlD OR3 lEImY 7Lr'A1E AN[ YIEMf 1D 11E Ctt ff LA71l M N!! C Iqli- UT

IR T  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER'S)
oc u ra r onE wo rMns anE s scr a na raK wv. 

TNE U L70iD OQS IEI Y OE391ff W 71E Ott ff Ull A IqFE1NlA1E FA41pf 70 11[ Il s

Itfl 11E IWIT 1D ISAUCf, IG,W157 f, @'PAR NO WM Aµ PaE l WE9. 1lET ND A NDTAM PUMIC 01 OIIfA QfICfA LUiifalP 1NS WIiFIGE WiES hct TE fN11IY
ur oe,vw

N°

imn
vw, uoEa n c smps aF uxo s saM a ms rwu av nE rawu ra saEu ixe om wr m wa na mwE e innam. rm VICINITY MAP

xar s! E 7RInKulEs4 oaa cr, az vNpn ff ur ooaadr. 
wor ro scuc

11E 1lqQi90FD 0 5 IE7' f A'AlE 70 11E OfY ff IAllr. k01- f7GlA1E FA llli lO4EilEIl
rHl 11E INR 70 C08iRllCl RFPAR ND WM1AM. SIU01 GRAN FFQIIR NO 1fER SfA1E 6 Wi NA

so.c- oruw r j.'"
E sn s a i'°°" f s°" a na"" m'°"°° m°°'t°" S m m ff y"'°"° i' 

CITY CLERK'$ STATEMENT

RE U 719QED 0 91F1 Y 3CJ17E W 11E OIY ff U71 A N01- E1mJ91E FA41IXf lO TfR NOiMi! PIS1G PE] L NNLT APPF'A A    M PIBTtD 10 l 1ERFSA YNG Q1'/ aFRC NO QFAIC 11E C11' CQMCL ff 11E 0tt{ ADIII. SG1E ff

K l r+a x,u( rs/ uE ansa o m     
uo n r sr w nE ammEo ru ursnm' n cr aa ru n eo nugra ne wrt m caanmcr, er. ar, vo r a, sw u r sra vaams No nim a nie e ar s eeratr nai io E x ansa o       

a aua r,rnr a un. wroia, odas c oort ce sr xs Tn a meMr e sAPIIRiF%NI S. IFO 6VElt MD lR' F] t 1! E 517 5 6 WO AC 9i0 1 dl 116 NUL WIP OE9WAIFD AS 1FE} 1FN l LIEN AI AOOIOAFD TO IE 11GT IE/ 9E/ IIEY F7QQlim 71E SIIIE M NJ
11m 10 YD CM CCIMR. AS PR01' I IAR AT A IEE7NC 116[! D OI 11Eswnxr r(ssq.       w mrpe, ao ur ar Ns/ oE*/ n m, naa(s a ne s nrt nE v       ar ff xm ao nur vn att ca ct oo rn+o a er anm

1FE I l90RD DRS IF1 Y OFDI'JNE 10 71E Ott 6 U1F A IIOFf7mJlSTE EAWlIIi Fpt 7! E
4E DIIITY ti01 MA{ F ff! ql 7E PEISOK ACIFD, E77G11m TE l61pa IL 1-  eu1 PAS4D NO AD 1FD AT S1C YFE1M4 KPROIE SID YAP. ND NIIX IID

PIIfMgS ff fEPAR AIO WNIFKIM ff ilE 9011D MNL iGt AE AIEAS DESIQIATkD AS YNL FA91DIi'       I Y U E1t 44MAL1Y NGRY UOE(t ifE W5 OF 11E STAE GIiIINA INAT AE fUE0 4:     
IIS IE[ AIDI NC AO P Q/ IINF OF 71E Ott UIY f71 IIR1C 11 E OE CCA7101 ff

s sari a ms fw ww.       
PNuawx s n,u Mo oaeacG a iwi vu s n rxr ff

71E u 9L90En uas IFIEer oFDGIIE m nE an' un[ A NOx- dau91E u41qi lam1EA St IOWis to ms 72 b. 17, N. n uo R Maw n[ lar uts As Iu1En eY 7xE snE
IfW 1FE IIOHf 10 COI" 0lI+ IC4 fi OM 11CC AFPAR ND YhMWL COESIIC tAIEWlF FAlilllS NO 71E11       71ES5 YY IW     ND ILECIFD TE OFffll ff OED101 O1 OF ALL ROA61Gt5 AS 910MN 01 S D YAP INiL 4BR

YAIDrlE EA41O T'(! LE)  
UICFIt 71E SOiS ff LNO AS 8101M 01 7NS AUL YM 901A1 I S

9CNR(

pi}       
U NNQAL CmE mHLlm M AOLqCNIKE IM CWIER N. IIRE f[ t ff IIE Ctt ff,

11E U ISIOiD D 5 lFJIE i' AlE 10 71E 011' CF IAII. W RE PIIR 14 A C. 4 4 AID F, ial REI16 A1061NT/ B9E I MMII SfA1E iXIT ALL l00S A4 ICWRD CT IAt 10 CCOPAMT AE 11N YN MAYE 11
RJIl OgS ff OP01 A tClakG R9M U1 11E4 MD S NTMY g A FIQ71R I TE FAT CF W OGIYS I MN. R M7t014D tt AE OIY CQMQ CF UMNP YD RID M W A       '
11E F90i', AS 9Or1 0176 FM14L WIP.    W CdY51p1 f1QfES

11E UOFIOG 0 7 IFI 1 I'alE 7D 11E Ott K UMOP. N RF. MR L 0 M RII'3QlS Oi OI
AI i1ClI IC PIQC 11WIR FW TE lf'ff 11E N91. A9 910 1 01 MS RIAL YM. CTffiJA(ND QLI( K lE OIY WI/Q ff 71E OiY ff U1NIm. LLUf1Y ff SW G101L STAIE OF

nc ummaien oas msr oas m arc ff unw wi rme Aort ffua ro ms ui+aeu

A, s No x,unc nc ar ufs ns arwhm m e s/ s sow a ne
ACIWOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)

nrc uoeimt oas xr r vMms No a wius otm t
on n m a o na a G w rs a r mmTM

SECRETARY OF 11iE PLANNING COMMISSION'S STATEM ENT
ff nE a auw rw sam ooa r ro r+a ns aRiarwa s n uoan. No n s iur c o as io stwc mtt Ww Na xu n er nE a c oa ssa
sor tr¢ oart 4v, oe vemm nur ooa awr. c hn n o r ff

OYESt 114FA HNOS YEll81fl1T, 111'. A WFaNl1 Wi W 9U11' WPAM1:
SfAIE Q f+4FdMA
QMiT ff SAII A10N

RFffCG 34Y L MMTY flOffiMf C16V
wuE sisw oai wh a zoi_ arr aF utwa
I1S PI Ii A R II' PWOIIALLY APPEIUR'4 10 fltOND 10

a ne uss ar stin¢ c atr eaatf o s wroox(s rng( s7 a/ sa9oram m
n+ a* wwL o av a m io TM T xrJsE/' e aaao TMe su Ns/ er+/n   RECARDER'S.STATEMENT
wn a cw ao Dur rrxsAa/ soun s7 a nE Nsne awr ne ruaa(s), a

aum n s_ o r      u[ t onn uPai mwF rta v pai( s c. Emuim nE xs pz
mpc tv s uo vuts, v r   AT 7IEflF3TGF aD I TARY IIE CAPANI:

aD IERMIY 1fRE CqPIW'I. A411EG1 IroFx M ID OF lltlSf IECW FD DEmBER 9P. 7D1/,    I QAfPI UIOFIt PONL7Y F66AIRY UOfR TE U1R OF TE SN1E K CNMiU 1XAT 71E FOAECa1G
AS OOGI1BIf Nl1EHitit I/- 1Wl1, FlOJt SW JOAOM WlMIK MIdifRI O TI6E ND CaEIECf.    fFE Z

g! A7IESSYI'! WR
9C

119 3 InI7E S/

y; R- f[ CG It- Ca11Y OFJiI
ilSSfANi RFC OE1l

5111 GhQM m1111; GLLiIINAK W A79E9S
YY CWf9p1 MII!      
Y1' OT. S

EfRlpf FlIOY fEE PEII OOIFIMIOR GODE 17] BSI: DOCU1E71f
RECO( EED W OONECTIOM MIH A COIIL1Atl M 1RN6FFJ!
sua cr m n osnox a oaaamrr nr r x u c

SHEET 1 OF 

232



NorEs
TRACT 3825

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
av un+aor eriu. caaE oF anc u s m is. aw m srecs. n an VILLAGE D

OF UUIIROP PEAWIS OPEAAION OF WRIP4AY OOMDIICIm FGI6CUL7UW1 OPFAAlIDMS WIMN 1! E LINEANDCUHVETABLFSFORCOURS65HOWNONSFfEEf3 3lY
C7tt WIIS. Nf11JON6 11106E 7FMT UfUZE f:1EYd1 F} RILID]! 4 ANO PESfICC.F'i. YOU ME A PQllml IUWOO 0. D
I t Y NOINED TFMT TIE PROPFAIY 1DU AfS RAqYSNC WY FE LOGIFD tlDg 70 A 9 N901 GF lH'!E TAHF CURYE TAHE
AGRIQA7UGL lAlDS MD Of47iA7p16 Ydl WT BE SIIBIFLT TD ICONYFIIDIC£ OFt PAI871 6' 11LICf J6m( 43 WP
OL9CtlidR M6N0 FAdI llff U' FUL kD PtiOPfA lSE OF AdtlqIL7URAL OdIGIS AND OIY ff IA R. SAN IOFQM CqMT, IlE/ OI CII01 IDNRX CRYF/ MOUS  LU IF) IC01PE•RImE4 Na Al011 011ER XiECu] IR1L ACIMI. ut41AINC FpUf WfA110N$     '    YMW 2018
QA7MAild4 PIA YIC. ftAY11G. Y G710N. PIdiAMG. MIIfNESfNG. AlRIOq OF AOUGLIUIIL ll N16LG'GD7' r7.IS p 7500' IT 1'C 1604

111 G1 119' fENflN1E 9plf MORE.    RO UIS AIM/ RE NSO. 7

NQ6
ll MISCC07E 1}. 4S'   C2 TSL7 YD76' 73' iD.l1'

n s aat mn wn wm auctHr m waa n arEtu aos a nf cm's
d! Nl4CIIDM. CW Du mY. OEVOl01f C ON 7HE IOGVION OF iDUR PROPfxn, If wY DE 6 N G 1 N E£ R 1 N G L7 xtlio   W.O'   o 0.07 1TYri" 3Ln'
IFL65Mf 7} YQ 19U P 9AI D 70 ICtEP 91CJ1 IICOIIMENOIC6 OR 06COIiLHf A9
NOfYl1 NO IECFSSM/ ASPRT OF 1117lG N M! AC iUW1Y ACII1£ OON. l4 M/ SOD'OD' 121Y

2 A 9D6S I POI E111tRID TFDTE0I GIL EI IORIOqM. E7i BNO9 RKg 1. UTI P.
U NORIII i40dWiLIaM' AS PNOJFCE N0. 5014100fA1 A!O M7ED JULY 10.10D5! NS D1

nu n ow n rxa cr er ow, Neor oa hn., a. oo c.e. Ho. un.,wo LEGEND ( DFORSHEEf3 1lY)     n usr  on

1 75RAC 7, 6LND5. PlYl l& VIltI4E 0. CLN A7S JE laF M O 0 11TIERED PIASEIS
CONfAl Q 7J0 RL46. IIOIE OR LER NCU70NQ RWOWYS MU ARE BENC DEDGIIED BY

F9U1U 7/ 4 ROI PPE MM P1A411C PWO' iLST/    U Nffi7Yb3' r q.14
PER( 1110) OA( IU. IlYELt

IL NOR711 L171
MS FMIL WP MD PNKFlS 1 AND 2 CONfM7N0{ dG IGtFS. YOWE OR lF1S. ALL AS S1f0Y11

A FUUID 1 lAX SfA1Fm' ft5 71m' PERON lY6 F1NL YAP( PIF/dE It}FR 10 7! E/! ffA SU1BYJt! TA6lE lONik
OI/ D IIONlI1FM SfA1FFD' P1.5 7700' PER( R7)    lD NOQ111   IJY

X FOUND YONlfl1ElR SfA1pEED? l5 77EE' PfR( R10)   p0 NOIi I 101$ TD
TFIACT3B25MEASUMMAHY

x YONUYFM 10 BE 4T fER( Rt)'     
tl1 IKSLOWYI SS] Y10i51 7ffI0U01 y 4/ 5 AC!     f YOMYOII 10 E SET PFR( f    

112 FAST ' 13.° CPlAfll9 A 7lNplpl i 6 6 11LY LZ YOMJ1LLllf 70 gT POt( Ril)

SflEEf OEDM91Td6 id0 IICt jx 1lOMJI@IfF i0 E SQ PER( Rt     W N/ 690 00 12 1'

a,w s uo:  uo       eouriam u   usr • ia s N- ll)
ioru    zsm      wr oR aart- oFw, r   ue    • Nam N- Jl)

uar u       
u   usr   : aoo' (- l(

4.  BVED ON NNORlNiqN CONfNlED tl T! E PREIl7RLIRY iIILE RFPONf OMW MUIDQt YONUYEIR L! E
LI7 N0119f IqLC CIF' iQ(RIS)mao7d7-+a( wtsoM. ovEo fm nwtr t+2m0. rRPnom er an IEwac m1E

amm( M)     IFi vn n uo I Orm u u vae R6E( a)   

ua xa tK uam (- n
CWPIIlG

R1)       MU PEI! IIFFE11OIfE( R1 IRFER 70 REfEAEIICE

LBf ON 1M6 STI[ ET

CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT
wa' R ro' e r

a aFw wmr. FEREHI SfAIE TNT I NI 7HE GIY dGNFFR OF 1FE GIY OF UMpP,       
A0"`° FA"°' 6 REFERENCES

iQ n arc   uao nuv waaum'ar saw+ x aNs      eauwv r C) c tciEe axnric a' m erw ur i xm

sumwrtrur n su s R c aM ne v wc mm mre uw ia. aeus, uro xr s ooeiArxr w a oos- rnses. s.tica. svxvErs u:)
oom uuNa s n i wmm suic niv naR rn w cawuEs rnm u.       n.a rrm s w n orsur m e+ oPexrr wAan is am

a or x    mm$v i w~moroas n o. avwc aa
taacr mu. o so. sm. N eooic ax or ws uo,

sr.ex

wiea ms_ wr ar zot       
r, s, sr.c.R.( u a)

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS
l 

son,'
sr.r.x.( j•

ais. w eoac ax oF w s um vws

m cr rn,. nim wr a ae, a w eoac u oF wx ae uts. wce e.
mw e nraer. a.ce. s ae

wxsuv r ro sccna eoNe aa n+c e.u a sueonrsaH ww rct n s aun s sr.ca.( u wr x

QIT OF 7M£ tlIY OF UIFfWOP. G4Y'Oftl 1
11] Mtl OF 1NE NLLDMN6 PMIES N4YE BE I 01lRfER

ucua o suuos uu oamwtr, amrv wa a, a w+owS wo onmt
i° arurr oEm mrmm w zo. 2oot. s oocu r xu rt ao- aetn. s.i.cx.

M9ROC/ J ON 91 TNICE4 LNIC tD11 A DEPIM OF 400 FFEG PER OOG11lBiif NIN6EA TMCf 74 FNID WROI it. 2010. N BOqC{ 2 OF WP9 MO RAA P/ GE 30.
zoo em, s. i. cx sacn.( ss s

r awrt oem m xa z, zo 4 s uoan xr u+ 2ois- o s st. sr.cn.

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT cu-+)+ x 1e
ooarvrxr a mio- aaooa, srrx

uusm a oossm. lE r sua nw x ve owrl TMs Ff4u wv oF' IRAc1 sea.   nu ww ws Pi vAREn e I aa uNOEa w oaEcna A s 6 FD ua a rnn
nva 7 7. nua wr sa 0 4 I 9oac 4x aF wrs iwo was. vACE m.  ueeie+ ns. awg ia wuart d; an av ulwmv. aurox ueo nwr ne svewgox savp N car uaw ne au s ov n s eo a uw cr wn       Oro)
sr.c,a.( az wv n mffnas oF a[ caom u. o e, ss oMa a couvus wm u me aRavo s aF aMrrtn: ar nu waaea       ORGWICE Ai 11iE R lf6f OF faYFR 6W103 OE flDPY701f, 116. ON WY 10. toia i
ooanar xwaex ime- msis. sr.we511 0N WP ACf. AS METBED. APm 71MT 71LS FOW YIG 6 1WNIGLlY COIINECf.      IE7tfHf SfpE I1L 1HE YDMiiEM3 ARE OF TE qURACIFA•/ Jm OCWV! TE POSIIq16

MTFn lf   M1' OF 701  tO TNT IIONL ENIS AIE.  7H T 11E1' M71 SZIiFI Mf 10 Q49E lM5 91AVE'       ) SJ.CR(

f2a
CERIY1GlTE' OF

N

IION NE/ 11fiAa 31, 7D70.
70 fhIRAC AtO 7WS 7X$ ftWiL WP SISSTANMLIY COfiDFYS 70 TE OOCWQR MillBFR 101Q- 107 7Y. SI.CR.
CONDIIIONl1LLY IPPIiOVED IEMRNE W1P.      

IAYf ME O SEii, P.E 3f QDS 6Om if  GO' OF 201         
Rll)

sr.GA. IINE0
1. 2017. M BODK 11 OF YAVS IlO PlATS. PAGE E4

M. i w
r n  

p
sr.r.a. ur,

m a x eoa sx av uvs wo Puis vuf e.

mw      , u w ma

SHEET Z OF p

233



BASIS OF BEARINGS TRACT 3 25
TME° c ff a"S* r m m o rs, c TME rT u a n oa  RNER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 BAS 910 M OI 711ACf 7701, F1ID WY 4. L N pC 41 OF LWS AID PUSS AT PA] I,   

VILLAGE DOfAdLL AS OF RE OWIIfY ff SNI DFpK MS TIXEN! S 1ME BA9S ffARNIS 9f09N
ON 1M5 YAP[ LtlE 3 MAD6]} NL O6IANV5 91m1N f{ERON AI l 9ND OISfMlQS

A PUN7101 GF RNIQIO EL PQdI0ER0
NOTE •   

BOUNDARY SHEET P,,x a wicr i2 we
s s 2 wn oonpt ra s xo. s. am t n twe wo a T r s N an ff unce. sar. n an owrr
rnn cau s sHoww a n s sacr a r. rxm ime

o im' mo'     av

scue t•- xo'      

i NG1N££ it1NG

I
ACMBdY RIYE

I 
I lS4S OF BEAHB7GS I

OP  

AClIDBAY INiNE
FAST 129.07Q1- YJ( R  .         FAST 7N.07Q1- YJ( 4L1) ————"

O

Gn     

I
macr 3em

It

6 i    7T

I I I    
2 2!

3¢   7RICT 9827       

i Cp1N8R00KC0UqT lR701 a    I 1 I I I3 I I 1   

7RACf 9EY! i      7RIiLT sS7      I
z o        uz enr se   wcr s ai

I I I
I I I F15T YdD1'   FAST t04LS o

J     I i inl.       
J

ig wffsioeoarvE
ww couar eavouauwve i

I
vlACf 9675 I RIo

3 
JIAC  

N{ 59UOCL

12Q

i FASf 1W7( Y- YXpIC)       y1t].-—-       
1-   W SI EDPoVE -

a—-—-—-       IAI SIDE FIYE

I     €   
PAACEL4

I      I ETTdd,A aae'

1 Y TM5       

HUHiPFGTON WAY J-- U3 - jxuÌ BFOADMOOA FAtT 1n.7Y J FASf g
12       

WAY 7Wt
r HUNTIN(3TONWAY       Is,       Easr, s ss  ,  '  '

c tweYaul sr)

o
P ' 4,C3 

h,      PARCEL C 1R731         .
Is

B  .      
9. 00'(Y- YJ( N4

J
IyTj

It

711$ 91EE7\   ElISQy

at'  I    DETAILA

x     a I            r, wwEas o    
rooi io w+[

LOCKS1tY0PoVE Jx-- 
L1  _- i lARti1 C

4) ^ 
FlST1B60C hMRR4

iRAL7 30YE I
V3i

9  '
p     -      4 i

si n  ( e  sn i urE
PARCEL 4

g
ui¢ s)      c DEfAILB

ru m t mai
rua c

i       iat m scuE

IR19I

E/ Sf 1ffi.07(Wn
SHEET 3 OF H

234



TRACT 3825
7xacr aa s             T1iACT 3BT5 cr ae2      a RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

w VILLAGE D
BRANSON COURT   ¢ 3 HARI RCAURT n4       BALFOURDRNE g°

dar

a

m v

PAlt i 1 ff 711ACT 3lYD( @ WP 6nin
CIY OF U1NtOP. SNl DAqM CdIM1Y, W 1

IY1RO1 2010

I
LAI SIDE RNE I PMCaA

W

o         PMCEL N NG1N££ iZ7NG

TRACf 3976
I

P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 B   

C A'

Q
HUNTINGTON WAY HUNTiNGTON WAY

5 o P        

s v 3a I      Q o i z SHEETINDEX

y o
I I I

u a      0 12
PMCELD

7RACf 3893    nracr aez6     i 7 i i      '     '   3d E

o Z I I O I I        w      
r MARINERSDRIYE

W
rq I PAflCEL2  

1
Y'   

13
l

I
L_ J   ``    

31 32

LOCKSLEYDHNE
I       

auaCaF

ANSLEY DRNE
7RAC7 3826.         

z m , 9 ia n is is LEGEND

6

I
LOT IllE

I
wa ur uE

J--------   --   
su Er uKE       ———— se r urr„ E

a tor cu su

SOMERSTON LAKE O SHFET N lER

lAl 3)
WESIPoCIED AL

sr+ r 4 oF 8

235



TRACT 3825
LAKESIDE DRIVE RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

x      
VILLAGE D

u.00.      Xti      ——   razna aF wuaao a o

I A 91 YID01 OF

I$  PAR L 4 OF 7RACT 87B( 12 tl P 0
PAIiCAA OIT dF U11ftOP. SW JdW1N mllllT,

F/57 6Q.91
I'       W CI 7m8  .

IFj A1600' 7)> 5'    

J ---   ----   ----- ---- -----    
N

p y r      NG1N££ iitNG

1 at I: q.     
E E E fi fi E E b 8 S

a
PARCEL B

a_   o'

2        3        4        5        6
g         .. on v        ,

aas sr.         I LEGEND
aeis sr    4w sr.    xo s s    sosa sss    xas se    uie sc    aua sss   ,  

@) 
r ae.       i O r sr an ff unaaP uarauo+r reu sr em ns rn

usr n. e(p e r J/4 Ra+wrc r/ was x rwc' Rs ne'
1R RUE

a.`          
T(

y, r i       raim oarxr srawm rots me• am On
smoo   -- ssor -     ss.00'

nar iA.,( q
ao x.ro'     x;>   

nars arqa)      a  .'      
y

x i! jX awear m set vm t l
HUNTINGTON WAY usr xeam(wN qi 0°'   6            X wuo ron xr su tn' vu' x( m

r, r:< aov{wq u,r   _    
i'    

usr es.aem        c
uam    - ssac smT$ -       ivao       - taa ry Q 1 ran xr m ff sgr aex( mil

I 15  Sjl      ' I
M77XN'F( NJ

i     Z    
FqM 7/ 4& R PFE Y'/ RASIIC PWC 7L4 77 9' PFR

FiBi 73D.07  . 1 10
R

o i
o) a+(m». en r

g asoc   

sr ua oo _ v i   y sr            scr zm en. s c+ an Cc uwF,s onm nohn, IFA9I D
i a isas nr u aamu ai axaa ro s r+

5 P.U.E S PJIE I I w

i I j 70'0°     
vsr os. a(n i

tis taim. a/ e zP xw v/ vumc auc' ws nee'

am'  w.m         27 36 I  o y W,E, 
onao'(a) cr sx n wo can wr cax( a)PR

sr    

4 i
ae+o v          ara u       wm a a' Kp) i      i m)    onoma( m}- s ar m+a usr a seEr:

I              I I              1 t1
R)     MWLL N91G

FA4 00.OQ

I I
FASf 40.0    FASf 90.DP

i
30.07      

4LOf SF.            PARGEl C WIJ YQNtBR TO YOMIiFNT

r   '    usr msvm          Yo woar ro wr

I

gqg p
I tl- RM  17apI M i0 F7@R OF NAT lJ1E

A4aosi I            i Soau          4ao si.    i    I   3£'    12  _ '`$ I Ni L
n I I tC P. Y.L I I     7 5 sF.       g)     gql/ ipT

E

Gtt IO.OR

i    > I i
FIS7 OD. OQ FAST YO. OQ

j j no7  $ 
itl P. UE      ',  I   —

9100'   1 P.AE WH1C AC( f55 EAg,lf@IT

I 3 C
y     

I I  oC     \` !__. GA 7 AC( IJ__     ,
1 I P. UE FII$ 1C UR11Y FA41E117

pSF.    I''~
C

f
F     I

4 y          4bpgF.    I S{ U           E5T 00.00 PARC D y SSE   FA41 T

I  Q        I I  —   J$ SF. g pE AALL FA4YiNf

usr w.oa        w sr enoV usr um        W I   .   R      A  u.E utsa w r

ru 2 I      i x —---—- r r aam(e x)              r u

ia v  
i ust is(- e

1 v rut- t i 2X-———-
I I NERS      N M)   wwr- rar tme

zi j    3p                   j      $ DRIVE    eauo ar
u i i aao ss.     aao sa.    i Fnm[ wr uF

I I I J   y
yO+xFxT lMEPatiT¢ 0.00 I UST 0607 F/ SS7 eaaR I       y,ppr

I
P6N

Ib             I I      —_—  1 I RwR acE

i9 i i      i gSIWCrtD KL6S
i I

xs sr.       
aa I xim i s+au          arsar.    i       i NOTES
T

i   am i. i.ir ss a9c srw o s m e gr a ww
7 S P. tIE     . w I 4 5 P.uE       — y I I   EeN1c L07 xf0 TE RWIT' wY aL 1G PRaalfdnan oF

I
wraar      rarr mnt

r

cur i m

m

a e iarnrn imiRrw me• m gr r au sa wr

qi i       ANSLEY DRIVE       i       I SEE SHEET 6
a 

w

uw'(q
M.a'      m _   xav_ w7       _ L etm     a s r 3 ea w uaas

usr, xeiro- nry rur 2 ompi- uT-   a sf s r e r u¢ uo a vais

SEESHEET6 SHEET  ' rJ OF H

236



TRACT 3825
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

VILLAGE D

A PORAOI OF RAN610 A FESf'dOF7t0
A511 4Wmlff

PA0. 1 OF TqACf(! 2 WP E'7)

SEE SHEET 5 an' aF uneov, SiW AFqM COIMIY, CFIIFtitl9A
r vie

I j N e   

I O
NGINEER7NG

1
I V ffi d      Y

I
FASf W.07        SaE Y. ff

MARINERS g LEGEND
osr nsmlw)   DRNE     a

j SQ.00' ELLOD' '    ja " 1J       j 7         Q SET STNOAI Ctt ff LA1KlW YOIUMEM ELL SLdFm' PI5 7/m'

PMCfiL E I
19{. 00'( Y- YJQts)       

o g]/ RW RPE 11/ PL1LS11C P111C' PIS 7 Y

j        i
vsr eoaa       

j wuea rauo r srurm s me- e x( m»

i      ---
r w. o-

Q      i aau        <    

Youuir o r p)

I                    s iisr.           -      
X Fwo r sr eem as mr ru ta+o)Y       \

1 6 YOMiHT W gT PFR( WI1)
SEE SHEET 5 I      -     a l'µ) a

I I 3 z Fouw y4 RM PFE r/ AASnc Rua As rn. akx     .
I   --- I---   I I             

risr w2 I_    O x+ol Q+( rp. rt[ cn¢ r

EAST I I'    '   
1xn1 0E' F( R)

I         

I          
gi SOC 1111F tal Ell( acl w2ss onikAl NOfFn, IFA9ittDIkA1H

1t!    r10 PLE Y 1lE I          W S ALQW lQf l E MOUiL lNC 100.1A iD SIfiET @1TFADE

ra $     o s wmm. a/ a, c se na r/ Pusnc rua Rs'

t I i i i n.ar
ae       a+) ww a wo wr rffe ln)

O—--   
o 2rompw     _--

O      L__- R 14XO---

1

Im PAflCELF ma s xv u( m nerff xt un a s r x

rx. 2 nsr iseaYp arj wa' urr rAu au e Y   / 
tim sr. A

ANSLEY DRNE            
sa, 

m'     o sr e m(m      
p   ra r m s r

osr zwar -     um'     -- ssm-- -- uco---    sau uav a-     : 
f-   r m ea urc

E ----   
Z-w r.u 

C- xvi  raa r m aan s ur u
m   -

My yy a     D mTu

E E E J 1       e)     ea m r
W

g PAE W91C Ilff.6 EA411E7R

A6SF.   ` OMS SF.    4 SF.    1M3EF.    5 116 Ef.    4 766F.       15 I

rfe
T11RUJ. D ARCll. 2 F.uE P{! c uiun Ei 41R i

vWi 4
4 0  

i      
iRAGT 882E IR131           7RALT 3E76 f 7 sn[.   Slai9i duu  ,F, um r

eee SINTMYg+18lFA41k11f

tl.G        .   . t.E IfALL F.A M

I tl.E 11AlER lAE EA5D 11T

usrn e

y awr-a r r uc

eoio1wr

r r uE

YQ IIQIT llE

m11UEfE

PARUI. E       .   u• t C1 eora5

m cr aeza x ai
br,'?,      NOTES

a     t ur ea. dsc au Rs ne' m e[ gr a cma
EYNIf 1. 00' MIO Lff IBGIi- CFIG1: ALp16 PRaLMGA1.4 OF
E IDf UEY at AS Iq1ED.

Z S/ b' RBAR 1lAf GP LS 7/E!' 7G ff gf AT ALL IElA LOT
0. IIIIESS OIIEIE' ff IqIFD.

1 SEE 9ift 2 F It ADp710U1 NQI S NO I FEIEN S
4 9E 9QETJ FR16iti95 BfAiWCS
A 3E 91ffT E F9R 1IE ND G IYE TABIFS

p
SHEEf 6 OF p

237



TRACT 3825
LAI SIDEDRIVE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B
r se 9tt-+( mn   _       _  r. R, on wh(mo      

VILLAGE D
narT—       —  

i  
A POliTldl ff RAlqq a C{ lIYDFRO

g I fARtl1. A amrmw ff

I GSf 37(BJm PAR ff 7RAC 7D( t YW{
ie QI'! ff lA7Nt. 5All CAq1M fnMf', WWN

F YAR0110t0

p          N

I         
E

O NGTNB£ filNG
S 6 7 fARR1 3 IR131

O    . .  1 2 N
mu: raaze ucta  m  ..__ w

a  s av      , m

nm'       y
axc r. av

i m,      
LEGEND

g
usr an. r(n gr sruoum mr a unaro ra r n sru m ns-

HUNTINGTON WAY
L

y..- 

r sr uo t(wr)    
yy (

r-s)   R rxqr zamr pi-h xaav( o sft/ oia r/ usnc wic Rs rne'
S
T—x—      37.75 SS.CV—— 1760U   — TS07—lSW''——  1ROC

I Ig gI I o p p YOIp1EpT y7A1pF,p TIS 778BI' pp QtlHUNfINGTON WAY I q 1
r m ff gr rEn

o sr nsRl       usr noC        sr aom

I     `.' p I     
e lS07

FAR EGA7 FIST BOAO X FWD YWMFNi STAYfD Tl5 77M' P4A( RIO).

7 T e      
I 1 d YO FNT lo E SEi a! A Qtl1)
I I

Fwa a/ a na rPE r/ ru5nc rwc' as me vu

j i I a( a[ cmEtr

I Yt 107 KIlF.4 ta l Kc} wF OnEta S xCIE9. IEl9RED
l I I e µ nic nr u4 w ut m r oaaaa m s r manE

e I I I zg s wmm/ t: xs ew r/ vsne nu' ns rne

I i i 20607(RI) IEI9f1lD/ kD imCORD OATA P9t( RI)

E7           
af)    matEs tes m+( ai sE r usr a s+ r:

c j iy      i x w wiari c

15 IARCII. 1 IR197       p atAC( 282/ IRf81
I" I iC 2/      

N-yl IIO INENTm W AlLf

I r i j          rw rnr ro eat oMr

I  
i r-ap vau xt m wort av ur uf

u i aaRcaa     i m mrK

u4mo sc     e7 eauo r

1 i P.AE lI 1C AC 9$ FA4F? fCR

I I
P.U.E Walc UNR EA EIii

I
SO.E SIG81 OR1N FAm&1R

w'µ' 8')    
1

I I 2E ssE slNi ar gfEn FIl59 FMi
ta i J l rrE rui r vimrt

I
i  tia j     iu.[   amt we r

I
t--    

WT 1430d
J

FA4 6tT
LOf I! E

jS NIXf-0E-YA7ltE

73L4' SS£. LLE

LOCKSLEY DRNE 9„,      R nir uf

T,       

C10+,__________

EtST 1N.W_________  
YQ EN!! K

111] 1PS7 R)    CII  IQTS13'r(   r -----       711Qd1E
o

19311tlCRD ACQO

u 21        
NOTES

w iaT eu omc sr n' as me m s gr a caa e

8lPE fR1a)  9OEWK 7. 00t RO 7 E I WT- OF- 1i1K AI NO PRoniaAmo OF
IDT lIE7 4! AS MORD.

1 S/ 0' fE11(i 1fM GP RS 7JC1' 7D E g7 AT NL fF1R IDT
CBBE'll 111{ ESS OIIQ1Lg Ip7FD.

FilSf 7150( 8 1 9E 9EFf 2 i3t IiG01II lIL OI IES WO fEiEliHaS

py    AftCFl t L 91FEf] FL0. d 97 ff EENdGS

cr aeze ta a
s sF s¢Er Fa+inc ao amc veus

SHEET 7 OF p

238



11NElWOCURVETABLESFaRC0URS6SFfOWWONSHEEfS5THFOWHBONLV T/\ 1 Qn
I R/Y\.i OG

ET"       T T     RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B
uc oracna  erM uc u ceoi  o x arx wnus oav  uHcm ainE uaa oau u cm VILLAGE D

Ll N1SU700 42fY l21 NCIlM 120D'       Ll 710U AIY01' 41D      CA 7l00 MRI'S7 30.57
A PoRllpl OF RAt10p FL ltlCJDfAO

L2 Mt5Cd07t 213'      l32 MQtM 1200 C!  SI.00 777SII' 3131'      Q2 73d0 7P7YS7^ SLLW A 9 1 OF

PAR ff 7RAC[ 2E( 12 Y f»
l]  N15LCU0"E { 2Q lII q1m7527E { 221'       Q 67.00 n1S7Y X31'      p]  7l.00 M3S73' 11aC Oi'f ff U11 W. SIN AIWM CQMIY, GIIFtlaU

u wraaaoTn axa ts w a'7ari atw u a.ao ansht xn'     
r aa me   .

u xrnsasti n+a us    •  nsv a ezoo • sar

U N16 701YII ] S.Y L] f FAST 11lC O Q/ A0 1TS7Y X71' 

u                        71  '     

ENGlNE£ ii1NG

1 1 tE- 1

IB MI.SLC00' 9]Y 11D FAST N] S'       O 1200 WOC'00' 1{ d5 Y

10 1
I      8 O>    

U N169COD'Y SJC W NqR437y IQ77 d 17A0 W9Db0' 1 lY
g    r+ $$ 

tn

ua wuado7E asx da a.ao 77 a7Y a7t' w o              12
p¢

9

Lt1 Elsr 6 f C1t 7SOD 7t75Y6' 2'
Y         

I t

L12 N16LD' Y ]{' Cl2  7.00 A70".E' 1f.05
I
I

W NNS51 E 76.q'   N a7.00 R' 7Y 114E'     

I i  tl4 NISLOOdE JS7C p4 T100 371{' OY 17' 

71LS G
tl3 N189COD11 SY'   C16 7500 ICSYU' 3l.1Y 6. 

W MISSQ07E 3SN'   Qt 7SOD 1331'67' 2l7/'  7  
EASf 1'

117 M l90'OOY 3SX q7 7500 2101' J4' ffi.lV
5 -- pp------

tl  NIS070Cf S] i'   q0 JS00 MY{Y EE.] D'    f PMCELU      
b saa sF

u smrmrr a r ao nm rxt  .n

uo wuadoo aax'   rm  aoo as rr  an'      
60     

MARINERS DRfVE

DETAILA    
IqT 10 avi r

MARINEAS DRIVE 9

usr amr     

PANCFlE      
1       ]

iS SF.       ' g'     

y

LS 1IE,  Iy   .
a' r.a gI HUNTINGTON WAY

i    

Y 1 A O T
F/ Sf tA.75

c>;  t3 a+

W  S2     W SC PMCa2

y       1 

r i          
a

AAL7 IR13!       
b

I

DETAILB.     DEfAILC
or m sueE wor m su

Q aa sgr a s r

SHEET O OF p

239



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page lb

EXHIBIT B

ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3825

240



I I I I
7 Il

P

n j I
r,;     

i i I A..      
aHr s.:,  n l   '  . 

t
I I    ` iI I=?/ C; I s c: 9 i-----    .

t:     
14'  

T

1_,. _ 7. ,       i

I

r 1—
i      —..3 i      ;,     1.          '      iI

I--  ; i j—:,   ..j
Yd

h'..    ;\,\`    /       1_` - I

I___
il

I       >:`,     
l!,     i'

1 '    
I?`'  

1 ,t
J

i_.{_   

I—_. _-  

I    •a
I:      

4

Yd   .._-_         1    ;
4

4
i      I    ,      ,'

a-`'.   
i

I I L 3x--'.-m''

i
f_.

I
e

ac

u:, F rn. cl.:: 6RIvE

rc Ac 3 f?   ...   r____ _ -- --    
e ti, m.-,      

b     ' !
I I   ( .,–__ , ,

I— I   

5  p._.._ w_ ,,..     
i

i..    ,.,          
a

r.; r:::  I { l  t i<l. Z

I s,   
or

1 ll         (              

t, r..   1-----         I
w

I
6fiJ t;_  C Il i{ 

i       .-,;..
I. F.fii_iv,:: ll;"    

4,.`.
I -_       I rn

u             1  .        I II{   
T

n I
1

u u,: .   I?1C i 337: 7 ii r`--  
F

i I
iu

l_--•--'" i      - ,-

J/""   ,  

u 1/ i
I       

a
8 G

I E
r

c,; pi'. i '. 1 T JiJ. i 9g I I/"" 1t.11 f V?      :-
i i_-iLF I:_     3       

Jvrl
i.. 

I

V'   IN I_  .._-  -  -..._. f

y C  f T I I I    , i   
y).

i
Y 6

m. a   

a... a..-....-... e.. a-....... a     ...... m.... a.  _     _ '.,_,,.,."/`     
L _  ____'    _' "'` q_= 1.'-'_' l _"_--'__-__ __ - -i ._._ —._ -.

I
LAKESIDE DRIVE

i ar r mos w noanrm            om   r cm n   !    

O
pr s er    v srn.

4
a     I 0 2i    ''  :  '    i  i  '  h h tu t:  i?       I

a ,  :; 
s;  :   _

TRACT 3826 ,   
a s     , o  „  , z  , a

j I L . TRACT 3893 E, HUNTINGTONWAY     TRACT J0.72
HUNTINGTONWAY TRACT 3825 

9 1     6 w zi ar i il p; e v P.  s s n p  :. i ni is i5
1

9'+     
w

j1
w 1  _,      1aO     ie. io

3s ss  ^ za       ^ z ' 3 a   ¢ c 9
11'   

w w   ;

a  ; i u o is iz , " o    ;.-     1
nQ

a: u   ;  >   ; I;: o
uoi _  01_    ?      11      >     

o ft_-    z
u' J

LI:   ¢ o o   ;
c. a  ;, ;  p  o:  e ;..       .. _  ..   ¢      @

a is

zo a v a:  z   .,. bl 2   z u n
ll.    Q u +  2 u p  2i '       s      

is Y    _ 4_.-       _  9t` -  o s     
I         :    ...    

3 ,
i             '%i:      io

00
t         

i  ' s

y
re'

3 1 J:.    w   . 3    __   w 1
v,           Y

1 LOCKSLEY DRIVE  '° a
e

ANSLEY DRIVE

1       ' 
r n   _  . y  ,  i.     s a n  : z a  : a

1 n  ' J  ' 9   .  ')  r ie v to x  a ri x' I.   *` g
5      _  : e zi  ¢ o i  [ n  •„  i,-  n  a   , :       1

Pi's l5l. 7'''.! 1 1

p 1

EXHO aT "

1' B aCTS DJ 9 ' O
TG aCT 3 2

@' LL E D  E

IA 201

241



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 11 of 13

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSUI NCE REQUIREMEI TTS

1. Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to do
business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no less
than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000,000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer(s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss."

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least
thirty( 30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

242



Page 1 of 1

Al.       
DATE( MMIDD/ YYYY)

CEFtTIFICATE OF LIe ILITY IIVSURANCE oQi2„ 2o18

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND COMFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF IfdSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COFITRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE
1- 877- 945- 7378

F     
1- 668- 467- 2376

c/ o 26 Century Blvd
A!C No Ext:      A/C No:

E- MAIL
certi£icates@willis. com

P. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS:

Nashville, TN 372305191 IISA INSURER S AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED INSURER B:
River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURERD:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: weoo9oes REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
pOLICY NUMBER

MMIDDY EFF
MMDD

EXP
LIMITS

LTR

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR PREMISES Ea occu ence    $

MED EXP( Any one person)    $
Y ATN- SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

pERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER:   GENERALAGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY JEC7  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/OPAGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER: 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANYAUTO BODILYINJURY( Perperson)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED

AUTos oNLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE S

DED RETENTION 5

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE  
N A

E. L. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICERlMEMBEREXCLUDED7

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT S

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is requiredJ

Re: Final Map Tract No. 3825 - River Islands - Village D

The City o£ Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and members thereoP, its employees and agents

are included as Additional Insureds as required by written contract on a Primary and Non- contributory basis with

respect to the General I.iability policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Dr L

Lathrop„ CA 95330

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016103)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sR io: 16072939 Tctc: 688839

243



POLICY NUMBER: ATN-SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 10 0413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or

Organization s Location s Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person(s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:   

respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:    1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     Project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional
in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured(s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 
2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
However:    intended use by any person or organization other
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only

than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 2010 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

244



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
required by a contract or agreement, the most we Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

245



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN-SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party's Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.     

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

246



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN-SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written

notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective
date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/Orqanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330  '

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

247



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3825
Page 12

EXHIBIT D

COHEN/PARADTSE/STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

248



a
A

w

a.,.,,.,.. o

na orvnrio ee Fuu. w vm ro ora ro aa Puei. c
EX Fll B 1 T•• p"

I RWIDWAYTOBEREPNR ABAIJrWEATH6t@FROENLYV911q.EACC 01iY ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBIT

0 , Y,,,, t,,     
RIVER ISLANDS

in: isme. a  .,,, Hnu, i  , ir a ia

249



EXHIBIT "E"

j   't 3

ENG1 NEE-R1 NG

ENGINEER'S BOND ESTIMATE July 20, 2016
COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25501- 40

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

TRACT 3825& 3826( 131 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drain, Water Testing& Raising Iron( s5/ Completron)       1 LS   $     50, 200. 00  $ 50, 200. 00

2 Joint Trench( 50/ Completion)   1 LS   $   477,800. 00  $       477, 800. 00

3 Fine Grade, Rock& AC Paving( 50/ Completion) 1 LS   $   380, 100. 00  $       380, 100. 00

4 Signing, Striping& Monumentation( o/ Completion)       1 LS   $     25, 000. 00  $ 25, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       933, 100. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on Teichert Construction's cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents

for Tract 3825& 3826( New Home Company) received on July 20, 2016.

6200 STONERIDGE Y1ALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209.571. 2466

T: 25501- River Islands Phase 40- 3825 8 3826 1P\ Words 8 Excell8ond Estimate 2016- 07-20 Tract 3825 8 3826 Bond Estimates. xls\ Improvements

250



3

yi

a'    Ri sXa rds - Tra 3 25- G U d.er rc und

Y

Confact: Ly Pl a t

t o: 209-98:i-2332

r:   

uote" Co:     Jol n Pccl: Jab iJan e:

D te nf Plans.
Nl uire;   I' evision D1te:

Fzx:

iTEM bES RIPTIOI      QUANTITY UNiT UNiT PR{ CE AMOU i"T'

99 SANITARY SE VER SYST M

lp{ $° S nit ry Sewer 3, 957.00 LF 2I. 00 53, 497.00

200  ! 2" Sai itary Sewer 1, 859.00 LF 29_Ob 53, L1. 0

3 0 " Sanitary Setiver 5e vices 13 L00 EA SGO, pO 73, 3b0.00

40 Sanitary Sewer Manhale 21. Q0 EA 3, 9Q0, 00 81, 900.00

50Q Connect to x'ssting 12" SS Piug 1. 00 GA 2,504.00 2, 50. 4U

G00 TJewatering for Sewer l,DO LS 4a,flQQ, O 40, oa.ao

b99 SUl3T(} TAL SANITARY S V R 5334,' 6S.

S'TORM DR N SYS'' M

10U0 I" Starm Drain 851. 00 LP 33. 00 61, U83. 00

106 i5" Storm Urain Laterials 4SG.00 LF'     38. OQ 18, 68.0

I'> 00 f R" Storiat Druin 8$ 0,00 Li'      3G.00 31, GSQAp     `

130Q 2 3" Storm Drain 953. 00 L,F aa. aa i, 932.OQ

l40( 30" 5torr t Drain 473.00 LF 75. 00 35, S50. OU

ISOU 36" Stonn Drain i49.00 LF 100.00 1 1, 900.0

IGO(i Type/ 1. Inlet 3. Ot1 EA 1, 700.OQ 5, 100.

17UQ Type A Inlet Uver Type 1 i[ I-I 30.00 E 1 3, 000.00 90, ODO. bO

5800 Type A 4nlet C ver' I'ype 1F Nlt-I 1. 00 SA 6, 0OO. OR 6,{} OO. OR

I900 SDA4H Type I 3A0 EA 3, 2UU.00 9, 600,Q0

200f} SDNfH Ty e II 2.0{1 EA S, ISO.Q4 l0;340A0

z99 SCjSTOT L 5"FOItM DRAI:Y SYST M 32, 13. U0

IVAT R SXSTE 1

250(] 8" W1ter G, Z57. 00 LF 23. Q0 l43,917. 04

26Q0 1" W ter Service 132A4    A G95. 00 9 i, 7 l0.4Q

2740 l. S" Wnter Service( SH 9) lA4 EsA 1, i 00.00 l, 100, 0U

2800 2" Water Service( SH 9)  2.00 Et   1, 300A0 2, b00.00

Z) OU 3" 1Vater Service StuU( 5I-I 6)     I. 4D EA 1, 500.00 i, Q0.00

295 3" NPW Service 5tub( 5H IS)     I_00 EA 2, 800.q0 2, g00.0U

Pag 1 af 2

251



ry

P"[ TEN'I DESCRIP'I'(OTf QLJAN`C1TY LJNIT UNIT 1' RICE A1V10UNT

30 U Fire Hydraat Asseu blies 10A0 EA 5,275.0f1 52,75t7. Op

3100 S" GV 30.p    EA 1, 373. 00 41, 25Q,006

40p Cot neci to istin       2_d0 EA 2, SODAO 5, 400.00

3599 Sl'JI3T TALINA.TE4tSY ST IV]    G• 1

t

ATITERIVATE I'I' NIS

39UU fR1 p v,- r LurDro     s.00 E  z, nv.ao la,sor. ao

UOU lrc- Lirze 130k « Yer•liea! Drvn 6 da ER 3,.500.00 ZJ, f70D. 00

5999 St113T TAL ALTGR?I 1T C' TEIVIS 31, 5QU. 0

GRAI lD TOTAL 1, 002,332.44

1 ld,,. n, tJ      1

Page 2 of 2

252



r'    

GONSTRUC710N AGREEM NT

EXHIBIT A

CONTRACT Nl1MBER:     2015-243

CaNTRACT DA7E; November 10, 2015

P o cT NAti E;  River Islands at LatE rop

PRo. c'r Locaffor:     73 West Stewarf Road, LaFhrop, CA g
CONTRACTOR:    MOC8i14 TfBI1CIlIllg, LTD

TvPe O WortK: Joint Trenah Utility Coniractor

I. PROJEGT

River lslands at Lathrop

IL SCOP O WORK
a

Completian oi all Work items listed betow:    

r

TRACT' 3825 - 826

7rench & 8ackfill

36" x 63"    Trench A 777 ff 31. 50 24, 475. 50

36" x 63"    Trench A9 290 if 31, 50 9, 135, 00

36" x 55"    Trench A2 2,422 If 23. 7 57,522.50

36" x 55"     Trench A3 9, 267 f 23. 75 3, 091. 25

2" x 60"     Trench I 96 If 25. 75 5, 047,00

2#" x 52"     Trenc{     i9 522 if 18. 75 9, 787.50

36" x 52"     Trench M1 1, 392 IP 23. 25 32, 364,00

24" x 52"     Trench M2 stub 1, 139 If 1a.75 21, 356.25
l

36" x 6Q"    Trench M4 873 If 3Q. 75 26,844,75

42" x 38"     Trench W a9 If 12. 25            600,25

12" x 22" .   Trench W4 1, 053 f 11. OQ 11, 583. 04

Befl f- fole for Gas Tie ln 2 a 2, 965.00 5,93D, Q0

234,737. 00

Uatilts/ Splice Boxes( xcavate Onlvl z
Secondary Box

17" x 30"     LID l8"}    43 ea 170, 00 7, 330. 00

Seconclary Rox
24" x 36"     Li 26")    11 ea 200. OQ 2,200. 00

5

253



4

Primary
3' x 5' I. ID Box 2 ea 90. 00 1, 180.00

Primary
4' x6'6°      LfD Bax 3 ea 765, 00 2,295A0

36° x 2"     LIi7 7ransPormer Pad      5 ea S40. OQ 8, 100. Q

Tetephone Box 220. 00

17" x 3U"     A f̀'& T      ( 34"}    16 ea 3, 2a.oa

Telsphone Box

3' x 5' AT&T      ( 36"}    ea b90,00 69a.04

Misc. CATV Pedestal/ Box 3 ea 85,00 3,655.00

28, 85a.00

Vat Its1S lice oxes( Supplv& Instal(7

S co dary Sox
97" x 30"     I. ID 18°)    43 ea 315.00 13, 5 5.40

Secondary Box
24" x 36"     . 1D 26")    11 ea 655. 00 7, 205.OQ

Prlmary
3' x 5' Llb Bax 2 ea 3, 065, 0   6, 130,00

Prlmary
4' x 6'6"      LI D Box 3 ea 6, 505. 00 19,5' f 5. 00

36" x 5"     l.lp Transfarmer Pad      5 ea 825.00 12,375.0o
Telephane Bax

17" x 30"    AT&T      3 4"}    6 ea 466.00 7,} 0. 00
Tefephane E3ox

3` x 5' AT&T     ( 35"}    ea 2,675. 00 2,675.00

ss,sss.ao

Canduit

4"    . Ia Cor duif 841 ff 3. 7Q 3, 1. 70

3"     LiD Conduit 7,8d2 If 2. 90 22, 625.$ D
a

2"     L. 1D Canduit 6, 194 If 2, 15 13, 308. 5Q       ,

4"     A Ì'& T Candulf 6,4Q0 If 4.'! 0 25,240. 00

2"     AT&T Conduit 17, 100 ff 2. 15 36, 765. 0

102, 05' f. 00

Gas System

Gas

2"     Main 6, 746 If 3. 5 2' I, 249.9
Gas Stub Service

1"     Onty 31 ea 205, 00 26, 55,OU

1"     xeess FlawValve 77 ea 65. 00 5, 005,00

53, 908.90

Electric SY em
Pad Mounted 7r nsfarmer( 26-   

f 502)  S pply)   6 ea By Others By Others
P d Mounted Transform r( 28-   
9502)   Inskalij 6 ,    ea 375, 00 2, 250.00

ad Maunfed Transfarm r( 26-   
1503)   Supply)   9 ea 13y Others By OtY ers

254



S

g
i

Pad Mounted Transformer( 26-   r
1503)  Install)    9 ea 375. 00 3, 375.00

i

Primary Cable( 1/ 0- 1W)      Supply)   1 Is 24,825. 00 24, 825. 00

Primary Cable( 1/ 0- 1W)      lnstaff)    7, 545 If 2. 50 18, 862.50

Secondary Cab(e 110-AT Supply)   1 Is 265.00 265.00

Secondary Cable 1/ 0-A7 Install)    169 If 0, 80 135. 20
f

Secondary Cable 4/ Q- AT Supply)   1 Is 7, 760. 00 7, 760.00

1
Secondary Cable 4/ 0-AT Install)    3,511 If 0. 80 2, 808. 80

Secondary Cable 350-AT Supply)   1 Is 3, 680.00 3, 680.OQ 3
i

Secondary Cable 350-AT    .       ( Install)    981 If 0. 80 784, 80
i

Primary/ Secondary Splicing 1 Is 53, 865.00 865.00

118, 6' 11. 30

Liqhtinq 5vstem
Decorative Electrolier-     

35W LED Complete 53 ea 6, 1d0. 00 323, 300.00

1- 1/ 2° Conduit w/ 2-# 8 Cu. Wire 224 If 5. 00 1, 120. 00

1- 1/ 2" Conduitw/ 3-# 8 Cu. Wire 63 If 5. 5Q 346.50

Conduit w/ 2-# 8 Cu. Wire&       

1- 1/ 2" Grd 3, 347 If 5. 50 8, 408.5Q

Conduit w/ 3-# 8 Cu. Wire&       
1- 1/ 2" Grd 132 If 6. 00 792. 00

4
3- 1/ 2 Splice 6ox 94 ea 735. 00 12 690.00

Metered Pedestal( Install

1QOA Only) 1 ea 2, 500. 00 2, 500.00

359, 157. 00

na
SUB TOTAL = 965,40' 1. 20

TRACTS 827 - 3828

Trench &  ackfill

36" x 63"    Trench A 1, Q53 31. 50 33, 169.       

36" x 63°     Trench A't 694 IF 31. 50 21, 869. 00

i
36" x 55"      rench A2 1, 586 If 23. 75 37, 667.50

36" x 55"       ench A3 1, 339 If 23. 75 31, 801. 25

9
24" x 60"     Tr nch I 138 If 25,75 3, 553.50

F

24" x 52"    Tre ch 11 172 If 8. 75 3, 225.00

7

i   
255



y

r"

a

d+"  :.;: 

R ER ISI ANDS - TRAC'I' 3825 TUP STDE
s'       

i W T
Cantact: Bah iurd

Phane: 209 483-2334

ag:   

u te To:     Jobn Peck 701 Name:

Date o£Plau&;    

Phane:    Itevision Date:

Fax:

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTI7'Y UNIT iTAiIT PRICE AMOUN'T       

F7NE GRADE, ROCK& PAVE

lOd Fine Gxade{ RW W RW)   192,544.04 SF 0.3' 7 72, 241. 28

20D Sth 5treet 4.5" AC/ S" t1B 4,24$. OU S       3. 00 12,74. 00

30d Mariner's Drive 3" AC/ 7" AB 3, 860.00 SF 2,35 4,071AQ

400 Interior Streets 4.5" AC! 8" AB 95,464.Op SF 3.00 286,392.00

450 AB Cushion Under Concxete 6,09-. 04 I,F 3.65 22,243. 1 a

SII TOTAIa 1 1V GRADE, ROCK& PAVE 401,691.3

CQN'CRETE
7Q0 Vexticat Curb& Gutter 2, 522.00 LF 13. 50 34,047.00

8Q0 Rvll Type G rh& Gatter 3, 387.00 LF I4.SQ 49, 11 i.5fl

900 Type i'IvFedian Curb I85.Op LF 25.40 4,625.00

LQ00 5" Concrete Sidewalk-Inetuding Round Comexs 30,892.00 SF 3.45 I06,S77,40

1 l OU Haudicap Ramps{ Lahor Qxay)   14.00 EA 2,375.00 33,250.00

1200 6" Concrete Median Strip Sth Street 63I. 00 SF S. SQ 3, 415.50

1300 Catch Basin- tap out only, 3ron supplied hy nthers 3. 00 EA 525.OU I 7,850.OQ

SUBTOTAL CONCR TE 2 t8,875,40

MISCELLANEOUS

1600 4" Sleeves( 2 Per Lot, 3 Per Corner Lat)       i41. 00 EA 45.00 6,345.00

SUBTOTAL MISCELLANEQUS 6,345. OD  .

GRAND TOTAL 656,912.78

Page 1 of 9

256



i

f

J

RIVER. SLAZlTD - TI2ACT 382G

Revision- 2/22/ 1G

1 M 1E' T
Contact: Ly I'lian

Phone: 09 983- 2332

Fax:

uote To:     John Pecic

1TEM DBSCRiPTION QUl1NTITY UN1T UNl'f PR10E AMOUNT

Fg TE GRA.DE, ROGK& PAVE TRACT

3826

1Q0 Fine Grade( RW to RW)   172,488. 00 SF 0.37 63, 820.56

I_...------; _ --- --
400 inYerior Streets 4.5 AC/ 8 AB 91,639.00 SF       3_0a 274,917.Q0

450 AS Cushion Under Concretc: 5, 409.00 LF 3. 65       _,_ 1.9,.,.,7:42,85.,...;

590 SUBTOTAL TINE CRAD, ROCK& PAV     3 8; a8U: 1-''

TRAC[' 3$ 2G pd  j Oz'    6 _6ac,

CONCR T- TRACT 3826

700 Vertical Cnrb Sc Gutter 1, 774_00 LF 13. 50 23,949.00

800 Roll Type.Curb& Gutter 3, 635.00 LF 14.50 52,707.50

16 0 6" Concrete SidewalklncludingRound Corners 28, 138.00 S       3. 45 97,076. 1U

110U H udicap Ramps( Labor On1y)  1U. 00 EA 2,375. 00 23,750.UQ

130U Catch Basin top out only, Iron supplied by others 17. 00 EA SZS. OU 8, 25. 0,0, _,

I39.0 SUBTUTA.C, CQNCR.ETE TRACT 3R26 1 4 1' 7: GQ"~^
rJJ 59   G G(     +/..

Sr " J

MISCELLAIVEQUS TRACT 382G t"' 

1G00 4" Sleeves( 3 PerLot)  2U1. 00 EA 45.00 9, 045. 0

179(1 SUBTOTAL MISCELLAN OTJS TRACT 3826

S " c/, 
oi

I'      GRAll  , RO     & PA'V T CT

38 8

1800 Ein Grade( RW RW)   212,03 . 00 SF 0.37 78,4 32

190Q ior Sireets 4.  AC/  AIi 23, 5  . 00 SF 3. 00 70,51 . UO

I925       ' C/7" AB 33, 9 . , 00 SF 2. 25 76,3G.. OU

1950 ul e- Sacs 3" AC  " 62,  7.00    SF 2. I0 131, 95 0

200  . B' ushion Und ncrete 7 19.OQ LF 3. 63 27,80 5

2i9 S TOTt L {   GRADE, R K Sc PAV    385;1U 37?:; -`:

TRACT 3323 t     v .    .' '

r _ .-------- -  ...__     _.__... ...  _..._._._ ._. .    ._.  .-    - ---. ...  ._.._.    .---.       ._. _._ _..  . ..._.._.   ..

CO RETE T1tA  ' 3$28

22_ 0 Verti tl Ctub utter 1, 9( 2,Q0 11F F3. 50 2G,. . 7.00

2300 Rolt Type C U& u[ter 4,S$ 5. 00 Ll      14.50 66,  2.50

Page of 2

257



I      Attachment " D"

l
T --

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS i
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

May 14, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3825; Escrow No. 1211040287

Dear Karen:       

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" R1D"), and the City of
Lathrop(" City') in connection with the above- referenced escrow(" Escrou'_). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.  

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the
Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by May 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RI D, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " C/osin'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by December 31, 2018,
ORTC will return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Document

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" O cial Records").

One original Final Map for Tract 3825, executed and acknowledged by City. The
document listed above is referred to as the" Recordation Document." The date on

which the Recordation Document is recorded in the Official Records is the
Recordation Date.

Copies should be sent via email to Cari James (ciamesCu ci. lathrop.ca. us). Cindy Yan at
Goodwin Consulting Group, cindvCc qoodwinconsultinq4roup. net, Susan Dell' Osso
sdellossoCa.riverislands. com) and Debbie Belmar( dbelmar aC. riverislands. coml together

with conformed copies of all documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RI D, prior to the recor,dation of the

Recordation Document, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in

1

258



JOINT ESCiaOalV INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FIiVAL MAPS

RIVER I LANDS T L 4TFIROP)

accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Settdeareeref ta¢ement'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement. Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of R1D.

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity se4 forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance writh the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 38,726.84, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as
amended (" Sierra Club Agreeme ef'), constituting the amount of$ 3,076.00
multiplied by 12.59 acres (or portion thereof included in the Final Map, is to
be transferred to the City upon recordation of the Final M p. The City's wire
instructions are set forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are refe red to as the uClosing Funds."

D.       Closins Requirernents

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time(s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.    You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso (sdellossoCa)riverislands.com), Debbie Belmar
dbelmarCe riverislands.com), Stephen Salvatore( ssalvatore(cc ci. lathroq.ca. us), Salvador

Navarrete (snavarreteCa ci. lathro. ca.us), Cari James( ciamesCa ci. lathrop.ca.us) and Glenn

Gebhardt( QQebhardtC ci. lathrop.ca.us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is

accurate and acceptable.

D. 2.    You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3.    The Recordation Document and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D.4.    You are prepared to record the Recordation Document, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete

the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5,    You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by

2

259



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

email transmission (with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D.6.    You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell'Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation
Document and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chranological order given:

E. 1.    Date the Recordation Document to be recorded.

E.2.    Record the Recordation Document in the Official Records.

E.3.    Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E.4.    Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn: Susan Dell'Osso

E. S.    Notify Susan Dell'Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov.org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E.6.    Within five (5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330.

A)  A certified copy of the Recordation Document, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Document; and a

B)  A certi ed copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

3

260



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow lnstructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Susan Dell'Osso Stephen J. Salvatore

President City Manager
River Islands Development, LLC City of Lathrop

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWI:EDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged. The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions. The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.   

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

261



1

262



ITEM 4. 13    ,'
i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA)  FOR 31 LOTS IN

TRACT 3874 VILLAGE A" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF

RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3874   '
Village  " A"  within East Village,  Totaling 31 Single
Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694 ( VTM 3694), Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop, which included a Neighborhood
Design Plan, Architectural Guidelines, Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and Parks Master

Plan for the East Village neighborhood located west of the Community South River
Bend ( CSRB) neighborhood, by Resolution No.  15- 3912 and an Amendment to the

West Lathrop Specific Plan and River Islands Urban Design Concept by Ordinance No.
15- 344.    

This proposed Final Map Tract 3874 ( Summer House) will be the final tract map within
the Village A" area. Van Daele Homes, an existing River Islands builder ( Summer

House, Castaway and Latitude), is proposing thirty- one ( 31) 60' x 100' single- family
lots.  Tract 3874 is part of the Summer Housing neighborhood.  A Vicinity Map is
included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3874,
Village " A" and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( Attachment C) with River

Islands Development, LLC ( River Islands").

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3874 as proposed by River
Islands Development,  LLC (" River Islands"),  as the subdivider,  complies with the

most current conditions of approval.

The land for Tract 3874 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with updated
conditions of approval.  On September 20,  2017,  by Resolution No.  17- 01,  the

Planning Commission approved an amendment to the East Village Architectural
Design Guidelines and Development Standards  ( DG/ DS)  to accommodate the

Summer House product within Village " A" ( Tract 3874).

263



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3874 VILLAGE A" TOTALING 31 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off-site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3874 requires that security ( cash or

bonds) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village " A."

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (' Off-site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off-site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements. Tract 3874 will not trigger any additional off-site
improvements and the Off-site Agreement will apply to Tract 3874 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for ofF- site
improvements.

All in- tract improvements,  except for Somerston Parkway,  have been completed,

other than thermoplastic striping.  With the approval of the first final map within
Village " A" ( Tract 3873), River Islands posted performance bonds for the u'nfinished

improvements within all of Village " A" including Tract 3874. As a result, the SIA for
Tract 3874 reaffirms the posting performance and labor and materials bonds first
required by the SIA for Tract 3873. Acceptance of all public improvements will be
processed by staff at a later date when the unfinished improvements are complete.
At that time, River Islands will be required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds

as a warranty for the completed infrastructure.

Finally, before the Final Map Tract 3874 is recorded, River Islands must also satisfy
the Escrow Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required fees are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has substantially completed the street and utility improvements within
the entirety of Village " A." Prior to acceptance of public improvements within Village
A" the posted security is for 120% of the estimated cost to complete the unfinished

improvements and previous bonds posted with Tract 3873 remain in full force and

effect.   RID shall provide a 10%   maintenance bond to guarantee the full

improvements  (completed and uncompleted) for one year.  Prior to acceptance of

these improvements,   River Islands has provided the tract map,   the tract

improvement plans, all required documents and all fees for Tract 3874.

This includes the following documents and fees:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 3874

264



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3874 VILLAGE " A" TOTALING 31 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided Completed

with Tract 3874

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.     Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks
Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.     Approval of 3rd Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off-site improvements to serve this Tract 3874 have already been
completed;   including construction of levees,  participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility

infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off-site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded,  River Islands must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club
are made under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

265



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3874 VILLAGE A" TOTALING 31 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS.DEVELOPMENT, LLC

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance. River Islands is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff
time required to process their request.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3874 Village A" within East Village
District,  Totaling 31 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.       Tract 3874 Village A" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  for Tract

3874, Village ` A"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3874 Village ' A"

266



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3874 VILLAGE A" TOTALING 31 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

APPROVALS

d
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Eng neer

Cari James Date

Finance Director

i

y- 3D 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S•?• ag
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

267



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3874 IN VILLAGE " A"

TOTALING 31 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT

AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map ( VTM) No. 3694 with Conditions of Approval for a residential and commercial

development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) and the

River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on ] une 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3874, the proposed subdivision, is part of the East Village

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 31 lots covered by VTM
No. 3694, located on the west side of the San Joaquin River, north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS, in its review of all tracts within Village ' O" including Tract 3874,
the Stewart Tract Design Review Committee recommended approval of Tract 3874

on November 3, 2015; and

WHEREAS, River Islands Development, LLC, has completed or has guaranteed

completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3874,  as identified on the

approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion of all

required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and
River Islands Development,   LLC,   and provision of security by River Islands

Development, LLC, for unfinished and deferred improvements are required prior to

final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by River
Islands Development, LLC, and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete, a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the River Islands

Development, LLC, obligation to maintain all improvements and repair or correct any
defective work; and

WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS,  off-site improvements were guaranteed with the Dedication,
Inspection and Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements ( Off-site Agreement),
approved by City Council on September 30, 2013; and

268



WHEREAS, City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of VTM
3694 required for approval of Final Map 3874 have been met,  including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off-Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3874
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM No. 3694, is technically correct and
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS,   River Islands Development,   LLC,   will satisfy the escrow

requirements to fund the Settlement Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for
Tract 3874; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that makes and accepts the following actions:

1.       That the Final Map for Tract 3874 Village " O" is hereby approved as submitted
as part of the public record with the San ] oaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County
Clerk Office.

2.       That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, in substantially the

form as attached to the May 14, 2018 staff report, the file executed copy will be filed
with the City Clerk.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 14th
day of May 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

269



ttachment 'B"

a
EMERSON STRE T

i

j L

I c     • 
r<       S I—    

Ia+.,.'.,..`
a      

U   =

L j
G z cnL1J

e; v z

s 5 w r,       i

O       -      0
6

9 0 7       
c.  0

u i7 1 u

g    i       '       l

6

J5 9;     
rv,,' h

sn o ca. . .  .. _...   -   -  - .

X ACADEMY DRIVE

an- e er-..- q:.. _     p-. e- e eii a. n u-  ..

16

ar _ di          
a

17 t8 19 20  21 22 23 2      25

6 j,
r`?

p_

2 15
17 18    19 20  t 2 3 4 5

t:a•  2 15

y`      Q
3 3 RYSTA oR E TRACT 3 74 e6

8       

z
i ti    o

q 3          
21

46      51   
Z, 

56
Z 

01 27        
4 13       

W

O
5 12

w 47 _    52       >      57 62 2&         OK COURT g a
e z zo         6     e

Q   
a ze o  ,    

B
6 11

t1 c 23    G'  53 ie       2  
58

py
63

w
29 9  

d S 

m

7  
10  

24
49     54

26

O

25
55

30
04 Q '''

A

I       

T ACTi
50        w ,

B 8 9 y 25
5

2t zo
60

3 
65

m 4,   p 31
IA m ,;

TRACT 3 27    BALFOUR DRIVE 3
3    3 73

i  c    
45    4 43 d2 41 40  39 3f1 37 36 35 34 33

28 27   - 20 29 30 31  16 15 14 13 72 11 10

a_ x- rrar-. a,-r a.a+c- axn- w3-    
m. cs td er so uR mt. rs..l ri e x s aa: m  ,.

LAKESIDE DRIVE

t_  . _

g6 j I

J I I 1
py__ yy q@] r`   

gph' yAf 9Nl1NTII GTON WAY   l,. t    

I

G_   I LL8  4,
rry 41_\ i

c    I     1 ` f       
I

f f,   

i 

3 4 9 G 
ec oo

@ D B G

2

270



Attachment " C"

SUSDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFO1tNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, FOR

31 RESIDENTIAL LOTS IN TRACT 3874 VILLAGE "A"

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this 14t" day of May, 2018, by and between the
CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California (" CITY"), and River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" SUBDIVIDER").

B.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3874. However, SUBDNIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with

Tract 3874 and the adjacent Tracts of 3873 and 3827 as part of the Village "A" area of the East

Village District of River Islands. The unfinished portion of improvements total $ 2,285,000 and

both performance and labor and materials( payment) bonds as required by the Lathrop Subdivision
Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act were posted with the approval of Tract 3873 and will be
required to be held by CITY as outlined in this Tract 3874 Subdivision Improvement Agreement
unless otherwise substituted with other security as outlined in this Agreement.

C.       At its September 30, 2013, meeting, the City Council approved an Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication of Easement for Roadway Purposes and approved an Agreement for Dedication,
Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements for certain backbone roads and

improvements including Lakeside Drive that provides public right of way access to Tract 3874
and adjacent tracts.

D.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tracts 3873,

3874 and 3827 in accordance with the separate set of joint trench improvement plans and street

light plans prepared by Power Systems Design, Inc.
The street,  sidewalk,  underground utility,  storm drainage,  street light and joint trench

improvements( hereinafter" Improvements") have only partially constructed as part of the required
infrastructure for Tracts 3873, 3874 and 3827 which includes improvements associated with

adjacent tracts. Only the deferred and unfinished improvements for Tracts 3873, 3874 and 3827
are necessary to provide access to these tracts.  As a result, the amount bonded with the prior

approval of Tract 3873, was 120% of the amount of unfinished and deferred improvements as

shown in Exhibit E ($ 2,285,000 X 120%_$ 2,742,000— performance bond amount).

271



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for

Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 2 of 13

The corresponding labor and materials bond amount posted is 50% of the performance bond

amount($ 2, 742,000 X 50%_ $ 1, 371, OQ0).

E.       The term " Improvements" as used in this Agreement means all improvements necessary
for Tracts 3873, 3874 and 3827. As a result, the total value ofpublic improvements for these tracts

is$ 2, 953, 000 as shown in E ibit E to this Agreement. The required Maintenance Bond for Tract

3873 shall be equal to 10% of the cost of Improvements as shown in Exhibit E; ($ 2, 953, 000 X

10%_$ 295,300—maintenance bond amount). The maintenance bond shall be posted to guarantee

maintenance of all improvements for a full year following acceptance by CITY.

1VOW TI3EREFORE in consideration ofCITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improveinents upon their satisfactory completion and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the East Village neighborhood,

to the limits identified on E ibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike inanner in accordance with the above-referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CITY' S

Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the California
Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the first home constructed in Tract 3874 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3874 associated with the filing of
Tract 3874 or prior to the completion and occupancy of the first production dwelling unit
associated with Tract 3874, whichever comes first. Such occupancy shall be documented by CITY
in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY or its agents shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may rej ect the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these inatters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

272



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 3 of 13

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. Prior to acceptance of the Improvements,

SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Maintenance Bond in the amount of
295,300,  equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the Improvements for the entire area as

summarized in Recital F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' S repair and maintenance of the Improvements

in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be released at the

end of the one ( 1) year guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recital " D" were required to

provide access and required utilities to Tract 3874 and are associated with adjacent tracts as

otherwise described in this Agreement, as well as backbone roads associated with the Agreement

for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee ofPublic Streets and Improvements referenced in Recital

D", the security required by the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public
Streets and Improvements shall remain in place until the backbone improvements associated with

that agreement are complete and accepted by CITY or as is further described by the conditions
below:

a. Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit D are required, and rehabilitation is guaranteed

by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed prior
to release of security previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

8. If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement or fails to repair, replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may but is not required to proceed to complete
and/or repair, replace or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for such
service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein as is
necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials, repair and

maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER.

273



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 4 of 13

In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an action to compel performance of this
Agreement or to recover costs of completing such improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall pay
reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in
connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are partially complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only post
Performance or Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the deferred and unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 3873 as included and described in Exhibit E of this Agreement. The amount
of the performance bond required shall be 120% of the amount of unfinished and deferred

improvements as shown in Exhibit E ($ 2,285,000 X 120% _ $ 2, 742,000 — performance bond

amount) as indicated in Recital F. The corresponding labor and materials bond amount shall be
50% of the performance bond amount ($ 2,742,000 X 50% _ $ 1, 371, 000), also as indicated in

Recital F. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth
on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein with a new certificate of insurance required.

10.      Any alterations made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part hereof. The above-referenced sureties hereby
consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13. '    SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by or acting as agent for SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors or subcontractors.

SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits or legal
proceedings or any type that may be brought or instituted against CITY and indemnities on any
claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered
against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such action, suit or legal proceedings resulting from or
alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' S performance or non-performance of its duties and

obligations under this Agreement or from the negligent act or omission of itself, its agents,

contractors, representatives, servants or employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify

274



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 5 of 13

and hold harmless set forth in this section is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any
indemnity has prepared, supplied or approved any plan or specification in connection with this
work or subdivision whether or not any such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering
any of these matters. CITY does not and shall not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which
it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by
CITY of any deposit with CITY by SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by
SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered or alleged
to have been suffered by reason of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph
regardless of whether or not CITY has prepared,  supplied or approved of plans and/or

specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors
are or shall be considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts (" CFD") to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' S expense, obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of

275



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 6 of 13

Improvement construction,  SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3874.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.

In the calculation oftime hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last day. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of such
action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin.

276



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 7 of 13

ATTACI3MENTS:

EXHIBIT A:  FINAL MAP - TRACT 3874

EXHIBIT B:   ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3874

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:   COHEN/PARADISE/STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

IN WITNESS WI3EREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this

day of May, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Stephen J. Salvatore

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC,

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso, President

SUBDIVIDER"

277



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 8 of 13

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP- TRACT 3874

278



g O ` 133HS
xri x s+rai, w,ix3nn oa 3o r oani u ai rnrs

rn reu uaawnrm r xux rta aa N mmw     9 a Nasmero an
m o rno w+no xmor,00r ms     

nnmoa carcz ix3ex nos x3a noa ma aAe mn Hoissmnoa. tn
wcra unroa- ma- uoss m mwme o uxnw ivdur+n d

xwum,Da wma/utr v s am. T yais mm rvt+

rroGm w n
ruvNxs

anennrr rlo hrtoo u     
m+vH am m w43NISt18 AINIIQJ 1Y 1,7NUd

Utatld) 3Xm
3i1 7 3tltl0 dNN 3fWL 9 HdVtl7YNVd Q!

U7V IR1 311LL QM
I11 M1 rMtlOi[TIJ d0 3lYLS 3HL 0 SMV1 31L tl30N11 AWY'tf3d 0 ACIYH3d N30N11 A IIt13 1

ll'— lY IGL
3! 11'd 1V 51Yid OHV SeIYM U lMI A1 SS 71U1       

Il FAHM d0 iM NOdfl AIW[ 3 3FLL tl0( 5)lqSmd 3HL'] HBIIItlLA7i 11 N0 3M11LrNalS
1 anaw amr 3mu a xaveAvava swm3nni uoWu Usx ae mu ern'( a ucrarr a orurn m3 w%nW+ w ns ru a na a1N3W31F/1S S,H3adOJ3H aFu i+nu m an eo ru u o sMn tt x arm wrou a o umaa x+ n m i       

xi/ 3/ iwu an m msmuawrrv arrv ix nrousw+ nw,a ru oi me sens aur/ g
ummauw u mira o a ls)xos e G5J311YN XA1 4S)N090d Il 38 OL 3 tfl01Aa JLOL71( l57I75 0 4S1B IL NO 311 O! Q Otld

3HL N 4iM d0 iMf39 NOdll AWlF7 3NL tlD' GS) XO51{ 3d 3HL L[ f1tlLSN1 3LL!( Sj Y11HYJ6
3N 3tl 8—

lmtll
dI Al1VNOSx3d' JflBfld AWION 0

n
eoiuhmV e mu on'( si0uer m a dwn aoxi/ rnWsu w rns atu muunc

11ua 4,
13FU.r{ S/ 3H 1YH1311 Ol Q lAl01q7'/ NY' LC IIfINI.T'1 MHllN 3HL Ol Q38Q615911S 1V/ SI

HI11Eh0 NVS d0 J,INIWJ5) fIN iWHM( 5)N0.Sifld 3HL 39( 1L 37N3 I3 ANOL7/ l9lK d0 SbIB 3H1 NO 311 Ol Q3 Otid YBltl0ifT7 d0 31Vi5rPWalfT7' dOtlX1Y1! O. Ut7 3HL 0! Li' 7L'N3 AID OHM Q ifllddY A77VNOStl3d' fl8fld JXIJINJ V
Nil[' oN LY91C 3' tl 70tlYXB3'J NtQI'1 3! I IR{39— l'   NO

ua rqaa tnit ao umrnn ao vatqai' s rtrt unaL u Low ar' m antv
Nuio.a rHs do ur noo 9 3LYJLiIUID IL FDMM Ol 1N3Ytti 0U IL Q31MI6 OHA1 lYflmnWN 3H1 d0. tllIH3N

j WOlC fiVJ d0 31Y15 IL AlNO 9LlRII1? LYJIn SW! 9NLL TAIW 0 H3H10 tl0 I19( 1d. WVION Y

A    Y   
TM" ti'''+ W+''       S d3NM0 31tl IdLLa3 1N3W3J43lMOMl t/

am yvntx t snusin do rroaadr io anu 3u b erxuar• ntu six mam a v t uim s u x oi ix moa u mrxxs o mmowaxt aru uux3a
ANV MH' dWOLLVI d0 A117 3LLl0 9JMMIQHO 3'T& V I7ddY 71V NLM Si1Jt0  3H1 AlhO 9liRi311 a v_xn m 9H1 9tlL M11¢ 1 U371ldD 1DHID YO 7fffiId. ttlqllN Y

dY11 M!L! SiLL lYLL 31YLS! l1HINft 1 ' d03lIDLL 4101d7flLiV m/DUdd1l A77V 0N Y89[
OK dAI 3NiYJN31 OMLSN IL! A Q l7V3ddY L SY 3T5 3HL A7TYLLNYLS8f15 S1 N03H3N
rUwxs u inu u tina rm aoaiun eo un•. cr rrun' ei ma 331S N 31VJI Ila3J 1N3W3rJQ3lMONHJb
smms r[ Yrac wL eo avn Tm i u m ma 3mm i inu mw hwmim     

8
dOEHM d0 AIA 3LL AO 1mNCIlD AUJ 3HL M I lYHL 3LVLS JIDN 1 Y tlHiH' J N! II%1' I

1N3W31V1S S d33N1'JN3 AlIJ merr a" a a

aS°
o x a`", wnm x ie aw

7lOL dD AYO- SQLL Q31Yf1

NtO1Q IT7 A 3Ltl15 7MOYq'

aaaun. io un
xrs eo, twna' aowun o. up u r+nm un u eo u m m ws

aaunua Lmrao a uwnnim imaos m a
sr arn rsnfli

rt3mmsa su
ro

3 l1i0 M NI Qili ONV dONHIVI! 0 VJHf10] Alp 3H1 A9¢ il dd/ Hi 18
31YH dYll tUli11N 3X1 J.NVdM00JY OL 11M J9 Q3tlIf103N SY SUH09 11V lYlil 3LYLS if lltlfl! 1

7.NVd11W AI( If9YT1 Q3LIIf1 VQ 71rJ Y' T7' 1lID1dDi A O 5@JYEI il3NN if3NqV0
IOL D AYG SELL Q3CN

9UOJ TIdGIW111
dOtlNdl Alp Il d0 017/ 37LL' B I H31dVN9 NLN N mL Id110] H339T DS599100 7DR7NYid 31L J 8 QiAONNt tEHf' OX dY113UlYlNjL OL 9mD. J d171 SVLL

3AYN SlH3M3h0Udf1I M$ 1L7Btl dn1 UIYS NO NX QIS SY Sp,N01OM l7Y! 0 NOLLY.NQ30 d0 dYll lYtB 9HL NO NMDF6 SY]] J] jjjj
tr3t 0 atu muar3a auv'%/// l// oeius u. a mia i sv s xn m u m+vn Yz en. s nu muaara sr mai lm au+ an' rs aKr u' u sim oi

1N3W31V1S S NOISSIWWOJ JNINNVId 3Hl 30 h IV13 lJ3S uHr u•u s m oi suan ss av o nt asurorrc a axi arv y w nanu r smwa
30 lFqltl 9i3W19Y TN dOEWLYI! 0 Atp 3Hl OL FSQIOH73M AH[ 1 900 Q31t 13GIg1 3HL

eiwatiatv 1NN'^a11l C35Y3 3dA6Q7Y1 51lQIOSr3. UfLIl1 I79fld TP/ d0 Nq1Y31m0 dVM TMLi 4H1 NO NMOHS SV JN91ftSY3 TNA3HL 35f1 Of18fId N0' d01WLVl JD Alp 3Hl d0. f1YFC39 NO UNY' NOLLYUtl07f3N
SY G31VIq190 SY3XY 3LL tlC! 11Yq UI05 3LL! 0 3JNYN31lIMI @IV tlfld3tl 0 S350dtl(kSll Q IOHIlIY @7I' d111 QIVS 31 lWdY 9NIL3311 IYS lY m1d0 Y!/ QSSYd Alfq

3H1 tlU! 1N3KISY3 3/Sfit7K3- NON Y' AII7 LL OL 311qIQ A83iL 1 900 mtYJ6l73ei1 3HL
3T J5 l l l ON NWIIl09tl iH HQdfO!l3Hl OW xYfOJ AIA M51VH1 ONY"— 101'

d'dW I.LINIJIA
ea aa— u no am mu 9Nu tmnmu r iv' MYl

dMll lYNli 91L NO NM016 SY' 7fi8fld il iD L9N38 3H1 1W!' o anuie mmnoaa s v no aw ans m mu a svix uns stu 5 xs( l xso
9JNYN31HMdY UNV' 911lWI f1611d ONqffAM' 950dtlfld 37YS NidO tlG! 0 HJIIOHFILd0' JM1519iD YP7N TA' dOtlHM.. UI9. LY 3t1YI1N' 9t 3SM1W' SONV if3W YL f Y SLP 1Hd 3i! W' dWlHLYI 0 AW 3LL Ol 31YJIm0 1 1 900 QiN9m[ i0NI1 3HL

1 Vi14 Qii1111lA dYfl mI00 113 1i DH 3F11 A711 3IV1S 1H3}Dil OU bQ tlO.lR j0 31YL5
M

5
dUNHLYI d0 A{p 3H1 i0' pNfIW AI7J IL d0 7Q13U mN/ WIIO. UD' SYJyYA YS3tl3L Y

I S

O @1 Nfl !       tl3

TIM! SIHl HO NA10}6 SY 0iY1 0 S UlS N M S OdH(id 3drJ5LNY1 11731CiSY3
1N3W31d1S SJia3l All    a- rrar v awsun o ua u oi atwima saoa a+ n axt

r19. 3' d sr mivN avn' Irxl sxi xo NMo a sv mm eo saltl i5 3N1 x3axn
y apH N3r,0 TlOdtl S'i NVtd} ItlIIddY tlOH! @1V 51111 HOJ miV' 9dH$ IIBIJ' S7tlYN' S IOd

tav rm mn wrma nws+a a anxLvim ai am 3xt wW tmu3 oi ymasv
311S 1 3I'Oad 9 N L 53 N l 9 N 3 NON Y d0lELLVl 0! Jp 3HL 01 3IYJIma AH3lI 1 900 QiN I%3UlCI 3H1

as S       dsv9emm s" ans saux Eu o- uxuxim
d nd aa aaa+m eo uo u ol umasre Nr ma Aoa mN mann u

o
c

a ,,     
voan m w+ xm a Nrs• aun ao uc Yrmoirn. wno

r"     ai.  uxrm wrevar xrs NY101OP NYS! 0 V3@1013tl AWf10 3HL d0 3JLi 0 il! ll d 71' Md 56LL 30 DlYIL{ @fV
w aen rr) ruc vai. i ava Nomn s r N01' AYditld 3i1 Ol 1Hi47RJ. 183M31 3Al ONY' SLa3B Ii) 1Fk10 d0 9NLL9SNW 1tNNQlf117

s JNm b flar s3e t acxra rou od r d0161tn do up'. cv 37vnN' 9t 3ma' SONv151 u31C!' tAr l VaL' atwwua dvn nai
31Y 3(rol MS W91Ci lAiml IllO Ul i]l1VNf108 1i 317 3H1 NI{ UIM H3 OMI Q 1V3NfII0

Eb 3rJNlll/
am u n io sv Mo u arr u mu au s x s oa' mrr, on u

84 StJHd- SaNHISI a3Al2i 1N3W31V1S S! l3NM0

L8E l`d Ils

279



TRACT 3874
NOTES RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B

7.  PoCMf l0 FAl01 SfRi61ENM1 VILLAGE A3
PEIt CJtt OF lA7FRi0P MUNIqPAL CODE OF OIIDPJM7C 5. iiRE 15 tlU1P7FR li4BOf. TI ClIY

A P pi OF RNIGIO EL PESGOFAO. B@IGOF U7F& OP PFRMfIS OPERA710N OF PROPFALY fAlIDUCTFD ILWCUUUpAL OPERATq S M'RHIN
7} E Q1Y lll( 5. QIC111DQIG 7HOSE TFNT UfIIRE fdfO t7VL FER71Ll R5/ 70 P65TI ES. YIXl ARE A 9 IN9W PARGI. l OF 7fUCf]! I7( 42 YW 61)
F¢] tFBf NOIIFlm iWQ THE PROPEHIY 1'W Alff PURCHASING WY BE LOUIED CLOSE TO N JOAOIN CEUMY 5

AGPoq1WRAL IAfiDS At81 OPERA7pNi YOU WY BE S16IFLT 10 R7CONYEMDICE di QiY OF U' IPOP. W! JOAQIN CdIXf1; WEflBUA

D6C01ff0lR AR NO FR01( iHE UWFl1L AN PROPFR lISE OF Ap9WLiUR/t CF1F16W5 At0 YlAROI 2010

P6TICID6 AtN F%) Y OIHFR ACACl1UUfNL AC1NI116. PICWDPIC MtIHOU IDIRNqNS.
WL7NAl10fL PLDMING, SPRq1NG, WiifyttlON, PRUNMG, X RY6SIiNG. BUW VG OF KIPoCULNML
IUISIE PRODUCIS. PR6IECf10N OF CROPS AND ANl4V5 FROY OFPREpQpN. AND OIF R
l CIMf1E5 MHICfI IY1Y 49JERAlE WST, 910KE N06E, 00. ROOQ115 AND Pk51S ff AMGNE
Kso. nw ns raorEmr wr ee m/ avmrt m cpxuuuwa. orffunaa oursoe N G 1 N E i 1 N G
iFff QiYS JUR6WCIION. CONSEGUFNiLY. DEPFlmIXG ON 1HE LAG7ION OF YOUR PROPEHfY, R
Ml Y NECFSSMt 7HRT YDU 70 ACCFPf 91CX BINNVDIQICES OR 06COFIFDRf
15 NOFObIL AND NECdX( ASYELT OF LIVPlG R7 IW AGNWL11IItN1Y ACINE ROpOtL

2.  A mILS REPOR EMRIFD' GEDIELlO7N'i1L EIIPLORAION. RNEA L4AXRS Pl4 SE 1. WNR.
Cfi1FORNIl1'. i41D AS PRQIECT N0. SOM3.00tA1 AXO Mim JIRY 2 2003, FNS BFFH

bsff T. LINEANDCUflVETABLESFOFiCWflSESSHOWNONSHEET52AN 30NLY
6 ON FRE WI1H iME q1Y UF U7HROP.

iRIICf 76ri, MIIER R1AND5, PIi SE 1B, VILLAGE AS. CONfNNS: 31 RE9UENiW. L015, AND 7
Llt TABLE CUROE TABLE

LEiiEAm PARQ79. CONfIPllNO 7.A ACRES. YORE OR LFSS. WqllDPW RONPd'AYS THAT AIffi lBE/  DREC pI IFNCiH CliVE RADNS DELTA IFN6IH
BfNC EDIGim Bf 1F FlW1L WP ALL AS 91QMN ON THLS. FNFL YAP.( PLFASE REFR i0
1NE 11RFA SVYWRY TAB1E BE3DW).      L1 INSU70D 424Y q E7.00' 77 S1Y 35] I'

ts    sr   ts.00'      cx nar sisru' essr

iHPCT36riANEl5UA0.UHY Li XafM 6534

7RAC7 9827    
31 I ENIIA LD75 4.EE AC!     L4 N4{ SYO{' MI BI. 6E'      IR91       +

PAR6L5 A lFROUiW C 470 Att LS FA4T 77' ,     ZS

m r omumxs ss     
e Ntsv7oo' e azt'  ur an) sr PARCEL 1

mra xa uu
v riamx i. ao'     

Fasr eeoo'(n(xs1         
TAACT3871

LD EIST Sar
PARCFI E IR91

4.  B S' D ON INFOPoAQION COMAQIm IN 7FE PPELIEWW'( 7fRE REPOftf OR fR NIIII F.R l9 F/Sf EI. 00 FAST!/1211D4T3S7- i6( YERSION 2), MTm WIRGI 19. 201E. PRQ WID 6Y OlD RFPUBLIC 1IRE COYPMK.
L10 N SVC00' YI SS76"    

FASf 130.0G(Y- BxRG)          

BALFOUR DRI4E

CfTYSURVEYOR'S STATEMENT
u         

0°'°      .
u   rmi,x eom 8

e uwr xce ea tr. r sraE nwr i x ve Exwi o ixs rixa wr- raacr a s. x
us    sr a.ar rnACT ae2r g

BAIDS. RLISE 1& H1/ lE Al'. ql'! OF WHflOP. GIIIFDRIll NN ilNT 7HE SVBDN6IQN 9i0W11 I N
R97 8 

WYR16 N'RH ALL 1XE PRQVmOlS OF CFNPIFR 2 OF Tff GUBDRNh A190N UN YAP ACf. AS AYE mm.      
L75 NWIN iTLOCAND 7tU1T 7F95 FPNL W1P IS iEqQ GLLY dtEQ.    

31

OATm iHLS 6Cf OF 20L, pfur

ue      gs.op'

S      .     
n       ssar DEfAIL' A'

UWRFNCE COSSFST. P. E 31E95 w. as
nor m sauE

artt a c+.

SURVEYOR'S STATEMEM
SIGNATURE OMISSIONS

THS 41P WAS PREPMXm Bf ME Oli UNDFA W DIRECIION AND IS H SFD UPON A FlF1D SLIRVEY IN
COtffO UHLE WRH TFE REOURF] NtS OF 7HE SlSDM510N WP ACf AtID LDCA OPDd1N7CE AT 7F& REOIIFST PURSVNR 70 CIION 68136 OF 7HE CJIIJFDR1fY1 SUWNmOH FLIP ALT. 1HE 9GW1NI6.S OF 1NE FOl1IIMiN0
OF R 4i 6lAlIDS UEYElOPYFM, LLC. ON W11W2Y 4 1. 2016 I} EIiFe'! SG7E ALL 7NE MONUMFTfiS IVtE OF PAfR S INVE B@7 OYIfiFlk

7HE ClWUCIER AIm OCCUP( 1HE P INOIG7ED Oft 1WT 7} Y INLL BE T 6i 7l10 POSrtroNS BEFORE
1.  RECIAWm ISlAN05 UND C01 ANY, R6FRVAiWN FOR qt. GAS YBiERAlS. AND OfVfliOECEY. R J1. 2020. AND 1F{ T YOHIIMENIS ME d211NT 7HEY NiLL BE SUFFlCGM TD E'H BLE 1} 6

MDROGNBON SUHSfAlIC6 LYINC 1DW A DEFRI OF SDO fEEf. PEA 0.N. 4001- 010177. S. LCRSIIRVhY 7D BE 7RACt.D. A!0 71NT iX6 FlNAL 1W SUBSTNAWLY CONLRIIS 10 iNE COIAIiIQULLY APPF ha
2 IRRk OCtBIE OFFFIi OF DIDIG710N FOR PIIPPOSES OF NWOWAY IN FAWR OF 7Fg CIIY OF UiFIROP7Et7TA71VE 11 P.

ORED 7NI5 MY oF 201      W+o

PER OOC1NFNf MIYBEA CIfQ- 04371. SJGR
J.  PU9JC UIIVIY FASFMEM AIm PUBIlC AOCE55 EASEIAQIf IN FAWR Of 7HE p1Y IAi14tOP PER

J„
7RAC JCI7, F6ED WY 24, 2076, N BOOK 42 OF W1PS MN PU75, AT PIGE E7, SJ.CR.

muw auwronu. P.is. No nee

SHEEf Z OF O

280



6
ru.

sz
ii

a      

a  au ra w  

I 
AN. 2a11- 12026T

I   -
a!    "—   —___" 

A_____   
BhSMSOPBFARIN25_____  EC-------      = v.       f-------    

vai naaCntto)     , si 3n.e7(-( mo)
ACADEMY RNE

cisr t. Cry- r7( a o) , w oo' sr 4mac(Y- h(es)  ACADEMY DHNE       sr » s.m(u- xx I
F sr xs.75(BI I

I
l te   

q  fr  e  s 20     

AS

j I
2 1      B L1! w I

CRYSTALOflNE
J-        I z 7xAa a ae   

I
N

a      s

iwsr m.o7(u-q( re)u u
i coi

uz H  z  

3IKx 4 ts         zl          t
2 I w /           y

W W I OI   

TRACf 3827   Fc 22 I c I        
I~

g

I
IR)      y I g I

i  ¢ u+   nrxr ai I
aa Z             PAHCELt I u'y I

I
a Y             

Taxr aa s o¢    e it oi   2a   =   o
I I TRACT3827(R9)          -   o guz eedcP lool

ml
g5        7.43ACt     m y

7 10 I   2!      Y I         7RACf

3H73I   
1  I

lRB7 I

i i I i
B 9

I E

25 -,-  )   

l----.µJ

Z      

I
BASIS OF BEARINGS

rasr o C(u- aX)    W- BXae)    1 Nsn R
3 n er,v c aF sr mFn rnura uawo rs raurm nE rQ+um+r aF v rc cw s sronII--      t

BALFOUR DRNE usr i. o7 Qe       

I
W 1RIIR 77Yt, F1ID 1Wr 4 7015. N B00C 12 ff YAPS A ID PlAS AT PAIF 3q FIOAL II DS OF i11E

r   COIIKIY a' S1N JCAQM. RILS TNQN AS 9 B 95 ff BFANNfS 9101M( f1716S IUP R 3 N DW ALL

B

fAN S SIOIM F@EOtI ME 1,' NWI'8 qSfMTS
26 27 28 29 2  31  ''   

A
m   

amlk N..
r wcn. r

LAKESIDE DRIVE

g    

sr stoo'p)
t. sg s r s rart oomotuL ah.S fat a tu t a T

Fwsr wc xR+  asr' aait(w xs     uou$

Y

w slDeoan E    EASEMENTs

r yq     j O RI WCABE OF} FIt OF DEDICA QI FOi ROMWAY WR ES N FAWt ff 7FE CIY ff U11Pt PFRLEGEND I iaz e r sri i       . mx- a eb
ox mis aana.

ix11 O 7 7(

RpU1Ltt
FASf1 iT/ ta PUd1C AC4S5 FAY1@! f il FA50R OF 7F Qtt OF U1H0.UP PFA 1P/ iCf

FOIRO tlONUlE1fT STAf ED' Pl5 7/ tE' PER( R»

j FOIR YCKIIlFTIi STAI FD' PLS 77ED' PEA( R

Y li11FN7 70 2T PEA( p)  

4a 11ENi 70 ff SEf PEA( P])

Fowo uawar sruaen- ws nae' r x( xn7 REFERENCES
uonum r m ee gr afx Qnu) 

mm ff sm r FtFo wa r s, mo N emc s av sun z Pu t+2
rnwm a/ e u a v r/ vumc rwc caa crm ar ammuh aF cauunnr r camm, rar ix axis tis nx n u.
as nee- vEx, u m xmm sa.cR.( s sva rs iW

BqRID 1RY Rt) ChtHT m l i. 2k 1014 AS D! C mi5- 0181a7. SJ.CR
IDT IINE tlt IEQR- OFYA71! E Rn VGCT J76l. F1ID pEIDB i 7q 301; d BOQC 4Y YAPS It PlA'IS PAff 4. S1CR( 4Y WP 4) TRACT 3874

ns m cr sms, n sxuNtr v,mt, n eo« 4z ff uas, wo ruis r aa, saeR. gx uee ao     RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
YOM11 M lA       

R 1RIICT SAI. FiFD IUY 6 15, N BOOC 41 ff YMS A PU1S P11 70.SSCA( 42 Y! P 30) 
VILLAGE A3

auaoo' lrt      v vm um o u e x( a)    
awrt orm x¢. u Wwa a4 mm. s nx arn s n, sr.cx.

Cx)       RECQtD DATA PER YAP AETEI iGE( RI) m er rs, nm w+a m. ma N BOOK 410F W1P5 AYD M1S PAIE 30.S1CR( 42 YdY 36J Pa+na ff nraiaa a r m. mxs

A 9 NL90N ff PARCEL 1 OF 1RAR] 027( 2 Y& P 81)
e) eouwun rsel m cr aen nm r i, sma w eaa u ff uaas vo auis r sa s. cn.( 4z u r s      siw H mum mms

0.N.       DOqJI IfT NL It 7R CT 3A 7 FIlID WlT 24. 1016. RI BOqC 41 ff YIPS AtA PLA1S PAff fl. SJ.CR I41 WP 611
Litt 6 LA71flW. SW. D. GIm1 NMTT, WF OGA

we       un txr m eaurm ar h av ea cnucs mmen ruE m. mia As eowmrr xu x am6- ornx, aa
uueoi e

wp irorna r m aa xr
a¢ amm 1waar a zn4, s ooannir ruu n sms- o. e ro

P) RMUL iYCN6
R O) WACT 3832 FIlID AIK115i 1A 7010. Hi B001f 42 OF YMS N PU7S PACE 76. S. LCR( 42 Yd LE)    

f0 rora.    pn m cr a4 Fn¢ e uasr tb mie, w ac z ov u ws kro Fuis P, ss. s. icw.( u wv ee1
N G 1 N 8Efi 7 N G

i r rw n m l m cr rxm a e. w ac 4x a, ws ir c ruis r n. sicn(+z+ v n)

Q D 701E5 J/4 RQ! PP] tN'i A Itlllff55 COfUF] t QI A J fDOT Uf1 5ET, TAOI ID TLS 7780' PER( N9)      RW iRACT SW F8F YNIW 22 21t14 0! HOIX J OF WiPS AHO PU7S PA 47. SLCR( Q MdP 7     
o aa io'

QB DENOTES 1. 1T 6PAS5 OL9f SfA6m' PLS 77l. BE VC A WRESS CtlaFR W 1. 0' OFFgT ffR( Im) RI7) IRACT$ 7! F6FD AUQISf 44. 14 N B00C 42 ff YAPS AND PU1S PA6E 63. S. LCA.( 47 NAP 65J 9GIE 1' i'

QC U NWIES J/ 4' i[ON FlPE BEPiC A RIIF55 OORtffR ON A 7 BY7 OFfgf, UCffD" PIS T1B0' PFR(( 1
QD HOIES]/ 4 RQl PIP YIC A YllEQ Odit R IX A] F00T fSE TAO D RS 77Etl' PER( RL)      

SHEET 3 OF H

281



TRACT 3874
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

VILLAGE A3

roaaar oF xu ao a r a mxc
weu sas,v,Pro w s 4z ea e)

W QfY ff U1NRW. SlN JOAWW CQMiY, GWiOfdM
V YARGI 2018

W

W
ENG7N£ fZ7NG

ow

ACADEMY DRNE
S°" E r' ea

I
PARCELA

6 I SHEET INDEX
17 18 19 20 1 2 3 4

5 PARCELB

2 15 I
I 5

3 14 L 
CRYSTAL DRNE            6

LEGEND

Q PARCELC      eaur+wm'

4 13 21 i 17 22 27       7
u

L   —   ———    
R1GHT OF WAY LINE

a
7RACf SB27 IR91 4       

uu

p
5 12

22 18 23 2B      8

b
W

g
a    

O e 11 0 23 19      ¢       24 29      °
C O sf r NU mrn

9

W 4 6 Z           m

o             za        zo             zs a 1 c       i I
m 7RAC 3873 w    '

8 9 25

I
21 26 31       

29  
y    '

PARCEL F PAHCEL G
BALFOURDRNE ya

26 27 28 29 30 31 '   16 15 14 13 12 11      
p PARCELD

O 7

PARCEL E

I
LAKESIDE DRIVE I

I

SHEET 4 OF S

282



LEGEND

o n a„- u, m  „  ,, U«, 
No s TRACT 3874

o a/ s• aw r/ aus s rwc- ris n-      nn1 oao. s cm)- sF xu cc usr a s cr 
L ''' r D1"'• 10° N 00N° RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

i ean o raumrr x u. srue n ris rm( ps nx 000. r xu  ui, aNTOa u 1FD.-
CFWAY, NDNG PR[ lDNW1bN OF

VILLAGE A3
au r To ae ser, sr,u m vis neer rtx( t+    r-h ewreamir m ranuexr

2 9/ E' REHNt NM CJIP TLS 776d' 10 gT Ai A11 IEIW lLT
M87Ef6. I) NIF4 dRERMSE NOIID.   

A PdiPON ff lWIQq EL Pf5G0ER0, ffU1G

II NIlIFNT iD 9E gT, STABm' Pl5 77l PER( R J C IOTAL
4. SEE StfEET J Fat Ek#1FH15 BA95 OF BERtlNGS AtA A S1 M9R7 fF PNtfEl 1 OF 1R Cf 7E27( 41 YhP 61)

S H CM1OUN CCIWiiY 5

s gr aoe' xnfss caamt tnness on xotm, u a n      (
e) eaaa, tr

s s s r e ra u uo aa r mFs att aF unetae. siw mww+carm: wffoma
kaw ar u w aa u m r nauR m sin¢ r r. vuaic ums rwmar wu a sme

RN1FId AS NO1FD. J/ 4' a 24 FOI NPE M/ PIASIIG PIIIG Pl1E p11g1C IRII} r FA YFNi

L.E W 1'Ji'E FASf1EllT
S rwm rammrr, sru n' ns aEx(      

rca wnnss ca n

j°++ r'''+(°)     wa + vc mE a+ a om na+  E N G 1 N£ R 1 N G
FLUND 7/ 4' NON PFE W/ WAtiRIC RLC' PIS 77t!' PFR I    nruxe N
LNLE4 OT@f3Y6E NO1ED

O OQm7FS]/ C 1RW P E B lC A If1tR.4S CGRHER Oi A

Po YGY WE

O a

FOOT 6P L TAC D' PIS 7)EB' PER( RYJ
EAg770( f LBlE

YAIE 1'  Q
DIJfO1FS 1. 1Y BIA'S UIX 5(A16ED RS 7 E'. BE81G A
N11ES5 l'0(QER OH 7. 0' 6Fgf PEA( RD)  i t7E

Q OENOIFS]/ 4' RON PPG BB IS A N1NESi COfdgR OX A YOAVI M l! E
7 6Y 5 afFSEf, TAOItn' Hs 77ee' PFA( R

i i y7p p, qyy

O UEN016]/ t RON PPG BFH1C A 1'61XFa Cafd7ER ON A a^

J W0 Offgf, TA04fD' RS 77E7' PtR( RB)         tn}    

O r

E l NIIYffR- gE 9kEf] Fdt
7RAGT 3829 z's reacr aa3o I1H1ll I=    R12) c

g

ACADEMY DRNE Fi I ACADEMY DRNE

I

Evt an.cs(- h(mo) sr as C( w- rHma)  —————---—————- -——————       —
acv     

sov '''

g----------------      i
sanv(x       i usr an.w'(u-)( ns)     '

II PAACELA
1

i r, 4. mc    
c x    

I
i

a.,,       usr oo uson io.ar rwn x, c uoo      a.m' 

eanv eaov eaoo' snuo'     m.so

Z

4 IY M,ut Fws( f o-       -'

TRAGT 3827( R91 g y   p I R PARCELB

j Is N
w

5      '`,    

0.NE SF.   
b

7 8 9 20     s

0.
1  €   

ar o sF     aro sr.     a sr.  
e      

I     1

Z 
I$  

I
s

6 xm

NOT i' µ       y.   

eno7 -- - eaao,-- - m.fY c+   °  
4 `          

7 wui u mrr I $     I
I vsr mm azao( e)       wtit ix.r(p  i  

Nu s' a' r.c.  I wt

I CRYSTAL DRfVE q"" s
r roi n     

my z' ^   X
Fwsr vanu(u- l g ucr uzasry-)     `      axrr

6                
Y Issaar-      - ieam.     -- r- s— f°   ssoo. - t

g--
nyu.   zm. 

O ane sr.         
Q

Ii5F I Z DD PFROi )     gl 1
49

Y MALL FA4lEM+)           

I
e1. 0o'   

FASf 1820C--'

1--- 
I FAST 1TJS5 ---------_ 

i    ~  I
I  

Z I      TKACT 3791fR5)

J 1 ' 7a00'   
F/s71aD.sV(17 F" 

O
PARCELC 

r  _       
o.00  aom         

zz x7
o

e xac,.      
xu2 g   

g
Z       

I     '     1 j E               
w

I I     > I$      1 I  $ o l Ff     Qw7sr       
Ix II I          I

S+r usr i1 sUfp      F

I
I H .              I m  .      i

B

g I

SEE SHEET 6 SEE SHEET 8       

SHEEf 5 OF$

283



TRACT 3874
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

VILLAGE A3
7RAGT 3827[ R91

4 5 a

a 9 2D 1 2 3 A 91BqV6Ri ff P/ R 11 OF 1RAQ]/({ 4 YdR 61)

o     
att aF un siN,

nAtau
tplIXY

u

pg``' N uva zme
rasr uxad om(       sr s. is(q      c   

Q

CRYSTAL DRIVE        
azod( l m sp l L ci r

siao' -  —- i7yy       1  , pp' 8 N G 1 N£ ER 1 N G

I hon aoiQi ) I$     $ I 1
6

sr m i asr nsss'       1
a+   '     I      y m.,r      w.,r      1'--- '  

a_  ev

tA dm'  3Q00'          
5 P. UE xi   

N68'H R

21     17 j      j 22 g
27 I

1t=     ° 
f

asn u     8            8     e.ss sr. amo sF            
i            

NOTES
Y I 8       

ti sg s r a Fort icma

olsr imm            o sr toe.1Y FAsr 1oe.tY I ar
a        

z t.tT enAs a5c srAl Fn Rs me• m sFr aw mxwEle

1 I
SDEM uIc uC rt0 7! E RpIT- OFMWY, hldlc vRaLNCA vI aF

I I x a xullN GIP TLS 77l 70 BE gT A7 W. I/ W lDTW

k 18 I   afl      I 2;{ g
Zg

O 
4. gE 2 FOR AUd1bN 1 NOI6

22 S g, sc I   " I 0.7m sr            e,s o sr.      $     I
8

c 
s. t£s t oasnNc r m+iS etivs oF eEuwcs, ua

io' ruc- W e. s r e cun urE va a TnaFsI

FiIR tortL7 EAST fGO. IY FASf tOdtT I          
I E  i E I E¢   E j W

za   is ig ¢ $  i 2a z I 8 ieaeo u                  1 4 ro sF aara sF          u ffi     i 9

8 In rsw
0 57 totuV        ~'      

I
Eui f09.1T 6tsr f041Y I  m I   B,       e 21

1' P.uE

I         
iu r.uE

sr usso'(egnel r
a

0

B g

a v.ue-      
a

Fwsr niar    ---

24                  I    I           gp I g PARCEL E IR91    $ PARCEL F    >
I          

0      
I I      ` sea sr: 0

F^-    FXST 1aE.00            EItiT f00.17 6tST 700.f7 I
E/ 6f 7!.

w I I
acR   m g

w 25     $      
e.ne sF I      I      j R7esF.      €$      . mo SF          T,

I     DETAILA     

SI

HE A A    $  
Y P.LLE! LE              7' PJtE t I. E j     "     U   z MOT 10 SGIE

oeva a( 7xs s '- xiac mou°    oen e oer a e       

9,    4 tt s 7)
PARCFl E         E157 eSn7(TJ    P T9      EASf 0.517 DSf 107.17    /° 1 p,m'    

o sr nm vi'    
PARCEL G o sr nus d   8           v

ryu
nno'       

P sF F    T ` II' 7' I na sF
sg ceuti e       

I             
P

1"       -       -$'
m-

0-
a%-

P 
rn.'   L-axa7         s 3 I

usr mro Hu7 usr mzs(r-x T u r 26 31     

BALFOURDRIVE c mvrnQ)       i  "
n" '") 

o

tP 
i

usrs a,r m    C
i o

B ------ ------- -------   ------- ------- I O rr oa.is. --
r

T--``       ;   Yp usriena

SEESHEET7
o     

P C G

o

q  "'°' t

rAsr

DETlUL B
xar io sriu[

SHEET 6 OF V

284



TRACT 3874
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

NOTES i  VILLAGE A3
L E s Er s wx lEm+o I5t

rwnax aF wu+aa a P GOERo. eEs c2 1. fY BRAS C ST I FD A5 77ES 10 SEf di
FAS 3121Y   q7 A 9IDIV Oi IF PWCEI 1 OF 1RACi A27( 42 Yd8 6»EIUl1C 1. 00' PIfO iHE I tM-ff-NAT, AIWC PROIOtIW7 N OF

E IDT 111ES. Olt A5 NOIED.    8200' 27Y 
SW JDAIXIN COLMY 5

S S/ b' REBNt MtiH G1P' PIS Tll6' 70 BE 4.T AT ALL AFAR LDT dI'f K WfBtOP. SAN AW01 L4RIM GISW1Ll

Ud64 UCFSS OIIEAILg NOIED.
NMQI 201!

s r a wn, oomauu xm¢    c r J-- 
12 11

S SE 9FEf 3 FOQ FriSRIG EA4] IEM1S, BA95 ff BFAl9fQ/ lm

s. wn an a.m iaaFs DETAIL C

N NG1NE£ ii1NG

O o  c

r- u'

SEESHEET6
u,  

I           SEESHEETB
i

I

g¢    

I
rnacr aaz caei i     >       i

i  o           
i I

8 i i     '      i i

o       ZS       21 i      i      i
2s af

i m i

U
nrAcr aa aiea    

i
g       ¢2 Ia e       aaoo'  ao.od o I

E PARCEL E t---9',      o--       I -    a I

usr e ocl ml     asr noo v,   usr nus i``
gi'=        

i       ~    II PARCEL F 91 I I$      PARCFl G g          c d     

st eo.oar t. ao'.(x)    —       —    m°°'   6S1 sm'       $ m'   !_     r i•       
ISS y       I  

3
I   ^    w

u- h(ae)  
S3

sr yzoo.pi= q
O—— ssr msn-h g oarr       • e i       p I

D° O       BALFOUR DRNE s oeru c I    N          
I

esr m(Re)    
rasr aiz y o       

Nvrn a  
y      j I'E7 0 W'07     ___ QLOD'__      6LOD' 67 7  \ o i   i     D I

8   ------  
7 pe c+e      4i   -------       

I$o' P.uc J
r sr n v(B)(

a

7RACI' 36271R9]  E E

i       I29 30 31       
SF'.  

g
469eSF.    $  t GesF.     4 SF     M9! SF     l,]I1 sF         9. s sF.    u,       

P C D         I

7 NALL G4am(t I7 wuL FAgI@7

x°°'--- --- n--   -- m-0°'--   

no' cc        eia7(

FASi A52ro FAtiT 762oQ I Q    f       Qar
y

FAtt' 9 J5(8)
PARCEL F fR9J     m PARCEL

s.E6E SF.    II

75'(No)  
1 4im'(rtt)    __ EILtiT S20D'(RI)_

EASI 10 25( Y- Y RB)

LAKESIDEORIVE g_  IAf SIDEDRIVE

X

pIG

rxacr aaze

I42 MhP 67]     

SHEEf 7 OF H

285



SEESHEET5

m TRACT 3874
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

i   , u„ sa     ``   Q` i      VILLAGE A3

LINEANDCURVETABLESFOflCOUflSES SI       Y  \  Y   AP NIIQIOFRANWOELiEF.AOERD. NB

SHOWN ON SHEEB STHHOUGN B ONLY 411'       
O      \  

6 S        A 9BdYmdlWff
P

1 rcllCf s( 11 Yt8 61)
ur T etE i j      att a une o. 

u' i

euurm,
wr a

w  w rnar uHcrx

CRYSTAL DR1VE i       j xN

u Ntsm'ao' n azd
o---

L2 NSfS1' JCE 75 9'  NB6N N
I

0;?

7 NG1N££ f 1NG

Ls I81s17o' E 72e6 27
I y

E "
u xrsm oo r assr

I     SEE SHEET 5     3
u  .. a_  m'

l5 Ntsm'm'E 36 I o FASf v35o'

a xu3Ya' N m.

II r wui Fwsiar—       

I
u N 5°°°°' a°•  

I i PARCELC 39

te N sm'ao' u 15] e'     28 j       '      i 8 AI72 SF. Y
sv°°°' °. o'  i I             

ae o sF

az NOTES
uo N, moo' c I 1--, u e.uE Sc 

m Nusrat r su
r„ uam 3e cir oa su[ o xs me' m e str ox a

E a[    E I I
Z sOEwwc t.00' oim T Mcxi-0FwAY, uate aRaarA! oF

L12 N{ SLGOC' E 12DT W Q      12 I p      E IDT lREL OR AC M01.

ua  usaroot ss e' W 29 i  y I e. e o sr.       *,  

1 3
we a xmm.m ff sfr r u x vc iar

uwi C7    5  T 97[ Q I `  S gE sEET 3 Fars DaSmVC FA5E1RHiS& af eFAI§ tR uo9 ET

d1R11ETABLE
m      

B tsso'         O         37 V      
g     

IBX 1          
a. sg.r e ra ua ar r as

CUR E/ NAqIK DELTA IFNG]! I f I      c I

CI RL00'  S{YYC•  461' 30
I I I
I 1 I

e2 ezao' irsa'  75sP I           I I      ae p
et nsa irta'or sa4r L aor       

t

G 71Co' 2THY5'  5.7n'     

i I ---•      i
6 nao sr,c 4zx i                

nracr 3a acRa          

Its Aao'  is7eYY m'
31        

6 
2

j g a5

cr 71m' 4no'oY s..S I           f -

ca nm' tea'ss'  uw'    i am' w

R.  I

C9 E7AC 13157Y X71'      
L        

s.`  

BALFOUR DRNE g 7I
s Ic a nao' ixw' s tnsr

n   uar aovoroo'  eas'  

I(

l ! s°--
p    B 3 i   €   

aa

c:   m.ao' 1ns9Y s3Y I if  " 
5)    3€   

Iq7 A.00f 3t5/'IS'  m.n' o    C
1/    Bla.       I

CI4 750 1555' 2027'      i Qp OI

CI3 71m' 169D'lY 61. 15 A FAST 7I3Y(B)( Rn

I
q6 7507 7GSYS5' 76ffi W I L
q7 l7.m' D757Y 35] 1'    W 1      

10 I
33

ce noo t so' S nsvT W j PARCEL D         
I

av   aao  + e' z'  to.00'    SEESHEET7

rm   2ar aYe77'  e7d j
CZI 120D' 90'00'00' 16l5 I

PA4CEL B

PARCEL E

F/sf 9o35(B)   

O
IAKESIDE DRNE SHEET H OF p

286



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 9 of 13

EXI3IBIT B

ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3 74

287



o
t f  

O

EMERSON STREET
i

m
yi

L

T ,

r

r r
I

f!       i
O

1, U w O

l; z
s C      w

j         
z s .  w

i
a„ j w   .     j 0 il

9       :       

p L
d       # 

O m
ss CJ y 9

q       $,    
1 i     

1Ar
I

i

6

Eri^..
ml iea ..    ..  ._. .     .  .  ... ...-. a s cs ru .-.-.-- h      -      

ACADEMY DRIVE

r„
o:--:-..  ._  - o..:,: d=`-,---     --  -

e..    
i6

A     
J

i _   
t I6

117    , 1B 119 20  21

2L33Ar
6 Y2

2 5
15 t       y,fa

6  "    d
3 3 14 CRYSTALDRIVE  TRACT 7  '`         z

1 o
1    a  

13
13 Q z '

6 tl   51
n 2z

56
z        Rt'

w

K COURT 0 5
5 2

iz z zz `'     5z e       za
5`     

za
6'`       28

8       
O

y
6  " t       23 

8
G'  53 g       Za

58
2s

63 29 9  .
a IM

m
O e.+ t:p

J             
iC 

0 24
49 54

2a    ~   25
59

30 '      r,   t ii lA
B Q i

8 9 50 N'  S5,       GO G5 w TRACT
r       

B 9 25           . 21 26 31 a0 ,.   p 31

m  
JRT 41 TRACT 3827    BALFOUR DRIVE 32 3 73

1

45 4    43 42 41 d0  39 3ff 37 36 35 34 33   "

qQ..     26 27 28 29    30 31 i6 15 14 73 12 11 10 I
r;,-,- V.___.,,,-

a_,-.,,
r ur mi_ f rn to r s rr or aw, a r'"

LAKESIDE DRIVE

y

L$

I'

IWr;Y  ;.:'?`  g`   aHUNTINGT0IVVVAY i .°   - '
1f r;,.}.,.

g.  w  

4 I I f

nil
1

I 6T ai ae
O

6" i b` U EFi 1  

9' 3 74 F O( 

20

288



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for

Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 10 of 13

EXI IBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to do
business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no less
than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount ofat least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000,000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,

executed by an authorized official of the insurers. All parties to the Subdivision Improvement
Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss."

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least

thirty( 30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

289



Page 1 0£ 1

DATE( MMIDD/ Y`! YY)

A     CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o4i2 i2o e

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACT
PRODUCER NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc. pHONE 1- 877- 945- 7378 No; 1- 686- 467- 2378
A/ C No Ext:

c/ o 26 Century Slvd E• MAIL

P. O. Box 305191
ADDRESS: certificates@willis. com

Nashville, TN 372305191 IISA INSURERS AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: 
IInited Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED INSURER B:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd
INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURER D:  

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: weooesii REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
I TR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER MM/ DD MMIDDIYYYY

LIMITS

COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE
1, 000, 000

AMA E TO R NTED

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR PREMISES Ea occurrence    

p MED EXP( Any one person)    S

Y ATN- SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021
pERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER:   
GENERALAGGREGATE      $ 

2, 000, 000

POLICY x PR
LOC

PRODUCTS- COMP/OPAGG  $ Z, 000, 000

JECT  

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILI7Y Ea

aBcideDtSINGLE
LIMIT    $

ANY AUTO
BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Pe accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIREo NONAwNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS- MADE
AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERS COMPENSATION
PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
STATUTE ER

YIN
ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE  

N A
E. L. EACH ACCIDENT

OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLU DED7

Mandatory in NH)     
E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT S

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS! LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Re: Final Map Tract No. 3874 - River Islands - Village A

The City o£ I,athrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and members thereof, its employees and agents

are included as Additional Insureds as required by written contract on a Primary and Non- contributory basis with
respect to the General Liability policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATIOM

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATIOM DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Dr y,,.,.

Lathrop, CA 95330

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016103)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
sx xo: 16072951 TCH: 688462

290



POLICY NUMBER: ATN-SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or
Or anization s Location s Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its
employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information required to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person(s) or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:

respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or

or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:    1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     
Project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional

in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured(s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured(s)   at the location( s) 
has been completed; or

designated above.
2. That portion of" your work" out of which the
injury or damage arises has been put to its

However:    intended use by any person or organization other

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only
than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

291



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
required by a contract or agreement, the most we Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

292



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party's Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

293



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN-SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/Oraanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

294



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page. 12

EXHIBIT D

COHElv/PARADISE/STEWART REHr BILITATION Mr P

295



c  
a  

v

t

RCUI111MtrO
lIIU.A6fMM

Ronownr.ro eE wxi m.w v w oPer ro oe r+ c
LXH I B I T-` p"

Y„ p p, a,,,,      
ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBIT

WMaIUMiYATSOUiHRNQtB6rDPRO CTAREA
RNER ISLANDS

1 111 H I. AINRIiI'  7I1, 1I, N7\ I1N,\ i\   IALIt R l\

i.". :.._...::. ...,

296



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 13

EXHIBIT E

TJNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

I

i

j

297



I

Attachment " D"
I

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP) 

May 15, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Pa lc Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn: Karen Sayles

Re: Recordation of Final Map 3874; Escrow No. 1211042367

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions(" Escrow Insfructions") of River Islands
Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" R/D"), and the City of Lathrop ("City") in
connection with the above-referenced escrow(" Escror'). The Escrow was opened in connection
with recordation of the above- referenced final map(" Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is
subject to the conditions set forth below. The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are      
referred to as the° Tiansacfion." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as" you" or" ORTC.°

A.       Date for Closin4s

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The Final Map can
only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The closing date for the Transaction
is intended to occur by May 31, 2018, at the time designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction
of the conditions set forth below( each a" Closing"). If the Final Map has not been ecorded by
December 31, 2018, ORTC will return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

n connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the following
documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin County, California

O cial Records").    

One original Final Map for Tract 3874, executed and acknowledged by City. The document
listed above is referred to as the" Recordation Document." The date on which the

Recordation Document is recorded in the Official Records is the Recordation Date.

Copies should be sent via email to Cari James( cjamesCa ci. lathroo.ca.us), Cindy Yan at Goodwin
Consulting Group( cindvCa qoodwinconsultinggroup.net), Susan Dell' Osso
sdellosso an.riverislands.com) and Debbie Belmar( dbelmar _ riverislands.com), together with

conformed copies of all documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the Recordation   

Document, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in accordance with the settlement
statement prepared by you and approved in writing by both RID and City(" Settlement Statement"):
recordation costs, escrow fees and other amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement. Such
costs, fees and other amounts are the sole responsibility of RID,

1

298



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below, immediately upon
recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each entity are set
forth below:

a.       The amount of$ 22,854.68, payable to the City pursua t to that certain Agreement to Settle
Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended ("Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting

the amount of$ 3,076.00 multiplied by 7.43 acres( or portion thereo included in the Final Map, is to
be transferred to the City upon recordation of the Final Map. The City's wire instructions are set forth
below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the" Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the times and in
accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.    You have delivered copies of your Settlement Stafement by email transmission to:
Susan Dell' Osso( sdellossoCa riverislands.com), Debbie Belmar( dbelmar(a riverislands.com),

Stephen Salvatore( ssalvatore@_ci. lathroa.ca.us), Salvador Navarrete( snavarreteCcilci. lathro. ca.us),
Cari James( ciames ci. lathrop.ca.us) and Glenn Gebhardt( ggebhardtCa)ci. lathrop.ca.us), and have
confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn
Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable;      

D. 2.    You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow Instructions;

D. 3. The Recordation Document and all other documents described herein as being
held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have been fully executed and
acknowledged where applicable and you have attached all legal descriptions or have confirmed that
all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D.4.    You are prepared to record the Recordation Document as designated, release funds
in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete the Transaction in compliance with these
Escrow Instructions;

D.5.    You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an authorized signatory
of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by email transmission( with original
hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and Glenn Gebhardt at the email. addresses set
forth above;

D.6.    You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from Susan Dell' Osso and
Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation Document and complete the  
Transaction.

E.       Closina Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then you are
authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given: 

E. 1.     Date the Recordation Document to be recorded.

2

299



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

E.2.     Record the Recordation Document in the Official Records.

E.3.     Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.  

E.4.     Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed at the time of the
final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC
73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. S.     Notify Susan Dell'Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn Gebhardt and
Jose Molina( JMolina sjQov.org) of the completion of the Transaction;

E.6.   Within five( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver by overnight
delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to: ( 1) Debbie Belmar, River Islands

Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330 and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City
Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330.

A)      A certified copy of the Recordation Document, showing all recording
information of the Recordation Document, and

B)      A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted into each
respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow Agent in

connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions by executing and
dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below, initialing all pages and returning it
to both of the undersigned.  

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Susan Dell' Osso

President

River Islands Development, LLC

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager
City of Lathrop

3

300



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and City is hereby acknowledged. The
undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed in strict accordance with these

Escrow Instructions. The undersigned represents and virarrants to RID and City that the undersigned
is authorized to execute this Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:  
its:

Date:  

4

301



1

302



ITEM 4. 14   ;

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA)  FOR 24 LOTS IN

TRACT 3913 VILLAGE O" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF

RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3913
Village O" within East Village, Totaling 24 Single
Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City Council approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map
Tract 3694  (VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop,  which included a

Neighborhood Design Plan, Architectural Guidelines, Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and

Parks Master Plan for the East Village neighborhood located west of the Community
South River Bend   ( CSRB)   neighborhood,   by Resolution No.   15- 3912 and an

Amendment to the West Lathrop Specific Plan and River Islands Urban Design
Concept by Ordinance No. 15- 344.

The City approved the first final map for Village  O"  on January 23,  2017

Tract 3836).  This proposed Final Map Tract 3913 will be the third final map ( of four
total) within the Village ' O" area.  Van Daele Homes, an existing River Islands builder
is currently developing the Summer House, Castaway and Latitude neighborhoods is
proposing twenty- four ( 24) 42' x 85' single- family lots. Tract 3913 is part of the
Latitude neighborhood. A Vicinity Map is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map 3913 and a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement    (Attachment C)    with River Islands

Development, LLC ( River Islands").

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3913 as proposed by River
Islands Development,  LLC  (" River Islands"),  as the subdivi.der,  complies with the

most current conditions of approval.

The land for Tract 3913 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on ] une 1, 2015, with updated
conditions of approval.  On September 20,  2017,  by Resolution No.  17- 01,  the

Planning Commission approved an amendment to the East Village Architectural
Design Guidelines and Development Standards  ( DG/ DS)  to accommodate the

Latitude product within Village O ( Tract 3913).

303



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3913 VILLAGE O", TOTALING 24 SINGLE FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off-site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3913 requires that security ( cash or

bonds) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village 0."

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off-site Agreement") that was approved by the
City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off-site Agreement is still valid
for certain improvements.  Tract 3913 will not trigger any additional off-site

improvements, and the Off-site Agreement will apply to Tract 3913 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off-site
improvements.

All in- tract improvements,  except for Somerston Parkway,  have been completed,

other than thermoplastic striping.  With the approval of the first final map within
Village " O" ( Tract 3836), River Islands posted performance bonds for the unfinished

improvements within all of Village " O" including Tract 3913. As a result, the SIA for
Tract 3913 reaffirms the posting of performance and labor and materials bonds first
required .by the SIA for Tract 3836. Acceptance of all public improvements will be
processed by staff at a later date when the unfinished improvements are complete.
At that time, River Islands will be required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds

as a warranty for the completed infrastructure.

Finally, before the Final Map Tract 3913 is recorded, River Islands must also satisfy
the Escrow Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required fees are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has substantially completed the street and utility improvements within
the entirety of Village  O"  which includes associated tracts and will have the

improvements completed prior to the issuance of the first production home building
final permit in Tract 3913. Prior to acceptance of public improvements within Tract

3913, Village O" the posted security for 120% of the estimated cost to complete the

unfinished improvements and previous bonds posted with Tract 3836 remain in full

force and effect. River Islands shall provide a 10% maintenance bond to guarantee

the full improvements ( completed and uncompleted) for one year. Prior to acceptance

of these improvements,  River Islands has provided the tract map,  the tract

improvement plans, all required documents and all fees for Tract 3913.

This includes the following documents and fees:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Tract 3913 Completed

304



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3913 VILLAGE O", TOTALING 24 SINGLE FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 3836

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided Completed

with Tract 3836

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.      Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees the creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of•
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off-site improvements to serve this Tract 3913 have already been
completed;   including construction of levees,  participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off-site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

305



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

MAY 14, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3913 VILLAGE O", TOTALING 24 SINGLE FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

Before the Final Maps are recorded,  River Islands must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club
are made under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. Development covers all City costs fees and
any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s for
maintenance. River Islands is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

ATTACH M Ef+ITS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3913 Village " O" within East Village

District,   Totaling 24 Single Family Lots and Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.       Tract 3913 Village O" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands  ( East Village District)  River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California

Limited Liability Company, for Tract 3913, Village ' O"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3913 Village O"

306



CITY M 1IVAGER' REPORT Page 5

M# V 14, 2018, CITV COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FIlV iL MAP FOR T1 4CT 3913 !/ ILLAGE O", TOTALIIVG 24 Silo1GLE FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLARIDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

APPROVALS

I 
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City En i eer

1
Cari James Date

Finance Director

3p-..!g

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

r

Ste.. r J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

307



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3913 IN VILLAGE " O," TOTALING

24 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map ( VTM) No. 3694 with Conditions of Approval for a residential and commercial

development that is consistent with the West Lat rop Specific Plan ( WLSP) and the

River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP, and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3913, the proposed subdivision, is part of the East Village

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 24 lots covered by VTM
No. 3694, located on the west side of the San Joaquin River, north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS,  in its review of Tract 3913,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 3913 on September 1, 2016; and

WHEREAS, River Islands Development, LLC, has completed or has guaranteed

completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3913,  as identified on the

approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion of all

required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and
River Islands Development,   LLC,   and provision of security by River Islands

Development, LLC, for unfinished and deferred improvements are required prior to

final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by River
Islands Development, LLC, and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the River Islands

Development, LLC, obligation to maintain all improvements and repair or correct any
defective work; and

WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, .2013; and

WHEREAS,  off-site improvements were guaranteed with the Dedication,

Inspection, and Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements ( Off-site Agreement),
approved by City Council on September 30, 2013; and

308



WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of
VTM 3694 required for approval of Final Map 3913 have been met, including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and

Off-Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3913
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM No. 3694, is technically correct and
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS,   River Islands Development,   LLC,   will satisfy the escrow

requirements to fund the Settlement Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for
Tract 3913; and

WHEREAS, Capital Facilities Fees are not required until the builder applies for

building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that makes and accepts the following actions:

1.       That the Final Map for Tract 3913 Village O" is hereby approved as submitted
as part of the public record with the San ] oaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County
Clerk Office.

2.       That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, in substantially the
form as attached to the May 14, 2018 staff report, the file executed copy will be filed
with the City Clerk.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 14th
day of May 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

309



lolttaehment •,B••
I

Q-  

g

09A 0

LAKE9

a

i    

GARDEfd FARMS AlOENUE
a—_           

dr"__ra__ e' a s. r_._, s+o r_ __ e e.= a. m a:-_ aa,:_ r_. m.

I   . I TRACT 3 36  1     ,    2 3   :   5      7 ' 1 2 3  's s    _     

8 I 9 10 ti 12  13 14    
P,  . e,    d 

3 4 5 za  s 12  i;  iG i           
a e i  i>  > 2   3 ia 1s 1  ;  jl,

1

PLUMAS DRIVE i   
RACT     ; 1;     

i; Q          
E'      9 9 7 6 21 22 23  -'  25 26       3 pq1  t,fi 20 21 22 23 2 4 25  '' b  +? 

k,
1  ,

z o•-.,  _     .- r-.      a.. o   =...=-.. J` a  .
J 7   ffi. Sd: i' . .  :_C9_ES'A_- eE:.. d;' F- 3'.-L".:9;,5"tt 5:'€i•.ffi$!.  : L' 1-: 1

j,  ''
LLJ   `     7i I. 1J
0   'g;    Y 10 11 12 i3 1&  15  i6 17 i 2    4   5 o i      9 li  11 12 13  E       -

i
1 tl!       

SOLANO WAY  ,   SOLANO COURT j

TRAC    TRACT 9 3
2ti     ? 4 23 22 2i 20 I9 18-?_ w  3 2Z 21 20 15 18 17 16 15 1k     

n;¢ aa_ e` a*s_+ s: c s= eè". si,e.. ' a; m e.` r s' c+saa:assaca¢_%,= a,. L is""     cm eFa w .,

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

a,

I     ,-    ,   I i i i    .    
i

I     .     i _ _.I

I      j        
i

I
I         

I     ;   ' ;  '        

i    -   - i __ ._  . l----_ -  1_ __ 1__   i     _._  t ' 

T WATER LILY DRIVE WATER LILY COURT  '

i  _       i j

Q       ;   
i     ;  > 

B MONA
i      !          !      i

A

U       o m` LL m'''.+'.,._.
r.,,

i         I

aq;       ( Q HOL CT 3913 ' IL a 

i I I IO 11 A

310



1Ti'A BNT' v 
I' r ` i      .
i! i

i

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, FOR

24 RESIDENTIAL LOTS IN TRACT 3913 VILLAGE " O"

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
14te day of May 2018, by and between the

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California (" CITY"), and River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its September 30, 2013, meeting, the City Council approved an Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication of Easement for Roadway Purposes and approved an Agreement for Dedication,
Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements for certain backbone roads and

improvements, including Lakeside Drive that provides initial public right of way access to
Tract 3873, as well as other tracts within the Community at South River Bend neighborhood which
connects to the East Village neighborhood.

C.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY's Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3913. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with

Tract 3913 and the adjacent Tracts of 3836, 3912 and 3914 as part of the Village " O" area of the

East Village District of River Islands. The unfinished portion of improvements totals $546,700.00

and both performance and labor and materials ( payment) bonds as required by the Lathrop
Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act were posted with the approval ofTract 3836
and will be required to be held by City as outlined in this Tract 3913 Subdivision Improvement
Agreement.

D.       At its September 30, 2013, meeting, the City Council approved an Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication of Easement for Roadway Purposes and approved an Agreement for Dedication,
Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements for certain backbone roads and

improvements, including Lakeside Drive that provides public right of way access to Tract 3913,
along with proposed access easements and all-weather roads associated with Tract 3913 on an
interim basis. Tract 3913 Final Map shall dedicate those roads not dedicated with previous tracts
in the East Village District and not covered by the Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Easement
for Roadway Purposes for streets serving as access to Tract 3873.

311



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for

Final Map Tract 3913
Page 2

E.       SUBDNIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 3913,
and as noted in Recital C, performance and payment bonds were posted with the approval of

Tract 3836 for the unfinished portion of these improvements,  along with other required

infrastructure for Tracts 3836, 3912, 3913 and 3914.  Improvement plans and street light plans

prepared by O' Dell Engineering, Inc., have already been approved by City. The street, sidewalk,
underground utility,  storm drainage,  street light and joint trench improvements ( hereinafter

Improvements") have been only partially constructed as part of the required infrastructure for
Tract 3913 and adjacent Tracts 3836, 3912 and 3914.  This SIA for Tract 3913 reaffirms the

security already posted and provided with Tract 3836, which will stay in full force and effect unless
substituted with different security approved by the City Engineer as outlined in this Tract 3913
SIA.

NOW THEIZEFORE in consideration ofCITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its
sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the East Village neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A, including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above-referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the

CITY' S Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the
California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the first home constructed in Tract 3913 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title ofTract 3913 associated with the filing of
Tract 3913 or prior to the completion and occupancy of the first production dwelling unit
associated with Tract 3913, whichever comes first. Such occupancy shall be documented by CITY
in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY or its agents shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

312



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 3

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDNIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As was required with the approval of Tract

3836 and reiterated and required by this Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Tract 3913,
SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Maintenance Bond in the amount of
324,600 equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the Improvements for the entire area($ 3, 246,000),

to insure SUBDIVIDER' S repair and maintenance of the Improvements in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be released at the end of the one- ( 1) year

guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are then outstanding. SUBDIVIDER may
also substitute the required security as described above at the City Engineer' s discretion.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recital D were required to

provide access and required utilities to Tract 3913 and are associated with adjacent tracts as

otherwise described in this Agreement, as well as backbone roads associated with the Agreement

for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements referenced in

Recital D, the security required by the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of
Public Streets and Improvements shall remain in place until the backbone improvements

associated with that agreement are complete and accepted by CITY or as is further described by
the conditions below:

a. Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit D, are required, and rehabilitation is guaranteed

by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed prior
to release of security previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement or fails to repair, replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may but is not required to proceed to complete
and/ or repair, replace or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for such
service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein as is
necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials, repair and

maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts.

313



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for

Final Map Tract 3913
Page 4

All administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Governxnent Code
Section 66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper
charge against the security and SUBDIVIDER.

In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an action to compel performance of this
Agreement or to recover costs of completing such improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall pay
reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in
connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are partially complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only post
Performance or Labor& Materials bonds to guarantee the deferred and unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 3913 and adjacent tracts as included and described in Exhibit E of this

Agreement.   The amount of the performance bond previously posted with the approval of
Tract 3836 is equal to 120% of the amount ofunfinished and deferred improvements as shown in
Exhibit E ($546,700 X 120% _ $ 656,040— performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital C.

The corresponding labor and materials bond posted equals 50% of the performance bond amount

656,040 X 50% _ $ 328,020) also as indicated in Recital C.  Further, SUBDNIDER shall also

comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and
incorporated herein. The security previously posted with Tract 3836 shall remain with CITY as
required by this Agreement. As stated in paragraph 6 of this Agreement, the required security may
be substituted by SUBDIVIDER at the discretion of the City Engineer.

10.      Any alterations made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement or
any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability on
any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part hereof. The above-referenced sureties hereby
consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
and/ or SUBDNIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
ofor in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by or acting as agent for SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors or subcontractors.

314



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 5

SUBDIVIDER shall at its own cost and expense defend any and all actions, suits or legal
proceedings or any type that may be brought or instituted against CITY and indemnities on any
claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered
against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such action, suit or legal proceedings resulting from or
alleged to have resulted from SUBDNIDER' S performance or non-performance of its duties and
obligations under this Agreement or from the negligent act or omission of itself, its agents,

contractors, representatives, servants or employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify
and hold harmless set forth in this section is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any

indemnity has prepared, supplied or approved any plan. or specification in connection with this
work or subdivision whether or not any such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering
any of these matters. CITY does not and shall not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which
it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by
CITY of any deposit with CITY by SUBDNIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by
SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered or alleged
to have been suffered by reason of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph
regardless of whether or not CITY has prepared,  supplied or approved of plans and/or

specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors
are or shall be considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDNIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the I nprovements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts (" CFD") to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

315



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 6

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' S expense, obtain and maintain all necessary

permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements.  Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction, SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3913.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns
of the parties.

316



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 7

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last day. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of such
action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A:  FINAL MAP - TRACT 3913

EXHIBIT B:   ADJACENT TRACTS TO TRACT 3913

EXHIBIT C:   CITY 1NSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/PARADISE/STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

317



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this

day of May 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY: BY:

Teresa Vargas Stephen J. Salvatore

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC,

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso

President

SUBDIVIDER"

318



Subdivision Ixnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for

Final Map Tract 3913
Page 9

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP- TRACT 3913

319



TRACT 3913 PROJECTSITE
5

OWNER'S STATEMENT
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B R R LAiHROP RD

THE UNDERSICNED, OOES HEREHY STATE THAT TME'! ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE LrWD
VILLAGE O

Cph,ENq
DELINEATED AND EMBRACm WITFIIN THE EXIERIOR BOUNDARY 11NE OF THE HER N EMBODIED LOUISE AVE
FlNAL MAP ENTRLEO,? RACT 3913, RNER ISLANOS, PHASE 1B, VIUHGE 0', CffY OF LATHROP,

A POR710N OF RANCHO FL PESCAOERO, B NG Sqp    

CALIFORNI0. CONSISTING OF SEVEN( 7) SHEETS, AND WE HEREBY CONSENr TO THE PREPARATION
A SUB INSION OF PARCELS 1 h 2 OF iRACT 3912( 47 N& P 19) r

qtt OF IATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt, CAIJFIXtNIA i
AND FlL1NG OF THIS FINAL MAP IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUMY RECOR ER OF SAN JOAOUIN

pPRIL 2018 s Q

COUNIY, CALJFORNIA f i ¢
Rp 2

7HE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DEDICATE AN EASEMEM TO THE CfIY OF IATHROP FOR PUBLIC
RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES, THOSE PORIlONS OF SAI LANDS DESIGNATED ON SAID MPP AS
SOlANO COURT AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL MAP. o      ' i

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEF2EBY OEDICATE TO THE CIfY OF IATHROP A NON- El( CLUSNE

N G 1 N£ E fZ 1 N G sf
l R

OP   ,      

ZO

ElSQAENf TOGEfHER YnTH THE RIGHT TO CONSiRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, RFPAIR PND I.WNTAIN,    o P
POLES, WIRES, CABLES, PIPES, AND CONDUfI'S AND 7HEIR APPURTENANCES UPON, OVER AND 2P

UNDER THE SfRIPS OF LAND/ S SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP DESIGNATED AS' P. U. E.'( PUBLIC
IJ ILIiY EASEMENT).       

4
J o?

7HE UNOERSIGNED DOES HEREHY OEDICATE TO THE CIIY OF fATHROP A NON- EXCWSNE
F15EMENT FOR THE PURPOSES OF REPAJR AN MAIMENANCE OF THE SOUND WPiL FOR 1HE CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT OS     1

AREAS DESIGNATED AS' WALL ElSEMENT' f5 SMOWN ON THIS FlNAL MAP.    S`
I, TERESA VARGlS, CRY CLERK AND CLERK OF THE Cltt COUNCIL OF THE Cltt OF LATHROP,

THE UNOERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE Cltt OF fATHROP, M FEE, PARCELS A, B STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DO HEREBY STATE 7HAT THE HEREW EMBODIED MAP EMITLED' TRACT GRAN7 L1NE R 1 

5

OAND D, FOR OPEN SPACE PURPOSES, INCLUDING PUBLIC UTILfIlES, FOR THE BENEFR OF THE 3913, RIVER ISLANDS, PHASE 1B, VILLAGE 0', Cltt OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA, CONSI5fINC OF
Pl1BLIC,! S SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL MAP. SEVEN( 7) SHEETS, THIS STATEMEN WAS PRESENTED TO SA1D CfIY CAUNCIL AS PROViDED BY

IAW, AT A REGIRAR MEEfING THQiEOF, HELD ON THE_ AY OF VICINITY MAP
THE UNOERSIGNED OES HEREB7 DEDICATE TO THE CfIY OF WTHROP, IN FEE, PARCEL C FOR 201 AND THAT SAID CIiY COl1NCIL DID THEREUPON HY RESOUlIION N0.
PARK PURPOSES, INCLU ING PUBLIC U IL. f11ES, DOMESfIC WATERLINE FACILfilES, AND SANRAHY Dl1LY PASSED AND ADOPiED AT SVO MEEfING, APPROVE SAID MAP, ANO AUTHORIZED fi5 NOT TO SCALE

SE'NER FACIIJTIES, FOR THE BENEFlT OF THE PUBLIC, AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNHL MAP.     RECOROA710N, AND ACCEPTED ON BEHAIF OF THE CfIY OF LATHROP, FOR PUBLIC USE, THE
DmICATION OF ALL PUBLIC UTILf1Y EfSEMENTS, WALL FASEMENTS, PARCELS A iHROUGH D, AND

THE UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY RELINOUISH TO THE CfIY OF IATHROP PLL ABUiTERS RIGHf OF THE RELINOUISHMENT OF ACC65 RIGHTS TO LOTS 2, 3, 4 AND 13, ALONC THE LOT LINES 15
ACCESS TO LOTS 2, 3, 4 AND 13, ALONG THE LOT L1NE! S INDICATED BY THE SYMBOL INOICA7ED BY THE SYMBOL///////, AND REJECTED THE OFFER OF DEDIGiION OF ALL SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT

S SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL MAP.       ROADWAYS PS SHOWN ON SAID MAP UMIL TH R IMPROVEMEMS HAVE BEEN COMPLEfED IN
ACCORDANCE WffH CHAPIER 16, TffLE 16. 16 OF THE CfIY OF IATHROP Ml1NICIPAL COOE.    7HIS MAP CONFIXtMS TO VES7ING IENTAPVE MAP N0. 3694 APPROVED BY THE PLANNINC COMMISSION.

THE UNDERSIGNED OES HEREBY RESERJE PARCEL 1 FOR FUNRE DEVELOPMENT.

I FURRiER STATE TFiAT ALL BONDS AS REOUIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WRHIN A4W HAVE OAIED THIS_ DAY OF 201_

BEEN APPROVED BY THE CIiY COIINCIL OF LATHROP PND flLED IN MY OFFlCE.
OWNFR: RIVER ISWJDS DEVELOPMENT. LLC, A GJJFORNIA LIMRED LIABIIJtt COMPANY.

NAME:   SUSAN DELL' OSSO DATE TERES4 VARGAS REBECCA SCHMIDT, COMMUNITY UEVELOPIAENT IRECTOft
ITS:    PRESIDENT Cf1Y CLERK AND CLERK OF THE Cltt COUNCIL OF THE CffY OF LAhIROP, COUN7Y OF SAN CIiY OF LATHROP

JOA UIN, SfATE OF CALIFORNW

DATED THIS_ DAY OF zo e.    CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT

OLD REPUBLIC TRLE COMPANY, AS TRUSIEE, UNDER THE DEED OF TFtUST RECORDm DECEMBER
I, GLENN GEBHARDT, HEREBY STATE THAi I AM THE CfIY ENGINEER OF THE CfIY OF IATHROP,

22, 2016, AS DOCUMFM NUMBER 2016- 16 886, OFFlCIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOADUIN COUNfI'.  
CALIFORNIA PND THAT I HAVE IXAMINED THIS FINAL MAP OF' fRACT 3913, RNER ISLPNDS,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)      PHASE 1B, VILfAGE 0, CRY OF LATHROP, Cl JFORNLI, AND THAT 7HE SU9DIVISION SHOWN
HEREON IS SUBSTANiIALLY iHE SAME AS R APPEARED ON THE VESTING TQJTATIVE MAP N0.

E;
3694, AND ANY APPROVED ALTERATIONS THEREOF. I FURTHER STATE THAT THIS FlNAL MAP

A NOTARY P BLIC OR OTHER OFFlCER COMPLEfING 7HIS CERTIFlCATE VERIFIES ONLY THE COMPLJES WITH ALL APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE Cltt OF LATHROP, AN ANY

IDENTITY OF THE INOMOUAL WHO SIGNED THE OOCUMEPIr TO WHICH THIS CFRTIFICATE IS AMENOMENTS THEREfO, APPLICABLE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THE VF.STING TEMATIVE

ATfACHED, AND N0T 7HE iRUiHFUWESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDffY OF TTAT OCUMENT.    P•

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER'S)     
srn or rauFow+w

onnv nns_ nnr ov zo_   `
o¢

Qoress o

F
COUNfY OF SAN JOAqUIN 

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFlCER COMPLEfING THIS CERIIFlCATE VERIFlES ONLY THE
IDENTRY OF THE INDMDUAL WHO SIGNED THE OOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFlCATE IS ON 201 BEFORE ME,      No. 31687

ATfACHE, AND NOT THE 7RUfHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VAllDf1Y OF THAT OOCUMENT.   A N 7ARY PU6L1C, PERSONPIIY APPEARm,     WHO GLENN GEBHARDT, R.C. E 34681
PROVm TO ME ON THE Bf51S OF 54TISFACTORY ENDENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5) WFiOSE NAME( S)      CffY ENGINEER OF THE CIiY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

SIATE OF GIJFORNIA IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBm TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMEM, AND ACKNOWLEDGFD TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ iHEY ptaa

COUMY OF SAN JOAQUIN IXECIJrED THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR AUiHORIZED CAPACfttQES), AND THAT BY HIS/ HER/ THEIR

SIGNANRE( 5) ON THE INSfRUMENT THE PERSON( 5), OR THE ENR1Y UPON BEHALF OF WHICH 7HE

ON 201_ BEFORE ME,       PERSON( S) ACTED, IXECUTEO THE INSTRUMENf.      RECORDER'S STATEMENTA NOTARY PUBUC, PERSONPiLY APPEARED,     WHO

PROVE TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5) WHOSE NAME( S)     I CEAiIFY UNDER PENAL7Y OF PERJUfiY UNDER THE fAWS OF THE S ATE OF CNJFORNIA THAT THE
FlLED THIS DAY OF 201 AT__. M.

IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED 70 THE WITHIN INSR2UMEM, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ iFiEY FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.      
IN 900K OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE AT THE REOUEST OF

IXECUIED THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THE1R AURIORIZE CAPACItt( IES), AND THAT BY HIS/ HER/ IHE1R
WfINESS MY HAND:       

OLD RFPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY.

SIGNANRE( S) ON THE INSTRl1MENT 7HE PERSON( S), OR THE EMItt UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE
PERSON( S) ACTED, D(ECUIED THE INSiRUMEN.    

SIGNANRE:    
FEE: S

I CERTIFY UN ER PQJALtt OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 7HAT THE NAME( PRIM):

FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.    PRINCIPAL COUNiY OF BUSINESS:       
MY COMMISSION NUMBER:       BY:

WffNE55 MY WWD:     MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:   SiEVE J. BESTOU RIDES, ASSISTANT/ DEPUIY RECORDER
SSESSOR- RECORDER- COUNfY CLERK

SIGNANRE
SW JOA UIN COUMY, CAIJFORNIA

NPME( PRINp:
PRINCIPAL COUNIY OF BUSINE55:     D(EMPT FROM FEE PER GOVERNMENT CODE 27388. 1; DOCUMEM
MY COMMISSION NUMBER:

MY COMMISSION IXPIRES:  
RECORDED IN CONNECTIDN WIiH A CONCURRENT TRANSFER
SU& IECT TO THE IMPOSfiION OF OCUMEMAR'! TRANSFER TAJ(.  

SHEET 1 OF 7

320



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for

Final Map Tract 3913
Page 13

EXHIBIT E

UNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

321



TRACT 3913
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B

LINEANOqh14ETABLESPoPCOl1HSESSHOWNON9iEEf53AHD4, ONLY VILLAGE O

IBIE TA%E lB1E TABIE n iaRra ff uqq Ei PEurOolo, m ec

NOTES uE  o  uraix ut o  n,  u x
A pl OF P 41 t 2 OF TRACf 3t12( N YIP U)

on ar u oa, sw a wn oaam, rr xaiw
i.  raoxr m r sru+ c u  wsoaoo'e ax ui w m x aoo' N- XR!) waa mu

vta an aF un mr K aox ov oab+a¢ as. mta s. Rrwrta s<aa+. n an or
wwaoP v rs arewmoa a vraaa mr eaemuc m una ovoumws wsne n c an u wamaa ax n wr xaort Qr- X 9

nuv vacaotn iai wr e ct.asE io w

aoNO 
u  uatiaaCE a.aT u   a m taa7( wi tt)      

USE ND PRIGDES ILTMRS,  L{   1qR1N tOtffi l24 USf tqpY( Y- tlj(R14J
Pl G 7 N E£ i 1 N G

Np1f0 10 RMWf IA/ fAU7f& QL7MiWi PN O. SPItAWq. 90AION. W9NON4 iNR 51WG,
PAB1ii0 OF AfApLiIML W157E WIDOIICIS Rl91FC110N Oi 6tOP4 MD Al tll.4 FR9Y DEREL0111p1.  L7 FA4f 1S7 ff l37 IqIM 2H07( 11- N) QO{)
am on x icmn. a wa wr mmw ousr. s. aooR wooeMs uo vcs s e¢

u iaisx wo7 a    r wnaU( wXMqnnr nat aAawgxrr ra wm aar rtr ro cu nMri a n a au nE ans

ax soicnp eaorsea nr. o oa o aw n+ ar wwi epa[mr. R wr ae rc
v  usaorm'1r atr n nam  irnm(- rXm+lrnar ra es va vxan m ia vr ww Noro wa s aa asca m r s waaui/ vo ac nr

cr or u.wo w w aa iwuur oacoox
o+   um'  ue aasoi mm N-yMRW

a  mu vair ex mm tao oo rx ocaoa m. maae n+. unwoP. c+uaeu.  oo '  a uor sRar p sn)
esnooem a oxcr ao. sassm a ao mu[ r xe, xoo4 nw or.ni Mae rnR n       

wn. T n o o. weaaa wm., es. roonF, oc w aen. ew s aw e am att ar uo wr a.00'  uo rwsT xeoo' 0- tlX m)
unwnv.      

i  nuecr t; rt vn se i4 o•. caerta sa s. wo
u      s m u    usr s aa 4i- yX)

w u caurnw,o x,a. s. an nawao aws,,, a. m c oEa vm m u:   usr nm ux usr ss o a xR++>
TNS RNL WIP; A10 PARCfl. 7 COpfAf4d6 CSS AH YOIE pl l6&Nl 9 i1! ON& D LLW

11]    FAS!   7. 00' ( A)      UJ MISID' A7IEIE1Il( PlFA4E AFFFA 10 TIIE ARFA S1Nl1r07'f LI E F1DIQ:      

Lf{   EATf   ] 61J0 ( b)      CSl 11 M 1] 600'

rnacras 3u nsur,a nr
ue usr kaw d-rX   ue wami cuov ry- rk 0

w wr nzoi P- r
ms i n ao x sti rs

u    usr mo7 ( u

s¢ T ator ad oa Acs u   woatx aaou( r-h(es)

xims nwaia o nx rsc u   w m ram p D(

MII L k IE41htD fUl FUl11E p      
110 Nd11N NS00' ( r-rX)    

DE1U It1R

IOfAL I.M AGt

w n a aoeusce cvrra n a nE wm r m art amra MAem
SIGNATURE OMISSIONS

m oawx a(+vr..+oM i>.wtm wrr n. mia rxwoeu er ae ec m car wr. wn suwr To s eM e av weoms urv n u s ov n+e aua o
v xr s wc m own a
1. AECINIED H3Alq5 LAlU CpPNK. NAl10q Fp! OIL CA4. 1lBYL.4. NO ORIEA

NTOi GV tI SLB4fNIQ8 LNIC BF1L9 A OFFIH OF 300 fEEf, PEN DOtVYOR M1Y A Z001- 0901n.
S. LCR.

t W 1C VRM fASFMENf IN fWaR OF TIE QIY OF UM70P PER iRACf J0J8( 44 Y! P 04 S.J.CR  '

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
v, m a rr. muar swre, r w vc a eom ne rwi wv oc^ sr a e

fl6 WP WAS PPdDARED/ 1! E OR WDIIt W OfifCIION ddD B d15FD liON A FlEID SIIiVFY NL9MO5. VIN4E 1R YYlIOE 0'. GIY IA11 P. GNi9Py K/ Dp 71NT 1! E AbOhffidl Si10qM IE1 ON
OOOIFOIOWILF MiFI A[ I IRRkYfMS OF 7! E 3UBDIY 011 WP ACE Nb IDI'JL OfmYYJICE AT 11f RECU6fCOIND6 MRM NL ll ROYB016 OF OWIEA 1 71E WidrSA SU70h1S10N W8/ Ci. A4 NIOD[D.
OF R14R AICOS OEVk] DP1ffNf LLC. OPF/ IlOISf 1. 104d I lIEflEHP STAIE NL 7lIE YdWOflS AF OF 7NEMO IIMT 7N4 FWAL 1! M 6 7@ND1LL1' OOpELT.
OMIh1CIQ ND OCWA' 11E POSIq16 rOIG7FD ON 71Ni 111E7 6LL fiE gT @I 1XmE POfi10115 f9V

Mlm 7! 6  UO OF TD1       DECO EER] t Qt. MD 7HR 7FIE YdWIFMS ARF. 00. 1lMT' hEY 1fLL.. SI FICEM TO Eri19E 716
s r m eE o. um nev nes rwe w c svesumuur maans m n cawmowur rwao n
to cv wa.

UY COS Tf, PE 31005 M 1 IN a7FD 7M5 MY OF 101

r  

DM1IN P1S Iq

SHEEf Z OF /

322



TRACT 3913I Nw{ouu    RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B
ruxu t

r aw uin nacr ano im       cx VILLAGE O
7RAer awo utO

vJ L t P.uE 61
m o--aatal

A lq11 0 OF/ 004 i1 L7CJIOF114 OIC
GAHD@I FAHNS AVENUE lr..a+)     

ox un       
A PJ M901 ff PAM LS 1! 2 7UCf 712 r a iq    .

f LOA IQ D1L' lOih191l1 Q'  Y Ott UTII. SNi C/O 1 CaMTY
J+l—.       —       YA 01

I I        I b
g u E., t„ norcr-r      

I _   -- I pw o-    I
I W1Por+ADa uE Rl q    Q( Rs) N G 1 N$ 8ii1 N G

3a1
r tu. s c

I
PARCELI

I nrac7 ae uttl

DETAILA      
I- 

N
o tDOr 7a01'    107

7AACT3912( R71)       qfTOSGYF I   
I I

P caz I        BOUNDARYSHEET

I I    -- x(    
rFucr tz a a    i      SEESHEET4 I    O

s
1 I    +    1.

uar im i(r-r)pn)      arr owaPl- rXa)      rwt a. uE re 

r

aveaxuwnsP wKw r
LEGEND

m rwo rouar srw ta hs r(

n         Jr ra o wunar s wrto tts ms n Q
j K! LF r01 i rou zr m ar Qm)

WA7FA llLY ORIVE WATFA lYY COURf WL 271- afU7
a        ND OY7K 11L x YQIUIXf iD EE gT FI!( RI)

wE1QY E 6R11 a   i^ lAf E
f II E]( f 1D @E! T FII Qt)

j pmCAlpl RJt p! L      DH E079- M 7 1

ffi  L'i lOfi- 1DAb0        YtlME]df 10 ff iT! Q QtI J
r uca. i i t vt r/ nrsue ww tas nee' m

nucr ms nm I

I
pnH a ul nn¢r.

HaeoaN owve I QnEintSE

x ro exr ro gr wt(      
a oa     ,   

ex

I i a     p r wir m E ar v n( un

i      ———     uwru owve  ————  
r exr m rsr ex( Anl

f-
u°" a

U( r-rl(  
wr rinadpw i)     

ufloii 

r-s-r r uE

pC IIvi Ellf UE

Jpt fp
MRCt1 A lR Ol

1LSiW COUflT
71GILT p! tRlJ 3       I 7D407 Qtl)     IFA IlO MD IROdfD O U k RFFEEI4E( Itl)

I p)   -   
OE1101Q fff7dM QII} E USf
W 1115lFFT

ACIIDENY OHNE

BASISOF6EMNOS YW BIf 10 ll}plE 1( I! 1lQIOI

A01iL fA 70us a+ x''?`
w  —,,, mlw,——   -     ("

W

REFERENCES a
10i

DO 6 9RYE7 fi MlO1S A mDr: M OpI!/ l1EK A iq.AS O CCSFL 1'!    
ql01i11'/   

pl) RRIiiG11E C i101 RlmfD lY 1'{ p AS OOO FIIf M- 1? ITiA S, r     a lE

lR1fl'S itl)       OlL   .   GOQIIEMi N RJt

0 awrt[ caom x a+a s s s- ann s cn.     BASIS OF BEARINGS ru c unm Er. r

Q! 111LR 7iM iMID 0[ t41 174 701 Y OC 41 OF WPS IYO Mii AQ 4 S.tCJt( @ YIP 4)   M rlYM6 ff fAtf 7fDl FWD WI OIIS NOC TIE YW qT YE ff APJi001 Y11E AS 41G 1 ON Oj GnBIf I@OEfI M/ m1
a1) 7UCf 7 R i fD Ff UNlP a,1014 M OOf H 6 WP! NO MA/ A S1Wl I 2 YM I 1bR 7nf. rtED w 4 7q4 M OOi[ 3 WVS Wc ruA i R FfW i[ 0005 Ov TE OGIM1'

O ltlCf 7U1. f W114 7014 M 001 @ Oi YM! NO M13 M] 611C1t( C YV JtI SMI dNNL W TAM411 AS 11E WS Oi fMKd lqlM 01 11D IW IlI,IE; M OLt}! LL DLlfN Q3 lqlN
Qr) OIANf OFFD IEL'ddfD YMW] 4 7W1. A! D1l 7DCl- ON177, LCA IFIEDN AIE 01011tO LLif/N0II

Ov rncr s, eta w o m. mu. r oac a ov n No nms r x uca.(u rr ery
EASEMENTSp uer fn.nfo wausr x o+, r oac n wrs eeo ua r, rt uc. ta r+.

Oel ue w wm aemex b, r oc Q wrs wa ws raa t siut.(a rr r-0 i waie unm usmct rEw nver p i
pa) auer nm oemQ a. r aac a s wrs wo n n: sac. cu wa n)

pnt) auu ax nm wea+ 4 un. pa a ar r Mo ruR Aa M ucR( rr KJ
Ru) etxx run wanQ o. r imc a a rwi,vo ut r a u ua.(u rw           NOTES

aueraL nm a 4 am r oac a rws wo n a v r.sua.(u rr N>     w s[ afsr s fa oanaw. xoas no ra c ue T az Nu wne wu a ta aaw a a¢
RN) IACf It. RFD if IMl1' 7, A M l lt 47 WIPS ND MA NI 1/, EdCit( A 11r th ND i OLT.     

s Er 3 oF 7

323



TRACT 3913
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1B

VILLAGE O

ranai ar u wio a wr+cnn. n c
P,,. zff,,.

an av unaor. coum,

i

I  71GCf 3&! o IR721 N G 1 N££ fZ l N G

I

GARDENFARMSAVENUE R
N       °

uve y a2liwl n)    — var amm0ar m)   usr sxo'd(r-r u O
x i•. v

I 1 BOUNDARYSHEET
e     s e   '   e a to it tz ta u    t z s

iarcr ae e z u o
LEGENDPARCfl 1

LL7 7RAC! 7912 IR111 1PACf 9E36 IR11)    TRAL7 3 36 IR711

o      A      2 3 1 S   ? n 1D   ! e 17 fe 1e    1 Jp I
f TroE rw t(

U Y7iJ1ENf 1D E ST Ell QU)

g Iq4 lMi 10 E f! 4R( RIQ

tt YO l1[f 10 E gT 1 1( M1J
J 7K    —       —   

r wr°°a°v, w— "—— u  
c wo tss s m E: r x

Q
I

I 
r mm  R PLUMAS DRNE 0P A         _        q o( u Ksmnar,wtv aeu wim

a y
usr acm o.m' Rq  o wo ueao wu st an Qn)

p$c o 1
z

o e      e zt zz za u u ze
u'

I 

l oao s wrno f u?- af usr a a¢ r a

g
0 7RJCf 3912 UpI) TRACf 3D3E IR1 1

m w

m       

YO iEMf 7D BQlO.WY

Z m
o I^ m, mK

I Y l0 11 1E 13 1   15 16 17
P 1

I   
PARC 2 I CJL D0011ENf N 11

1a cr tz iR o
m  ••••

v acr tz( ta    ruc nere unm u drne e

I I ust 4
a. a. 

e AOFs

tt f___       
J      I s mw ner

un         SOLANO WAY W I ar uc a+ r- u wt

a
m oNtr uc

I ii

zs za za u 2t m  a te j- j      
umrruE

7RAC! 3912 IR1U
3       aMma

usr         
i

g m mates s/ e' eWt mx r.v s nar tn( A)
S ooa ts i.ir ua oac srarm srna: rc roEss

sav  aaoY      —       —       —       —       — asao usr arx r ie
w x a. aar ar ru pn)

wr iae%a( r-r a) m R]ICRS]/ RO11 E m!0 A' 111l Ca l pl A 3 F00

ANER ISLANDS PARKWAY stsfr, ru n' Rs ner l u)

NOTES
L 3E 9lET 2 Fal 11WIIIOIAL MOFS NO F 7E I! E TlAE MD

I L S 6 7    !    9 10 11 12 13 1   A 15 16 17 1!      19 B

I
a E Tb8 001/ RS 910N a 9' IS 7 ND 4 OUC

2 m]iLR K ff fAISILS WL1 Flff ND GSS1Elli
7RACf 393/ fR 1

SHEET 4 OF 7

324



TRACT 3913
RIVER ISLANDS—PHASE 1B

VILLAGE O

A IQOW p IIAlIWO Q PEl(YOfA4 1N'.
A 9 OF PM 131! 2 K TIACf J112( q 14P 1)

Ctt OF U7111W SAN OAO I O IIf: Glf'6 u
Y 1P01 2010

NG1NEEfi1NG

GAFUEN FAFIMS AVEM)E

N a aa  ar tm

o
lE Y. M/

B I 5 6 T 6 9 10 11   ] 2 73 14        z   '     

SHEEf INDIX
3836 IR7 P

fARCEL 1

at 7RNC 3830 1R11)
25

i 1 2 3 1 S 37 19 16 17 16 1!
0 7C

o PLUMASDRIYE PLUNASDRIVE

1

9 B      e zt zz za u zs ze 3 P      
LEGEND

1
7AAC7 3912 1R1Q

i         '

o f0 11 12 13 1!  f5 16 17 7 2 4 S 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13        
r

uY+    lEEf ll T I E

SOUWOWAY    '    SOLANOCOl1RT O
4 lOTpI ER

O 9EET I aBF31

p i IfSIIOCIFL AOf'L4

25 7A 23 22 21  ? D fi 10 24 23     12 21 20 19 18 17 16 15

g
y<

B
PARCELD PARCELB I

RIVEFi 1SlAN0.S PAHKWAY

SHEEf 5 OF 7

325



d0 133HS I si r et zi u a  e e c

IL 9
L I I n ai I9E8E L tl 11 I I I I

PD N10f6 S lG171G! Si@I13N q ON 3f1 iO3 L S

IQN S11 K 56rFi Lldl'iY3 d4Q/3 LW[ 1376 335 1
531011TII0WOU1ffilZ13i631S t

G31d1 F BO A7 Ifl
41M6'f 101 Yv31 TM 1 13i CL. 6LlL E d. A7 1 WOI 3/S 2

411ON SY YD T' Q
ill 1013! D IOILMJiG6Yd ONPT XN- 11Etl 3il GIN A01

7T11365 3I lkD ID lE 3 QL. LL 1'H. Qi/ MJ6 7 0 gYlo 1Cl ' l

S310N
T—p021 APmT— N11u0'(JOl1SIJ

I I

smm, w  
r mT i       i   AdM)IHtld SONtl' 1SI H3Nd

3 31lfD -----    j j Af104 dl3'Jtltld Ylg1

n, a vYan ----    i i,(
e iaotnra buoxAm  i n e' r aaa

an u[ -------- I ci ram mi Ki K ncM tsri w
3f1 AYMWICB ft/J t AOS   p0it Ao'tf— AO' If A7[ f—   Cp'tt— —.00'i    mA—    

I     
T A[   1a1 

3n xra-.iu-1 

Fp—um v3 Tpr F       f I I
yy

W Yil lL 51d. Qi00ry1 1{    

I v O S_ J4 WfY     .       •              •       '      •      !
S Mt '    I

J    

I•             BI
4l S fit ii MI'G A i[Lt   ! 3 i'[   S M t 1E M C f tft f/ Mt

mai oot r io iaem a v e oa t/e daa  3 St 9t u 8       st Oa       z u j j         f4 I 8 1
t4 1 Ki113ilo PO' t MD 9.7 I a H I  ' ls at1  Ls'           1'

f5 41 Y OlflB'. 90lL 514 Q 7610 SStl1i L{7 S1ldBG     ol ' J l3'JFlVd 13 3 Z I6£

Iq Y3d! L Sl, dq N1A WWmYY/ 4 fllON30  I
Q       31I' Al 1 371' d Al

I' N)1t

1 ____ _____ ____  
11U[ Yl1LLfW17 113R  p1'dti A lf A      ' L>       01       ' if A' L1

w c    

rme' m cs

AVM ONV10S

s+ ur3

aanorw m nureoa( a- N I
0Y      -       - wXn-) ovon       --

acss      ao  - f—-
uor m ixseooe U-w}   1FJ( 10 OM114S UFN im

c s m un nwa+m+ s-{ ial+ s m suaaa ( up i       we uvi
i8

0

9 lUJao av3

uD mn[ rira amui un acnv  ( u0 poroac y      ,      aos     Ar ti po2+     Ao'i     pot+.     . 00' s mio a'a oou I$ po
amu

eic sx a aasw h ion a:_+/ c maa sr t       ra a ----- ----   ---- ----- ---- ---     3x a

im iaus m rrroonaur yo a:" naw' n m acM e
asssr ma suo grni LaaJ mrm ssiva Aoc ta a mtt+   

iy  ,       

mwm uuuo svm k na'( wi) m      .    I  <      rs at   s ad   n oat vs ror rs t is m   s sat R s o   s ot 1s   z n    
tt

lNll Yii lE 7Y Ol. W[L SY CrtN aSYIA/ w 3dd roY d/[ • 

I
m El     Zl     l l     Dl     6      8      L      9      S      9 I 2

1q) 76f 1 Ol 1Kl1ad1}  

31Yd. 0

Ki p
3Rd S     '

7

11) iPil J3 3B Ci 1Nif11 11 Js(   O       

Uu ia ns ixana 7&j mu m'u mcr onr mr roos     . arc+     ao' a aoir m•a ao a     y       avn O

u nt am+ usw/ m t/c is o WU mwAAo'e c ur3 o$  p   ( ca

iu[ S1i Pllf llil l!Il OII dPY1RY1 ilD OIYUNq51S     
rn Iv  

ON3931
F

I      '    
rf aC[t

it H        
sz n n

A' s
113 F1tld

f l[ 81 9EHE L7V lL

JNL! 33N19N3 N
U I

I  

a) omc sr3 p y
3AiFia SHWflld i$ I ifl

u aen n wc'

aeo axv dnm iod

oeems r p

0°-

iw- miu      -       -       -       - Ac   m'to„ ( u n- ND w sr
G- NA oc is+a

O JV1lIA g" i

I

8L 3S`dHd- SONt/lSl a3Ala

E L6E l b' l I a 9EeE, 

326



TRACT 3913
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

VILLAGE O

A fORIIW ff RM701D R RSd'JLFA4 RICy
N     

a ua s+w, maei, vLiowu u

O
YM01 ml6

NG1N fi7NG

i

L@7E AND CUflYE TABLES FOR COURSES SHOWN ON SHffT 6 ONLY i SOLANO COURT
uE Tui[      oat ua[      14

tsE C RCoaM tt)w'Ix a lE IIenR OFLTA 1Li71
a

PARGFLA

u waeaoovr x r a nm w+tor tur
zm     

wrmoa(h

wsoo'o7t az. Y et . som esYsr aus'     

u MeaCvmr xx o ao.ao f7nars+• anr
FnacEle   .

u plsadad[ 1sY u  . OD f'1% 2t'  aziP
75 14

y

L7 N1SLCm'E SS7f p 17 0 M731' 1 A6'      

u wemrori as r a nm    aa rwsmrs am)( r)

2

E 600'   RNEFI ISLANDS PARKWAY
4

DETNLA DETAILB

ror m s iar m a"

c. n u r n

SHEET 7 OF 7

327



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 10

EXHIBIT B

ADJACENT TRACTS TO T 2ACT 3913

328



Q~   

jr

F DpAq0
9 ,    

e,,
y

m"   .

LAKE 9

GARDEfV FARMS AVENUE

TRACT 3 36^__-
a=_=..,.,

2,.;  a`    

a I s   o  >>   i  is i    1 I-     '
4'''.-

m-s.m qa-   m:s.- Jel     .
s'°,. .

c " m'   ea     r._ a.

y:
0 1 2 3 4 5"' 0 19 1  t,'  16 15             

9 10 11 I   13 14 15 ( 16  17  ; Q     

w   '       
r    TRACT     j     o

p PLUMAS DRIVE j1 0

o p    '-'-' e j     '!       I I  o

cn        ?  G a   -,   5 21 z2 z?  za  =  zs p    s A, a   , s 20 2  zz 2a 2a  ? 5 zs  i o

o       o M
p      aM i J

J    4'   es      - a-  -s! r  -•     -. r--  --     -.      -. ¢ ;

W           
n  . e.  _ c7, an_  _ m:  . y pC .,

1u it 12 13 1d 15 1" o II 1     ?>  4 5 G r'   8 9 10 li 12 13 I  '    ;.
A tp o o j

1
s U

i
j SOLANO WAY 1,   SOLANO COURT

@ TRACT ` 1  TRACT 3 o     Q 
5 2d 7_3 22   ?_ 1 20 t9 10 P4 23 22 21 2U t9 t9 I7 1€ 3 15 1          i

t. m_ s v_m.a. iWaamru-:: m-.- r- a„ e.: i:.. m-..=-- c l o,, o

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

c- mlm--'-'+-.     

I  - I  -     _  I.. _ ...:.   . _  .    i_ __._ i_-- --------, 
i

I
I

m-_sw- m-s'-'  ' a-,._ -  -  '  '  '

i-- — --- -' I-------- i     `     .                 

i        i i  .   ;  .      i
i

g,      i_    ;.._    i i a.
WATER  .    

v.._. _.. .._.

T A 34LILY DRIVE WATER LILY COURT . g
I          il..    .._ 0

i i I

e MOMA

fl    
LL=-

m m'"`-..   _   '.    
16, o 

p,: l       -      E H0 0 "'

e      .  _- po      A  ,-T --   -  4
o

a  ,    TR C 390 HOL 3 13
1 z

i I         Y2098

329



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3874 Village" A"
Page 10 of 13

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to do
business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no less
than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and$ 2, 000,000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurers. All parties to the Subdivision Improvement
Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss."

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least

thirty( 30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the.work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

330



Page 1 of 1

A      
DATE( MM/DD/ YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 04/ 19/ 2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPOfd THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

Willia lnsurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE 1- 877- 945- 7376
F'     

1- 888- 467- 2378

c/ o 26 Century Blvd EALo Ext:      A/C No:

P. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS: certificates@willis. com

Nashville, TN 372305191 IISA INSURER S AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: IInited Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED INSURER B:
River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewait Rd INSURERC:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: w591 z66 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTVNTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7YPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
pOLICY NUMBER MM

DDY
EFF

MMDD
EXP

LIMITS
LTR

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE 1, 000, 000   

DAMA E T R N
CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR PREMISES Ea occurrence    $

A MED EXP( Any one person)    $
ATN- SF1B11644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

pERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ Z, 000, 000

POLICY E  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/OPAGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER: 

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY
COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILYINJURY Peraccident  $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY      Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y N
STATUTE

ERH

ANYPROPRIETORlPARTNER/ EXECUTIVE  
N A

E. L. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED?

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, descnbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES ( ACORD 707, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

RE:   Final Map Tract No. 3913 - Village O

The City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and members thereof, its employees and agents

are included as Additional Insureds as. required by written contract on a Primary and Non- contributory basis with

respect to the General Liability policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE A80VE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Dr JJJ

Lathrop, CA 95330

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sR ID: 15995491 Tcx: 677688

331



POLICY NUMBER: ATN-SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR
ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or
Organization s

Location s Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its
employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.
A. Section 11 — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:

respect to liability for" bodily injury", "property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or

or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage occurring after:11. All work, includin materials,  arts or e ui ment
or in part, by:   g P q p

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     
project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional

in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured(s)   at the location( s) 
has been completed; or

designated above.
2. That portion of" your work" out of which the
injury or damage arises has been put to its

However:    intended use by any person or organization other

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only
than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and m performing operations for a principal as a part of

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader
than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

332



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
required by a contract or agreement, the most we Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

333



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

IVamed Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN-SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party's Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

334



dJIdITED SPECI 4LTY INSUR.4NCE COIVIPANY

THIS EPIDORSEMENT CHAfVGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

IVamed Insured: River Islands Development, LLC
Policy Number: ATtd- SF1811644P

THIRD P 4RTY CAMCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below (according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Marrae and Address of 04her Person/Orqaniaation Number of Davs Notice

City ofLathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

335



Subdivision Improvement Agreennent( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 12

EXFIIBIT D

COHEN/PARADISE/STEWAItT REgIABILITATiON MA.P

i
l

I

336



8

8

oa

EXHIBIT" D

Rp py yTp,„,, yy,, yygMlF,,, Y
ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBIT

n„,   
RIVER ISLANDS

m' nF i miuur  ;: n u, vn i ur n va iwRni;;

337



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3913
Page 13

EXHIBIT E

UNFI1o1IS IED AND DEFERIaED IMPROVEMENT COS7C ESTIMATE   

338



ri   ;1!_ '.   i  !

5NG1NE fi1NG

ENGINEER'S BOND ES7IMATE January 6, 2017
COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502- 15

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

TRACT 3836( 101 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drain, Water Testing 8 Raising Iron ( 95% Complefion)      1 LS   $    44,200.Q0  $ 44,200.00

2 Fine Grade, Rock& AC Paving ( G8% Completion)       1 LS   $   237, 200. 00  $      237, 200.00

3 Joint Trench( 52% Completion) 1 LS S 265,300. 00  $      265,300.00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       546,700.00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents irom Mozingo ConsWction, Teichert Construction&
Moreno Trenching for Tract 3836.

620 STDNERIDGE RAALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTOPI. CA 9J586  P y35.22.i.83:l0 • F209,571. 2486

T:125502- River IslandslPhase 15- Trect B361Exce Cos1 EslimalelBond Eslimate@017- 01- 00 Tracts 3650 Bond Estimme.xls5hnprovnmems

339



XHIBIT A

sCOP oF WORK ANn a N RAI. cON ITIONS

CONTRACTOR:       Moringa Constnacllon, Ino,

CONTRACT NUMBER: 2016-260
PROJECT NAME;      River Islands at Lalhrop
PROJECT ADDRESS;  73 West Stewart Road, Lethro, Caqfomie i

I
SEC71nN 9;   9COP 0 WORK

Contractor sha f fumish all labor, materlal, tools, equlpmenf, servlces, supplles, fnsurance, Ncenses, supero(slons end fac IGes necessary to oomplete
wo C In a wakmanGke manner per the folbw)ng:       .

Work to Inc(ude, without Ilmltatlon; 
lL   C.U?' U' U    './

Based on plan sheets 1• 13 for Tract 3836 prepared by 0'Dell F gineering, dated 3! 1 f20181he following work will be perforn ed;
SEWE

i.  8° Sewer 336fi LF .  24.00 80,784.00
2,  4" Sewer Service 102 A 600.00 51, 000,00
3.  SSMH 1b EA 3,000.00 s45,000,00
4,  Co ect to xisBng 1 EA 1, 600.00 1, 504.00
8,   pe-Watering i LS       $ 140,000.00 5140,000.00

sroa
1.  42° 8torm RCP 69 LF 110.00 7,b90,00
2,  36' Storm RCP 135 lF 60.00 8,t00.00
3.  3p' Storm RCF 248 LF sSQ.W 312,4, 00
4,  24'& tortn RCP 533 LF d7.00 s25,051. 00
6,   18` Storrn RCP 220•LF 40.00 s8,800,
6.  16' StOrm RCP 1640 LF 39.00 63,960.00
7,  SOMH-- Type 1 1 A 3,500.00.    53,600.00
8.  SDMN— Type 2 2 FA B4O00.00 512,000.
9,  Type A! Infet/ l'ype 1 16 EA 3,600.00 a56,Od0A0
10, Type A! InletlType 2 3 EA 34,000,00 12,000.00

11, Cannect tv Exist(ng 1 EA s2,fi00.00 _   2,6Q0.00
12 Wmp Dovm Lake 9 1 LS 513,500.00 13,500.00

WAr R
1.  6' PVC( S1i1B)  1 EA 2,600.00 2,C00.00
2.  8" Wa6er 2, 780 LF i21, 00 68,380.00

3.  8' Oate Value 13 EA 1, 20Q,00 f15,600.00
4,   10" Water           980 LF 526.00 525,480.00
5,  10° Gate Value 4 FA 2,000,00 8,OOO.QO
6.  Fke Hydrent 7 EA S,OOO. QO 35,000,00
7.  1, 5" Water Servloe 101 A 5950.00 a' i,960,
8,  ARV 2 A 2,600.00 5, 0.00

9,  Blow ff 2 EA s3,000,00 6,Q00.00

10. Connect fo E s ng             3 EA 3,OOO.QO 9,000.00
11. 1' Water Service 1 EA 7b0.00 s750.00
12. 2' Weter Serv(ce 2 A 1, 0.00 2,000.00

NON P TABLE WATER   .      
1.  1G Water 980 LF 53.    38,280.00
2.  16" Ga e Value 5 EA 3,00p,00 15,OOOAO
3.  6" PVC( STU9)  1 A 32 600.00 2,b00,00
4.  8' PVC( STUB)  2 EA 3,000.00 6,Q04,00
5,  8° Gate Valve 2 EA 1, 200,00 s2,400.40
6.  Blow Off kn Line i EA 2,600.00 2,600.00
7.  1' NPW Servk,e 1 EA 5750.00 760,00

1 Contraabrs Inlieb- '      .
Ownera Ndtlab   

340



lO2trvll   t 1' 11 f+W 1 6   

8.  NPW Connecl to E dsting 2 EA 5,000,00          10,000.00

TOTAL 882, 888,00

G RG v ls NG r̀ f tc.     

C cu. s o ss' r 3 r gs ,/`=   t
co torr oNs& sco    m.   "  S-

Sequenceofwork W r  [   i''   7
instaliing after' rough grading ope aqons have been canplefed by others.    I
Allow adeguate tfine for materlals submittals, procurement and delfvery pdor to beg nn       .

Sewer System

SpR 26 bacicNl wfth sand and nat(ve mat,    

Services to be elubbed to wifhin 6' af bu ding peds.       
Ser( ces to be stubbed to lots, cleanout box, per City of Lathrop speciflcadon, Induded
P ecask Bases are induded

Tes6ng is Induded.
Sb nn Drain

RCP and DIP backflll wilh sand and nafive material.

Catch baelns wilhin lhe curbs to be set to withb 1 A' of finish grade. P ovide frames and grales to be set by ofhers.
TesHng induded,

Waler System( Pofable and Non- Paiablej
PVC C900 DR 14 fw 10' and sma er,       

3 PVC C905 pR 25 for 18` and smaner.    

Senrices to be stubbed to wilhin 5' of kwilding pads,
a  Meter kll s t be installed fn meter boxes. Boxes to be set per City of Lalhrop current standard,( Meters by others)
fi  TesUng fs induded d wlll requlre a polnt of discharge lo be provided withh close proxlmfry of a blow o polnt for watsr sysiem,

Exc UsLs:
Permifs aes

S rveyinglStakJt

Compacf on Tesfing
Maza' davs Stfbstance Removal

Over-excavaHon, handling unsuitable mate fal a worWng wifh material with over apHmurn masture o ntent.      
ft aul oFspols.    

Dust Confrol lan. Dust Control of Contractor's operation is Included In Contract Prlce,
Ramoval of debrls from Installed pipelines and appurte ances caused by others or due! o EnsuHicienl SWPPP measures( hat are not the
feult of Cantrac;tor.

Ero on Control

Trat c Confra! Plan.      .    
Cons7uc0on Area 51gns

S CTION 2:   OEN RAL NOT S

Contractor Is required ta c a comprehensive c Ity cantrol walk and correct all discrepandes prior lo the quality c nlyd walk by Owner. 
Conh ador shall unconditlonally guarantee( ts worlc, materlal and labor as set farth in thls Confr cl, Ait appllcable goveming agendes pla ts and
spediicaUons are made a part of lhis conb'ac eind fhese plans and speclficcaa ons musE be followed ln order to recelve acceptance of all work by the
goveming agendes and Own r. Afl ad 8arial work performed or materi suppfied prlor to o wilhout wrftten approval sheb become ConUador' s
responsibNty for any necessary carrecqons and shap be consldered done at no charge ta Owner,    

My errors end omisslans irom the sf oFitems In fhe sped Catlons andlor shown on lha subject drawings, or vfce versa, shall be called Eo
he eltentbn of f e 4wner In wrlUng eifher before suhm(sslon of Conlraclors bid or prior to executlon of thls document, allure t do so shal Im y
Ihat al! Items related tu sald subcontract are tu y covered upon executlan of s d documenG

All scheduling wql be by Owner or its assigned representaUve; ConiraCtar move•Ins shail be as required by Owner, All move-Ins, as
required and movement through fhe proJact are( ncluded( n the contract unit prlces, No other compensetlon wUl be made, Conaactor shall cooperate
fota y! n ecoe retlons uc Gevtaf(ons made by Qwner In lhe scheduling attd campletion of this contract work.  

As tlme Is of Ihe essence fn t s Contract, worlc shall proceed et the direc8an of Ovmer and be completed as rapldly as possible and in
aa rdance wi t Oumer's sc edule. Cantraclor wiA under all d cumstances leave area oulllned In contract In a rteat and arderly fashion prior to

2 Gaitractors In
Owner's Inil s

341



c  a(.- 2

SYOCKTON DIS7F C7'
w

g p p     p y
266 Valbervin Paritway

E i-m @ E iil 69im rqd       
P.O. Box7118

StoCkton, CA 96Z01- 1118
209) 983-2300 FAX( 2138) 883-23Tb

au9, ie
1     tc i 3a3

ohn Pedt
River.xslands
73 West Sbawaet Rt+ad

Lathrop, CA 9 33    

Att 1:  ] oh e P dc

Ro:    iliv IsOand— Tr ct 38 4, 883

Dear John,  .

Thank you for giving Teidlert Constructton the opport n jr to provide our services, Our pHa is based on the
fdlowirx informatton:

fi Unapproved plans, Rhrer Istands Tract 3834 Improvement Plans,_sheets 1 through 12, prepat d by
0' el) Engfneertng dated 07J 1/ 2016,
Unapproved plans, River Island5 Tract 3835 Improvement Plans, shests 1 through 14, prePared by
0't7e l Engineering daked 07/ 15/ 2016.

fi Unapproved plans, River Islands Tract 3836 Improvement Plans, sheets 1 through 13, prepared by
0 D̀el) Engtneering dated 07J21/ 2016.
Qty of l.atlirop standard plans and spedflcatlons.   
Con{fa Casta County standard plans and sp iHptbns for Stotm Drain Inlet

Items and pridng for our sco of worlc are Ilsted on tfie at,iached
J

pe pnapo. l. The following informatfon wi;l
fttttlyer clarify our scope of work.  

oNc+ sa u nur ac s c[ oro
INCI,USIONS•
1. . Concrete( ncludi g curb,and gutter, sfdewalks, and ramps with aggregate b se placed un r curbs and

gutters.

2.  Siructural sectlon pavl g induding subgracl preparadon, aggregate base, and asphalt concrei per
plans and spe` s.   

3,  Stadcpiting excess dirt from gradi operations withtn future Interlor Levee Road faotprints or tract
3833.

IXCLUSIONS:

4.  Geotextlle fabrtc.
5.  Fog Seal.
6,  Prime ail, siurry sea! coat, and soii sterllization.
7:  Colored 6oncrete

RO ION CO f'I OL AI D IEWHYROWibf IdY 9, x 5/ 1ES:
INCLUSYONS:     

8.  Please. add$ 3000A0/ ea if Construction ntrances are needed,
EXQUSIONS:

9.  SWPPP.t evel pment, Implement tlon, malntenance, or monitoring.

iWI5 C. lAlORl
kCLUSzoNS: 

10.   Bonds. Bond rate fs/ z percent if requlred,
f.   Inspectlon, permits, fe and soils testing.

Yrinted on recyeted paper. 5tate oFCaliforuia Contractot' s License No. 8

342



STOCKTON DI3TRICT

rr     r+ yp    
265 Val Dervfn Parkway.

ir VVI! l I Lr IH
P.O. Box1118

Stockton, CA 95z01- 1118
209} 98- 2900 FAX( 2Q9) 883-2376

12.   Engine ing and staking.
13.   Striping, signs, bumpers and bollards.   

ApDITIONA. CLARIFICA7'ION3& QUALIFtCA'!'IONS;  

14, Asphait bid Itern is aased on paving per the attadied schedule.   
15, Prices based on approved plans, Prices may need to be revised ko reflect any changes shown on' tt e final

approved plans.

6. Proposal based on award af all three tracts 3834, 3835, and 3836.
17. Proposal based on sole access during grading and concrete machina work acttvitl s.
18. quandti s fumished by 1'EIQiERT used to prepare proposals,
19. Prices based on working ftve eight-hour shiRs per week.
20. One move- in for each major ph se of work.
21. 4ur prlce Is based on ot ain(ng water from an or site source at no oost„
22. Teicfiert's proposal excludes ny liqufdated d mages.
23. project timeline wiN be 6ased on a mutualfy agreeable schedule representing agreed star date and

substantial corriple on date frx Teidiert's wark.

24, proposal does noC indude any sweeping of streets that may be necessaty due to ingressJegress to t e
site. Sweeping Is oniy incJ ded for offsite work or import/ export operatlons.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide our quota ivn for this project.
S4ncerely,    

l.y Phan
Telchert Construction

P iuted on recyc(ed paper, Stnt afCnlifurnia Contractor' s l..icense No. 3

343



y

TTEM D SCRIPTION QUANT UNIT UMT PRICE AMOUNT

CRETE T CT 3 35
2700 Rolted Type       Gutter 4,642,00 L'     15.00 69,630.00
2800 Vertical Typa Curb     tter 3,514.00 4F 15. 50 54,467.00
Z900 Type F Curb& Apron 413.00 LF 20.OR 8,260.00
3000 6" Conc te Sidewalk 1nclud',      " i1 Comars 48,420.00 SF 4.20 203,364.OQ
3 i00 Handicap Ramps 16,00 EA 2,750.00 44,OQ0. 00
320a Catch Aasin- top out  ., ;' iron sup lied er 24,00 EA 600.00 14,d00.00
3289 SUBTOT   , bNCRETE TRACI' 3 394, 21. 00

LJLANJ OUS' RACT 3835
3300 4"    eves( 3 PeCLot)      0 EA SO.OQ I1, I00.
3389 S TRACT3835 11, 100.

FINE GRADE, ROCK,& PAYE
TRACT 3 36

40QQ Fine Grsde( RW to RW) 223,952.00 SF 0.3b SO, b22.7
4100 lnterior Streets 3" AC/7" AB 31,964.OU S      2.00 63 928.0
420p lnteriOr StreOts 4.5" ACJ8" AB 83,357.00 3F 2.75 229,231. 7,    

j4300 AB Cushion[ Jnder Conamte 7,316.OU LF 3. 00 21, 948.OU
4400 Balance St/f3au1 excess to Ynterior I,evea Rd+/- 6" 2,132.00 CY 3. 00 6, 396.00
4589 SUB'I'OTAL' INE GRADE, ROCIC,& PAVE dpx,126.47

TRACT 3836

y

CONCRET'$' RACT 3836
4740 Kolled' Cype G rb& autter 4 94.00 LF 15, q0 b5, 910.00
d800 Vertica[ Type Curb& Qutier 2,553. 00 LF 15.50 39,571, 50
4900 Type F Curb& Apron 378,00 LF.     20.Op 7,560.00
5000 6" Concrete Sldewalk Includtng Round Cornets d0,720. 00 SF 4.20 171, 024.OU
5100 Handicap Ramps 8. 00 EA 2,7SU. 00 22,ppp,pp
5200 Catch Basin- top out anly, iran suppliad by ott er 19. 00 EA 600,00 l 1, 400.
S289 .     5UBTOTAL CONCR TE TRACi' 3836 317.465

n a L ous x cT 6
5300 4" Sleeves 3 PorLot) 303. 00 EA 50.00 I5, 150.0
3389 SUBTOT'AL MISCELLANEOUS T1dAGT 3836      p     ( Qp,     Q(p-   S1, 15p.04`

GRAND TOTAf,   
s ,

M'      id  e   _ f..°.. - n•    .-. i.A xv,,,„.',] u' ..+ MLS'ii'A F, A7.' 6+ wNu.ffx- 1.. d sk xfni .  t. A4rS YX±ip,i_
t' hY.' '-  

G U ir! l' u, r
3g I

1

M   - aG   G l v yw N T  vo    
r$ f 1c'

i, / 4'7 AGo I` .

zi  /-.. p 1w  nlr cG mu r   3 S' 7 ,/ z 44raa

t SUUU Can c rvo c n   G»  r-' r 4d'l sF ct ¢. a:. . j

Page 2 of 2

S      iG rP a   =    .    23 7,!' J
344



e   i

MORENO TRENCHII Giy Ltd.      o s- B Airport Road

P.O. Box 458

Rlo Vista, CA. 94571
Phone;(707) 374- 5075

Fax;(707) 374-6194

Lic. No. 439967
07/ 13118 Northern Califorr i$ Laborers

Operators Union Local# 3

Rlver Islands Development CpUC Certifled MBE
Attn: Curtls Bryant CA. Certified SBE

Re: Rfver Islands Tract 3836 Lathrop

Moreno Trenching is pleased to provide you with this proposal for the above referenced project, The
following information wll! clarify our scope of work.

7rench& Backflll

24" x 44"  Trench GC 42 If 18.00 756.00
38" x 46"  Trench PGCT 81 If 22.25 1, 802,25
24°`x 46"  Trench PGC7 538 If 18.5U 9,971. 50
36" x 54"  Trench P CTL 55 If 24.25 1, 333. 75
24" x 64"  Trehch PGC7L 283 If 19.76 5,589.25
36" x 48"  Trench PSGCT 278 IP              22.75 6,324.50
24" x 48"  Yrench PSGCi'   931 If 18.75 17,456,25
24" x 56"  Trench PSGCTI 416 If 20.25 8,424.00
24" x 44"  Trench PGC 35 lf 18.00 630.00

36" x 48"  Trench SGCT 42 ( f 22.75 955. 50
24" x 48"  Trench SGCT            589 If 18.75 11, Q43.75
18" x 48"  Trench SGCT 1, 824 If 17'.25 31, 464.00,
36" x 56"  7rench SGCTL      . 7 If 24.76 173. 25
24" x 56"  Trench SGCTL 35 If 20.25 708. 75      .
18" x 56"  T'rench SGCTL 290 If 18.26   .      5,292. 50
12" x 22"  Trench l, 1, 288 If 11. 50 14,812. 00
Bell Hole for Gas Tle-!n 3 ea 2, 100.00 6 300

1   ,   7. 25

VaultslSpOce oxes( Excavate Only,       
17" x 30"   L. I. D,       Secondary Sox( 18")      19 ea 17b. 00 3,325. Q0
17" x 30"   L. I. D.       Secondaty BoX( 26")      12 ea 175. 00 2, 1d0.a0
24" x 36"   l..I. D,       Secondary Box( 26")       1 ea 205.00 205.00
4` x 6'6"    L. I, D,       Primary Box 2 ea 775.00 9, 550. 0
36" x 52"   L. I, D,       Transformer Pad 8 ea 656.00 4,440.00

17" x 30"  AT&T Telephone Box( 34")      10 ea 225.00 2,25. 00

24" x 36"  AT&T Telephone Box( 42")       3 ea 320,Op 86Q.00
Misc.       Comcast CATV Box 15 ea 9d. 00 9, 3   .

80, 00

345



f     
i      .   

Page 2 River lslands Tract 3836- Lathrop

VaultslSplice Boxes fSupply 8 Ingtall
1T' x 3"   L. I. D.       SecondaN Box( 18")      19 ea 325. 0 6, 176, 00
1T' x 30"   L, I, D.       Secondary Box( 28")      12 ea 420.00 5, 040. Od

24" x 36"   L. I. D,       Secondary Box( 26")       1 ea 666.00 666.00
4' x 6'6"   L. I. D.       Prlmary Box        2 ea 8,615,00 13,230,00
36" x& 2"   L. I. D.       Transformer Pad 8 ea BSb. 00 7, 160,00
97" x 30"  AT&T Telephone Box( 34")      10 ea 595.00 5, 950,00
24" x 38"  AT&T Telephone Box( 42")       3 ea 776.00 2 32 

45A0
Co du

4"  L, I. D.       Condult 713 If 3.90 2, 780.70
3"   L, I. D,       Condult 8,291 If 3. 10 19, 602, 10
2"  L. I, D.       Condult 2,720 If 2, 80 .' 6,800. 00
2"  ATB T Conduit 9,332 If 2.25 20,997,00
4"  AT&T Conduit       2,860 If 9.8 1101 . 9'6

b       , so,$0
Gas S stem

4"  Gas Maln 966  ! f 7.25 6,996.26
2"  Gas Main 2, 607 If .       3.35 8,733.45
1"  Gas Service Stub Only 101 If 29 5.00 21, 716. 00
1"  Excess Flow Valves 59 lf 165.00 9,7   .

179. 70
Electric Svstem

Pad Mounted Transformer 26-1503  ( Supply)    8 ea By Others By Others
Pad Mounted Transformer 26-1503  ( Instan)      .       8 ea 390.00 3, 120.b0

Primary Cable 1/ 0- 1W Supply)     1 Is 13,200.00 13,200,00

Primary Cable 1J0- 1W Install) 3,924 If 3.00 11, 772. 00
Secondary Cable 1/ 0-AT Supply)    1 Is 30.00 30. 00

Secondary Cable 1/ 0- AT Install)     99 If 0.85 16. 15

Secondary Cable 4/0- AT Supply)    1 Is          4,100. 00 4,100. 00

Secondary Cable 4/0-AT instal!) 1, 833 If 0. 85 1, 658. 05

Secandary Cable 350-AT Supply)     1 Is 3,376. U0

Secondary Cable 360-AT Install)   881 If       0. 85 748.85

PrimarylSecondary 5plicing 1 Is 33,100. 00 33,100. 00

71, 020.05

Liahtfna Svstem
35W LED Decorative Electrolier 28 ea 6, 125. 00 171, 500.00
1- 1/ 2"      Conduitw/ 2-# 8Wire 90  ! f     .   5,00 450.00
1- 1/ 2"      Gonduitw/ 3-# 8 Wire 25 lf        5.b0 137.50
1- 112"      Conduitw/ 2-# 8 Wire& Grd.     2,080 if 5,50 11, 440.00
1 112"      Conduit w/ 3-# 8 Wire& Grd. 179 If 6.00
t3- 1/ 2 Splice Box 51 ea 140.00 7, 140,00
OOA Metered Pedestai( Instali Only) 1 ea 2,500. 00 2,500.00

5"

9--- 1

L        (/ 1 CGf j yfk   7f Q
p pNDTOTAL      552,494,30

fC vG Syy M l  cc rA,,; l l̀¢ 2.      
o .

r'""    

o z`
Cr'/"   7 Cc' f 2   3` Z -   

346



Fage 3 River Isiands Tract 3836• Lathrop

Proposa! based on the following:       
No Ove/tlme, Wank ncludes b weekdays @ 8 hours per day, i move-In per phase.  
Bld Includes Pr vaf!!ng Wage Rafes.    
Addifional re-mob to be negotlated,

Mor no 7'renching, LTD. !s a Unlon Contr'actor.  
B!d Exc/udes dewataring, ff dewatering requlr d, work to be perf'ormed by others et owners expense,
Bid Excludes: Tree arbvrisf as well as any exfra work due to exlsting frees.
Bld Excludes Fees, Permlts, Suroey and Compactlon Tesfing.
Bld Excludes off Hau! of Trench spoi/s. Spalls to be pushed into the street atter ba!!.
81d Excludes any fine re-grading,
Bld Excludes asphalt, concrefe, landscepe, lrrigatlon and fence work by others.
Restoratlon of exlsting Improvements fncluded onty for that speclflc bid item listed fn proposal above,
B!d assUmes that consfructlon water Is avallable on srte. Addltlona! charges wl!!apply due fo drought restrlcflons
orhaWng to access wateroffsite.
81d proposa! quantl es subJeat ta reconclllatlon upon approved plans and iield measurements.
Srte to be Rough Graded+/-. 20' of tlna! subgrade grade by others prlor to jolnt fr nch& se vlce campleNons.

Any contaminated soils encountered to be handled by others.
Trenching bld using a 590 Case backhoe or equlvalent F ccludes addlt/onal work due to rock where e Case
590 backhoe 1s uRable fo obta/n 90 cy/hr while excavatingJofnt trench. . 
On site sand source to be utJlized. Addltiona! cost wlll Incur if on site sand becomes unavertable,

SWPP plan and eroslon control work by ofhers. Exdudes ell mairrtenanca.
Bld proposal to be part ofcontract& valid for a contracf commitment within 30 days.
Progress Psyments Shal! be Due Net 30 Days,

Retenfion Payments Sha!( be Due Net 45 Days.  

Ahtchael A. McCombs

347



M

JOIIVT ESCROW IIVSTRUC°TIONS

RECORDe4TION OF FINAL nIIQ+,PS

RIVER ISLANDS AT L 4THROP)      

May 15, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219
Attn: Karen Saytes

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3913; Escrow No. 1211048662

Dear Karen:  

This Ietter constitutes the joint escrow instructions ("Escrow/ nstrucfions") of River Islands
Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" RID"), and the City of Lathrop(" City') in

eonnection with the above-referenced escrow(" Eserov'). The Escrow was opened in cQnnection

wi4h recordation of the above- referenced final map("' ina6 Map"). Recordation of the Final Map is
subject to the conditions set fo th below. The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions
are referred to as the" Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as" you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinc s

The Final Map will be recarded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The Final Map can
only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The closing date for the Transaction
is intended to occur by May 31, 2018, at the time designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction
of the conditions set forth below( each a" Closinc,'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by          
December 31, 2018, ORTC will return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documen4 4o be Delivered and 12ecorciation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the following
documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin County, California

Official Records").  

One original Final Map for Tract 3913, executed and acknowledged by City.     

The document listed above is referred to as the" Recordation Documenf." The date on which the

Recordation Document is recorded in the Official Records is the Recordation Date.

Copies should be sent via email to Cari James( cjamesCcDci. lathrop.ca.us), Cindy Yan at Goodwin
Consulting Group( cindy c qoodwinconsultinggroup. net), Susan Dell'Osso
sdellossoCc riverislands.com) and Debbie Belmar( dbelmar riverislands.com), together with

conformed copies of all documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the Recordation

Document, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in accordance with the settlement
statement prepared by you and approved in writing by both RID and City(" Settlement Statement"):
recordation costs, escrow fees and other amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement. Such

costs, fees and other amounts are the sole responsibility of RID.

1

348



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)       

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below, immediately upon
recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each entity are set
forth below:

a.       The amount of$ 9, 812.44, payable to the City pursuant to that certain Agreement to Settle
Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended (°Sierra Club Agreement'), constituting

the amount of$ 3,076.00 multiplied by 3. 19 acres( or portion thereo included in the Final Map, is to
be t ansferred to the City upon recordation of the Final Map. City's wire instructions are set forth
below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the" Closing Funds.°

D.       Closinq.Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the times and in
accordance with the process set forth below:       

D. 1.    You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email transmission to:
Susan Dell' Osso (sdellosso@riverislands.com), Debbie Belmar( dbelmar, riverislands.com),

Stephen Salvatore( ssalvatore@ci. lathrop.ca.us), Salvador Navarrete( snavarreteCcDci. lathrop.ca. us),
Cari James( ciames[a ci. lathrop.ca.us) and Glenn Gebhardt( QQebhardt  _ci. lathrop.ca:us), and have

confirmation (by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn
Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable;    

D.2.    You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow Instructions;     
i

D.3. The Recordation Document and all other documents described herein as being

heid by you or delivered to you have been received by you, and have been fully executed and
acknowledged where applicable, you have attached all legal descriptions or have confirmed that all
exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D.4.    You are prepared to record the Recordation Document as designated, release funds
in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete the Transaction in compliance with these
Escrow Instructions; 

D.5.    You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an authorized signatory
of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by email transmission (with original
hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set
forth above; 

D.6.    You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from Susan Dell' Osso and
Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation Document and complete the
Transaction.

E.       Closin4 Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then you are
authorized and.instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.     Date the Recordation Document to be recorded.

2

349



JOIfdT ESCROW INSTRIJCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FIIVAL MAPS

RIVER ISLAIoIDS AT LATliROP)

E. 2.     Record the Recordation Document in the Official Records.

E. 3.     Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E.4.     Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed at the time of the
final Closing pursuant to these Escrow lnstructions to the following entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn: Susan Dell'Osso

E. 5.     Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn Gebhardt and
Jose Molina ( JMolinaCa si4ov.orq) of the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.    Within five (5) business days after each Recordation Date; deliver by overnight
delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier, to: ( 1) Debbie Belmar, River Islands

Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330 and (2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City
Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330.

A)      A certified copy of the Recordation Document, showing all recording
information of the Recordation Document, and

B)      A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted into each
respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow Agent in

connection with this Transacfion in accordance with these Escrow Instructions by executing and
dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below, initialing all pages and returning it
to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Susan Dell' Osso

President

River Islands Development, LLC

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager
City of Lathrop

3

350



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and City is hereby acknowledged. The
undersigned agrees, for_itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed in strict accordance with these

Escrow Instructions. The undersigned represents and warrants to RID and City thaf the undersigned
is authorized to execute this Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:    

Date:

i

4

351



352



ITEM 4. 15

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FOR THE

LATHROP TOWNE CENTRE PROJECT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution affirming the Planning
Commission' s recommendation to approve the

Vesting Tentative Parcel Map for the proposed

Lathrop Towne Centre Project ( VTM- 17- 111).

SUMMARY:

The request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map ( VTM) to subdivide 1 parcel into 6

individual commercial parcels ranging in size from 0. 67- acres to 7- acres. This is a
companion project to a Site Plan Review ( SPR) and Conditional Use Permit ( CUP) to

construct a commercial shopping center with an estimated floor area of

approximately 126, 000 square feet of retail space, a 60, 000 square foot hotel, and
parking for 635 vehicles located on a 13- acre site, which was recently approved by
the Planning Commission.

BACKGROUND:

On April 18,  2018,  the Planning Commission held a public hearing and voted
unanimously  ( 5- 0),  to approve the Site Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit

portion of the Lathrop Towne Centre project, and recommended the City Council to
approve the Vesting Tentative Parcel Map.

rd"

7' '  u ' 4'.
3 r k d ^ ;     ° .

The project site is located at      ' i   , ,_- ,,      a,   ,,..;-  ~ 

the northeast corner of    , :              

Golden Valley Parkway and  ' ,    `,-`- y _     r-      3
Target       ' +

Towne Centre Drive     ' ust    `    ` h. ;.  "       
x 

i      yf ,:°. 
y '.  „   

1— —' a'` i `.    f   `;  :
south of the Target Shopping s       }

Center.  The site is currently  ,'- y: -

designated and used as one of  `    "            r

the City' s sprayfield sites      ,:.   . "      ` '"     

located within the Mossdale    '        .         ' ,   ' y-

Landing East subdivision. r.      
P      

x; 

According to Section           ^`       „          ' ,       f° f,   
16. 12. 060 of the Lathrop   '       (' tti [ l ll ., . ,  

u t ,  
7 x .,

Municipal Code   ( LMC),   the z=-
a,,,„      

City Council shall review the  ` t  b.  , _  , s r__ s

decision of the Planning t    '   ;

Commission related to Vesting      
Tentative Parcel Maps, and may affirm, reverse, or modify the decision.

353



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 2

May 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
LATHROP TOWNE CENTRE VTM- 17- 111

ANALYSIS:

Vesting Tentative Parcel Map
The Vesting Tentative Parcel Map consists of 1 parcel approximately 13 acres in size.
The proposal is to subdivide the property into 6 individual commercial parcels ranging
in size from 0. 67 to 7 +/- acres. The map will also dedicate approximately 4, 000
square feet of right-of-way to complete the cul- de- sac at the east end of Somerville
Road. A Public Utility Easement will be offered for dedication for the entire abandoned
Manthey Road.  In addition,  a 10- foot wide Public Utility Easement will also be
dedicated to the City along the frontage of Somerville Road, Golden Valley Parkway
and Towne Centre Drive.

The ultimate street frontage and utility improvements will be constructed in

accordance with the Mossdale Landing East UDC and the City of Lathrop Standards
and Specifications. The project will be required to complete the Somerville Road cul-

de- sac and abandon the former Manthey Road right- of-way. The project will construct
various frontage improvements including installation of landscaping and sidewalk
along Somerville Road, Golden Valley Parkway & Towne Centre Drive. A deceleration

and acceleration lane will also be constructed to serve the main driveway access from
Golden Valley Parkway. The project proposes to extend water, sewer and storm drain
to the site via the existing utilities from Somerville Road, Golden Valley Parkway &
Towne Centre Drive.  Since the project does not include a Phasing Plan, all of the

utilities and various site improvements are required to be installed prior to the first

building occupancy. Electric and natural gas service will be provided by PG& E to the
project site.

Conditions of A proval

Planning staff routed the project plans on November 3, 2017 to the Building Division,
Public Works Department, Lathrop- Manteca Fire District, Lathrop Police Services and
various non- City agencies to ensure compliance with applicable codes and

requirements. As a result, staff developed a consolidated list of conditions. Staff finds

that the proposed project has been properly conditioned to meet the City' s standards
and requirements as well as consistency with the Mossdale Landing East UDC.

General Plan and Zoning Consistencx
As currently designed and conditioned, the project is a reasonable request that is

consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan and the West Lathrop
Specific Plan and will comply with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and
design guidelines of the Mossdale Landing East UDC upon development. The design
guidelines address site design and architecture,  including building placement and
orientation, public spaces and pedestrian amenities, landscaping and style and design
details. The project is also consistent with the City' s subdivision ordinance and the
State Subdivision Map Act.

354



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 3

May 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
L/ THROP TOWNE CENTRE VTM- 17- 111

Public Notice

As part of the Planning Commission action, a Notice of Public Hearing was advertised
in the Manteca Bulletin on April 7, 2018. Staff also mailed the public hearing notice
on April 6, 2018 to notify property owners located within a 300- foot radius from the
subject property.  In addition, the City Council meeting agenda was posted at the
Council Chambers bulletin board and various designated locations accessible to the

public. The City Council action does not require a public hearing. As of writing of this
report, no comments were received in favor or against the proposed project.

CEQA REVIEW:

The environmental impacts of the Mossdale Landing East  ( MLE)  Project were

addressed in a certified Supplemental Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR)  ( SCH

2002052083). The City has determined that the potential environmental effects of
the proposed project falls within the scope analyzed in the SEIR; therefore, no further

environmental review is required in compliance with the California Environmental

Quality Act ( CEQA.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City Gouncil consider all
information provided and submitted, take and consider all public testimony and, if

determined to be appropriate, adopt a Resolution to approve the Vesting Tentative
Parcel Map for the Lathrop Towne Centre Project.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

The proposed Resolution promotes Economic Growth by supporting and encouraging
development, and promotes Team Work between the public, Council and City staff
by working together to share the same vision.

FISCAL IMPACT:

All application processing fees and costs are charged to the applicant. The request
has no fiscal impact to the City.

ATTAC H M E NT:

1.  City Council Resolution Approving Vesting Tentative Parcel Map ( VTM- 17- 111).
2.  Planning Commission Resolution No. 18- 6 Recommending City Council Approval
3.  Conditions of Approval dated April 18, 2018, as amended by Planning Commission
4.  Vicinity Map
5.  Vesting Tentative Parcel Map for Lathrop Towne Centre

355



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 4

May 14, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGUL lR MEETING

LATHROP TOWNE CENT tE iTM- 17- 111.

APPROVALS:

n

ck Cagu' Date.

enior P nner

8
M rk eis er Date

Assistan omm nity Development Director

Sc.' w,,`      

Rebecca Schmidt Date

Community Development Director

s/   8
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engine

1
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

356



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTIOM OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AFFIRMING

THE PLANING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE VESTING

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FOR THE PROPOSED LATHROP TOWNE CENTRE

PRO) ECT ( VTM- 17- 111)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public
hearing on April 18, 2018 to consider the Lathrop Towne Centre project pursuant to the
Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel map to subdivide 1 parcel
into 6 individual commercial parcels ranging in size from 0. 67- acres to 7- acres; and

WHEREAS, the property is located at 17100 Golden Valley Parkway ( APN:  191-

190- 49); and

WHEREAS, the subject parcels are located in a Service Commercial ( SC) General

Plan designation and Service Commercial ( CS- MV) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the project is located within the Mossdale Landing East ( MLE) and the
environmental impacts of the MLE Project were addressed in a certified Supplemental

Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR) ( SCH 2O02052083). The City has determined that
the potential environmental effects of the proposed project falls within the scope

analyzed in the SEIR;  therefore,  no further environmental review is required in

compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that although the proposed project could have a

significant effect on the environment, required mitigation measures resulting from the
Mossdale Landing East Urban Design Concept SEIR will be implemented to mitigate or
avoid significant impacts to the environment; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed Vesting Tentative Parcel Map
is consistent with the Service Commercial land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop
General Plan and West Lathrop Specific Plan,  and also consistent with the City' s
Subdivision Ordinance and the State Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the requirements and conditions of this
resolution are reasonable in preserving,  protecting,  providing for,  and fostering the
health, safety, and welfare of the citizenry in general, and the persons who work in or
visit the development in particular; and

WHEREAS,  proper notice of this public meeting was given in all respects as
required by law; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

Resolution No. 18- Page 1 of 4

357



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby make the following findings:

1.  The proposed map is consistent with the General Plan and Specific Plan. The
proposed map implements the land use objectives in the Lathrop General Plan,
West Lathrop Specific Plan and the Mossdale Landing East Urban Design
Concept.

2.  The design or improvements of the proposed subdivision are consistent with

the General Plan and Specific Plan. As conditioned, the design of the map and
proposed utility and improvements are consistent with the requirements of the
General Plan, West Lathrop Specific Plan and Mossdale Landing East Urban
Design Concept. All required improvements are conditioned to comply with the
City' s standards and specifications.

3.  The site is physically suitable for the proposed commercial development. The
site is designated as Service Commercial land use in the General Plan and West

Lathrop Specific Plan. The applicant and staff have worked closely to ensure
the map and its conditions of approval address public infrastructure,  public

services and phase for the development of the project.

4.  The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development. The
Mossdale Landing East Urban Design Concept identifies the project area to
allow for a broad range of use types such as retail, service, office and related

commercial type uses.  Development of the site meets the requirements set

forth in the Mossdale Landing East Development Standards.

5.  The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements will not cause

substantial environmental damage or substantially injure fish or wildlife or
their habitat.  The development of the Lathrop Towne Centre project would
involve a range of potentially significant environmental effects,  including
effects on plant,  fish and wildlife species or their habitat.  These potential

effects were explored in detail, and available mitigations were identified in the

Mossdale Landing East Supplemental Environmental Impact Report  ( SEIR).

The SEIR adequately addresses impacts that could be caused by the proposed
project and identifies adequate mitigation measures for those impacts.

6.  The design of the subdivision or type of improvements will not cause serious

public health problems. The development of the Lathrop Towne Centre project
would involve a range of potentially significant effects on public health and
safety.   These potential effects were explored in detail,   and available

mitigations were identified in the Mossdale Landing East Supplemental

Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR). The SEIR adequately addresses impacts
that could be caused by the proposed project and identifies adequate

mitigation measures for those impacts.

Resolution No. 18- Page 2 of 4

358



7.  The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with

easements,  acguired by the public at large,  for access through or use of,

property within the proposed subdivision. The design of the subdivision does
not conflict with any public easements for access through or use of property
within the subdivision.   Conditions of approval are included to dedicate land,

right of way and to provide easements where necessary for public access,
utilities, and infrastructure.

E IT FURTHER RESOL OED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above,

and pursuant to its independent review and consideration, does hereby approve Vesting
Tentative Parcel Map No. VTM- 17- 111, subject to the Conditions of Approval listed as

Attachment # 3 of the Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

Resolution No. 18- Page 3 of 4

359



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a regular
meeting on the 14t'' day of May, 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18- Page 4 of 4

360



A T̀ ACHNIENT  2    °

CITY OF LATHROP

PLANIVING COMMISSION 12ESOLUTION NO. 18- 6

A RESOLUTION OF T IE PLANNING COMIVIISSION OF TI3E CITY OF LATfIROP

RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE TI E VESTING TENTATIVE

PAI CEI MAP FOR THE FROPOSED LATHROP TOWNE CENTRE PROJECT

VTM-17- 111)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Comrnission held a duly noticed public hearing to
consider the Lathrop Towne Centre project pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel map to subdivide 1 parcel into 6
individual commercial parcels ranging in size from 0.G7- acres to 7- acres, and a Site Plan Review; and

WHEItEAS, the property is located at 17100 Golden Valley Parkway ( APN: 191- 190-49);
and

WI3EREAS, the subject parcels are located in a Service Commercial ( SC) General Plan

designation and Service Commercial (CS- MV) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS,  the project is located within the Mossdale Landing East ( MLE)  and the

environmental impacts of the MLE Project were addressed in a certified Supplemental Environmental

Impact Report ( SEIR) ( SCH 2O02052083). The City has determined that the potential environmental
effects of the proposed project falls within tlie scope analyzed in the SEIR; therefore, no fiirther

environmental review is required in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA); and

vVHEREAS, it was determined that although the proposed project could have a significant

effect on the environment, required mitigation measures resulting from the Mossdale Landing East
Urban Design Concept SEIR will be implemented to mitigate or avoid significant impacts to the

environment; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Vesting Tentative Parcel Map
is consistent with the Service Commercial land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop General
Plan and West Lathrop Specific Plan, and also consistent with the City' s Subdivision Ordinance and
the State Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the requirements and conditions of this
resolution are reasonable in preserving, protecting, providing for, and fostering the health, safety, and
welfare of the citizenry in general, and the persons who work in or visit the development in particular;
and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public meeting was given in all respects as required by law;
and

WI3EREAS, the Planning Comrriission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

Planning Commission Resolution No. 18- 6 Page 1 of 3

361



NO V, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop
does hereby make the following findings:

1.  Tlze proposed 7nap is consiste zt tivith the Ge zeral Plan a id Specific Pla z. The proposed
map implements the land use objectives in the Lathrop General Plan, West Lathrop
Specific Plan and the Mossdale Landing East Urban Design Concept.

2.  The design or itnprovetnents of the proposed sccbdivisio z are consistent rvith the General
Pla i n zd Specific Plaiz. As conditioned, the design of the map and proposed utility and
improvements are consistent with the requirements of the General Plan, West Lathrop
Specific Plan and Mossdale Landing East Urban Design Concept.  All required

improvements are conditioned to comply with the City' s standards and specifications.

3.  The site is physically suitable for the proposed corrinief-cial developnaent. The site is
designated as Service Commercial land use in the General Plan and West Lathrop Specific
Plan. The applicant and staff have worked closely to ensure the map and its conditions of
approval address public infrastructure, public services and phase for the development of

the project.

4.  Tlae site is physically saiitable for the proposed density of development. The Mossdale
Landing East Urban Design Concept identifies the project area to allow for a broad range
of use types such as retail, service, office and related commercial type uses. Development

of the site meets the requirements set forth in the Mossdale Landing East Development
Standards.

5.  The design of the siabdivision or- the proposed improvements tivill not cause sacbstc ntial
e zviro anzental damage or sccbstantially i zjacre fish or wildlife or their habitat.  The
development of the Lathrop Towne Centre project would involve a range of potentially
significant environmental effects, including effects on plant, fish and wildlife species or
their habitat. These potential effects were explored in detail, and available mitigations were

identified in the Mossdale Landing East Supplemental Environmental Impact Report
SEIR). The SEIl2 adequately addresses impacts that could be caused by the proposed

project and identifies adequate mitigation measures for those impacts.

6.  The design of the scabdivision or type of improvements will not caccse ser-ioccs ptiblic health
problems. The development of the Lathrop Towne Centre project would involve a range of
potentially significant effects on public health and safety. These potential effects were
explored in detail, and available mitigations were identified in the Mossdale Landing East
Supplemental Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR).  The SEIR adequately addresses
impacts that could be caused by the proposed project and identifies adequate mitigation
measures for those impacts.

7.  The desig 2 of the stcbdivision or the type of inaprovements tivill zot conflict tivith easements,
acqcair-ed by the pccblic cct large, for access throetgh or tese of,pt-operty within the proposed
sacbdivision. The design of the subdivision does not conflict with any public easements for
access through or use of property within the subdivision.   Conditions of approval are

included to dedicate land, right of way and to provide easements where necessary for public
access, utilities, and infrastructure.

Planning Commission Resolution No. 18- 6 Page 2 of 3

362



E IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above and pursuant to

its independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council approve Vesting
Tentative Parcel Map No. VTM- 17- 111, subject to the Conditions of Approval listed as Attachment

3 of the Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
regular meeting on the 18`

h
day of April, 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:  Torres- O' Callaghan, Lazard, Freeman, Ishihara, Gatto

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      None

Jennifer res- O' Callaghan, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

S c<< < J

Rebecca Schmidt, Secretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 18- 6 Paje 3 of 3

363



City A' A P A P' m

3    °
h     ,p.

Community Development Department— Planning Division

Consolidated Conditions of Approval as Amended by Plannin Commission

April 18, 2018

Project Name: Lathrop Towne Centre

File Number:   Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. VTM- 17- 111
Site Plan Review No. SPR- 17- 112

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP- 17- 113

Project Address:      17100 Golden Valley Parkway (APN: 191- 190- 49)

Thefollowing list ofconditions shall be incorporated into thefinal constr•z ction plans and development phases of the project.
The list ofconditions are not intended to be all-irzclarsive or a comprehensive listing ofall City or district regz/ ations. Please
note that additional comnaents and/or conditions may be added pending the f esponse to the comments noted belotiv and/o
changes to the proposed project. The following comments and conditions of approval a- e based on the application and
diagrams sz bmitted on Febrzrary I5, 2018.

PLANNING

l.   Approval of this project authorizes subdivision of approximately 13- acres located in Mossdale
Landing East( 17100 Golden Valley Parkway) into 6 commercial parcels ranging in size from 0. 67-
acres to 7- acres. The project includes the construction of a commercial shopping center with an
estimated total floor area of approximately 126, 000 square feet of retail space, a 60, 000 square foot,
four-story hotel, and 635 vehicle parking spaces. The project includes associated off-site and on-
site improvements including extension of public utilities, landscaping, and lighting.

2.   All of the mitigation measures set forth in the Final Supplemental EIR for the Mossdale Landing
East Urban Design Concept that are applicable to the project site, are incorporated herein by
reference as part of these Conditions of Approval (attached).

3.   The Conditions of Approval of Vesting Tentative Map Tract 3073, Unit 1 ( McKee Properties),

adopted by the City of Lathrop on March 2, 2004 by Resolution 04- 1626 are attached and
incorporated herein by reference, and shall remain in effect and applicable to the Lathrop Towne
Centre project except as modified below:  

Modification of Conditions of Approval for VTM Tract 3073:

a.  " Parcel F" as referenced in the Conditions of Approval of Vesting Tentative Map Tract 3073
means the Project Site of the Lathrop Towne Centre, APN 191- 190- 49.

b.  Note that references in the Conditions of Approval to Vesting Map 3073 to " N" Street

Condition 61 ( a)) and to the" connecting road" ( Condition 66) means Somerville Road.

c.  All conditions and obligations set forth in the Conditions of Approval of Vesting Tentative
Map Tract 3073 for residential development are not applicable to the Lathrop Towne Centre
project unless noted.

1of13  Pa e

364



d.  All requirements for Neighborhood Design Review (NDR) in Conditions 35, 56, 67, 78, 87,

104 and 105 are hereby waived as unnecessary in light of the approval granted herein.

e.   Conditions 64 and 66 are hereby superseded and replaced with the following:
Prior to approval of the first non- residential building permit on Parcel F, the applicant shall
submit engineering plans and provide bonds in accordance with the Lathrop Municipal Code
for:

i.  The sidewalk, parkway landscaping and acceleration/ deceleration lane improvements
on the easterly side of Golden Va(ley Parkway from Somerville Road to Towne Centre
Drive, on the southerly side of Somerville Road from Golden Valley Parkway to the
cul- de- sac, and on the northerly side of Towne Centre Drive from Golden Valley
Parkway to Manthey Road as shown on the WLSP and UDC.

ii.  The traffic signal at Golden Valley Parlcway / Somerville Road shall be modified to

remove the independent pedestrian phase crossing Golden Valley Parkway.

iii.  All improvement plans for items ( i) through ( ii) must be approved by the Director of
Public Works prior to issuance of a building permit.

iv.  All of the improvements listed in items ( i) through( iv) must be constructed prior to any
building occupancy.  In the Public Works Director sole discretion,  a temporary
occupancy permit for a commercia( building may be allowed if the applicant has
substantially completed the construction and posts a cash deposit or bond with the City
to assure the completion of items ( i) through ( ii) above.

f.   Condition 121 is hereby superseded and replaced with the following:
All landscaping shall be in accordance with the UDC. Compliance with this condition shall
include a landscaping and irrigation plan, with location, variety,  irrigation, and other
information necessary to determine compliance with UDC requirements. All landscaping and
irrigation related to Lathrop Towne Centre shall be completed in accordance with the
following:

i.  Lacking an approved phasing plan by the City, the first building shall put in all utilities,
landscaping and paving/parking for the project prior to the first building occupancy.

ii.  In the Community Development Director' s sole discretion, finalizing the occupancy
permit for a commercial building may be allowed if the applicant posts a cash deposit
or cash bond with the City to assure the completion of project landscaping and related
site improvements. The amount of such deposit or bond shall be determined by the
Community Development Director and its terms shall guacantee final completion of
such improvements in a timely manner.

g.  Add the following sentence to the end of Condition 54:
A detailed maintenance plan shall be prepared foi properly maintaining the developed
property.

4.   Prior to any ground disturbance, the project shall consult with the San Joaquin County Multi- Species
Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) for biological coverage, mitigation and

participation in the plan. Participation in the SJMSCP satisfies requirements of both the State and

Federal endangered species acts, and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of

significance in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA).

2 of 13  P a g e

365



5.   The project shall comply with all applicable site development provisions contained in the Mossdale
Landing East Urban Design Concept and/or Lathrop Municipal Code including but not limited to
parking, lighting, landscaping, etc.

6.   The applicant shall submit appropriate plans to the Community Development Department for plan
check and building permit. Final site plan, elevation, landscaping and irrigation, exterior lighting
and site improvement plans and details, etc. shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Division. Any significant change or modification to the approved plan is subject to review and
approval by the Community Development Director.

7.   Landscaping and irrigation must be consistent with the City' s Water Conservation Requirements
LMC 17. 92. 060) and the State Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance ( AB 1881). Provide a water

efficient landscape worksheet with water budget calculations identifying the water allowance and
estimated water use.

8.    The entire site including landscaping areas shall be maintained in a healthy, weed free condition.

9.   The trash enclosure( s) shall include but not limited to a covered roof, metal gate and have three

solid walls. Details and/or alternative designs shall be subject to review and approval of the

Planning, Building and Public Works Department. The trash enclosure design, material and coloc
shall match or compliment the main building.

10.  Any building or parlcing area illumination including security lighting, shall be arranged to reflect
away from adjoining properties.

11.  A final site lighting photometric plan and information with detail specifications on fixtures, poles,
and wall packs as well as a manufacture' s catalogue containing photometric data, shall be submitted
with the Building Permit for City review and approval.  Parking lots,  driveways,  trash

enclosure/ areas shall be illuminated during the hours of darkness with a minimum maintained one
foot-candle of light and an average not to exceed four foot-candles of light. The illumination shall

not exceed ten ( 10) foot-candles in any one location.

12.  No signs are approved by this project. Sign Permit for any exterior signs shall be submitted to the
Planning Division for review and approval prior to installation. All signage must be in accordance
with the applicable standards of the Lathrop Municipal Code.

13.  Bicycle parking shall be installed consistent with Chapter 17. 76. 120 of the LMC.

14.  Roof-mounted mechanical equipment shall be screened and not visible from the public right-of-

way. Screening materials shall be compatible with the architectural style, materials and color of the
building upon which the equipment is located,  subject to the approval of the Community
Development Director.

15.  The applicant and all successors and assigns shall be required to obtain appropriate permits froin

the City of Lathrop for temporary seasonal promotional events and activities, such permits to
determine the nature, location and duration of any such events.

16.  The applicant shall prepare CC& Rs to, among other things, establish rules and regulations for the
day to day operation of Lathrop Towne Centre. The CC& Rs shall include provisions prohibiting
overnight parking of trucks, trailers, recreational vehicles, motor homes and/ or other vehicles whose
presence on the Project Site is unrelated to the service or operation of any building or business
located on the Project Site. The final CC& Rs shall be submitted to the Community Development
Director for review prior to building occupancy.

3 of 13  P a ge'-

366



17.  The applicant shall obtain Site Plan Approval for all on- site kiosks for the Lathrop Towne Centre
proj ect.

18.  The Final Map shall be in substantial conformance vith the approved Vesting Tentative Parcel Map,
as conditioned, and that any future development shall be consistent with applicable sections of the
Mossdale Landing East UDC and the Lathrop Municipal Code.

19.  The applicant is responsible for contacting all appropriate utility companies to obtain their
agreement for extension and/ or relocation of services necessaiy to final the proposed Vesting
Tentative Parcel Map.

20.  Applicant shall disclose LMC Chapter 15. 48 Agricultural Land Preservation, also commonly
referred to as " Right-To- Farm" during the sale of lots within the project area. This provision shall
include all properties on site which may be impacted or affected by on- going farming operations.

21.  Any activity authorized by this Vesting Tentative Parcel Map shall constitute acceptance of all of
the conditions and obligations imposed by the City on this Vesting Tentative Parcel Map.  The

applicant(s), by said acceptance of these Conditions, waives any challenge as to the validity of these
conditions.

22.  Unless otherwise specified, all conditions of approval shall be complied with prior to the issuance

of any Building Permits.

23.  The Vesting Tentative Parcel Map shall expire twenty- four (24) months from the date of approval
unless a time extension is granted consistent with the policies and procedures of the Lathrop
Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map Act, or the term provided in the Mossdale Landing East
Development Agreement with respect to Ramona Chace properties only.

24.  The Site Plan shall expire thirty-six (36) months from the date of approval unless a time extension
is granted consistent with the policies and procedure of the Lathrop Municipal Code, or the term
provided in the Mossdale Landing East Development Agreement with respect to Ramona Chace
properties only. Prior to the expiration, a building permit must be issued and construction is
commenced and diligently pursued toward coinpletion of the site or structures.

25.  The City of Lathrop may conduct annual and or spot inspections to ensure that required site
improvements and conditions are being complied with and maintained.

BUILDING

1.   Evaluate location of accessible parlcing stalls to be as close as practicable to each main entrance of
each building.  Each building needs to be served by accessible stalls regardless of the minimum
number required by Table 11B- 208. 2 of the 2016 California Building Code ( 2016 CBC).

2.   Provide accessible stalls for each parking lot/area. Because of the numerous parking lots/ areas this
may require more stalls than calculated from Table 11B- 208. 2.

3.   Please revise parking type key to include those stalls meant for electric vehicle parking with
chargers. Provide chargers as per 11B- 228. 3 and Table 11B- 228. 3. 2. 1 ofthe 2016 CBC.

4.    Special Inspections — As indicated by California Building Code Section 1704, the owner shall
employ one or more special inspectors who shall provide special inspections when required by CBC
section 1704.  Please contact the Building Division at time of plan submittal to obtain application
for special inspections.

4of13  Page

367



5.   All construction shall comply with the most recent adopted City and State building codes:

2016 California Building Code
2016 California Electrical Code

2016 California Mechanical Code

2016 California Plumbing Code
2016 California Fire Code

2016 California Green Code

2.   The Title Sheet of the plans shall include:

Occupancy Group
Occupant Load

Description of Use

Type of Construction

Height of Building
Floor area of building( s) and/ or occupancy group

3.    School impact fees shall be paid prior to permit issuance.

4.   Dimensioned building setbacks and property lines, street centerlines and between buildings or other
structures shall be designed on plot plan.

5.   All property lines and easements must be shown on plot plan.  A statement that such lines and

easements are shown is rec uired.

6.   The project design will conform with energy conservation measures articulated in Title 24 of the
California Code of Regulations and address measures to reduce energy consumption such as flow
restrictors for toilets, low consumptions light fixtures, and insulation and shall use to the extent

feasible draught landscaping.

7.   A design professional will be required at time of construction drawings, to prepare plans for

proposed improvements per the Business and Professions' Code.

8.   Public and private site improvements shall be designed in accordance with the Americans with

Disabilities Act and Chapter 11 of the California Building Code.  Site plan shall include a site

accessibility plan identifying exterior routes of travel and detailing running slope, cross slope, width,
pedestrian ramp, curb ramps, handrails, signage and truncated domes.   Path of travel shall be

provided from the public right of way and accessible parking to building. The design professional
shall ensure that the site accessibility plan is compliance with the latest Federal and State
regulations.

PUBLIC WORKS

1.  The applicant a rees, on behalf of itself and any successor in interest, that the project is obli ated to

pav the Somecville Traffic Si; nal and Street Improvement Reimbursement, as detailed in Agreement

9 of the City of Lathrop Settlement and Reimbursement A reement with Watt McKee LLC dated
September 20, 2010 " Somerville Reimbursement". The app( icant oc successor in interest, sllall pav
the Someiville Reimbursement in the amount of$414.201. 46 to the City in full prioc to Final Map
appcoval or prior to the issuance of the first buildin permit on the subiect propertv.

5 of 13  P a g-.

368



2.  In accordance with the Global Resolution dated 1/ 12/ 2016 between Ramona Chace and the City of

Lathrop, the following conditions apply to this project:

a.  Under" Manthey Road", Ramona Chace has the following option:

i.  " Ratnona Chace will pay $2 per square foot, no appraisal, at its option following
resolution of the Sprayfield action." The purchase of Manthey Road shall be

required prior to the approval of any Parcel Map or the issuance of any building
permit.

b.  Under " Consortium Agreement Reimbursement/ Sewer Capacity", Ramona Chace has

options for providing sewer capacity to the project:

i.  " City to acknowledge Ramona Chace owns the   $ 300K plus future

reimbursement(s)  in the approximate sum totaling  $ 900K from oversizing

construction of WRP. The City will pay the outstanding$ 300,000 reimbursement
to Ramona Chace within 30 days of an executed settlement agreement.  Future

reimbursements will be paid to Ramona Chace within 30 days of the completion

of the corresponding phase of the sewer plant expansion;
ii.  City to acknowledge Ramona Chace' s ownership of 16, 553 gal from Western

Pacific;

iii.  City to acknowledge Ramona Chace' s right, under the Consortium Agreement, to
purchase and use 9, 828 gal upon payment for it at$ 75/ gal;

iv.  City to acicnowledge Ramona Chace' s right to a pro- rated reimbursement re:
9, 828 gal and to deduct its reimburseinent amount in the amount of $737, 100

subject to confirmation from City) from its payment to the City;
v.  City will sell Ramona Chace 146 ISUs, the first 23. 92 ISUs at half cost

37. 50/ gal); Ramona Chace to purchase the remainder at full price($ 75/ gal); the

City presently owns no less than 80 ISUs available for purchase by Ramona
Chace, which are not committed to any other parties; the City will have the

remainder of the ISUs ( totaling 146 ISUs) available for purchase by Ramona
Chace by no later than the completion of the ongoing sewer plant expanslon, and

these additional ISUs ace not and will not be committed to any other parties.
Ramona Chace has no obligation to provide sprayfields and ponds to use the 146

ISUs;

vi.  City to acknowledge Ramona Chace is successor in interest to TCN's interest in
the 34 ISUs from the Nuriso Pond and that upon Ramona Chace demonstrating

ownership for such ISUs, Ramona Chace has the right to transfer the 34 ISUs
from the Nuriso Pond to any of its parcels in Mossdale after paying off the

underlying bond".

6 of I3  P a g e

369



c.  Under " Well 21", Ramona Chace has the option to allocate Well No. 21 water to the

project:

i.  " In lieu of providing Ramona Chace its claimed reimbursement for sums paid for

the design, permitting, property acquisition, environmental review, drilling and

construction of treatment facilities for City Well No. 21 by TCN and WPH, in the
sum of$946, 868, the City wil( provide Ramona Chace with the right to 31. 7% of

City Well No. 21 capacity. The capacity is available to Rainona Chace for its
projects or for sale to other developers".

d.  Ramona Chace is not the fee owner of the project site. However, Ramona Chace does

have options to acquire the site. Under" Spray Field", Ramona Chace has the option until

1/ 12/ 19 to pay the City of Lathrop $ 100, 000/ Acre to replace the 12. 4 acre sprayfield:

i.  " The City to convey within twenty- four months, by grant deed, fee simple title to
the 12. 4 acre sprayfield property to Ramona Chace, or its assignee, as the

remainderman who will pursue commercial development of the property;
ii.  The City agrees that Ramona Chace may immediately submit and the City will

process a site plan review application for a retail shopping center; however, the

12. 4 acre sprayfield property will remain City property and will not be deeded to

Ramona Chace or its assignee, and no building permit shall be issued, until 12. 4
acre substitute,  fully improved and Board permitted sprayfield property is
provided to the City by Ramona Chace, or the sprayfield expansion project is

complete ( fully improved and Board permitted) and Ramona Chace has funded

the City's participation in the sprayfield expansion project on the same cost basis

and schedule as that adopted by the participating developers in the sprayfield
expansion project;

iii.  The City will obtain 12. 4 acres of sprayfield land from the next sewer expansion

and Ramona Chace will pay for the City' s proportional share of the sprayfield

land on the same cost basis and schedule as that adopted by the participating
developers in the sprayfield expansion project, which will not exceed $ 100, 000

an acre. Ramona Chace, in its sole option, may provide alternative sprayfield land

to satisfy the obligation;
iv.  If the City does not obtain 12. 4 acres of replacement sprayfield within 24 months

of the effective date of the settlement, Ramona Chace has the option to pay the
100, 000 an acce and have Sprayfield released froin tnonths 25 through 36 of the

effective date of the settlement, even if alternate sprayfields are not ready".

7 of 13  P a g e

370



e.  Under" Spray Field", after 1/ 12/ 19, Ramona Chace has the following option to purchase
the site:

i.  " After month 37, Ramona Chace must replace acreage and cannot buy itself out

by paying $ 100, 000 per acre".

3.  A Final Map will not be processed until Ramona Chace or its successor is the fee owner of the
property, in accordance with Public Works Condition 2d.

4.  The applicant shall initiate the apportionment procedure for assessments applicable to the property

concurrently with the processing of the Final Map.

5.  Prior to grading, abandon all City utilities stubbed to the site that are not anticipated to be used for
the final project.

6.  A Public Utility Easement( PUE) proposed on Manthey Road is not required for City services. If the

applicant decides to put a PUE over a portion of Manthey Road, then no buildings shall encroach
within the PLTE. The City will not own or maintain public utilities in a PUE over what is now

Manthey Road.

7.  All private utilities shall remain on private property and not encroach within any Public Utility
Easement.

8.  All water mains entering the site shall have backflow devices and meters.

9.  Applicant shall confirm that existing utility stubs to the site are as large as the proposed onsite utility
connections.

10. Applicant shall provide design calculations for onsite water system to confirm adequate supply for
domestic use and fire flows.

11. Applicant shall provide calculations showing how much sewer capacity will be necessary for the
proj ect.

12. Applicant shall identify water and sewer allocated to the site, in a form acceptable to the City.

13. Multiple final maps may be filed for phasing or financing purposes.  Each final map shall " stand
alone"  and be self-sufficient regarding adequate site access,  on- site circulation,  physical

infrastructure, fire protection methods and land use patterns. The Director of Public Works, in

discussion with the Fire Chief of the Lathrop-Manteca fire Protection District, shall approve any and
all phasing plans.  Approval of a phasing plan may include the requirement for construction of
additional site improvements.

14. Prior to approval of a final map or parcel map, the Developer shall enter into a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with the City for all public improvements, including any required offsite
storm drainage or roadway improvements that are needed to serve the subdivision that have not been
bonded with another Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

8 of 13  P a e

371



15. The Developer shall provide performance ( 100%) and labor and material ( 50%) securities to

gt arantee the public improvements, approved by the City Engineer, prior to the execution of the

Subdivision Improvement Agreement and approval of the final map or parcel map.

16. Applicant shall retain the services of a California licensed civil engineer to design the utility plans
for sewer, water and storm drain lines and systems.

17. Applicant shall insure that all offsite and onsite improvements comply with City Standards and with
the Multi-Agency Post-Construction Stormwater Standards Manual.

18. Applicant shall submit hydrology and hydraulic calculations and plans for on- site storm water

systems to the City for review by the City' s storm drain plan check consultant for compliance with
the Mossdale Storm Drain Master Plan. Applicant shall pay all costs associated with this review.

19. Applicant shall provide driveway access to the site as well as on- site circulation capable of safely

accommodating an STAA size truck. This shall apply to the private roadway that is now Manthey
Road, and to any other areas of the site anticipated to receive deliveries via STAA size trucks.

20. As part of the Building Permit application, all existing survey monuments and markers of record

within the area of work shall be researched and identified on an existing conditions or demolition
plan sheet. The project surveyor shall be required to submit a pre and post construction certification

that all monuments have been preserved or reset with appropriate documentation. The City Surveyor

may require a corner record or record of survey be prepaced if any survey monuments have the
potential to be disturbed.

21. The applicant shall provide an erosion and sediment control plan with the building permit
application.

22. Applicant shall underground all overhead utilities in compliance with the Lathrop Municipal Code.
Overhead power lines in excess of 34. 5 KVA are not required to be undergrounded.

23. The Applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit and bond for all offsite work.

24. Applicant shall pay all appropriate fees including but not liinited to Capital Facilities Fees, Interim
Urban Level of Flood Protection Levee Impact Fee, Plan Check and Inspection Fees.

25. Prior to Issuance of a Final Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall provide all easements as

needed to insure access, and utility easements.

LATHROP-MANTECA FI12E DISTRICT (LMFD)

1.  The project must conform to the appropriate edition of the California Fire Code ( currently the 2016
edition) and all related standards.

2.  Permits shall be obtained from the fire code official. Permit( s) and fees, shall be paid prior to

issuance of any and/ or all permits. Issued permits shall be 1< ept on the premises designated therein
at all times and shall be readily available for inspection by the fire code official. (Permits are to be

renewed on an annual basis).

9 of 13  P  e

372



3.  Approved autotnatic sprinlcler systems shall be provided as required in 2016 California Fire Code

903. 2.  Tenant/ Occupant/Owner shall have the responsibility to ensure that the correct fire
suppression system is added/modified/tested and accepted by the  ( AHJ)  Fire District.  Fire

suppression system plans shall be modified under separate fire permit and shall be submitted by a
licensed contractor, to the ( AHJ) Fire District for review and approval prior to modification.

Deferred submittal accepted.

4.  Approved fire alarm systems shall be installed in accordance with 2016 CFC § 907.2 and 2013

NFPA 72.

5.  Fire Department Development Fees for all new buildings must be paid in accordance with the City
of Lathrop' s Ordinance and Resolutions adopting the fee schedule.

6.  An approved water supply for fire protection, either temporary or permanent, shall be made
available prior to coinmencing construction beyond the foundation stage, or as soon as combustible
material arrives on the site.

7.  Approved vehicle access for firefighting shall be provided to all construction or demolition sites.
Vehicle access shall be provided to within 100 feet ( 30 480 mm) of temporary or permanent fire
department connections. Vehicle access shall be provided by either temporary or permanent roads,
capable of supporting vehicle loading under all weather conditions. Vehicle access shall be
maintained until permanent fire apparatus access roads are available.

8.  The Fire Department Fire Access Roads shall meet the requireinents established by the San Joaquin
County Fire Chief' s Association.

9.  Where access to or within a structure or an area is restricted because of secured openings or where

immediate access is necessary for life-saving or fire- fighting purposes, a key box is required to be
installed in an approved location. The key box shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys
to gain necessary access as required by the fire code official. In addition to key box(es), any

automatic gates shall have Opticom access ability to provide necessary access for emergency
apparatus.

10. Other fire & life safety requirements may be required at time of building plan review.

11. Final approval is subject to field inspections. Minimum 48 hour notice required prior to any life-
safety fire inspections. Other conditions may apply at time of inspections and are subject to
correction.

LATHROP POLIC]E SERVICES (LPS)

1.  Prior to occupancy, the applicant shall install roof top address, subject to review and approval by
LPS. The numbers shall be at least 3' tall, 2' wide, 9" apart, with 6" brush stroke with a color that

contrast the roof top. The number shall be oriented to be read from west to east.

2.  Applicant shall install dedicated lights in the parking lot that are properly maintained.

3.  Applicant shall install recording security camera system that is maintained and accessible to LPS
with camera views covering all ingress and egress to buildings and parking areas.

4.  Landscaping shall conform to standard CPTED measurements:

a.  Maintain natural visible surveillance to building from parking lot and street.
b.  Plants taller than 8 feet shall be trimmed up 4 feet from ground.
c.  Plants under 8 feet shall be trimmed to allow ground level surveillance.

10of13  Pa e

373



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

1.  By exercising this approval, the applicant hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harinless and defend the
City, its officers, agents, elected and appointed officials, and employees, from any and all liability
or claims that may be brought against the City arising out of its approval of this Vesting Tentative
Parcel Map, Site Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit to the fullest extent permitted by law.

CENTRAL VALLEY REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARI)

See attached memo dated November 27, 2017.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT

See attached memo dated November 30, 2017.

SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT

See attached memo dated November 27, 2017.

M__.---_.--       

11 of 13  P a g e

374



r

Eouurw. OnowN Jn.
oavenaon

OA 1 ORMI•  M UIIIOUGZ

ater Boards MGMAL/ FOTiCTION

Centrai Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

G C C L bL     
22 November 2017

2 7 20 7
ClTY OF LqTHRpp

Rick Caguiat
C M• dEV DEPT.       CERTIFIED MAIL

City of Lathrop 91 7199 9991 7036 6996 5016

Community Development Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE LATHROP TOWNE CENTER VESTING

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, SITE PLAN REVIEW& CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT( VTM-17-

11, SPR-17- 112 8 CUP- 17- 113) PROJECT, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

Pursuant to the City of Lathrop Community Development DepartmenYs 3 November 2017
request, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Central Valley Water Board)
has reviewed the Request for Review for the Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative Parcel
Map, Site Plan Review& Conditional Use Permit (VTM- 17- 11, SPR- 17- 112& CUP- 17- 113)

Project, located in San Joaquin County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and
groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concems surrounding those
issues.

1.    Regulatory 5etting

Basin Plan

The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for all areas
within the Central Valley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act. Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to ensure the
reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as wetl as a program of implementation for
achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal regulations require each
state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public health or welfare, enhance the
quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean Water Act.  In California, the beneficial
uses, water quality objectives, and the Antidegradation Policy are the State's water quality
standards. Water quality standards are also contained in the National Taxics Rule, 40 CFR
Section 131. 36, and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR 5ection 131. 38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering appficable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin Pians were
adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as required, using Basin
Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has adopted a Basin Plan

K E. LoNo Ev ScD, P. E. CMAIq  PAMELA C, CREEOON P. E: BCEE E7fECUTIVG MFIOCR

1 020 Sun Center Drlve B2D0, Reneho Cordove, CA 9587D  www.w terboerde. ca. pov/ centralvalley

a 11GCYC[ O A Gfl

375



Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative .     - 2-  22 November 2017
Parcel Map, Site Plan Review& Conditional

Use Permit( VTM- 17- 11, SPR- 17- 112 &

CUP- 17- 113) Project

San Joaquin County

amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by the State Water Resources
Control Board ( State Water Board), Office of Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases,
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).  Basin Plan amendments

only become efFective after they have been approved by the OAL and in some cases, the
USEPA.  Every three (3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the
appropriateness of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues.

For more information on the Water Qualify Control Plan for the Sacramento and San
Joaquin River Basins, please visit our website:

http:l/www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/ basin_ plans/.

Ant6deqradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Palicy ( State Water Board
Resolution 68- 16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in the Basin
Plan. The Antidegradation Policy is available on page IV- 15. 01 at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.govlcentralvalleywater_ issues/ basin_ plans/sacsjr.pdf

In part it states:

Any discharge of wasfe to high qualrty waters must apply,best practicable treatment or
controf nof only to prevenf a condition of pollution ornuisance from occurring, but also fo
maintain the highest wafer quality possible consistent with the maximum benefit to fhe
people of the Sfate.

This informafion must be presenfed as an analysis of the impacts and potential impacts
of the discharge on water qualify, as measured by background concentrations and
applicable water qualify objectives.

The antic egradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) permitting
processes. The environmental review document should evaluate potential impacts to both
surface and groundwater quality.

I.   Perrr itting Requirements

Construction Storm 4later General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects disturb less
than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that in total disturbs
one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit for Storm
Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities ( Construction General Permit),

Construction General Permit Order No. 2009- 009- DWQ. Construction activity subject to
this permit includes clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as

376



Lathrop Towne Cenfer Vesting Tentative       - 3-  22 November 2017
Parcel Map, Site Plan Review& Conditional

Use Permit( VTM- 17- 11, SPR- 17- 112&
CUP- 17- 113) Project

San Joaquin County

stockpiling, or excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities pertormed to

restore the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit
requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
SWPPP).

For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the State Water Resources
Control Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits. shtml.

Phase I and II Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Svstem (AAS41 Permits'

The Phase I and II MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce pollutants and runoff flows

from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices ( BMPs) to
the maximum extent practicable (MEP).  MS4 Permittees have their own development

standards, also known as Low Impact Development( LID)/ post-construction standards that
include a hydromodification component. The MS4 permits also require specific design

concepts for LlDlpost-construction BMPs in the early stages of a project during the
entitlement and CEQA process and the development plan review process.

For more information on which Phase l MS4 Permit this project applies to, visit the Central
Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/storm water/municipal_permits/.

For more information on the Caltrans Phase I MS4 Permit, visit the State Water Resources
Control Board at:

http:// www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/stormwater/caltrans. shtml.

For more information on the Phase II MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the Sfate
Water Resources Control Board at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issueslprograms/stormwater/phase_ii_ municipal.sht
ml

lndustrial Storm Water General Permit

Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the regulations
contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-0057- DWQ.

For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit, visit the Central Valley
Water Board website at:

Municipal Permits= The Phase I Municipal Separate Storm Water System( M54) Permit covers medium sized
Municipalities( serving beiween 100,000 and 250,000 people) and large sized municipalities( serving over
250,000 people}.  The Phase II MS4 provides coverage for small municipalities, including non- traditional Small
MS4s, which include military bases, pub(ic campuses, prisons and hospitals.

377



Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative       - 4-  22 November 2017
Parcel Map, Site Plan Review& Conditional

Use Permit( VTM- 17- 11, SPR- 17- 112 &

CUP- 17- 113) Project

San Joaquin County

http://www.waterboards. ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/ storm wateNindustrial_general_
permits/ index.shtm l.

Clean Wa er Act Section 404 Permit

If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters or

wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be needed from the
United States Army Corps of Engineers ( USACOE). If a Section 404 permit is required by
the USACOE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the permit application to ensure
that discharge will not violate water quality standards.  If the project requires surface water
drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to contact the Department of Fish and Game
for information on Streambed Alteration Permit requirements.   

If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act Section 404 permits, please
contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento District of USACOE at( 916) 557-5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit—Water Qualitv Certification

ff an USACOE permit( e. g., Non- Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit, Letter of
Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic General Permit}, or

any other federal permit( e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act or Section 9 from
the United States Coast Guard), is required for this project due to the disturbance ( i. e.,
discharge of dredge or fill material) of waters of the United States ( such as streams and

wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central Valley
Water Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for 401 Water

Quality Certifications.

Waste Discharae Repuirements( WDRs)

Discharges to Wafers of the Stafe
If USACOE determines that only nonjurisdictional waters of the State ( i. e., " non-federal"

waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed project may
require a Waste Discharge Requirement( WDR) permit to be issued by Central Valley
Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act,
discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other waters of the State
including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to State regulation.

Land Disposal of Dredge Maferia!

If the project will involve dredging, Water Quality Certification for the dredging activity
and Waste Discharge Requirements for the land disposal may be needed.

Local Agency Oversife
Pursuant to the State Water Board's Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems Policy
OWTS Policy), the regulation of septic tank and lea h field systems may be regulated

378



Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative       - 5-  22 November 2017
Parcei Map, Site Plan Review& Conditionai

Use Permit( VTM- 17- 11, SPR- 17- 112 &
CUP- 17- 113) Project

San Joaquin County

under.the local agency' s management program in fieu of WDRs. A county
environmental health department may permit septic tank and leach field systems
designed for less than 10,000 gpd.  For more information on septic system regulations,

visit the Central Valley Water Board' s website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/owfs/sb owts, olicy.pdf

For more information on the Water Quality Certification and WDR processes, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/help/business_ help/permit2. shtml.

Dewaterinq Permit

If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be discharged
to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board General Water
Quality Order( Low Risk General Order) 2003-0003 or the Central Valley Water Board' s
Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge Requirements ( Low Risk
Waiver) R5-2013-0145.  Small temporary construction dewatering projects are projects that
discharge groundwater to land from excavation activities or dewatering of underground
utility vaults.  Dischargers seeking coverage under the General Order or Waiver must file a
Notice of Intent with the Central Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge.       

For more information regarding the Low Risk General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards. ca.gov/board_decisionsladopted_ orders/water quality/2003/wqo/w
qo2003- 0003.pdf

For more information regarding the Low Risk Waiver and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.g ovlcentralvalley/ board_ decisions/ adopted_orders/waivers/ r5-
2013-0145_res. pdf

Regulatorv Compliance for Commerciallv Irriqated Aqriculture
If the property will be used for commercial irrigated agricultural, the discharger will be
required to obtain regulatory coverage under the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program.
There are two options to comply:

1.   Obtain Coverage Under a Coalition Group. Join the local Coalition Group that
supports land owners with the implementation of the Irrigated Lands Regulatory
Program. The Coalition Group conducts water quality monitoring and reporting to
the Central Valley Water Board on behalf of its growers. The Coalition Groups

charge an annual membership fee, which varies by Coalition Group. To find the
Coalition Group in your area, visit the Central Valley Water Board' s website at:
http:// www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/ irrigated_lands/app_appr

379



Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative       - 6-  22 November 2017
Parcel Map, Site Plan Review& Conditional

Use Permit( VTM- 17- 11, SPR-17- 112 &

CUP- 17- 113) Project

San Joaquin County

oval/ index.shtml; or contact water board staff at( 916) 464-4611 or via emaii at
I rrLands@waterboards.ca.gov.

2.   Obtain Coverage Under the General Waste Discharge Requirements for

Individual Growers, General Order R5- 2013- 0100.  Dischargers not participating
in a third- party group (Coalition) are regulated individually. Depending on the
specific site conditions, growers may be required to monifor runoff from their
prope ty, install monitoring wells, and submit a notice of intent, farm plan, and other
action plans regarding their actions to comply with their General Order. Yearly
costs would include State administrative fees ( for example, annual fees for farm
sizes from 10- 100 acres are currently$ 1, 084+$ 6.70/Acre); the cost to prepare

annual monitoring reports; and water quality monitoring costs. To enroll as an
Individual Discharger under the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program, call the
Central Valley Water Board phone line at (916) 464-4611 or e- mail board staff at
I rrLands@waterboards. ca.gov.

Low or Lienited Threat General NPDES Permit

If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to discharge
the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will require coverage

under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit. Dewatering
discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to water quality and may be
covered under the General Order for Dewatering and Other Low Threaf Discharges to
Surface Waters( Low Threat General Order) or the General Order for Limifed Threat

Discharges of Treafed/Unfreated Groundwater from Cleanup Sites, Wastewater from
Superchlorinafion Projects, and Ofher Limited Threaf Wasfewaters to Surface Water
Limited Threat General Order). A complete application must be submitted to the Central

Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under these General NPDES permits.

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.govlcentralvalley/board_decisions/adopted_ orders/general_ord
ers/ r5-2013-0074.pdf

For more information regarding the Limited Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:/lwww.waterboards.ca.gov/centralva Iley/ board_decisions/adopted_ orders/gen eral_ord
erslr5- 2013-0073. pdf

380



Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative       - 7-  22 November 2017
Parcef Map, Site Plan Review& Conditional

Use Permit (VTM- 17- 11, SPR- 17- 112 &

CUP- 17- 113) Project

San Joaquin County

PIPDIES Permit

If the praposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of the waters of the
State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project will require
coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit. A

complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the Central Valley Water
Board to obtain a iVPDES Permit.

For more information regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/ helplbusiness_ help/ permit3.shtml

If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at ( 916) 464-4644 or
Stephanie.Tadlock@waterboards. ca.gov.

Stephan'  Tadlock

Environmental Scientist

381



1 
c =- 

p
S Q N J 0 A Q U I N Er vironr ntal Health Departrnent

CC7UNTY LBnda Turkatte, REHS, Directorc-,- ,;

o, i.y;?:`   
Greotness grows here.      KaseyFoley, REHS, AssistantDirector

PROGRAf1fl COORDINATORS

Robert NlcClellon, REHS
Jeff Carruesco, REHS, R I

Rodney Estrada, REHS
Willy Ng, REHS

November 3, 77
Muniappa Naidu, REHS

City of La4hrop
Corrrmunity Development Department
Planning Divisian
Aftn: Rick C guiat, Senior Planner
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject:    City of Lathrop - Lat irop Towrne Center 1lesting T ntative Parcel @Aap, Site Plan
Revi tiv Canditional Use Per¢ it,!/ TM1fl- 17-' I, SPR-17- 112, CUP- 97-' 93

he San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department( EHD) has the following comments for
consideration:

A.  Any geo echnical drilling shafl be conducted under permit and inspection by The' En ironmental
Health Department (San Joaquin County Development Title, Section 9- 1115.3 and 9- 1115.6).

B.  Submit t vo ( 2) hardcopy sets, or one ( 1) electroriic version, of food facility plans to the
Envirbnmental Health pepartment for reviev r and approval prior to issuance of building p rinit(s)
Galifo nia Retail Food Code, Article 1, 114380). The fee will be based on the current schedule at

the time of paym nt.

C.  Befbre any hazardous materials/waste can be stored or used on5ite, the ovuner/ operator must
repor##o the California Environmental Reparting System ( CERS) which can be founcJ at
cers.calepa.ca. av/ for the following:

1 Anv amount ofi hazardo.us waste (for distribution centers this may include broken or damaged
pallets (or individual cantainers) of hazatdous materials, soaps, perfumes, cleanei s, dyes,

nicotine, over the counter meclicines, o other hou.sehold items packaged for sal that have
besn damaged; used oil, used oil filters, used oil- contaminatzd absorbent/debris, waste
antifteeze, used batteries or other universal waste; etc.)—Hazarcious laste P ogram.

2 Onsite treatment of hazardous v aste— Hazardous 11 aste Treatrvaer t Tiered Peemitting
P rog am.

3 Reportable quantities of hazardous materials-repo table quantities are 55 gallons or more of

liquids; 50Q pounds for solids, or 200 cubic feet fo compressed gases, with 5ome exceptions.
Carbon dioxide is a regulated substance and is required to be reported as a hazatdous material
if storing 1, 200 cubic feet( 137 pounds) or more onsite in San Joaquin County— Hazardous

Mateeials Busiv ess Plan Program.

1868 E. Hazelton Avenue Stockton, Califomia 95205 T 209 468- 3420  F 209 464-0138 www.sjcehd.com

382



Ci#y of Lathrop- Lath pp Towae Center V.esting Tentative Parcel Map, Site Plan Reviesv 8 Conditional Use Permit, VTM- 17-
11, SPR=17- 112,& GUP- 17- 113 Page 2  .

Novembsr 30; 2017

4 Anv amount of hazardous materaal stor.ed in an Underg ound Starage Tank- lDnd rg ound
Stor ge 7ank Pe ograrn.

5 Storaqe of at least 1: 320 caalions of petroleum abovegrownd or any amount ofi petrol um stored
below grade in a vault= Aboveground Petr leum S' o age Program.

D.  If an undergrourid storage tank ( USTJ system will be instalied,; a permit is required to be submit4etl
to, and approved by, tFie San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department ( EHD) before any
UST installation wo k can begin. Additionally, an EHD perrriit to operate the UST is requi ed once
the USl' system in installed.

E.  If 1, 320 gallons or more of petiroleum is to be stored aboveground then a Spill Prevention,

Countermeasures and Gonfrol (SFCC) Plan is equired. If any amount of petroleum is to be stored
in a belo v grade vault, an SPGC plan is required.

Should you have any questions, please contact Steven Shih, Lead Senior Registered Environmental
Health Specialist, at( 209) 468-9850 or sshih@sjcehd. com.

G

Rodney Estrada, REHS
Program Coordinator

383



San Joaquin Valley r

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT HEALTHY A,I R
LIVINGTM

November 22, 2017 n Dlh4

Rick Caguiat, Senior Planner o  ,

City of Lathrop CiTY OF LATHROP

Community Devefopment Department COlVI• [3Et/. DEPT.

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Project:  Lathrop Towne Center Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Site Plan Review, &
Cond64ional !! e Permbt(/ TM- 17- 11, P- 17-' i 12 & CJP-'i7- 193j

District CEQA Reference No:  20171244

Dear Mr. Caguiat:

The San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District ( District} has reviewed the
project referenced above consisting of subdividing an approximately 13- acre parcel into
6 individual commercial parcels and constructing a shopping center with an estimated
floor area of 130,000 square feet of retail space and a hotel ( Project). The Project is part
of the Mossdale Landing East Supplementa! Environmental Impact Report and is located
at 17100 Golden Valley Parkway (APN: 191- 190-49), in Lathrop, CA.  The District offers
the following comments:

District Comments

1)    Pursuant to District R le 9510( Indirect Source Review) section 2. 0, District Rule 9510

applies to any applicant that seeks to gain a final discretionary approva! for a
development project, or any portion thereof, which upon full build out would exceed
any one of the applicability thresholds established in Section 2. 1.  The District has

considered the information provided by the City of Lathrop, and has determined the
Project received nal discretionary approval before March 1, 2006, which is the
effective date of the rule.

Therefore, the Project is not subject to Rule 9510.  Please be aware that changes to

the Project, i. e., change in land use type or increase in use intensity may exceed an
applicability threshold, resulting in the Project being subject to District Rule 9510.

Seyed Sadredin

Executiva OirectorlAir Pallution Cantral Officer

Norlhern 8egioo CeMral Region( Main Offiee) Southern Begion

4800 Enterprise Way 1990 E Gettyshurg Avenue 34846 Flyover Court

Modesto, CA 95356-8718 Fresno, CA 93726-0244 Bakersi'reld, CA 93308•9125

Tel:( 2091557•64D0 FAX: 2091557•6475 Tel:( 55A1230•6000 FAX: 15591230-6081 Tel: 661• 392-5500 FAX: 6B1• 392•5585

www.vaHeyair. org www.healthyakliving. com
a. 

384



District CEQA Reference No: 20171244 Page 2 of 3

2)    Particulate Matter 2.5 microns or less in size ( PM2.5) from under-fired charbroilers
UFCs)  pose immediate health risk.    Since the cooking of ineat can release

carcinogenic PM2. 5 species like polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons   ( PAH),

contrplling emissions from under-fired charbroilers will have a substantial positive
impact on public health.

Charbroiling emissions occur in populated areas,  near schools and residential

neighborhoods, resulting in high exposure levels for sensitive Valley residents. The
air quality impacts on neighborhoods near restaurants with UFCs can be significant
on days when meteorological conditions are stable, when dispersion is limited and

emissions are trapped near the surface within the surrounding neighborhoods. This
potential for neighborhood- level concentration of emissions during evening or multi-
day stagnation events raises environmental concerns.

In addition, the cooking emissions source category is one of the largest single
cqntributors of directty emitted PM2. 5 in the Valley.    Photochemical modeling
conducted for the 2012 PM2.5 Plan showed that reducing commercial charbroiling
emissions is critical to achieving PM2.5 attainment in the Valley.

The District committed to amend Rule 4692 (Commercial Charbroiling) in 2016, with
a 2017 compliance date,  to add emission control requirements for UFCs,  as

committed to in the District's 2012 PM2. 5 Plan.   Installing charbroiler emissions
control systems during construction of new facilities is likely to result in substantial
economic benefit compared to costly retrofitting.

Therefore,  the District strongly recommends that your agency require new
restaurants that will operate UFCs ta install emission control systems during the
construction phase. To ease the financial burden for Valley businesses that wish to
install control equipment before it is required, the District is offering incentive funding
during the time leading up to the amendment to the rule.  Restaurants with UFCs

may be eligible to apply for funding to add emission control systems. Please contact
the District at (559) 230- 5858 for more information.

3)    The proposed Project may require District permits.  Prior to the start of cvnstruction

the Project proponent shvuld contact the District' s Small Business Assistance Office

at (559) 230- 5888 to determine if an Authority to Construct (ATC) is required.

4)    The proposed Project may be subject to the following District rules:  Regulation VII1

Fugitive PM10 Prohibitions),  Rule 4102  ( Nuisance),  Rule 4601  ( Architectural

Coatings), and Rule 4641 ( Cutback, Slow Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt, Paving and
Maintenance Operations).   In the event an existing building will be renovated,
partially demolished or removed, the Project may be subject to District Rule 4002
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants).

385



Disfrict CEQA Reference No: 20171244 Page 3 of 3

5)    The District recommends that a copy of the District's comments be provided to the
Project proponent.

The above list of rules is neither exhaustive nor exclusive. To identify other District rules
or regulations that apply to this Project or to obtain information about District permit
requirements,  the applicant is strongly encouraged to contact the District' s Small
Business Assistance Office at (559) 230- 5888.  Current District rules can be found online
at: www.valleyair.orq/ rules/ 1 ruleslist.htm.    

District staff is available to meet with you and/ or the applicant to further discuss the

regulatory requirements that are associated with this Project.  If you have any questions
or require further information, please call Stephanie Pellegrini at ( 559) 230-5820.

Sincerely,

Arnaud Marjollet

Director of Permit Services

Brian Clements

Program Manager

AM:  sp

386



Mossdale Landing East

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP)

12of13  Page

387



a..,............_- -- --..,.; x..,..-:.,.,= rwM... s».. r.... g:.ar.au:.s;+ s x eam.&•., airsm: e sss.'' 6tto-sa.; r. k1 r5. s i..i w.rsr''„ 1s4iii`.aJ '  ""

r

i`^'°k a>

Append x "B"- Mitigation Monitoring Program

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST
MITIGATION MONITORING: PROGRAM_ MMP

Timing/ Implementatio.n
Verlflcation

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibility
Monitoring Monitoring_   Date

Action Res":onsibilif Com leted
F

5:d , ` A'GRtC`1L7URE
r " 

t .  
T.,}.. z r,:.              ;...      w_ r__    _.. .  ._.      

J t

Unban Agricultura! Carflkts;
5.1. Agricultural Barrier. As development occurs under Prior to issuance Project Approval of City 4

the phasing plan, fencing or other suitable barriers of Occupancy Sponsor fencing plan Community
should be established at the interface between the Permit Development
phases that are.develaping and adjacent to agricultural
land>so asto reduce,the..potential of urban-agrl ultural
conflicts:restilting.;from trespass, vandalism, crop and
e ui"'ment d̀ama` e;and-tFieft.

6:Q Ai,Ra Q dLITY'    4  '  

n',       
t   ' i! 

a dat u 4 F sa"il. d. d{  h.,:> w 1{. r,...,. d  ,. ' r.n....   _.. . ti:       ...    s,>  "  
S t s

z

i,,..! r .. ,..„.;'.. .....   ..  .    .':_      ..'.. .   .  ..;    ... , .     x,,.;?,       i;'    S i„ .      ..... .. ..   .. ....:   . ..,,...

Gonstruct/on-fte?ated Emissions Pnor to issuance Verify that
6:1 SJVAPCD Compliance_ The owners, developers of Rough Grading Project requirements City Public

and7or successors-{n- lnterest shall comply with all Permits, during Sponsor are inciuded Works k
applicable requlrements of SJVAPCD Regulation VIII,      gradfng for each in grading
incfF d(   com fance with the followin AIr Glualit f;9 P 9 Y Phase contracfs

mi ation_measures 62 th h 6. 1.0.

6:2 Visi6le:Dust. Vlstble.Dust.Emissions( VDE) fram
constcuctlon, demolition,: excavatiornoc other Prior:ta issuance Project Verify that City Public
ea moving.activWes relaCed to the project shall be of Rougti Gradfng Sponsor requiremenEs Works
Iimited..to:20% opacity or lsss, as defined in Rule 8011,     ParmitS, during are Induded
Appendix A. The dust control measures spec fied in grading far each in grading y;
mitigatlon measures 6.3 through 6: 10 shall be applied phase confracts
as r uired to maintain the VDE standarcl.   

6.3. Pre-wateting. Pre-water all land clearing, grubbing,       Verify that
scraping, excavation, land levelfng, grading, cut and fiil,    During grading for Project requfrements City Public
and demolition activity sites and phase earthmoving.       each phase Sponsor are inciuded Works

in grading
contracts

Mossdale Landing East EIR 1 January 30, 2004
Ctty of Lathrap Mitigation Monitoring Program

r;

388



i a........,. c. a,,,.,...,..,,... L:?u: z,sa... c..,....>,.:...-,. u.-,_,. l ws  ..,>,...,._.,.._. u.;:.t.i... z._rti:, a,.L.,.w,... u....u..,.w...-..,...,..w.d;.. w: u:._.¢.r.s:-..,...w , w. e,...,...,..,....,..._....
v-..,.._. . .,..-..,..,.  ..._.__......

y1y, e9    
k,'%.

J,
i

MOSSDALE LANDING:EAST
MITIGATION iUiONITORING PROGI AM MINP

Verification w`h, n!
Timing 1 Implementation

Mitigation NAeasure Schedule Responsibility     ryonitoring Monitoring Date z;

Action Res onsibilit Com leted

Verify that6. 4. Disturbance-Area Dust Control. Apply water,  
chemical/organic stabilizerl suppressant; or vegetative During grading for Project requirements City Pubiic r;,

ground cover to all disturbed areas, including unpaved each phase Sponsor are included Works ii

in grading a E
roads.           

contracts

6.5. Restricted Vehicular Access.  Restrict vehicular Verify that

access to the disturbance area during periods of During grading for Project requirements City Public t

inactivity.  each phase Sponsor are included Works r

in grading i
confracfs w;

6:6: >Material Dust Control. Apply water or
Ve ify:that 7

chemical7organic stabilizers/ suppressants, construct During grading for Project requi ements City.Public

wind barriers and/or cover exposed potentially dust- each phase Sponsor are:;included 1No ks

in grading a-

generating materials.  
conf acts

6.7. Off-site.Transport. When materials are transported Vecify t̀hat

off-site, stabilize and cover all materials to be During grading for Project requirements City Public

transported and maintain six inches of freeboard space each phase Sponsor are inc(uded Works ti

from the.top of the container.  
in-:grading j
cantracts

6:8. Cac..ryout and Tr ckout. Remove carryout and
trackout of soil materials on a daily basis unless it During grading for Project Verify that City Public

extends more than 50 feet from site; carryout and each phase Sponsor requirements Works

trackout extending more than 50 feet from the site shall are inciuded

be removed immediately. The use of dry rotary brushes in grading

is expressly prohibited except where preceded.or
contracts

accompanied by sufficient wetting to limit the visible
dust emissions. Use of blower devices is expressly
forbidden. If the project would involve more than 150
construction vehicle trips per day onto the public street,
additional restrictions specified in Section 5.8 of Rule
8041 will a I .      

Mossdale Landing East EIR 2 January 30, 2004

City of Lathrop
Mitigation Monitoring Program

389



v.....a...._..........«
A..................«    ...._......,.... ww..+.. v.a.m..a'uvma.w.f.. wM1.v.+suvnm. ro w;iww.ax.. a. avsr w":.as.r.ae+va...'^ G•].. eao_...._ zv...^..:G'. a_ uv. t.w,; z'.: 3"d:: 3xs. u'4C^.Z`   ul§S^u.^.:SZ'i...,... 2̂`u'?Y%  T, 

pyiV
5

P!

a
1..,     F

v,

M1;

NiOSSD/ALE LANDIfdG EAST 4.
r;

MITIG 4TION IVI NITORlNG PROGRAMi MMP

Timing/ implementatfon
Verification

MiQigation Measure Sch dule Responsibility
Monitoring Monitoring Dafe

i

Action Res ' onslbili Com leted
6.9. Traffic Sp ed. Traffic speeds on unpaved roads shall Verifq that k

be limited to 15 mph.    During grading for Project requirements City Public y

each phase Sponsor are included Works.

in grading
contracts V

6.10. Dust Control Plan. The owners, developers and/or s

succesors- in- interest shall submit.a Dust Control Plan to Prior to issuance Project Verify that City Public tj
the.SJVAPCD,af IeaSt 30 days prior to the start.of of Rough Grading Sponsor Dust Control Works ai;?x

construction' activity; as required tiy' Rule 8021, for any Permit- each Plan t

acfivities.th"at inVolve more than 40:acres of disfurbed phase_g eater than submitted to
yF:..

surface_.area orwill including inaving:more than 2;500 40 acres SJVAPCD K„
cubic yards per day of bulR materials on at least three
da s.     i

4'.

V

r:

A tl'

1..

J, L

d k

rcS7
if

rF'
I;

qF +
i;

np+'
d' RiIl

7"
4

4; i
u}t`:

f .

a'`

se ;
t:

F'

Mossdale Landin East EIR 39 January 30, 2004
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program:   a

rr;
i

390



r....... w..._..._,.,___..._._....._. w...,,.... aF

s}       F

a

r;'s:

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST z
MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM MMP

Timing/ Implementatlon
Verification A;;

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibiitty
Monitoring Monitoring Date

Action Res nslbilit Com leted

Ozone Pr cursor Emissions:      ri
6. 11.   Air Quality Emission Reduction Strategies. The

proponents shall implement the following mitigation Prior to approvai of Pcoject Verify that City Public
measures: improvement plans Sponsor strafegies are Works- for

Instali central water heaters in all residential and for each phase,     inciuded in requirements

commercial buildings.       prior to issuance of Ozone prior to

Miti ation im rovementProhibit the use of wood stoves or fireplaces in all building permits, g p

residential dwellings. prior to occupancy, Pian( see pians y
Orient:buildings north/ south to take advantage of and during fvlifigation

solar:heat;gain.      ope ation,    Measure 6. 12 City-Building
Provide bus tumouts.:and transit improvements depending on the below)   Services°—for

where requested by SMART measure requirements

Provide sidewalks andl or pedestrian paths.
priorto bufiding 4

Provide direct pedestrian connections.       
permit, or prior

Rrovide street lighting. to occupancy

Provide pedestrian signalization and signage.
Provide bike laneslpaths connecting to bikeway

T

system.

Provide shade trees to shade sidewalks.
Provide pedestrian safety designs!       z1.
Infrastructure at crossings.       
Provide secure bicycie parking ry
Provide outdoor electric outtets and as hoak-u s

6. 12. Ozone Precursor Mitigation Plan. The applicants fr
shal! prepare and implement an ozone precursor Prior to first Final Project Approval of City
mitigation plan that incorporates feasible.elements of Map Sponsor first Final Community
the list included in the APCD' s Draft ElRcomment letter Map Development
of January 21, 2004. The plan shall be subject to the R::>;

review and approval of the Directo of Community ti;

Develo ment.

ar;y

Mossdale Landing East EIR 4 January 3Q 2004 q;;.
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

a?'',

L'1`'+h
s;

391



4   • S+im. y.-  .. i":.'- T•„ s-.. c.'
ry       .>.       .     y ,     c m ax k•, r Y 9x'+-'•      r. d3Y+5'P. iS fi e _''- 8%Y iflsstdt4. v.... J.°' d,333Hiada`?: u 4('eS+LSC i3̀£' k/

s'u u:.' vi,: i'hstafo,4k' 1'Sw€a.' w' w y è.Rw... k:,e. u vi u,,.,,..r,wn: a33+N,a:..a... ua"%•vx1.,w xsk.a<iitia' ntikYiS:»A.4a3. 5t.e.. ue.st: aa; i,..,44'.` udleitaaa,.°' sb', 4'X". t8.`"` `"")' w,.. i...- ,iub¢ì.°
y

l       

4;

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST

MITIGATION MQNITORING PROGRAM MMP

Timing/ Implementation
Veriflcation

Mitigation Measure Schedule ResponsibfFity p anito ing MonitoNng Date

Actton.       Res onsibiUt Com leted

T 0   ; B10Lb 31CAL` RESOURCE3'::
z

Sensitiue Species ln SJMSCP:     
Prior to the

7.1. SJMSCP Fee. The project proponent shall pay the
lssuance of any Project Verify City

appiicable SJMSCP fee.
rough grading Sponsor payment of Gommunity

rmit fees Develo ment

7.2. Incldental Take Avoidance. The Project proponents Verificatlon.of

shaN.:implement:other,"Incidental? ake Avoidance Prior to Pro ect perm3t_from City
Measures":as;s{ieciffed in<the<SJMSCP.      distufiance ofland Sponsor regulatory      Communi#y i

a ies Develo ent

yr t. rv`: 1 J fi 4t
R1 J' J i S l

t; i

wi.._. ,... .,....,.. 3.<., v... ,.£ e.. A < i. u. . ,. .:. .,     

Unknown Archedogica! Resour ces:

8. 1. Diacovery of Subsurtace Cultural Materials. If
subsurface cultural materials are encauntered, all Approval of

constructfon activt es ln that area shaq' be halted until a archaeo-    

qualified archaedogist can examine these materials and
During Project logical Cm'       

make:a determination of their significance. The City of
COnstruction, each

Sponsor consultant,      
Community j

Lathrop CommuNty Development Department shall be p 3e
upon nati-      

Development

notified, and impacts on significant cultural resources catfon.

shaN be mitigated pursuant to the requirements of the
CEQA Guidelines.

Mossdale Landing East EIR 5 January 30, 2004
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program.   

392



t . .
w     } 3w; i: i.:?.w,.c. ti.:$ n'. c,.1,'. aw:.w-:3e:. utiif.`.':° aL'k'aa.1,:. tizuifr l7Ja' t'a3dJ'' ai t; c} ds5Pk3s.3S£ fstLuW# iL si'Wa.'"!. S:; w'iz+3.%s6lYu v3irzL7'. r.L+s mm'ai cyema.a:' uuis ar.; 5

ii'iu. 4,, 34". Kx s6r"if: r:aU.;..+',"(( uu''. r.L.`. s..:+, lk..r;waw:e. nva ki:;lY4.tc.,,a: a:' iltaa cs..+tia'h.3::. ww:.iktx
y     .

a

r

1''

yr t UN

E.v”

i

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST Y_

MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM MMP

Timing/ Implementatton
Verification

Mttigation Measure Schedule ResponsiWlity
MoNtoring Monitoring Date

1;:

Action Res onslbili Com leted

8.2. Discovery of Human Rema(ns. If human remains are
encountered at any tlme during the development of the During ProJect Approval o#     City Public
project, all work in the vianity of the find shall halt, and constructon, each Sponsor archaeo- Works and

the County Coroner and the Community Development.     phase logical Corr munity
Department shall be notified immediately. If the remains consultant,      Development,   

are of Native American o igin, the Coroner must contact upon notifi-      County
the=Nattve American Heritage Commiss(on. At the cation.   Coroner, NAHC

same t3me, a qualified archaeologist must be contacted as appropriate

to°evalnate tlie:arciiaeological irnplications of the:finds.
Tlie CEQA.Guidelines detaA addftionaf steps to<fie.faken
if human remains are found°fo be of Native American
or ln.     

S
0`0   O OLOGY AND SOlLS,     '     

Y

t

ri ., s .,,:; .. . , sa;., ,.,. :.  ,..<.' n:. i.    a.     
t

n
3,   ... . .....       . ...   

r   .. ...       ' rn....  a.  

Seismk and Soi/s Hazarrls: Report

10. 1. C3eotechnical Reporta. The project proponent shall Prior to received.prfor City Public
submit copies of project geotechnical reports prepared disturbance af land Project to i§suance Works

by qualified geatechnical or sals engineers for review Sponsor of.Rough s.

and approval.     Grading
Permit

10.2. Soil Engineer's Recommendations. All proposed Prior to grading of Project Approval of     Building
development shall confam to the soil engineer's bui{ding pads Sponsor Gradi g Division

recommendations, as detailed in the approved soils Permit

re rt.

Sal Erosion:   See Measures See Measures Measures See Measures

10.3. Storm Water Quality.. Comply with mitigation 12.2 and 12.2 12. 2 and 12.2 12. 1, 12.2 12.2 and 12.2

measures ldentified foc storm water quality effects in below below tielow below

Cha ter 12.0, H rnl and Water Quaiit .

a

Mossdale Landing East EIR 6 January 30, 2004
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

393



drmr o....., ...   ..:,,,. s:.   ..-...     . ra'+:    dtwvh;:. fd'aG2c' 4da:i+Y81a#'msA',i3a'3ivffiYwỲ'+Sh.." E;s'.
FoEcn'ab'. efri:ai5.".u,tire,.3':'."Yt+'.c'.Sts:..'': Yiti' Stia's,.,e+1.' wR''e: uSLY.. ie,T. sv: u.f.Rtiw..b.et;'s: 1ww+Y a.. h;ti",4` vauti.: k..`.i: V'ui,tuii.i.vs;w..._...n., r.a. w.a: iK. c.Hixiw.: wS14. an,: nf:aY l#vr w7lsiSr   --' rrk:t GW3. xohWaSs.: au..>rci4 rd Ya?'.. 4° n'i'a 4- Kim'iE.`"N'.t'>dtJ ir'iPvus.F+Xti'tio"9 Yt&1. i1tii+ 3SiLl xSA    u2 Y

w,y-) r:',
i,'

r   
t%

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST
MITIGATION MONITORING:PROGRAM MMP

Verification q;

Timing/ tmplementatlon

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responaititlity
Monitortng Monitoring Date t•

Actlon Res sibiti Com leted

12`0 HYDRO ' OCtiY ANb,WdTER G l1/ 4LITY -  
n:,'?'.., . -.. ...:: . i n, a M,.:'.'.  ... r•.:;: u  ..,.. a:',  .. Y,. ..,:. i..1....:..,. :.. 1 t ti

i  .:,       1

s  :.,      .:':, ..,  n..  ..   ..  . ..,..       ........:..  . .'.  , . . ...-;  . j ,...     ......   r

ConstructJon Etfects on Surface Water Qual'rty:  Copy of
12.1. NPDES and.SWPPP. The project proponent shall Prior to grading Project SWPPP and City Pubiic n

prepare a Notice of intent and Storm Water Pollution Sponsor discharge Works and j
Prevention Plan( SWPPP) and submit these documents pemiit Bui{ding
to the Califomia' R"eg{onal Water Quality Control Board number fited Division

a d the;G   of L:ath   . with.Ci

12 2 NPDE3,-'SWPPP and:.SWMP Implementation. The Upon completbn On-slte Building
proponent:shall`imple"menf atl re}evant:provisions of the of grading, prior to Project inspection,      Division t
SWPP.P; the-Giiy Storm VVater<management Plan building permit Sponsor prior' to

SINMP) and Conshvction General Permit during project Building
construction.      Permit

1k 40„  NO SEGx       ; a z`
Yd:;   S, w. i -. r .     '   I    .

f.    0i M .,. a. 

6

5 .......   .  .,:. .. r   .. . . . .......     ....    .  ._ ...

Constructfon No se:  Verify that
14.1. Canstruction Period. Canstn ction activities shou{d During Project requirements City Bullding

be restricted to the daytime hours of 7:00 a.m, to 7:00 Construction Sponsor are included Services

p.m. In addition, all equipment shall be fitted with in

factory-equlpped mufflers, and in good working order:      constructlon

contracts

Traf ic NoJse at Proposed Reskientia/ Land Uses: PrEor to approval of

14.2. NoPse Barrier. The project proponent shall construct Final Map for the Project NDR for Community
a noise barrier with a total height of eight feet atong the subject portion of Sponsor noise barrier Deveiopment

rear property lines of residential lots adJacent to Golden the site.

Valle Parkwa .

Mossdale Landing East EIR 7 January 30, 2004 a,

City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

394



w..,      ,,:       .: n,.,.  a   ..,.,,.   n. :.,:    v .._  a 1,. r S a   .,:,. v>'.. _  .. v, wao.. 1   :, auw,.. r. e,.,. e

M«.,..: xao:,.....ri...  !.*:....:,.& M_..,,.. a,.. 2x.1o,-
n.. A` Su: k=Utx._, sw v,  v-,-, p:.+.... a., .« z :.  . a , ,.-. , „_ r.. r."k, ti. u... v;, t,w. Y:,:.Y:.. A..,.    .... A.,... n.S....'.'.. sw.«,.•:; ZF, ...,., w. yst.... a.q,us,x , 1 ,,.. s..,... su„ F.,+... w.„ a..,...,., >.  '.,..,.: a

0 "       

r   7 y„       

N,,,:

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST

IlIIITIC ATION IUfONITORtNG PROGl Ni @ANlP r

Timing/ Implementation
Verification

f litigation Measure Schedule Responsihility
Monitoring Mlonitoring Date

5 0 PIDBLEC SERi/ fCES9

Ac on es ons     om

LawEnforcemenf:    Verification of

15. 1. Police Start-Up Costs. The appiicant shall pay a one-   Prior to Final Map,    Project payment prior City Police
time start-up cost associated with police services each phase Sponsor to approval of Services

needed to serve the project. The one-time start-up cost Final Map(s)    Department

for police service shail be based on the proportionate

share of the costs for employing tvdo fuli-time police
r°'

officers and one police vehicie per each 428 residential

units.    

15 2 Constn ctlon:Security. The applicant shall.fence,    
provide night ligfiting and provide private security for Prior to Building Project Approval of City P lice
contractors' storage yards during the construction Permit Sponsor Security Plan Servtces

K.
phases of new developmenf to prevent theft and Department

vandalism, and to reduce calls for assistance from the
Pnlice.De artment.    

15:3. Publlc Safety Revieum. The proposed map,    City Public
circulation designs, residential numbering..and other Prior to Final Map,    Project Approval of Works,  

elements of the project shall be su6ject to the review of,   each phase Sponsor Final Map Buiiding
and developed in coordination with the LMFD, Police Services,

and Public Works Departments.   Police

Services;

LMFD

15.4..Preemption Devices. The applicant shail be Traffic.signal
f

responsibis for providing traffic control preemption Prior to approval of Project design City Public
devices on ali fraffic lights to be constructed in Final nllap Sponsor approval Works

con' unction with I LE develo ment. 

x,

t.

Mossdale Landing East EIR 8 January 30, 2004
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

3;

395



r:.w..e.;: ti«.r...,•-.......;.._t..u.,...,..;:u?;.s',:.ma:.. u..,.,,. u...,. u_:: S.e,,,. r,._.. u.d;,:'-,... vn,._..,:..,:..; wr..,:.......::....... r,..:,..-:s._.. u...... v....:;.,.„>, ...w.,.......`;,.,:..... N.,...,......,..,_...-,.,.:;:
n::...,....,..... c^...:&..,a,..., e:.,. w a. T.:._i: r:s:: vsr:: r-..w. r;c.:".. s:3rar,r...,-uas.r:_, a: r^^,.us..: s.', ax.mavm.sw..x ews..,m.

r ih
i..^    y` 

t

M SSDALE LANDING EAST

MITIGATION MONITORING;PROGRAM MINP
gl:;.

Timing! Implementation
Veriflcation 3

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibility Monitoring Monitoring:   Date

Action Res onsibili Com leted
f;

Anima! Confrol Services:  

15.5. Animal Confrol Start-Up Costs. The applicant shall Prior to Final Map Project Verification of City Animal t;

pay a one- time start-up cost associated with animal each phase Sponsor paymentprior Control

control services needed to serve the project. The one-    to approval of t;

time start-up costfor anlmal control service shail be Final Map(s)       
based: on_one-half of the City's costs for employing an
animal.control::officer. 

Ve ification of

Additionally; the applicant=shall paytheirproportionate Annual basis payment

share of ongomg:cost5.associatecl with`additional through EFD
fi`

sei;vices:until; revenues'generated from the project.can f
cover4the:_cost. b`_ x j

15 6 CFF Fees. The applicants.shall. pay Gapital Facilities Prior to Building Project Verification of City Public l,

Fees to defra ca ital facilities costs associated with an Permits, each S onsor a ent rior Works tF

Y P P P Ym P

animai control facility.    phase to approval of

Building
Permit h

ti:

15.7. Homeowner Notification..The applicant shall provide Prior to close of Project Home.:buyers City Animal s;
each nevir`homeowner with a pamphlet detailing the escrow on the sale Sponsor to signify Controi

responsiliilities of pet:awnersfiip, fFie Cify's leasfi law of each resiclential receipG:of the

and procedures for dealing with wildlife.       unit required F
documents, 

Project t
Sponsor to

compile t`'

receipts as

verification. 

a
r

M1

Mossdale Landing East EIR 9 January 30, 2004
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

396



w..,........ u. W..,,......:,:..,.».. r-._K.,.,,,.. u.... a,>.,„,,. 5,s ,.   ._._ v... r,.,., f     ..,... r....:,,. v„..,: a, u v.,,..,.-     :: 4-,-:. y..u,,,.,,„,

d f,4

r:

MOSSDALE LANDING:EAST

MITIGATION MONITO:RING PROGRAM MMP
4

Timing/ Implementation
Verification 5

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responstbitity     
yonitoring M nitoring Date

i
N

Action.      Res onsibili Com leted

Fire Protection:       Veriflcation of

15.8. Flre FaciUty Fees. The applfcant shall pay applicable Prior to Building payment prior

Fire Facility Fees at the timeof building permit issuance Permit or Final Project to approval of City Building F=

in accordance with the City of Lathrop's fee schedule in Map— each phase Sponsor Building Services K;

force at tfie time of development. If required in order to Permit or t
maintain fire district response time standards, and whe   Final Map
requested_by the.fire district, the C(ty may_require that
tl esefeesbe aid.atthe#imeof.filin of:flnal ma s,

75 9 Improvement Plan•Review:: Improvement plans for Prior to approval of:   Project Lathcop
each'.phase of developt'tient shall 6e subject to•:the improvement plans Sponsor Approval`of Manfeca Fire

reiiiew of?tiie Lathrop-Manfeca Fire Profection District,     — each phase Final' Map District or City
includFhg consiiieration of'tfie need fo:'rnaintain Pu61iG iNorks d

secanda; : access.to ro e ties re ui in _fire rotection.   
15.10: Public SafetyReview. The map, improvement plans See

and other project.pians and specifications.shall be See Mitigation See Mitigation Mitigation See Mitigation h
coordinated with the Lathrop Police, Fire and Public Measure 15.3 Measure 15:3 Measure 15.3 Measure 15:3

Works De actments.    q

15.11. Uriiform Fire Code. Planned water dlstribution Review and

facilities shall..be desi ned in order'.to meet:a licable,     Prior to a provai of Project approval of City Pubiic9 P.P P
adopfed: Uniform Fire Code requirements forthe Finai Map(s)  Sponsor impmvement Works

propased°land uses.     plans prior to

approval of

Final Ma s r

Parks and Recreation:       Offer of.     

15.12..Park' Dedication. The project proponent shall Prior to approvaf of Project dedication City Pubiic
dedicate park sites shown in the UDC for public/    first Final Map, Sponsor received prior Works x;

recreational use. Unit 2 to-approval of

Final,Ma
i

t

Mossdale Landing East EIR 10 January 30, 2004
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

397



a lx.    1 S  ' t.  ;      2     ,:-       .,:.  µ?`  ..;;   S^' T  '? ttYr c 1  ....       r,.. 5`..s F'=+;:  .. ,. ., Y.       - s:.:' z  .. @) t'"`)' .,.  . d      ."' 1..    .  ,. 1 .... i.   .  .<.   _ r,
a e..,      v:. r.v s. ryf    '.,.'       0 v.. w:    F   . 4 t - e:    hS':,.,eT.,r R    . i   .,:,.,

4"
v Y. v       ,       -   , 4+f'Y          '  P,

y           
6   .. s wc, F. rt. as.a3 ea,. sS».,szli... ul m. a.,.,........ t ,.:., w n.m....+ A5 vs.,.. c.,c.a<..o.„,„°.: wut+d a... p. avwt- a.,. v,A3i +.. o', eui-0.

5svta,.. a, m attox, a uu rn...«.. u s3'.s:.:,».;. a.. z:> r:s,b..«.... s,... ua rsr.t z,.. a.,. u,. a.r vu.,.m,aw...z„ S. n... y.6., u...-. u,.u. v.. a„ u. ti... z.. A...., k...:.:o..., uu.. e,,. ckn>.,, e  ,,. ,...,. w,.w,a.; eaN, aN. ituv..3z.a. 
ro tu  

M

j
N

ti,      L x,
t      

r

z
fi;

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST

MITIGATI(3N MONITORING: PROGRAM MMP

Verification
Timing 1 Implementation i

Mitigation Measure Schedule Respansibility
Monitoring Monitoring Date

Action Res onsibilit Com leted

15.13. park In-Lieu Fees and CFF Fees. After Park in- lieu fee-    Verifiication of

cons deration of arkland dedications, the a licant rior to a roval of Pro'ect a ent rior Ci PubiicP PP P PP 1 P Ym P tY
shalf pay any remaining required parkland in- lieu fees.     Final map, each Sponsor to approval of Works and

The applicant shail.pay required Cuftural and Leisure phase Finai Maps Building
Capital Facilities Fees in order to meet_parkland and Building Services s
requirements generated by the project.       CFF fees- prior to Permits r

approval of

Buildin Permit
k4

15:14 Wnear,Par:k lmprovements, Linear river park Parks site t

improvements shall conform to design standards Rrior to approval of Project Plan City
provided by the City:    first Final Map, Sponsor reviewed by Community

Unit 2 Park& Rec.     Development F
Comm. and        r

Planning
Comm,      

aPproval' by a.

Cit Coancil

Schoo/s:       Ver fcation

15.'15. School Fees. Consistent with Govemment Code Rrior to Building Project by copy of City Building
se+ctions 53080-53080. 15 and 65995-65995:3, the Permit Sponsor receipffor Services

project proponents shali pay adopted developer fees payment of

towatd>construction of new:schools prior to issuance of fees from nuE

construction permits_in accordance with the rate at the MUSD

time of buildin ermits.

1,6 0"  TRAIVSP ZTA ION`AND IRGUI. 4T10N` I'   
r c„ sr...%v  ,.,,,..,;,..,.     ,       :   . -..:  : x „:.. .....,

Year 20071ntersectlon LOS lmpacts:      Verification of

16.1. CFF Transportation Impact Fees. The City of Prior to Building Project CFF TIF City Pubiic
Lathrop shall ensure that the project applicant pays its Permit Sponsor payment prior Works

applicable Transportation Impact Fee for its fair share to approval of

contri6ution towar8s improvements at the River Islands Building j
Parkwa / 1- 5•Southbound Ram s.  Permit f.

i

4:

Mossdale Landing East EIR 11 January 30, 2004   -
City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

a

398



r      ,;... z 1x    i.ry  ',.-       7.:;, r,.: s... ti"` ts3S',." d: 2B.' 3.ca,.`:'::.: a,:':,- z.:«r=.u,..,... s.,,.: azs.:. s:. aan-wii m erz..ti.,.+ syq<»rs,..+-..awr...e" • x.,.

M6.,°,.... am,ae: K.ad,w§, w.... vsa o-s i... r....mit.. tw an:...,.` s,wavaz.M,, x.:..a..}.. 1,+`.4- ce.a..w,. 1 a.c: i,.,c,.w» w.... a.. h..,., 3,.,.` 4Y  ,.. a sir.. u:_.-,- as fi. n_-,6. xu.,.:, s i.v..N„ wL̀? s3.a.. d,T.,€A.w:a,.,.. tn.uv4.t.... h,.. o-.a... w. o: e., a..,,  . bi`'

r*      

i a ; s. x

e,

f

ia:

M4SSDALE LANDING EAST
MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM MMP

Timing/ Implementation
Verification

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibility     
onitoring Monitoring Date

Action Res onsibili Com leted f
16.2. CFF Transportation Impact Fees. The City of Verifcatlon of r

Lathrop shaA ensure that the project applicant pays its Prior to Building Project CFF TIF City Public
applicable Transportation.Impact Fee for ts fair share Permit Sponsor payment prior Works s
contribution toward improvements at the River Islands to approval of

Pa kway/ I- 5 Northbound Ramps.      Building
Perm it

v'k'

16.3. TMP. The projectapplicant shall participate in the Funded on annual

Mossdale Landing Traffic Monitoring Program.       basis and/or prior Project Verify:fair-       City Public
to each Fin.al' Map Sponsor share Works

or commercial payment of

buildin ermit TMP;fees.

Year:2007-Freeway LOS:   Verification of
V

16:4. CFF Transportation Impact Fees( Regional). The Prior to Building Project CFF TIF City Public

City of Lathrop sF ail ensure that,the project applicant Permit Sponsor payriment prior Works n
pays its applicable Transportation Impact Fee for its fair to:approval of

share contribution for I- 5 and I- 2D5 freeway .       BUilding
im rovements.   Permif.

Year2025:1ntersectlon LOS lmpacfs:      Se.e.Mitigation See Mitigation See_:Nlit. See.Mitigation

16:5:.CFF'Tra sportation impact Fees. ( See Mitigation Measure 16. 1 Measure 16. 1 Measure 16: 1 Measure 16: 7

Measure 16:1
16.6.:.CFF Transportation Impact Fees. ( See Niitigation See Mitigation See Mitigation See Mit. See Mitigation

Measure 16.2)    Measure 16.2 Measure 16.2 Measure 16.2 Measure 162  

16.7. CFF Transportation Impact Fees.  The City of Verification of

Lathrop shall ensure that the project applicant pays its Prior to Building Project CFF TIF City Pubiic
applicabie Transportation Impact Fee for its faic share Permit Sponsor payment prior Works

contribution towards improvements at River Islands to approval of

Parkway/Golden Valley Parkway.      Buiiding
Permit

Mossdale Landing East EIR 12 January 30, 2004

City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program
s

399



4 A t'.n  . .:.,::., S rv" L    .  :  3_•. TI: i Y.'. Ss` i'Nai1k' i'i?:, n.."e, a1. 155a3.. snk.wu..'w.'.:'+'t",. k" RI: wsEYavvp.mn t` X.. n,.. h4- SG' Y.Y+".:Awĉ..." TL."Y' k."StY+) '! rti
r.. n?w5u.... w.*. t̀ e'ru'2x'ws.c... w` 71's.. v v; a,..,. W: e.,. t—:,a,a, c.....,.. m'.:., z... 5mauis.sr v, e.. 0 sl.,. s.,+.,u:r..; r. sa, ti,.. s m ..¢. n,.: i c.....,..:.....e...,. n, a. S". 4M....e,' ...,.... w hwO.R:..`. u,.a..,. t,anuu... a'..bL' a..PEa,: b::G. a.. u...L'w.., a3     

2

7.  i    t..{ i;     

i F.%     
E .,

tA1k
R

fR

e6

MOSSDALE:LANDING:EAST
MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM MMP

Verificatian

Timing/ Implementation rr'

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibtiity Monitoring Monitoring Date

Action Res onsibilit Com leted

16.8 Golden Valley Parkway<improvements. The project Y'

applicant is fuliy responsitile for design and construction Rejected in favor of altemative project improvement equirements for Golden Valley
costs of improvements at River Islands Parkway/Goiden Parkway, per Tentative Map Conditions of Approval
Vailey Parkway as,follows:

Add third through lanes to the north and southbound

Galden..Valie P..arkwa a roaches.     E
16.9. Towne Centre D ive Improvements. The project Prior to issuance Review,and

applicant is:fulty responsiEile for design<and construction of building permits Project approval of City Public
cosfs of,improvements at°Galden:'Valley for Parcel F Sponsor improvement Works.   

Parkwaylf'oin ne Centre prive as':foliows:     plans

Add a second: ight;tum lane>to the:westbound l:

Towne:Centre' Drive a roach.   

Year 2025 Freeway LOS:   See Mitigation See Mitigation See Mit. See Mitigation

16.10. CFF Transportation Impact Fees( Regional).  The Measure 16.4 Measure 16.4 Measure 16.4 Measure 16.A

City of Lathrop shall ensure that the project applicant
2'

pays its Applicable Transportation Impact Fee for its fair
share contribution far I- 5 and SR 120 freeway rf

im rovements.

Ex sting:P/us;Pro ect/ ntersection LOS:    Prior tn issuance Approval of

1611.: Rlver Islands Parkway,lmprovements. The project of rst non-    Project improvement City Public
applicant isfully responsible#or design and construction residential building Sponsor plans and/or Works

costs of improvements at River Islands Parkway/ 1- 5 permit, Parcel G bonding of k:

Southbound Ramps as follows: improvement x

Add a second lane to the eastbound River Islands
Parkwa a roach. t

t

Mossdale Landing East EIR 13 January 30, 2004

City of Lathrop Mitlgation Monitoring Program
K

400



e s       1  . u. i-.-.,,,_.,..,.Y..:,: r..aw. s.ea,Y..:,:.m.",'+ e.. L'3. w i3, s.6.%,'„ 4..,... w.ss.,:: r.s.W,. t3+. S a mr i. a,., r u« c. mxmwx*; ew,m,  ,. n.. w...: n.. m.,.,.,,... a,.. oa.,,w._..... e..... W.....— ..........      

u: u.....'.'` i,,, va:a'sa,,,,»<m3 ' Fu. a.., m§ a: w u      a. d. r..  

r`

n W r$',',       
4.

k.    
l`. 

5-::      

t, lti vi;
v..,,.     

p;

MOSSDALE;LANDING EAST
MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM MMP

t,:

Verification

Timing l implementation

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibility Monitoring Monttoring.   Date .

Action Res onsibili Com leted

16.72. Louise Avenue Interchange Improvements. The Verify

project appiicant is fully responsible for de5ign and When required per Project payment of City Public

construction costs of improvements at River Islands City TMP Sponsor CFF TIF Warks

Parkway-Louise Avenus/ l- 5 Northbound Ramps as fees; or

follows:   
construct as

a

Add a third northbound off-ramp lane and stripe as

CFF

red with

two exciusive right tum lanes and a combined o-'

through/ieft tum lane.      
reimburseme

nts

1613 Signalize River Islands:Parkway:/Golden Valley Guaranteed City Pu61ic j

Pa kway: The pro ect applicant is fuliy responsiErle: for Prior to Approval Project prior to Works

des gn and construction costs:of improvements at River of first Final Map Sponsor approval of

Islands Parkway/Golden Valley Parkway as follows:       first:Final

Signalize the intersection aP+
insfalled at

time°:of

warrant

Existing Plus Project Signal Warrant:  
16:14. Signalize River Islands Parkway/ Go[den Valley See 16. 13 above See 16. 13 See 16. 13 See 16. 13

Parkway. The project applicant is fully responsible for above above above

design and construction costs•of improvements at River s
Islands Parkway/Golden Valley Parkway as follows:      

Si nalize the intersection

Construction Tra c: Verify that
16.15. Construction Delivery Traffic. No construction Throughout Project requirements City Building

delivery truck tra c shall be allowed on the locai construction period Sponsor are included Services

roadway network before 8:00 AM or after 4:30 PM. 
construction

contracts

a

Massdale Landing East EIR 14 January 3U, 2004

City of Lathrop
Mitigation Monitoring Program

401



a, a...,,_...,...,..,,. m......,....,...._..:._....._._._..,_._......_.._.............,......,...,___....,_..._._.,........
W........ W.,_.....       

g

s.

y

MOSSDALE,LANDING:EAST

MITIGATION MONITORING PROG̀RAM MIViP

Timing/ Implementation
Verification

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibility Monitoring Monitoring Date

Acfion Res onsibili Com leted

16.16. Construction Worker Traffic. No construction Verify;:that
worker tra c shali be allowed on the local roadway Throughout Project requirements City Building
network.between 6:30 and 8:30 AM and between 4:30 construction period Sponsor are included Services

and 6:00 PM. in

construction

contracts

16.17. Pavement Repairs All degradation of avement Prepare

conditian;:atong Louise Avenue:and Manttiey Road due Throughout Project stafus;:;reports City Public
to Mossdale Land{ngsEast='construction traffic will,be Construction Sponsor on 6 montti 1Norks

futly epa red to the;satisfaction ofthe Cify of Lafhrop.      in4ervals G

City staff ancl project applican[ shall ointly monitor;the duHng
condition of>each oadwa : eVe six°months.       consfruction

fntemal Clrculatfon:_  
16 78 Street.WitJths. AN proposed residential streets shall Prior to appraval of Project Review and City Public a+

be 36 feet wide curb=ta-curb on the approaches to and Final Map- each Sponsor approval of Works

through each major curve( as listed in the impact phase improvement

section), or that on•street pa king be prohibited on the plans

f

inside:of;a11: 90-de cee or.5ha er curves.
1619 McKeei:Baulevard:. McKee:Boulevard shall.be Prior.-fo approvab.of

widened to;provide:left;:tum lanes.on the_approaches to Fina1: Map' for each Project Review and City Pubiic
Jahnson`Ferry.Road;:Street D;.Street C; and any Phase:in.which Sponsor approval of Works

driveways serving.the viHage commercial or apartment referenced streets improvement

complex parking lots.    and intersections plans
3

occur

16.20,.Street" R" Width. Wide Street R( in Unit 2) to at
least 36 feet curb-to-curb for at least 100 feet west of Prior to approval Project Review and City Public
Golden Valley Parkway and prohibit parking on the Finai Map for Unit Sponsor approval:of Works

north side of fhe street at least 50 feet from Goiden 2 improvement
r;

Vaile.  Farkwa ,   lans

16.21, Driveway Pr.ohibitions—Golden Nalley Parkway.     Pripr to issuance Review and

Prohibit outLiound movements at any driveway of building permits Project approvaf.of City Public
connection to Golden Vailey Parkway north of.the main for Parcel G Sponsor improvement Works j

entrance to the`<Hi hwa Commercial area.    lans

Mossdale Landing East EIR 15 January 30,.2004 i
City of.Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

402



w_....,.......... w,_.„ a,,_..., a,.. aa,,:.,..,.:... . a....: r:.,  :.,o. s.._....._..,       

k

r

MtJSSDALE LANDING EAST

MITIGATION MONITCIRING' PROGRAM MMP w

Timing!  implementation
Verif catlon

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibiltty     
pnitoring Monttoring Date

J;

Action Res onsibill Com leted
16.22. Driveway Prohibitions—Street" N". Limit Prior to issuance Review:and

ptoposed driveway connections to Street Id to a single of building permits Project approvai.of City Public
driveway connection about midway.between Golden for Parcel G Sponsor improvement Works v

Valle Parkwa anii Manthe Rod.      lans
16.23. ' Diagonal Parking Restrictions. Prohibit diagonal Prior to issuance Review and

parKing aiong Street N in close proximtty to the Golden of building permits Project approval of City Public
Valley,Parkway orMenthey Road intersections.     for Parcels G or F Sponsor lmprovement Works o

lans
16 24 Manthey.Road' Turn Lanes. Provitle right and left Prioc ta issuance Review and

turrt;decele at on;lanes:on:the approaches to both of bui{ding.permits Project approval of City:Public
Manthe Road° ro ect:drivewa s--and°a: ri ht tum for Rarcel F S onsor im rovement WorksY;:      P Y 9.       P P
deceleration lane;on the southbound Manthey Road plans d,.
a'" Coach.ta Towne Centre Drive.     

16.25. Diagonal Parking Restrictions. Prohibit diagonal q

parking_along Street N in close proximity to the Golden See 16.23 above See 16.23 See 16. 23 See 16. 23
Valley Parkway or Manthey Road intersections.       above above above

t

16.26. Service Commercial Access. Access to the
Senrice Commercial area along Street N should:be Prior to issuance Project Review and City Public
lacafetl.about, fialfinray befinreen Golden Valley Parkway of building permits Sponsor approvaf of Works w"
and.Martifliey:Roadf(opposite the.proposed. new access for Parcel F improvement
to the higtiway commercial center}. Potentially provide plans

an all;wa - sto control.at this intersection.  
16.27. Diagonal Parking Restrictions. Prohibi# diagonal Prlor to issuance Review and 3_

parking along Towne Centre D ive in cfose proximity to of building permits Project approvai of City Public
Golden Valiey Parkway( at least 150 to 200 feet from for Parcel E Sponsor improvement Worfcs y;
Golden Valle Parkwa  .   •      lans t:

Mossdale Landin East EIR 169 January 30, 2004 s

City of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program x„

r;::

ti;

403



r            ,   

d    .    .,j      ..     e . u  ,       n a      ..,  nd   ...    a 5... .>..  ......  .   , ..  Y. n..      ... i i£ ., Y.. . x   .._  .   :.,., n r,.,.     ....       ... s... v r..,..    .. 5..,. ,..       .  . s....    as, râ^.s u.an
m: as e..,. 4x...r,s.3ud„ ww„ t, a w'...udd',...,:, a,.',.`, r. te»..,: c..',. ti.,...r.......« K l.`.,..,r: d,,..r c:,..., L....,"...,.. z.+' a,..,.'.."..:- z,n,,:..* do- e. z.,..,.*' rc:t;:,` U` N. a:.q.: f,.tv.,,:,. Y. w.. e.., ver.-,*....., c,. a. wv.: 3a.as-srn T. a.. c... A... s.... v z,, ani.. t, lat.• a s.w   .    ., wmnmuca„ „.

ur

f'    

s      r''li%'

t

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST

MITIGATION MONITORING`PROGRAM MNlP

Verification
Timing! Implementation

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responslbility Monitoring Monitoring Date

Action Res onsibili Cam leted

16.28. McKee' Boulevard Driveway Restrictions.     
Provide at least 100 feef ofseparation between the Prior to issuance Project Review and City Public a
intersection of McKee/Street C and any driveway of buiiding permits Sponsor approval of Works

connections along McKee Boulevard to the Village for Parcel E improvement

Commercial parcels. Any village commercial and plans

apa tment complex driveways should also not be moved

any closer than 15U#'eet:from the Towne Centre.Drive
traffic circle:;approach;( i:e. no closer.than curiently
shown ort...ftie,UDC:' lan .      

16 29 Manthey Road':Turn Lanes. Provide:cigfit and left Prior to issuance Review and
tu r̀n t eceter àtion lanes on' the`Manthey:.Road of building permits ProJect approval of Gity Public f

appr'oaches`>to the commer"cial;access driveway in Unit for Parcel J, Unit 2 Sponsor imp ovement Works k'

2, an..d limit access to a si le:drivewa . lans

Pedestrian Crrculation:     
16.30. MId-Block Crossing Restrictions. Relocate the Prior to approval of Project Revisw and Cify Public

walkways connecting the northerly single-family Final Map for each Sponsor approval of Works,
subdivision#o Golden Valley.Parkway to the locations of Phase in which improvement Communiry t
the proposed signalized shopping:centeraccess referenced pians Development
intersections along the.parkway—or— maintain waikways accur and Chief of

M='

walkways in their currently;proposed focations and     •       Police

develop.a..deslgn for the Golden Valley Parkway median
that wiil p ohibit or severely discourage mid- block

desfrian/ bike crossin s.      
Transit Service:       Copy of
16.31. Transit Routes and Stops.  The project applicant Prior to approval of Project corresponden City Public

should workwith local transit agency to incorporate each Fina) Map Sponsor ce with transit Works

potential future transit route and transit stop designs into authority
their plans for McKee Boulevard, Golden Valley submitted

Parkway, Manthay Road, Street N and Towne Centre with 2"
Drive.      submittal of

improvement

lans

Mossdale Landing East EIR 17 January 30, 20.04
1

City of Lathrop Mitigation Manitoring Program

404



M: s s ;{ wm+   u,   P ^ Nww 76   a' v̂ g
a

w   -,,,;„.. y .,,.. ..:,...,,,.,.    ... r

t aeu s,._ s>....... u:a.+.,wa;'k,:,..:.: wr,K, i.v'.. ., r..,,.:,. u.,,,.,,..:.. r_. a.,, w,.,:....,.,. w..::.':... W, i.,,tr.s, kX.r,W: s... utc".. aw.s,..; a:' 3"ux.;,;.`::^ a..,...`? Y e,...; v«.;.;.,:u,.: k,..: a r: s`uw....+€:,. ss:,, ai.F, v. aazt-.:..^ a.,.. „,.,.  x

4

r f;} I

kJ;      

f
k''      

i

hi'':'

ei:(i

MOSSDALE LANDING EAST ak;

MITIGATION°MONITORING PRO:GRi4M MMP

Timing/ Implementatlan
Verification

Mitigation Measure Schedule Responsibility     
onitoring Monitoring Date

Actian Res onsibili Com leted

16.32. Transit.Routes.and Stops, Comrnercial Areas.       
All project commercial area developers should work with Prior to approval of Project See 16. 31 City Public
the local transit agency ta incorporate transit route and each cammercial Sponsor above Works

s

transit.sto desi ns into their futures lans.   buildin ermit

Bfcycle CJrculation:   

16:33: Stceet Widths Widen all streets within the northerly Prior to approval of Project Review and City Public
subdivision to 36=foot widths on the approaches and Final Map- each Sponsor approval of Works

through:each:curve:(see locations in the intemal phase improvement

ci"rculation;'sec#ion). r,°prohibit:parking on fhe inside of plans

eacli 90-d "" ree or.;sfia  : r,cutve:.     

1'6 34 Petlestrian/Bike Safety Qesign the::one-parcel-       See 96.30 above See 16.30 See 16.30 See 16. 30 k

Iong;;pathway connecting::Streef A m: ft`e:northerly above above above

subdivision'to Louise Avenue to require°bike riders to a
dtsmount or,; roceed slowl near.Louise Avenue.   

16.35. Mid-Block Crossing Restrictions: (See Mitigation See 16.30 above.     See 16. 30 See 16.30 See 16. 30

Measure 16. 30 above).   above.     above.   above.   

a;

16.36. McKee-Boulevard Turn Lanes.  Provide left tum Prior to approval of
la es on the°McKee:Boulevard approach to all Final Map for each Project Review and City Public M

intersections as well as the village Phase in which Sponsor approvai of Works

commercial/apartment complex driveways.   referenced improvement

intersections occur lans

l' O h/' LE 1" IE 7}      
r,.     

y

t
F

s i: ,     ,;.:.      r,  .  . ...:       ..: i . .,,   ....:  .,,. -:;:.. . ., ,  ..'.      . .:.. 

Mun/cipal Water Supplies:  Verify funding
17.1. Water.Allocations. Proportionate share Prior to residential Project of.well' fieid City Pubiic

groundwater and surface water allocations shall be Final' Niaps;or Sponsor expansion Works

acquired for the proposed project site before the project commerciaf agreements

connects to the municipal water system.      building permits—  for water kd,
eacFi_pliase service a

connections

J(').

i¢

Mossdale Landing East EIR 18 January 30, 2004.   
Cfty of Lathrop Mitigation Monitoring Program

405



6tu' y1;.1' Jaatk. lt"t.'' iSs' ra tlu'wUe'ai'i3 mY. nY# 3`+; ia Aa" wec.wxn. 7Y3' i'ii4̀7LV;vi y`'` atitti.a%3CY a.`'
ditia. CstaYfiA s+ 4:mlc'.r« '       _

avnowa..eiy.>..a. n..a m,•••••.•.^•^•,.,•..•...._...•.,••—•....

F

t

r ++

MOSSD LE LAIVDfNG EAST

MI`TICATIOIV MONlTOR1NG PROGRAM MIVIP

Verification
Tlming/ Implementatlon

Mitigation Maasure Schedule Responafbility     
ont4oring Monitoring Date

4ction Res nsib3N Com eted

Wasfewafer Trieatment Capacity:  Verify.funding
17.2. Waste nra4er Treatment Capacl4y. The owners, Prior to residential Project of additional

developers, and successors- in- interest shall not exceed Final Maps or Sponsor WRP- 1 City Public
thelr.al{otted wastewater treatment capadty, nam ly commercial agreements Works

125,OQ0 gpd. However, if project demands exceed the building peRnits—  for waste

aHotment, additional capacity must be acquired before each phase water a

additional constructlon can occur.     treatment

ca acI

17 3. WPR 1' Funrling<Agraemen2. The owners,       Verify.funding
developers, and;successa§an=interest shaH reimburse Prior to cesidential Project of.WRP=1.

sewer consortfum properties for their share of WRP- 1 Final Maps or Sponsor agreements City Public
exp nsion improvements.      commerciai for lieeded Works  

buitding permits—  wastewater

each phase treatment tSlJi.

i

INastewater Collection Systems:   Improvement plans. Approval of

97.4. dVast water Collection System. If wastewater submitted and Project irnprovement City Public
infrastructure r uired to connact the ect site to a roved rior to S sor plans,"Sewer Works

eq Pf I PP P P      
WRP- 1 is unavaiiable to either Unit 1 or Unft 2, the Final Map.   servk:e

praject proponents shaU construck the necessary Connections account

wrastewater collection system improvements prior to required prior to estabiished

occu ation of the first`house.   occu an

17.5. F'unding of Infrastructure improvements. The Reimbursement Verif'cation of

owmers;.developers and successors- in- jnterest shall pay fees— prior to ProJect fee.payment City Pubilc
their praporttonate share of wastewater Inftastrucfure Final Map—each Sponsor prior:to Works

improvements, in accordance with established fee pF ase approval of

programs. FinaF inap/ 
CFF fees— prior to Building 3

Bui{din Fermit Perrriit t

dz;
un

Mossdale Landfng East EIR 19 January 30, 2004

City of Lathrop MitigaYwn Monitoring Program

4

406



a. E..,,.,.,.. ... u':....... s.:. r.,..,.. 3r,<euY. sS, w__.,....<.. wa, v, .. a„., ..     '"..' xw,   S:,a.... 3_. r,.x_..L;:-zr..< a     ...,. N.,.. i h.,, m.w..+ : G., dSa,., r,..< ua.. W. w;;. e.. w.. t.,,: xu.. r..- a.n; m-..sn.,..,. ar.f.tiu, a+..e. c,rzas* acw. ra,w.nr.,., w..,. w....,. .,,......... m,....,....................— o,. w..a...,..__ .. __ ....      

e:
e.... w   __.,..      

k. w3z   
na;..     

r
ri;

MOSSDALE L/ ND9fVG EAST

EwITIGATIaN IVIONITORiNG PR( f iilll IUOMP

Verlfication

Timing! Implementation

IV9itigation Measure Schedule Responsibitity     
onitoring Monitoring Date

Action Res on ibilit Com leted

Recycled Wafer Systems: 

17.6. VVater Recycling Facili4ies. Proposed water recycling Prior to Final Map—   Project Approval of City Public
facilities shall be subject to the review and approvai, each phase Sponsor improvement Works

including all conditions and requirements imposed on plans

said-facilities through review by City of Lathrop,    
Regional Water Quality Cont ol Board and other
a encies. 

x;

k
j

i

SJ,

d

Mossdale Landing East EIR 20 January 30,.2004 E

City of Lathrop
Mitigation Monitoring Program

407



Conditions of Approval of Vesting Tentative Map Tract 3073, Unit 1
McKee Properties), adopted by the City of Lathrop on March 2, 2004 by

Resolution 04- 1626)

13 of 13  P a e

408



f    `      

w..____.._      .: 5... W.       x.,._..      __. .    ,...},_._..__,.., rs.. u: h,
m.... a...._..__._. s.., v_.",..._. a  .,,..,.w_

J    .;'   ,.   ..      ;..     ..      .

t, '...  t o-i=u;.  ^-,     §-- a.-...  
t

y      
e•   s.._. r,      a.,,: t. st'v     i w   - e : r- ,, s.--„

i

RESOlt fiiO T',1' O
r_,,,Q,4 152t6 4

A RESOLI]TION OP TH  . COLtI CII} a

APPROVIl tG THE VE5'I'IlrTG TEI' TATIVE MAP FOR TR t?T'` U7''
r ,.

WHEREAS, Chagter 1fi. 12 of the Lathrop Municipal Cale provides for the
roviow and recommendations of the City' s Planning Commission on all vesting t nntacive
subdivision maps; and

WHBREAS notic s dcscribin the ro sed Vestin Tentative Ma for TractS P . P    8 P
3073 of the Mossdale Landing Eest Project(" VTIVP were sent to neighUoring property
owners pursuant to Section 16.12.050(B) of the Lathrop Mnnicipal Code; and

WFTEREAS, prior to recommending adoption of the proposed VTM, the Planning
Commission adopted Resolution No. 04- 02, recomme ding that the City Council adapt a
resolution Certifying the BIR, Making Findings Conceming Midgation Measuies,
Adopring a Mitigation Monitoring and Roporting Program, Making Findings Conceming
Altematives and Adogting a Statement of verridiag Considerations in Accordance with
the Califamia Environmental Quality Act for the Mossdale Landing East Project

CEQA Resolution"); and

WHEREAS, the Mossdale Landing East Project includes aIl of the Mossdale
Landing East Pmject entitlemcnts, incYuciing the CEQA Resolution, Planning
Commission Resolution No. 04-03-(" LTrban I3esign Concept Resolution"), Planning
Commission Resolution No. 04-d6(" Deyelopment Agreement Resolution"), City
Council Ordinance No. 04- ol .(" Development Agreement Ordinance', Planning
Commission Resolution No. 04-04(" Williamson Act Cancellation Recommendation
Resolution"), City Cauncil Resolution 04-. S("Williamson Act Tentative
CanceIIation Resolution"), and this Ves6n Tentadve Map Resolution far Tract 3073
collectively the" Mossdale Landing East Project" or" Project"); and

PVHEREA3, before recommending .  roval of the VTM, ihe Ci Council
3

8PP tY
reyiewed and consi@ered the information contained in the Final Environrnental Impact
Report for the Mossdale Landing East Project( SCH# 20020 2083)(" FSEIR"), and find.s

that mitigation measunes identified in the FSEIK haYe been imposed on and incorpoiated
into the Mossdale Landing East Project which mitigate or avoid the significant
environmental effects, that certain mitigation measures are within the responsibility and
jurisdiction of another public agency and such Changes can and should be adopted by
such other agency, that specific economic, social and oEher considerations make
infeasible the project alternatives that wauld avoid or mitigate the envimnmental impa ts
and that social, economic, and other benefits outweigh the environmental impacts that
cannot be fully mitigated; and

V iEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the VTM for the Mossdale
Landing East Praject Property, conducted a public hearing, and passed Planhing

Giry Councit Resolu6on( T4- 1626

Recommending Approval ofVTM Tract 3473
Paga 1 of 4

409



r     +    t    .::    <  ;       ,,   ,   .,       z...

f :

P
S

t.     3,.

r-'  I t` t 1'     T°
e,..Y.._ a.... Z'_  .... e       _.._...._. w. s... a» J... y.,. f.u.__..._.uu..    ...._..... a.+v.w.v. .,......u_..4. rY......'_ t..    ..... u..>_..     .._ s,.... x .. wa.-......«o..._....... s_,.,.._... o-_,.. W... u...n..i'u

r

F   s '  ' 3"
e.•--*

R`' a:='.'~:,..  .
e. X

a.-
u;,  ..,;;      . H:A:! x.    

A

3:., 
m a''

sy..-,.
j Commission Resolu6an No. 04-05, finding the VTM for the Mossdale Landing East
j Project is cansistent with the Mossdale Landing East UDC and recommending that the

City Council approve the VTM for' I'ract 3073.

I NOW, THLREFORE, BE IT RESQLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
i APPROVES THE V7.ZV1 FOR TRACT' 3073, AS FOLLOWS:
f

Sec6on 1. This Resolutian incorporates, and by this reference makos a part
hennaf, that certain VTM, substanda]ly in the form an file with the City Clerk, relative to
the proposed development of the Mossdale Landing East Project on certain real gmperty
consisting of appmximately 151 acres located in the City of Lathmp, as more particularly
descrilxd in the attached EI IT A(" Praperty").

Sectian 2. Vestin Tentative Map Fndinge. Pursuant w Sections 6b473.5 and
6b474 of the Subrlivision Map'Act and Sections 16. 12.010 through I6.12.080 of the City
of Lathrop Municipal Code, the Planning Commission finds and det rmines as follows:

a. The VTIV is consistent with the objectives,'policies, general land uses
and programs specified in the City' s General Pian(" Creneral Plan"), because the VTM for
Tract 3073 provides forthe subdivisian of thc Property to allow development.in
accardance with the Genera] Plan land use designations and the policies inclusiing: Low
Density Residential( 1- 7 du/net a+c maximum), Medium Density reside rtial( 8- 15 du/ net
ac maximum), High Density Residential( 16- 25 dulnet acmaximum), Village
Commercial, Highway Commercial, Neighborhood Commercial, Public Use, Semi-
Public Use, Institutional Use, and Resource, Conservation and Open Space land use
designations.

b. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision on the

Property is consistent with the General Plan and 1995 West I. throp Specific Plan,
Specific Plan") and the Infraswcture Master Plan for Mossdale Landing because

adequate infiraswcture and services will be extended to the Property and wilI be available
to serve the demand for services gcnerated by the subdivision, including water, sanitary
sewer, storm drain facilities and roadways.

c. The VTM for the Property is consistent with the objectives, policies,
general land uses and programs spe ified in the Specific Plan because it is compatible
with the uses suthorized and the regulations prescribed for the land use districts in which
the Property is located. Specifically, the land uses will be developed in accordance with
the Specific Plan land use designations and densities that apply to the Property:
Residential Low( 3- 9 du/A); Residential High( 15- 40 du/A); Neighborhoud Park; Service
Commercial; I' ighway Comaie ial, and Village Cominerciai. Additionally, the
conditions of appmval far the VTM for the Property require th provision of agen space
wifhin the Property and the provision of spray fields for wastcwatcr dischargaand
disposal as required by the City' s Master Plans.

City Council Resolution 04- 1626
Recommending Approval of VTM Tiact 3073
Page Z•of4

tir
r.._ 5

410



4'      Z    `    

2 P

3
S';

T..,...._..,.........._._.. m.y..     ._., r....._.>_.......o..       ,. J._.._._.....:.

R_....-..,....,._,.__.      _...?.
i,...+J...       _... c..¢. WwPes.i3::+.•....v.^ e_v.......,.. s.3'.a...,_.._....

v....

h'_'.. a.`',...,..""`,-_`..     , :.   

t z. _- r       .-

pr'  
l`..^'".9i,  d .,.  -  _   -      .. F'?':&      r' u L'"`

am.  ,.   , is5'#"

d. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development
as discussed in Findings a. ancl c. above.

e. The site is physically suitable for the types of and de sities of
development proposed for the Froperty because the pmposed development is planned to
resgect and enhance the site' s nataral fotm and euvironmental athibutes and the proposed

Project is designed to avoid azeas of potential geologic instability, sensidve vcgetation
and wildlife resources, and significant cultural resauTces. The potential far regional
subsidence or uplift is considered v ry low because of th absence of acdve faiilts
underlying the central portion of the San oaquin Valley, whcre the Propeity is lecated,
and the lack of sufficient ground modon to induce regional subsicknce. No acEive faults
are mapped across the project site by the Califarnia Geolggical Survey or tUe United
States Geological Survey. Based an thc results of the geotechnical swdy of the Property,
roads, residential, recreational, service co*n*+ sMial, village commercial, highway and
ather pulilic facilities shaII be designed to avoid or significanfly minunize exposune to
identified soils consttaints. Recommendations presented in the geotechnieal study have
been incIuded in the design of the facilities.. With respect to sensitiva vegetahon and
wildlife resources and significant cultural resources, the Project applicants and

develapers shall pay mitigation fees to acquire apen space and habitat conservation areas
to avoid or uritigate impacts to such resources.

The design of the subdivision or the proposed impmvements is not

likeIy to cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and unavoidably injure
fish or wildlife or their habitat because all potent al impacts related to terrestrial biologY
and fish ies have mitigated to a less-.than-significant lavel as set forth more specifically
in Chapter 7 of the Draft E1R. S ific measures incorpt rated into the`IViossdale Landing
East Project development of the Pro eity include paiticipation in the San 7oaqiiin County
Multi-Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan

g. The design of th subdivision or type of improvcments is not likely to
cause serious public health pioblems because the Mossdale Landin East Project will not
involve the use, storage, or disposal of hazardous materials nar engage in hazardous
activities. The design of the subdivision ensures the deyelopment of adequate waur,
wastewater, recycled water fire, police and salid waste services within the Mossdale
Landing East Project. Payment of fees to consiruct, equip, and manage fire stadons will
assure capability to deal effectively with emergency service demantls resulting from
natural or man-made disasters or other causes. Prior to rcparation of the Specific Plan,
hydrologic and engineering analyses were done to assess the prevailing subsurface
conditions of the Praperty. Based on these analyses, engineering concepts for thc storm
drainage system and the system of roads and utilities have been incorporated into the
Specifc Plan.

h. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not
conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of,
property within the praposed subdivision.

c ty c a oi w« oa- i bz6

Recommencling Approval ofVTM Tract 3073
Page 3 of 4

a

411



s.,..._.._.»..,      .x..,.._.,..,:...`..&..»;..u........
e..z...._.... z+r-:.%::..._..,,._..-....._..,.„. s,5...,.......... v_,........r.........._.-,._ F....,,.--. 3.=c,.....,... W.,....__.,._.... cv.f_.........:.,r,.... m...._ c...

d, r-:;  "''-,...  "' 5..',:,,
a n„ o.:_-    a  -; '.. +., ...,   

y     '.

e

i. The Property is subject to a contract entered into pursuant to the
Califomia Land Conservation Act of 1965.

j. The VTM for the Property is in conformity with the provisions of the
law and of Title 16 of the Lathrop Municipal Code.

k. The VTM is condidoned on the availability of a sufficient water supply
based on a written verification in accordance with Government Code§ 66473.7.

1. The discharga of recycled water fram the progosed subdivision Qf the

Property will not result in violation of existing requirements prescribed by the Regional
wa Q, cy conm r soaza.

m.  The VTM is consistent with the Mossdale Landing East Urban Design
Concept(" LTDC" because it is compatible with the UDC' s dcsign standards, setbsck

requirements, lot standards and ciroulation design.

5ection 3. The VTM for Unit 1 is subject to the condi6ons set
forth in EXHI IT B, attsched hereto and incorporated by this reference. The VTM for
Unit 2 is subject to the conditions set forth in EI I'I'.C, attached hereto and

incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 4. Based on the findings s x forth in this Resolution, the CEQA

Resolution and the evidence in the Staff Report, the City Council approvcs the VTM,
substantially in the form on file with the City Clerk, subject fo the attached Conditions of
Approval.

r    ..-

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 2nd tìay of Nlarch 2004, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

j   AYPS: Beltran, Oliver, Griffith, Dresser, Rhades

NOES:    .    None

ABSENT:     None

1 ABSTAIN:    None

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

s

usan Burns Cochran, City Attorney Nancy R , igian, City lork

City Counc7 Resolutidn 04- 1626

Recoinmending Approval of VTM Tract 3073
Page 4 of4

r--     .

a. .   ..

412



F. 

S

a........... w._._._,.__...d_. a.. u,e«._...:....,..... 1_...,........ t.,«. 4..,_..,. v.......v,.._.,..._ w._..,...,_, a........ e.. .. a.___ us_..v........e......_ a....,.. 5......_........... n....... e..... 5.. ... s......._. w..........,t

i... 2     ,.::-      ., s„       ..       ,

r,    F: a+    t.. '..   s`   : i-§..'«.,. m:+e tkP3;`>_`.:'="`" a',,,_..,'"`S',,,"' s'"-.... x̀=.;,
s„

a...:
r.."`' s"'      43_ s'>:' c:-".,...... a-.:t'",..._.::f<, -       =:.,-.`...,..'..-..:'t,,•,'-"';^.

f

I
I

Exhibit A
i

Pro rty I)escript oni

i
i

i
I
i

3

4

9

S

i3
1

iifSi
4j
33
i

413



z
C ':       . 1-:      <*,.:

x 3.        Y za:   

K     '''     

Y 4- s

i_.Q.._...... a      . 0_._,...•-  . ; 3,,,,w m.....:, ns.._,.,....+-..,_„__<  "''   >  

r;r;       - y..,._       ,.. s

e      
3   _''.."-;. .:.   ....'   f.;...,,  .  .._:.   

w..,.,.,

s   .,:.:.. y, h.'.-.     .-:,,,,..,,,„,-' T.'s s,.`^''> v u'_"'A

i     . A^ D7- D9.   ] 2; 4Bp    Proc- ORT Pi/"       R1 rT26- q41:-- T- 66o P. 008/ 016 F- 036

OLD REPBSLxC Zt7,',LE CQ1YlP6NY'
i GRDBt NO.  377737- C'A

AME'IIDLD R p R,T
7he fand rafencd to In rhis Rr.jzon la slaraasd in r}re County of  aa. e a ci of La t7a
Smte of Calt oml, and is de ibed a's follow c"      

i

Cammcncing oa r.he Reat aid_ ot blosadaZe 8aad iaow tdaa,thei R B}, at 5.ntero ction of 2/ 4 Soctioa 13a, zua 3 uat assd We t t xougl m{.dd].e o Sect3an.34, Ta ahip z Sotsth, R tsgn 6 aet, Motimt Didblo 8are At Maridiazt, aad, y-
alaag aid a3.da df•zn, oxroh 1Q Sast,  Ee. 73 chaia to  pcia f 3at raaatioaoi Johaacai Road Zhaiace ]. ong 8 u tha cti aids o atid romd. 6ottr,h 58 i e t. 64c]s tis sl th cs flauth 47. 5 FTeat. 11. 30 chaizss to p=i4ata road,  30 19stks wide

CG DlZQ11 ? L'i.GC aida o Cij,C SD3  SD11 3 Z°' WSSt 9.' 7$ C 1A 21a O . 3.aS y QEaet and flPeist rott h the midG3e of tctio n 3: heacm ga z alcng enid 13ae,43. 7 Chaiaa to poit C of beglaaiag.

8 o#3 t. S fzo n at gortio ' thrseof in the DTozthw a= 1/ 4 of eeCL oa 3i,.    
Tomaehi,p 1 SoaiY.2i, Rmage 6 8aot, t4auat Disbio anse ftss2 Meridina. aa. more
past3cal.arly dercribed aa follo*e,. to- w tr

a a ojat ia tha DTostherly line of Jo non Fsszy 3lou1, beis q hemo . aatcrly cotaat of tha, 316. 38 ecr tsaCt daoCtibmil isi acsd o Hull r ta33'       r oo dsd S 1 Vol. 1693 Of D fi,olil SUeosdgi Pagt 45 Stri D4 v a C
ssY       

Rece ds, e 2t m.1.so' bs3ug. tha 6authw«eterlY cosaar o the i71. 24 acis 'tzact
tosmexlY cr sfl by tO, C. b'rsak, aad 41so bn3ag t.ur at Qoutherly eo xex ni r,ham9 x' F Y a` d iri I?eo reCoxdbd in VoI. 3254 of DiYiciat icosds r IagDS, 8aa Joe quin. Co'uaty Racoxclp, lhQa es 9 uth 3&• 3Z' tat 30 feer o a y p3a tha' Bos t'herly` liae of sohiiaca i eirY ; thsace . 7.,aaQ feace on t ie 8eistherl1.i of Jnhnaon P'exxy 8oad,,  gc th g2• 40'. e e, i397. 74 atit tC sa Ssoa p$p the' True Pa3at ot 9,,,,+„ g af the wirls a da e b d 1. 131 aar traCt cf ltad.

Themce ,coatiaue aloag th eau her3y liae o! obrtsoa Farxy ltatd, Saui-3 6Z 40 ,at,  EG6. 67 famt to an iroa pipe: t.h e sautl B8 lo 8ast, Z02. B3 feet to sa3xoa piA 1 tfsaace North e 3 Eeest ZZ4. 00 eot to aa irost piPs: tbrsiee Norah2S' 34' 30^ 
5aat alaag temCe, 3Z0: 43 fxt to ths tsu poiat ag by3aning,

A. DO. GXL' t ; 0= DID tI14t 1DS' j.CA caavey d to tho etaba o cmli orsr. n, ry Daed,i'ACGsdCd aTov'embtt 2I, 1953, . a Bock 1811 0 Oificial Recox 8n, Q ge yg gJosqsiin Couaty 2toeorBa.

a1 e excr,pt ther+-

sam tbat por ian' coavayed to ths 9taae ot Ce3.ifozaiz, bY asedracosded .?u iarsr 22j 1960, ia Sook 3181 p ' p' fi,z,, g o. P s 287, 3toa4v3a Casmty. Raacrcla.    

A

o wcccpt tiserr rom t.l a.t portioa deacr3bod ia Ds d to Iatsr-Cal Raal Satate•    Corpo a,t3a3z, a Cailifo ia eoxporatipn. recordad !' b.xv sY . Z970, 3a ook 3373oS O Cin7. Rsrordoe Petgm 58, Saa J n
o0R i CW3]' RfCOI Ii.  

A7.eo ccsPt th satq t]at porticn. dasarSbed its Daed to &ster 1i. Sol.t, gr.rIavestmsaC Coag?as' a paxtaasehip; secaxdid gabsuary 20, 3970, ia 8oak 3373 at    "    •

U

oft3cial Raco, & aQa 6a. Saa Jo, a couaty Roeor:

A ao e xept thar fmm tha olle l.ag deacribed ,9arcel of Iiu Spoisit 3a tha asid Rortti oae- hali oi Saatioa 34f Ri.d p0inn be   
ifi 

Q North ,, 393. 47

of ao p 

D 3137.       
M

j    . ..  _y
f

k    .  . ,.  . ii  

3     ..  — .`..`  ..     ,  __.  ,.   .   ...

414



r..

t.....__......._.. _.,...... w.___..r..._.._.. es....,,.,.... v.,n...,....... y.«...._....._.,.>.{„__. J..._»....._...,

f"C   +.   3z       ;.  4 x5< i.y
t-i''°,#''N l  . r

r   '
t*c' 

a`'",. i:.-'..' w...s,,... 3::. y.-..-,:.- s..-"."# Z'-' s.'',...' i..c'':':.. r'.c,..:`'.:^..,.."`, r f.,.`

cF^,}
Y S y:'#' r.;3

Aue- Q7- 08   . 12; dBr    Fro- ORT, PR/"'  
i

F816- 725- d41@• •.       T- Sb   P• 007/ AtB F- 36

I

DI.'$ PUBx,YC' G01 lNF'

YiDHt h10.  377?37- CG
T I1tD  ,$ p0&T

faaz ea d S ot 327. 72 teet iz ota ths CAid 8c r.h vest cqxatr of tbxt certa isy p c 7,
S ls. reCoSdmd biogr ber 2,. 5s ia sook 1e. 3., 4 g : t4, m ,7ot5 v3a Cotxatl'

8accx3sl , d eoutlsbdeat coxxies v g ao- ordinatms S•e,, 76A. 633. 79 fee,  aa3
7 a475, 931. 73 fect: t ieuc t,Tosy„h 0• 30' 59n Nest 3, 023. 4 iemtl thcacs a, p g g
cvs4e cor,arve co tlae S ac } av, ng n radiu oi 970. 00 1èet thxu aa aIIg.  ;•
57 $ 1", a di tane of 219. 43 etitl haac bYcrtb, 6S° 63' 29x 

tee,  48:$ 3 ' eit;
theaae 9Cuth B8° 31' ZO" tatr 80. 06 t; th cs Bauzh 47• 21 3QH 8a.st, til.

aet zYtance 9ounh 7° 20 26" Wast, 783. 27 fe; thsrica Soutb, a,yo g7' 43f Nes,
389. 11 feetl ' Cl eace SouEh 15° 46 50" 7est, 5, 50 iae t to .Lhe po at a
bmgivai.

1 A:   i93- 190- 20

o_ Pags

3157 E
8
i

y..

415



i
r

i S
i  

i

k,.

r ;            . l91- 1.       f  > h
T!! 18 1YAA Ftlit •      i

i AaS65s lt: WE W1R'      2

l   aa x

a

r 9k'     

3 Z7 u        r:

ia r f        

0.       

33       
uUls   k     .

e     `'',
I      ,   .    .  

4 i   [    .
f

fk;'.

nF„  k

p     

f  

r

i y
rQ4 F   '

Y  \    

a

S   [

SF
r

h'~• 1     is      

4

i i
1          

r•   
SfII!

Q  `
y  •  

7       /•    i

d

1        nk  

i

S+

r

x x

N     `
QUfN

a       ,     Y
i i

u.      3)      r r,Bf.       R$'
1 wr.    

1 3 R p£ a.'   
r

F  , :

J n1 i

M

1 p p
j
j r'\  

i i V11.  L 7.       
a E_33  34, T. (S: R.6E. 9a

4
BCbLE I 6v0' 

i'     
SEMN J AQUIN COUN7y

7"ASSE550f;g pg  .     
w..,

Q      •  

i
C

oaaa      .      
bR

i       1bCt' uJ ac; FaR'x1s o,  sQ i   ,
i

vc     '     4r n F    

j'     
jl n:77.{ p ti      4

l.:1 f f t e..

D. 7 iR     .,
A

Lv-       

a rr           h       4
y ,

g i+ i
6

r.H.+ rr
4

t 

a
J      r"

i C- H. 3. A 97.,      .       

M
B'/. J Bh PRI    

funtelw0.maretyaea lU ed   , +
B w.   33

c
34'   g'   

i
N: ei. 7 p, OJ e,

U          1ooa ny Mtd`IerW india eod horuanl4'    
x ta-R,.e,       

24/  .:    t

id oMi larid' No'lietiidit r       3 fi Js. e

f:

e$,     
ot e ty fe nn o t r      

j t

r J i:k px
1

q

fr
t::,;: u: r

416



Y    '     

Y

7

1 r

1' '     

x r   '     `    

y   }          '    
w_..._...+_e_v.....,.._.,...,......-=...._.-...... u... v..........V.......,._..,.._._..._.......... u..._......... t....._........,.._..................___..

Y       a....._v...      ...._    
tT;

02/ 16/ 200' 1B: lb FAZ BLS 226 0 98 1[ ACBAY & SOYP• PLSS VG f 003

l OLDBEP'08LIC.TiTI. COMPANY       .

DRDER NG"' 1 t1.10Q48.20-CG .
FlRST AMB DED R URT

ThE form aF po+ or We inwranoe c r npJa d by tl ls repo t t     

A Cl.TA 5 Cov pe( i990) awne' s Pp q. A specJfic quest shou}d ba mede lf
anotl' form ar add)tfoi al caverage ls de.sired.      

rne e tn or Nber m tt a lertid t. Rer dn ribea or fe cf or covred by thk Report l 

B Fee.     

Tttla m sald es ab or kttet+e t dt the date henof b vesbed Mu

STEVEN R. MCKEE, a stngle man

rne nd reFe rQd.m. in t eport m,ated tn tl,e unMcorporated e a of the Gounty of San oaqutn, s or C ilfamla
nd fs.decodti d a fnlbwx ,   

AM that,portiatt of the Northwest 1/ 4 af Sectbn 3, Tow ship S 5atrth, RangQ fi St, Mour   .

Diab o Base and Meridlen, more partia aiiy desatbed as Foilows:  

Be9kx ing et n poktt in the sald North one-hafF of 5ect on 34; saldpok t be ng NorEkt. i,393.47
ft` and Ea 327 7t feet fr m the;said 5ou iwest cpmar o ii at certah parzel I nd
reGorded Noirember 71,. 1955 In Book 1811, FnQe 26, Sen oeqWn Goutrty Re ot ds; seid
Sou t oorner h vin caor nates X= ir7 9.631:79 f t, and Y 4' S,93273 fe t tience
North D°: 30';59" WesE S, o23.54 fea thetxe IiD a arve concave t tl Enst t a
radfus af 470.00 fee ttuis en a[q!e af 1Z° 57" 41; a di ianoe 214:43 fxfi thericr l oith
65° 55'? 9' EasF, 48:43 feet; thence Sott 1_89° 31' 20" East,.8Q.00 tee tf ettioe South 47° 1'.
3D' F.ee#, 7i.28 fee Soutit 7° 2D`.26"=1M11, 783,?J f thatce Souti ii°D7' 43"  •
West; 369. 11 feet; 5ot t 15° i0' SQ" We51; 5S.S0 feet tc ttK pollit be Tnttltlg.  

ARN: 191- 180-21

At the dabs hem ee captfatn b aovn 9e! n ddtlon ta the S¢ Son and eadtt torts it wld poflcy funn wotdd ix s fore vs:           

1.      Taxes and,n nertts. 9eneral a+d spec al, fixffie f af y 2003-2004 a aen,       
but not Yet due ar payabte.         . .     

The Ikn of supp{ernantnl cest If anY. a qd pursuant to the provislotLs af
Sectlor 75, et seq:, of t e ReVenuc and Ta Hon Cflde of the Sta ol' Caqfumia:     

3,      A sstrtant I o, 3BiD1 for Redamatlnn District Na i7 payable wltfi tfie rea)
Y' ka tes.  

t OTEt Fuitl er fnfonnation on sald e ssment on be obtalned by the d lct at
TdePhoi ef: 249-465-5883.   

Pa Z of 5 Pa

T

417



j E
S

1     nu wtir uwI Ass6ssN r uSi OMY     •    

l f? 6 .

fe---  
t         6

z7 t

I       
33 34 LOUISE A

T           ,'       •  4*     
ISY J

Y

f6. A0

YL    .       

y, f

1;

O       

1.     yh 1 i :f  e

I
4

Y

r
f

F

1.!/ Jtl Y
j       F

k,
y x

f         
ro vurH   . ..     n.0

O fi      i
a.   2 n. n.  

rc'       

f .    

1 :"   

0. VE
3 : j 1

r i          f
z

l{.  7    .
L 98    •       POR. SEGS.   33, 34, T. lS,R.6E. M

SCALH 1". 60Q     g    •    4

SAN. JOAOUlN COl1NTY t a"""° R'""     

AS9ES5tf1t9 MqPg

j

w4r      
f y

Q' 1      V
f'    

J    .   

4

m  .
1 tt.N iG

O     .       Q
J

k.   :
p     

li.!! C.   S AC s 4-'          
v:.

i
a

f

y/      i k z

I          .     .   '   
c   '*       

a.. r       ,      C-! 1!. er!? ry. a!!      

Q            
e' s fe rs? f r

I! N.' f. 7 I. JOJ
m   33 '   34 BA:'      r

T.  .    .     
24/•.  ",,     .       

f
23. RI G.     

1 Y) 4 t   ...
o T ('J,      4     . n. e    

q 4

Yy :     ' J /i    _.

f `  ;
m

F    '

Q  ,     .. ..    

I
s

s
t tii

418



S   
x  ,       

2
2 S           

S          
4

v

4        
k

k F`     F.

J...,......,. c........ a...+....... a._ cda. u,_.a.s.''' n.,., 
Y.•;    Tr       .,+

6a4... v-......cw...Gv. r_.v,.; L,_._...< s...v.-,i.wu..... vf.......      ea._..o.u....,...,.      rr.r..,..i.'..... c........... v.

d"  '-,
b,'.-"' a:"'-., 1'      x„' i^"+ nd' w,-.`.'.,' ur+r,wj S'...:' z.,,- r" ..=.4w',+. 3s   ,;.     ''   r rir

r...>.;.... s`-.., 3'' r':.     .". i

1

4ui- 14- OB 10: 40   From- 0! D I P' TITiE CDIPANY 2DD b7 88'-  .       T- 166 P. D04/ D30 F- 4o
j i

i

i
i

i
OLU' I'1TLF OOE' 1NY'

ARDHt NO. 387139- CG
F iss  t so e,^  

a f

Ths hnd refamd to! n thls ttepots la stnsated in[ oura.y af

Som oF Calt Omte, u d u d ocrfbed as Folbwa:       

T       

1

8eginniu9 at th Northosst ornar ot Looation Qr Touaship 2 & outh, Ran9e 6 aat

Motisrit Dicbia 8ase and 6l° r d+) L 1C° D ' orsq the F.1 t lia o£ said Bactioa

4 a diate ace oi 920 1'e s to the osth lSne o shs idnds of A. Rivasa,  a. F

m , Q y fl Naz lin o asid lnne]a sauth D7 30' Heat. 530 iees to tha
T.ast baak of predgrs Cn: thoaca along sha = ati b of aid•Dssd46x Cat, a

tollosra s

po 25' D' N t  10D f. ot1 No 5 40. ND6tr 7H0 femti ' s North Siaoa o    ,    

a 5 t,oa 4t b=i alcng r.he riarsh 1,i.ns q anid 9eczion 4.. 3ast 120 i`ab ta
h pinc of beginssidq•    

Sxcei t.ay thsr° srom the.t cestsia oPertY 4 T:
imod tc Rec7.aan C.ina riiatrict

lda. Z7, s Coz lRd n1y 29r 20D3 uadisr' Racoscits  S ria1 la. 2DD3- 168997,   

deseribed- aa follovrs: 

xhat oeruia•rsal ProP+rtY aituato ia hs Cauaty. at• Sa.a Jonqu. n, Ssata of
w shin sectica 4. Towaahip 2 9on'Cb. iva s e r.s ' onnt. Diablo

Celiforairs, YinQ
n ica ot that ces a3.a. Gieant Diead xncozded aa

enmmQ aad Moridian, as+d b iaq PQ      

1389 6sa JoaqIIia Couaty. Raaoxda mors
Iaat st N ab 69D09269 oss FebruarY

p il rXy deacsibed ae folloua:       .

Cp D7CZNG t c aaetiea eosa r co on• to projacted aa' an.a 33 and 94 in
ToxFtiohiP 1 9outh, Rsnqm E xaa estd gsojoct d 6setions 3 arld Ai• ToS s}sip 2 Sosth
MiiQ 6. saatr s shos s in 800k 4 0= Suraeyb at Psqe 163r secordad on Apsil ZS,
2D01. Sas osqn3a Couaty Recordar asid paiat beazia 3outh OZ02' 1 

0. 

7. 07

at irea the noat saur..east eernss e ' t]sst c ztn a 31fi ae a 
s id Baok 34 of Survey a C Pag 163 tih nc a1oa4 ' Che bptith liae et that cartaia
iB. 10i t cri p ssoel: said liao sleo beusg th• P= jec d tos+a hip 1Sne batv nn
aeid owashiD 1 cush. Raa9 fi i nad roxa biP Z Dcur: ltanga 6 nst, u eTsovn

Sz1 aook 31 0 6 trveYa as Paga 22r s oosded on• LQaro2i l3. 1990. Sala Joa tnia CotsntY

i Raaords, aid 1ia • elso baing th aes Ch liae OY t1saL caxtnia 10. Z7 aeze p zesl.
ai detcrsbed fa ba.id Iaats aaL liumber 89009ZS9, Eterth 8852' 1Q° Waot 9 0. 00
E et Lo Lhe santhues caraas 0 anid 1B. 131 dcre psrce7.i e s3nng t e

vestsriy exzaiuioa o rhe aenth lia= of ssid i6. 101 aera pascal, aa:id liae siao.
beiaSt t}se aotth Siaa ot atifl 10. 27 aas pasc l. mortb 88' 52' i8" peaL 142. i

j nat. to s poiaz cn tha xatnsnSde ' Cat o the cxi Ling 7.cv t. e tid poiat b¢. ng
zhe RZ IIS POtNT DI+ SYGT1 6 Ehsnoe a1oAg ths xa erside = e of : he ex3st3.tsg

e
lavei, .Bouth 4955' 06° Eaat 957. 36 ixe to tha onth lir s af aid 1D. 7 abrd
psreetj thsace a.].oaq s s aontFs idar of ba d 10.. 27 acrm pax'eQ1 $ ou'Ch 68 7' 42"

1 WeEt 84. 79 te t, to tha sontha esL cosaer cf e 3d iD. 2? mose paroslr thence a1oaQ
tha nautkxesterly lir a of aid 10. 27 1 eze parcel. tha follawisiq Coureest
l)   Noxth z 22' 1B° i etL I01.+l9 ieat;
2   th i CE NOYLh 332 18" Wafb 79d. 00 feat

o th4 point ef inLes+oetioa +rith tho we=texly xt aeioa of shm eauth liae of    '

Q       

419



S

Y^       '   t 5:       
2'   g2LfC.

Y     ' F,      : r

i,.::......=.Y.d.x...%v.«-    "  _. w,. 3.._.,Y....ra..f.,.._-,.::w..c .,_.,.  ,.+.-....'._.:: r..._...:    . ,:

s.......
y:;W> e      ._.,._.... v.z._.....,......_...,.u.........«.,._.._,_., s.,._. zn_ w._.._..

m..+  
i 5." ..'- c;. z.-, r•.-,:...   «:

iu:c a t,.:'
a.  -.

p.  ,. 0 a e.cc s . eL"'-°
x       `"_  C" es%r"

Au- id- 0.   10e40    Fros- DI. D t PI C T17LE COI ANY 2D0 96T 885f T^ 166 P. 005/ OI0 F- 049

r

v G' con. ex

ORDSthlO. 987139- CG       .  .
ZIt9T A!dffi+TD$ D AEFGRT      .

esce7., enid poiat sleo beiAq  aortht+eat ooznes of said
DeSd SB. 101 nere P        a 7.eng tha e teslY ax'tensior oi thn aouLh liae ot e id
1D. Z7 aosa P cs1:• 03''       tha r+or h lia oi` aai.d 10. 27 saxe
18. 101 acrQ paxce• s d iir.e also beiaqLo a. E  0, G.

CyL SoUth BB52' 18° Ees t 97. 99 £ e t .
241- 620- Oi

i

Seiaq in Seo'. i.on 3r TowaaF ip Z South. AaaBR 6 Ea, Maetat A3ab1A 8dat arid

1aQr. dia a, ar d mosa particulasly describad ta oiloms:
Cea sacing at slie D7osr,hweat ceranr oi mnid 5sation 31 theaoa Norrh 89 5B $ p.sL     ,

aloni' the Ncrah liap oS asld 8aation

3D,
and3s.

ehe lacasda2elltcadi theac laloag Lhe

she' Weat 13se Qt ka Ste.to ywna ollows:     

Nes't 1ia:Q ot aa Stata B39

Scuth 15' 13' tQ L. 228: 3 ioet to a coacrete a oavi iett't oppoait 5(
1. 7 fee}

8aqiatni' s 5ts.iioa 320 plua 00J tl enca coaTls.

n61gpfemc t the eaonthrroct eemes
tJ oaea lesvinq hi' yr south B7' 36 Keat
Ot P. Calori pscP Y. 

beia a7.00 th 8aniheait cesaer

oialeo the Reat liam

of2    
f 1/ Z; thestica North 2' 39' Wnas, sloag P= 4P?rty liaa beittignaid Stct. on 3, a di t nce oS 548. 3 aet Lo the poiat cf beqiansn5

or[ lpne o£• s+. d premiens sa cossvQ7ted ta thn
8XC8PT 7G T i'RGS nIl those P

il 23, 1954 ia Vol. 1852 0 O f3cial
Stat's o£ Ce.li osit.a, by Dsed sdcnsd d Apr
Rnccrdnr aL a:0o Z8 aad by 1 ed secosded JulY 24. 1969 in voi. 332Z of Ot. cial

Rscosds• at 8aga 53i, 5sa 7onqeia CouatY R aardi.     

AL9D SatCSPT T tht ollavring das: ribad resl scpastY= 

Seiaq in 9ection 9, Toriaship 2 9onth. Rmnga 6 ast, MouaL Dia,blo 8aso aadh to Janice
mosj.aian, ead be3sQ a poxtioa o sbnt cestain pareel 03 land aoaveysd .,;.

h;.• 9

F. r sY from Ar dFsr a. Calori nnd Thalma' cnieri, bY od roeosd d D• r

1976 Sa Sook 92DS, Otlicial Racords o! San Jaaqu7.n Couaty, t pags 2 ir +ind

ba3ag mose past. cu7.csiy d.nseribed s £ ollo ra t

Co aC 4 LL th NoSLhYIeiL CORtP.S' ef aaid Sectioa 3 thsnc

the uorth liae o

n

EaaL aloaq tka porr liae ot aaid Bacr3on 3, and al o beintha Horthuemtasly

snid gasea7. 1757. 15 fsot. aze or lsso. ' a F t be 4
aosaar et slsiZ ceruia p°sca' ° g d coa aynd to x]ne Sute of C li osaiR fsom

d 8. Calozi aad fih lma Calor, by a° d x¢COsdOd J511g 29r 1969 ia. 8aok 33Z2
p ieial Aaco ds, of Sat Joaqa. a County nt Eaga b31, said cosa r bei 9 on ZhQ
NM t lirie of 23anGhsY Road Fnd b ing tbt tira poiat oS b pinn3ncf o! t so
hsreins Las d serit ed pase l of inad:

aloag the Weetsxly lina af MaarhnY 7t ad, ta desc.`ibed ia tha  Theilcer

osame csioned Daed. 50ut1 7' 28'. 33"_ We 7. 1D leet tA a pOlAtJ d,

aa

p g ly aad para]. lel tc ea. d North liar. Nvsth B6 D4' 27° Weat 312. 5 6 eeC to

a .po3ntl e North 00 65' 33" s t 323. OD fqnt to a. poiat oa the 3lorth 13ne

Pa e 4 of P       

RT 1sl-8

s

420



j
F t

Y     

3 e, h
A     ,' 

E j G r k
W...... c...y   .....v.._..   s.•. LE aux.. c`. r..._.z....w+...,,. k.:....,      . s,,..,_... e.......... .-,.-..,,>:_ ...,.. yy,.s.._... L.._. e. is....sa.;, x.,. t.?...,..£'..... c.v._,...._..............<,,,s

z e. i'      '.`*",.-'':_    ".    es., t„ t..,.v a Y:"  z    
i.;, ai, u    "'^`_  ? r,"s

eat i
r,..

3-=`' ` rr.. 

i

Au-] 4- D3 1D. 46 a From- OLD REP I?'•' T1TLE COI ANY 209 68i' 89'•. T 16S P. 00B/ Ot0 FB49 .  

k   _ _,. _ ——.      f

ox a aon ar

ot st tao.  387139- co
FIRST' Zst 1END5.g ORT  -

4

of said 8 on 37 ' along aaid losth 1ina 6outh 69' 0` 27° 8act 349. 5fi

ioet to tha true Poia of baginri3si9•    

p,pN:  241 02d- 40

r•

J

1

i

Paga_,.._ of.3.RJ'sg

RT 167-E

421



k '

i       •  

i

3

B9 j    '      •    
u,.,, 241- 02  

r vr o' vw'     N  ,

3, 
T. t.       

M

F 
b        .

r,` /, 4.1, t
q;+      , 3

ou'' u I
r        y`   5   t

C. D/ oT.:    0' i0 iee       / 8//[   . 1 b" n(    ,.
e,..;,,

7 29

10, 1T

sres.       v YLb'3 1k''  

z. st xe.      w       
a:    i   ' `

z f uu.r

d  .  '  

4      '`            

v            
tM '   .  ,. r     

o
c-     

C• a a'°,,•.. r''`"`

s o. t.    '  • ,,,,   2S R.6       
x f     ,.     '_    POR. ECS.   3 . 4 T.     .   E   ,  t

oµ 
R  -    EL. RANCHO R sSCAQER4       t ,

o r.. r• iw•r      ,  c SCALE..1 800`     • F

i+      ` A o    / v      . SAN J AqU1N':COl1NTY
A3SESSORS' NAP s`

yk y1J TE
x    ' wr rsnx. t    >j l    I A:

p t      [ JLy'  

r      .,.  .  '    
sEE SEa. lo

I         REQEIYEl1

j d         `       C 2S.- R. BE.   ' . I'1AY- 31 t r   5   ';.

j u•     .    .     -     
wa,f7+ y       

F,

e. Q
RECEt p -      

239 0..    APR I 5 ! 7
aso e

5 iS    .

S 1

I   -

4   =         
t °°    • c. T ss a-`    

1 a- e.s R sn c       
P

3   , x_
m— P. f ek d h/T0=   

r`

t 8- If..x d ti Iyr. dZ r k:8  .

i
1O

yt`'"t`~ A- rA• DX. t P!. IiT

I
10-  =  11 Xy;.

s     '    •     
s 

k:

1
e

t.

422



i'     ry  y.

r.

j..:'.....
e_....,... E._. L     .. e..., i_.._..:.+::+.a.;.._..___""__.....

r_..___..

rt...,..,..e....=__..... 1=..: E;.... y..,,_,_...,__..._,..,... e.'`.,. a.____.__._..._..__

s`., r'^"et c, w r& S,.'...' _` '-`.  .,' Y,,,'"-    :*:  ._..`'.` u'''`,...+.:.vS.       '
3ukt"..°.

v..z..,  ,.'
4,. r_    ^^" T1+• k''+. a._   + fr  . si:^ r,_ e.  :+^.#  e.'  xt    ` u       ..,.: na

Exhibit B      

Condi ions ofApproval for Vesting Tentative 1liiap
Tract No. 3073 —TJnit 

i
f

3

3

F

i

F

i

i

i

D

YO.  . . . .    .   ..-... .,  ..   .  ..  .      ..     .. .-      ....       ..   .. .-__
e a_. ..    x .. . .  ... <'       ..     , ..     . . ._ -

423



y
s F k

F

7           _ i  , e y  ., 

As" '{                  
i"   5:

o. v.  .      .._ a      .. v...........zm...... c.+.....c...... l..l.,w,.x.,.._. s...s... 1v I oJ.  ,.....      - t..' u L̂..v.''^  '
r",,     

e...r..=...:.G    

rn r""x ` s'  ''."".„-,, n
t""'`:'-"-, ds̀*'':  ,    •-_-,;., j  ,

M  ; 4.    ac  -« s'`' Ye'" z€`"$ a'=:e d[" x" - .,

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.     

VESTIlYG TENTATIVE NIAP TRACT 3073, UNIT 1( MCKEE PROPERTIES)

j ON-GOING CONDTTIONS

These conditions shall apply to the yesting Tentative Map for the Mossdale Lsnding East, Unit 1
project by Wostem Pacifie Housing and Watt McKee LLC, andlor thoir•successors in intcrest,  
hereinafter roferrtd t as the" applicant". This Vesting Tentative Map is•appmved.subj ect to the
approval ofthe Mossdale Landi.ng East Urban Design Conccpt( iJDG. The Mossdals Landing
East Unit 1 project shell be devalopad in accordan ewith ttzc Gcneral Plan( GP), West Lathrop
5pecific Plan( WLSP), Mossdale Landi.ng East LTrban Design Concept( UDC), Miiigation
Measures identified in the Mossdale Tandi,ng East Supplamental Environmental Imgac#Report
Fg,]R),Mossdale Landing Bast Development Agre mont( DA), Lathrop Municipal Code

j LMG, City afI,athrop Design and Consiru tion Stan tmds, Nationxl Pollutant Discharge
Elimination Systcm( NPDES) General permit for the Disaharge of Storm Water from Small
Municipal Separate Stomi Sewer Systems( 3mall M54), and the City ofLathrop Storm Wafcr
Manage ient Plan( SWMP).

1       .  
General Reaulrements

1.      Thc applicant sball comply with all d cuments appmved by the City Council and adher     

3 to all verbal represcntations made an exhibits presented by tha applica;it at the Planning
Com mission andlor City Council meeting for the approval of the Mossdale Landing Fast
Unit 1 project unless subscquentlyrevisedby the City.

2.      7n case of conflict bctween the various documents,#he follawing order shall prevail:
iGeneral Plan, Mitigation M s and other requirements of the FEIR, WISP, UDC,

DA, Vesting Tentative Map and its Conditions of Appmval, LMC, the D sign and
Conshuction Standards, NPDBS General Peimit( Small MS4), and the City of Lathrop
SWNIl.    

3.      The applicant shal comply with and pay#he cost to monitor all Mitigation Meastnes
identifiad in thc FEIR for the Mossdale Landing East Unit 1 pmject( SCIi# 2002052083)
kcpt on file in tho Community Devolopment Depaitmc and tha Traffc Manitaring
Progran TM}.'). The requiranents contained in the Iviitigation Monitoring Pro ram.
MIViP) and the Tiv shall be incoiporatea.into these conditions and constructed in

accordance wit the NflviP and TNB.       

4.      n an aunual basis during the d velopment of the proje t and/ or at each residentisl final
map or commcrcial huilding gerinit apgroval, applicant shall fimd an MI1. On or befon
Febzuary 1 of each year uatil thc last residmtial fnal map or certificate of occupancy for
the Iast commercial project is saued, tt.o City shall detc ine and the apphcaat.;sball pay
any eosts nccessary to fund the I iI that wero not paid during the prior twelve month
perioii. Tlie MI/Il' sball be uscd to determine the nceil for implementation ofmitigation

COA Umtl( McKee)3, doc 2/ 13/ 04 page 1

y
t

z

424



ti

h s Y yY ¢       E

s.

c£ m_. s._,_.,......_.....   -     L.._  

c   __`..__    -.._.   

s_._...

r. r.:.....     :-.-, ,„.+.
F« a.  _ r:s, -

c ,...      : C'y=.E3.°'..
a`,

3s.-F" H,  y„ t,,.
s S+. f--

7- ... L Ly . wg   ' r`'-'•,°,__".3"' y=_. x.4. 7' 4.t.ky3_ b-i.'r     ...    T'     .- z'       a-.r.K

IIGOIDS CODS IhOIIB

measures recommended in tha FEIR to reducc andlor avoid potential environmental
impacts, The NSNIl' sliall include tbe proposal timing far construction af identi.fied

j improyements, payment of fees, aad impleincntation of other mitigation measures.
I

I 5.      pn an anntial basis dnriug the developm nt of the project and/or at each final residcntial
map or commercial buildi.ng permit spproval, the applicant shall fund the TNIP. The

i TMP shall be used to dctermine the necd far apesation improvements to the City' s traffic
circulation systcm( including on-site and offsite circulation improveinents, interchange
improvemarts and traffi signals) based upon curr nt operating conditions and projected
new development.

a.  Traffic signals shall bo required an.d constructed for any intersection where t$e
traffic projections indicaie that tho intarsxtion will meet at lcast one Caltrans
traffic signal warrant as a result ofpmjcct traffia

b.  ' The TMP shall include the proposed timing for construciion of all improyements.
Final maps and building permits shall not be appzoved if the TMP finds that the
project traffic will lowei the level of service below service level" D" on any
portion of the City' s street systein, unloss the improvements identified in the TIViP
required to maintain service level" D" aze completed or guaranteed.

c.  Improvements rcquired to tnaintain a levcl ofservice` D" and included'in the
City' s Capital Facilities Fee( CFF') program that are constructed or guatanteed by .
the applicant shall be subject to a credit or reimbursement for/from CFF fees.

d.  Notwithstanding the abave, fhe a plicant shall not be required to construct, or      •
guarantee construction of any improve tnts to the I-52auise Avenue
interchange that exceed the project' s fair-share obligaiion. 

6.      The applicant agreas tq indcmnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, agents,
elected and appointed afficials, arid employeos, from any and all Iiability or.claims that
may be brought against the Gity arising out of its approval of this Vesting Tentative Map,
save and excegt that caused by the City's active nagiigence.

8

7,      By accepting the benefits confe xed under this Vesting Tentative Map, the applicant
acl owledges a11 the conditions,imposed and accepfs this Vesti.ng Tentative Map subject
to those conditions and with full awareness ofthe provisions ofthe UDC, the LMC and
the Design and Construction Stanilazds.       

8.      The use of the pmgeriy by the agplicant for any activity authorized by this Vesting
r Tcntativo Map shall constitute acccptance of all of the conditians and obligations

imposed by the City on this Vesting Tentaiive Map. The applicant by said acceptance
waives any challenge as to the validity of these conditions.    

9.      Each final map shall stand-alone and be sclf-sufficient as to access, tra c circulation,
utilities, physical infrastructure, and land use pattem. The Director ofPubfic Works shall

caA U i o)3. a      risioa s z

1

x ---      

425



l  ,   St   .  Y
q'   .  

G".  £       

r E     §    3..    1  .:'. cT     .    K  _     4 II       
3 fi

Y S
P.      i t: S` ' f'.' S ' rF,'

r r i.     
r  §-      b.

n
m      .. 

x y y,.    ,          
o t

4 
Y

3 x

r.._,,..»i..c...._`. ...._....    .. .........._.
a_..?.. e_...:,..__...._ T_-._'.....,.',f  _

f    ....    RT._.,_..._      n(  
x.£.._,.._

t ",     '    sr- r ,-

F". nt,.'  

t'`  .
ar.3^,.  .    ... -..' K', s.. ra^`':;:.€"'+' +^"-'-«- c. h:'.' a`-`fi r' i  "' p. ta. d''+-':;_

r,n..-,
1'`","

r ..`'" r'}. v.

i

On-Going Conditioas
i

i

iapprove any and ail changes in the phasing glan as shown in the UDC. Approval of a
revised phasing plan may include the requiremart foz construotian of additianal public
i.mprovemcnts.       

10.     Prior to the approval of each residendal fmsl map andlor first non-residential building
permit, the agplicant shall provid th Comniunity.Dovelopment Director with a capy of
the recorded covenants; condiiions and res ictions( CCBcR' s) on the deeds far all lots
withm the prnject site. The covenants; conditione, d rest=ictions( CC& R' s) applicablo

to the project property shall he coris}stent vith the ternis ofthese conditions and the
LMC. If there is conflict between the CC&R's and the LMC or these condi6ons, the
LMC or tbese conditions shall p=evail, The CC& R' s and.disclosure statement shall
indicate the fallowing:"' This project is contained yvithin the boundaries of tlie Mossdate

Landing.East Urban Design Conccpt, and as sucli, is eubject to certain design guidelines,
developmcnt standards and siting teohaiques which have been incorporated into the
reqnired stemdards for the Mossdale Lan ing East Urban Design Conccpt on file with thc
CommmutyDevelopmentDepartment"  

11.     The applicant shall mee#all requiremente of the SB 610 report adoptecl oa August 27,
2002 and the SB 221 zeport adoptcd on J u y 7; 2043 including the provisions offunds
far theprocurement of surface and groundwater nccessary to ser've the projxt from the
South County Surfece Water SupplyProj ct(" SCSWSP' and the City' s Well
Development Projec

12.    Prior to the issuance of a buildi.ng peunit, the applicant.sha11 pay the required impact fee      ,  
for schools in accordance with 5tate Law. Copics of the receipts for payment of tha fee

shall be provided to the Building Division prior to the issuan e of a building pstmif. This

3 coadition may be satisfied by perforntance under the tcmas ofa mitigation agtreeemment
between the appIicant and the schaol district. The City shall make a good faith effort to
work with the respective parties to implement such agreemen

13.     The developer shall consent to, and pay their pro-rata share ofthe costs for the formation
of such financing districts as ma.y bc necessary' for the implementation sad maintenance
ofparkways, Parks, street trees and laadscaping, walls, special str ct Iights, storm drain
plan and NPDES/Storm Water Managcmcnt Plan( SWlV) facilities, maintenauce of

other public arcas and public safoty services. The petitions to form the districts, and/ or
annexations ifrequired, shall be completed prior to the approvat of each final map.

14.    Unless otherwise mutually agreed to, the City shall own and maintain, or cause to be
main p; n, the following improvemeats liated below:

a.      All pubIic madways and sidewaIks
b'.      All public traffic signals and street lights on public strccts
c.      Street landscaping in public rights- fway, includi.ng round-a-bvuts, traffic islaads

and medians

d.      Potable water systems and water tank on public properties or public easements
e.      Sanitary sewer within public properties or public easements

COA Unit]( McKee)3.doc 2/ 13/ 04 page 3

w    . r
r--;—

p

426



h F          F. C Y F  -     k    . J K  
y    ..

R

k

4

g    :.
c` ''

Y     -'', 5 Y  ..        .: 
C     _.    

Y.y . 4f
k$     i57C 4, /

4'    S  .'.. 1  .       : k       '      f 4 a  
1     . f     ;. 

S

L''
y i   . C a  )  fi. 

s,.........     _ . _,_,.. Y?,. s:.....,.      :.-. u.3_.-     ...,.      .,. s.._... tu.,,..x,. a,., a..., v.,.,s..w::,.-... Y.-.t:..-„r....g._cf 3i._3r,..,,..-      ,..,._::7;...'     .....

ea"`.-"-'` C'': s'a8z
5='" a;- r- z'9'', c  1'a7s "'      , .- r'      .;{''''  .` x'' ..,'

rea
s: r    

y. . k s  :   k'       tw k" va.r J      ':' 8., t̂-     r - i' y y+c.' 2R?;W`. '.  w    -*-.,- .
rb ,.    . •.".     u f s.    . y.•-•-`.^ a

II-C011l$ COIIa1tiD178

f.       Recycled water systems within public propeities orpublic eescments.

g.      Stoim drain system within public properties or public easements

15.     T 1B RCCiBInSt10Il D15171Ci, private property owners or other maintenance authorities    
acceptable to the City shall be responsible for maintaining:

a.      Private lanes    •      .    .

b.      NPDES pcimit requirements, approved Best Management Pracdces and SWNII'
prectices

c.      Street lights on lanes

d.      Bn sh rabbit habitai mitigation areas

e.      Public access easements

I 16.    If the City is requirecl to cnforce any of tha conditions of approval, the agplicant shall pay
f all costs. In the City' s sole discrdion, the City may require a cash deposit to eovcr

cnforcement costs as a condition of the approval of any future final map.

17.    Prior to rxordation ofany 5na1 map, the applicants shall pay the fee to cause
reapportionmcnt or segrega.tion of y existing or fufure assessmcnts on the par els
coverred by the map.

18.    Prior to recozdation ofany fmal map, the applic shall reimburse the City for its pro-
rata share of the costs for preparation of certain plaas, stndies and reporfis necessary for
processing ofthe tentafive map. Thoso plans, studies and reports that were completed by
others and that benefit the proj eet iaclude, but aro not Iimited to, tho Massdale Landing
Stoma Drainage Plan, SB 610 and SB 221 Reports, and the GoldezY Valley Pazkway
Precise Plan Line 5tudy.  

i
19.    The a} pHcant sha11 reimbursa the Ciiy forprcparation of the WISP, in accordaneo with

the established reimbursement fee ordinance and resolution.

IBnildin Services
i     •

20.    Building code provisions shall apply to tho construction, alteration, moving, dcmolition,
rcpair, maintenance and use of any building or structure within the jurisdiction ofthe
City, except work located primarily in a public way, public utility towers and goles,
mechanical equipment.not sp cifically regulated by building code provisions, and   .
hydraulic flood control struotures. All pro;jects sball comply with the mosf eurrent codo
edapted by tUe City at the time oftheir building pemut application. All State and Local
ordinances shall be applicable to current pmjeets.

1

21.     Geotcchnical investigation reports shall be submi#ed for all bnilding peimit projects
unless waived by tlie Building Official. When required by the Building O.fficial, the
potcntial for soi! liquefaction aad eoil sixength loss duriag earthquakes shall be evaluated
during geotechnical investigations. Compaction reparts ar required for each building
pad site. A 1 compaction repoi ts shall be submitted prior to a oundation inspechon and
shall be in compliance with the geotechnical r eomtriendations.

I

COAUnitl( McKee)3.doc 2/ 13/ D4 pagca

y .   —_•      _    

2i'-'—:S rae'T^.^?';^'

ui i. . ..     .  ..    '..: s _..  ....: r.    ......._.

v

s

427



z t rs rl .       e
y  ,_       `     1) x

E E       ',  fi     ,   
r r   

y, +    ,, 
t      , t   -     

y ...

t : 
a r  ',, r S

g:   yx A     "  r . ti

y,,.

y v c fz:    - 
r s,,,,       .?,

h" c , r. r._;."{      _ t,      _; K_. x.
w..,,-...._x_..e.:is.r.      s..»_.ac-..-....   

L:.c vm». n>-, L
w.,. r r., c°:. , ..;;   ..'. a{ a,'.,., f  "'   . i 3 x .,.,—,.,5 ,^-.:v r ...    az,r.y,.`-.   -

c,..  „=   x, t  -
a<rwnn.t.. s 3-. a, a-.   . 2. .=...:...._     c: 1. s,.-—  -    z` E

DE-GOIII L'OhdIC0II5

Pn6lic' Wurks

22.     Final maps shall not Ue approved until sufficient acreage for storage ponds and/ oi spray
fields are provided for disposal of effiuen  The torage ponds attd/or spray fields may
be gnaranteed on-site or off-site as pc itted by the Ce tral Valley Regional Water
Quality ContinlBoard( RWQCB). Ponds utilized for the winter stoiage ofrecycled

water may be waived or reduced ifa sc sanat or year-round NPDES peamit is approved
for the City that will accommoriste discharge to the river ofrecycled water generated
from the projec

23.     Prior to the recordation of any final map, the applicant shaIl dedicate or offer for
dedication with an irrevocable offer of dedieation or other document aeeeptal le to the
Caty Attorney and the applicant, the land to be used as spray fields or stora,ge ponds and
the extcrior street right-of-way ne,edcd for acdess to develogment adjacent to any spray
fields or stoia e ponds. The cxterior street right-of-way shaU not be usod for spray fields
ar storage ponds.

24.     Residcntial finat maps, or building permits in the commorcial areas, sha11 not be approved     
u til sufficient acreage for storm drain retention/ detention pond(s) is providecl for the
storm drain nmoff from the development area. The pond(s} ma.y be on-sitc or off-site.   
Pond(s) required for the storm drain water atorage maybo waived or reduced to the
extcnt that a seasonal or yeaz-round NPDES p rmit, subj cct to any resbrictions from the
U.S, Army Corp. ofEngineers, is approved for the City that permits discharge to the river
of storm drain water generated from tha proj ec 

25,     The allocation ofwatcr conneetions, and recycled water and wastea ater trea#ment

capacity to the Mossdale Landing East Unit 1 project shall be based on the fimding   •
contn'bution contributcd by the applicant in accordaz ce with agreeme ts made with and
by the City and other members oftbe developmcnt community.
a Sufficient potable water service connections shall be acquired before each final

map is approval for resideatial eas or building permits are issued in the
commercial azeas.

b.      Sufficient recycled water and wastewater treatment capacity shall be allocated or
acquired for each projxt before the final map is approved for residartial azeas or
building peamits are issuai in the commercial areas.

26.    The applicane shall adhere ta the City' s adoptcd Right to Fann drdinance tha# recognizes
the on-going agricultural uses in the.area.

27.    All public utilities easements( PUE}, public water, sewer, or storm dram easements and
public access easements shall ba open and acecas' ble at a11 times. Publie access

eascments shall be inciuded in a spccial district for maintcnance. The axisting stoma
drain easemcnt within the Louise Avenue right-of-way betweea River Islauds Parkway  .
and Gvldai Spike Trail shall be kept free and clear ofall above ground encroachaients,

including bu#not li.mited to fences, and shall be improved fo standarcis established by the

COAUnitl( McKee)3. doc J131(14 page S

s .----->. . rj-r,^.  i*'.:^-- r^^     rr:,—e'^—^-     „            _       s-      F-  _

r. . .. .  ..  . y:. h._.. ..<. , e_ ,  . t..< ... v  . .... .  . i  . » . . s  .....  .   ._.     ...   .:       .. ....    .... ..,    . . ...

428



iY Y' T  . v.  d  '        '    n' .; y.  
r   ,     

y   
y     ,:.

2
r ,

U'  `'",. . s,h,. 6 rr
r.     

t  .. y^:

S.   k', ; 
4' Y I

9   
Z    . y

i f"     #',' _.     Z       F   ?.     Y

C.      ',  J     :      4 r%  9

x..... ,  ,,., c:. . -.. .-._ .=>.. `: h-..,.::
i:-..,._,... WL`  k.._•.       .. ;'.     Gs  ..       .._: :.sf

i

i'`
V'.:.$:'"

3:
q'".
a_''``'--',

n`r..' r̀,
r".' e" :-

2n4...';;  .-_  ,.'-_. -.," f.,   
r,...y„-.   _x..,    ,`,,,4-'y'''' . J_,`'.` fircPf'.&'' i°'••--t a'-+

Op-C70ID, COII[ 1t10IIB

CommunityDcvelopment Director and theso Conditions ofApproval at applicant' s sole

cost.     

Piannins Services

2g, .   pll parlang sud intemal circulation.ofvehicles shall conform to the standards regarding
off-street parking and loading and unloading of vehicles as required by theUDC.

PRIORTO GRADING

Geaeisl Reanirements

29,     The applicant shall submit a geotechnical report as required by the Director ofPublic
Works and Building Official. The report shall include seasonal groundwater lcvations,
highast recordal groundwater elevation, adjustcd for irrigation impacts, soil compaction
requirements and recommcndntions far sfreet structural sections, including a street
pavement design for azcas with a Iugh watcr table.    

30.    Prior to commancing any grading work, a Rough Cnading Permit shall be abtained from
j the Public Works Degartinent. Crrading plans shall be approvetl by thc I)irector.,ofPublic

Works and uilding Official, as a}ipropriate. Foundation dotails shall be submitted whcn
i       .      applicabla The grad'mg plans el all incorporate all recommendafions in the geotechnical
i repor The geologist/geotxhnical engiaear sha11 sign the grading plans confirming all

recommendations in the geotechnical regort are incorporatai in the plans.     

31.    Prior to commencing y building pad rading worle, a Grading Pcmut shall be obtained
from the Building Division. Grading plans complying with thc pravisions ofall City.

s requirements aud the geotechnical report shall be submitted and approved by the Building
Offcial. Foundation de siIs shall bo submittcd whe,n.applicable. Prior to i c t e of the

Grading Pemiit, the geolog'isE or geotechnical enginocr shall sign the grading plans
confiffiing all recommendatians in the Ger txhnical Regort are incorporatod in the plans.

Bulldin Servicea

32.    The applicant shall obtain a demolition pe,smit for any structure to be demolished. All
underground structures shall bo abated, back-filled, inspected and approved by 5an

i 3oaquin County Environmental Health Services or the Building Official as appl'tcable,    
i

i 33.    All septic tanks, wells, leach fields and related items in each final map area shall be
abandoned and destroyed in a manncr.appiovedby the Department ofEnvironmental

E Health Services. Wattr wells, outside the final map area.tl at the apglicazit chposes to     _     
abandon, shall be d sfroyed in a manner spprovcd by the Deparfmcnt of Environmeatal
Health Services.

34.    Prior to issuanct of a demolition or ading permit adjacent to doveloped zcsidential
properly, a letter shall be snbmitted fo the Building Official from a licensed pesE control

COA i3nitl( Mc e) 3. doc J13J04 pa8 6

F-- r---.  .'    .

5 _ `_._._  ..: 4. " ,     .,       _._       .-_     . "=

r.    t .       z, r.. 
s.=.

i.^ . .. :..   .  . ...... ..  - s:..-.   .     i .: 3.;

429



S{

s
i       ,  F. .   ,   

r .
x    >:_.     f       ' .--       h n. 

t_  '
a   _         '`   ;' r';      ._ 5   x

s   '.

c,    
s'   

a   <.-    
r s

c   `{.., q-   
S'" >       €.  

a       ;    .  t  ' S. ::

fi
Y X g „

z
z.      k     ;    , y

r i

r=..,.'      

tt..
L_.... a.: C>..,.+......,.._,e?:.:._ r,._.................__..._G.,._.............._.... E..,_...,.

3      _. r•$   . s: r_....:..s. '.

s*      ..'.,<...__.._.,.'
x'._.`.

zu._. rz..... i.

CT'. Y_°'-.aa>.-"^... ' 2_-"-.. a4€'- r
Y= 2-, E_. t.'"-+ a. h:,+..:  --;.: v'_`    ,  ' ti 5:" a" 4' x.'.; s"..--- m"_r.'`.?3_'':'''. g'.

pIIOI t0 t lII$

contractor ceriifying that thc subjxt sit wi.11 ba treated to.pr yent the migration of
roclents onto adj acent properiy. The Ietter shall descn'b tfie site to be treated( address, lot

etc.), the method and/or chemical ta be used and eslimate of the length of time the

treaimcnt will be effective. Grading s$ all notbegin until the treatment is completed.

3 5.    The spplioant shall submit plans and,obtain Neighborhood Design Reviow{ NDR) and

i approval for ali developmcnt signs and NDR revi w and approval and stpatate building
pernuts for retaining walls over four feet inhci ht, watls and fencing over six feet in
height The fencing for the detentionlre#eniion basins ehall conform to the design
rcquirements in the UDC and bo submitted for NDR review and approval.

36.     The applicant shall complete a Spccial Inspector Approval Packet for any project
requiring an on-site inspcetor to monitor grading, construction and/or development The
applicant shall deposit funds with the City to cover tha full cost of an inspxtor prior to
any iand disturbance. The Dircctor ofPublic Works or Building 4fficial, as appropriate,
shall approve the amount and hire the inspector.

Public Works

37.     The applicant shall submit a Notico of Intent( NOn to comply with the NPDES General .
peimit for stormwater discharges associated with construction A copy of the Storm
Water Pollution Prevcntion Plan( SWPPP) and waier discharge identification number for
the NPDES permit shall bc filed with the Director ofPublic Works and the Building
Official priar to any construction on the site.

38.    Upon completion of site grad ng, the site shall be in compliance with the conditions of
the Geueral Peffiit and the Storm Water Pollution Freventi n Plan( SWPPP). Erosion

control meesures and devices shall be installed at perim tar opeuings and slopes. Newly
graded surfa ces not immediately involved in conBtruotion shall have an approved method
of erosion control. Building permi#s shall not bc issucd until the Building Official has
determined the site is in compliance with the Geneaal Pemnit and the Storm Water
Pollution Preveniion Plan( SWPPP).

39.    Tho dcveloper shall implement a dust control program as part of the measures required by
the BIR( Chaptcr far sir quality control d the requirements afPM 10 and the Best

Available Control Measures( BAG'Iv. approvai by the City Council. Tlne program s atl
insurc that, at the D'uector of Public Work's discretion, a water vehicle for dust control
operations is kept readily available at all times during construction. The developer shall

3 provide tho Director ofPublic Works and Building Official with the name and telephone
numher ofthe person directly responsiblo for dus[ control and operation of the water
vehicle.    

COAU tl( Megee)3. doc 2/ 13/ U4 page 7

3

q... _"".;`---^^.

n-— Te—
a 3'=    .    .   ,   .  ,... ,  1   .,

s--.,:

T. .... .    , .    . . < .

430



4     .. g q L -. 
M1 N

rx           
i      

t'  f 7
i.; 

c x.       ` a     ::.      t      y,t"       } s z 
c

r.
t x Y           `          

s 1 Sr
C f

4 R    .
S

h t
4 i

u,a.     . c.    ar.
Y M         `, F   

e.....

S     

a.==-.._ a„  _       '' t-._

s.r_ t.ev+.    ,. i      —...       d a..   .„;. rvSY, G'..GS

M1-:,, Tw 1y:`  
SiTz'}.,'. Ir' Y,' 0."5      : Y=.z       •    - n:„in, y,,,v.

fx':`„''"+ i:,. i i'`-,. ...    ' --  :^'     a.      , a-'_. ,... .   
v .     .,      ..   "'

i` e'-£'ir.r.". k1

P`rior w Grading

Planning Serviees        

40.     Prior to issuarico of a Rough Gcading Pennit, the applicant shall fund the retention of a
f              professional Archaeological Consultant, approved by the Community Develapment

Director, to ensure compliance with the cu] twral. resourccs requirements in the AIlvlP.

41.     The applicant shall alert construction pecsonnel to the poss'bility ofburied enitural
resources and human remains. The applicant and the contraator sball immediatcly
comply with aIl rcquircments contained in the FEIIt, including the stoppage ofwork,
notification f the Native American Aaitage Commission and th Sen Joaejuin County
Coroner, as applicable, if cultaral resources and/ or human remains aro fotmd.      

42.  _  Prior to the issuance ofa Rough Cnading Pemut or removal ofhabitat, the applicant shall    .
pazticipate and comply with the requu aent ofthe 5aa Joaquin County Multi-Species
Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan( SJMSCP) as detcrmined fo be applicable fo
the projxt site, including payment of the rcquirai SJMSCP fx. The agplicant shall
implement other" incidental take avoidance measures" as specified in the SJIVISG'P
pursuant to scparate consultation with other affected ag ncies, as appropriate.

43.'    All areas to be graded and left undeveloped shall have a revegetation plan as part of the
dust control pmgram. The Community Developmcnt Director shall approve the
revegetation plan. The applicant shall guarante the revegetation prior to issuance of the
Grrading Permit for the site.

PRIUR TO RECORDATION

Generail Reunirements

4.4.    The spp}icaat sl all pay all application, plan chxk and inspection fees, reeordation fees,
park in-lieu fees, encroachment permit fees, segegation of assessment fces and other
applicable miscellaneous fecs in cffect at the time the fee is paid as required in the IVlaster
Fe Schedule or LMC.

45.   Prior to rxordation ofeach final r sideatial map and cach non-residential building     •    
pemiit, the applicant shall pay fees to tine Gity for reimbursement of tiiose uaprovements
tbat wcre reqnired by the City to be iastalled byprevious dcveIopers, and that have been
dedicated to the City. Fees collect ci by the City shall be used. to rci.mburse the previous
develaper for that gortion ofthe costs ofthose improvaments: The amount ofthe fee

s2 a11 b detcrmined by tho City up m submission by the previons develop er of
information aufficient to establish the fo$owing:

ja the cost of improvements constracted that, in the opinion of the City, contai.n
supplemental size, aapacity, mm bbr or lmgth in cxcess of#hat required for thc
previous developer' s subilivision, and tliat wer requu ed by the City tn be
installed for tho benefit ofproperty not included in tho.previous developers'  ,     
subdivision;

3

COA LJniti( McKea)3. doc  _   2/ 13/ 04 gage 8

r..    

r:  .. s. .:     . ,._,  .. . .   _.  ...   .   ° "'_:.  .;...".'... . r.  ...   .  . _

431



F    - 
t F t

t       ._:
p    +,  .

x.   y
4

c

L.._.-.,_,.>..,...._..,_     ......._._....__._.__,.._...... u._... c...._,_,...._......_...._..._.........__.__._...._,....... a.. k_«._.._ _.._......_.._.._..._....,.,..,........A.. w.

r.

s''=: s'..',
f`

zx;=m",u...'. F;-. trs. o-^`` .."'

z"_,_- 
r..is'.,, tse'.... 1..'. w. tz.`: re';-' t.,"à',__`,

a. Y..+'„€'.k s'4';:;;.:=.. P:.. ar:: i:3

Prioi tn ReCn[ L13ti0II

b.  the proportional cost of such improvements that.is.not attnbutable to the benefit
ofproperty included in the final map or huilding permit for which the .
improvements were required and constructcd; and

c.  an amount attn'buta.ble to interest.. Inteaest shall not commarce until the
reunbursable aniount has becn detcrminod.by tha City. Intarest shali be
calculatc annually and sha11 be based ori the Local Agency Tnvestment Fund
L•

46.     The applicant shall make a good faith cffort to acyuire all required off-site groperty

interests necessary to construct or provide improvements includi.ng, but not lmuted to,
temporary construction easements rcquired by the G ty. If the agplicant fails to acquire

i thc neoessary off-site property interests at l ast 120 days prior to submitfal of any
i residential final map or commercial building permit, the appIicant shall enter into an
i agreement consistent with the provisions of Government Code 66462 to complete the

improvemeuts at such time as thc Gity acquires the praperiy interests requ ed for the
improveuieuts. The agreeanent shall provide for payment by applicant af all costs
ineurrcd by the City to acquire tht o site proporty intcrests. Security for a portion of
these costs shall be in the fomi of a cash deposit in the amount spxified in the appraisal
report obtained by agplicant, at applicant' s coat. Thc Dircctor af Pubiic Works shall
approve the sppraiser prior to commencement ofthe appraisal process.    

f 47.     Easeme.nts of record not shown on the tentativo map shall be relinquished or zelocated.
Lots affectedbypmposed ease cnts or easemenfs ofrecord, which camnat be .
relinquishai orrelocated, shalt be icdesigned. AIl easeraents for off-sitc grading and
drainago shall be acquaed prior to approval of construction on these properties.

48.     The spplicant shall participate in the funding and re mbursemen# agroem nts for the
design and construadon of wastcwater and potable ground water facilities that will

bonefit the property( specifically rela.tcd to WRP No. 1 and well field expansion) by
which the applicant and other pariies( if applicable) will advance fimds tu the City,
receive rights to use porkions of tha utility capacities created, and receive fx credit rights

i for the utility capacities created from the.City, and reimbursement rights from.other
parlics benefiting from the new capaci ies.

i 49.     A11 sewer, water and recycled water facilities shall conform to the Water, Wastewater,
and Recycled Water Master Plan and the WLSP. The applicant sha1I prepare pl s for

these facilitics in accordance with the I3esign and Construotion Stanciards in effect at the
time the improvemenYplans are sv,hmitted. Tho plans shall be reviewed d approved by
the Director ofPublic Works prior to apgroval of the final map. The submittal shall
includo any pertinent engineering analysis and design calculations.

50.     All water meters shall be within the public right-of-.way oi publio utilities easement
PtTE) unIess the Director ofPiiblic Wozks specifically appmves exceptions. The City   

sball not maintain water and sewer system lines beyond existing main line siub ou#s or an

COA Umtl( McRee)3. do  2/ 13/ 04 gage 9

1
r?^'_  ,.       ..:    

Z   ..:.
f' C:,:

i   .  ".:.   c....   .  ..::: a . .^'      .:".. 5  :. ., ''     . ::".  .  v...e   ..  „ ...  . ,.. _.    .   .   ..  . .   .   

432



a     ,..     ,,    }  e.>

w........,,,._.....,............. dy....,.. w..._..,,,..,,_........ b.e_,.'.......
c.,.._._....,,_ z.,.. a.   ......__.. e. s...        ....,...... x... d...._,._._,.._,_.... G:.....un,..,. c<.. 31

i....:,_,_
v_..v-.,.

r.a.     _ . ai .
n ,

s >     ..,;, t     _:.      >       .,: a.=c.,_ -:..       c'.   ,..'_,     , r :;v,-,'; z'   - r`_xx,-'.$• r'-    "" k'.
n

tz"   , az=:.'"
e".`""   ,."'

S`= saa r-:-...,a44§  a..:' s "'" e=

K .

r " z.:v..  

Prior to ReCotdahoIl

private properiy, unless otherwise agreed to by the City. Access easements shall bo iveu
to the City and record cl concurrcntly with the fizial map far any excegfi ns approved by
the Director ofPublic Warks that r qnire access to privafe property.

51.     By title shcet dedication, at the time of filing each residcntial final map or first non-
residential building permit, the cieveloper shall dedicate all ground water rights for that
final map or building permit area to the City.

52.     The applicant shall pro ide cable or conduit for each residcntial lot for cable television or
Intemet access. Th applicant s1 all provide cable or conduit for fiber optics or othor
smart technologies for each commctcial Iot for Intemet access. The cable or conduit
shall be shown.on the joint trench improvement plans and'constructed before th final li.ft
of asphalt is p]aced on the adjacent street.

53.     The property lines on each lot shall be dcsignated with a cross markal on the sidewalk
and a 2" x 2" x 12" redwood stake with a tack on aa off-set at each rear corncr and each

angle point along the lot ines.

54.     The applicant shsll establish a caanmercial ma.in.tenance association consis ing of
ProP Y ownera of commcrcial lands anc]! or commc ial busintss owners. The
mamtcnence association shall be responsi le for maintaining all coaimon fac itics,  
including, but not limited to, common drive aisl s, alleys, laaes, parking facilitios, an-site
andscaping and landscaping in sdjactnt public rights-af-way, paying for security Iighting

and auy common garbage collection services and seeurity paSrol seivices, ifprovidcd, and
any other functions ofa maintenance associatiun. The maintenance association shall
comply with all NPDES permit requirements and approved Best Maaagemmt Practices.

55.     The CC&R's shall prolubit the an-site pazkiug af recreational vehicles, including boats,
unloss separate storage facilities are provided or the velucles aze IoEatedbehind a 6- foot
Iughfence in the side yard. 

56.     The spplicent shall install mailtioxes as roquired by the UDC. The applicant sball submit
a mailbox plan to the Planning Division for NDR review and approval. A plaa showing
the locations and sizes of the mailboxes for all lots sha l be approved by the I,athrop Post  
Office and included with the second sut mittal of the civil im}iravcment plans. Prior to

sulimitting the improvement plaas fqi sgproval, the applicant sha11 submit tn th City a
vtirrittea confirmation$ om the Lathrop Post Office that the mailbox locations.are
approved. The locatian plan must bo acceptable to the City.

Public Works

57.     As part of the first final map, the spplicant shall dedicate or offer for dedication with aa
irc vocable offer of dedication or other dncumeat acceptable to the City Attomey and thc
epplicant, the full street right-ofway and public utilities easemcnts( PUEs) for Golden
Valley Pmisway. Land dedicated for the Goldea Valley Pazkway center median shall be a
cralidreimbursable for or from G'F? Transportetion fces, as applieable. Any change in the

COAUmtl( Mcgee)3. doe tii3ma ge io

433



SK..     -.
T

t
jt kr

x  :.     
N' x ..: f'           Y Z .    . 3     

Y ,  
4

i  _.      
s.

s^ 5" .:_  ,} a a -'  i { z.    '-  .  , y". 4   "
r_ _% {-'

i-.
3    '` ( T i:      ,.,   

sE``        -      ,-„

s.   
s   '. r.'y;.,....._.. a..,...... e._r-.. K........     .,

ti:.  . s..s`:...._,:. u            .   ' c.....a._.. m._......_. i.-....,......_.d,. l. r._. k      

x   ' b+7`<    . ...     '_+ Y.^.s:.. a. Sx. Y=-'*,'.  r  .,. r c  ..- y_     L_   x       7   '        

xa.... .:`
5....., a.-`  . x ...-'

ti--'Q`. i;ri: ash̀e'. i-HS„ i Y" i T̀.
s" a -

r'a."   .` x.f '"'.'r,. r,'.;.."' n' ' 3=si

PIIOI t0 RGCDIf 8t1DII

length, location or geomctrics of Golden Valley Perkway shall be considered a non
substantial change in the Vesting Tartative Map.

58.   All driveways on Golden ValleyParkway not at a signalized iatersection shall include a
dcdication to the City ofan additiona112 f ot( 12' 00' of right-of-way on each sidc of     
such drivewaye for accelerationldeceleration laaes that will eliminate tumiaS m vement
conflicts with the througli tr c movemcn The accelcration/ decelcration lencsshall bo
designed by a traffic enginecr prior to submittal to the Dinctor ofPublic Warlrs for
approval. The additional right-of-way shall be included on tho final map, where
BPP ato.  

59.     As part of the first residential final map, the agplicant shall dcdicate or offer for
dedication with an urevocable offer of daiicaiion or other document acccptablo to the
City Attomey and the applicant, the full sheet right-ofway and PUEs for McFCee
Boulevard within the limits ofVcsting Tentative I Iap Tract 3073 and construct or
guarantee the construction ofMcKoe Boulevard between Johnson Ferry Road and Towne
Centre Drive.      

60.     Section 12. 12.070 ofthe LMC requires residential development to eonstruct 22 feet of
asghatt concrete pavement, and commercial develapment to construct up to 42 feet af
asphalt concrete pavement across their frontage. The CFF Tr sportation fee gives CFF
Transportation f e credit for asphalt concrete pavemcut on arterial streets beyond the first

a travel lane acljacmt#o the dcvelopment. The followirig requiremcnts are dete incd to

be the equivalent ofthe above requirements and azc being substitutad in full compliance
with these iequirements.

a Prior to approval ofthe first residcntial final map th.e applicaat shall construct or
guarantee the constractian ofthe easterly one-half ofGolden Valley Parkway;
including curb and gutter, thiee travel lanes, the easterly median ctab and

streetliglits. Additionally, the applicant shall consttuct or guarantex the
construction of the curb, gutter, meandcring sidewaik and parkway landscaping
improvements oa the westerly sidc of the street, as shown on the WI P and
UDC. These improvemants shall extead from River Islands Paric vay to the south
side of the shopping center entrance.      

b.  Prior to approval of the second residential final map, the applicant shall construct
or gusrantec consb uction ofthe raised landscaped median in Golden Valley

ParYway from River Islands Pazkway to tha south side ofthe ahopping center
entrance.     

7

c.  Prior to approval of the third or final nsidential fi al map, whichever is 5rst, the
applicant shall consixuct or guaraatee the conshvction ofthe easte=ly one-halfof
Golden Valley Parkway, inclucting curb'ancl gutter, thrce travel lanes, the oastcrly
median curb and streetlights. Additionally, the applicant shall eonstruct or
guaraatee the eonstruuction oftlie curb; guttcr, meandering sidewalk and pazkway
landscaping improvements on fihe we torly side of Golden Valley Parkway as

COA Unitl( McRee)3. dnc 2J13/ 04 paga l I

w-      .     T  :.  ..' . .. . '.,+,_

r..... . ,:.s._ , ,.-

s_'!..   ..    <..._.. ,

s. c s.   .     .,

434



j
j

7           f      4 b
y

K,

i
1 T       7

2 S     i y
S j..,N(      ,.  .

a—........,...<_.......... l. v......._......._.,..._.. v u._.........,.L:..a....`.. .. a<....._..... _...'. u. . t..' iX: t_.... r

y ..

r.__...._.._.,...>..1..__...e:..sZ

s:. rt s-' t::t  , 4i4-•..w.,_,... v.z.' r'.E. 1° '-,*..,: 7Fi. '   - w-        : sa -;. i s::  ,  . i.v..w   €'..`'  ..
a:< 5.     >. s:,.,.[ a

c_R' x'. n... r..K-     -,: v   >., r r _.."','     --.=..
r: a.a va' ir_.,..."r' 3,- ., i s. -._,, wi"`'Na..x'.,...:G..r..---_.+.. i:;:." '"•x...,'-_--*:........_.,+ r€',"r.:aà

Prior to Recordation

i shown on the WLSP and UDC. These improvements shall extend from the    .

shopping center entrance to Towne Centre Drive, inoluding a transitian to any
j existing asphalt pavement at Towne Centre Drive.

i d.  Prior to approval of the third or final residential final map, whichever is ftrst, the
applicant shall construct or guarantee the construction of the northerly one-half of
Towne Centre Drive, ineluding the curb and gutter, sidewalk, two travel lanes, the
northerly median curb and streetlights. These improvements shall extend from
Golden Valley Parkway to Manthey Road. Any change in the length, location or
geometrics of Towne Centre Drive shall be considered a non-substential change
in the Vesting Tentative Map.

e.  The conslruction or guarantee of consh uction of asphalt ooncrete pavement and

median as applicable beyond the second travel_lane on the easterly side of Golden
Vall y Parkway by the residential developer shall be a credit/reimbursable for or
from CFF Transportation fees.    

61.     Prior to approval of the first non-residential buildi.ng permit on Parcel G, the applicant
shall eonstruct the meandering sidewalk and parkway landscaping improvements on the
easter3y side of Golden Valley Paikway from River Islands Parkway to the shogping
center entrance as shown on the WJ.SP and UDC, and guarantee construction of a traffic

signal at tho Golden Valley Parkwaylshopping center entranca.

a.  Prior to approval of the first non-residential building permit for any subsequent
phase of shopping center development that is proposed south ofthe shopping
center entrance, the applicant shall construct siniilar improvements along the

a easterly side of Golden Vallay Parkway from the shopping centar entrance to
f      • Street" N'.       .

62.     Prior to the issuance•of the fizst non-residential building peimit on Parcel G, the applicant
shall dedicate the full sfreet right-ofway and PUEs for fhe southerly one-half o River
Islands Parkway( includi.ng all necessary tiun lanes and deceleration lanes) within the
limits of Vosting Tentative Map Tract 3073, and shall construct or guarantee the.

j construction ofthe southerly one-half ofRiver Tslands Parkway from the I-5 on-ramp to      .
Z Golden Valley Pazkway. Improvements shall include: 

a.  Asphalt street pavi.ng and street lights,

b.  a raised landscaped median and a traffic signal at the River Islands Parkway
shopping center entrance, and

c.  the curb, gutter, eight-foot wide meandering sidewalks and pazkway
improvements on the southerly side ofRiver Islands Parkway as shown on the
WLSP and UDC. 

a
i

COA Unitl( McKce)3. doc 2/ 13/ 04 page 12

x

i...       . i,,'       • fr u       :

435



c A.    Y 5 i    . z         L-    t,.- ;
y      °

s- k  -,,.   r r
r   '

s     : r     f  '

z      {   ..  

y
a £ S 4    %   

Y
c.:       . #    

a. :.,
ss s i..

a

t p a >_   4 5  X'`'.       4  ',      t    _

i.'.:'..,.,_.,._..___._.....'a:<. a.._ i-._........._....1-...     ..._....,.-'   .: s i_.,...,......r-.o.`.W;  a  =:.::...- a..* u..>uz w..._...:'.,...  
zs..n   _ la....

i
1

i•       

d.  The constiuctian oz guarantce of conshuction by the applicant of asphalt cancrete

I pavemcnt and median on River Tslands Parkway beyond requir t n lanes and

accel ration/ decelerafion laiies shall be a credit/reimbursable for or fmm CFF
Transpdrtation fees, as appliaablo.

63.    It is not anticipated tl at any additional right-of-way will b requir d from Parcel G in
oider to construct future improVemcnts to the sonthbound on-ramp i the southwest
quadrant afthe I-5%Louise Avenue intcrchange. However, the Projecct StudyReport
PSR) for this interct ange which will eestablish a Praferred Alternative design for fiitatte

improvements to this interchange, has not been completed at the time ofpre}iaration of
these Conditions. I pursuant to connpletion ofthe' SR, additional right-ofway is
needed to accommodate impmvemeats in the southwest quadrant of tlus interchange,
such right-of-way shall be dedicated grior to issuance of the first nonresideatial building
petmit on Parcel G. Land dedicated for such puzpose sk all be a c=cdiUreimbursable for or
from CFF Transportation fxs, as applicable. I prior to issuanCe of the firstnon-
residcntial building pennit on Parcel G, Caltraas determines( pursuant to the I-S/ I.ouise
Avcnue PSR) that a cloverleaf on-ramp is necessary in the northwest qusdrarit ofthat
interchange, tt e location of the River Islands Parkway/shopping centor antrauce shall be
placed so as to align with a patential I southbound offramp, to the extent possible. 

a.  If,prior to issuance of the fcst non-residential building peanit on Pareel G,
Caltrans has not made a datermination or has determined that a cloverleaf on-

iRIIIP 15 IIOt IICCCSSaT} At 1C IIOP 1WCSt CjlladTlIIt Of fI IIItCIC.18IIgC, thc locakione

of the shopping center mfraace shall be basal on intersection design and spacing
criteria as provided in the UDC, LMC aad Design and Construction Standards.

b.  The traffic si als at the River Islands Pazkway/shopping center entrance shaIl be
designed and canstructcd to include turning moveme,nts Iimited to lpft_aad ri ht
turns in and right turns otrt. No left t s out of the shopping center onto River
Islands Pazkway shall be permitted.

64.    Prior to the issuance of the first non-residential building permit on Parcel F, the applicant
shall conshuct or guarantee the construction of a raisal landscaped mediaa in Golden

alley Parkway from the south side ofthe shopping ccnter entrance to Towne Ccntre
Drive, and fiill s ext improvements on both eides of Manthey Road.

65.    The design ofail traffic signals shall be a proved by,the Director ofPublic Works and
includa a 3M Addressahle Opticam Tzaffic Control Pra-emption,dcvice, detectors, and/ or.
reflebtors( or equivale t hasad on currem Polica and Fire Services standards). The

conduits and pull isoxes for future traffic signals shall be installed at the time the streot
pavement is conatrnctcd.

66.    Prior to tho-issuance afthe first non-residential building permit an Parcel G, the$ pplic nt
shall constxuat or guarantce the construetion ofa eo ecting road at a loeation aeceptable
to the City and the spplicant, from Golden Valley Pa=kway to Maathey Raad. The
applicant shall provide the legal descriptions and plats and pay all costs to vacate the

COA Umti( McKa)3, doc 2/ 13/04 page I3

f.. ^      :..^,..  . q.,.-..     .:, - n-- r.ty..',+ rr"  .. 1T^'-  C/,- r,T'"  g     —v'._       -
a: i n .   - C:: r 1 e t     .-. c.... .   '.'.    . .`'.      

436



A

f y r.  ,    ,       -  
y

z:^
S       `  ¢     .    

z 4̀   . 3   t      ,. ,      
x -      

i l 5-^.
x, ., ,.

r"'" . x    '{,B y: 
L,.      , ,     z  

7. '       n.r
i

S_   a y
a r  a i     , a i

s E..._.._-  `  _. s,,._._._..,     z rrt    
K,.

rv:..• r-     _ ti:.'    xn: y-.-,..      +-     ` C:,  ....,..   Ts<L e'.: t4/  : M1: s       :_      ' l   '. ' si2 '--•   - w'.y,.f,- a.  .. ,....... 
ix":'`^$``?:-,"`

a" z.,.', 5?-. e.'
L',..- r. s: a,.    

b..    '

z.. ut,,._   = 9

Prior to Recordation

segment ofManthey Road between the onnection to Golden Valley Padcway and River
Islands Pazkway. Upon completion;of the vaca#ioa of3vfanthey Road, the roadway
surface shall be removed. Continuons acccss to Manthey Road from River Islands
Parkway and/ or Golden Vall yParkway shall be maintained at all times, with appropriate
signage to indicate.circulation access routes,

67.     The applicant shall provide the legal descriptions, plats and pay all cost to vacate Louise
Avenue west of State Route I-5. The vacation shall be completed prior to the approval of
any residential final map or cammercial buikling permit utilizing, or adjacent to, a ,
partion of the vacated Lauise Apenue right-of-way. All remaining public an:a( easement
or fee title) shall be improved to stendard established by the Community Development
Director and these Consiitions of Approval at applicant' s co t. All improvements sballbe
submitted to the Planning Division for NDR review and approval and ineluded on the
streot impmvement plans approved by the Director ofPublic Works.       

68.     All pavement widening shall begin at the median or thc edge of the existing sourid
structural section. The applicant ehall provide indapcndart testiag of the existing
pavement to determin the location oftlie adequate structural pavement section prior to
tlic approvai ofthe street improvement glans.

i 69.    The applicant shall provide a 2-inch thick asphalt overlay ovcr tho cxisting street

jpavement if trcnclring is done in en cxisting improved street that is less than 5 yeazs old.
The trench bacl ll shall be in accordance with Standard Detail R29B and include
paving reinforcing fabric over the irench.  

70.     Stre tlights sha11 conform to the UDC and be submitted for NDR review and approval. A
j separate street light location pl shall be submitted for appmval by the City Engineer

and included with tho Bxond submittal ofthe eivil improvement plans. The appli,cant
shall detcrmine the connection points to the electrical power source for all shzet lighting
and the wire and conduit size and include this information with the improvernent plans
submitted f r appmval.      

i

j71.     Traffic indices and the design ofthe payame.nt st uatural sxtions for all etreets shall be

3 based on the Design and Construction Standards and he consistcnt with the adjaceat
developmeut. Traffic ndices and the design of t ie pavemcnt strrictival sections for
private Ianes shall based on a minimum Traffic rndex of5. 0. The maxim. RValu of

native matcrial shall be R= 50. . All material in the design ofthe street struciural sechion

with an R-Value greater than 50 shall be Class II material.

t
72.     All driveways and lanes shall be private facilities with driveway approaches. A visible

dendarcation-shall scpara#e the public and private areas. The applicant shall show th

j proposed structural sectio s for the lanes on thc street improvemmt plens approvcd by
the City and pay the City' s plan check and insp ction fce far the impmveme, ineluding
the water, rccycled water, sewGr and stoTm drainage facilitics in this azea. Tha lanes shall
bo draincd at a minimum slope of 1. 0% for asp'balt siafaces apd 0.3% for Portland

cement conerete surFaccs. Reciprocal access agrcements eball bo required on all

COA Unitl( McKee)3.8oc Z/ 13/ Q4 pagc 14

r--•.__+."!_','^_"^_-' , .__
t    '_-^+"^•" xp._.;,—. ."" 2'_'_.'   l    ':" C.^',"_.  

t . F   ....       ..<...  .  ,    _... ,.. .  . ,. . .     ,     ..   ......

437



t,
f    &      .

P i-       '`:.'  is..:  4}

1Z
rb .:_ 4

v...  k *  ...   

X .   

s

a, 1 3 . e   %   '.;
r t  - xi  s      i s      .:       .    r F

N . 

K1
r  ..   eY` rr S

r     } v..s..a... w,v...:... i.r4,...._._:r': z-
r:,s.  

r
t...._.....   -?   '' 2  ^

5 4..      . y..,   '    { a.=x..z. F%.. y,_r..y.......o.... t..,s_.      _..      " K3.. i;      . v.a

r a...-,,... 

ti:-,.  r , 1.`: 'w';,
t.;,-i r,iu:u.+.' a3.    . , w .'--.,: r  ..; .-'., r","''.:- r- s      

i.
i',,--`""' .>     7 l̂-,.a^•'

Yriorto Rocoidatioa

properties that abut laues A, H and C. A copy of tha rocorded covenant requiied by the
LMC shall be submi# ed to the Director ofPublic Works prior to approval of the finel
map( Chapter 16.24.020().

73.     Safety lighting for residontial dwelling units t1 at dn not front on a publio street shall be
provided at the curves in the lanes and as indiyidual Iights on each residential unit. The
Director ofPublic Works and tho Chiaf fPolice shaIl approve the lighting plaz prior to
approval of the final map.

74.     The applicent shall contact the solid waste franchisai hauler and obtain iss written
approval ofthe proposed solid waste pickup locations on lanes. The piekup locations
shall not be located in emcrgency ve sicle access easements( 0' oot wide firc access     ,
lanes). A cdpy ofthe writtcn appinval from the solid waste franchised suler shall b
submitted with the second aubmittal of the improvement plans for City review.

a 75.     Prior to recordation ofthe first final map, the agplicant shall verify compliance with the
City' s Recycled Water Facilities Report for the Vesfing Tentative Map ar a. AlI iecycled
water improvements shall be built to standards and plans approved by the Director of
Public Works.     

76.    Frior to rxordation of the first final map, the applicant shall verify compliaace wiW the
City' s Storm Drain Rcport for the Vesting Tentative Map area, including the following:

a.      The eriteria for proposed storm drain improvementa to conform ta.the rcgniiements

imposed an'the City under Phase II of the Na onal Pollution Discharge EIimination
System( NPDES) Program.

b.      A maintenance and operation plaa for mainta.ining thc storm drain system for the
Vesting Tcntative Map area, particularly sny atorm drain lines or ponds that will
contain watcr for long geriods of time, that includes apprn ed Best Management
Practices( BMPs) such as' swales and infiltration basins. .  

c.      A storm watcrmonitoring plaa that insures the long:term health of the walcr features.
The monitoring plan will verify that the BMPs are fimctioni.ng coaectly, insure that
the watcr quality in the basins is not degrading and include policies and proccdures
that will assist the oversxing agency in remedying a probleaiif it were to occur.

77.     All usable portions ofresidentisl Iots shall drain positively to the strcet. A1l lots that back
onto a street shaIl be gradod so that all drainage shall be away from the fence or wall.      

78.    Prior to recordation afthe first residential fmal map or issuance of the first commerciai
building permit, the applicaat sF all, at applicant' s cost, con5rm the location of the-
proposed watcr storago tank; confirm the size ofthe re+quired parcel of land for tl2e water  ,
storage tanl dedicatc the land for thc water tank; and complete or guarantee the desi n
and conslrnction of the watea tank and thc connections to the existing water distribution
system. The design of the water tank and the Iandscaping plans shall be submitted for
NDR review and approval. The cons iuction ofthe water tank shall be completed prior to
acceptaacc ofthe public improveme s for the first residential final map qr first

COA U:ritl( hicKee)3.doc 7J13/44 gag 15

y
c-^,^..^-^'^-^-.T'T' rv'^"'  

NT y
r—

u u  . :.::u ".       .. .   ... .  . . .- it..   .  .. ..'  .., 
a  ...

r   -;       ....,

438



5
a 3.     2 r,' G      -     t E       '  .? v     ° r, 2    

r_._ w J..._u.._.L...._....__......._._.........._.. Y.,._ i.....,.._.  
Y   .__..___    '--   

w. '   (` xa_.... J....'
s'___._."1'='-iv: a, r_

c. mui - -     rt- n4^ x '    .+ CqSc::i J+"W L--s.=-.     . f-.+`! Lyy k....^.   : 7
r+.. Mtr' x̀._'  '. - i C     -. s.,- i»

v   ." v1-.'°"`>      "` f.`   .-_: 8' vYJ"s,f̀."...-=... s::...: o-   -. ezr:r:s.. rr,.  .: u*-.    cad.;:-    -...  ._._.,

1

Prior to Recosdation

r

icommercial b ailding permit The costs of the land and the costs for desi n and
construction of the water tank by the developer shall be a credit/reunbtQsable for or from
CFF fees, as applicable.     

79,     The applicant shall coordinate with the local bus system authority to facilitate local bus
a service in the project and to deternune bus stop locations and shelter improvements. The       '

bus shelters shall be shown on the unprovement plans and reviewed and approved by the
D'uector afPublic Works. A copy of the writtcn correspondence with the local bus
system suthority shall be sub nitted with the second submittal of the improvement plans.

80.     All new and existing overhead utiliiy lines shall be plaeed underground in accordance
with the LMC, Unless above ground facilities are specifically approved by th
Community Development Director, all eleclric transformers shall be placed underground

a5 for residentia] developments.  

f 81.     Above graund utility structures and appurtenances shall be installed within the
applicant' s property line and a minimum of 10 feet belvnd street face of curbs. The
locations shall be screened with landsoaping to the safisfaction of the Community
Development Director. ' The landscape screen shall not interfere with the utility
companies' or LIvIFD' s access.

u
82.     The imgation systems for public landscape areas shall be reviewed and approved by the

Director ofPublic Works. All landscape urigation systems not using recycled water shall
be in canformance with the Cit3' s vvater aonservation requirements where the maximum      _
water allowance( gallons per year)= evapotransportation{ which is equal to 36.6 inches
per year)( 4. 8)( landscaped azea)( 0. 62). Calculations verifying compliance shall be
submitted for review and appro al. The irrigation plans shall include a eerEification on

the plans that the landscaping and irrigation is m conformance with AB 325.

83.     Electrical and water services shall be provided to all landscape medians and walkways

unless specifically waived by the City Engineer. Said services sha11 be shown on the civil
improvement plans appmved by the Director ofPublic Works.

84.     The applicant shall pay the park-in-lieu fee as required by the State Quimby Act and the
LMC. The pazk-in-lieu fee will be based on the ratio of3. 59 persoris per household as
derived from the 2000 US Census. The park-in-lieu fee payment shall be based on the
value of a buildab]e acre of land with all utilities in place.

fi

Planning Services
a

S5.     Neighborhood Design Review( NDR} is required to ensure that particular azchitectural

and urban planning design guidelines, as 5et for in the UDC, are followed for each final
map. The applicant shall pay the cost for NDR

86.     Prior to approval of the architectural, canceptual landscaping plans, entryway features
and proposed median landscaping, the plans shall be submitted to the Planning Division

i COAUmtl( McKee)3. doc 2/ 13/ 04 page 16      _

3

R.   .    . .    .,  ,. ..      ,.     . ,  

439



S  ..       S      " " L 5 y
1  ;.  y Y ti       ;     ..     

r  }",'
t t     ;"'' 4   j.:       ., a   '`"  , f

z          T
r_c'',. ;..`'._.:    

r 2' M
ty

s
v        

i.

r.   . m. z_.._,.._ z°-, t_...?.ae.__,.:.,:, r:." y.,u:; bo,r_..e:-,:, z. 9_:._-_. t.....,...._   .. s.._.,._..      .  '
z    ,,....,.''•_ s.    7_.,.

i: t,
s...   ,-..... z       ,

u• nK   . r- . c  .. :_    s  ``-"     '"'-   
a. s"à1' d3d"-' ... z,.      :«   . wv.    a,.

aF.r'.s"'+.` Yrai.:r-`."`' F`^::. Y"'.' d
as. x e:sJ.-g.a" -.._    

PIlOI t0 RCCOIa8tI0II

far NDR review and approval. Tho design of the entryway features and median
landscaping shall be consistent within the Vesting TcntativeMap area and conform to the
standards in the 20Q3 WLSP and UDC. The applicant shall retain a licensed landscape
arc}utect to prepaze specifications and working dra vings for all landscape improvements.

87.     The sh eet names and the theme for a11 strect name signage, includiug tra.ffic signal
signage, street corner signage, direcfional signs, and ather permancnt fixtures depicting     •
street names shall be submitted to tbe Planning Division for NDR review and approval.   . .
The applicaat shall fund the costs for the NDR and dcveloping street name sign designs.

88.     1'he agplicant shall dedicate and construct or guazantee the construction ofthe
neighborhood connection walkwe.y between Johnson Ferry Road and Sfnct" A",_and fhe
neighbozhood connection wa]kways betwecn Goldcn Valley Parkway snd 5treet" K", as
shown on the Vesting Tcntative Map and UDC. Eascmcnts sba,ll be dcdicated to the City
for the walkways. The improvements shall,be shown on the street improvemcnt plans for
each applicable fmal map and approved by the Director ofPublic Warks.

89.     Th6 aeighborhuod connection walkways shall receive spxial landscapmg treatment and
include a textured concrete, ar similar type hard surface, p deshian walkway; The walls
shall have a 5- foot maintcnance easement. The Director ofPublic Works, Community
Devclopment Director and ChiefofPolice shall approve the plans.

a Unless the waIkway is adjacent to a public irrigated Iandscap d area, each
waIkway shall have a sopazate water meter. Spr,cia] strect lighting shall bc
aesi a to li nt tne en e waikway with a minimum of i-foot candIe of light at
ground level during darl ess with vandal-pzooffixtures.   

b.      Th design may include walls or fences on the adjacart parcels to prot ct their
property from trespassers. Masonry walls.shall be trea.ted with a' special graffiti
resistant coating or climbing vines.      

c.      The neighborhood connection walkway-connectiug Street" A" to Johnson Ferry
Road shall be deaigned to requiro bike ridcrs to dismount aad proceed slowly
towerd the sppmach to Johnson erry Road.

d.      The neighbvrhood connection watkways cannxting to Golden Valley Parkway
shall include a design for the Golden Valley Parkway raised median that will

i prolubit or severely discovrage mid-bIockbike or pedestrian crossi.ngs.
1

90.    The loaation of all neighborhood connection walkways shall be disclosed to homebuyers.
All neighborhood connxtion walkways shall be marked with a sign approved by the
Commtmity Developmart Director. The sign sball be placed at the beginning of the

i .     
strect constrqction and remain until the last house on the block is occupied. The sign

s}iall advise the public that the walkway will be opcn for public use.

1

COAU 1( McRa)3. doc 2/ 13/ 04     '   page 17

r    _-•-.-._- _       

b q  
t 7    ..   .« 

e_:.

Y x... '    :... :

YF   ..,    
x

f '  z'. 
L,      -.. ki   . .  .. .:#   t . .l _ .    .. . ,      ..  .     

440



f  .. 
1

t '{} 
p    - 1      .       ?. k     .,.

na     ..,   6  §     
z  .'.

J" r :
d      .:. T

S  .  
A     : y f

F,  ty     t-  ^    .  .,,

1
r''o    _:.  

4i...
u,,..
F,..  ...'\ n.. ...'[  ':

S Y ri,>._.. .. i
L+,

s as...:..':'_. u,. i-_i,_,...i.,: 5' a    .: F.,._
S. s. r "'_...`...-..

Y.`
k..'-....'..

1L;: Y;^. s.-`'-"k

q'     `

r„'     --_,...^: 15a::ir."*:+"'';+'
r'._`'Y° w€,-      '

F _
sn-=.,s'''' xiiir'"    ' e sl^"`  T' a:    4}"'   ':.' ui-:.., -`-'•'` a   _ Sr    - y 4; l   .

i'       

Priot to Rxordation

Pnblic Safetv

91.     If applicant enters into a mitigation agree ent with the Fire District, the terms of the
agreement shall apply. The City shall make a good faith effort to work with the
respectivo parties to implement such agrc ment.    

92.     The agplicant shall pay applicable Fire Facility Foes and assessments in accordence with
the City ofLathrop fec schedule in farce at the timp ofdevelopment. Ifrequired in order
to maintain firc district response time standards, and when requ sted by the LMFD, the
City may requirc that these fees be paid at the ti.me of filing final maps.    

93.     Private laaes shall be covcred with minimum 20-foot wide unencumbered emergency
vehicle access eascments and shown on the final map. The Gity will not be responsible
for the maintcnance of sigas and pavement markings on private praperty. The CC& R's
and/ or ci ed restrictions shall includ.e arequirement to inaintain the signs.aa@ pavemcat      .
markings and a proposed maintenance pmgram for all developments served by a lane. A
scparate signiug and striping plan sliall be provided for approval by either the LMFD or

the Police Chief to address on-site stop signs and no parldng.areas.

94:    Prior to appmval of the each final map, the applicant shall pay a on time start-up cos
associafed with police and animal control services needed to scrve the projxt,as

described below to keep the City fiscally whale.   

a.      The one-tima startup cost for pc lice service shall be based on the proporkionate
shaze of the costs•for employing two full-timo police officers and one police
vehicle per each 428 residential units.  

b.      The one- time start-up cost for ani.mal control servic shall bebased one-half of
the City' s costs for employing an animal control officer.

z PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BITII,DING PERNIIT

General Reanirements:

95.    Unless othcrwise spccified in these conditions, the condition in this section shall apply to
each building permit.

96.     The applicant shall provide e master signage program and a` 21 iaster Model Home

Signage" program for all reside ial subdivisions in the Mossdale Landing East
community. The master signage prog ams shall bq submitted ta the Community
Dc,welopment Director for review and approval. Installation of freestanding
subdivisionlFor Sale signs sball be prolu'bited in the street right-of-way and PUEs.

97.    The applicant shall install and maintain on-site display si ns. The on-site display signs
shall indica#e the location for future develapmorit ofschools, fire stations, pafks, cul-de-
sac openings and public accesa ways, apartments, higher density residential sreas, rctail

COAUnitl( McKee)3. doc 2J13/ U4 page 18

a.'   2      <       3      :.
j i .       s

x.     ,...     x.._.  ..  s:^.  .  _..!.  <..__, r.,.  ,..,,_,. „ .. . €.. .... R. .- f .    n  .     .   .     ,._.? r>;

441



z  .
c x.    

y;-
r y s,     

c           
I      3

c_.,....._...:...       ...,. Y.'..___ u._..__.._ i,     ._......_....,.-^_....»...___._,.._.. c.:.:':.....__ i..,..+...._..r      - e...:,..:.. f. r,.. s.1u..._

F.:+
ra a. w,-bri;i{+-.   ,.,°,s,- -:' ' U. r    f-:5'•, ',, y$_^' .. i i "   '   e.s2s.' L  - 4 c*-r-r3.? J?   +-,.:,    xri..,.        : f

a...,_...,.. a.._- v r. 2=.__ -    ....,.     ...- 3 "``''. E      ...,;.,:., c._`:^: G: c.i^-`-»c t.r.'_",:..,.:''`..
s. 

s, a 9

Prior to Bulding Peffiit

uses, employment cen#ers, and religi us instituiions, These signs shall be located in a

manner to be clearly visible to all potcntial homebuye'rs. The signmg plan shall be
submitted to the Community Development Dirxtar for zcview and approval. 

98.     The proj ect is snbj ect to paymcnt ofCapital Facility Fees( C' F) consistent with the
requir ments of the CFF ordinance, anil cnvironmeatal mitigation fees. The spplicant
shall rcceive credit and/ or recceive rei.mbarsemeat ififs credits sre exceeded, against the
appropriate CFF fee for the construction of improvements i.ncluded in the CFF fee study
that aze constructed by the applican The credit, including the property aequisition costs,
will be limited to.the costs included in the CFF fee study. The CFF fee ereciit sha11 not
exceed the eugincer' s cost estimate for the improvements in the GF̀F fee study.

99,     The declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions( CC& R's) filed for each
1 development shall be prominen ly displayed in the proj ect sales office at all times. The

4 CC& R's shall apply equally to both owners and renters. The CC&R's shall bo written to   
iallawless than a majority of owners along privato lanes" A",'B" and" C' to hav

pavement or landscape mainfenanco done and the cost thcreof assessed to all owners

benefiting from the improvcmcirts. The CC& R' s sball include a pavement maintenance
program for on-site pavement of private lanes.

BaildinQ 5ervices

100.   No building or sbructure regulated by the City, wluch requires a buildin permit, shall be
erect canstructod, enlar ed, altered, repaired, movod, im roved, removed,     g P d, converted

i or demolished.unl ss a separate permit for each building or structure has be n obtained.

101.   Each dwelling unit shall be provided with at least one electrical and gas hookup in ths
rear yard in a location approved by the Building Official.

r

Pablic Vorks
4

102:   The apgficant shall comply with all applicable Reasonably Available Control Measures
RACN preparcd by the San Joaquin ValIey Unificd Air PoIlution Cvntrol District d

approved by City Council.    

Plannins Services

143.   The applicant shall comply with the acoustical analysis requirement for all residential
projects and show that the interior noise levels wil] achiove the raquirements ofTitl 24.

J Buildi.ngs shall be onstructed to mect all such requirements.

104.   The applican.t shall conshuct sound baaiars as part o£ any residential finai ma that
includes, or is adjacent to Goldcn VaIley Parkway, McKee Boulevard or 7ahnson Feiry
Road, consistent with the UDC. The d sign and placcment ofwalls and fences shall be in
accordance with these conditians and the standards in the UDC and-LMC and sub iitted      •
for NDR review and approval. The walls:shall havo a 5- foot maiatenance easement

1

COA Unitl( McKee)3,doc 2/ 13iO4 gage 19
J

7';      

S' i;
n.,.       . .      . ...       ....  . ».     ,......       .   .. ,.  i     ,     i.. ..    . -.-..     ,_ . .  .   -  .

442



4            .-    
y,

a,  ::.   ?  ..-.       r.. 2 x.,v^   . E
S..   `' ,:.

I" .  r         ' 

4
e      

u K.   n 3 t     

u"_';r,s? r...is,..,...... a.. c.... aa_.n......._._ w.s_._. .._.. v3: S'..,:_
L.

a.._1.0      u...».Fa+.....

5.re f.?. h.       t t  ..,..._.    
w._ w.. a,_...    _

F  -     y      .. a :..       5 z    :+ ts     ix    E,'      rr x,i,=   e
ck_._'°" c.:  _ r",a'      y';" s. 4= Y^:: i.^'=- K'.:

rr..'€`"' r...'` a

Ptior to Bu ding Permit

along the backup street portion of the lot Restrictod access stiall.be shown on thc final
map. The walls shall be locafed on private property and constivated on the property"side,
of the lot in accordance with the LMC( Chapt̀.er 16.24.020( I)4). All maso ry walls shall
be treatcd with a special graffiti resistant coating or climbing vines.

105.   The design and placement of Commtmity and Ideighborhood Gateway monument signs
and s eet fuiniture as specified in the UDC shall be submitted for NDR review and     .
approval. All Community and Neighborhood Gateway monument signs and straet
furniture in the public right-of-way and PUEs' shall be included on street improvement
p3ans.approved by the Director ofPublic Works and the Community Dovelapment

IDirector.

Pubfic Safetv

106.   Prior to placing any building materiel on the site, a fire protection site plan shall be
submitted to the LNiFD. The fire protoction site plan s3 all include acccss and tumaround
ereas, yard storage areas, hazardous material uae and storage areas and the anangemcnt     

and location ofunderground fir scrvice mains, control valves, fire hydrants unless tbese
facilities have been shown on a proved street improvememt plans. AlI mateiial storage •     
areas ehall be fenced with at] east a 6-foot high chain link fence with at least iwo 20-foot
gates for•fire acr,css.   

1.07.   Prior to placing any flammable or combustible material( such as wood) on the site a
complet« i wet fire hydrants system ar other system approved.by the LIv D or•Public
Works Depaitment, and all wcather roads, shall be in place. Fire access roads sba1l meet

the LMFD and the San Joaquin County Fire CluePs Rire Access Road Stanilard. The fire
acerss mads shall be accessble until aceeptance ofthe public streets by the City.

108.   The City will not permit the construction ofstructures, other than" U-type" structures as
defined by the Buildi.ng Code, greater than 50 feet in heigbt or four sfo ies tnatil the
LMFD possesses appropriate equipment( e.g. aerial trncks) to provide fire suppression
and emergency services to the upper stories of these buil.dings. The epplicaat shall pay to
the LMFD all applicable fire service fe s and assessmente required to pay fo=its fair •
share of this equipment.

109.   The City shall not issue buildi.ng pemuts until the applicant has demonstrated, based on
modeling, that the proj ect provides adequate  II' m fire flows as required by the
Ca]ifornia Fire Codc.

110.   All hydrants shall meet California Fire Code standards pertaining to locations and firo
flow requircments.   

111.   Developer shall conform to the City of Lathrop' s Fire Sprinkler Orclinance.       
i

112.   Prior to placing any building material on site, a security plan shall be submitted to and
approved by the Police Services Depazhnent. The securityplan shall pmvide for fencing,

i COAUnitl( McKee)3.doc 7J13/ 04 page 20

g  ' h.
r      '"     ,' ._     `   

ra, C r,..: .     ...:  ..::,^      .... .    .....  ...    .... ... V       .     . r   ,. , t

L

5

443



7   }    t
Y I

r     _ L x r   '    

va..._...`,.............,,,.._.y..._ C._....,..,_..,_.._...=.}_...__.__,.__..........._ r_._._.._y._...r....a•    °......    

e, st^;:t..+{_ F r.<,'=  *...-     " t r ra.,r"`,4,`_S  z:+`..
r     .,,,,....    .,.,.;q:,     _:      ,_ ..      :.       -            ,?'  '    

3'.-.-..,..:,..«:f,,..,.'-':`.`,.-_-.:.:.... 1.; s rs'. v.E,.fd..ss#+ ::.,. c':. r'' .+:  ,,- un -. s ti'.sc r _,,,-"'
u.r.''3.s-ia_'" r'-"::St

Prior to Building Permit

night lighting and providing for private security ofcontractor' s storage yards at all times
I when material is on the site or on-going construction activity is occuning. A security

lighting plan shall be included for all commercial areas. The plan shall include
lumination of exterior doors with.a minunum of 1- foot candle of•light at ground l vel

i during darkness with vandal-proof fixtures.

I

M

R

7

s

3i

a

3
y

j

i

d

5

17

jj
i

3
j

i

7

iJ

7

i

9    

3

3

i
1

COA Unitl( McKce)3. doc 2/ 13/ 04 page 2Z5

i

n

444



y:   ' ' r' S
A y.-'     ';.   "  

M
f_  .   . 3       --          3` t`    kt+,     S'  

r
E  .[.'

1

t A      i .    ;   - -5

r
y,     L      i            .{.     ` u b   .

4,. L  .#   y        
s.. G' 

yr.
N $ d5.:

aY....:...: S: la ù.::.z.r__r. u'     ,       . 2`.- z  -  . i..:..._'       • iN.ix:.-    ...... r__..._.._.t? _`._.  '       .. 1 `   *''  H._,.s a. w.u_ 5.: Ls.:...'+. e:,'

t;_;:,, 7  .. c -..:  ,.  ,  ...      Ra,  . .,, r G' .  ..:... e:< : ,..... s:,+..  ,..,_   . ,..;..,:._.,.  ""
v. r'

T.'.     _      . sla?=a, -.' n:"     
Fl3a.. aE.. rd1``.'' a,.•  `"'-.,"..:. .'_      z'S:'-'' i:'`-.....`"'"`".'

P310I t0 lil *^ CCLtpBaCY

PRIOR TO BTJIIrDING UCCUPANCY

nildin Services

113.   The Building Services Division shall make a final inspection of eachpermit cd s ucture
after the finish.grading is complcted and tho building is ready for occupancy. INo

i building or shucture shall be used or occupieci, and no chanBe in the existing occupancy
j clsssificafion of a buildi.ng or structaro or portion thereof sball be made until the Buildi.ng

Official hes finalized the building peimik
I

114.   AlI residentisl dwelli.ngs shall display illuminated strcet numbers in a pmminent locaiion
in such a position thaf the numbers are easily visiblo to approaching emcrgenoy vehicles
from botli directions. The n bars shall be of conirasting color to the background to
whicl they are attached and fotu'( 4) inches minimum in height. F7ag lots shall havo their
address displayed in a promi.nent position at the drivcway interaection to the street.

Pablic Works

11.   All bnildings shall be connected. to public vsrates and sewer systems prior to occupancy.
Watcr and sewer service accounts shall be set up with Finance Department for each
structurc with a building permit.

116.   Prior to installation by the applicant, plant species, location, container siu, quality and
quaniity of all landscaping plants and materials shall be reviewed anii approved by the
City Engineer for consistency with the approved consttuction plans, and approved by the
Community Development Director for conformance with the UDC. All plant
replacemcnts shall be to an equal or better standard than originally approved.  

117.   Prior to tho acceptance ofthe street improvemc,ats in each tract, the on-site and off-site     
storm drain inlets shall be labeled` TTo Dumping—Flows to the Delta". The label for thc

storm drain inlets shall be showa on the street imgmvement plans and approved by the
City Engineer.

118.   The applicant shall remove and replace any existing improvements that az damaged
during construction. Any degradation to pavement conditions glong cxisfang streets shall
be fully restored to the exisling condition prioi to degradatioa. Reconstruction ofexisting
streets shall include upg ading the affxted pavement to m t the originsl standard by   
removing, replacing or ovcrlaying existing asphalt pavement to provide a' sound structural
section. All work sha11 be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer at the applicant' s cost.

119.   E cisting streets currently open to the.publia that reguire reconstructian as a result ofthe
constmction traffic for the pmject shall ramain open at a11 times, with adequate detours
during reconstruction. The applicant may provide altemate improvements ifan cxisting
streefs will be rolocated in the future.

COAUmtl( McKx)3. dac 2J13fQ4 page 22

r., x   .
r, , a.. . ry  ......'   Y .. ..:. ,  , 3 0,..+ i    .. . . ,   .....     . ..  ..     ....      .  . .     . '. , . t ...   .    ... . .  ,,... 

i

L

445



i
y

5 
G r'' 

F5' X    ' '

l].  Ye'   :,   
x

w  
t..      

y.       a       t° I.  , l      }      ;...

a?     . c..°;_:..          4"'._'-     ,      '  '
a.,-._...

n-`   

s  

s.         5..•    v'a.   .LL..,,.. v. 3...: Gi.._....: u.._...i., . -,..".„.:..v/•.: s       ,.__•__   n.ck,''  
i

i

1     . rrio m a oc y

12Q.   A solid wasto-recycling program shall be implemented foz all non-zesidential
develapments. Tho recycling;pro am sball include ttiofollowing ol ents:( 1) the types

of solid waste rccycling progiam generated,( 2) how tiic waste will be collected, (3) how
fhe waste that will be diverted through source reducbion,( 4) the methods for sorting and
disposal:ofthe solid waste, and( tlne reporting methads, 

Plannin 5ervic s

121.   All l dscaping shall be in ac cordance with the UDC. Compliance with tlus condition
shall include a landscaping and urigation plan, witli location, varioty, irrigation, and•other
informatian necessary to deteimine compliance with reguircments. All landscaping e nd
iaigation rolated to that particular building peimit shall be completed within the related
phase of the project prior to finaliizing the building permit. In the Community
Developmcnt Dixector' s sole discretion, finalizing the building permit for a commcrcial

building may be allowed if tha epplicant posts a caah deposit with the City. The amount
shall be dctenmincd by the Coinmunity Dcvelopment Di=ector and guarantee final
completion of landscaping in a timely manner. -   '    ' 

122.   Depending on the location, either a eananent solid 6- foot wood fence, or other fencing
approved by the Community Dev lapmcnt Dircctor, sh811 be placad along the property
line between the developing phase of the Vesting Te,ntative Map area and any adjacent
agriculture use.  

Public Safetv

123.   The City shall authorize occupancy ofnew struchu es only if confumation o.f9- minute
emesgency response times to these stzuctures can be provided using LMFD
methodologies,

s

124.   All leries, stub s eets and drivoways less than 28- feet wide d signated as Fue Lanes shall

be posted` No Parking—Fire Land' with signs spprot ed by the LMFD and red shiping
on the curb:

125. '  For all non-resideatial const=uction, roof top addresses shall comply with the following;
e.      Only the numbers of tl address need to be placed on the roof. The street name

does not need to be placed on the mo£ Tho numbers shall be placed on a portion •

of the roof that is unobsaured from view from the air; The numbers shall be read
from about 500 feet oi more, da.y and night. A brig t color ofpaint shall be used,
such as ycllow or orange and the color sball be in contrast to the roofcalor.

b.      The numbers shall be at least 3 feet tall, 2 feet wide and spaced 9 inches apart.
The width ofeach brush stroke shall be a minimum of6 inches.

c.      The mai.n address sl all be placed on the raof faqing the slreet so it can he read
from the street, Ifthe building contains numer tis individual suites or offices,       
pai.nt the suite or offce number on the roof over the ont door to ttiat business.

COA Unitl( McKee)3. doc 2/ I3/04 page 23

s   .  

z.  ...{."- s- .: 

S.
ti.. . ...   ..  °. . Z-    _.. . . ..  . ......

r ....   ...  ...  .   . . .... _ 

r   ._   _< ._ .     .... .   . ....

446



t

ww
n; a,"'d,;. r. r     a.. 

l.  n t' d' YNi oa3lu2Y
uw

m.    r' ` s ___

xeu i,   l.__" I'
Y'

I
c m+ 

I   _    1"

T,°'"   
I'"'^ LYTs.{ d' Y171 allYN   ..

A

fn         t 115tl3Hi[ 7 A61

r

291C 1] CUi

J N;'  ar f-av' Y uava a cR' r     

hi      

tiy az`    '..... r,.....          

3,,'  f—-:.-.-.-.-- •   _
eiee i va.      .   

3Js uolix   ; g      .      
c'iH-al vw.+       m m

N--

t— __--  _   
y Rruue a+.. m o-•s w Ym.• e.a.

z

N      ..
b... wmr....

0

w u

t' d' YN: NNOEsa'-.    .    MtlY1

cam N    .......    . rinrr+ro      

o v

7-_------ s--=-    
r

1

j    w ,.....   

y. q          
r'•
R _'' i

r.  
t"d- tlN: Nau¢60 t    _

a. n r..

s ,. w     ,   ,       

m

n
N

tu min nn.       .     ..  .
z      .

m e,a...... s..e...     
o

Z- j•.      4
J'  •

1Lll9NBQ

4  

7 n        ., a   '  u m

c m.  o,,.,    
1

n amu

aarmU a ra ard.    

r    .

I" I= i"_ , s

I      -  1 y  / ruumna      

p a..,.. n.  o T^"'"'--"-.,     

r   '

y  !  „ na

f i o m

m

R7  .   d' IDWYd

u7

z e 

I
yc

3 1 oe

R

QA117.'
hY .aw tiv'= v1

y,  
L

t ;    
z I 3Q• 01  '  

a e

x imu 6

yz i t 

0 9 d..r,,.., w v..  .., n

r

au rM ohu. n   nl    1
w       

vmrtvm'rsa 1 IG7f3111 11@I'

7  —    .    aw.  u   -       _   _  I
T. q. .       

alE nMt:.    s;:
vuaaa u      

4 S

l

3; 
i';'

m'n.""". e"". u      "

r--

1 I I  AYipom       y ,   . ,''? b'           .   '        

h 

y I,   9737N4d s   
r-

iy   .    ,,. . ;     '  
V m 1     

IL          . f'   .    .     I
y.

s i   
g

l21
s  ,,'

i
u   —_   _-.

is-    = L       _ i i SD
r     s

Jf    ..

o, m... 

u

pnpi
a

Ry'
Y 7A h"-.      ...   I I    Ol

OLLYyc: '  - , ' /       ,     

y    ;Fa r•' 

S  ,
S           l    

f.i
1`     

F

1."    '       `.     y
w.. u... s

U
i 

AVI(I       ' NOILYJS dMd. 113/ L4S .

Y   

wr.unrs. Nus xi     .

ry :,  
6 N

i...,... o. u.,.,    

ain mm unJ'   

a.    n, .1' d' YNINOSMdaB1'   

a, 
r wnin i

i

y Ck
wv•     

mrn  •

5
M p F

r ti     

KAT 3RG`]  

C
3

3=

g•       

xn mx' C" Q   

I  er:;:

j:_:'.,_

t,
M

F,       j'.
i'i       

j:'   .

447



I

4 ., : ..,.      .. .  ;_;:,`=,
r:       -  :i r..---....;_,;;..   -;.  =   -

h .  _ :     _ _.: ,'
S '   ,:,;. y, i

j-,- I'   ` 1"••
e '' e=_

e ••'. :_•   r 4 I
i  __ 5'"    

I a i
r

m  
1 fi     If, f

i       r.-',`;...     i;{
I :  

a     i s;
tl o

t .     I.-      ;_ s,y",
I

y     -  y

Y      ..

B

et[ F' i f'i p.

C _   1•      
x

a_'___. '       -     
T  ;

1-        .",.'' .

u    •    i

E     '   `-     .

G G G Q.. 6 h, ' i''.+.r,'      ..
C  

1 : 5
f

14*

j   

i  '   
s.  o .    ,' r     °          `  

G     '  

3
3

1   ' . r, ,   G!7•   •:
3. E      5       0 l%:'.

je        i       ,
I e   

t   
f li j 4

tti

i

n          ti i  _       - ,..}-         "      
Y         :.-'

i           3   r-       a a   -    -  _' f '  ap

f ;                   o   

n   ¢ ^ ' d a. n s ' a .••• a•         y

g       
1 7i Y G tl

Y 3
y         xa  tl 9: n n an t' X.  

y p
a   '•        .

tl  I   . ,`\..,

9    ' • 4 7 g     L '_ _  ;..   , M I.

sa•
g tl    ' t,,$  

c

t   

4.

I    m n   ''   .  

p'      •i I        ..

x• i u e _  e• i«   o e  ,   9  !    e a .,

ue     _   
e s1       __    

ti a r 

tl    . .   ,   .  . _     ,
ij',.     i 

y i n y  : ti; s e e  y       e. r d. . n m e n     '    :/

L_ '      L______ l____'___1_      

i, t
i    ` I I @I p!_' FlHlT1

y

1

a   ;    
I        

z_     3    L i y,  ,` a      '.'r     II 
I }

r  y M1' 1  ' 

1

J
H 1'       7       

7 r   ,        
ti            

f
u

F'$ y            I         
J S

J,   uS.
1 --_     ;

ii I p ``>,;,
1. `     .      

1'      ?     

I'
j-..' '--     '_ ^ .   .

p• •     •      ii P    .   '-   •
m,_-`

q+ `     °"     -,-.:'-,-_'   c.-. 1'

e  l;       i..J:::
t

1_,.:...    z,  ;,,v.  .•—..

3.+,s    =     '- 

i."`"''    _  ---  H-     r

r .'"' a ,,, . r„,   -      _
ti'    \, t  :-      ' s    -

Ti?` i 4

c"`_.,,
i'"--

e. .7;..._^^.Yya\. L,:f -.-:.... ..•. ... .. _".:... .. .

S OF MCi(E6 AT 1[ OSSO IANDING EA ygsq'jNG TEI'7'[' ATIVE MAP T 1' 3       
N       RES7SRN P6CffIC QU9IIiC AND RACT 9D73

F^„    m
RA7' C COMbf. sC[ dI.     an or unuor,  sw o a+H mwm, rx+n"" 1

3
fi; e

To' :.       

z       _;t      .., r       ...' F   ._    z-
J

r`;

448



i

s  :        **
E°  r a.q   . . Z." ".     R aV     ,°

r` e" ' t*. p'     

S  ,^+ ..

A

c      '       rk : g         a     g cx .

i, r :    + + b
4   .,..       

2a    °; zt      ', x     . &   i'" a  `  ffi.'       '. p{,,;..'

c   k Z`;",  
Y .£         

y`"            
A"     

s'fa '    '°     
i t.

w

tr     .     t. 3 s"      d$ n'    ,    as. a

m R
i.,.  J F. t.

3  
Y  '' 4  

Tyf ''° r   °      t '      
a     !   +. s

b    "
s      :

u   
s .' „

ic   » '  '
a,^      ,,

y

r  

A .  ;'.:'-

T 

k   ..     $     
f n  

Y ''- 4, fi
s9 '   "      .   s'4 x.+   

g,     
3   "''

i+       t              

w   '  '"

a  .`   afr  
b  ^

m i v        ;,

1p''-°+,  ' 
r:_;    ys ,     ,           ,.>'.   ,. >.    . 

q""    
sm

C 
t`al-  '     :   i 1 . " 89      P    * t  '

y  ° M

a.  y      g.   r t  w   y s-e t
n'    ° 4 i s b }

7," 4.* 6 w d L 4 Rn#   4    , j$ 4    _    x A'             s, Qlf t+ y'a,,,  '  t
S "    r T    `" Y     Y

s,            r., r  .
w...;

s '+.° ej'"_,    a
T % 

k„, ,' s  °' -       d   ,#       s
y'      

r
R

t
f

a ka
i j        

y
c}:

Y

y ..   a      :.                 

s

a;   
w

i
a      k   

m       "  
v.  8 G

f 1 v...  `  '     

d 9# ,#'       Y   "'         2¢      a

f
y,,   

t{ } ¢.
Vy       (   `,,.,%      F °      .'" NR       ) `

fi„     E
J` T       1     •,

y      
T, a c 3 > aFr•    a 4:.,`

q  -
3 r d

9 r a'_ P,     w   ri 3d m  8   •       a} r @z r 1"` r 3  
g P' a.;",       

s'      i
t  {

9. 
t

A4
s .

4 P     h  -    J tA'+     d.. i tl

y  .

I      
r c" 

W . 

f»  p 

z '"

d"& a;.   t'      

a    :
s     

r #          i:       
r..   .`

a.,'„ ,".

ar`..     : in"    
y

Y i;   ° a+ a   ..
ri-

3 3
f    ``.     g i   Ja`    #   

a''     .
C u` xr  ,

q         
p

Y  37'  '' P 
r

n   '"      x     '_     f a' Aaa."^°,.

i *
v'

4 y"  x.r$'. ka   1       ' `  

a  C  --     ,. 
r rz n,

e"uw a ax
a+       r"3    ' f++t

g.
z

r          „ f r.....  ,. g,,.+.. ., s,. K...  ,  ' 
w ' F     .

A     ..  Y SB 3 E"9' 1' 1 6'

Y,.,   , w er,' 3,u a+:*...     

iw

a     :.„   ,.      ,#    4 t.     . r"gt r a i'. ,;

V

w;    ,,.",....    .
m

a e s

s   r}
r  ,       r   

p    

G        

ry_ r              n t  r:   a 
r     ' n

y`  rx
s s'     "    i   •       

a.'     :      r e
ti     a x x„ f'       

c$    qt,    ;.$ s t i s     ..._ S '.      co<:

F y¢     '"'   1 4     ,+ a'       1r:      ,    P       

w i t       F"      ra
3

j 4w   p    r
a t,:

qr    p     - qz     .        
r, f

r$
tr'     „"" '      "  

r r      a         °   ';!     i * 
m       w 

r t r

P'..' '      
y..

a      '
d ;      /          . s  7'.:,

a      .       .

v    .    

t., ,      `  ^
y       

7,; 
q      ;       

1.       w 

lr

os' a .     ". r+`.,  e €"_ Ne

An. ':`
A . t?.,9,  ` 3 '.,. '`."._ .   . . .  . . '   ..   • .. .'^

x.  

m  .     i  f I t.... ,.. 

PLANNING DIVISION

Vicinity Map

o T   VTM- 17- 111, SPR- 17- 112 & CUP- 17- 113 N
c`   ,"     `° n

Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Site Plan
f'   Review & Conditional Use Permit

t.  

s     Lathrop Towne Center
f 17100 Golden Valley Parkway

APN: 191- 190- 49
T t s e>

449



n

NOTES:    E CISTINiG
CAHTOGNAPHER•     
smn wwmuu.a isw e conearmo.. mo. rn.    o-.

ywl''..,.
u uxs, xc.. ivn wm wixoµ o suw v xa d          c°'-

9 t1 NLLY MN WPE' J' 11AFS10 G 85150
ieunwF 12os1 SfB.] SI

7Selo     '  - .-
t.. o  " -  "

OWHEii:     
ein ar. c p L Ilfomla wlelp l wryontlw u to tAv iee M Pmom Preea L6 GllfornL LNhE IleOaLLtY[ mpany   I         I V p

m m. re maa m... q.. o v. ai o., a se. e. m assio m. a euy m. nroe. wummi. ewmo. oo v eemn,   i (       _         E R
cinar umeav•' r• w• v u o r. na ra s. 9

9B0 TpME EEYIPE 011rvF UTWOP. G BSVO s:       a ii: e•     E
nmmne isas enaeno

wui i..n xxcrn. eien o. ro cy: m.. towe. M: 

R 
Gu   

c o rve, uinuoa. u vsmo

I  :      
T g

iEtF la'E 1 51 3R. 59W
41e• 0j•

APPLICANT/ SUBDIVIDER:  I I  '    s; E,.
N`" 0. u,      

N

s
eauiin. ttemcw et<r m. v c. avnm=..+ I I       ,       ua raxE cr.rmc onrvE, umiwv, a es o

Q      ' '  ^     
uu   ais ve. eoi

ieirnmrt losslcsz. suw

I     '.,  
u. e. .    ..    

PARENT PAHCELS' DATA:       
0: { v.,     

iP0iFA1Y IIDAE59............. VI W B] NFM V. LLIET YIAuaY u, ad, u» o
a"  .   `    

l''

w-,..
A59ESSOfl' f VANC6 IMDG.... fBI. IB0. 9

i
i.      i'   o.. 

e

tlETIAFA..................... i1651ILAF9

O.   

QLWEIIf IISE.. ............. PEtUIYED W1EA fl45SN I I K    
FLOOD INSUHANCE HATE MAP ( FIRM):   j I :   - mF  
o rrvunn• omen v 000 nw rmE r• ax vuu nw x. oeonmcmv wrm ocroern e zas:' news ov o. r Avuu awir aoao; I i '.  ii,'--asca ov i uixw. uwheE inoo x TM av nu o rrns or css mw i roor on nrx owwne nnw ss ixa i s nne unc; um W     -    ao.

r,ca vrwrtcrEo e, uv., m u,. unvu. ouws. rtom.      
a '      - a

I    . 
n e':'.ZfONING:       

M        t PAACEl3 ME WINENRY ZpxF' YpSSOYE VILLILE G4 W, BEqVILE COIOIEACUI. ON CIIY i0NIX0 WP AEY6E0 BEPiEimEA 1012.  1   :   s+   

a I  ,,UTILITIES:   s
5f0iY pWX WIIiNtt 6flRX Ila N1FP 10 BE IXSIIllm IN D] AFqIItl1R RIM CIIY OF IAIIWOP SIM'NA05 MD USRP Mtltt IVNS.       Ci'     , 
cw i.+o Eiec. wec s nnce ro ae vxw o o ar v s i c wv e eunwa, iruwaEo n muawwrc[ m x cm or uixnov srµ nwos, um

W 1 I I i    - 
a'   -    "     

g 7 ; r f
6WIllE5 61W1 I mFPGPWWm IH ONiOPYI\CE 1[ TI NF 6 BUM810.Y W IHAWF.

iFl£ Mtllf AFPVttf i0 Bf PAWION BY 4.1Etfit fl41 N0 SFIMCfS LtOLL NDkAWOJYOm Itl N'IFOALLVltE Y'tiN MF 611B IVISION 4f0IWJIEf.      

I  
BENCHMARK:   0? aI i PG^.GC CJ pQG'( C. S       >   `    

I    -

rwnru e x uwK wnw I uweei c n ar unwor:     9. 3, 4 QC' IMIC 4 I I  :.  
F-7

EIIY OF UINAOP BFNUKI9R
103tp

ELFY= IO. lB YIWTBB 2' 016C IX fA\ GEfE EYIT L NSE AVpNE fROY 1 5. W MST a, 05 IQLF6 10     / i I          r!  '
IIY FY P6N. iY¢ 44YIIL•T ND Sq11N O. B IIE9 i0 BPIDpaWST BNLEVMO. fO EFS! M BPWqMSf BWLEYNO O. R Y[ LF910YpFF

i'' X..,;  MNN. GO IatPLM dl Y4RE AOLLEVA9 4 3 YILE510 U1MNP CIIY Wl1 UP iHE SW1N 6 E OF YCIEE 90A£V! Ao. IONUFM IS

tOGRO i iHE NWiIM£SI W0.'FP[ b OinLiETF 6ltE K M fIM PoLE Ai 1HE SWfINFft 9 OE OF iME C[ tt HlLL BUILDI40. 21 fFET       
0 

k'y
i 

I
e. wr rna r. 0 av ama.

titt aF UMNM BFMA6N% INO• ELFY. N. St IINY fiAl: I' IIX IN IXNLPFLF. prt LW SE I.VFMIE iPW I S.!£ Si tl1 LOIIISE j ; I ,,        3' t. i I 11'.;  u'
l. LF 0. 05 YllF6 WYIM'! PND fd 4 E Y[ IES SPIIH W 4N11' PN. WreNFAT I51 GiF M It¢ FISi 610E Oi IVA'iMFY ROM 6'  

r ov nEmer x cirt. a- v. xw a rur usr or BLOP A4FPD' 91GY.      

l .      

s       !   }.{

u rrucae o xw• w rauo ix cmvramc rn au ci* r w unv wnu. a uwee.     

6uaiMcr zA fPw w.roe9 lo wiu11NE aLu cm ov urNnov wnY na usFo w lxE n[ ttno luiawFUEei vWu[ x illis IAu.  o' j ry-_      
i . 

I  ';(
r%

6ASIS OF BEAHING:     I I '      a 

ara wa m xmm w• ox oe• eir ran ra r nuu¢ or rwax mimc wrce s amew on xe wr or rnar xo. ws• w.svie wm na 1    .
vsr w m iu eou: ao o uws uw vu s nr e.r a, se.r wai x ewmn ucoxre w.w us n is. a.s s on ui euniirs sme ox

I .. or i I 6  Fmuws.  

f 
I

d 7
MISCELLANEOUS-

I[            `    
VLLF55 O1M( IMSP SYECIFIGLLY St iFD IM iHf Wxolilk.'9 aF AY] PWIL LWL IGFiVLV M] PPYLL OF MI9 WP SWLL LOvftIME AN I '    ! T p j     

W
FExE550 iI6 IXC 1V. 1 TE VP0 p̂5m 9AOrv1B10M Ar LLIEI Yi¢ tt 0! INe IPOPFAIY ILL AOi LLYiFA50M9tY ItlIWFAE 11M 11 FPSE

i ' I    V
I19 WYPLRE F1tFPGISE OF PI4Nf8/ 9 ofSGPIBF IN GPYFAWEHi WUE I6E1] B u 1.    n. l

PIPEL DI A'SIW9 A 0 IMfIWiPttNAE Of9IGY A9F P61Y114AY A19 931Yi 10 PEV39I6Y i0 mBLEIE FIILLL E5511Rfl11MG pF911N.   vj.      S,       
e1

IIA& A]. 1 TI¢ SIIBo1VIUFM PFSUVESIxE PIC1R t0 iILE WLL PIE fl l. P/ nCFL wP3 M 1MI5 PAOaGiY.
Y I

SEF 9 i I aF A f0.i IUfFS FYIStiAL E@9RIIX9 YWPoSE IA9LE15. K . i     e i'  ..: iW
NY£f P Oi 2 FOi LFQLL oFNA1YfI0X N0 YAOP IIVAOVFI¢ A18. I I ';' z

iM I ,       
E o j    i

n ii     3i'{

p:   
1     _       _    __

c_ .--_     !'`   C
I l 9e .  

I

T 
t

F1   -       F:_._      t--     _._ 

a5. r  . i 1 II IJ immri
xn: t., +  _'     __^    ..'

i--      
7'  

I
l iUv un   "  J

a

I e       _    ... . j     ...,-. ti       y,     a ra    .       r .
f -.._       .. r 5-e.i.[h      .     .   

1  

1.    .

1

J(,   r       - r. a.   
Y'Y'  .:;_     ' I.,:

1 y'_ 

x

c c— j"

j_
I  !/  1 e_.,. 

L n E ny     r
ss n o r. 

E£ 

I'`,SITE  .   '     L L      -    --_: Hn  , r  "' a'  '

o,           ,,,,  

L, a,.t+`-' L- i LEGEND
Y   _ 1 rq     Mn, c,       _     `    _„'     ¢ 3s_'

j   

ExmGl0.aBa n¢ wr heK W' 1"  

T       

i NE
u!.

nu      4 —, j    t I' Y s =::,
1_ f__uJ j$       ,       utltn951x 11A'

CEtELIxf

u      . ,'}

s

k   ]        e l
I   C. p

M[[

IArv[

oEiuRniQn
v. x Lin[    

6GlE 1'= 50' 

M1

Y`

L j
y       

I\/(      
furtnvu  Gf1APNIC SCALE

r      .

o u ba tW tsa
i t  Gl    YAYM E

i

e 

y      
o  a Ews i1       _

q w urart rtm. w

t

g  

C
1;  

s uart wn oxir

w   no

f:Ul oERCftlI bFLL
ioao  t6  $    '

m. 
r  n mai' rasex

xa,  VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP '

E

5°,o,,,so4.,   
DF ENGINEERING, INC.  

LATHROP TOWNE CE69TRE ' r zse
y       

E CIVILENGINEERINGANDSURVEYING RETAIL SHOPPING CENTER  ° A F 09

i
Nu. EU13  3lTULLVqOAD• S fTEJ' MOOESTO, GABsaso

y    

en.  ZUIC

4
TE EPHOHE( xoe) s > asa FSUc 2oe) s2e- oas    90YXOE0 BY SaYFRYILLE AOAp TO iHE X qiN, IXiEII5fA1E 5 TO TNE EUT    

E

8 WPYR16Mf ROtE oi FAGIIrtFAI G[ Ft.     MNE CFXfEN ORIYE SOIIIN. IMD LOLOEN YALIfY IAAMNAY} 0 TXE tF3T 1s'

o/ CI` 19 eo> e %°^^" i*-—  FeE. 09 1 18 LYtXG IN SFtt] OX N i. l 5. 11. 6 F., Y. O. Y. 
oi 2VICINITY / KEY MAP

w,,,,_ a,E
tIiY Oi UiXPOP COUMfY OF SAX J010UIX STAiE di WLIfpANI     

F, E a,,., p

450



LEGAL DES CRIPTION OF PARENT PARCELS FOR Pro osea Hlght- o}- Wey Of} er

p O P OS E DVESTING TENTAT' IVE PARCEII.  MAP
LAT 4ROP TOWNE CEN'IRE RETAIL SHOPPING CENTER     - -   -_  -     _

PARCELONE•    

o--    

xre.     

ya-_w' tv.ca.
All that rertatn real propeAy siNatgl in the GN of ts[hrop, Caunty of San] oaquin, State of Uffamia, L@,, t-,

beln9 a poNan of those lands of PWte Home Corpomtlon In Dacument Numher 2004- 169013,     
7' Y.'    -__   __

San] oaquin Caunty RemNs and being more partic tarty desaibed as Pollows:      I. :'.  _ 
I l  ~       I

Cnmmendng at the Southeasc mmer of wld lands of PuRe Hames Carpoatlon az desaibed in
f    '

t lI J  1[7i/ f .` N r E R
Document No. 2004169U13, San] oaquln Caunty HemNs atong Me SouNedy boundary of said i,      b - .  "  (   _ y      °+-_  S r,
lands, North fl9" 02' 08' Wes[ 7. 25 feet, Menrn leaving said SouMerly 6oundary entering said I  i    I; I f

L  ,;(       U f ,+, --     T E
lands of Pulce Home Carpo2tlon, North 16° 03' q8' Eas[ 51. 25 feet, to[ he po ln[ o f beginn ln9;     

I;     
i  j I I i Y  '

l,    e•
w R

thence finm sald point af beginning, South 53° 30' S0' Wes[ 23. 82 feet, thence i I I O V
North 8 9° 0 2' O B' West 4 2 0. 9 9 fe et, then e North 3 7° 2S 3 5' W es[ 4 7. 0 3 fe et to be b e 9 i n nin9 of a F
non- tan9ent arve[ o Ne left, Nena alon9 said non- tan9ent arve[ o[ he leR, having a radial beating I    '    E li: eso

i    ' t 2.
af North 75° 49' 03' West, a adlus of 5,098.00 feet, a rentral an91e of 11° 07' 36" and an arc IengM y I

F

I   
y\-

y   '          N O
of 990. 30 fee[, Mence North 47° 41' Ol' East 4215 feet, ihenrn SouM 87° 41' 19' East 562.49 feet,  j      I v       

thence SouM 36° 47' S7" Eas[ 18. 92 fee[ to Ihe heglnnin9 of a non-tangen[ arve tn Ne rl9h[,      I i        s

thence along said non- fangen[ arve to the right, having a 2dlal bearing of North 75° 45' S2" West,
Q  

I I 6 gl ml I a..
e s

a adlus af 2,963. 19 fee[, a central angle of Ol° 49' 10' and an arc lengih of 99. 09 feet,       e
i 5. 2 FF =! 

PARCoE L 2 r`

thence Sau[ h Ifi° 03' 48' West 9394. 15 fee4 said t of nnin
E

Po  be9  9 0  
I        z. uo°u

a! (    I 15.' I FF
14. 7 FF

IJ'/.
j/       

f

t
en . ° aAPN: 191- 190- 49 lig i i

4. 3 FF

13. 9 FF     -    `!„`„  /  / T• ti
PARCELTWO:       I x. i Le. 60•'; iul

r

1' !/

L  , F"''i z
All Ma[ rertain mal properry s tua[ e' n ihe Gty of lathrop, County of San) oaquin, Sta[ e of faffarnia,       

W ; ,     ;     ,
J`,',      ..       ...,     . ,       ,`   _ 

3. 5 FP    _      fn   
y Ep

bein9 a portlon of SeNan ThiM1Y- Four( 34) TownshlP One( 1) South, Ran9e Six( 6) Eas[,      
a(     .; I  . rl ' j I

rv7- r ' i I T    '     '_'-  _ t.'    I
r}.-  ,;  

I . . '..  . .. .      . 
1'    t

Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, sald real pmperty being tlie dediratlon( 7. 00 feetwide and I I: T'.   `   ...      I I I.'_
r     -I--__._    :  

varying width) along Me Westerly side of ManNey Road as shown on Tract Na. 3445, Subdivivons of ri '    

I               
31     ---,

L  ' C
l

1

San] oaquln fnunry, Mosdale Landing Easy Flled Aprll 28, 2005 in Book 40 0( Maps and Platr a[ Page I I
i'    

p yn     I I
1 1

1   . I I     ,
I a   .{:

w Ir iI rr' 1
2, San] wquln Counry Recards and alw heing a poNon of Parcel One( 1), as shown on Me J a,  (-

a_     L     ,     .--.-.   -    I l ,_ y,     g I I J

Rroposed Reiinquishment to Me Caunty of San Joaquin on State Raute 30- 9-5 Reques[ No. 143',  I-   r 1°  - T-   `' .    -
r-'_' I. -   1 1 I F  ,: I-    

C'   ^'     / I f,`

filed 7uly 20, 1972 in 600k No. 15 at Page 90 State Highway Map Book San Joaquln Counry Remrds,       W    I;     ._       '
I`     "-

f     _.     i' 
J,,     _ 

r  k 1--
I-  _ _     II   l £ s    °I f

id Parcel 1 alw Imown as Manthey Road, uid poNon of Pa l 1 lyln9 behveen the( allowin9 i - --    s       .__..     .._'   i i N  I  ... i    .    :   .,-{  
1.     : I C .       '

desm6ed lines, Northerly af ihe followin descri6ed line One 1) and SONhefly of the followin I9 9 I   I         a-.     _   _ PARCEL 6-'    a{      i
descd6ed line 7wo( 2):   

1-    
1"_     . -_       It

0 . i  t'.
1      

I       
Y- c 1w   ....._   -•__   nm.

l ...     l..__        .,) I     . ie a_-      
Cs  

l  ..      PIIARCEL 5
r 1   +  W

ne Ooe( 1J:       Vi !,    .. +    m sx• i.H w   - 7-       __         

11 y

i'

1 -'       J
oei' a v i     

s:  i
y  } .  I,I    ..    . t!-      ,.           .   , 

p
1

12. 5 FF.  r i,'
TheEas4dyprolon9atlon, MmughsaidPa¢ ell, ofMeNortherlytlgh[ oFwayllneofTovmCenVe

d
N j  -_    1,.,,, o I    °   m

orive( 70 wideJ, shown on uid TaQ No. 3945.      I i I I' 1   '   I__    '!    

I

II I  ___   ' c       ,    -

I'  I\   '-'         I ,     n

I

e . •      
i_     { r-    ...

1    

A,. 

n-`.

rt '   
t_.: i 9': t G

neTwo( 2):  
i',

1
i ,-     

I__     I ._     - _...     I_-     1     J. .          ..   :+ '      ` P11 C 1- 1 I   , I I" I     ' I I   %, i

I     r_     _       ,       a1 i;     
7            C:Beginning at the SoutheasterlY comer of Me lands 9ranted to WaH McKee W Oeed remrded Janua7 I I I'; I. i       .    .  _     L_ °°'ii°so_   

l.r r- . ". '   '      C_   _.._,   --   y-   '  i      ;  W
10, 2006In D ent No. 20 6- 005898, OfFltlal Fecords, County of San] oaquin, said mmer beln9

I     '       u     

q      -----     E-....   _..-_,_,_ o_ e_ m__   _      s s v in_ sa•__      l.i I   1

the Northeaste mmer of the Irtevomble Offer of Dedi tlon shown az Pianeet Street 36, 00 feet
I  I r, f PAR C E L 1 

J r^          y.     M'.    "  _ 3  ..  ,
wide) on Tact No. 3445, Subdivisions of San] oaQuin County, Mossdale landing Fast, filed April 28,  J   '.'}}}      u

C  
i 

L-     L   --       

r

I'      a

F     .,,      o.„       el       -      - I   - ,   I ii     . .  . 0

QY    
1,". ., y,           .--    i r;  

H
2005 In Book 40 of Maps and PIa6 at Page 2, San 7oaquin Counry, Mence along the Easterly I g I'. I;/ j I

Fp.,    ' 
I,'__     t-..,_.   .- _

OI __-__  ;.
I.      I e _ _   . i .;      . z

prolongatlon of the Southedy Ilne af uitl lands of Watt McKee, Sautl 87° 41' 19" Eart, 61. 43 feet, N I 5      ,, .     __.   _ i_ __ f-..    1 I,    
l J^   . a•oJ n,,        __ , --;;'      W

a pain[ on Me Westedy line of InterstaM Highway Route 5. iue
I I. I.' 1 L- l'`  r;'."

PARCEL 3     PI IS r ii        U

iI,     
t      ,        I -   .  L-

L-.
i s ( 1     

e' ere nc

PA1
RCEL 4       .:'

f \ °,   '   ;,-    ..,.` f       I I  '  '
A + r.-     ']      12. 5 4 I- I 1_'      ,    

t x, tl i, i , i r  ,   7 FF       I~     l l FF'  :""    l       
U . i_- I iJ   :   LL I+  I  NOTES:  i  `> >

o
i I I I I II('   t;.' yz sI 4 LL w

x
e l 1     

e   -    . J    J a o I    Z
E      ° Z u

i_     ' 1 .     \.       
I I ISUBDIVISION UATA:   etc   -     :,..   . ,._,-       

c..;_   '  ii    
i e,     i.   .  

lo lJ 111..LJ-  I   .,.   '    i    i .  '
1]. A51 ALAE YMfM P0.9CF15 WILL BE SPIIT IMfO 8 UGCI L iMLfLe:    Y

YI WY i0A[ 6 lltE 13 29 31i 6F I 4 611/ L p -- rt---  xn___     ' j--- _.._ -_   1 ! C  ..-       -
G t1P'     ' 

i

I ;
y.

nu un v vcu mu s 30 sss ar i i.neo k x xe W'-   i  3

i

vF,cv.e v. nce s« rs w sre si i s os c i
F"s a   .--      _    4. .;    

r., l.-Tw-
i   -  -_. a 1 e:,( l 1I( - ..   i z. o FF g. G r.      ,

OFFER OF DEDICATIONS.       w-       ----_`  - i-.. .....---    1 I

I

ue u o nun a: r.vr ov ur m e: orsum m m uh ra aa. nE. vic er usr cim m surtavrue rum. a  >      >''    N`-     Inmue unun usuu+s m ec o nxm ran ms ui e oa m uwmn xwo um ia n uwa i vwws n smm,v uF naw     _...._.:- - J-    yr., y    .. .__._  _   I-  _   e. s 5 Ji       Z: i
PIGM. OG. NAY A LNE IX19i1MQ STPEEI AICMBAF. I AY 4F SOYEAVILLE A6N GOL EX VI1LfY PMAWAY IJI iFN1E CENLAE MNE. 

L Z '
T s     

j   I-  l iv:.

y__

G O y n E N 1 i.. .     ..:-

yq L L E',         . trc i/. s i, mi 
r.    c.PARCEL TABLE

LEGEND J pwR      r.esi    '  I    xr      
EXISTING PflOPOSEO X y

urte wainew.       -._ ru.uiu u.a
A Y y'

y.

PAPCEL AIiEA SF ANEA AC PNOPOSE USE a vu[ v.w[ us sinm xio rt. OF. e r O cun 4   --,      `.,-.'::::::
f_ -   '

4r_.        
AIINi. Oi

AMY
p gLIL NILIiV FMFYEIf CGiFAF    4.`„ `    . '.ttttGu'   YX'{ O IXW W]X r. o; y._``1 30 xiiss o. e 1 C n ctwr nt

IFIU¢ w5' GNIIL4vE     Cflr YSFBENIIAE
p    '  tl. e9p6i t. 6 0/ L Petail ao-- S14L NINl11R 5

un-- 54vliMY SGflI LIXE      -
1!: M1FR LIME

g      .
se, aei er o. e e is x auur. nt va o- vxRMY sewu owe WIN LI  ^ uid BASIN 0 bABIE N SWLE 1'= 5      r Z, .    • 1  

vi.-. u1FALixE

1::" 
t

9RIEFPA IFAY vpVPlEt/A    lAL_
I     \

F p
N191lIXE O91tl1eNfGiPFAtYET0fl2l£      

7s auiwuma. vfi5 GPAPNIC SCALE

o. rsf C ne.< eunnt c

s ao, tereF x, oe it xo el

oAovptWFTE
SV11iA9Y5MP444NOLEi:

YN0.F FlAFNYQWIfPY9. 8I1 6i e. ae. 1[  Ret 1l/ Peat ur ntv

Y.:. i•.,       '

PAOPoSF NIFP Y.LLYf 0 15 W IW 150

L1°'

cctt n x     = io o wxuE' sieviou rno.v
wi uwr wn ou r N FF mnr.nrc v x mE won urvnnon

x m ncrs s n v w

sirWa ocrtcma o¢

xor VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

0,, so4    
DF ENGINEERIIVG, INC.  

LATHROP TOWNE CENTRE ', u"  ° zsa

A e E8
CIVILENGINEERINGANDSURVEYING RETAIL SHOPPING CENTER o^* E m. w, zoie

T 3a

EPHON
AOAD• 2UI J' MODE9T0, GA e5aso Sy
E( 200) 6 e-) 45a• FA%( 2oB) 628-00.5    90UN4EY 0Y SEtlERVILLE POIIG i0 INE NOPTX 1XTfRSIITE 6 TO iXE E44T

BCOPYRI4Hi i01! i FI:GIIrtFA1N0 II.'C.     TpME LFYfER OP VF SOIIM L1D tOl FN Y LLFY PINKIIY TO iXE YF4( 2l

0/[ AL+`'       I9 A01A ! u° n' r̂un( 1 M1ex-  FlE. 09] 01B LTIXL IX SfttIOY] 4 T, 1 5. 6. 8 E, Y, 0. 1. 
Of 2

w E
CItt OF IA1NPo1 copX1Y oF B/ 11 JaAOYIN 6T TE Oi WIIiaAXSA

B99] 0

451



452



ITEM 4. 16    '

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM:       ISU SALE TO HEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. OF IOWA

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving the Sale of 18 ISUs to
Heartland Express,  Inc.  of Iowa for a Proposed

Truck Wash Located at APNs 196- 030- 029 and 196-

030- 31

SUMMARY:

Heartland Express,   Inc.   of Iowa   ( Neartland),   formerly Gordan Trucking,   is

interested in constructing a new truck wash at their facility located at 12550 Harlan
Road ( APN 196- 030- 029 and APN 196- 030- 031) in the City of Lathrop.   Heartland       

has submitted a written request, application, and application fee for the purchase of
eighteen ( 18) ISUs from the City.  Heartland has also agreed to pay the full amount
per ISU.  Staff is requesting that Council adopt the attached resolution,

authorizing the sale of 18 ISUs to Heartland.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop received a written request from Heartland  (APN 196- 030- 029

and APN 196- 030- 031) to purchase eighteen  ( 18)  wastewater interceptor service

units ( ISUs) to their property. The request is to facilitate a truck wash proposed for
the property located at 12550 Harlan Road ( Project Planning Application No. MSPR-
17- 39). The truck wash was shown on the approved site plan when the project was

approved, but the owner chose to delay construction of that facility.   The property
is currently allocated fifteen ( 15) ISUs. Heartland has agreed to pay the full amount
per ISU.

In accordance with the Policy for Allocating,  Reallocating,  and/ or Transferring
Wastewater Treatment Capacity ( ISU Policy) adopted by City Council, the applicant
has formally submitted a letter of interest to the City of Lathrop for the purchase of
ISUs,   and has a formal project application submitted with the Community
Development Department, and has paid the City administration fee.   Per the ISU

Policy the project does not meet one of the foundational criteria that the property is
zoned for commercial use, but the purchase of additional ISUs to provide adequate

capacity for the truck wash. was. approved by the Planning Commission on August
11,  2010  ( Resolution No.   10- 10)  and described in the project Conditions of

Approval.

The cost to purchase the 18 ISUs is  $ 152, 388.    The money received from the
purchase of ISU' s will be deposited_into Fund 603 ( Sewer Connection).   The funds

will be used for sewer related projects and to pay back the General Fund which
fronted the cost to expand the Manteca Water Quality Control Facility ( MWQCF).

453



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ISU SALE TO HEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. 
I

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Heartland has submitted a written request to secure eighteen  ( 18) ISU' s for their

pro,perty,  and meets the criteria for allocation in accordance with the City' s ISU
Policy.  Heartland has paid the administration fee of $500. 00 and has agreed to pay
for the ISUs within thirty  (30)  days of approval from the Council.    Per the ISU

Policy,  if payment is not received within 30 days of this Council approval,  the

transfer will be void.   In addition,  if a building permit is not obtained within one
year, the transfer will be refunded at the City' s discretion.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The $ 500 administration fee required to cover City staff time to facilitate the ISU
transfer and prepare this report has been paid.  The funds due for the ISU sale will

be due within 30 days of City Council approval.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Sale of 18 ISUs to Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa
for a Truck Wash for APNs 196- 030- 029 and 196- 030- 312

B.  Letter to Heartland

C.  Wastewater Treatment Capacity Policy

D.  Grant Deed

454



CITY MAIV/ AGER' S REPORT Page 3

MAY 14, O1S CITY COUNCIL IEETING

ISU SALE TO HEARTLAND E1( PItES, INC.

4PPROVALS:

y%_    a C7/ f g
Greg    '  son Date

Senior Civil Engineer

I

s    /

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

C'       e Date

Director o i ance

I  I1   
Salvador V. Navarrete Date

City Attorney

1£ 3

en J. Salvatore Da te

City Manager
I

I

455



I
RESOWTION NO. 18I-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCI OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE SALE OF 18 ISUS TO HEA tTLAND EXPRESS, INC. OF IOWA

FOR A PROPOSED TRUCK WASH LOCATED AT APN 196- 030- 29 AND APN
196- 030- 31

I

WHEREAS, Staff has received a written request from Heartland Express, Inc.
of Iowa ( Heartland) to approve the purchase of eighteen ( 18) wastewater

interceptor service units ( ISUs) to the property listed in the Assessor' s Parcel Book
as APN 196- 030- 029 and 196- 030- 031, located at 12550 Harlan Road in the City of
Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, the property listed in the Assessor's Parcel Book as APN 196-
030- 029 and 196- 030- 031 currently has fifteen ( 15) ISUs and requires a total of

thirty ( 33) ISUs to complete a truck wash for th,e project; and

WHEREAS, Heartland has met the criteria as outlined in the City' s Policy for
Allocating, Reallocating, and/or Transferring Wastewater Treatment Capacity ( ISU
Policy) and has paid for the City' s administration fee for processing their transfer
request; and

WHEREAS, Heartland has paid the $ 500 application fee and agrees to pay
152, 388 to purchase the eighteen ( 18) ISUs within 30 days of Council approval of

the ISU transfer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the sale of eighteen ( 18) ISUs to APN 196- 030- 029 and APN 196-

030- 031 in the City of Lathrop, from City; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approves the Purchase of ISU Agreement for the ISU transfer. Fund 603 is to be
increased in the amount of $152, 388 for the purchase price of the ISU' s. StafF

requests a budget amendment in the following fund.

Increase Revenue

603- 5030- 318- 0450 152, 388

456



i

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May, 2018, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:  

NOES:

ABSTAIN:    

ABSENT:

i

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

TTEST:  4PPROVE AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

i

457



i

a4TTi4C1-ailIIEN1' g

Y f

l.ahr, F
Depplfl]7e11t Of PUb11C WO ks 390 Towne Centse Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone ( 209) 941- 7430— fax( 209) 941- 7449

v v v.ci.la thxop.ca.us

December 13, 2017 SENT BI' ELECTRONIC MAIL

Mr. J.R. Bergman

Vice President Fleet Maintenance and Facilities

901 N Kansas Avenue

North Liberty, Iowa 52317

RE:     Application Fee for ISU Sale to Heartland Expre s for a Proposed Truck Wash

Located at APNs 196- 030-29 and 31, 12550 Lathrop Road

Dear Mr. Bergman:    

I

We have received your letter dated December 7, 2017 requesting to purchase 18 Interceptor Sewer Units
ISUs) for the above referenced property.

The current Wastewater Transfer Policy criteria states that an application fee is to be collected to cover
the cost of staff efforts, including the preparation of staff reports for Council action.

The Wastewater Treatment Capacity Application fee is $ SOOi00 dollars, as outlined in the City of Lathrop
Master Fee Schedule.

Please remit payment to the following address:  

The City of Lathrop
Finance Department

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact Greg Gibson, the staff engineer directly
involved with this project at( 209) 941- 7442.

Sincerely,

C/

Greg Gibson
Senior Civil Engineer

Copy:  Development File

I
i

I

458



e...}.

CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY
ATTACHM NT C

P1112POSEm To Allocate, Reallocate, and/ or Transfer Wastewater Treatment Capacity.

Introduction:

This policy covers the allocation,  reallocation,  and/ or transfer of wastewater treatment

capacity for users utilizing capacity in the Manteca Wastewater Quality Control Facility
MWQCF)  or any available wastewater treatment capacity in the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility ( LCTF),   The wastewater treatment capacity is commonly a,llocated as an
Interceptor Service Unit" ( ISU) for both the MWQCF and for LCTF.   For the purpose of this

policy, an ISU is equivalent to 260 gallons per day of;treatment capacity a n d the allocation,
reallocation, or transfer of existing ISUs between customers or between properties shall be
considered a " transfer".

General Guidelines:    
I

1.     All transfer requests shall be in the form of a written request to the Public Works

Director.     The transfer is required to be a pproved by the City Counc'il unless
otherwise permitted by this policy,     

2.     A fully executed copy of Exhibit A"  ( attached)  shall be submitted with the written

request.   Exhibit " A" establishes minimum eligib lity criteria for a transfer.

3.  Transfers of available ISUs may be made to or from a property located in any zoning
district within the service areas of the wastewater treatment facilities ( MWQCF, LCTF)

affected by the transfer at the discretion of the; City Council,  or to or from property
owned by the City.    Undeveloped and underdev'eloped private property must retain a
minimum number of ISUs, generally one ( 1)  per parcel, to permit future development

unless the application is accompanied by an offer to dedicate all development rights with
respect to a parcel in a form acceptable to the Citi Attorney.

4.  The cost of purchasing ISUs from the City or obtaining City approval of a " parcel to

parcel" transfer shall depend on the original funding source of the capacity but, shall
generally conform to the following guidelines:

a.  If the capacity is located in the existing MWQCF collection area, the cost shall be
the Sewer Capital Facilities Fee ( CFF)  adopted by the City Council at the time
the transfer or purchase is approved by the City or when tfie payment is made to
the City, whichever is greater.

b.  If the capacity is located in the existing MWQCF collection area, AND, within an
Assessment District ( AD) or Community Facilities District ( CFD) which paid for the
original capacity, the cost shall be the hig er of the Sewer Capital Facilities Fee
CFF)  or the AD/ CFD payoff amount at the next bond redemption period,

whichever is greater.       

c.   If the capacity is located in the West, Lathrop Specific Plan Area,  or the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Area, the cost shall be the higher of the sewer CFF
or the AD/ CFD payoff amount at the ne t bond redemption period ( whichever

is greater) and the Pond and Sprayfield fee.

d.  The fee shall be paid to the City by the applicant upon approval of the
transfer by the City Council.   Upon receipt and verification of funds of final

1 of 12

459



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

payment by the applicant, the original owner of the ISU will be reimbursed
the purchase price less the City' s administrative fee.

5.     The City' s purchase of capacity shall be effective upon mailing of a letter from the
Public Works Director or designee to the address on file for the applicant. ISUs may not
be purchased for or transferred to undeveloped land unless a proposed project exists

for that land. If ISUs are purchased for a proposed project and a building permit,
parcel map or final map is not approved within one ( 1) year from the City Council' s
approval of the transfer, the City may, at its sole discretion, repurchase the capacity
from the applicant.   The repurchase price shall be the same as the cost paid by the
transferee at the time the transfer originally took place, less the City' s administrative
fee.   Original owner or recipient may request a Form 1099 to document income
received from the City for the purchase of sewer capacity.

6.     For the purposes of this Wastewater Transfer Policy, a " proposed project" shall include,

at a minimum, a formal planning application submitted to the Community Development
Department. The application number assigned to the. project by that" Department shall
be clearly indicated on Exhibit " A" and on all other forms and communications with

respect to a transfer application. A planning pre- application submittal or verbal project
description does not constitute a proposed project" and is not sufficient to initiate a

transfer per this Policy.  

7.     An applicant may apply to the City to transfer ISUs either before or after the City has
taken action on a proposed project.     The transfer must be obtained before

recordation of a parcel map or final map. At the discretion of the Public Works Director,
the transfer may be required before final approval of a proposed project.

8.     Any transfer of ISUs may be subject to a " Right of First Refusal" agreement at the

option of the transferor.   Such an agreement shall specify that capacity may be
transferred to the original transferor upon its written request to the City only when
alternate, permanent capacity is available to the original transferee.   A Right of First

Refusal Agreement shall also specify that the cost to. repurchase the ISUs shall be
equal to the original price paid, less any administrative fees or charges levied by the
City.  All such agreements shall be subject to City Council approval concurrently with
the transfer that is subject to the right of first refusal but a transfer authorized by such
an agreement may be approved by the Public Works Director, without further action by
the City Council.

9.     Applicant, upon approval of the transfer by City Council, may become responsible for
ongoing operations and maintenance associated with the capacity being transferred,
regardless of whether the proposed projects builds or not. This responsibility will end
upon repurchase of the capacity by the City. The responsibility to pay for operations
and maintenance cost incurred prior to any repurchase of capacity by the City will not
end upon that repurchase at the City' s discretion, the. repurchase cost maybe reduced
by the value of any operations and maintenance unpaid by the applicant.

2of12

460



s=''```' CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Application Proces§:

The applicant should contact the Public Works Department to determine if there are

unallocated ISUs available for purchase, or if it is possible to Eransfer ISUs from undeveloped
or underdeveloped property.   If the applicant wishes to purchase unallocated ISUs, or to

transfer ISUs from undeveloped or underdeveloped property,  the following process shall be
followed:

1.     The applicant shall make a written request to the Public Works Director to
transfer ISUs.

For a same owner, parcel to parcel transfer request which does not include the purchase

of unallocated ISU' s, the request shall include:

a.     An executed copy of Exhibit A", Wastewater Transfer Criteria.

Exhibit  " A"  establishes a list of  " Foundational Criteria"  establishing the

eligibility of the ISU transfer. The " Land Use Criteria" does not apply

b.     The number of ISUs requested.

c.     An application fee to cover the cost of staff efforts,   including the

preparation of staff reports for Council action which shall be established from

time to time by resolution of the City Council.

d.     A commitment signed by one authorized to bind the applicant to

construct any sewer line extensions and other facilities necessary to utilize
the ISUs.

For a transfer request which does not qualify as a same owner, parcel to parcel
transfer, the request shall include:

a.     An executed copy of Exhibit " A", Wastewater Transfer Criteria.

Exhibit  A"  establishes a list of  " Foundational Criteria"  establishing the
eligibility of a proposed project to receive ISUs.  Additionally,  Exhibit  ` A"

establishes a list of " Land Use Criteria" to establish priorities of projects for

allocation of limited ISUs. Projects must receive a minimum score of seven

7) to be eligible for a transfer.

b.     An executed copy of Exhibit  " B",  Purchase of ISU Agreement.     The

Agreement establishes the fact that the cost per ISU is under review and not

yet finalized.   The Applicant must agree to pay the City the final cost of
the ISUs, as established by City ordinance, when that cost is determined.

c.      The number of ISUs requested.

d.     A description of the proposed project in sufficient detail to identify the
potential impacts and benefits of the proposed development. This description

should identify the planning application number assigned by the City's
Community Development Department, if applicable, and/ or the parcel/ tract
map number.

3of12

461



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

e.     A commitment signed by a person authorized to bind the applicant to obtain
a building permit,  parcel map or final map within one  ( 1) year from City
Council' s approval of the transfer. At the City's sole discretion the ISUs shall
revert back to the City at the end of one ( 1) year unless the City Council
approves an extension of time. Any request for an extension of time must be
provided in writing and addressed to the Director of Public Works.  The

repurchase price shall be the cost paid by the transferee,  less the City' s
administrative fee.

f.      An application fee to cover the cost of staff efforts,   including the

preparation of staff reports for Council action which shall be established from

time to time by resolution of the City Council.

g.     A commitment signed by one authorized to bind the applicant to

construct any sewer line extensions and other facilities necessary to utilize
the ISUs.

2.     Upon an applicant's completion of an application pursuant to paragraph 1

immediately above, and after determination that the minimum eligibility criteria for a
transfer have been met, the Public Works Director will prepare a report for City Council
action.    .The City Council may approve or deny the applicant' s request in its sole
discretion. If approved, the City Council may authorize the City Manager to execute an
agreement, approved by the City Attorney, with the applicant.

3.     If the City Council approves a transfer of ISUs between parcels, the applicant shall
pay all costs to prepare and record an agreement( s)  for the transfer.      The

agreement( s)  shall run with the land and be recorded to give notice to future

property owners of the transfer and limitations on future development arising from the
transfer.

4.     The fully executed agreement(s), and payment in the amount of 100% of the cost of

the units, shall be submitted to the Public Works Director within thirty ( 30) days of the
City Council action or the transfer will be void. The Public Works Director will cause
the funds to be paid to the transferee or deposited with the City and will record any
agreement( s).  The applicant may then obtain a building permit,  parcel map or final
map if all other necessary permits and approvals for their proposed

development/ project have been issued.

5.     If a transfer of units is to City property,  the Public Works Director shall prepare a

report for the City Council.  The report should include:

a.      A brief description of the reason for the request. b.

The number of ISUs requested.

c.      The source of the ISUs.

6.  ISUs transferred shall be limited to units that are currently available.

7.  ISUs on City property, or public rights- of-way held by the City, may be reallocated to
other City property by City Council action.

4of12

462



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CARACITY POLICY

EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

APPLICATION FOR WASTEWATER CAPACITY TRANSFER

This is a request to allocate, reallocate or transfer .wastewater treatment capacity defined as
Interceptor Sewer Un'its ( ISUs) for service to the following real property:

Address: 2      o

APN( s): o ^ C7 jb  __  2ci     j I

Project Planning Application No.: N1= I  ^ I - 3    

Foundational Criteria

For a same owner parcel to parcel transfer request which does not include the
purchase of unallocated ISU' s,  the applicant must meet all six ( 6) of the

following Foundational Criteria before the City will process this request for an ISU
transfer:

1.  Is the request in violation of any applicable Federal, State, County, or City laws,
regulations or ordinances?

YES NO

2.  Prior to filing this request, has the applicant reimbursed the City for all ISU allocations
previously approved by the City Council, and paid the administrative fee required for
processin is application?

YES      NO

3.  Is the property receiving the ISU transfe- zoned for commercial use?
YES          ' NO      

4.  Will the transfer request result in the receiving property having ten ( 10) or

less ISU' s?

YES NO

5.  Are there any pending and/ or unexpired planning approvals on the property where the
ISU' s are originating that require the use of the ISU' s to be transferred?

YES NO            

6.  Has the applicant provided proof of ownership or evidence they are a representative
of the owner, in the form of a Grant Deed, Title Report, or other documentation

signed by the owner, clearly evidencing the legal right to act on behalf of, or otherwise
affect, the ISU originating and receiving properties?

YES        NO

Indicates the answer required in order to meet" Foundation Criteria"

50 12

463



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

For a transfer request which does not qualify as a same owner parcel to parcel
transfer the applicant must meet J,j six ( 6) of the following Foundational
Criteria before the City will process this request for an ISU transfer:

1.  Is the request in violation of any applicable Federal, State, County, or City laws,
regulations or ordinances?

YES NO      

2.  Prior to filing this request, has the applicant reimbursed the City for all ISU allocations
previously approved by the City Council, and paid the administrative fee required for
processing this application?

YES     NO

3.  Has the applicant signed the City of Lathrop Purchase of ISU Agreement?
Exhibit" B")

YES_     NO N/ A

4.  Is the proposed development consistent with the Historical Lathrop Guidelines, if
applicable?    

YES NO N/ A

5.  Is the proposed development consistent with the City's General Plan, Zoning
Ordinance and Utility Master Plan? 

YES        NO

6.  Has the applicant provided proof of ownership or evidence they are a representative
of the owner,  in the form of a Grant Deed, Title Report, or other documentation
signed by the owner,  clearly evidencing the legal right to act on behalf of,  or

otherwise a fect, the subject property?
YES NO

Indicates the answer repuired in order to meet "Foundation Criteria"

v-,- ..   -j.,.  ;
P

o   -  is c. js

l-c`   -- t'''   ra-'.''   w v-   y 1.,..

i    —        a   v    L

6of12

464



CITY OF LATHROP

WASI'EWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Land Use riteria

After applying the followong Land Use Criteria, this request must achieve a total of
seven ( 7j points before the transfer may be recommentled to the City Courscil for
approval:

1.   Does a healt nd safety condition exist necessitating an immediate need for capacity?

YES = 1 oint

NO = 0 points Criteria # 1 Points:

2.  Based upon Commercial and Industrial priorities established by the City Council, the
applicant' s request is ranked as follows:

a.  Commercia  = in s

b.  Industrial = 7 points

c.  Residential = 4 points

d.  Institutional = 1 point Criteria # 2 Points:  r

3.  Is the development a High Density Residential project?

Y

NO = 0 points Criteria # 3 Points:

4.  If this is a residential development, will the development include at least 50% of the

units guaranteed for low income persons?

YES = 1 point

NO = 0 points Criteria # 4 Points: 

5.  Is the project requesting two ( 2) or fewer ISUs at build out?

YES –       in s

O = 0 points Criteria # 5 Points:  

6.  Will the development result in permanent ( not construction) jobs being
created?

0- 10 = 0

2 points

25- 100 = 3 points Criteria # 6 Points:  

7. Has the CEQA process been completed, and if so have mitigation monitoring measures
and/ or conditions of approval been agreed to and/ or funded by applicant?

Y--i—ES =       '

NO = 0 points Criteria # 7 Points:

Yotal Project Points 1
2

7of12

465



z..

CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Since the City Council has declared that priority will be given to commercial development,
no proposed development with a score of fewer than seven ( 7) points will be considered
for allocation of any remaining ISUs.  For a parcel- to- parcel transfer,  the Land Use

Criteria are not applicable.

For parcel- to- parcel transfers, if this request is approved by the City Council, then the City
shall record in the County of San Joaquin Recorder / Clerk' s Office, a Notice of Transfer of

Interceptor Service Units Affecting Certain Real Property ( Exhibit " C"). The form of this

Notice will be provided by the City; however, before the IVotice is executed, acknowledged
by a notary public or recorded,  the applicant shall provide the City an accurate legal
description of the subject property.

I, the undersigned, owner and / or agent declare under penalty of perjury under the laws
of the State of California that: 

1.  The information provided by the undersigned to the City in support of this
request is true and correct.

2.  For ISU transfers requiring a proposed project the applicant will make best
efforts to obtain a building permit,  parcel map or final map within one ( 1) year

from City Council' s approval of the transfer and recognizes that the ISUs will revert
to the City it the applicant does not obtain a building permit, parcel map or final
map in that time unless the City Council grants an extension of time.

3.  The applicant will construct any sewer line extensions and other facilities necessary
to utilize the ISUs to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director and in
compliance with applicable City standards prior to obtaining a building
permit, parcel map or final map.

4.  The applicant agrees to accept responsibility for paying any ongoing maintenance
cost associated with the ISU' s being purchased/ transferred/ reassigned, beginning
from the date the transferred is approved by the City Council.

SIC; IlIATl1RES

ture Date

c ,       07-//

Print Name Date

As agent for:

h rz      . s

Applicant ( if the Applicant is a entity, print its legal name here)

8of12

466



4.     
CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

Concurs:

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

4pproved for Cocenci/ Action:

Stephen ]. Salvatore Date

City Manager

9of12

467



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

EXI-IY IT B

CITY OF L 4TIiROP PURCHASE

0 2 TRANSFER OF ISU

AGFtEEl 1EIVT

This PURCHASE OF ISU AGREEMENT ( Agreement") is entered into as of this

day of 20 by and between The City of Lathrop (° City") and

Builder").

RECITALS

A.       City has certain reserved capacity for sewage disposal in the joint
Manteca- Lathrop Water Quality Control Facility (" MWQCF") as well as the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF).

B.   That reserved,  but unused,  capacity is expressed,  for purposes of this

Agreement, as a certain number of Interceptor Service Units ( ISU") of 260 gallons per day
of sewer treatment capacity in the MWQCF or the LCTF.

C.       Builder desires to purchase, and City desires to sell, ISUs.

NOW THEREFORE,   for valuable consideration,   receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, Builder and City hereby agrees as follows:

1.  City hereby sells to Builder 1     ISUs for use on the property identified as ( street

address or APN) ( the Land").

2.  Builder understands and agrees that the price of an ISU that is serviced by the
Manteca Plant includes two  ( 2)  components:  a Capacity Cost and a Collection
System Cost.    Th urr nt Capacity Cost for sew r service n the Manteca Plant

WQCF is 6.-- Sr T/ u9 2 y/; The Capacity
Cost is due within thirty  ( 30)  days of Council approval of the ISU purchase.  The

current Collection System Cost is project-specific and is based upon the size of the

water meter( s) utilized for the project. Collection System costs can be found on the

City Website under utility rates.   The Collection System Cost is collected during the
Building Permit process and is due from Builder prior to the issuance of Building
Permits and Builder agrees City will not issue building permits for structures to be
served the ISUs sold under this agreement until Builder pays that Collection System

Cost to City.

3.  If the builder wishes to purchase or transfer capacity that is serviced by the LCTF, the
total cost including capacity and collection system charges will be ($       per gallon x

260 gallons per ISU)  _  $ per ISU.   For purposes of this agreement,  the

Capacity cost is 50% of the total cost of an ISU and the collection system cost is 50%.

The capacity cost is due witfiin 30 days of Council approval of the ISU purchase and
the Collection system cost will be due prior to the issuance of the building permit.

4.  Builder acknowledges that the transfer of  /    ISU' s from the MWQCF or

LCTF) requires the new owner to pay operations and maintenance costs from the date

10 of 12

468



w; >: F:.

CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

the capacity is approved by the City Council until the date the proposed project is
occupied and payment of wastewater monthly fees begin.  The City estimates the
annual operations and maintenance costs for this transfer to be $ year.

5.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with

respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior understandings or
agreements.    This Agreement may be modified only by a writing signed by both
parties.   This Agreement shall be governed by,  and construed in accordance with,

the laws of the State of California. If any term,  covenant, condition or provision

of this Agreement, or the application thereto to any person or circumstance, shall to
any extent be held by a court of competent jurisdiction or rendered by the adoption of
a statute by the State of California or the United States invalid, void or unenforceable,
the remainder of the terms, covenant, conditions or provisions of this Agreement, or

the application thereto to any person or circumstance, shall remain in full force and
effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

6.  A copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the City of Lathrop Director of Public
Works, and shall run with the land and City shall record a notice of this Agreement
against the Land in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.

7.  This Agreement may be terminated only in accordance with the City' s then- current
policy regarding the transfer of ISUs between persons or properties.  If the City
agrees to terminate this Agreement pursuant to that policy, City shall record a release
of this Agreement as to the Land.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  Builder and City have executed this Agreement as of the
date first set forth above.

CIT'Y:

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

APPLICANT:

e   hc     `  —`,

gnature Print Name Date

Signature Print Name Date

11 of 12

469



CITY OF LATHROP

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY POLICY

EXHIBIT C

NOTICE OF TRANSFER OF

INTERCEPTOR SEWER UNITS ( ISUs)

AFFECTING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY

Notice is hereby given that owner/

grantor) hereby transfers to buyer/

grantee)    Interceptor Sewer Units ( ISUs) pursuant to an Agreement/ Approved
Application with the City of Lathrop dated
20 which Agreement/ Approved Application affects the real property commonly known
as

City of Lathrop, County of San Joaquin, State of California, and the legal description of the
real property from which the ISUs are transferred is attached as Exhibit" 1" and incorporated
by reference herein.

Notice is given further that the real property to which the ISUs are transferred is commonly
known as

City of Lathrop, County of San ] oaquin, State of California, and the legal description of said  
real property is attached as Exhibit" 2" and incorporated by reference herein.

This notice shall be duly recorded in the records of the County of San ] oaquin Clerk
Recorder' s Office.    

Dated•       20

Owner/ Grantor Signature

Print Name

12 of 12

470



AI IH(: FiI1fItN ! U

Doc#:  2014-045737

RECORDI lG itEQu BY•  
05/ 09/2014 08: 08:35 AM

CtiKago TiUe Company
Page 1 of 3 Fee: $ 30.0o Tax Paid: $ 3, 107. 50

Kenneth W. Blakemore

LOmhe No.: CACiV739• 7739-4532-0053224b22 San Joaquin County Recorder
TIUeNo.: 14- 532?A622-LM Paid By: CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY STOCKTON
YVhen Recarded Mafl Dxument

and Tax Statement To:
Heartland Express Inc. of Iawa
12550 and 12540 South Harlan Road

Lathrop, CA 95330

APN: 196-030-29& 196-030-31
SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE F9R RECORDERS

I,iSE

GRISlVY EED

The undersfgned granMKs)    lare(s)

Docume tary transfier tax i  $ 3, 107. SO
X   ]  compuced on fu perty conveyed, or

computed on full value less value of Ifens or encumbrances remaining a[ dme of sale,
J Unlncorparated Area City of l.athrop

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, rece{pt of whkh is hereby atknawledged, Cd 11L S& S, LLC, a California limited liability
company, hereby GRANT( 5) to HEARTLAPJD EXPRE55 INC. OP IOWA, an Iowa Carporation, the fo bwing described
real property in the Qty of Lathrop, County of San Joaquin, State of Califomia:

SEE D(HIBIT" A" ATTACHED HEREfO AND MADE A PART HEREOF

CAL S& S LLC

DATED:   I l I By:
l       '

Scott A. Gordon, Manager

State of Wash(ngton    )

County of P(—F'--} SS•     NOTARY SEAL

I ce tffy that I know or have sadsfactory evidence that Scott A. Gordon is the
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he signed
this instrument, on oath stated that he was autfiorized to execute the instrument
and acknowledge it as the Manager oF Cal S&S, LLC, a Callfnrn a Iimited liability
oompany, W be the free and voluntary act of such party for tfie uses and
purposes mentioned In this instrument

OATED:      o M r     a , t

N
S a e ra, p

Notary name:     7-..   t4• Fa' S a
yqp q,y o h,dsoyiM

Notary Public in and for tfie State of Washington

pr

kp es FS
Residing at 1"' ' 1"'`    9 o B
My appo(ntrnent expires:   N f JJ ((

MAI, TAX STA' fEPl a I3IR C'iE BANE

FD- 213( Rev 12/ 07) GRANT OEED

c rdrt)( 1 3)( Rev. 07- I1)

Order: QuickVew_ Doc: CASANJ: 2014 00045737 06077 Page 1 of 3 Created By: laura. marquez Printed: 6( 27/ 2014 4: 02: 27 PM PST

471



2014-045737 Page 2 af 3
05/09/ 2014 Q8:08:35 AM

Escow no.:

i.ombe No, s CACf[ 7739•7739 532•0053Z24622
Tltle No.: 14- 53224b22-LM

EXHI IT" A"

THE IAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SINATED IN THE CRY OF LATHROP, COUMY OF SAN JOAQUIN, STATE
OF CALIFORNIA AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BQNG ALL OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF IAND DESCRIBED IN THE GRAfdT DEED RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 4, 20 8,
AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2Q08- 174214, OFFIQAL RECORDS OF SAN] dAQi1IN COUNTY AIVD A PORTION OF TNAT CERTAIN
PARCEL OF IAND DESCRIBED IN THE GRANT DEEO RECORDED ON MARCH 19, 1985, AS INSfRUMENT N0. BS-018340,
OFFiQAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAQUIN COUMY, AND BQNG MORE PAF2TICUlARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

BEING A PORTION OF THE EASi HALF OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP i SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAS'T, MOUNT DIABLO BASE
AND MERIDIAN; CITY QF LATNROP, COUiVTY OF SAN} AQUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NiORE PARTICULARLY

DESCRI6E0 AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE EAS7 LiNE OF T}iE 43. 21 ACRE PARCEL ENTITLEO" REMAINDER" AS SHOWN ON
THE PARC0.MAP FILEO IN BOOK 21 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 144, SAN JOAQUIN COUMY RECORDS, SAID POINT
BQNG SOUTH 00° 18' 44" WEST, 625. 01 FEET FROM THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 43. 21 ACRE PARCEL;

T} 1ENCE ALONG A LINE PARALLEL VYITH AND 625.00 FEET 54UTH OF, MEASURED AT A RIGHT ANGLE, TO TNE NORTH
LINE OF SAID 43.21 ACRE PARCEL SOUTH 89° 57' 14" WEST, Z026.30 FEET Ta THE EASI' LINE OP THAT REAL PARCEL
OF lANO DESCRIBED IN SAID Gf1ANT DEED FILED A5 DONMENT NUMBER 65- 18340 ON MARCH 19, 1985, SAN
OAQUIN COUIYTY

RECARDS;

THENCE ALONG TFlE SAID EAS'f AND SOUrH LINE OF SAID REAL PARCEL OF LAND THE FOLLOWING TWO( 2) COURSES;

1) SOUTH 10° 06' Z9" WEST, 67.43 FEET;
2) NORTN 89' S5' 14" WEST 355.63 FEET

THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTH LINE, NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A 65.00 FOOT RADIUS HON-TANGENT
NRVE TO TFtE RIGHT, T} iE CENTER OF WHICH CURVE BEARS, NORTH 30° 58' 34" FAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE
OF 48° 05' 21" AN ARC DISTANCE OF 54. 56 FEET TO A POINT IN TNE EIISTERLY LINE OF T1iAT CERTAIN 26.00 FOOT
WIDE PARCEL QF LAND CONVEYE FROM PETS& PALS, A CALIFORNIA NONPROFff PUBLIC BENEFIf CORPORATION
TO THE QTY OF LATF3ROP, CALIFORNIA, A POLTiIU1L CORPORATION AND GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY, DATED
December 9, 2011 AND RECARDED ON December 29, 2011 AS DOC.UMENT NUMBER 2011- 164118, SAN JOAQUIN
COUNTY RECORDS;

THENCE ALONG SAID EAS7ERLY LINE, SO{JT'H 10° 16' S6" WEST, 44, 05 FEE7 TO A PaINT IN TNE SOUTHERLY LINE
OF SECOND SAID PARCEL( 85-016340), SAID POINT IN SAID SOUTNERLY I1NE BEING ATTHE INTERSECTION OF SAID
50UTHERLY LINE WITN TNE EASTERLY RIGtiT-OF-WAY 11NE aF HARLAN ROAD AS SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY IS
QESIGNATED, SHOWN AND OFFERED FOR DEQICATION AS" 26' RIGHT-0E-WAY WIDENING" ON THAT CERTAIN
PARCEL MAP FILED FOR RECORD ON MARCH 7, 200U IN BOOK 21 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 144, SAN JOAQUIN
COUNTY RECORDS;

THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING 7W0( 2) COURSES:

1) SOUTH 10° 16' S6" WEST, 141. 61 FEET;
2} SOUTH 10° 27' 38" WESI', 87.83 FEEf TO THE NORTH LINE OF PARCEL" A" AS SHOWN ON SAID PARCEL MAP FILED
IN BOOK 210F PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 144;

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTN LINE OF PARCEL" A" THE FOLLOWING FNE( 5) COURSES:

Order: QuickView_ Do: CASANJ; 2014 00045737 06077 Page 2 of 3 Created By: laura.marquez Printed; 6/ 27/ 2014 4: Q2: 28 PM PST

472



2014-045737 Page 3 of 3

Q5(09/2014 08:08:35 AM

1) NORTN 89° 57' 33" E/ ST, 927.48 FEET;

2) SOlJili 00° 02' 27" EAST, 15.00 FEET';

3) NORIIi 89° 57' 33" EAST', 121. 00 FEET;
4) NORTH 00" 02' 27" WEST, 15.00 FEET;   

5) NORTH 89° 57' 33" EAST, 1423. 15 FEE7 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL" A";

THENCE ALONG THE F.AS"i' LINE OF SAID 43.21 ACRE PARCEL NORTH 00° 18' 44" EASf, Z91. 42 FEET TO THE PQINT
OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION IS PREPARED IN CONFORMANCE WITH LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT 2012 0036 AS APPROVED
BY THE UTY OF IATNROP.

BQNG AD] USTED PARCEL 1 ON 7HAT CERTAIN NOTICE OF LOT LINE AD] USTMENT RECORDED July 27, Z012,
INSTRUMENT N0. 2012- 94b93, OF OFFlQAL RECOftDS.

APN: 246-034-29 AND 196- 030-31 .

APN: 196-030-29& 196-030-31

Order: QuickView_ Doc: CASANJ: 2014 00045737 06077 Page 3 of 3 Created By: laure. marquez Printed: 6/ 27/ 2014 4: 02: 28 PM PST

473



1

474



ITEM4. 17    ,

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FROM STUDEBAKER

BROWN ELECTRIC FOR CIP PS 17- 02 TRAFFIC

SIGNAL AT RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND

MCKEE BOULEVARD AND FOR CIP PS 17- 05
TRA FFIC SIGNAL AT HARLAN ROAD AND

STONEBRIDGE LANE

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements
from Studebaker Brown Electric for CIP PS

17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway
and McKee Boulevard and for CIP PS 17- 05
Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge

Lane and Authoriae the Filing of a Notice of
Completion and Release of Contract Retention

SUMMARY:

Studebaker Brown Electric    ( SBE)    has completed construction of Capital

Improvement Project ( CIP)  PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and
McKee Boulevard and CIP PS 17- 05 Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge
Lane.   Staff is recommending that City Council adopt a resolution accepting the
improvements from SBE and file a Notice of Completion  ( NOC)  with San Joaquin

County Clerk.   Staff is also requesting the release contract of retention to SBE in
the amount of $30, 250. 87, 45 days after recording the NOC.

BACKGROUND:

CIP PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and CIP
PS 17- 05 Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane were both created in
2016.   In May 2017 the contract plans and specifications were completed and the
two projects were advertised together due to similar types of work and potential

cost savings associated with building them at the same time.   In July 2017 City
Council authorized a contract with SBE for construction of PS 17- 02 and PS 17- 05.

SBE has completed construction of PS 17- 02 and PS 17- 05 and staff is

recommending that City Council adopt a resolution accepting the improvements and
authorize staff to file a NOC with the San Joaquin County Clerk and release contract
retention, 45 days after recording the NOC.   Prior to releasing contract retention,
staff will require the contractor to furnish a one- year warranty bond that will begin
on the date of project acceptance and provide all lien releases for the materials
supplied and work completed.

475



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGUL R MEETING

ACCEPT IMPFtOVEN1ENTS FOR CIP PS 17- 02 TR IFFIC SIGNAL AT RI iER
ISLe4ND PARKWAI( 41VD MCICEE BOULEV 4RD AND FO12 CIP PS 17- 05

T'IZAFFIC SIGIVe4L AT HA tLAN ROAD ND STONEBRIDGE LANE

RE14SON FOI RECOMMEIVD14TION:

SBE has completed construction of PS 17- 02 and PS 17- 05.   The work has been

completed per the contract documents,  inspected by City staff and meets the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.   City Council' s acceptance of these improvements
and authorization to file a NOC with the San. Joaquin County Clerk.   Staff is also

requesting the release contract retention to SBE in the amount of $ 30, 250. 87, 45

days after recording the NOC as required by the contract specifications and plans
and the City' s Municipal Code.

COUNGIL GOALS ADVANCED Bl( THIS GENDA IYEM:

This agenda item promotes Public Safetv by providing roadway improvements at
the intersection of River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and the intersection
of Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane.

FISCAL IMP CT:

In July 2017 City Council authorized a contract with SBE in the amount of $580, 400

and a 10%   construction contingency of   $58, 040 for a total construction

authorization of $638, 440 for PS 17- 02 and PS 17- 05.

The final construction contract amount is $ 605, 017. 30.   Adequate funds have been

allocated in the FY 17/ 18 budget to close out the project.   With the completion of

project PS 17- 02 and PS 17- 05,  staff requests that unused funds be transferred

back to their funding sources.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Accepting Improvements from Studebaker Brown Electric for CIP
PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and
for CIP PS 17- 05 Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane and

Authorize the Filing of a Notice of Completion and Release of Contract
Retention

6.  Notice of Completion

C.  GASB Report for PS 17- 02

D.  GASB Report for PS 17- 05

476



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR CIP PS 17- 02 TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT RIVER
ISLANDS PARKWAY AND MCKEE BOULEVARD AND FOR CIP PS 17- 05
TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT HARLAN ROAD AND STONEBRIDGE LANE

APPROVALS:

5 - 2.—\S

Michael King Date

Senior Civil Engineer

I e 
i J s Date

Director o Fin nce

U

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

5• ' cgj

phen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

477



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTEON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITI( OF LATHROP

ACCEPTIiVG IMPRO\/ EM9ENTS FROM STUDEBAKER BROlNN ELEC' IZIC FOR
CIP PS 17- 02 TRAFFIC SIGIVAI. AT RIVER ISLANDS PARK119/ Al( AND N9CKEE

OULEV 41tD ND FAR CIP PS 17- 05 TRA FFIC SIGNAL AT HARLAIV R0 4D

Aie1D STOIVEBRIDGE LANE AND AUTHORIZE TWE FILING OF A NOTICE OF
COMPLETIOf+I AND RELEASE OF CONTRACT ISETENTION

VNHEREAS,  Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at

River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and CIP PS 17- 05 Traffic Signal at
Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane were included in the approved Fiscal Year
2017/ 18 budget; and

1n/ HEREAS, on July,  2017 City Council awarded the contract for PS 17- 02
Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and CIP PS 17- 05
Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane to Studebaker Brown Electric,

Inc.   in the amount of in the amount of  $ 580, 400 and a 10%  construction

contingency of $58, 040 for a total construction authorization of $638, 440; and

1A4HEREAS,  during construction,  contract amendments totaling  $24, 617. 30

were issued for a final contract amount of $605, 017. 30 and

WHEREAS, Studebaker Brown Electric,  Inc.  has completed construction of

the Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and the Traffic
Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane Project; and

WHEREAS, with the completion of project PS 17- 02 and PS 17- 05, staff

requests that unused funds be transferred back to their funding sources; and

WIiEREAS,  the work has been completed per the contract documents,

inspected by City staff and meets the satisfaction of the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS,  prior to releasing contract retention,  City staff will require the
contractor to furnish a one ( 1)  year warranty bond that will begin on the date of
project acceptance and provide all lien releases for the materials supplied and

completed work.

RIOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby accepts the work performed by Studebaker Brown Electric, Inc. on
CIP PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and CIP
PS 17- 05 Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane as complete and

authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to file a Notice of Completion with the
San Joaquin Recorder/ County Clerk' s Office for the work being accepted; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
hereby authorizes staff to release the retention in the amount of $ 30, 250. 87, 45

days after recording of the Notice of Completion.

478



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

14TTEST:  APPRO/ E AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

479



3 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY

CITY OF LATHROP

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO

NAME City of Lathrop
City Clerk

STREET 390 Towne Centre Drive

ADDRESS La[hrop, CA 95330
CITY&

STATE

ZIP

1 10TICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN:

1.   That the interest or estate stated in paragraph 3 herein in the real property herein described is owned by:
NAME STREET AND NO.       CITY STATE

Citv of Lathr      390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop California

If more than one owner of the interest stated, the name and address of each must be stated)

2.   That the full name and address of the owner of said interest or estate, if there is only one owner, and that the full
names and addresses of all the co- owners who own said interest or estate as tenants in common, as joint tenants, or

otherwise, if there is more than one owner, are set forth in the preceding paragraph.

3.   That the nature of title or the stated owner, or if more than one owner, then of the stated owner and co-owners is:

Project No. CIP PS 17- 02 Traffic SiQnal at River Islands Parkwav and McKee Boulevard and for CIP PS 17- OS

Traffic SiQnal at Harlan Road and StonebridQe Lane bv Studebaker Brown Electric.

4.   That on the 14th day of Mav 2018 a work of improvement on the real property herein described was
completed.

5.   That the name of the original contractor, if any, for said work of improvement was: Studebaker Brown Electric

6.   That the name and address of the transferor is:

NAME STREET AND NO.      CITY STATE

Studebaker Brown Electric 6643 32nd Street# 106 North HiQhlands CA 95660

7.   That the real property herein referred to is situated in the City of La[hrop County of San Joaquin,
State of California, and is described as follows:

Project No. CIP PS 17- 02 Traffic Sicnal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard and for CIP PS 17- OS
Traffic Si nal at Harlan Road and StonebridQe Lane

B y:
City Manager

That the undersigned has knowledje of the contents herein and states under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct. 

B y:
Ciry Clerk

480



CEIa IFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the NOTICE OF COMPLETION
dated May 14, 201 from Studebaker Brown Electric, Inc. to the City of Lathrop, a political
corporation and/ or governmental agency, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer or agent on
behalf of the City Council pursuant to authority conferred by minute action of the City Council
adopted on May 14, 2018, and the grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized
officer.

Dated By
City Manager

481



1 C    
CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECI' ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Michael King ( Senior Civil Engineer) Date: 4- 29-2018

Tract No.:      PS 17- 02 Traffic Signal at River Islands Parkway and McKee Boulevard

Traffic Signal

Item Unit Qty_       Unit Price Total Price

TS Foundations EA 9 5, 000.00      $  45, 000.00

Service & Controller Foundation EA 2 6, 000.00      $  12,000.00

Conduit LS 1 9, 500.00      $    9, 500.00

Boxes EA 12 850.00      $  10,200.00

Service Cabinet& BBS EA 1 9, 500.00      $    9, 500.00

Controller Cabinet EA 1 16, 500.00      $  16,500.00

TS Poles w/ Gear EA 9 10, 500.00      $  94, 500.00

Wire LS 1 31, 600.00      $  31, 600.00

Loops LS 1 13,575. 00      $  13, 575. 00

Total 242,375.00

482



u

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Michael King ( Senior Civil Engineer) Date: 4-29-2018

Tract No.:      PS 17-05 Traffic Signal at Harlan Road and Stonebridge Lane

Traffic Signal

Item Unit Unit Price Total Price

TS Foundations EA 6     $  4,500.00      $  27,000.00

Service & Controller Foundation EA 2     $  6, 000.00      $  12,000.00

Conduit LS 1      $ 15,000.00      $  15, 000.00

Boxes EA 16     $     850. 00      $  13,600.00

Service Cabinet& BBS EA 1      $  9, 500.00      $   9, 500.00

Controller Cabinet EA 1      $ 16,500.00      $  16,500.00

TS Poles w/ Gear EA 6     $  8, 500.00      $  51, 000.00

Wire LS 1      $  7,400.00      $   7, 400. 00

Loops EA 25     $  1, 200.00      $  30,000. 00

Detector Handholes EA 7     $     950. 00      $   6, 650. 00

Crack Seal LS 1      $  7,500.00      $   7,500. 00

Slurry Seal LS 1      $ 30, 000.00      $  30,000. 00

Striping LS 1      $ 15,000.00      $  15, 000. 00

Total 241, 150. 00

483



CONDITIONAL VNAIV R AND RELEASE OR! FINAL PAYIEAENT

dOTICE: THIS DOCUI AEh1T WAIVES TH CLl IMANT' S LIEN, STOP PAYMENT
iVOTiCE, AfVD PAYMENT BOBV R1G ITS EFFECTIVE ON RECEIPT OF PAYMENT.

A PERSON SHOULD NOT RELY ON THIS DOCUMEfVT UNLESS SATISFIED THAT
THE CLAIMAPVT HAS RECEIVED P,4YMENT.

Identifying Information

Name of Claimant: Sfudebaker Brown Electric, Inc.

Name of Customer: 

Job Location:   

Owner. 2    t1
i

Conditional V4laiver and Release

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job. Rights
based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a written change

order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. This document
is effective only on the claimanYs receipt of payment from the financial institution on which the following
check is drawn:

Maker of Check:          yD

Amount of Check: $ f ')    
Check Payable to: Studebaker Brown Electric, Inc.

Exceptions

This document does not affect any of fhe following:  
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of: $

Signature

ClaimanYs Signature•   

Ciaimant's Title:   

Date of Signature:       ' ,     '   

7/ 1/ 12

484



i ITEM 4. 1    !
i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: RATIFY EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACT WITH TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION

FOR REPAIRS TO THE CROSSROADS STORM

DRAIN SYSTEM

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution to Ratify City Manager' s
Approval of an Emergency Construction

Contract with Teichert Construction for

Repairs to the Crossroads Storm Drain System

and Approve Creation of CIP SD 18- 13 and

Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY

In April 2018 while performing routine maintenance on the Crossroads storm drain
system, stafF identified a potential failure in an existing 84" storm drain pipe.  In an

effort to determine the full scope of the potential failure, the City Manager approved
a purchase order for $ 30, 000 with Teichert Construction  ( Teichert)  to clean and

inspect the existing pipe.     Teichert,   along with City staff,   determined that

approximately 200 feet of storm drain pipe was damaged and needed to be
replaced.

Failure of the existing 84"  storm drain pipe would put the entire Crossroads

Business Park at risk and cause significant damage to the roadway and other public
utilities around the storm drain pipe.   In order to maintain public services in an

efficient and timely manner, the City Manager approved an emergency construction
contact with Teichert.    

The emergency construction services are being tracked on a time and material
basis with a total estimated cost of $279, 500.  The Crossroads Storm Drain Capital
Replacement Fund has a current balance of $ 69, 766,  which is not sufficient to

cover the cost of the emergency construction services.

Staff requests City Council ratify the City Manager' s approval of emergency
construction contract with Teichert, approve the creation of Capital Improvement

Project ( CIP) SD 18- 13 and approve a budget amendment transferring $ 209, 734

from the General Fund Reserves  ( 1010)  to cover the emergency construction
services.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

Failure of the existing 84" storm drain line would put the entire Crossroads Business

Park at risk and cause significant damage to the roadway and other public utilities
around the storm drain pipe.      

485



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION

FOR REPAIRS TO THE CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN SYSTEM

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM

This agenda item promotes Public Safetv by maintaining public services in an
efficient and timely manner.

FISC 4L IMPACT

The emergency construction services are within the Crossroads Storm Drain City
Zone 1A.   The Crossroads Storm Drain Capital Replacement Fund has a current

balance of $ 69, 766,  which is not sufficient to cover the cost of the emergency
construction services.   The emergency construction services are being tracked on a
time and material basis with a total estimated cost of $279, 500.

Staff request City Council approve the creation of CIP SD 18- 13 and a budget
amendment transferring   $ 69, 766 from the Crossroads Storm Drain Capital

Replacement Fund  ( 2490)  and  $ 209, 734 from the General Fund Reserves Fund

1010) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 209, 734

Increase Transfer Out

2490- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 69, 766

Increase Transfer In

3910- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 279, 500

Increase Appropriation

3910- 8000- 420- 1200 SD 18- 13     $ 279, 500

ATTAC H M E NTS

A.  Resolution to Ratify City Manager' s Approval of Emergency Construction

Contract with Teichert Construction for Repairs to the Crossroads Storm Drain

System and Approve Creation of CIP SD 18- 13 and Related Budget Amendment

B.  Construction Contract Between the City of Lathrop and Teichert Construction for
Emergency Repair to the Crossroad Storm Drain Line CIP SD 18- 13

486



CITY i IANAGER' S REPORT

i IAY 14, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGUL Ft MEETING

EMEI GEIVCY CONSTRdJCTION CONTRAC WITH TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION

FOR I EPAIRS TO THE CROS QtOADS STORM DItAIN SYSTEM

APPROi/AL

l       5-  zv 
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

0  

Cari me Date

Dire F nance

V

5-  -/ g

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

A d
St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

487



RESOLUTION 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S APPROVAL OF AN EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACT WITH TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION FOR REPAIRS TO THE

CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN SYSTEM AND APPROVE CREATION OF CIP

SD 18- 13 AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  in April 2018 while performing routine maintenance on the
Crossroads storm drain system, staff identified a potential failure in an existing 84"
storm drain pipe; and

WHEREAS, failure of the existing 84" storm drain pipe would put the entire

Crossroads Business Park at risk and cause significant damage to the roadway and
other public utilities around the storm drain pipe; and

WHEREAS, in an effort to determine the full scope of the potential failure,

the City Manager approved a purchase order for $30, 000 with Teichert Construction

Teichert) to clean and inspect the existing pipe; and

WHEREAS,  Teichert,  along with City staff,  determined that approximately
200 feet of storm drain pipe was damaged beyond repair and needed to be

replaced; and

WHEREAS,  Teichert is specially trained,  experienced,  and competent to

perform emergency storm drain services in a timely manner; and

WHEREAS,  in accordance with Lathrop Municipal Code Section 2. 36. 080,
titled   " Emergency Procedures,"   the City Manager approved an emergency
construction contract with Teichert to maintain public services in an efficient and

timely manner; and

WHEREAS,  the emergency construction services are being tracked on a
time and material basis with a total estimated cost of $279, 500; and

WHEREAS,  the Crossroads Storm Drain Capital Replacement Fund has a

current balance of  $69, 766,  which is not sufficient to cover the cost of the

emergency construction services; and

WHEREAS, staff requests City Council ratify the City Manager' s approval of
an emergency construction contract with Teichert, approve the creation of Capital
Improvement Project   ( CIP)   SD 18- 13 and approve a budget amendment

transferring  $ 209, 734 from the General Fund Reserves  ( 1010)  to cover these

emergency construction services; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby ratifies the City Manager' s signature for the Emergency
Construction Contract with Teichert; and

488



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
hereby approves a budget amendment transferring  $69, 766 from the Crossroads

Storm Drain Capital Replacement Fund  ( 2490)  and  $ 209, 734 from the General

Fund Reserves Fund ( 1010) as follows

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 209, 734

Increase Transfer Out

2490- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 69, 766

Increase Transfer In

3910- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 279, 500

Increase Appropriation:

3910- 8000- 420- 1200 SD 18- 13     $ 279, 500

489



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14t'' day of May 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIIV:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  PPROVED AS TO FOR  :

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

490



ATTACHMENT B   `

OR1GlNA   

CONSTRUCTIOiV CUNTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

TEICHERT CONSTRUGTION FOR EMERGENCY REPAIR TO THE
CROSSROAD STORM DRAIN LlNE CIP SD 98-' 13

THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (hereinafter" ContracY') is made on the date

A ril 18, 2Q18 set forth below, by and between the City of Lathrop (hereinafter "City")
and Teichert Construction { hereinafter" Contractor"}.

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor{ the parties) agree:

SCOPE OF WORK

The City identified excessive sediment in the pump station and realized the
Crossroads storm drain line was cracked and issued a Purchase Order to Contractor to
evaluate the Crassroads storm drain line at a cost not to exceed $ 30,aao.   Contractor

cleaned the Crossroads line and identifisd an eminent danger of the Crossroads line

collapsing, which would likely flood businesses within the area. The Contractor agrees to
furnish all wark, labor, tools, materials, transportation, equipment and servfces necessary
for emergency repair to the 84" Crossroads storm drain line to avoid the identified risk of
eminent failure. The work is being perfarmed as an emergency repair as defined in
Lakhrop Municipal Code 2.32.020 and Lathrop Municipal Code 13.28.200. Due to the
eminent risk of health and safety, the City does not have adequate time to follow the
public bid process.   City Council will be asked by staff to ratify the City Manager' s
signature and decision to execute an emergency repair Cont act with Contractor at a
future City Council meeting.   Contractor provided a scope of work including hourly rates
for the emergency repair services at#ached hereto as Exhibit" A" and incorporated herein
by reference. Contracfor agrees to compfete the work to the satisfaction of City and
subject to inspection, or its rep esentatives.

C4NTRACT PRICE

CITY hereby agrees to pay Contractor on a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accordance with Exhibit" A" up to a sum not to exceed $ 249 452 fo Emergency
services to repair the Crossroads storm drain 1ine.

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM

The effective date of this Agreement is April 18, 2Q18, and it shall terminate no
later than June 30, 2018.    

PERMITS; COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

The Contractor shall, at its expense, obtain afl necessary permits and licenses,
easements, etc., fior the canstruction of the project, give necessary notices, pay all fees
required by law, and comply with all laws, ardinances, rules and regulations relating to

491



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION EMERGENCY REPAIR

the work and to the preservation of the public health and safety. All work must adhere to
best management p actice standards.

INSPECTION BY CITY

The Contractar shalf at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access

for inspection by the City to all parts af the work, and to fhe shops wherein the work is in
preparation. Where khe Specifications require work to be specially tested or approved, it
shall not be tested or covered up without timely, written appraval by the Ciry. Should any
such work be covered up without such natice, approval, or.consent, it must, if required by
City, be uncovered for examination at the Contractor's expense.

NOTICE

Any notice from one party to the other under the Contrack shall be in writing and
shall be dated and sfgned by the party giving such notice or by a duly authorized
representative of such party.  Any such notice shall not be effective for any purpose
whatsoever unless served in the#ollowing manner.

If the notice is given to the City, by personal delivery #hereof to the City's
Director of Public Works, or by depositing the same in the United States
mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope, addressed to the City's Directar of
Public Works, postage prepaid and certified;

if the notice is given ta the Contractor, by personal delivery thereof to said
Contractor ar to its duly authorized representative at the site of the project,
or by depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed
envefope, addressed to the Contractor at the address set forth in the

Contractor's Bid postage prepaid and certified; a

If the notice is given ko the surety or any other person, by petsonal delivery
to such surety or other pe son, or by depositing the same in the United
States mail, enclased in a sealed envelope, addressed to such surety or
other person, as the case may be, at the address of such surety or person
last communlcated by it to the party giving the notice, postage prepaid and
certified.

ACCIDENT PREVENTION

Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons ( including
employees)  and proper#y.    The safety provisions of applicable laws,  building and
construction codes shall be abserved. Machinery, equipment, and ather hazards shall be
guarded or eliminated in accordance with the safety provisions of the Canstruction 5afety
Orders issued by the Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board of the 5tate of
Califomia.

Page 2 of 8

492



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TE[CHERT CONSTRUCTION EMERGENCY REPAIR

C NTF2ACTOR' S WARRANTY

The City shall not, in any way or manner, be answerable or suffer loss, damage,
expense or liability for any loss or damage that may happen to said building, wark, or
equi¢ ment or any part thereof, ar in, on, or about the same during its constructian and
before acceptance. Cantractor unqualifiedly warrants all work and materials to be free of
defects whether pe Formed or installed by it or by any subcontractor ar supplier in the
project which is the subject of this Contract.

APPRENTICES

The Contractor's aftention is directed to the provisions of Sections 1777. 5,
1777.6, and 1777.7 of the California Labor Code concerning employment
of apprentices by the Contractor or any subcontractor under him.    In

addition,  Contractor shail obtain a certificate of apprenticeship before
employing any apprentice pursuant to Sections 1777.5, 1777.6 and 1777. 7
of the California Labor Code.

Information relative to apprenticeship standards, wage schedules,  and
other requirements may be obtained from the Director o#  Industrial

Relations, ex officio the Administrator of Apprenticeship, San Francisco,
California, or from khe Division of Apprenticeship Standards and its branch
offces.

Knowing violations of Section 1777. 5 wi11 result in forfeiture not ta exceed
one hundred dollars ($ 100} for each calendar day of non- compliance
pursuant to Section 1777.7.

HOURS OF WORK

Eight( 8) hours of work in any calendar day shall constitute a legal day's work. The
Contractar and each subcontractor shall forfeit, as penalty to the City, twenty-five dollars

25) for each worker employed in the executian of work on the Project by the Contractor
or any subcontractor under him for each calendar day during which such worker is
required or permitted to work mare than eight( 8) hours in any one calendar day and forty
40) hours in any calendar week in vialation of the provisions of tF e Labor Code, and in

particular, Section 1810 to Section 1815, thereof, inclusive, except that work performed

by employees of the Contractor and his subcontractors in excess of eight haurs per day
at not less than one and one half times the basic rate af pay, as provided in Labor Code
section 1815.

Page3of8

493



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TEICHERT CONSTRUCTIUN EMERGENCY REPQ IR

PAYROLL RECORDS

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776,  as amended from time to time,  #he

Cantractor and each subcant actar shaU keep records shnwing the name, address, social
security number, work classificatian, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and
week, and the actuaf per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker ar

other employee employed by him or her in connection with the work.

The certified payroil records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor
Standards Enforcement or shall cantain the same informa ion as the forms provided by
the Division.

The payroll records sha11 be certi ed and shall be available for inspection at all
reasonable haurs at the principal office of the Contractor on the following basis:

A certified copy of the employee's payroll records shal( be mad available

for inspection or fumished to such employee or his or her authorized
representative on request. 

A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available for inspection
or furnished upon request, or as required by Labar Code section 1771. 7 ta
the City, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement and the Division of
Apprenticeship Sfandards of the Department af Industrial Relatians.

A certified copy of aif payroll records shall be made available upon request
to the public for inspection or copies thereof made; provided, however, that

if request by the public shall be made thraugh either the City, the Division
of Apprenticeship Standards,  or the Division of Labor Standards

Enforcement, if as requested, payrall recards have been provided pursuant

to paragraph { b), the reguesting party sha11, prior to being provided the
records,   reimburse the cost of preparation by the Contractar,

subcontractors and the entiky through which the request was made.  The

public shall not be given access to such records at the principal office of the
Contractor.

The Contractar shall file a certified copy of the payroll records with the entity that
requested such records within ten ( 1 d) calendar days after receipt of a written request.

Any copy of records made avaiiable for inspection as copies and furnished upon
request to the public or the City, the Divisian of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division
of l.abor Standards Enfarcement, shall be marked ar obliterated in such a manner as to
prevent disclasure of an individual's name, address, and social security number.  The

name and address of the Contractor or any subcontractor performing work an the Project
shall nat be marked or obliterated.

Page 4 of 8

494



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION EMERGENCY REPAIR

The Contractor shal! inform the City of the location of the payroll records, including
the street address, city and county, and shall, within five ( 5) calendar days, provide a
notice of a change af iocation and address.

In the event of noncompliance with the requirements af this section, the Contractor

shall have ten ( 10) calendar days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written
notice specifying in what respects the Contractor must comply with this section.  5hauld

noncompliance still be evident after such ten ( 1d) calendar day period, the Contractor
shall, as a penalty to the City, forfeit twenty-five dollars {$ 25) for each calendar day, or
portion thereof, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated.

Upon the request of the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, such penalties

shalf be withheld from payments due Contractor.

PREVAILING WAGES

The Contractor is aware of the requirements of Califomia Labor Cade
Sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., as well as Califarnia Code of

Regulations, Title S, section 160a0 et seq. {" Prevailing Wage Laws") which

require the payment of prevailing wage•rates and the pertormance of other
requirements on certain " public works" and " maintenance" projects.  Since

this Contract involves an applicable" public works" or" maintenance" project,

as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and since the total compensation
is $ 1, 000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevaiting
Wage Laws.  The Contractor shall obtain a copy of the prevailing rates of
per diem wages applicable to the wark to be performed by subcantractors
from the website af the Division of Labor Statistics and Research of the
Department of Industrial Relations located at

httq://www.dir.ca.Qov/dlsr/PWD/ index.htm.  In the alternative, the City shall
provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages
applicable to the work to be performed by subcontractors.  Contractor shall

make copies of the prevailing rates of per diem wages far each craft,
classification or type of worker needed to perform work on the Project
available to intereste8 parties upon request, and shall post copies at the
Contractor's principal place of business and at the Project site.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials,
officers,  employees and agents free and harmless from any claims
liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or allege
failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

The Contractor and each subcontractflr shall forfeit as a penalty to the City
not more than fifty doliars ($ 50) for each calendar day, ar partian thereof,
for each worker paid Iess than t e stipulated p evailing rate for any work
done by him or by any subcontract under him, in viofation of the provisions
of the Cafifornia Labar Cade.

Page 5 of 8

495



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION EIAIIERGENCY REPAIR

The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rate and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portian thereof for
which each warker was paid less than the stipulated prevaiiing wage rate
shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

INDEN6NIFICATION

Contractar agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City Council
members, officers, employees, engineer, and consultants harmless from and against any
and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens, penalkies,

suits, ar judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time from any
injury to ar death of persons ar damage to property as a result of the willful or neglig nt
act ar omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance with any
Law respecting the condition, use, occupation ar safety of the Project site, or any part
thereof, or which arises from Contractor's failure to do anything required under this
Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is required not to do under this Contract,
or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Contractor in
the perfiormance of or failure to perform the terms and canditions of this Contract, except

as may arise from the sole willful or negligent ac# or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.

This indemnification shall extend ta any and all claims, demands, or liens made or filed
by reasan of any canstruction, renovation, or remadeling work performed by Contractor
under this Contract at any time during the term of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

SEVERABILITY

Nothing cantained in khe Cantract shall be construed so as to require the
commission of any act contrary to law.  Should a conflict arise between any provislon
contained herein and any present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary
to which the parties have no legal right to contract or act, the latter shall prevail and the

provision of this Cantract which is affected shall be curtailed and limited but only to the
extent necessary to bring it within the requirements of the law.  If such curtailment ar

limitation is not possible, the affected provision shall be of no force and effect.  Except as

aforesaid, such illegality shall not affect the validity of this Contract.

COMPLETE AGREEMENT

Thls Contract supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or in writing, between
the Parties with respect to the subject matter herein.   Each party to this Contract
acknowledges that no representation by any party which is not embodied herein or any
other agreement, statement, or pramise not contained in this Contract shall be valid and

binding.

Page 6 of 8

496



CO VSTRIDCTION CC)NTI 4CT

3'EIGFIERT COfVSTRUC'TQON EIVIERGENCY REPAIR

iNTERPFtETAT90N

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been given the

apportunity to independently review this Contr ct with legal counsel, and/ or
has the requisite experience and saphistication to understand, interpret and
agree ta the particular fanguage of the provisions of the Contract.

In the event of a controversy or dispute between the parties cancer ing the
provisians herein,  this document shall be interpret d accarding to the
pravisio s herein and na presumption shall arise concerning the

draftsmanship of such provision.

APPLlCA LE LAW

The parties hereto understand and agree that the terms of this Contract,
and its Exhibits, have been negotiated and executed within the State of

California and shall be gaverned by and construed under the laws of the
State of California.

ln the event af a dispute concerning the terms of this Contract, the pa ties
hereto expressly agree that the venue for any legal action shall be with the
apprapriate court in the County of San Joaquin, State of California.

SICtiNQaTURES

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have
the right, power, i gal capacity, and autharity ta enter into and to execuke this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of fhe CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shail inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 7 of 8

497



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION EMERGENCY REPAIR

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney.

2 8
Salvador Navarrete Date   '

Recommended far Appraval:       City of Lathrop
Senior Canstruction Manager

Ken Reed Date

Accepted By
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Step en Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONTRACTOR: Teichert Canstruction

265 Val Dervin Parkway
Stockton, CA 95206

Fed I D#     68-017;4245

Bus Licenses''#     U058
r

y•1 8

Signature Date

A. Ed Herrnberger - Vice President

Print Name and Title)

Page 8 of 8

498



TEICHERT CONSTRUCTiON

TIMF 8 MATERIAL RA TES

2017/18

EQUIFMENT

NOTE:' Equipment Rafes in"clude, Msrkup 8uf Are' Bere'= Nd labor ts"lncluded( see below)   °'"  
Addit(oria! Equfpr»ent sur"charges rrlay apply;when enta! costs exceed rates llsted below•      
Rafes Do.NOT,lqclude Extra Charge For Working!n Rock Cond7fions r",  •   .     .:.

qalea Indude Consumehtea and Mtnw TooM)

Renai Equlpmanl wiil be charged at the ful Invotce prtce. Telefiert reserves the rlght to Impose a fuel eurcharge.

Rat Per Hour

PICKUPS

ABF Explorer 4wd, F150 4wd 17.00

ABL Car 2wd, Ford Fusion, Taurus, Explorer 5.00

ACA F150 2wd 1/ 2 Ton Pickup 20.00

ACB F250& F350 Pickup 26.00

ACD F35U 2wd Pickup wlUt(Ilty Body 37.00
ACE F550 Crew Truck 8 Cone Truck 37,00

ACF F250 8 F350 4wd Pickup 28.fl0

ACG E450 N Van Truck 114.04 ,
ACH F550 w/Utillty Body Mechanics 8 Plumbers 4D. 00

DISCS
DGH Disc- Heavy Duty 95.Q0

HAMMERS

HRD Hydraulic pri11, 1R ECM66Q 88.00
HYD Hydraulic Hammer, Excavator Atlachment 175. 00

PAVERS 8 TRIMMERS
CTC Gomaco Texture& Cure Machine TC 600 215.00

FBD Asphalt Pavers, CedaraPids CR552 252.00

FBW Gomaco Paver GHP2800 1, 000.00

FGA Gomaco Curb 8 Gutter Paver GT6300 278.00

FCB Gomaco Curb& Gutter Paver GT360  244.00

LCB Pickup Machine, L(ncoln 660H 100.00

RWM Raad Widener, Weiler W530 14i. Q0

TRACTORS/ BACKHOESlL.OADERS
LBC_   Loader, Scraper JD210LJ& Case 570MXT 60.00

L8D Loader, Backhoe JD 710G 77.00

LBF Loader, Backhoe JD 410G 65.00

LBG Loader, Volvo L90E 125.00

L6K Loader, 12 Yd Cat 992D 8 Komatsu WA900 32B.00

LBM Loader, 3Yd Volvo L120 115.Q0

LSO Loader, Cat 988, Komatsu WA600 167.00
LBP Loader, 4 Yd Volva L150, Komalsu WA450 139.00'

LBS Skid Steer, Cat 246C 53A0

LBT l.oader, 5 YO Komatsu WA500 126.00

MOTOR GRADERS { Bl desj
MHD Motor Grader, Cat 140G 140.00`
MHF Motor Greder, Cat 163H 150.00'

MHG Motor Grader, Cat 14H 145.00 '

MHL Motor Grader, Cat 16W 160.00"

MATERIAL TRANSFER VEHICLES

MN Mate ial Transfer Vahicle, Wefler£ l125D 383.00

rwy r, ion
Rat s are eflecNve from July 2di7 through June 2018. Teichert reserves the dghf lo modlfy fhls schedufe at eny! lme.     peye fr

499



TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION

TlME 8 MATERIAL RATES

2017/ t8

NOTE:• Equipment Rates lncluife, Markup`But Are" Bare'- No`L'atiorls lrrcluded{ see befo v)    
Add1ltonal E uf' ment suichs es`me a, l when renla! cnsts.exceed rafea llsfed below ,,4P r9 YPAY

Rate"s o.NOT lnclude Extra Gharge For Worklny! n Rock Condlflons„_    , .      

Rate Per Hour

ROLLERSlCOM PACTORS
RBH Raller, Pneumat9c, 10 Ton, IR PT125R 74.00

RBJ Roller, Pneumatic, 3U Ton, IR PT240R 100.00
RCF Roller, i'andem, 8- 12 Ton, Hyster C350D 59.00
RKA Cempactor, Cat 815F 176.00•

RKB Compactor, Cat 825 225.00*

RKB Compaclor, Cat 824H, Rubber Ti e Z25.00

RKH Concrete Breaker, lmpact i2oller Tech 20U0 89.00

RKH Concrete Breaker, Impact Roqer Tech 2400 89.00
RTP Gomaco Piacer RTP50U 0.00
RTP Gomaco Placer RTP500 0.00
RVC Roller, Vibratory, Cat C822AE, CB2{, C832 62.00

RVD Rolle, Vibratory, IR DD110, DD11 B, Cat CB534D 92.00

RVL Roller, Vibratory Smooth Drum, IR SD122SD 104. 00

RVN Roller, Vibratory Ped Drum, 1R SD122PD i15.00

EXCAVA70RS

5GC Excavalor, Cat 308D CR SB 62.Q0'
SGD Excavator, Komatsu PC200 110.00"
SGE Excavator, Komatsu PC220 130.00•

SGF E ccavator, Komatsu PC300 1 B. 00"
SGF Excavator, Komatsu PC300 w/ I. oDrill Auger 180.00•
SGIV Excavaior, Komatsu PC400 200.Od'
SGO Excavator, Komatsu PC600 230A0

SGP Excavator, Komatsu PC750, PC800 347.00

002ERS

7DC Crawler, Cat D5KXL 120. 00

TDD Crawler, Cat D6R 190. 00'

TpJ Crawler, Cat D90R, D10T 375,00'

TDM Crawler, Cat DBR, D8T 245,00
TD   Grawler, Gat D9R    `   292.00'

SCRAPERS

TED Tracior, With Otympic Crane 76.00'

TEF Scraper, Oper 8owl, Ca1831 E 288.00'

TEH Scraper, Open 8owl, Cat 651 E 308.00'

TEL Water Pull, 6000 Gal, Cat fi23 173.00'

7EM Tractor, John Deere wlDisk 192.00'
TEN Scraper, Elevating at 623G 245.00'

f Q Scraper, Cat 637G 349.00'

TET Scraper, Elsvating Cal 613C 155.00'
TEW Scraper, Elevating Cet 633, MES34 313.00'

TRENCHERS

TOA Trencher, Wheel 234.00

TOH Trencher, Boom 422.00

rury, son
Rales are elfective/ rom July 2017 fhrough June 20i 8. Telchert res8rvas the righ! fo modify 1hls schedule at eny tlme.     pepe ys

500



TEICHERT CONSTRUCTIUN
TlME 8 MATERIAL RATES

2017/18

NOTE: qWpme rt Retes,"Include' Markup But Aie'eare'= No Labor̀ ls lncluded'(see 6elow)_ . ,

Ra e1sDo NOTlrtclude Ex1raChameFoWorkln
R

R
Ral costs exceed ratas llstad below  ..    

r

rg 9 ack Condrtfons. ,       

Rate Per Hour

TREHCHERS

TOH Trencher, Vermeer f1055 422.00

7RUCKS

TRA 7ruck, Attenuator Ford F- 650 42.OD

TRB Truck, Mechania Kenworth T30Q 56.Od

TRC Truck, HD FlaVack, lncludes Tiltbed Trailer 57.00

TRD Truck, Flatrack 75.00

TRE Truck, HD Ffatrack wiKnuckleboom Crane 94.00

TRG Truck, Slockpile, Kenworih C500 91. 00
TRW fruck, HydralEft, Ke wo lh T80D 11fl.00

TRFi Truck, Precast Hydralitt w/ Trailet 110.OQ

7RJ Truck, Lube 8 Fusl, Kenworth T-800 72.00

TRK Truck, 70-Wheel Dump, Kenwonh T-800 73.00

TRL Tnuk, Water, Kenworth T300 65.D0

TRM Truck, Readymix 10-Yard, Kenworth W800 36.OQ

TEtO Tractor, 3-Axle 8 End Dump' frailer 94.00

TRQ Tractor, Transpori, Kenworth TS00 8 Lowbed 100. 00

TRS Truck, Swesper 194. 00

TRU 7ruck, Articulated Dump, Komatsu HM350 191, 00

TRV Truck, Vacuum 189.Q0

FORKLIFTS

UAB Pneumatic Forklift 4,000- 6,000# Gapacity 80.00

UAC Pneumatic Forkfift 13,000- 16,DOD# Capacity 60.00

UAT Telescoping ForkliR 61. 00

CRANES

CFL Rough Terrain Crane, 40-50 Ton, Grove R1745 120,00

CFQ Raugh Terrain Crane, 28•30 Ton, Grove RT528C 175.00

a - When working In, rockadd per.iiour: °`_   
L90 20.00
LBP 12A0

LBT 16.00
MHD 15.00

MMF 20.OD
MHG 20.00

MHL 30,ao
Rfca,   2a.00

RKB 30.00

SGD 10.OQ

SGE 10.00

SGF 12A0

SGN 15.00

SGO 15. OD

SGP 20,00

T[3p 10. 00
T J 2a:oo

TDM 15.00

TQO 2Q. 00
TEF 15.00
TEH 15.00

7EN 20.04
TEW 20.D0

7RU 15.00

1uly 1. 7017
Rafes are eNecfive from Jn1y 2017 lhrough June 2018. 7elchert reserves Ihe dgh! fo modity fhis schedule at any t/me. ,   peye ag

501



TEICHE]EtT COleISTItUCTION
T/ME 8 MATERlAL RA TES

ao» s

LABOR( Norlhern Califo• iia Rates)

NOTE: Labor Rates lnclude Markup

REGULAR OVER DOUBLE

TIME TIME TIME

F REMEN 120.00 158.00 196.00

Opereting Engineer Foremen
Labor Foremen
Carpenter Foremen

Cement Mason Foremen
Plumber Foremen

OPERATOR- Class1 118. 00 154. 00 191. Q0

Motor Grader{ B1ade)
Excavator
Cranes

OPERATOR- CEass 2 115.00 150,00 186.00

Loade
Dozer

Gradesetter
Asphalt Paver
Tractor w/ Scraper
Finish Roller( Asphalt)

Backhoe
Scraper

Mechanic
Compactor

Trencher

OPERATOF2- Class 3 113.00 147.00 181. 00
Apprentfce

Concrete Paver/Trimmer
Hydralitt
Surveyor/Chalnman/ Rodman
Screedman

Chfp Spreader
Roller( non- Asphalt)
Oiler

LP BQRERS 86.00 112. 00 137.00

f Lahorers are wwk'srg in Afemeda, Cnnfrs Cosla, Mardn, San Franrssco w Sanfs Clara Caunfies, rafes lor Lebnrers increese
by S1. Q0

CARPENTER 112.00 1 44. 00 179.00

CEMENT MASON 97.00 125. Q0 154.00

TEAMSTER( QRIVERS) 94.00 119.00 146.00

PLUMBER 63.00 114, 00 142.Q0

July 1. t0 7
Rafes are eNeolive Irom July 2047 fhrough Jyne 20i B, Tefcheri reserves fhe Nght fo modify fhfs sched le at any tlme.     p,

502



TEICHERT CONSTRUCTION

T/ME b MATERIAL RATES

2017Y1 E

SMALL ' OO. S

Additlona! Equlpment sur harges may spply when rental costs exceed rates lrsted below.       

Rate Per Day
SMALL TOOLS& MISCELLANEOUS( Mark-up lncludedj

ATA Air Tamper 67.00

BBUBPB/ BPL Blowers 62.00

BEH Bobcat Broom 218.00

CBAISPVNIP/ CS9 Conc ete Vibratar 88.00

CBC Compressoc 125CFM 88.00

CBE Compressor> 125CFM 151. 00

CMSlCMT Message Board 223.00

CSA Chain 5aw 80.00

FAU Flashfng Arrow Board 109,00

FCC Concrete Saw 62.00

FFC Concrete Walk Behind 1fl9.00

GAA Generator< 25KW 156.00

GAD/GAQ Generator> 25KW 254.OD

GPB GPS Base Station 15,00

GPM GPS Machine Conirol 15.00

GPR GPS Machine Rover 29.OQ

GPS GPS Survey Raver 18.00
GPV GPS Utility Vehi le 15. 00

LAS- LEV Laser$ Rscelver 98,00

LBC eobcat 356.00

LTB Self Propellsd Broom 266.00

lT0 Light 1' owers 1 i 6.OD

MEH Mortar Mixe     109.00

MH6 Manhole Blower 434.00

OAK Bitch Pot 145.00

PBA 6reakers 68.OQ

PG8/PLClPLD Small Pump 36.00

PGW/ SAWISAD Cutoff Saw 98.00

PLC Pumps 80.00

PLC Small Pump 80.00

PLD Small Pump 36.00

PLG/PLli/ PSA Pumps 80.00

PLH Pumps 80.00

PSA Pumps 80.00

RVB Vibralory Plate 105.00

SAC Cutoff Saw 99.00

SAD Cutoff Saw 98. OQ
SAW Multi Purpose Saw 56. Q0

SCA Dike/ Curb Machine 2i7.00

SCRNPS Screed 118. Q0

TAT WaterTrailer 14Q.00

Z7Ja Barcicades 2.00

7Z6 Cones/Delineators 2.00

ZZC Signs/Stands 7.00

July f. 7017
Rafes are aNeclrve Irom July 2017 through June 2018,  Te(chert reserves the rlght fo modi(y fhls schedufe ef any tlme,     paQa sns

503



Page 2 of 2

CEF TIFICATE OF LI BILITY INSIJRAIVCE a4i2oizoia
THIS CERTIFICATE 15 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF 1NFORMATION ONIY ANp CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPaN THE CERTIFICATE liOLQER. 7iiIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFOROED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE pOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT EETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIflCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: lf the certlflc te holder ls sn ADDITIONAL INSURED, the polioy( les) must have ADDITIONAL tNSUREQ provislons or be endotsad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIV D, subfect 4o the terms nd conditlons ot the policy, certeln pol{cies may raqufre an endorsement. A statement on
this certificata does not confer ri hts to the certitfcata holdar In Ileu ot such endorsement(s.

PAOCUCEH NAME:
Hillia lnauranca Servicea o! Cnlifornia, inc.       PHONE    , 1- 877- 9f5- 7378

F X
1- 88B- 6T- 2378

e/ o 26 CsnGury Hlvd
iuC No:

P. O. Box 305191 p'pE,• c rtilte tas2willis. cem

Nashvill, TN 372305192 USA INSURERS AFFORGINQCOVERA6E HAICN

INSURER A: L Q1ty Mutuml Fise Inavrance Compnny 23035

INSURE    fNSURER 8: lted World Assurance Company tl3 Inc 19689
T ich rt Cnnstruction

265 Val D rvin Parkway INSUpERC• iborty Znsurance Corporation 42dD!

9toekten, C71 95Y06 IHSURERG:

INSURER E:

INSUFER F:

COVERAGBS CERTtF1CATE NUMBER: N5929191 REVISION NUMBER:

TNIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW NAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED A90VE FOR THE POLICY PERIOU
INDICATEO. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RE UIREMENT,' fERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR 07HER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIPICATH MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY? ERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICfES DESCfiIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL TME TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONQITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMIl'S SMOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REOUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IN5R I nrpE pF fNSUpANCE
POLICY EFP POUCY E%p

pOLICY NllMBER Y Y uM

X COMMEqC1ALOEPfERALL1A61LITY EACHOCCURRENCE       = 1, 750, Q00

CI,AIMS• MADE a OCCUR PREMISES Ea xcurrence S 1, QQO, OQO

A X XCO, Contraetual Liab i Htoa 61EDEXP M onepenon S 10, 000

Form ? rap Gamaq Includ d Y E82- 651- 067002- 038 03/ 31/ 2018 03/ 31/ 2019
p{ ySQNALSADVINJURY S 1, 75Q, 000

GEAi'LAGGREGATELIMRAPPLIESPER: GENERALAGGREGATE S C, OOO, D00

POLIGY jECT a tOC PROdUCTS• COMPIOP AGG S OOO, D00

OTHER:
9IA S 750, 000

AUfWdOBILELIABILRY
COM9INE INGL LIM17 S 2, 000 000
Ee accftl n

X ANY aUTo BODfLY INJURY( Par panon)  S

p OWNEO SCHEDULED Y E 2- 661- 467802- 048 03/ 31/ 202B 03/ 31/ 2014 BODILYIFlJU(4Y( Perectident) SAUTOS ONLY AUTOS

X AU79ONLY x AUTOSONEY Pe eeeieenD GE 5

SIR S 500000

UMBHELLAUAB X OCCUa EACHOCCURRENCE S 5, 006, OOD

X EXCESSLIAB CW dS-MADE
Y 0308- 261   03/ 31/ 201B 03/ 31/ 2019 AGGREGATE S S, OOQ, 000

OEO 1 x RETENT ON S     i

WORKERStOYPEHSATION x SEA

ERH
AND£ MPiOYERS' LIA8ILITY

C pNYpROPRIE70tUPAR7NEHIEXECUTNE
Y N

E.LEACHACCIDEN?       S 1, OOD, D00

OFFICEWMEMBERExCLUDH07 N A Y       £ WT- 66N- U6T002- 018 03/ 31/ 2018 03/ 31/ 2019
Mand tory In NH) E.L. DISEASE• F 1 EMPLOYEE S 1, D00, 000

OE5CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Delow E.L. DISEASE- POUCY UMIT s 1, 000, 600

I I I
GESCRIPTION OF OPERARGNS WCATIONS f VEHICLfS( ACOfl0101, Addilbnal RamaH Schedul, m y b ttaehed N mor paee b requlred)

Rf: Em rgeacy R peir to Croaaroad Storm Drain I,ihe CIP SD 18- 13.  { Teiahert Job q 1D894. 01.

Named Innured ie a CallEornin qualified nelf- inaurer regfatered und r q1B6T.

Workere' Compeaaation Policy AEw7 66r- 067002- 018 psovtd e Exceas Workera' Ccmpeneation / t cployer a Liability coverng
exaeaa og a $ 750, 006 SIR.

CERTiFICATE HOLOER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVH DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLEO BBfORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THER60F, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WRH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

City of I.attfrop
AUTFIORREDREPRESENTATIVE

390 To me Contse Dr,.    

fE%4Lathtop, CA 95330

1988•20i5 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 201W03)      The ACORD name and logo ar regtstered marks o} ACORD

8R ID: 16004581 s 680686

504



A.GEPlCY CUSTOMIER fD:

LOC t:

AC      14DL31T10NAL REi1flAl2F4S SCHEDULE Paga . z ot 2

A6ENCY NAMED IPIBURED

Willia iaaurance Sarvices ot Califoznin, Ine.      
TOichorX Conatrvction

265 V 1 D cvin Parka y
POLICYNUMBER 8tocktoa, G 952 6

Sso 8ag 1'

CARRFEIt NAIC COOE

Sre Pag 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DdTE: g Peqa 1

AODITIONAL REMARKS

TH15 ADDITIONAL ltEPJIAR6C5 FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORPA,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM{ T1TLE: c itlEicat o! Liability Insurance

Ra: Emergoncy Aapafr to Csoasrond Storm Drain Line CIP SD 18- 13.  { Teichest Job p 1OB94. 01).

City of Lathrop ia included aa an Additional Inmmured as reapecte to Genernl Liability end Auto Liability, but aolely
in reqarda to work baing perfosmed by or on bohalf of t1 a Nsmed inaused in cons ectiot with th! job deacrf.bed harefa;

It is undoratood and agzeed thet thie inauraace Se Brimary end any ott eer iaaurnnce mnintaiaed by the sdditional
Insused ehall be exceaa only and not contributfng rith Ch3e inaurance.

Waiver of Subroqntion z+pplies aa reapects to Excesa Workara' CotapenaaCion per endoraement{ a) attnched as pezmitted by
iera.

Umbrelle/ Excesa FalloMa Form.

ACORD 101( 2008101) m 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rigfits reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORp
SA ID: 160Q45B1 en'rui; 660686 i': W5429191

505



Policy IVumber EU2-661- 087002-048
lssued by LIBERIY MUTUAL FIRE INSURAfVCE COMF'ANY

THIS EidDORSENIEAIT CHP PdG S' P[ POL{CY. PLEASE READ IT C,4REFUE. LY.

DE&EGNA7ED 19dSU ED

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under ihe following:

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INDEfNiVITY POLICY
SELF-INSURED TRUCKER EXCESS L1A ILIIY POLICY

With respect to coverage providad by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by the endorsement.

This endorsement identifies person( s) or organization(s) who are Insureds under the Who Is An Insured
Provision of the Cav rage Form. This endorsement does not alter coverage provided in the Coverage Form.

Each person or organization shown in the Schedule is an le sured for Liability Coverage, but only t4 the extent
that person or organizatlon qualifies as an Insured under the Who Is An Insured Pravislon contalned in
5ection II of the Coverage Form.

Schedule

i ame af Pe son( s) or Organization(s}:

ALL PERSONS OR ORGANIZATI( NS WITM WH M YOU HAVE ENTEREQ IN' f0 A WRITTEN CONTRACT OR
AGREEMENT, PRI 2 TO AN" OCCURRENCE" OR OFFEIVSE, TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSURED STATUS

A[dl 76 27 0713 B 2013 Liberty Mutual Insurance. All rights reserved. Page 1 0# 1

506



Policy Number- EU2-861- 067002-448
Issued by LIBERTY MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE GOMPANY

TWIS ENDC RSEMEN7 CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ 17 CAREFULL.Y.

DESIGNATED INSURED- NONCONTRISUTING

i his endorsement modifies insurance provided under the foUawing:

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INDEMNI7Y POLICY

With respect to coveraga provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply u iless
modified by this endorsement.

This endarsement identifes person{ s) or organization(s) who are insureds under the Who is An Insured
Provision of the Coverage Form. This endorsement does not alter coverage provided in the Coverage form.

Schedul

Name of Person(s} or Organlzatlons(s):

Any person(s) or organlzation( s) to whom you are obligated by a written agreement to procure Addi#ional
Insured coverage under your policy

R garding Desfgnatad Contract or Project:

All contracts or ptojects

Each person ar organization shawn in ihe Schedule of this endorsement is an Insured ior Liability Coverage, but
onfy to the extent that person or organization qualifies as an insured under the Who Is An Insured Provision
contained in Section II of the Coverage Form.

The following is added to ihe Other insurance Condition:

If you have agreed that this policy will be primary and without righl of contrlbution from any insurance in farce
for an Addit(onal Insured for IiabiUty arising out af your operations and the agreement was executed prio to
the bodpy injury or property damage, then this insurance will apply before thal other insurance, and we will
not seek contribution from such insurance, However, insurance pravided to the Additional Insured will subject
ta the self-Insured amount and all other terms and conditions of the policy.

AM 76 52 0417 0 2017 Liberty Mutual Insurance Page 1 of 1

Indudes copyrighted matedal of lnsurance 5ervices Office, Inc., with ils parmfssion..

507



Poliry Number: EBZ- 661- 067002- 038

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES TH POLICY.  PLEASE READ iT CAFtEFULLY.

r4DDIT1CaNAL INSURED — O INNER, LESSEES OR
CUNTRACTORS — SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZAT[ON

fihis endarsement modifies insurance provided under#he following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL IIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHE 1lE

t ame Of Additional (nsured Person(s}     Locetion(s} Of Covered Operations
Or Or anizatlon s :

ALL PER50NS OR ORGAIVIZA710NS WITM ALL LOCATIONS AS REQUIRER BY A WRITTEN

WHOM Y U HAVE ENTERED INTO A WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT ENTERED 1NT0

CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT, PRIOR TO AN PRIOR TO AN" OCCURRENCE" OR OFFENSE

OCCURRENCE" OR OFFENSE, TO PROVIDE
ADDITIONAL INSUREb STATUS

Iniarmation re uired to Gom leie this Schedule, if nat shown abave, will be shown in the Declaralions.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

inc{ude as an additional insured the person(s) or additional insureds, the following addikional exclu-
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only sions apply:
with respect to liability for " bodily injury", " property This insurance does not apply ta " bodily inju.ry" or
damage"  or  " personal and advertlsing injury"  property damage" occurring after:
caused, in whole or in part, by:
1. Your acts or omissians; or

1. All work, including materials, parts or equip-
ment fumished in connection with such work,

2. The acts or bmissions of those acting on yaur on the project( aiher than service, maintenance

behaif;     or repairs) ta be performed by or on behalf of
in the perforrnance of your ongoing operations for.      the additional insured(s) at the location of the

the additional insured( s) at the location(s) desig-      
covered aperations has been completed; or

nated above:

CG 2010 07 04 O ISO Properkies, Inc., 2004 Page ' 1 of 2

508



2. That portion of " your work" aut o# which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its in-
tended use by any person or organization other
than another conQractor ar subcontractor en-

gaged in performing operatians for a principal
as a part of the same project.

Page 2 of 2 ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 CG 20 10 07 04

509



POLICY NUMBER: E82-6fi1- 067002-038

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDlT14NAL 1NSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - C{ iIPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GEIVERAL LIABlLITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additianal Ins red Person(s}     Location And Description Of Complsted Ope a-

Or Or anizatEon s :   tions

ALL PERSONS OR ORGANIZATIONS WITH ALL LOCATIONS AS REQUIRED BY A WR{TTEN

WH M YOU HAVE ENTERED INTO A WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO

CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT, PRIOR TO AN PRIOR TO AN "OCCURRENCE" OR OFFENSE
OCCURRENCE" OR OFFENSE, TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAl. 1NSURED STATUS

Information re uired lo com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shawn In the Declarations.

Section fl — Who Is An Insured is amended to   `
Include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with
respect to liabiliry far " bodily injury" or " property
damage" caused, in whole or in part, by° your work"
at the location designated and described in the
schedule of this endarsement performed far that
additiona{ insured and included in the " products-
compleied operations hazard".

CG 20 37 O7 04 0 lS0 Properties, Inc„ 2004 Page 1 of 1

510



Poliry Number: E$ 2- 661- Q67002- 038
COMMERCIAI. GENERAL LIABILITY

CG20010493

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLlCY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITfON

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the fol(owing:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILIIY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTSICOMPLETEE3 OPERATIONS LIABtUTY C VERAGE PART

The fallawing is added ko the Other Insurance 2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or
Condition and supersedes any provision to tNe agreement that this insurance would be

contrary:       primary and would not seek contributlon

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance from any other insurance avaitable ta the
additional insured.

This insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance availabte
to an additional Insured under your policy
provided that:

1) The additional insured 'fs a Named Insured
under such other insurance; and

CG 20 01 0413 O Insurance Services O ce, lnc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

511



EXC SS 1 1SU ANC POLICY FOR SELF IPiSURER OF
WORICERS COMPENSA'T10P1 ANI] MPLOYERS LIABBLITY

W 41VER AF SU ROGATIOhI- RECOVEEtY FROIUI UTHERS

We have the right to recover any payments which we hav made to you from anyone liable for such loss. We will
not enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule.

This endorsement shalf not operate directly or Indirectly to benefit anyone not riamed in the Schedule.

Schedufe

WHERE REQUIRED BY CONTRACT OR A WRITTEN AGR EMENT
PRIOR TO LOSS AND ALLOWED gY LAW

Issued by Liberty Insurance Corporation

For aftachmant io Policy No.EW7-66N-087402-018 Effeclive bate 0313i/ 2018 Pr mium$

Issued to A. Tefchert 8 5on, Inc,

G O 4249 Page 1 of 1

Ed. 01/ U111992

512



ITEM 4. 1    ';;

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER No. 8

WITH CHARLES R. SIMPSON,  DBA BASECAMP

ENVIRONMENTAL

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Approving Amendment to
Task Order No. 8 with Charles R. Simpson, dba

BaseCamp Environmental to Prepare CEQA

Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration
for a Warehousing and Distribution Facility at
500 East Louise Avenue and Extend the Term

of Master Agreement dated June 17, 2013

SUMMARY:

In 2017, the City received a development project application for a 700, 000 square
foot warehouse/ distribution facility at 500 East Louise Avenue,  in the vacant land

area east of the former glass plant. In order to process the application and comply
with the California Environmenfal Quality Act  ( CEQA),   an Initial Study and

environmental document is required.  Therefore,  on October 16,  2017,  the City
Council approved Task Order 8 with Charles R.   Simpson,   dba BaseCamp
Environmental to prepare the required CEQA Initial study/ mitigated negative

declaration documents for a not to exceed amount of  $68, 469.  The Developer
Reynolds & Brown fully funded the project.

Due to an increase in the square footage of the project from 700, 000 square foot to
approximately 1. 0 million square feet and the need for additional assessments and
analysis, Consultant, Charles R. Simpson has submitted a revised scope of services
which increases the project cost and schedule.

Staff is requesting the City Council to approve an amendment to Task Order No. 8 to
extend the project schedule,  increase the not to exceed amount to  $ 121, 581

68, 469 for the approved task order plus $ 53, 112 for this amendment), and extend

the term of the Master Agreement to June 30,  2019. The Developer,  Reynolds &

Brown, will fully fund the project.

BACKGROUND:

At the June 17,  2013 meeting,  City Council approved a Master Agreement with
Charles R.   Simpson,  dba BaseCamp Environmental,  to provide land use and

environmental planning services to the City. The Master Agreement allows work to
be added with Task Orders approved by Council when necessary.

In 2017, the City received a development project application for a 700, 000 square
foot warehouse/ distribution facility at 500 East Louise Avenue,  in the vacant land    .

513



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO. 8 WITH CHARLES R.

SIMPSON DBA BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL

area east of the former glass plant. In order to process the application and comply
with the California Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA),   an Initial Study and

environmental document is required. The Initial Study and CEQA documents contain
a description of the project, description of environmental setting,  identification of

project impacts, and mitigation measures for impacts found to be significant.

On October 16,  2017,  the City Council approved Task Order 8 with Charles R.
Simpson,  dba BaseCamp Environmental to prepare the required CEQA Initial

study/ mitigated negative declaration documents for a not to exceed amount of
68, 469, which was funded by the Developer Reynolds & Brown.

Due to an increase in the square footage of the project from 700, 000 square foot to

approximately 1. 0 million square feet and the need for additional assessments and
analysis, Consultant, Charles R. Simpson has submitted a revised scope of services,

dated April 23, 2018, which increases the project cost and extends the schedule.

Staff is requesting approval of an amendment to Task Order No. 8, to include the

revised scope of services, schedule, and costs and extend the term of the Master

Agreement to ] une 30, 2019.

The proposed budget is an amount not to exceed  $ 121, 581  ($ 68, 469 for the
approved Task Order plus $ 53, 112 for this amendment). The developer has executed
a funding authorization to fund the additional cost of $53, 112.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Charles R.  Simpson,  dba BaseCamp Environmental provides effective and reliable
professional consulting services.  Charles R. Simpson, dba BaseCamp Environmental
is well qualified to prepare the required Initial Study/ CEQA documents for the
Pilkington Warehousing and Distribution facility Project.

CITY COUNCIL GOALS:

Promotes Economic Growth by providing the means to augment the Planning Division
staff to address the increased development activity and support development
projects.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The developer has executed a funding autliorization to fully fund this project.  A
budget amendment is needed to increase the revenue and expenditure accounts.

514



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 10, 2017 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

APPROVAL OF TASK ORDER NO. 8 WITH CHARLES R. SIMPSON DBA
BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL

ATTACHMENTS: 

A.  Resolution.  Approving Task Order No.   8 with Charles R.   Simpson,  dba

BaseCamp Environmental to prepare Initial Study/ CEQA documents for the
Pilkington Warehousing and Distribution Facility and extend the term of Master
Agreement dated Ju.ne 17, 2013

B.  Task Order No. 8 for Charles R. Simpson, DBA Basecamp Environmental for
Preparation of Initial Study/ CEQA documents

515



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO. 8 WITH CHARLES R.

SIMPSON DBA BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL

APPROVALS:

3  l
Rebecca Schmidt Date

Director of Comm Development

2// 3
Cari James Date

Director.of Fi a ce

y 301 ig

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

g'•?'! S
Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

516



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO. 8 WITH CHARLES R.

SIMPSON, DBA BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL TO PREPARE INITIAL

STUDY/ CEQA DOCUMENTS FOR A WAREHOUSING AND DISTRIBUTION

FACILITY AND TO EXTEND THE TERM OF MASTER AGREEMENT

DATED JUNE 17, 2013

WHEREAS, at the June 17,  2013 meeting, City Council approved a Master
Agreement with Mr.  Simpson,  to provide land use and environmental planning
services to the City; and

WHEREAS, in 2017 the City received a development project application for
approximately 700, 000 SF warehousing and distribution facility at 500 East Louise
Avenue, west of the Union Pacific Railroad; and

WHEREAS, in order to process the application, the City needed an Initial Study
and environmental documents to comply with the California Environmental Quality
Act ( CEQA); and

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the City Council approved Task Order 8 with
Charles R.  Simpson,  dba BaseCamp Environmental to prepare the required CEQA
Initial study/ mitigated negative declaration document for a not to exceed amount of

68, 469; and

WHEREAS,  due to an increase in the square footage of the project from
700, 000 square foot to approximately 1. 0 million square feet,  and the need for
additional assessments and analysis,  Consultant Charles R.  Simpson submitted a
revised scope of services, which increases the project cost and schedule; and

WHEREAS, funds required for this amendment to Task Order 8 will be fully
funded by Developer,  Reynolds and Brown,  pursuant to an executed developer

funding authorization, the proposed budget is an amount not to exceed  $ 121, 581
68,469 for original approved task order, plus $ 53, 112 for this amendment);

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve an Amendment to Task Order 8 with Charles Simpson
dba, BaseCamp Environmental to prepare the required Initial Study/ CEQA documents
for the Pilkington Warehousing and Distribution Facility located on Louise Avenue and
the following budget amendment:

Increase Expenditure

1010- 20- 10- 420- 01- 00    $ 53, 112

Increase Revenue

1010- 20- 10- 371- 90- 00    $ 53, 112

517



The foregoing resolution was. passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:       

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

J

518



CITY OF LATHROP

AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO 8 PURSUANT TO

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES
DATED JUNE 17, 2013

CHARLES R. SIMPSON, DBA BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. TO

PREPARE AN INITIAL STUDY AND CEQA DOCUMENTS
FOR A WAREHOUSING AND DISTRIBUTION FACILITY

AND TO EXTEND THE TERM OF MASTER AGREEMENT
DATED JUNE , 20 3

THIS AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO. 8, dated for convenience this 14th

day of May 2018, is by and made and entered into by and between Charlie R. Simpson,
DBA Basecamp Environmental  (" CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a

California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2013, CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement
AGREEMENT") with the CITY, by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide Land

Use and Environmental Planning Services for the City of Lathrop.   The City Counail
authorized the execution of the AGREEMENT and with CONSULTANT,  pursuant to
Resolution 13- 3603.

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the City Council approved Task Order 8 with
Charles R. Simpson, dba BaseCamp Environmental to prepare required CEQA Initial
study/ mitigated negative declaration documents for a not to exceed amount of

68, 469.

WFiEREAS,  due to an increase in the square footage of the project from
700, 000 square foot to approximately 1. 0 million square feet, site access intersection
changes, and the need for additional assessments and analysis, Consultant, Charles
R. Simpson submitted a revised Scope of Services and Fee Estimate attached hereto
as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by reference which increases the project cost
and schedule.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation Of Master Aqreement

This Task Order hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services and extends the
term of Master Agreement from a term end date of June 30, 2016 to a new
term end date of June 30, 2019. No other term of agreement is modified
unless specifically modified by this agreement.

Page 1 of 3

519



2)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Planning Services to prepare CEQA
initial study/Mitigated Negative Declaration in accordance with Task Order
8 revised Scope of Work and Fee Proposal provided in Exhibit  "A".

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance
with the utmost standards of its profession and to the CITY'S satisfaction.

3)       Time Of Performance     

CONSULTANT shall commence performance and shall complete all
required services no later than June 30, 2019.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT,
while engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an
employee of the CITY.  As an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is
responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete the scope
of work described in Exhibit " A" to City's satisfaction.   CONSULTANT

expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any. manner, that
CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed
121, 580.40 ($ 68,468.40 for original Task Order 8 and $ 53, 112 for this

Amendment) for the services as set forth in Exhibit "A" and payments will
be issued incrementally.   CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested
sum due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing
all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 of the Master Agreement.
Compensation,for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage of
task complete.      In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to
compensation for work not included in Exhibit "A", unless a written change

order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has
been executed by CITY's authorized representative prior to the
commencement of the work.

6)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall
not be issued until all necessary certificates of insurances have been
received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services
prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

7)      Billinas

CONSULTANT'S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.  Except

as specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for
duplicate services performed by more than one person. In no event shall

Page 2 of 3

520



CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or
the maximum amount of compensation provided in section (2) for either task

or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed change
order.

8)      Sa natures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right,  power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this , 4greement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the
CONSULTAfVT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

j/- D ,$

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Community Development Director

Rebecca Schmidt Date

Accepted By:       City of Lathrop
Reso No:     390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Charles R. Simpson

Basecamp Environmental
115 South School Street, Suite 1
Lodi, CA 95240
Fed I D # 68-0193458
Bus License # 20033

Signature Date

Print Name and #itle)

Page 3 of 3

521



SCOPE OF SERVICES, SCHEDULE AND COST

REVISED APRIL 23, 2018

PREPARATION OF CEQA INITIAL STUDY/

MITIGATED IVEGA'TIVE DECLARATION

PILMIIVGTOIV Vl AgtEHOUSING i1VD DISTItIBUTI0IV Ft CILITY

LOLTISE AVEIVUE, LATHROP, CA

1.0 F120JECT OBJECTIVES

In 2017, Reynolds and Brown, and Jones Development, proposed development of an

approximately 700,000 SF warehousing and distribution facility on the eastern portion of the
former Pilkington float glass facility.    This request was subsequently increased to
approximately 1. 0 million SF.  This largely-undeveloped property is located immediately
south of Louise Avenue, and west of the Union Pacific Railroad, within the City limits. The
project site is designated and zoned for industrial use.

The project would include development of new industrial structures and related circulation,

utility and other site improvements. One or more of the existing rail spurs will be relocated
and remain in use to service existing developed portions of the Pilkington property.  An
exhaust stack, raw material hoppers and other remnants of the former manufacturing use
will be removed in conjunction with the project. The project is subject to CEQA, and the City
of Lathrop, the CEQA Lead Agency, considers an Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration
to be the likely CEQA document.  The project is not expected to involve significant and
unavoidable environmental effects.

The project site once contained the primary furnace facility for the glass plant and contains
remnant facilities from the former plant, including a 300- foot exhaust stack, raw material
hoppers and a former fuel storage tank. The site is crossed by existing rail spurs. The furnace
and related facilities have been removed from the site.  The project and this proposal are

undertaken with the understanding that remnant sources of potential environmental
contamination have been addressed by the owners and do not involve substantial constraints
to proposed development. Likewise, existing development and use of the adjoining Simplot
facility are understood to not involve environmental contamination concerns that are not
already addressed by existing cleanup and monitoring programs and will not involve
substantial constraints to proposed development.   Analysis of potential environmental
hazard issues will bel addressed based on existing available documentation, much of which is
expected to be provided by the applicant.

The site was originally to be accessed solely from the existing intersection of Louise Avenue
and Cambridge Avenue, but proposed access was extended to a total of three intersections,
the Cambridge Avenue access as well as two new right-in, right-out intersections east and

west of Cambridge. Potential traffic issues are being addressed in a traffic impact study by
Crane Transportation under subcontract to BaseCamp.  In addition to an increase in the

number of intersections to be studied, collection of adequate traffic count data required
substantially more work than anticipated as a result of required coordination with the

Page 1

522



Lathrop General Plan update traffic studies and weather during early Spring 2018. A copy of
the modified Crane Transportation traffic proposal is attached, and proposed traffic study
costs are included in the modified proposed budget, also attached.

Biological effects will be assessed and mitigated in accordance with the San Joaquin County
habitat conservation plan. Following approval of the original version of this scope of work, it
was determined that a biological assessment of the site was also warranted; the biological

assessment is being prepared by Moore Biological Consultants under subcontract to
BaseCamp.

A cultural resources record search and survey was recommended and included in the
proposed budget and has since been prepared by Solano Archaeological Services. Based on
initial evaluation it was assumed that the project would not involve any significant historic
resources issues. The cultural resources survey,however, indicated that additional work was
needed to determine whether demolition of former glass plant facilities might involve

potenrially significant historic resources effects.

BaseCamp Environmental (BaseCamp) is preparing and will assist in processing the IS/ MND
in coordination with City staff.  Following the start of work under the originally-approved
scope of work, a number of developments related to the scale of the project combined with

the proposed re-use of the former glass manufacturing site were encountered resulting in
additional work requirements to complete the CEQA document.   These complications
included:

Detailed site plans from the applicantwere not obtained until March 2018. The March

13 plan set is the basis of the in-progress analysis but is undergoing revision at this
time (Apri123, 2018).

Substantial effort was required to delineate planned improvements to existing
developed from non-exempt elements of the project to be addressed in the IS/ MND

Based on detailed study of the project, needs for additional project definition and
analysis have been identified, such as to address demolition methods for the existing
exhaust stack.

Unanticipated historical concerns have emerged related to removal of elements of

former glass manufacturing facility, including the furnace exhaust stack, hoppers,
storage tanks and railroad spurs.

Concerns related to off-site cleanup of glass facility solid wastes and relationship of
proposed project lands to regulatory oversight by the San Joaquin County
Environmental Health agency.

Substantial internal circulation concerns were identified, and a request submitted for
site plan modifications.   These site plan modifications are not yet available to
BaseCamp.

A site- specific Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment was not made available for
review by BaseCamp as anticipated.

Page 2

523



A Tier 2 transportation impact analysis was required by San Joaquin County Council
of Governments.

The originally compressed IS/ MND preparation schedule has been extended by
several months as a result of delays in obtaining project plans.

As a result of these and other changes, the proposed scope of work, schedule and cost for

CEQA document preparation has been modified to incorporate the necessary work, time
required for completion and the costs thereof.  The modified scope, schedule and cost is
discussed below.

2. 0 PItOPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES

2. 1 General Technical Approach

Initiation:  BaseCamp' s involvement in the project will be initiated on receipt of Purchase
Order or other authorization to proceed from the City.  On authorization, BaseCamp will
immediately contact the City to arrange a site visit, define project details and to verify the
scope and schedule for preparation of the environmental document. This effort was initiated

immediately and is ongoing.

Project Description:  BaseCamp will prepare a written description of the project using the
information provided in the project application and other documentation provided by the
applicants and City. The project objectives, major elements and timing of development will
be described using text and graphics.  The Project Description will include the project
location, a description of the physical elements of the project to the degree that information
is available, the area and volume of land disturbance, and any proposed encroachment on or
use of natural resources or public improvements.  It is anticipated that the applicants will

provide a site plan for more than one alternative but that potential environmental impacts
will not vary substantially between the alternatives.  This work element has proceeded as
information is made available by the applicant.

Subcontractors:  As soon as the basic project parameters are established, BaseCamp will
retain Crane Transportation and Solano Archaeological to begin work on their respective

technical studies. Moore Biological was retained to complete the biological inventory during
preparation of the IS/ MND. The cultural resources study has been completed. Biological and
traffic work is ongoing.  The CEQA document will not require other technical studies or
subcontractors.  Should it later be determined that other subcontractors are needed to
address issues not identified in this proposal, this scope of work will need to be amended.

Environmental ImpactAnalysis: BaseCamp will collect available environmental data relevant
to the proposed project for inclusion in the IS/ MND. This process will include detailed review
of information available from the project applicant, one or more alternative site plans for the
project, the Lathrop General Plan and Municipal Services Review, EIRs and other CEQA
documents prepared for other projects in Lathrop and other file data; site visits; contacts with
agencies with applicable environmental data or with service responsibility to the project; and
data acquisition from other sources.    BaseCamp will expect to obtain substantial
environmental contamination and cleanup information from the applicant for use in

Page 3

524



preparing the IS/ MND.   Although this information has been discussed, no substantial
documentation has been obtained from the applicant.

Environmental data will be compiled in brief Environmental Setting sections for each
environmental discipline addressed in the following Proposed Outline.

BaseCamp will assess potential for the occurrence of significant environmental impacts in
each of the above- listed environmental discipline areas, addressing all of the potential
significance questions posed by the most-recent CEQA Appendix G checklist.  The scope of
study in each discipline will vary with the importance and complexity of anticipated issues.
Potentially significant effects will be identified on the basis of the " significance thresholds"
contained in the Initial Study checklist questions.  Effects not found to be significant will be
identified, noting the reasons for the finding.   The analysis will address potential for

cumulative and growth- inducing impacts as well as any other subjects required by CEQA.

PROPOSED OUTLINE

INITIAL STUDY/ MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

PILKINGTON WAREHOUSING AND DISTRIBUTION PROJECT

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

CHAPTER 2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

CHAPTER 3 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM

1.       Aesthetics

2.       Agricultural Resources
3. Air Quality
4. Biological Resources
5. Cultural Resources

6. Geology and Soils
7. Greenhouse Gases

8. Hazards and Hazardous Materials
9. Hydrology and Water Quality
10.      Land Use and Planning
11.      Mineral Resources

12.      Noise

13.      Population and Housing
14.      Public Services

15.      Recreation

16.      Transportation/ Traffic
17.      Tribal Cultural Resources

18.      Utilities and Service Systems
19.      Other Issues ( if any)
20.      Mandatory Findings of Significance

APPENDICES

Page 4

525



Mitigation: If any potentially significant environmental effects are identified, BaseCamp will
identify and describe feasible mitigation measures that could avoid, substantially reduce, or
minimize those effects. The document will identify the potential impact to be mitigated, the
proposed mitigation, and the level to which potential environmental effects would be

reduced by the mitigation.

Initial Study:  The analysis will be compiled in an Initial Study document as outlined above
and incorporating the most recent CEQA Environmental Checklist Form. The Checklist will
be supplemented with narrative text describing the project, the environmental setting, the
impact analysis and results, and mitigation measures. A Summary will briefly list potentially
significant impacts, mitigation measures and the significance of impacts before and after
mitigation.   The Initial Study is expected to form the basis for a Mitigated 1Vegative
Declaration, which will be prepared by BaseCamp for consideration by the City decision-
makers.

Administrative Draft IS/ MND: BaseCamp will compile an administrative review draft of the
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration document and submit it in electronic form to the
City for administrative review, comment, and approval for publication.

Public Review Draft IS/ MND: BaseCamp will discuss the administrative draft document with
City staff, record comments, and revise the IS/ MND in accordance with those comments. A

screen check version of the document will be provided to City staff so that their requested
revisions can be verified. The IS/ MND will be provided to City as a pdf for posting on the City
web site.  BaseCamp will provide support to City staff in reproducing and distributing the
IS/ MND documents. Reproduction costs incurred by BaseCamp, including CD copies, will be
invoiced at cost.

Circulation of Public Review Draft:   BaseCamp will prepare required CEQA notices in
coordination with City staff and file, or coordinate their filing, as required.  BaseCamp will
prepare a Notice of Intent for publication in The Record. BaseCamp will work with City staff
to identify the most cost-effective methods for public circulation of the IS/ MND in accordance
with CEQA, including electronic means and hard copies, and then assist the City in completing
the public circulation process as required.

Final IS/ MIVD: BaseCamp will evaluate public and agency comments on the Draft IS/ MND in
consultation with City staff. BaseCamp will prepare a Final IS/ MND consisting of:

Introduction

Summary from the Public Review Draft IS/ MND
Comments and Responses to Comments

Errata( describing any changes to the Draft IS/ MND necessitated by public comment)

An administrative version of the Final IS/ MND will be submitted to City for review and
comment, and the documents will be revised as required. The Final IS/ MND will be submitted
electronically to City for distribution to decision-makers.

Mitigation Monitoring Plan:  BaseCamp will prepare a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Plan( MMRP) for the project. This document will also be submitted for administrative review,

Page 5

526



and revised as required per City comments. The MMRP will be submitted electronically to
City distribution to decision-makers.

Public Meeting Attendance: BaseCamp Principal Charlie Simpson will attend one Planning
Commission meeting to present, answer questions, and discuss issues related to the IS/ MIVD.
BaseCamp will attend additional meetings, as requested, on an extra cost basis.

Notice of Determination:  On authorization from the Ciry, BaseCamp will prepare and file a
Notice of Determination with the County Clerk within 5 days of project approval.

3. 0 COMPLETION SCHEDULE

BaseCamp will complete the required documentation within a schedule to be determined in
consultation with Ciry staff but oriented to completion of the CEQA review process by July 1,
2018 if possible.

4.0 PROPOSED COSTS

BaseCamp proposes to complete environmental document for the project on a Time and

Materials basis using its standard rate schedule.  Proposed costs, detailed on the following
page,  including subcontractors,  will not exceed  $ 121,580.40 without the explicit
authorization of the Client.      

Expenses will be billed at cost plus 5%. Costs will be billed monthly on a progress basis, in
accordance with BaseCamp' s Rate and Charge Schedule, attached.

Page 6

527



PROPOSED COSTS

PILHINGTOI+1 IAREHOUSING AND DISTRIBUTION PROJECT IS/ M1VD

LABOR TOTAL

APPROVED

NOURS REVISED COST COST COST CHANGE

Initiation, Management 36 6, 120.00 1, 800.00 4,320.00

Site Review 9 1, 290.00 1, 290.00 0. 00

Prepare Administrative Draft Document 361 47,230. 00 23, 180.00 24,050.00

Public Review Draft, Notices 34 3, 500. 00 3, 140.0   360.00

Final IS/ MND, Response to Comments 24 2, 880. 00 2, 240.00 640.00

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 8 920. 00 920.00 0. 00

Public Meeting( 1)     6 960. 00 570.00 390. 00

Notice of Determination 6 700.00 700. 00 0. 00

TOTAL LABOR 484 63,600.00       $ 33,840.00       $ 29,760.00

EXPENSES

Mileage 100. 00 100.00 0. 00

In- House Copies 100.00 100.00 0. 00

Environmental Database 350.00 350. 00 0. 00

Reproduction, Documents At cost At cost

Subcontractors:

49,024. 5

Crane Transportation, Traffic 0 49 024.50 29, 872. 50 19, 152. 00

Moore Biological, Biological

Assessment 4,200.00 4, 200.00 0. 00 4,200.00

Cultural Resources Study 4,205.90 4, 205.90 4,205. 90 0.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 57,980.40       $ 34,628.40       $ 23,352.00

TOTAL PROPSED COST 121,580.40 68, 468. 40 53, 112. 00

Page 7

528



STANDARD SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES

BASECAMP ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

2018

HOURLY FEES FOR PERSONNEL

Principal 190

Senior Planner 150

Project Planner 130

Assistant Environmental Planner 110

Research Specialist 90

Graphics Technician 90

Document Processing 8p

COPYING CHARGES

Charges for copying by BaseCamp Environmental will be charged as follows:

Copies ( b/ w)   0. 15/ page

Copies ( color)  0.25/ page

EXPENSES

Materials and services purchased by BaseCamp in connection with services provided
under this Agreement will be invoiced at cost plus 5%. Materials and services include

but are not limited to costs for subcontractors, travel and subsistence, insurance
certificates necessitated by the job, document and map reproduction, computer time,
telecommunications, out-of-house fax, rented or leased equipment, supplies, and
postage and shipping expenses.

Page 8

529



530



ITEM 4:20 i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:    APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 5 WITH VEOLIA

TO THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a Resolution Approving
Amendment No.  5 to the Wastewater

Plant Operation and Maintenance

Agreement with Veolia Water West

Operating Services, Inc.

SUMNiARY

Due to the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF) Phase 2 Expansion ( WW

14- 14)   project nearing completion,   Staff is requesting Council to approve

Amendment No. 5 to the Operations and Maintenance ( O& M) Agreement with Veolia

Water West Operating Services,   Inc.   ( Veolia)   for continued operation and

maintenance of the expanded wastewater treatment facility.  The cost of operation

and maintenance of the LCTF has increased with the LCTF Phase 2 Expansion project

due to additional equipment,  and consolidation with the Crossroads wastewater

treatment facility ( WWTF) that was decommissioned as part of this project.

The negotiated fee adjustment for the expansion of the LCTF is $ 90, 405 per month

during the start- up period through December 31st,  2018,  and then will increase

according to the monthly flow rate per the following schedule:

103, 312 106, 319 109, 250 112, 221

The increase in cost for the fee adjustment is to be paid by funds collected from the
participating developers for the WW 14- 14 project and standby charges that are to
go into effect on July l, 2018.

BACKGROUND

The LCTF Phase 2 Expansion project will provide up to 2. 5 Million Gallons per Day
MGD) sewer treatment capacity for the Crossroads, Mossdale, River Islands, South

Lathrop Specific Plan and Central Lathrop Specific Plan development areas.  With the

project nearing completion,  City staff and its wastewater consultant EKI have
negotiated a contract fee adjustment with Veolia for the LCTF plant expansion and

decommissioning of the Crossroads WWTF. The cost of operation and maintenance
of the LCTF has increased with the LCTF Phase 2 expansion due to additional

equipment.    In order to reduce costs and improve operational efficiency of the
recycled water system, under the new contract City staff will assume responsibility
for operation and maintenance all recycled water infrastructure at the site, including
the Crossroads influent pump station and recycled water storage basins that in the
past have been operated and maintained by Veolia.

531



CITY MANAGER' S REPORY PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE VEOLIA OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

AGREEMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

Staff requests City Council to approve Amendment No. 5 and Fee Adjustment for the
Veolia Operations and Maintenance Agreement for the Crossroads WWTP and LCTF.

The fee adjustment is needed due to the recent expansion of the LCTF and the

decommissioning of the Crossroads WWTF.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM

This agenda item promotes Economic Growth by providing wastewater services
necessary to support growth for both residents and businesses.

FISCAL IMPACT

The current fees for the Veolia O& M contract is $ 82, 384 per month.  The negotiated

fee adjustment for the expansion of the LCTF is $ 90, 405 per month during the start-
up period through December 31st,  2018,  and then will increase according to the
monthly flow rate per the following schedule:

103, 312 106, 319 109, 250 112, 221

A total of $ 12, 000 for the initial start- up period through June 30, 2018 will be paid
from the LCTF Treatment Expansion Project WW 14- 14; $ 173, 707 will be paid from

the MBR Wastewater Fund 6080 which includes MBR' s share of  $ 136, 186 and

Crossroads share $ 37, 521 of the negotiated fee adjustment. Funds approved in the

City' s budget for 2018- 2019 fiscal year are insufFicient to cover negotiated fee
adjustment for the expansion of the LCTF and will be supplemented by funds collected
from standby charges that are to go into effect on July 1, 2018.

Staff requests the following budget amendment:

Increase Revenue

6080- 5034- 344- 01- 36 173, 707

Increase Appropriation

6080- 5034- 420- 01- 00 173, 707

ATTAC H M E NTS

A.  Resolution Approving Amendment No.   5 to the Veolia Operations and

Maintenance Agreement for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility

B.  Amendment No. 5 to Veolia Operations & Maintenance Agreement

532



CYTY MANAGEIZ' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL I EGULAR MEETING

AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE EOLIA OPEI2ATIONS & MAINTENANCE
AGREEMEIe1T

APPROVALS

d dl f

Greg Gi on Date

Senior ivil En ineer

3    
Cari Jame Date

Director o Finance

S" - 
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

4• l
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

533



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A 12E OLlJTIOIV OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPI OVING AMENDMENT IVO. 5 TO THE WASTEWATER PLANT OPERATIOIV

AND MAItVTENANCE AGItEEMENT WITH iEOLIA WATER WEST OPERATIiVG

SER lICES, INC.

WHEREAS, the LCTF Phase 2 Expansion project will provide up to 2. 5 Million
Gallons per Day ( MGD) sewer treatment capacity for the Crossroads, Mossdale, River
Islands, South Lathrop Specific Plan and Central Lathrop Specific Plan development
areas; and

1IVHEREAS, the cost of operation and maintenance of the LCTF has increased

with the LCTF Phase 2 Expansion project due to additional equipment,  and

consolidation with the Crossroads wastewater treatment facility  (WWTF) that was

decommissioned as part of this project; and

VUFIERE 4S, City staff and its wastewater consultant EKI have negotiated a
contract amendment with Veolia for the LCTF Phase 2 Expansion,  and associated

decommissioning of the Crossroads WWTF; and

Wh1EREAS, the negotiated fee adjustment for the expansion of the LCTF is

90, 405 per month during the start- up period through December 31st, 2018, and

then will increase according to the monthly flow rate per the following schedule; and

r

103, 312 106, 319 109, 250 112, 221

IVOV1/, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLi/ ED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves Amendment No.   5 to the Veolia Operations and

Maintenance Agreement for a total of $ 12, 000 For the initial start- up period through
June 30, 2018 will be paid from the LTF Treatment Expansion Project WW 14- 14;

173, 707 will be paid from the MBR Wastewater Fund 6080 which includes MBR' s

share of $ 136, 186 and Crossroads share $ 37, 521.

E IT FURTHER ItESOL!/ ED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
hereby approves a budget amendment increasing appropriations in the MBR

Wastewater Fund 6080 in the amount of $ 173, 707 from standby fees that go into
effect on July 1, 2018 as follows.

Increase Revenue

6080- 5034- 344- 01- 36 173, 707

Increase Appropriation

6080- 5034- 420- 01- 00 173, 707

534



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May, 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATTEST:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

535



c,.

AMENDMENT NO. 5

TO THE AGREEMENT FOR WASTEWATER PLANT OPERATION AND

MAINTENANCE SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

VEOLIA WATER WEST OPERATING SERVICES, INC.

This Amendment ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO. 5") to the agreement between US

Filter Operating Services,  Inc.  (" USFOS")  and the City of Lathrop dated April 29,  2003
AGREEMENT"), Amendment No. 1 dated January 20, 2009, Amendment No. 2

dated April 19, 2010, Amendment No. 3 dated July 1, 2014, and Amendment No. 4 dated
September 21, 2015 made and entered into as of this

17th

day of May, 2018 is by and
between Veolia Water West Operating Services ("VWWOS"), successorto USFOS, and the

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation ("CITY"). Unless otherwise defined

herein, capitalized terms used in this AMENDMENT NO. 5 shall have the meeting set forth
in the AGREEMENT.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, US Filter Operating Services, Inc. and CITY entered into
the AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, USFOS assigned the AGREEMENT to Veolia Water North America

Operating Services, a Delaware corporation (VWNA); and

WHEREAS, VWNA later assigned the AGREEMENT to Veolia Water North America

Operating Services, LLC; and

WHEREAS, Veolia Water North America operating Services, LLC assigned to Veolia
Water West Operating Services  ( VVWVOS)  its right,  title and interest in and to the

AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in January 2009, Amendment No. 1 to the AGREEMENT was approved to
reduce fees for services and extend the term of the AGREEMENT by five years; and

WHEREAS, in April 2010, Amendment No. 2 to the AGREEMENT was approved to

provide cost reduction measures for the Crossroads facilities and also extended the

contract term by one year; and

WHEREAS, in April 2014, Amendment No. 3 to the AGREEMENT was approved to

reduce the fees and amended the scope of services for the maintenance of Pond E- 1 ( aka

Pond S- 5) and the undeveloped parcel north of the pond; and

WHEREAS,  in September 2015,  Amendment No.  4 to the AGREEMENT was

approved to reflect the consolidation of the two existing wastewater treatment facilities into a
single Consolidated Treatment Facility (herein referred to as "CTF" or" FACILITY"); and

WHEREAS, new improvements are currently being constructed at the CTF, which will

affect the scope of the services performed by VWWOS; and

WHEREAS, AMENDMENT NO. 5 to the AGREEMENT is now needed to modify the
Scope of Services and Services Fee contained in the AGREEMENT to accurately reflect
work to be performed by VWWOS after the construction of the new improvements;

536



NOW THEREFORE, VWWOS and CITY agree as follows:

1.       Service Fee. Section 7. 1 of the AGREEMENT is hereby deleted and
replaced in its entirety with the following:

The Service Fee shall be as specified in Exhibit N- 4, and adjusted for

inflation July 1 each year in accordance with Section 7.2( b)."

2.       Exhibit N. Exhibit N- 2 to the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with Exhibit N- 3, Exhibit N- 4, and Exhibit N- 5 attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3.       Scope of Services. Beginning on the date of this AMENDMENT NO. 5,
VWINOS's scope of Services shall be modified as described in Exhibit N- 3 and in

accordance with the provisions of the Order R5- 2018-0023 Amending Waste Discharge
Requirements Order No. R5-2016-0028- 01 adopted April 6, 2018 by the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board (" WDR") as may be amended or modified for the
term of this Agreement, as applicable to the VWWOS Services.  Specifically, VVWVOS shall
provide its Services at the Facility in accordance with the limitations and requirements of
the following Paragraphs of the WDR:

A. Discharge Prohibitions

C. Effluent Limitations and Mass Loading Limitations
D. Discharge Specifications

G. Solids Disposal Specifications, Paragraphs 1 and 2 Only

Based on the change to the VWINOS' s scope of Services, Exhibit B, Exhibit D, Exhibit J

and Amendment No. 3 are hereby deleted from the Agreement in their entirety.

4.       Annlicabilitv to Oriainal AGREEMENT. This AMENDMENT NO. 5 sets

forth the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the matters set forth herein.

There have been no additional oral or written representations or agreements. Except as

expressly modified or amended herein,  all the terms and conditions set forth in the

AGREEMENT remain unchanged in full force and effect and are incorporated by reference
between the provisions of the AGREEMENT and this AMENDMENT NO. 5, the provisions

of this AMENDMENT NO. 5 shall govern and control. This instrument may be executed in
multiple counterparts each of which is deemed an original but together constitute one and

the same instrument.

537



5.       Sianatures. The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO. 5 represent
and warrant that they have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this AMENDMENT NO. 5 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the VWWOS

and the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and entered into this Amendment as of

the date first written above.

CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

By: Approved by City Council
Stephen Salvatore

City Manager Resolution#

ATTEST:

By:
Teresa Vargas

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Salvador V. Navarrete City
Attorney

VEOLIA WATER WEST OPERATING SERVICES, INC.,

a Delaware corpora '  n

By:

n ame:     
F. Keith Oldewurtel

T tie: Senior VP

By:

Name:

Title:

538



I XI-IIIBIT N- 3

AMEIVDED SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Service Fee for the Facility shall be in an amount per month as set forth on Exhibit N- 4. Such
amount(s) shall be annually adjusted for inflation pursuant to Section 7. 2( b) on July 1, 2018 and on
each July 1 thereafter.

Maintenance Responsibilities: A map showing the respective areas where VWWOS and the City are
each responsible for maintenance is provided as Exhibit N- 5.

VVWVOS Responsibilities:  The responsibilities associated with the Service Fees are as described in

Article IV of the Agreement as amended and modified as indicated below.

VVWVOS shall continue to operate and maintain the CTF including the Crossroads Sewage Pump
Station ( but the City shall operate and maintain the recycled water system as represented on
Exhibit N- 5) as described in Article IV of the Agreement and in accordance with the applicable

provisions of the WDR, as may be amended or modified, for the term of this Agreement.

VWWOS shall perform Corrective Maintenance and Repairs of CTF facilities consistent with

Prudent Industry Standards in accordance Article IV of the Agreement with particular attention to
the following sections:

o Section 4. 6 Computerized Maintenance Management System ( including Exhibit H),
o Section 4.7 Maintenance and Repairs

o Section 4. 8 Replacement; Replacement Cap
o Section 4. 9 Capital Improvement Budgets,

o Section 4. 18 Operation and Maintenance Manuals

o Section 4. 19 Preparation of Records

o Section 4. 25 Capital Projects

o Article XIII —  Liability and Indemnity
o Article XV-   Default and Remedies

Section 4. 10 of the Agreement is modified to provide that VWWOS shall manage solids handling
process on the Site, drying the sludge to 12% solids and stockpiling it for easy loading into
trucks. VWWOS shall coordinate the scheduling of sludge hauling trucks and reasonably assist
the City in identifying alternate sludge disposal or application sites.

City shall be solely responsible for removal, hauling and disposal of sewage sludge in
accordance with Section 4. 10 of the Agreement including all associated costs and regulatory
requirements. The sludge hauler shall invoice the City directly for hauling and disposal costs.

VWWOS shall coordinate with the City as needed on the operation of the PMP- 1 and Crossroads
recycled water pump stations ( but as described below the City will be responsible for operation and
maintenance of both PMP- 1 and the Crossroads pump station).

539



VWINOS shall maintain cleanliness of entire CTF, keeping the plant in a condition suitable for
giving public tours. Expected plant housekeeping tasks may include but are not limited to:

o Weekly mopping of floors
o Weekly vacuuming of carpeted areas
o Weekly cleaning of restrooms
o Periodic elimination of clutter and trash

o As needed and scheduled touch up painting of walls to cover marks
o As needed and scheduled addressing of rusted surtaces
o Periodic sweeping of paved areas to remove debris
o Covering dumpsters or other waste containers
o Periodic checking for and fixing of leaks from equipment or vehicles

VWWOS shall continue to use the CMMS prepare and submit an annual report that

conforms to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (" GASB") Rule 34 as described in

Exhibit H.

VWWOS shall follow City's computer polices (e. g., each user will be registered with the City, no
flash drives will be inserted into the computers and files transferred).

Citv Responsibilities:  Section 4.26 of the Agreement is hereby modified to provide that the City will be
responsible for the following item, including all associated costs:

Operating and maintaining the entire recycled water system except as noted above.
o This includes the operation and maintenance of PMP- 1, the Crossroads Pump Station,

Recycled Water Ponds A, B, C, and Percolation Ponds LAS- 3.

Paying for sludge loading and sludge disposal through direct payment.

Landscape maintenance and weed control for the entire CTF site.

SCADA Operation and Maintenance. (VWINOS shall maintain instrumentation from each piece of

equipment up to its PLC.)

Maintenance of plant computers and printers ( used by VINWOS), phones, and fire alarms and

security system.

Provide space and access to computer room for the installation of needed equipment for

VWWOS to maintain connection and use of the VINWOS server.

540



t  ..    .       
M-M.. .      n_ , n  .     ,        _.

XHIB9T N- 4

SERVICE FEE

Fee Schedule 1 ( From start up thru December 2018):

s 0 9 '        98 I.. B      , 8    18
w

i     -.      r+       ,.
e..'. a     ..  ,:..

Monthly -{ t     '     . a
t f

s

Fee`>  ,   a_ $ 90;405 , $ 90,405°}   $ 90,405-  ,  $ 90,405.   $ 90,405,   , ,$ 90,405, -

Fee Schedule 2 ( After December 31, 2018):

r    9,     B

Mo°nthly Fee   . 
t

r,  . 

a       $ 103, 312•
q$

106,319
r ;      .' $

109,250    ,"      112;221 i

The monthly fee is based on the running average flow over the preceding 2 months.

All amounts will be adjusted for inflation occurring after July 1, 2018 based on the indices
described in Section 7.2( b) of the Agreement.

541



EXHIBIT N-' i

EXISiIN/ Y l';Irv
MHLE NPt T-! PE F MALE HDPPTEH

EJtISTiNG P,ONOI+.I?
e H        _  

LL VROVIDE W0.5n. OW v

q"   i.l  ., F_ MA. E.. JJPLEROUICACO   "
nL BF O 2. JEfJF Fc

r_.,._... ti. ........._. w,.y.ti. 

FITt:..,.   . ..__     
I

u

i.:;,     uD       , AN.)
r

JJlv
OLDCPSiLECHRISTVVAIVFBOF

iC_ NEw

NYTPFFFCRATEOCOVEF.      

r... a,_,,.__

S
I 94LLVALVE 19'% i9'%16 P PNV JJ! 9Y. A1•

3 I ior+Eaunu
t.,    

oscHeowc
F0.E( 45'

GNCRETE BOti .-._—.  
i" MPLE CORPORATION S"( iF

PEP
W/MHIE I P. TNREADS 1 X

PECIFICATIONS
x I I 10" MIN

I i
WCTOGAIv

WMSW
WC

STLTR 5 nON

RuSnEDROCkOR       ,     6

yGHaVELBHSEPER -  .   -. r_._  .      

2`-
By'   

1 l i'       ,...,    ....,.  ... 
u

saECfiCAiOrv`.,      _  

E_: ap._I.    o
Y HOSE BIBB DETAIL

aaaaa  >
o rPF, Eos> E 5 s p

y oER sPE  , a g
S i r      ff

4 CONCRETE SUMP PIT DETAIL e

m:
aROPasca t   *,'.,   ',,° a 1,'," u'` a'" wu'. a'.'r,s,' mS g Y     g2cwsT. eouauurioN r

f s      ' ADMINISTRAT10Y TQM1N r -    
3 s

Y HUII. INC; w.....  .     _.......      .,
3n'    

u4pi
a

y
x s '      

f
tw,"    CHRISTOPH J:^,       ti'" 5 ' ro Ni1a a:.

y   ''„.
J„.„...      .     ..      ,      .,-. n ER WAY.   . .   ..  ........ s'..   r   .       y'    .   _  f

n.  .,.,

y w
f

a

r : r       ,   
a:....       

c      _   . ra

a,  ,      

i s?.. i,"     •   M •.,...w w".'^ w. wd`^ r  +. rw"'
t .

F`'P       FUTUREEOUlaLIZATION
l,.. 

y " M+,:.   A'; ... R""Y i•'45"    i r̀     
Y       ..      .._       `.. .,.    .

r.  . _._ ..,       ::  .,<.

TANK

a   ,       5 N-Y 3  ..   a
f RE- PURPOSF MEMHRANEu"" l•

y yr    v.       THICKENEPoAER061C

3  '     /    SL DGE IGESTER
W Z

e1 I  Z a
i'•  : .       F.XiST. NQRTH PQND L—        .. PROPOtiED WRP V Q d

3 POhOA'   E r F* t rorv n  ,   EXPANSION
4       .       

W(

ff  `        n, oa foHorwErwF .         Air       
r'vr'x*„,•" ,

di    •;  .   U Z
Ea saEc c roris .. t'  

4  '` 3`; H   —

x   } ,    E  d
y           

J

v £+`."
y...    .   Q w

n,     

u
r <,.:. cr    ;; r._    

y    .      `,; is:      , +"'. u i M    Q Q
Y CR 7C' A       

I     _         
P

rra e roe. n K s    ., e a oy
Q t Z w

Ei".' e_,. 3 I   . j    POST- CONSTRt1CTION 0
f  '-  :

y;.      f ifl '..- Ff1k1B t M',..; E oi86
W E AiR E% IST TEMP B4EFlE WAIL  ..'..         .  ftING DRAIN&    - fA pk

Y 

t"  .      

F    .
M: tBP&   SHfETMbi

M1 T&.     
v v..._      _.     ..,

3., f- N   .-..
1" Y  .. ..       ._.    

PUMPS7AITION W a

a'   

4

II., o    _ YtSF S

9 ',    
v..,         .,.. --       . u. v     -  .      . +    -

1- u.    -    
W  

d
z_       

Z \a4
q-     L -  .  ..    

N }/

z -..,+ r..  .  

3  ,.  
fM . FGFIhUPIEXRR FF . f

rqVUNiEDYJIT  .'^.    V!    
s

U' fl' TVP., iYT'vP3FCkWi Nf. nEa 1Gt" i      
z i I

s

a

OIv R_' E, rAv Yi     . 

G e--' t,
I y

nrre r,.  " n nRrva
5 GS

s   ,        DE7t f1170(i BASIN p  ,       
p i . y

K LZ.

a N M VGF! p E... ECE.. CLE.

fi LiA 4' hA' uPOt. lCRYT 1 P' T  . '     "    r.',   .   OAI?AUMOtI EUVTNIWU OfR Rc IND 1 ( q " 5EXIST. SOl1iH a,.A-  
ri E    U Y BO%   . FOH ESBi

1 Ittc, r.,.      ..  EASrPOND a J
irlt,'.      

PON C'   n
Y-

1N9al a-x a C _ r NcftETEsuwapit
EXIST. F.FFLUENT

E%i9l'. SOUTH I
t       '.; FA E'   STORAGE BASIN

r c; na WEST POtifi
r.  

s•: e.

RF

N
PM. t GG F  ' i'G'      

F, UcctL g..     • PONOft' cC b..._ Ec`._ . LEFAv. Y,-..    ll"      

A4LN;, E% d FW4 H     PE- h'.,   I E% I$ T. E$ B d .      tr,

r. e. Cr A' .      PF v..
H._.. u..,.       • x Ia

3 a.,u... 

F.     >

r.  

STP.IL OFfi B E

r ictl 8
2 EL lPC"   •.-.      PER ET

P. k... l l. 4"       e   iM HOS6. 81B8._.-... w.....w—__„_,      u;. B—  

x

t A      
t     W E _

V
a -

vw ---

5 w   __,_ z    —     
a

Fw  __.  ,  —   

or.- ,, arti       
a,.       .  .   —  ,,,. Q=    ,

i sTPll O., EP 9B "       '' 5' m  "
iti:: i..,_ . G i_;. F l E fYJr--    

PGH OEr L e              TiE NTOEt YG M" L NE N1TN

n a     
E,( TES Jrv i. lv 

J20a'.Jt.1fiEGUGEATEE FI
wSTnlL: a55lF. OFa' C90pPyCPiPiNG

i._    

r

BIGf VEPC. OFIFikROP.. TD DVJ t G l"},           J5 b
a..w f,..  

A       .:...     TI f T E% T M1G C lINC1M .       ...       ..  . ..

2 f , aE: rt C  ' t R v      

f'+S
bw

Ei(JCKPERCR Ot.. hR(,' S f CNf NO VJ4
c
i    S

a.

v•  
n y. fy. .       x.+    

CE

f i       _ Aurh,n ..,..` e. -.. .      . W  .  . .  .     .  , a,..,___ .. ,._    .   ,.  r n w.,..,.  .. 7    
C.2.

PLAN

542



ITEM 4. 21

i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: FISCAL YEAR 2018- 19 PROJECT LIST

ASSOCIATED WITH SENATE BILL 1

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Approving Project List for
Fiscal Year 2018- 19 Funded by Senate Bill i
SB 1) the Road Repair and Accountability Act

of 2017 and Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

Senate Bill 1 ( SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 was passed by
the California Legislature and signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 in order
to address the significant transportation funding shortfalls statewide.  Current funding
estimates show the City of Lathrop' s apportionments at $ 383, 766 for Fiscal Year ( FY)

2018- 19.  In order to be eligible for the funding, cities must approve an annual project
list by resolution.

Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  PS 18- 01 City- wide Road Maintenance was
included in the City' s adopted FY 2017- 18 and FY 2018- 19 budget.  CIP PS 18- 01 has

been updated to include the FY 2018- 19 SB 1 project list per the reporting guidelines.

The proposed SB 1 project for FY 2018- 19 includes rehabilitating the existing
pavement on Harlan Road near the Louise Avenue ( see attachment B).  The proposed

project was generated using the City's existing Pavement Management System.  Staff

is requesting that City Council approve the proposed project list for local streets and
roads funding associated with SB 1 and related budget amendment to CIP PS 18- 01.

BACKGROUND:

Over the next 10 years, California faces a $ 59 billion shortfall to adequately maintain
the existing state highway system.   Similarly, cities and counties face a $ 78 billion

shortfall over the next decade to adequately maintain the existing network of local
streets and roads.   In response to these roadway infrastructure needs, on April 28,
2017 the Governor signed SB 1 which is known as the Road Repair and Accountability
Act of 2017.

SB 1 increases per gallon fuel excise taxes;  increases diesel fuel sales taxes and

vehicle registration fees;  and provides for inflationary adjustments to tax rates in
future years.  Beginning November 1, 2017, new funding from SB 1 will be deposited
into the newly created Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account ( RMRA).   A

percentage of this new RMRA funding will be apportioned by formula to eligible cities
and counties for basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety projects
on the local streets and roads system.

543



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PROPOSED PROJECT ASSOCIATED WITH SENATE BILL 1 AND PAVEMENT

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPDATE

SB 1 was approved with an emphasis on accountability and transparency.  As a result,

the program guidelines require that local agencies formally adopt a proposed project
list for the RMRA funds.  While the project lists must be submitted in order to receive

funds, it can be changed to adapt to local needs.

In September 2017, City Council approved the SB 1 proposed project list for FY 2017-
18.  This project includes crack sealing and the application of a cape seal on portions
of Bizzibe Street,  Mingo Way and Avon Avenue.   Construction of the FY 2017- 18

project will be concurrent with the FY 2018- 19 project due to similar scopes of work

and potential cost savings.

The proposed SB 1 project list for FY 2018- 19 SB 1 includes rehabilitating the existing
pavement on Harlan Road near the Louise Avenue.    The proposed project was

generated using the City' s existing Pavement Management System. Specific project
details are listed below and included in Attachment B.

Project Description

Pavement maintenance project utilizing the Cold- in- Place Recycling  ( CIR)

method.    CIR involves grinding off the top layer of the existing asphalt,
applying additives,  reheating and using that recycled material for the new
roadway.     Benefits of CIR include reduced construction time,   reduced

greenhouse gas emissions and potential cost savings.

Project Location

Harlan Road ( Louise Avenue - 1, 000 feet south)

Proposed Schedule

Spring 2018: Prepare construction documents and bid the project

Summer 2018: Start construction

Fall 2018: Complete and accept the improvements

Estimated Useful Life

CIR can extend the life of a pavement 10 to 15 years.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The California Transportation Commission issued annual reporting guidelines for the
RMRA funding.  Prior to receiving this funding, local agencies must formally adopt an
annual proposed project list.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Public Safetv by maintaining and rehabilitating existing
roadways.     

544



CITY MANAGEI' S REPORT RAC E 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY GOUMCIL REGULAR MEETING

PROPOSED PRO7ECT ASSOCIATED WITH SENATE BILL 1 AND PAVEMENT
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPDATE

FISCAL IMPACT:

Current funding estimates show the City of Lathrop' s apportionments at $383, 766 for

FY 2018- 19.   Staff is requesting that City Council adopt a resolution approving the
proposed project and corresponding budget amendment as follows:

Fiscal Year 18/ 19

Increase Transfer Outs

2030- 9900- 990- 9010 183, 766

Increase Transfers In ( PS 18- 01)

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 183, 766

Increase Expenses ( PS 18- 01)

3310- 8000- 481- 2012 183, 766

4TT C H M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a Proposed Project List for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 Funded
by Senate Bill 1 ( SB 1) the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 and
Related Budget Amendment

B.  Updated CIP PS 18- 01 City- wide Pavement Maintenance and Repair Program

545



CITY MANA GER' REPORT PAGE 4

M/# Y 14, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL REC;ULi4R MEETING

PROPOSED PROJEC7' ASSOCIATED V1/ ITH SENATE BILL 1 AIVD PAVEMEfVT

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPDATE

APPRO/ ALS:

f

Michael King Date

Senior ivil Engineer

g
Cari Date

Director o Fi ance

g

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

8
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

546



RESOLl1TION NO. 1-

A ItESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF TFiE CITY OF LATHIZOP

APPROVING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 201- 19 FUfVDED Y

SENATE YLL 1 ( B 1) TFiE ROAD REPAIR AiVD ACCOUNTABILITY / CT OF

Zo

WHERE/ S, Senate Bill 1  ( SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of
2017  ( Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017)  was passed by the California Legislature and
signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 in order to address the significant
transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and

WHEREi4S, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will
ensure the residents of Lathrop are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our
community and which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop must adopt a list of all projects proposed to
receive funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account  ( RMRA),

created by SB 1 by resolution, which must include a description and the location of
each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the project' s completion,  and the

estimated useful life of the improvement; and

1NHEREAS, the City of Lathrop will receive and estimated $ 383, 766 in RMRA

funding in Fiscal Year 2018- 19 from SB 1; and

WFIEREAS,  Capital Improvement Project CIP PS 18- 01 City- wide Road
Maintenance has been updated with a proposed project list to meet the newly created
reporting guidelines; and

1AlHEREAS, this is the second year in which the City of Lathrop is receiving SB
1 funding which can be utilized for essential road maintenance and rehabilitation
projects, safety improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing
access and mobility options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise
been possible without SB 1; and

VO/ HEREAS, the City of Lathrop has a Pavement Management System and
utilized it to develop the SB 1 project list; and

VIiHEFtEAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City of Lathrop maintain and
rehabilitate streets throughout the City this year and into the future; and

547



VI/ HERE/ S,   staff is requesting that City Council authorize a budget

amendment transferring RMRA Funds to PS 18- 01 as follows:

Fiscal Year 18/ 19

Increase Transfer Outs

2030- 9900- 990- 9010 183, 766

Increase Transfers In ( PS 18- 01)

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 183, 766

Increase Expenses ( PS 18- 01)

3310- 8000- 481- 2012 183, 766

RIOVIi, THEREFOItE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the proposed project list for local streets and roads
funding associated with Senate Bill 1; and

BE IT FURTHEIt RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a budget amendment transferring RMRA Funds to PS 18- 01.

548



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14t'' 

day of May 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTES7":  APPROVED i45 7°O F FtM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

549



ATTACHMENT        "
Capital Improvement Project Plan PS 18-01

Project Number:   Project Name:

PS 18- 01 City-Wide Road Maintenance and Repair Program

Department Responsible:  Contact Number:

Public Works/ Michael King 209- 941- 7430

Project Description:

The City-Wide Road Maintenance and Repair Program will include maintaining deteriorated pavement and striping that present public safety issues
throughout residential and industrial areas in the City. Locations will be prioritized based upon condition of existing pavemenUstriping as related to public
safety and proximity to high pedestrian facilities ( i. e. schools), including the Mossdale area.

Senate Bill 1 Funding:
Fiscal Year 2017- 18: Proposed project includes crack sealing and the application of a cape seal on portions of Bizzibe St, Mingo Wy and Avon Ave. A
cape seal is the combination of a chip seal covered with a slurry seal. The benefits of a cape seal include a very smooth surface with an increased
durability. Cape seals can extend the life of a pavement 6 to 8 years.

FY 2018- 19: Proposed project includes rehabilitating the existing pavement on Harlan Rd near the Louise Ave by utilizing the cold- in place recycling ( CIR)
method. CIR involves grinding off the top layer of the existing asphalt, applying additives, reheating and using that recycled material for the new roadway.
Benefits of CIR include reduced construction time, reduced greenhouse gas emissions and potential cost savings

Justification:

Timely maintenance extends the useful life of the road pavement and helps prevent severe deterioration that decreases public safety and leads to more
costly repairs and or replacement in the future.

550



Capital Improvement Project Plan PS 18-01

Project Number:   Project Name:

PS 18- 01 City-Wide Road Maintenance and Repair Program

Department Responsible:  Contact Number:

Public Works/ Michael King 209- 941- 7430

k 7
f i i    ..      .... 4 J,... II {`    

r b v i. t., 4,h y j..   .   .
P         /  lC• 1

y,       /  .........••
jR.  ;    _ 

4 :     t<." l`.a+"'  . i..:   '. r'''°` - a     '"'
Iti i!'     

r+ a`.,      :
1.M      '. 3 ? .:     `

d;•' 
ry   `£  k  i    

r_1.,      :     6       .    
t rI e_' r  ` 7 x' f   t'• t  ' 7

1 R  ,,:-' X   ' t=t=1 xr}     /  ;_ y' r   .   r,r    .. , l'   .'
r     -     '::` '§ c+ 1v'T k` . y:;  ` d rr.'.     t: 4 «`, .

e v`  "
5,., 5     `' 4   !.    t `" 

ia'   
F'.   r°    5     

a  tx   7   t{ v    e       ' S  }. . r
r      -.  fNC.,\,       ;          7 i f. X r..      \

r       . 4     .    , v       p f t q
j     ' '    '''

1      k      , P";      y '}    ,     rT(','  ,  
f ' r:

J
1-, ly f{

w

t,r    ;`.     „" t' 1    . .
4 k^ ';;>  

a

s,; ry    ' a c      '' 8  '»:.       i  ' i; 1   y
Cr ia.,ti a  

t
t` a`  2r.' •

ps e'      .
A s   ':,      : _;   .,    ,

a. s.. 
e R.   s.: 3'  4'    1   _. Cn.,t   '   K 7^ ,.

T i     ' y y. .      
i'#. ' X,   a

y
1

i4 x ' 
i

1/ rtF..      :;.       s,#
ila.

tfr'._`  ,, •
Lf SFs.:., r    ._ ,}, n. r r#.

t.''
F`  ;     

F,(. `.",}

y,  

r, 
e,. 4."°. r.  .. ta, t<  4' p    ,

l}
y..

fi a3;

Y) j; $# ti6i.:: via  - tel ar   :,.,,. ,., . , j r    
y' ,  ',  _ .,,

fw . i T{,,:, kt.,_ b,:      ',    iw,;   ` e`   Of  `, zy\ ,
ffi F' t . ...  P..;  j.. •  ''„  ,..,,,,.i y

a.!'' 1  y! " 
t.,,,

S.
l9

ri'  
j

fl: ,
a: q#   ' V «,   «...       ` Qr ' t„" .; 1',;, i 4},   ,-w       .

1,  ,.
s,   _...'  iA  t.  -,'     y,

Y:      _: j r K e,   ;».. s.. `       t`    .      ` r...
i r ,  . . lF',• , i   •  "'?

j
F R JP

5

j,      d:   ' s•- .         ytixsa  • e s< fi**j   '.

VM M1'{.+  

x f    „ li S+        
j

t} i.• 
6 "   

Y`         }}
n

44p t;.    h  Y   ` s+       
t v   -`;,? x

t          
5,y'   

t  ; 3`.    Ye.,      ,', -
f wF.     

yw.,       _,`
q   )':'.  

t* `,•  .,;'..

1       - 1
1  ` i 7 4 ' 

at    '          J    ' m  f
d   .    

t.. 

t y       `

2;,

4 tf i a.  
rpy'. *r7      - ri  }    r''s. S, '    tr-           '      -'

F

T   , t. r . t ,,.:;
Y., / jri.` f ,'

r ;
T RỲ- S m°'; t   p ,.' Z. p 7 '" Y3$ .;''      

y`'' a':     `°. i;s!'
IM: ' Y,,` a>,..

Y ;;»,

ty  ,,.
5.

y-,, - , ,
M,'-

1`
S  ,:     `  

V
ql  ' i F Y ! I

r

R   i

yp

i  '    s  `   

A >     

1, ' t J     . ".'"`"

e.     : 

I

s   , s , 7  ',          
t

a ti'... ,:+'
tE`      

k'!^     
1t s°

S, . 
e

s

r       , c y

y   ..;..;,

Z.:..
w i,   , w' 3     -#. Z. .. r i fs+..    } t f'      

y._!
g f t°$ i       .¢  i. a; s     ,   >,'T'@   

l

r  

I' x

iw
f

q .      
T

i s'   j.: f̀    . F IC}' '
J   

R
i'' f " CF: 1         •  . w

F.    #. i t *,_,      f.     r..
r'      :'..^

es '  `  "
CX.. a' `  , y`' s i;;:.R

a. x i      
c ",    n       §' C'   ,    z a t.f a c.' e' z+..• w.   

r  `          ..  €    1   ,.     
t    _       "'_ 1

j}.'    S'r s
r` `  +  

s^
iw. e   . 

t  ii..,;` r,,.' a
t    ''      ...:- s       '._   _„",.

1'       8e A       f•  i;,    r - F:?
t...       

r     

FY 2017- 18 Proposed Cape Seal using RMRA Funds

vd,;      y'" x;-:,    y 1 .

4 .--4 tga=  

e a

j       .

a

g      .   .

R
Gr 1+e.J.

J      

I I' ...•
f..p a°`^       

r       . .    .._.. .    .

fl "",:..
f;      

t`YJ' t?    "' 
i8 d,..,- .`      ,:    ,  .   

y      A

l i 
llr   S

e'
p t     

3. 3
a - 6?.       .'

t_-,ri    '.   
n I    

A '_

3 *"`'.     
FY 2018- 19 Cold- in Place Recyding( CIR) using RMRA Funds t

r      :      ro 
f

y{, M

f,_ ; v

5 r     :    
r          ,. a     

J       

n { f#  '        

a . 

y       
y,`,.

w     ':.,& 

551



Capital Improvement Project Plan PS 18-01

Project Number:   Project Name:

PS 18- 01 City-Wide Road Maintenance and Repair Program

Department Responsible:  Contact Number:

Public Works/ Michael King 209- 941- 7430

Critical Date Components Descriptions

Project Components Winter 2017 Street AssessmenVPrioritization Street assessment and prioritization begins

Estimated Timeline Summer 201 S Construction Construction begins

Winter 2018 Completion Accept improvements

Prior& Current Carry Forward 2017/ S 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/ 22 Total

Source of Funds Year Actuals FY 2017/18 Recommended Planned Planned Planned Planned Allacations

Gas Tax Fund( 2030) Xfer from PS 12- 15 180,467 180, 467

Gas Tax Fund( 2030)  125, 000 200,000 325,000

TDA-( COG) Fund( 2140)      371, 500 371, 500

RMRA 125, 000 383,766 508,766

RSTP- Fund( 2150)   674,000 674,000

Total Revenues:  430,467  $    1, 629,266  $  2,059,733

Prior& Current Carry Forward 2017M8 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/ 22 Total

Use of Funds Year Actuals FY 2017/18 Recommended Planned Planned Planned Planned Allocations

Gas Tax( 2030) Xfer from PS 12- 15

Project Management

Design and Engineering
Land Acquisition

Construction 180,467 180, 467

Miscellaneous

Total Gas Tax( 2030):    180,467  $  80,467

Prior& Current Carry Forward 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/ 22 Total

Use of Funds Year Actuals FY 2017/18 Recommended Planned Planned Planned Planned Allocations

Gas Tax( 2030)

Project Management

Design and Engineering
Land Acquisition

Construction 125, 000 200,000 325,000

Miscellaneous

Total Gas Tax( 2030):    125,000  $     200,000  $  325,000

552



Capital Improvement Project Plan PS 18- 01

Project Number:   Project Name:

PS 18- 01 City-Wide Road Maintenance and Repair Program

Department Responsible:  Contact Number:

Public Works/ Michael King 209- 941- 7430

Prior& Current Carry Forward 2017/ 18 2018/19 2019/ 20 2020/21 2021/ 22 Total

Use of Funds Year Actuals FY 2017/ 18 Recommended Planned Planned Planned Planned Allocations

TDA- LTF Streets& Roads Fund( 2140)

Project Management

Design and Engineering
Land Acquisition

Construction 371, 500 371, 500

Miscellaneous

Total TDA- LTF Streets& Roads Fund( 2140):   $   371, 500  $  371, 500

Prior& Current Carry Forward 2017/18 2018/19 2019/ 20 2020/ 21 2027/ 22 Total

Use of Funds Year Actuals FY 2017M8 Recommended Planned Planned Planned Planned Allocations

RMRA

Project Management

Design and Engineering
Land Acquisition

Construction 125,000 383,766 508,766

Miscellaneous

Total RMRA:     125,000  $     383,766  $  508,766

Prior& Current Carry Forward 2017/18 2018/ 19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/ 22 Total

Use of Funds Year Actuals FY 2017/18 Recommended Planned Planned Planned Planned Allocations

RSTP- Fund( 2150)

Project Management

Design and Engineering
Land Acquisition

Construction 674,000 674,000

Miscellaneous

Total RSTP( 2150):       674,000  $  674,000

Total Expenditures:      430,467  $    1, 629,266  $  2,059,733

553



554



Il'EN! 4e22

CITY MAN C; EIt' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL REGULAR I 7EETING

ITEM:       ,       APPiaOV L OF THE PltELIP IINARY ENGINEER' S

REPOItT   ND DECLARINCa INTEMTIOiV TO LEVY

e4NNl1AL 1SSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL 1( EAit 2018/ 19

FOR IIo1DUSTRI L LIGHTIFNf;      MAINTENAIOO E

DI TItICT;  RESIDEfVTIAL LIGHTING P IAINTENp NCE

DISTItICT;  N10SSD/ LE LAIVDSCAPE  ND LIGIiTIf+1C;

Md4IR1TEIV iVCE DISTRICT;   STONEBRIDGE

Li4NDSCAPE M IINYERIANCE DISYRICT;

STONEBRIDGE DRAIIV 4GE AND LIGHTING DISTItICT;

ST012M DFtAIRI DISTItICT ZONE 1; 4ND STOI M DRAIIV

DISTRICT ZONE 1A

RECOMNIEND 4TION:     Council to Consider the Followoing:

1.  Adopt a Resolution 4pproving the Preliminary
Engineer' s Repart for the Industrial Lighting
Nlaintenance District and Declarirog Intention
to Levy Annual As essments for Fiscal Year
2018/ 19

2.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary
Engineer' s Report for the Res elential Lighting
P+laintenance Di trict and Declaring Intention
to Lewy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year
2018/ 19

3.  ldopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary
Engineer' s Iteport for the Mossdale Land cape

and Lighting Maintenance District and

Declaring Yntention to Levy Annual

Asse sments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

4.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary
Engineer' s Report for the Stonebridge

Landscape Maintenance District arrd the

Stonebridge Drainage & Lighting District and
Declaring Yntention to Levy Annual

ssessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

5.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary
Engineer' s Report for the Storrn Drain Districts

Zones 1 and 1A and Declaring Intention to Levy
Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

555



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

SUMMARY:

Each year, City Staff prepares annual budgets for the City' s maintenance assessment
districts for City Council review.  By way of their assessments, these districts provide
the funding for a broad scope of City services including:  park & street landscape

maintenance,  street lighting,  and storm drain system maintenance.    Ideally,  the

districts are structured to collect enough revenue to fund their expenditures.   Listed

below are the districts with current and proposed assessment rates:

i FY 17 18          FY 18 19     
I

District Rates I Proposed Rates; % Change ;      Notes

iI i Levy needed to minimize draw on
MossdaleLLMD       ;  252.67   260.25 !   3. 00%   reserve

Storm Drain Zone 1   ! 112. 52 i 112. 52 ;   0. 00%   Rate unchanged since FY 1996/ 97

Storm Drain Zone 1A ;  199. 92 I 199. 92 ;   0. 00%   I Rate unchanged since FY 1996/ 97

j Adequate reserve allows for unchanged

Stonebridge LMD I 225.06 j 225.06    0. 00%   ; assessment rate

i j Adequate reserve allows for unchanged

StonebridgeBAD 225.06 j 225.06 I 0.00%   assessmentrate

Max Levy needed to minimize draw on
Industrial LMD i$ 7. 31 or$ 37. 25 $ 7. 52 or$ 38.35 j 3. 00%   j reserve

I Max Levy needed to minirnize draw onk
Residential LMD       ;$ 7. 24 to$ 55.06 !$ 7. 46 to$ 56.71 ;   3. 00%   reserve

Four ( 4) out of seven ( 7) Districts present" General Benefit" costs that require funding
from sources other than the assessments collected by the districts.  General Benefit

is the benefit of the improvements on the public at large. Therefore, the General Fund

covers these costs because the City benefits overall from these portions of the
improvements. The general benefit cost for all districts for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 is

28, 321.

The Storm Drain District Zone 1A requires a general fund subsidy in the amount of
32, 010. This district does not generate sufFicient revenue to cover its operating

expenses. The total amount needed from the General Fund to cover the shortfall, and

the required General Benefit costs of all other districts is $ 60, 331.

Tonight, Staff recommends City Council approve the districts' preliminary Engineer's
Reports and declare its intention to levy annual assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.
After tonight' s actions, notices will be published and mailed to the affected property
owners regarding the public hearing.  The public hearing will be scheduled for ] une

li, 2018 at 7: 00 p. m.

556



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

BACKGROUND:

Each year, City Staff bring the maintenance assessment districts to City Council for
review and approval.  Ideally, a maintenance district is created to pay for the costs
of ongoing maintenance and operations of improvements which may include public
landscaping,  park sites,  street lighting and storm drainage that provide special
benefit to properties in given areas of the City.   Special benefit is defined as that

benefit, over and above the general benefit provided by the improvements, which is
conferred upon parcels within an assessment district, as identified and measured by
the formation assessment engineer.  Within the City of Lathrop, there are eight ( 8)

maintenance assessment districts ( seven ( 7) of which are included in this report):

four (4) Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance Districts ( LLMD) and three ( 3) Benefit
Assessment Districts  ( BAD).    Each district levies assessments according to the
method of apportionment of assessment to provide funding for the district' s budgeted
expenditures attributable to the operation and maintenance activities of the services

provided.     

Most public landscaping and street lights along Lathrop' s streets and entrances to
various residential communities   ( medians")   are maintained through LLMDs.

Additionally, the City has a number of parks maintained by LLMDs; most of which are
included in the districts that comprise this report.  Many of the storm drain systems
in Historical Lathrop are maintained through the BADs. Property owners in the LLMDs
and BADs are levied an annual assessment for ongoing maintenance based on each
LLMD and BAD method of apportionment of assessment.  The assessments are paid

by the property owners via payment of each parcel' s secured property tax bill.

Annually,  Staff evaluates the anticipated costs for maintenance for the upcoming
year.   This analysis takes into consideration any increases in costs as well as cost
savings realized.   Some of the costs include:    routine maintenance and mowing
contracts; equipment repair; weed abatement; shrub and tree pruning; radios and

computers;  irrigation parts and controllers;  water;  electricity;  fertilizer and other

chemicals;  vehicles and vehicle maintenance;  street lighting repairs;  storm drain

system maintenance; and other administrative costs to operate the maintenance

assessment districts.    In addition to ongoing,  annual expenditures,  sometimes

extraordinary maintenance and/ or small asset replacement is needed due to the
limited useful lives of the assets  ( e. g.  the overhaul/ replacement of storm drain

pumps, the replacement of a dead tree, or the replacement of a downed street light.)

An annual budget is then developed using these cost estimates.  The total costs are

divided among the parcels in each district based on the proportionate share of benefit
received from the improvements.  The proposed assessments are then reviewed and

approved each year by the City Council during a public hearing process.

By law, maximum annual assessments may only be adjusted by the formula amount
property owners approved at the time of district formation.  This amount is typically
either a fixed percentage ( e. g. 3%) or an annual measure of a Consumer Price Index

557



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING     .

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

CPI)  or a combination of the two,  and is frequently referred to as the " annual

escalation factor".   This annual escalation factor exists to maintain district revenue

purchasing power.   When purchasing power is maintained,  a district should have

sufficient funding to perform its operations and maintenance at a given level of
service in perpetuity.   Any proposed assessment requiring an assessment greater
than the maximum assessment, requires the approval of the property owners via the
Proposition 218 balloting process.    Each of the City' s districts has a maximum
assessment amount; however some of the districts lack an annual escalation factor.

This means in these districts while expenses have increased over time due to inflation

revenue stays the same, which creates annual shortfalls in these districts.

City Council may authorize any level of assessment up to the maximum assessment.
Given this ability,  Council could decide to levy the maximum assessment,  if the

proposed budget required it.   However, if it is determined that the maximum is not

needed,  Council could lower the actual annual assessment and only calculate the
maximum assessment for archive purposes.

The Preliminary Engineer' s Reports are available in the City Clerk' s office and the
Public Works Department for review and copies will be available at the City Council
meeting by request.

The following subsections summarize the district- specific information for each
maintenance district:

1) Industrial Lighting Maintenance District
The Lathrop Industrial Lighting Maintenance District was created to pay for the
maintenance of the public lighting within commercial and industrial areas of the City.
The Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 maximum assessment rates have increased by 3. 00%, which

is the applicable annual escalation factor approved by the property owners.   The

Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 proposed assessment rates are the maximums.

1 Proposed       '    Maximum

FY 2017/ 18 Annual j FY 2018/ 19 Annual '    FY 2018/ 19

Assessment Rate    Assessment Rate  `    jAssessment Rate

District/ Zone per EDU*              per EDU*       !    Variance    !      per EDU*

Industrial LMD- Zone A ;  7.31 7.52 0.21       ; 7. 52 

Industrial LMD- Zone B ; 37. 25 I 38.35 i      $ 1. 10       ;      38. 35 ;

Industrial LMD- Zone C ?  7.31 i 7.52 0. 21       7. 52 '

i* EDU= Equivalent Dwell.ing Unit_.....__..__._....__._..,._...___...__...___.___.__._'.___ __.---.______.____'....____..__.__..-----__...____..

The District will receive $ 53, 423. 22 in assessment revenue plus a General Benefit

Contribution from the General Fund of $11, 635 for a total of $65, 058. 22.  The total

estimated expenditures are anticipated to be $ 59, 554.  Fund balance at the beginning

558



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS
EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 is estimated to be $ 95, 244. 63 which will increase by $ 5, 504. 22

to $ 100, 749. 18 at the end of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.

2) Residential Lighting Maintenance District
The Lathrop Residential Lighting Maintenance District was created on May 18, 1999
to pay for the operation and maintenance of street lighting to benefit residential areas
in East Lathrop.

The Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 maximum assessment rates have increased by 2. 94%, which

is the applicable annual escalation factor approved by the property owners.   The

District is required to maintain a reserve fund of approximately 50% of its annual

revenues and expenses; thus, it is proposed for the District to be assessed at its

maximum assessment.   The largest annual increase per EDU is in Zone E at $ 1. 65

annually or approximately $ 0. 14 per month.

i Proposed       !    Maximum

I FY 2017/ 18 Annual  FY 2018/ 19 Annual !    FY 2018/ 19

iAssessment Rate    Assessment Rate 4Assessment Rate

District/ Zone per EDU*       ;       per EDU*       ;    Variance f per EDU*

Residential LMD- Zone A ; 39.96 41. 16 1. 20       '       $ 41. 16

Residential LMD- Zone B  ; 42. 82 44.10 1. 28       ;       $ 44. 10

Residential LMD- Zone C M 28. 15 j 29.00 0.85       ;       $ 29.00 I

Residential LMD- Zone D  52. 37 53. 94 1. 57       '       $ 53. 94

Residential LMD- Zone E   55. 06 56J1 1. 65       ;       $ 56.71

Residential LMD- Zone F i 31. 67 i 32. 62 0.95 32. 62

Residential LMD- Zone G  7. 24 7.46 0.22       ( 7.46

EDU= Equivalent Dwelling Unit  __      J      _____ F-_..__.-_______

The District will receive $ 121, 284. 18 in assessment revenues plus a General Benefit

contribution from the General Fund of $8, 196 for a total of $129, 480. 18.  The total

estimated expenditures are anticipated to be $ 121, 016.  Fund balance at the

beginning of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 is estimated to be $ 152, 408. 34 which will increase

by $ 8, 464. 18 to $ 160, 872. 52 at the end of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.

3) Mossdale Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District
On June 15, 2004, Mossdale property owners approved the creation of the Mossdale
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District to provide funding to maintain the
landscaping,   park sites,  and street lighting for the District.     The maximum

assessment for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 will increase by 3 percent; this is the applicable
annual escalation factor approved by the property owners at the time of district
formation.  The Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 maximum assessment rate per single- family and
multi- family unit is $ 268. 06.   The Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 assessment rate is $ 260. 25

because a financial review of the District shows that this rate will continue the

required level of service.

559



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 6

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

The District will receive $ 561, 962. 76 in assessment revenues and expenditures are

anticipated to be at $ 599, 327.   The fund balance at the beginning of Fiscal Year
2018/ 19 is estimated to be $ 464, 605. 22, which will be reduced by $ 37, 364. 24 to

427, 240. 98 by the end of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.

I Proposed j Maximum

FY 2017/ 18 Annual ; FY 2018/ 19 Annual I FY 2018/ 19
i

I Assessment Rate Assessment Rate      Assessment Rate
c

District f per EDU*       !       per EDU*       ;    Variance         per EDU*

Mossdale LLMD 252. 67 260.25 7.58             $ 268.06

EDU= Equivalent Dwelling Unit   ,---
T--      

4)  Stonebridge Landscaping District
Stonebridge Drainage and Lighting Maintenance District

Stonebridge Landscaping District
The Stonebridge Landscape District was created to pay for the service, operation and
maintenance of the common area street landscaping,  and Stonebridge Park.  The

Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 maximum assessment rate of $397. 99 represents an increase of

5% over that of Fiscal Year 2017/ 18, which is the applicable annual escalation factor

approved by property owners. The annual assessment to be levied is proposed to be
set at $225. 06.  This is the same as the rate that was assessed in Fiscal Year 2017/ 18.

This consistent assessment is due to the District already possessing a healthy reserve
fund.

The Landscape District will receive $ 203, 229 in assessment revenues plus a

General Benefit Contribution from the General Fund of $4, 245, and rent and

concessions of $1, 000 for a total of $208,474.  The total estimated expenditures

are anticipated to be $ 232, 561.  The fund balance at the beginning of Fiscal Year
2018/ 19 is estimated to be $ 98, 433. 27, which will decrease by $ 24, 087 to

74, 346. 27 at the end of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.

1 Proposed       !    Maximum

FY 2017/ 18 Annual ; FY 2018/ 19 Annual (    FY 2018/ 19

Assessment Rate j Assessment Rate      iAssessment Rate

District per EDU*              per EDU*       i Variance j per EDU*

Stonebridge Landscapingj 225.06 i 225. 06 0.00 397.99

I* EDU= Equivalent_Dwelling Unit J I

Stonebridge Drainage and Lighting District
The Stonebridge Drainage and Lighting District was created to pay for the service,
operation and maintenance of the street lighting, and storm drain facilities within the
Stonebridge development.   The Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 maximum assessmenf rate of

397. 99 represents an increase of 5% over that of Fiscal Year 2016/ 17, which is the

applicable annual escalation factor approved by property owners.  The annual

560



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 7

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

assessment to be levied is proposed to be set at $ 225. 06.  This is the same as the

rate that was assessed in Fiscal Year 2016/ 17.  This consistent assessment is due to

the District already possessing a healthy reserve fund.

The Drainage and Lighting District will receive $ 203, 004 in revenue plus a General

Benefit contribution from the General Fund of $4, 425 for a total of $ 207, 249.   The

total estimated expenditures are anticipated to be $ 312, 803.   Fund balance at the

beginning of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 is estimated to be $ 245, 454. 98 which will decrease

by $ 105, 554 to $ 139, 900. 98 at the end of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19. Reserve funds are

intended to be used for annual operating shortfall coverage,  cash flow timing
financing, and/ or extraordinary maintenance/ repair funding.

Proposed f Maximum

FY 2017/ 18 Annual  FY 2018/ 19 Annual i I FY 2018/ 19

i Assessment Rate  !  Assessment Rate i Assessment Rate

District per EDU*       j per EDU*           Variance i per EDU*

Stonebridge Drainage & !   i

Lighting k 225.06 j 225. 06 0.00 397.99

EDU= Equivalent_Dwelling Unit_^_      __       J

5) Storm Drain Districts Zone 1 and Zone 1A

On June 6,  1989, property owners approved a ballot measure for storm drainage
maintenance fees for the Lathrop Storm Drain District, City Zone 1.   In 1993, the

City annexed an additional Storm Drain Maintenance District incorporating the area
known as City Zone 1A ( Crossroads Development).

These districts were created without any annual escalation factor for the maximum
assessment and both districts have been levied at their static maximum assessments

for many years.  Over the last few fiscal years, inflationary effects have occurred on
ordinary expenditures, asset replacements have been necessary,  and assessment

revenue remained static; thus, District deficits have occurred. Without a modification,

sizeable deficits in future fiscal years are possible.    In order to change this,  a

Proposition 218 balloting of the districts'  property owners would have to be

successfully completed.  While this is not proposed for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the City
may wish to consider this action for a future fiscal year.

For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, Zone 1 is projected to have sufficient assessment revenue,

along with a contribution from the reserves,  to keep operations at the current
required levels of service.   Contrarily, Zone 1A will need its entire estimated fund

reserve of $8, 476 and a $ 32, 010 General Fund subsidy to continue to operate at the
current required levels of service.

Storm Drain Zone 1 will receive   $ 239, 141 in assessment revenues and

expenditures are expected to be $ 286, 915.   The Fund Balance at the beginning of

561



I

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 8

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 is estimated at $ 180, 459. 90 which will decrease by $ 47, 774 to

132, 685. 90 at the end of Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.

Storm Drain Zone 1A will receive   $ 113, 364 in assessment revenues and

expenditures are expected to be $ 153, 850. The Fund balance at the beginning of
Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 is estimated to be $ 8, 476, which will be fully utilized by the
projected deficit in this district.   A General Fund subsidy of $ 32, 010 is needed to

maintain the current required levels of service.

i Proposed r I Maximum

FY 2017/ 18 Annual  FY 2018/ 19 Annual i FY 2018/ 19
r

Assessment Rate
E

Assessment Rate Assessment Rate

District per EDU*       +       per EDU*           Variance    '      per EDU*

Storm Drain - Zone 1 i 112.52 f 112.52 0.00       ?    112.52

Storm Drain - Zone 1A; 199.92 199.92 0.00 199.92

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has prepared Preliminary Engineer Reports and annual budgets for the service,
operation and maintenance of all the districts in order to establish the annual

assessments, which provide the funding for said services that benefit parcels within
the districts.

Upon adoption of the attached Resolutions, the Preliminary Engineer Reports will be
approved and the Council will declare its intention to levy annual assessments for
Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 and a public hearing will be scheduled for June 11, 2018 at 7: 00
p. m., to permit public testimony.   Written protests will be accepted from property
owners until the close of the public hearing.  At the close of the public hearing, the
City Council may approve the Engineer Reports as submitted or amend them and
order the levy and collection of the assessments.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

Promoting Community Values by maintaining Parks,  Recreation,  and Community
Services to its required service levels.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 assessments for the Residential Lighting
Maintenance District and Industrial Lighting Maintenance District fully fund the
budgeted expenditures to maintain the current required levels of service within each

of the districts.

In Mossdale Landscape and Lighting District,  Stonebridge Landscaping District,
Stonebridge Drainage  &  Lighting District,   and Storm Drain District Zone 1,

562



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 9

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

expenditures exceed revenue; however these districts have sufficient funding within
their Fund Balance reserves to cover the shortfalls.

Storm Drain District Zone 1A has expenditures which exceed revenues.   City Staff
proposes the use of the District' s Fund Balance reserve of $ 8, 476 to partially fund
the deficit; and, in order to maintain the current required service levels in the District,

a General Fund subsidy to cover the remaining $ 32, 010 deficit.

In four (4) of the districts, there are ' General Benefit" costs that require funding from
sources other than the assessments collected by the districts, as quantified by the
formation assessment engineer.   General Benefit is defined as the benefit of the

improvements on the public at large. Therefore, the General Fund funds these costs

because the city benefits overall from these improvements. The Fiscal Year 2018/ 19
General Benefit costs for each of the four (4) districts are:

District General Benefit Amount

Industrial Lighting Maintenance District 11,635

Residential Lighting Maintenance District 8, 196

Stonebridge Drainage and Lighting District   

T         ^$

4,245

Stonebridge Landscape District 4,245

Total General Benefit Cost 28,321

The total amount needed from the General Fund to cover the General Benefit costs

and the Storm Drain Zone 1A subsidy is $ 60, 331.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for the Industrial
Lighting Maintenance District Zone A,  Zone B  ,  and Zone C and Declaring
Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19  -

B.  A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for the Residential
Lighting Maintenance District and Declaring Intention to Levy Annual

Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

C.  A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for the Mossdale
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District and Declaring Intention to Levy
Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

D. A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for the Stonebridge
Landscape Maintenance District and the Stonebridge Drainage  &  Lighting
District and Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year
2018/ 19

563



CITIf MARIAGER' S REPORT PAGE 10

MAY 7.4, 2018 CITY COUNCIL F EGULAR MEETING

FISC IL YEAR 2018/]. 9 / SSESSMEMTS FOR ALL R9AINTENANCE DISTItICTS

E% CEPT WOODFIELD PARK

E.  A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for the Storm Drain
Districts Zones 1 and 1A and Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments
for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

F.  District Diagrams for All Districts

Note - Preliminary Engineer' s Reports are available for review in the City
Clerk' s Office.

564



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT      - -  — PAGE li

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL;REGULAR MEETINGi

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSEBSMENTS FOR ALL MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS

EXCEPT WOODFIELD PARK

APPROVALS:

T- / rl g'
I

Sandra Frias Date

Budget Manager

Y 6U S    b-  i  .
S- I• i 8

Vanessa Portillo Date

De uty Finance Director

D

Cari Jam s Date

Director o Fin nce

S 1

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

9/,
Ste alvatore Date

City Manager

565



ATTACHMENTA I
I

RESOLUTION NO. 18-       

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S REPORT FOR THE INDUSTRIAL

LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT AND DECLARING INTENTION TO LEVY

AMNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolutions formed the Lathrop
Industrial Lighting Maintenance District ( hereafter referred to as the District"), and

initiated proceedings for Fiscal Year 2017/ 18 pursuant to the provisions of the

Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2, Division 15 of the California Streets and
Highways Code ( commencing with Section 22500) ( hereafter referred to as the "Act")

that provides for the levy and collection of assessments by the County of San ] oaquin

for the City of Lathrop to pay the maintenance and services of all improvements and
facilities related thereto; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained NBS for the purpose of assist'ing with
the Annual Levy of the District, and to prepare and file a report with the City Clerk in
accordance with the Act; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has_ previously called for the preparation of an
Engineer's Report and Annual Levy Report  (collectively referred to herein as the
Report") for the district known as the Lathrop Industrial Lighting Maintenance District;

and

WHEREAS, the Report has now been presented to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Report includes the District's budget and assessments and

contains the data necessary to determine the special benefit conferred upon each
property included in the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report as
presented and amended on May 14, Z018, and is preliminarily satisfied with the Lathrop
Industrial Lighting Maintenance District, and all of the budget items and charges, and is
satisfied that the levy amounts, on a preliminary basis, have been spread in accordance
with the special benefits received from the improvements, operation, maintenance and

services performed in and provided by the District;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following actions shall be taken:

Section 1 Intention: The City Council hereby declares that it is its intention to seek the
Annual Levy of the District pursuant to the Act, over and including the land within the
District boundary, and to levy and collect assessments on all such land to pay the
annual costs of the improvements.

566



Section 2 Description of Improvements and any substantial chanaes proposed: The
improvements within the District include: the operation, administration, maintenance

and servicing of all street lighting improvements and appurtenant facilities and
expenses associated with the District.  The Report, attached hereto as Exhibit A" and

incorporated herein by this reference is hereby approved on a preliminary basis and
ordered to be filed with this Resolution in the Office of the City Clerk as a permanent
record.  Such Report shall remain open to public inspection.  The Report provides a full

and complete description of all improvements and any or all substantial changes to the
District or improvements within the District.

Section 3 Boundaries and Designation: The boundaries of the District are described as

the boundaries previously defined in the formation documents of the original District,
within the incorporated City Limits of the City, within the County of San Joaquin, State
of California.  Also described as:

Lathrop Industrial Lighting Maintenance District

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:   For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the proposed

assessments are outlined in the Report which details any changes or increases in the
annual assessment.       

Section 5 Public Hearina( s): The City, Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a
Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the Districts in
accordance with Chapter 3, Section 22626 of the Act and Articles XIII (C) and XIII (D)

of the California Constitution.

Section 6 Notice: The City shall give notice of the time and place of the Public Hearing
to all property owners within the Districts by causing the publishing of this Resolution
once in a newspaper of local circulation for two consecutive weeks not less than ten

10) days before the date of the public hearing, and by posting a copy of this resolution
on the official bulletin board customarily used by the City Council for the posting of
notices.

Section 7 Notice of Public Hearina:  Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on
these matters will be held by the City Council on Monday, June 11, 2018, at 7: 00 p. m.
or as soon thereafter as feasible in the City Council Chambers, located at 390 Towne
Centre Dr., Lathrop, California.

Section 8 Compliance with Article XIII (C) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution:

The City Council hereby finds that the proposed assessments are exempt from the
requirements for Article XIII (C) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution in that the

amount of the assessment is based upon a prior ballot procedure in which the majority
of the affected property owners consented to the imposition of the assessment, its

amount and a modifier.  The amount of the assessment proposed does not exceed the
authorized amount.

567



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES: 

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

568



v     __--_-__--__'\

I I
I I

ATTACHMENT B

RESOLUTION NO. 18-      

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S REPORT FOR THE

RESIDENTIAL LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT AND DECLARING

INTENTION TO LEVY ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

WHEREAS, the City Council pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972,  Part 2 of Division 15 of the Streets and Highways Code of
California, beginning with Section 22500 ( hereafter referred to as the' Act") desires to

initiate proceedings for the establishment of benefit zones within the  " Lathrop
Residential Lighting Maintenance District" ( hereafter referred to as the" District") and to

levy and collect annual assessments to pay for the operation,  maintenance and

servicing of the lighting improvements and all appurtenant facilities related thereto. The
Act provides for the establishment of benefit zones within an assessment district

pursuant to Chapter 2 Article 4 Section 22574,  and the levy and collection of
assessments by the County on behalf of the City pursuant to Chapter 4 Artic% 2

Section 22646; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained NBS as the Engineer of Work, for the
purpose of assisting with the establishment of benefit zones within the District, the
establishment of annual assessments, and to prepare and file an Engineer' s Report with

the City Clerk in accordance with the Act; and,

WHEREAS,  the City Council has previously called for the preparation of an
Engineer's Report and Annual Levy Report( collectively referred to herein as the Report")
for the district known as the Lathrop Residential Lighting Maintenance District); and

WHEREAS, the Report has now been presented to the City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the Report includes the District' s budget and assessments and

contains the data necessary to determine the special benefit conferred upon each
property included in the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report as
presented and amended on May 14, 2018, and is preliminarily satisfied with the Lathrop
Residential Lighting Maintenance District, and all of the budget items and charges, and is
satisfied that the levy amounts, on a preliminary basis, have been spread in accordance
with the special benefits received from the improvements, operation, maintenance and

services performed in and provided by the District;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE DISTRICT, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1 Intention:  The City Council hereby orders NBS to prepare the Engineer's
Report concerning the establishment of benefit zones within the District and the levy of
assessments for properties within the District. 

569



Section 2 Description of Improvements and any substantial chanaes proposed: The
improvements include the operation, administration, maintenance and servicing of all
street lighting improvements and appurtenant facilities and expenses associated with
the District.       ',

Section 3 Boundaries and Designation:  The proposed territory within the District
includes all lots and parcels to be assessed for special benefits from the lighting
improvements. The District is generally located in the northern part of the City and
consists of lots and parcels north of Louise Avenue,  west of the Southern Pacific

Railroad, east of Interstate 5, and south of the Stonebridge Development. The District

is within the City of Lathrop, the County of San Joaquin, State of California and shall be
designated as: ' Lathrop Residential Lighting Maintenance District".

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:   For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the proposed

assessments are outlined in the Report which details any changes or increases in the
annual assessment.

Section 5 Public Hearinq( s): The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a
Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the District in accordance
with Chapter 3, Section 22626 of the Act and Articles XIII  (C) and XIII ( D) of the

California Constitution.

Section 6 Notice: The City shall give notice of the time and place of the Public Hearing to
all property owners within the District by causing the publishing ofthis Resolution once in
a newspaper of local circulation for two consecutive weeks not less than ten ( 10) days

before the date of the public hearing, and by posting a copy of this resolution on the
official bulletin board customarily used by. the City Council for the posting of notices..

Section 7 Notice of Public Hearina: Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on these
matters will be held by the City Council on Monday, June 11, 2018, at 7: 00 p. m. or as
soon thereafter as feasible in the City Council Chambers, located at 390 Towne Centre
Dr., Lathrop, California.

Section 8 Compliance with Article XIII ( C) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution:

The City Council hereby finds that the proposed assessments are exempt from the
requirements for Article XIII ( C) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution in that the

amount of the assessment is based upon a prior ballot procedure in which the majority

of the affected property owners consented to the imposition of the assessment, its
amount and a modifier.  The amount of the assessment proposed does not exceed the

authorized amount.

570



i

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:      

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

571



I
r'_.__—     
I

I ATTACHMENT C i
i

RESOWTION NO. 18-   I

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S REPORT FOR THE MOSSDALE
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT AND DECLARING

INTENTION TO LEVY ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolutions formed the Mossdale
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District   ( hereafter referred to as the

District"),  and initiated proceedings for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19,  pursuant to the

provisions of the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972,  Part 2,  Division 15 of the

California Streets and Highways Code ( commencing with Section 22500) ( hereafter

referred to as the " Act") that provides for the levy and collection of assessments by
the County of San Joaquin for the City of Lathrop to pay the maintenance and
services of all improvements and facilities related thereto ; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained NBS for the purpose of assisting with
the Annual Levy of the District, and to prepare and file a report with the City Clerk in
accordance with the Act; and,

WHEREAS,  the City Council has previously called for the preparation of an
Engineer's Report and Annual Levy Report  ( collectively referred to herein as the
Report") for the district known as the Mossdale Landscape and Lighting Maintenance

District; and

WHEREAS, the Report has now been presented to the City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the Report includes the District' s budget and assessments and

contains the data necessary to determine the special benefit conferred upon each
property included in the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report
as presented and amended on May 14,  2018, and is preliminarily satisfied with the
Mossdale Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District, and all of the budget items
and charges, and is satisfied that the levy amounts, on a pr.eliminary basis, have been
spread in accordance with the special benefits received from the improvements,

operation, maintenance and services performed in and provided by the District;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following actions shall be
taken:

Section 1 Intention: The City Council hereby declares that it is its intention to seek
the Annual Levy of the District pursuant to the Act, over and including the land within
the District boundary, and to levy and collect assessments on all such land to pay the
annual costs of the improvements.

572



i

Section 2 Description of Improvements and any substantial changes proposed: The
improvements within the District may include, but are not limited to:  landscaping,
planting, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, street lighting,  park sites,  site

lighting and app,urtenant facilities.   Services provided include all necessary service,
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the improvements in a
healthy, vigorous and satisfactory condition.  The Report, attached hereto as Exhibit

A" and incorporated herein by this reference is hereby approved on a preliminary    '
basis and ordered to be filed with this Resolution in the OfFice of the City Clerk as a
permanent record.  Such Report shall remain open to public inspection.  The Report

provides a full and complete description of all improvements and any or all
substantial changes to the District or improvements within the District.

Section 3 Boundaries and Desi_ ncLation: The boundaries of the District are described

as the boundaries previously defined in the formation documents of the original
District,  within the boundaries of the City of Lathrop,  within the County of San
Joaquin, State of California.  Also described as:

Mossdale Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:   For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the proposed

assessments are outlined in the Report which details any changes or increases in the
annual assessment.

Section 5 Public Hearina( s): The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct
a Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the District in
accordance with Chapter 3, Section 22626 of the Act and Articles XIII ( C) and XIII

D) of the California Constitution.

Section 6 Notice:  The City shall give notice of the time and place of the Public
Hearing to all property owners within the District by causing the publishing of this
Resolution once in a newspaper of local circulation for two consecutive weeks not

less than ten ( 10) days before the date of the public hearing, and by posting a copy
of this resolution on the official bulletin board customarily used by the City Council
for the posting of notices.

Section 7 Notice of Public Hearina:  Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on
these matters will be held by the City Council on Monday, June 11, 2018, at 7: 00

p. m. or as soon thereafter as feasible in the City Council Chambers, located at 390

Towne Centre Dr., Lathrop, California.

Section 8 Compliance with Article XIII   (C) . and XIII   (D)   of the California

Constitution:  The City Council hereby finds that the proposed assessments are
exempt from the requirements for Article XIII  (C)  and XIII  (D)  of the California
Constitution in that the amount of the assessment is unchanged and the

assessment is imposed exclusively to finance the maintenance and operation
expenses for street tree, and street- side landscaping & park maintenance.

573



i

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted_this 14th day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:    

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

574



I II
ATTACHMENT D

I

RESOWTION NO. 18-    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY GOUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' REPORTS FOR THE

STONEBRIDGE LANDSCAPING DISTRICT AND THE STONEBRIDGE

DRAINAGE & LIGHTING DISTRICT AND DECLARING INTENTION TO LEVY

ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

WHEREAS,   the City Council has by previous Resolutions formed the

Stonebridge Landscaping District and Stonebridge Drainage  &  Lighting District
hereafter referred to as the " Districts"), and initiated proceedings for Fiscal Year

2017/ 18,  pursuant to the provisions of the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972,
Part 2, Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code ( commencing with
Section 22500)  and Benefit Assessment Act of 1982,  Division 2,  Title 5 of the

California Government Code ( commencing with Section 54703) ( hereafter referred

to as the ' Act")  that provides for the levy and collection of assessments by the
County of San Joaquin for the City of Lathrop to pay the maintenance and services
of all improvements and facilities related thereto; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained NBS,  for the purpose of assisting
with the Annual Levy of the Districts, and to prepare and file a report with the City
Clerk in accordance with the Act; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has previously called for the preparation of an
Engineer's Report and Annual Levy Report  ( collectively referred to herein as the
Reports")  for the districts known as the Stonebridge Landscaping District and

Stonebridge Drainage & Lighting District; and

WHEREAS, the Reports have now been presented to the City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the Reports include the District budgets and assessments and

contains the data necessary to determine the special benefit conferred upon each
property included in the Districts; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Reports
as presented and amended on May 14, 2018, and is preliminarily satisfied with the
Stonebridge Landscaping District and Stonebridge Drainage & Lighting District, and
all of the budget items and charges, and is satisfied that the levy amounts, on a

preliminary basis,   have been spread in accordance with the special benefits

received from the improvements, operation,  maintenance and services performed

in and provided by the Districts; 

575



NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the following actions shall be
taken:

Section 1 Intention: The City Council here6y declares that it is its intention to seek
the Annual Levy of the Districts pursuant to the Act, over and including the land
within the Districts' boundaries,  and to levy and collect assessments on all such
land to pay the annual costs of the improvements.

Section 2 Description of Improvements and any substantial changes proposed: The
improvements within the Districts include:  planting materials,  irrigation systems,

landscape,   drainage systems,   natural drainage areas,   street lighting and all

necessary appurtenances.     The Reports,  attached hereto as Exhibit  " A"  and

incorporated herein by this reference is hereby approved on a preliminary basis and
ordered to be filed with this Resolution in the OfFice of the City Clerk as a
permanent record.    Such Reports shall remain open to public inspection.    The

Reports provides a full and complete description of all improvements and any or all
substantial changes to the Districts or improvements within the Districts.

Section 3 Boundaries and Desianation:   The boundaries of the Districts are

described as the boundaries previously defined in the formation documents of the
original Districts, within the incorporated City Limits of the City, within the County
of San Joaquin, State of California.  Also described as:

Stonebridge Landscaping District

Stonebridge Drainage & Lighting District

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:   For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the proposed

assessments are outlined in the Reports which detail any changes or increases in
the annual assessment.

Section 5 Public Hearina( s):  The City Council hereby declares its intention to
conduct a Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the
District in accordance with Chapter 3, Section 22626 of the Act and Articles XIII ( C)
and XIII ( D) of tlie California Constitution.

Section 6 Notice:  The City shall give notice of the time and place of the Public
Hearing to all property owners within the District by causing the publishing of this
Resolution once in a newspaper of local circulation for two consecutive weeks not
less than ten ( 10) days before the date of the public hearing, and by posting a copy
of this resolution on the official bulletin board customarily used by the City Council
for the posting of notices.

Section 7 Notice of Public Hearina:  Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on
these matters will be held by the City Council on Monday, June 11,  2018, at 7: 00

p. m. or as soon thereafter as feasible in the City Council Chambers, located at 390

Towne Centre Dr., Lathrop, California.

576



Section 8 Compliance with Article XIII(C   and XIII( D)   of the California

Constitution: The City Council hereby finds that the proposed assessments are in
compliance with the requirements for Article XIII( C) and XIII( D)  of the California

Constitution in that the amount of the assessment is based upon a prior ballot

procedure in which the majority of the affected property owners consented to the
imposition of the assessment,  its amount and a modif.ier.    The amount of the

assessment proposed does not exceed the authorized amount.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

577



1

j ATTACHMENT E

RESOWTION NO. 18- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PRELIMINAI Y ENGINEER' S REPORTS FOR THE STORM

DRAIN DISTRICTS ZONE 1 AND ZONE 1A AND DECLARING INTENTION TO

LEVY ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

WHEREAS, the City Council has, as successor in interest to the County of
San Joaquin and the Lathrop County Water District,  the authority to assess and
collect storm drain charges for the Lathrop Storm Drain Districts Zone 1 and Zone
1A ( hereafter referred to as the ' Disfricts"), and initiated proceedings for Fiscal Year

2017/ 18, pursuant to the provisions of the Benefit Assessment Act of 1982, Division

2,  Title 5 of the California Government Code  ( commencing with Section 54703)
hereafter referred to as the  Act")  that provides for the levy and collection of

assessments by the County of San Joaquin for the City of Lathrop to pay the
maintenance and services of all improvements and facilities related thereto; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained NBS, for the purpose of assisting
with the Annual Levy of the Districts, and to prepare and file a report with the City
Clerk in accordance with the Act; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has previously called for the preparation of an
Engineer' s Report and Annual Levy Report  ( collectively referred to herein as the
Reports") for the districts known as the Lathrop Storm Drain Districts Zone 1 and

Zone 1A; and

WHEREAS, the Reports has now been presented to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Reports includes the Districts' budgets and assessments and

contains the data necessary to determine the special benefit conferred upon each
property included in the Districts; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the

Reports as presented and amended on May 14, 2018, and is preliminarily satisfied
with the Lathrop Storm Drain Districts Zone 1 and Zone 1A, and all of the budget
items and charges, and is satisfied that the levy amounts, on a preliminary basis,
have been spread in accordance with the special benefits received from the
improvements, operation, maintenance and services performed in and provided by
the District;

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the following actions shall
be taken:

Section 1 Intention: The City Council hereby declares that it is its intention to seek
the Annual Levy of the District pursuant to the Act,  over and including the land
within the Districts' boundaries, and to levy and collect assessments on all such land
to pay the annual costs of the improvements.

578



Section 2 Description of Improvements and any substantial changes proposed: The
improvements within the District include:   storm drainage and all necessary
appurtenances.    The Reports,  attached hereto as Exhibit  " A"  and incorporated

herein by this reference is hereby approved on a preliminary basis and ordered to
be filed with this Resolution in the Office of the City Clerk as a permanent record.
Such Reports shall remain open to public inspection.   The Reports provides a full

and complete description of all improvements and any or all substantial changes to
the District or improvements within the District.

Section 3 Boundaries and Designation: The boundaries of the District are described

as the boundaries previously defined in the formation documents of the original
District,  within the incorporated City Limits of the City,  within the County of San
Joaquin, State of California.  Also described as:

Lathrop Storm Drain District Zone 1

Lathrop Storm Drain District Zone 1A

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:   For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the proposed

assessments are outlined in the Reports which detail any ehanges or increases in
the annual assessment.

Section 5 Public Hearina( s):  The City Council hereby declares its intention to
conduct a Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the
Districts in accordance with Chapter 3, Section 22626 of the Act and Articles XIII
C) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution.

Section 6 Notice:  The City shall give notice of the time and place of the Public
Hearing to all property owners within the Districts by causing the publishing of this
Resolution once in a newspaper of local circulation for two consecutive weeks not
less than ten ( 10) days before the date of the public hearing, and by posting a copy
of this resolution on the ofFicial bulletin board customarily used by the City Council
for the posting of notices.

Section 7 Notice of Public Hearinq:  Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on
these matters will be held by the City Council on Monday, June 11, 2018, at 7: 00

p. m. or as soon thereafter as feasible in the City Council Chambers, located at 390
Towne Centre Dr., Lathrop, California.

Section 8 Compliance with Article XIII(C)   and XIII( D)   of the California
Constitution:  The City Council hereby finds that the proposed assessments are
exempt from the requirements for Article XIII( C)  and XIII( D)  of the California

Constitution in that the amount of the assessment is unchanged and the

assessment is imposed exclusively to finance the maintenance and operation
expenses for flood control and drainage systems.

579



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
14th

day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

580



ATTACHMENT F

LOUlS A ENU

w

z

z

VIERRA ROAD

YosEn     AVEn e

i
NOT TQ SCAL£ j

l y  f L fih r p
l dustri!   L     ti         o sg r  A

Date:  Febrttory i999

581



Y 11R1J a ai-' i I it!!
f/ I lw` r  

1 i117= ir- a-rr r a:     Wr
1 1rrMa. lwa A 1 1 1 1 C..,....rM eir lii M".:._., - -..•...,..       y t1IH: C: C;::; Ilif!![I i•r_._.F:, 

r' /      „ 1 1 1lr"riMr - 4•rr+ IlIlIE 
i{ •/      : fI 1I! A t l    / 1/ l ai': i1 1

f       tlNl: s In u a .:; 11A11.f.I/°      : iiii x: 111# IIIItli11[ I . fiueiiii
11li. 

J'. r•;/l/

j/..~!

f    il

r
Tr.i._.s.•/       .       -

r
r%,%%
r    :`..:./J

r         t  `--
s

r':,....

r r 1,   tI

C       ',J/I/`//
i I` j

Ir    --  / f/    
4-+',,    

1,+f/
ii

1
1,

r  -J.

1      '  
i

il  . .

582



ROTH ROAD

MA lILA ROAD

o   

I O

FREWERT ROAD Z

W

0

o     a    

u     

S Q U  ( R E S R 0 A D

x       

raor ro sc,u   

t of L h rop

industri   I       .   IL g ng Z n  
Aate:  February i989

583



n rt r il 11111111111 tit tar
t" u u m Iri1 
wi i u umr/ s =

11111  % Ilf 
1lllllfltlfll : w f1iR Illtlllll/ Yllllltlilt! :  

IIIi N•• TI u nrqu rl l taw

11111l==' w............
i       ,_-•- iy, .;`=.y:

111 il=^--:. unn::..'•`'=-
tuunfs ril . C

i i tuiiii i '''
n, ua. a.:

i:
i I • ji. i ii 

i[. I It -••••i
IU[ 11N1 M i,.,.! f 11._::,._       . :.;.;

l 1 n t,'r 1:-
ni.._.n•:

C :s• i u t--  ..

I. :'::••: i 1i:: •
s        i 

II n'llil,,
li 1 IIfi 

1: i.r.,...,,-   .
S f#tnt 

t J Jr:( 1 i l;
1Af Rwi '-^    i r r r nw,.....   rru .,,,,_ tr s...       ll u:J'-  .5tii 

l! q rf lY1 11! s rr r

r r    ,
i:` x.,;, 1! lIIF.

s

i.ii si ,_ ==
ie. r1' IS YIi1 R uq 11 „
a,;,9.s..,"", tirk i i klr11 11! ~   '   i

cA.      .   .   u 1{ I

w," M Y1TN i YKe7r   :    _ z•

r  1l._" i+
R.

ilAllllf11111111. a w. Ciay

w /    
11 l l11iY111111 l1[ '_   p

I i'1 1l1• IIIIIIf1 IlI11, . ;,

y af Yke n 
w i{ II,^.:' t A

11111lt1l11111i ', 1: 1i j Ii i: 1 ltN L_: - r\ t

R; i n`' i: i:l: I
ii:. s_=

a' 
r.iw 11 t « 

yfi lllll/t1+;' w " 11 A
r.,. IIIl1ll llti,': w.••". A

IIIIi1R11 :, r.. 111 7'-. ...

IIIIIl1Y11' i11111 sil s=
t lllHlf M 1111ils ii1i1 t is

II n    :
i. u.. r rR is
i[ ii r ai s r ia 

fi11Yi1 \ fer        _    = E r
lAll R 1 i+    

fl "  l;.f fL    
Itll 

w' 

wMiri i*    
11 w... 1   f:l.!    
Ill f.'         .  '  l   ' 1. il :

I tu n.: f f  r f
w nnn-  uu n

nr ntn. er     
ir•+ ns s n 1 IilI11'  • n. l;, ur

R IiI MIHI it   r
i . li 1 1 1 I 11{`   '

i CCI') 
w

l.. ii     dF.A`. Q l ' \ 1 U1      -
i' r:-  i ln CC:: Q.:" s ti \ i INi.laR•'•. 3

4.,.n1i1. ' :   ' _.       C( 1 vA1        -

a

fltllll lw`  11111• w      R[ r III f111. n   r    :!
I illl"     \ w Mi•w sil• .  IIY a t{l

K r.!! IIl1• w' w ' EIIIIIIII i 1 111111-     
fti[ i M rw ' q1 l1 1 I11

r s l li    !fli    '"/'
F y' rrrino-     

i1  + a 1 Ii 1 ItI[ ll•.
r u 1: Yr, r.   auls 1111[ I,,'sI l i...;.-_ , miii u !:.. r.F::li ii

i

i•

slfi'

1:i
i    

584



i a yt T
s t+ a

F7 7+.' N i'  

1 6 S:SDA L . B t?5G RE 1a D 4;. CHT 1 fl I T N AI E Dt°['  

cn r xN1a.,.nu 7
8' ASB OF AL•SF9AMA

a r mx n arr ov urarov ws

m

CUF C8W2 L/ 06CAPL YAND QfRSC pNhi fUWI OLSf2C 1K:'+ 4AIY OOfl11 7Fk' dN

om      ya         er
t'' w., cuzv ituo w OAY W.

g.
rxca.  ...

A
Y

fGIL P pOC jG/ CT! CF

8tm OAY ATafL t10UW__Qr Q tldoGe A.ti. M
DaJ ffPKi ssf       71 W,ilttCP 3hN JO
67AR 4'A' 67iIHaW.      

A-.,.f 1J AP' ie^," 1D.`''
h

t
awi, n ar+

1+ t``" 
tr

c` a',' k b' m''

a
DOc  106Mi11949

N+U WswC.N
O r. r t

w w A 11mtf0 MrWi:.
ei

tr 6
o    

1 1 1 9

PlAta WE

i j r
P1Rfa 0E311611ARg

I
i.d

I N e    

lasy a¢ erNlk Ym

i

5- 5

4

i

i

S

1

585



i

r pp y a
SFJE£ T 7 OF 2

C!'!' 7. l  i+° i l

lUIO$ Sl3ALE L lI DSCJ#9 E  43+1D  IG fi 1  t!'A 11 i'' l Cl ICE Dl T:'

AM lE; T1 i  M 3.  7,  Y R1    JVIOSS i.f Ll1if IN  O JT

CITY aF LATF1EtOF

C011N Y F SAN JOAtiUIN

STA3E OP CALIFOR{#iA

nt s .' T,('*°
F a a,.a` wc a E arr a' unr aats.
j

Q'N OF I. tiTlIROP
s+w JD W N W uaiY, culFURn a

I

I llpiEBY LfRIIPY TlI.CT 7tiE 161iHB1 yM 91pri7NG iHE BWNOAfaES OF lHE lNN9UAON
OF TERF670RY it270 NOSS AIE UNDSCAPE YAQ77ENA.4CE IX5IPoCY. 07Y OF 4AlHR

OF iE pJY OF UiN, Of' AT A RE[ RJl/ R

Gw
u

1FOHE11180H

7HEaDAYL
D  ' sd.., 20Q.{ BY f15 RE56LU71QN NO..R4: a't$.Ll̀.
Tjd'=

O 71iflU > B 177Y CLEAK
G7Y tlF 1A7HHOP
SAN JOA& i CWfiiT. CAUiIXiNIA

i
FlL£ D 1M5 DAY OF yp..,,_200. AT ME NUUR 0-r a[  O'0.CQL. It..
Ri BOOK A7 PAGf     - aF* MAPS OF AS IENT Ol95RIGi5 W OFFlCE
OF THE N1Y R£CORDER OF THE COUN7Y OF SAN JDAWW, STA7E OF IA

Jdl'J1, A I X;Fi.. R 1.
M- 1' IWAP.LtA

C9UNi'!
COUNTY OF SA}7 JOAOIAN

5

NOiE: fpi A OEfNtID liE5CR7P71AN OF 711E liN6 NO OfF("eN51QV5 OF CtCH PMCE
XISHIN hiE ISiRICT RE7' ER TO SHE COlfN7Y p SfN, qApUIN A4 OA' 5 YAYS.

z-

DOC A 2fdQ7- 00B9T7
evovon+ e: xo r..: ie.m

79 lHHU 118 17D
A r n. r i ...a.

LE IQ a i"w"i..., i••
G4M L'./ Pivlml

Of     A Q T pSIInCI SUN ARY f1y

VW
a

ral

ortlm W.-
Gwa
N

lcl
rl

c
puu u s I I E NI @I911 I 1 iUll i tlu f

oe
4''

n zs. rr t ua

ax atc ac xa

aoo zao a ana n"'..   ..
a

sca: r aoo•

1 l       
on s im

586



i

t"„' V'      

I .

r

i  -

I

i %I=   G  •' L    

i

rri ir ii i iriiiiPi>>ii.i.i/
i i- y    '

r •j   r ri, i    
i

j i

I
I1
iI

IIi

Iii

i
I

i`.     a  .       r   i/'/
r a',i'',,''' i';.,r'-'r r̀.'r.,.'...  i    

i r i  .i.ci..   r
i.r y./I' r•;f.!'.r        1l r r, ••.  ,-.11 s J'./

J'f.i.'i r    
r-:.r. r.r,--:-.o-    C  ,".:'.

i i'/ i., 1    ,
i. i' . 00.f.s", f'.i' .•:' ''"    

p.-. r rr    
i'iiiiiir.r,'r.:s'. i-'rvrr.''r-'    

f11 1l: l i,.;,`    
II jI E;=

iy::: rr•

1' 1 ;::.   
3c  :?

t Yki1 ai  _  ._
r l IdUl.  ,

i

s
I"1% i,
L. a

587



i

4•       s

FREWERT RQAD   a
t    ;:       

q f yQ-

j,    ,'      V
i

ja i

n`
a    / j t.

s t i     i l j 1  

F I ,    rl       I  
l i!

r,•   ,  I ;    J; a:

KLO    ROAD:     ,
l       

i
i j i      ;    / i t:

l?    +'     r i
il    ;     C1
i    ,!      d:

a!

I I     
I I

i l   zf '       

f    -   vi:

i i I f

j `.'      y
j

i
tr f      

Y i
j•`     j!       i   ±

T     
l

r 1; r i
li

fZ!    
t      

i     ! I
1

jr
f

f   

j,:      _    
DE UMA ROAD,.J'    ;`    

1 J, J.      
I,' 

t+•  

I•       J

1
i

ll`    .'    ;  ;    i i       F"°r%ilK,,,f'.,1i M L'it'
y.;=,-- ;'.;

c`.;   t   .

i.  1` . `..`,,!_ :
i  ,;'. ' ` T'jy i i

k  `)

g i   't--.       Si      ......

ff'      '   '  ':'--"°---   .`
Y-',—';     

i      '  !:   r+• axwtl+ Cpp--• .   .
l;'     

Ij'      '     :,      .      
i i ll  r?,    ,.

Y: 
r.':: x.:

r(     ;      i
T7 

a      ,      i     !    3

C ty of Lathrop
Stonebridg  Urainage & Lighting District

Oat e F bruay 1999

588



n nr    iu u u[uf+'
unr

in  mnt;=
u mtn=-

iftt u[ tu u.., n 5
1I E( lilllf    \ 11filfl1fl11 C:

aavaiva* r   *  i.

r/I.;y,;`,.' ri'. r.u',' J;  '  '
F   j'yi4i 1  YfV N I...Qi,f.' i,„,._rr; t's.,-•. r_.

f / y
N t'.ra,+... 1'•..,r.i.•^•.i:,r

vf7/ Jl/ i/if/'j. ifr}j, l% fYtiF.
ii iI///'

ji./.'
I{I V': L'

Il. F+
O r:

If/.`-,,7L/!.-   •
yS{, 1 . t,f i:;

f a. li.A1l i j4
rl`fl. fa/  % r,i-    

rr.r../!!•'.

il,  r     . lr. .' r i!lf' J.71i• r j:.v ilJ'-i////./II,F-'//'.', r f 7iC i:.'..i4.I.r'%/! i////.%/// 1   ,,. s^ N- ;!:.:
tl'. f'./!/f//.%%1'/ frt///:. i•'r.;..ir.K'. r.s_:,.• 1:

r, f-  rt< y,.  Ra* IitI14! f Cl: n.  '  '
r'

I,I//1j1.l,f/ 1r/ u I,'J,ry: Ai r; s.  

1 I v Sr rc. r.•( li1.7/( i s J• .
rs` iesi%J:i%r,ii.%I..:, rJ•r_r4. r r! J:  

r//// r IYI'I.i!// t/'      r r 1 j JI:r.,       ..    rlfs:: r-•;%/..f•.
LfL.I.r I%I/!r'irs-   f•       • r .;,:

a/ y rw•/ r'I II lJ%l/
j/. !' I//':%///.'l'/l/.-!'

y..•...... r r aw h:
j rJ.//If:'!/I/.'!.I'/i':^.'Z.ri!r,r`'nii.f. k,+,

j ` I r//I'//%///.     'i
0 

rt<<l: JR 7iR' t r"
ff, l J/,lj fJl/ r//•l!' I~%1.1.f p///

Y i/ t;,

j,r;, Hf:. t tr i% rr...::, f/ffj   !1 r.l, i/  1   r• //      = i`.,J i.l./.i•r.f.: ll l.i'.!/./// J; rr//'/ y,
tf ii ll///'//'/,I..I".Y'/ l fv,cri,ii i,/.////

t:..I'ryr l, Ji!'F,? bf's' s!% iri rr:rr rjif/.
1'..   ---!  r.  v.;;

I''rl...
J/ l'///:;s :: rt+.t. .tJiF.%/y i.iì if`'-'!..     —

rs'
yj:t .,. r.l    rlvarl,ic       —r:%
r/,.rs: i /

wT,//-.
n'.'..e. 1.., ,,

r'" .,.:
r: w' *' 7ESf.i r SFrRrr:.  ,.t%i is.f     E' rvi

i::uyr'•'.:%%r' f'% i1,%r/[SI.. I. r f r:       ..
RI../!clrll'I.!'L47J.%%G!/ 7G/ I   •"    t

r.:      s I     ..      j%1." Icfiir 1R.
r/ i 1. f'1. i:1a6flirf"F.
r} r  Ir.+('r/' r  "    
I, / j1 yi. f4. f AR 1^ i s A

N I/        4/_

Yflik i ni1fi li lil,i J/+, „+ 
j+Y"J.E: rJF iF1.i:!%I: E%/-. rar..,. w .. i

s'• 1/l1.I c::.:..

5.' r.r%isiisia'•:ii:n i.F1  /
r rc..,<.._:..::..•.._.:..: rr :, r

r    i,lr!!/'.
ii.;  .,-.,   

1'h 7.1'1! r,1's. Ei: r Lfi 4ljY/f!!:va ry' II•   w r.       vr.t.r.r.,      
f

Y L̀S! a ri. Y!'
ri+' i%i!i:.:,..:: r-   

I,T  •,
r/!'"•   .       a1 i =

r,;
fti.'a:l! i!!. r r-      
i i V       

It/K(;. f r r

j r'v... nry,ri iw4i r p:-  
j; I I••r

rr s.r.
r rn. ralr..r•.

yi-7iEl l'i2..  . r.i:r.1'I.,fF
jii%[rli:1,I. R

ri:: r r.: I r.t1•<     
f-`'Ir .

l J. G''/ 5. 1icr i:r.     ii.:.,J;.:.     
rs.ri.r. J% r F.,., L•      

sei. r,i.ti. i%5[ 5.:,. r-/.
r:.:-r:ir i.iii s.r.. r..J i.:.._,:.....i',' 1 ; 'i.,s.?. f i ir,rr.!"j;,;      i.. r. rirr fv+f•    h `+     . f '    i   /    a

a f.      I r<:     I

R }

af7i J'I./ft%r i r:,   I    
w

ui/.f l%i%   It
l'•. tr{:i  {.ii.ri.I f•

1/_;{5/ ii      rA'r11'w r   

7
i.o-r'•` r-.

I.{
r xr./I/    l ^ i i

y.
Ea,. f  .  

ilr;«;%%'...   

J 4),I 7v'nv.
w.    

L//.11/. r'%r''1SY
r,P•..<;.

dP • n 1
t/

i/'vr.':
7,J- iP.  '  '     rl l1 i

iiil,I i!::r;• r.rii%f.r.tr:.--cc-:.._...:.••    •
J.r.  r.Yli/%/ 7J A;rJ         •       .     ..._.::  -.•.

r i  .f:- i i,.
i..cl/ i   /' r lY i: i.-Yi:r' Fr;

r' iJ jS 17!'/ 5GF7i 75/,li/./%/%%/ lu+.,'.wfi.J'!,. lJ2

rr
T f`::

r:../   r }
Ja n!aTY SI'15Cii' IiL1//      IS  `,% Yi I 7" f'::

r r`;'' ' nrf."      . II       ' l.  ../ lf'Ii. fld f f•:.
r:,l i Es a. r.a'r'iif.    r, ./ l"t/.' r-f!% iF'  G:

YL y.y     :   
r•    r . 4.e• L IY rI     r i1..,  :. II:rL c:',t• ifi.,.../` Ji;':,. r l•rrf'f- C. t

ilrTr.1.       ,_ r'       /.

I/..      
I1.r./' 1.1 R"i'i'u..  r` f:.   • a i ii •.     

r
II%91.'IG'    _„ i

f.7a l.r,c F •:; 1 ,.     r. r rr fO'ir ji c:•-  . lisr.     J..,t. < r,a r:.P.,1: G:„ b e. r.  r•i.  lit''.r" r Ii,   . r. r- r•:-    .   ' i r    {at..: t,?si. ris,cr y.r.e.' l`      
r      rr`  r,  i• i;•=t'•r,....rYr-

i ic.+r/,•i nrt..
r'1,  

F r... r.yar.;::,.; JY. I:Ir .r..r t.-.+ i 
l.f%JIi  l I r.i/

ilal/%//
I'.      . i

s:••

4w irwii   r.r . s. Tl'.?. 1rs

s   Z.'!.'i A;r.t.t.. I1 /. 7 Fjj' J.fS" As;.:r_::. e:::.,- r:.:..::., ;

r I: I.r'. i7.[/,"ti5d/  '    
t.rr.        .;- J//,,.

I 11,;/'......
fi,j'., r fI' r'', I  , i'.v.r i•..../. f. a./ s! fi l. i i.ariorir;    

F..._....::...;.....,. ..       v>•::rc

r

i

589



L F   r rr`  ._._..{}i
LOUISE • AVENUE

f

ti'• tf'l'••:}.l     •,{:h.V
Y

lV: 
1.1.'t:i

7711.:: i{:.:.   
74}„ 1Vh}tiiMlY

S    i.:  

j'.fl.l'.':lh"J.     I.7 7.
77: hj•    '.: Y •: Vr.:Y.'.. 7:! h:!' p'h

ti.   C.l•:

S} t:^.'/.':f11 N.{
lJ.Lt    :{' 1j S.  1      

1

q

Q

i

s t:

tirn::gj}.. rav7:'  '!{ h 7{•     7!( L 7 Y
t':   " 5...     Stifr'      t\ h l.:       :' 1.Y ti:.:•.:ti  ' lJ.. 1.   :. 1.. J777:: J'lV Il..     tiV:h':::{, J1/. LT h75:: 4.:^::.: Y::': ti: l::'::'.::•:: 1': 7.V   • 1           .. f ' S.: 7!' ti.{.       . l.5]•\ y11^ R....S 1^ •{ lN.1V!' h! lY1•tYN1.  7 f. 5.'   ..  . ..  ` 1::.5Yi:: 7::: R»l.A•:1i'iil::IS.':":

JrtN; }'       . ' 7. J.}'!.':.•. 1 Y. W: lV.: 7^:::.'.''} S:'":::.'^ l.'.:::..
u.v;. ' v.ti{H:Y::.'. NA I}}Y:. : tiirsti:{:. :: 7: y iti:;::.{.;:.v.• r•::. ... ..... . ....  ...... ..

i r: r: y;rii: x.}.•. ir•.u•..:ii:' r:ititi       ::, r,• R'r\:., 1:: iii::.ra.;•:s:::;. i:;•ii}i;::: i+{;:;.;•.;•,.i

ir.ti.      ii:::v:;•?{:$r:::}. a::.;:•.: ii ti: i': Yti:^: ltS•:i:'ri'ti::•:Yri'•'t::
ti::     y.:;: ti};; iY.'.     i1l'      l•.    . 5': i.1'h'i:ii::.i:::•i:..l1Y:.:t:«:S.'.::. 1.: lL'.•::'. ti:•::::::.:.'.'::.

a'       J.: }'{•   li:     yy      ,
1"  L•t•.  Y..

h.    li   ' Y.'.. J:.Y J.\:L SlVf htii:ihY
1.1. h'hY.':    ': 5:

lh'!       1'..:: iti:     5::::':::'.:::::::':.'.:::::::':':':::::'::'::::.'.'.::'r i.;::  si
i:kii

sx....••      riii'•ie:a{ti:i'c;» i:?: ti:::• tf':'::::tF•:::. e.::. v^.tv
l:: • l.:' lt:i'L1'l.'.Y^.5:. 1{..:: t:{'.'.i\h l.'..............:..:':::::::::L'::'!::•.       Y:

P:...  ....    ...........     

tir':     .: v::  r.i:::i i::..................................:...:..
tr:i ti: 5      i:w.t t:w.•r::r:.::.:::.::::::::•:.•::::•:::: r.:x:::•::::::

ti'{ i: 77. ."
17yti1..

h-.    '..\  {.^. l'.'V'.il.•       : CL•  L'.' 7'::::.....'• ti:f::::: l.'.L.':
stiti'r.ti

r r.i itii: tir:  : r'til.'t"      :{' 7.:'     t": J?     .: ti::YlJi::•i:.C: h•. t̂:•:.::::....b.:b}.': t\•'•'S
4ti.'.''h': 1:11::    7.L'S. J.t.'.5.. 7.    . J.:'. h:::\::...

1.L_:7: 7: 5•::::.'..'J:.: l'..:...
u................. ......::.  

11.4. vN.:. Y::       4.1".Y:': St:}:::...::.'::':•:
i:7.'.:J.l      Q'rrii Yir.: i{r;:ir.bi:::k;...,di'it:':ti:Y:a:: s: i::: ti{:s::•}i:}:i:i}i:::i"?.}{:;'r,:'' si:; ri:::: i ii..•. 0a;"::    x;:,     :•; r::c,.. r; r r•:i..       ti, ..,:  :';.:.;:       i;::;::::;::-:::::::::..'m::      r .. c.:•.,:.ti., x:::•.::::::::::::::::::::::::::•:::::::::::::::::

Fr.: tifi    : ri. SSV.tY.::'n':1:: 55' 17.5: lCLRS:::: t.::SSSR:: 7:::::••ti.:   :{ 7,'.l.{::h'!.{' Y: R.:.::' 1:.:.:::.:::: 71::•r' r: snw: v:.•r.: x.:a. a..........................,.....,..,...sreii:};:::} ti::;:{:; vS•Fr'ri.55.:: N:f.  L'.'   Yfti:{i'r'?:'r':'     i:i  :ti•ii:s: S•'rr.rA. l.'X:.
1..'•:.::.:."'::•'•"•:....     i7'.:::'.'. w':::::::':::'.:••'.7..! .  .

AC..........L: S:: f!«::'
L'75.Y:: 7. V.'.'::: 71.. 7V.:'l S: 7•7Rd t.       z'.'.^.:h^{4'.77: f177... fN.'.'!^.:' i.i\. rJ.. i.   t

l'.'R.'7:Y:. R: Nhi1:: h.: M1: i7.•.'..:: 5:' ii.l::::y:li:7: 7::.'.:.::::•    i:Yiu. A':t.:
1: 7. 5'.. ffti'ill::   . Sl     ..: 11:7 ..

7..      
l.ti.' l•.'. .:4•t,. ti',:" JL.'

L: ll':7.4t5•.'.•.•Ytl:..{:{ 7}.55:: ! h11!Y5:: t:{:••f.'.:•V:•lt:rh' J:: A S: 6•l.LSSt{ Sh'.LYA .J'    
1•..

l..L•7.••••  YJlA F•{••   : t4h ht
l::::::.T'• l75'J.Y::'. 5:'. Jt:•).:5..   1..  l.'. ::1'.' 5:ti:ti{i i'{ tii:'i:.tiii: r..:::• c r:::'t:i::,.    . vi::  :•itti î't:i' r..i   •a

r:5i'rii:•'r:^:.:..  $; titit: i tis}:•'sius'r:.:::::•.• r: x::::::••.   . x•.:•',i:}:y: iR::;:. s: x:.;wrrs•r::::: r.... f:'r i::: {
r.s:ariJ:t: 15:\ fihSiYl    . 7.1..{::   h.  ti1L:: Y.YSMM1.     til.      

5:: : Vh'  1: 5 h•:i.l!'Y.\i:' h.. tit'4\ h lY:.^::h::••
Y.Y'.•       ti.L..  h'i. 11: 1 h••

iJ.1:'•::::.'.'."::.:':.
i JiiJ: i i{.':.:..    

i.:Ct:.'.t{Y:::: it. 5 ah..   S::      . SL'..    : V.  : V:'   :' SV      •,•• l.:' l.i:;.
J

Ati:i.l l.: t•     YS:: P'i'i.ti` :: kG i,t.. i:ti: y:;;r::'f' 4R{ 1."5L7 L•1:.•.      .. t..      ti•.:....^• fJll...•.^ f: Y:.   hlN:::.' Ji. r. 3''..: p'
y S:.::'::'.•.".':':::':•'•• 5•::, C.": hY'.'.: V:....' 7: f. h..'' t,..{A'}y}:,•d4:}: i$"•.x•.•'r't,:i: y:::::.:;::'::.' i'i::r..:l̂:}.::8:::::;:: i:i::i  

G

t::: r{;; v::: r:::,:::.,::. v:s,.::...:.,:....:.,r.•is::•:::•:::c;:;::. ti: cti:: ::: vi' Y;;` ti:;?}' p0
tiii.;':{ ii::c}:: ii: ii:'•:; ti; i^is' r:ii?:}{iit::?:iti^'r:•:ii::}•;;y} q..}::}: v::" Qp

ii:.}}.:{::v:  i:   •.. ;       .  
Ph• :: s::

J:::'N' Y:;:: '::::  . i:iJ:    ':: i::} i:ti;:      
V-

vrti  '{ itii y' ti i i   ' r X i{i:u•:ti': v:'r'r:• i}:r:}:ii'r ...` ii;ij:•; {: vi; ?{' r: ti; iti..? i{;tiyi.:ti3:•'4i:G5;:;};:: r:iv;.;,i:?; :?t{.:.;i'::. : •:::...    

c; r;,:::;::;.J;.  ..:. t:      Co
p

pC 1 o

S'•t': 5{'. : Y5V1' C: P7•'•! V

5,
Yf! hVS:: 1.•: 7"       C

pRUGA ROAp

N 7 TO SCALE

ifi      °  L h rop
4   S rrn Dr rr  Z n    A

oat:  Fcb. uc y ,       

590



ITEM 4. 23

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S

REPORT AND DECLARING INTENTION TO LEVY

ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19
FOR LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE

DISTRICT NO. 93- 1 ( WOODFIELD PARK)

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving the Preliminary
Engineer' s Report for Landscape and Lighting
Maintenance District No. 93- 1 ( Woodfield Park) and

Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for
Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

SUMMARY:

Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No.  93- 1  (" Woodfield Park"  or the

District") was created to pay for the costs of ongoing maintenance and operations
of specific park improvements within Tract 2051.   This report has been separated

from the report for the other maintenance districts due to the size of the district and

because two City Council members currently reside within the district.    ( Legal

guidelines generally prohibit legislative body members from voting on matters
involving districts where they reside if the district( s) in question comprise less than

10% of the agency' s total residential parcels as defined by the County Assessor.)

j FY 17/ 18          FY 18/ 19
j`

District i Actual Rate    Pro osed Rate ? % Chan e Notes

Woodfield Park       '  123. 90 ; 123. 90 !   0. 00%   ( Rate unchanged since FY 1998/ 99

The revenues for the District do not meet expenditures, and while City Staff has cut
costs in an effort to minimize the shortfall,  a General Fund subsidy of $ 11, 305,

coupled with the use of District's reserves will be required to maintain current service
levels ( the estimated beginning Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 District reserves total $ 14, 856).

In order to prevent the annual need of General Fund subsidies and the use of District' s

reserves, a Proposition 218 balloting of the district' s property owners would have to
be successfully completed, which would amend the assessment rate and provide for
an annual escalation factor.  This is not being proposed at this time.

Tonight, City Council is being asked to approve the preliminary Engineer' s Report and
to declare its intention to levy annual assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19.   After

tonight' s actions, notices will be published and mailed to the afFected property owners
regarding the public hearing.  The public hearing will be scheduled for June 11, 2018
at 7: 00 p. m.

591



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY t OUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR WOODFIELD PARK

BACKGROUND:

Maintenance Districts are created to fund the costs of ongoing maintenance and
operations of improvements which may include landscaping,  park sites,  street

lighting, and storm drainage that provide special benefit to properties in given areas
of the City.   Special benefit is defined as that benefit, over and above the general

benefit provided by the improvements,  which is conferred upon parcels within a

district, as identified and measured by the formation assessment engineer.

Within the City of Lathrop, there are eight maintenance assessment districts:  five

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance Districts ( LLMD), including Woodfield Park and
three Benefit Assessment Districts ( BAD); each is levied assessments according to
the annual specific c'ost estimate associated with each individual district.    Each

property owner is ass ssed annually for a portion of the maintenance costs in their
district(s). The assessments are paid by the property owner via each parcel' s secured
property tax bill.

On an annual basis, City StafF evaluates the anticipated costs for maintenance for the
upcoming year.  This analysis takes into consideration any increases in costs as well
as cost savings realized.   Some of the costs that are quantified include:   routine

maintenance and mowing contracts; equipment repair; weed abatement; shrub and

tree pruning;   radios and computers;   irrigation parts and controllers;   water;

electricity; fertilizer and other chemicals; vehicles and vehicle maintenance; street

lighting repairs; storm drain system maintenance; and other administrative costs to

operate Woodfield Park.

An annual budget is then developed using these cost estimates.  The total costs are

divided among the parcels in the district based on the proportionate share of benefit
received from the improvements.  The proposed assessments are then reviewed and

approved each year by the City Council during a public hearing process.

By law,  assessments can only be increased by an amount property owners have
approved in each district.    Any proposed increase which exceeds the amount
approved by the property owners requires the approval of the property owners via a
Proposition 218 ballot process.     Each of the City' s districts has a maximum
assessment amount. The City Council may authorize any level of assessment up to
this maximum.     For this reason,  the City could decide to levy the maximum
assessment, however if it is determined that the maximum is not needed the City
can lower the actual annual assessment without jeopardizing the ongoing maximum
assessment.

The preliminary Engineer' s Report for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District
No. 93- 1 (" Woodfielc Park" or the " District") is available in the City Clerk' s office and
the Public Works Department for review and copies will be available at the City
Council meeting by request.

The following summarizes the background information for Woodfield Park:

I

592



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMEIVTS FOR WOODFIELD PARK

The District was created to pay for the maintenance of Woodfield Park. This includes
costs for personnel to maintain buildings and equipment and the cost for contracted
park maintenance.

Expenditures exceed revenues for this district because the District was created

without an annual escalation factor and, as a result has a maximum assessment rate

that does not escalate to mirror increases in district expenses.  As mentioned above,

in order to change this, a Proposition 218 balloting of the District' s property owners
would have to be successfully completed.  This is not being proposed at this time.

Woodfield Park will receive  $ 54, 764 in revenue from assessments.    The total

expenditures for this District are $ 80, 925, which creates a shortfall of $26, 161.  The

District is anticipated to begin Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 with a reserve fund balance of
14, 856, which will be used to offset the shortfall.   However, in order to keep the

same service levels in the District, a General Fund subsidy in the amount of $11, 305

would be needed to fund the remaining shortfall.

Actual Proposed i
FY 2017/ 18 Annual i FY 2018/ 19 Annual i

District Assessment Rate I Assessment Rate f Difference

LLMD No. 93- 1( Woodfield Park)  123.90 j 123.90 i 0.00

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has prepared the budget for the service,  operation and maintenance of

Woodfield Park in order to establish the annual assessments.  The District provides

necessary services to property owners within the District boundary.

Upon adoption of the attached Resolution, the Preliminary Engineer' s Report will be
approved and the Council will declare its intention to levy annual assessments for
Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 and a public hearing will be scheduled for June 11, 2018 at 7: 00
p. m., to permit public testimony.   Written protests will be accepted from property
owners until the close of the public hearing.  At the close. of the public hearing, the
City Council may approve the Engineer' s Report as submitted or amend it and order
the levy and collection of the assessments.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

Promoting Community Values by maintaining Parks,  Recreation,  and Community
Services to its required service levels.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Woodfield Park Landscaping and Lighting District has expenditures which exceed
revenues.  In order to maintain the current service levels in the District, the utilization

593



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 ASSESSMENTS FOR WOODFIELD PARK

of $ 14, 856 of the District's fund balance reserves;  a General Fund subsidy in the
amount of $11, 305 would be required to cover the remaining shortfall.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer' s Report for Landscape
and Lighting Maintenance District No. 93- 1 ( Woodfield Park) and Declaring
its Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

B.       Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No.  93- 1  ( Woodfield Park)

District Diagram

Note - Preliminary Engineer' s Report is available for review in the City
Clerk' s Office.

594



CITI( NtAIVAGER' S REPORT PA( E 5

Md41f 14, 2018 CITY COl9NCIL REGULAR MEETEIm1G
FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19 AS ESSMEMTS FOIa VO/ OODFIELD PAI K

APPROVALS:

1 g'

Sandra Frias Date

Budget Manager

G(. d     s' 1-. ' i -7 Y

Vanessa Portilio Date

Deput Finance Director

r   J
Cari James Date

Director of i ance

S -`
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

5'°'°

Step n Salvatore Date

City Manager

595



i
ATTACHMENTA I

I

RESOWTION NO. 18-    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEER' S REPORT FOR LANDSCAPE AND

LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 93- 1 ( WOODFIELD PARK) AND

DECLARING INTENTION TO LEVY ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR

2018/ 19

WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolutions formed the City of
Lathrop Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No.  93- 1  ( Woodfield Park)

hereafter referred to as the` District"), and initiated proceedings for Fiscal Year 2017/ 18,

pursuant to the provisions of the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, Part Z, Division 15
of the California Streets and Highways Code( commencing with Section 22500) ( hereafter

referred to as the "Act") that provides for the levy and collection of assessments by the
County of San Joaquin for the City of Lathrop to pay the maintenance and services of all
improvements and facilities related thereto; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained NBS for the purpose of assisting with the
Annual Levy of the District, and to prepare and file a report with the City Clerk in
accordance with the Act; and,

WHEREAS,  the City Council has previously called for the preparation of an
Engineer' s Report and Annual Levy Report (collectively referred to herein as the" Report")
for the district known as Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No.  93- 1

Woodfield Park); and

WHEREAS, the ReporE has now been presented to the City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the Report includes the District' s budget and assessments and

contains the data necessary to determine the special benefit conferred upon each
property included in the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report as
presented on March 20, 2017, and is preliminarily satisfied with Landscape and Lighting
Maintenance District No. 93- 1 ( Woodfield Park), and all of the budget items and charges,
and is satisfied that the levy amounts, on a preliminary basis, have been spread in
accordance with the special benefits received from the improvements,  operation,

maintenance and services performed in and provided by the District;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following actions shall be
taken:

Section 1 Intention: The City Council hereby declares that it is its intention to seek the
Annual Levy of the District pursuant to the Act, over and including the land within the
District boundary, and to levy and collect assessments on all such land to pay the annual
costs of the improvements.

596



Section 2 Descri tion of Improvements and any substantial changes proposed: The

improvements within the District may include, but are not limited to: planting materials,
irrigation systems, drainage systems, natural drainage areas, fencing, restroom facilities,
playground equipment,  picnic facilities,  landscape and associated appurtenances.

Services provided include all necessary service,   operations,   administration and

maintenance required to keep the improvements in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory
condition.  The Report, attached hereto as Exhibit A" and incorporated herein by this
reference is hereby approved on a preliminary basis and ordered to be filed with this
Resolution in the Office of the City Clerk as a permanent record.   Such Report shall

remain open to public inspection.  The Report provides a full and complete description of

all improvements and any or all substantial changes to the District or improvements
within the District.

Section 3 Boundaries and Designation: The boundaries of the District are described as

the boundaries previously defined in the formation documents of the original District,
within the boundaries of the City of Lathrop, within the County of San Joaquin, State of
California.  Also described as:

Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 93- 1 ( Woodfield Park)

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:   For Fiscal Year 2018/ 19, the proposed

assessments are outlined in the Report which details any changes or increases in the
annual assessment.

Section 5 Public Hearina( s): The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a
Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the District in accordance
with Chapter 3, Section 226Z6 of the Act and Articles XIII ( C)  and XIII  (D) of the

California Constitution.
a

Section 6 Notice: The Gity shall give notice of the time and place of the Public Hearing
to all property owners within the District by causing the publishing of this Resolution
once in a newspaper of local circulation for two consecutive weeks not less than ten

10) days before the date of the public hearing, and by posting a copy of this resolution
on the official bulletin board customarily used by the City Council for the posting of
notices.

Section 7 Notice of Public Hearina:  Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on
these matters will be held by the City Council on Monday, June 11, 2018, at 7: 00 p. m.
or as soon thereafter as feasible in the City Council Chambers, located at 390 Towne
Centre Dr., Lathrop, California.

Section 8 Compliance with Article XIII LC) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution:

The City Council hereby finds that the proposed assessments are exempt from the
requirements for Article XIII (C) and XIII ( D) of the California Constitution in that the

amount of the assessment is unchanged and the assessment is imposed exclusively to
finance the maintenance and operation expenses for park maintenance.

597



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of May 2018, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIIV:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

598



11 111UI1111 1  
C!i%//%/  /i./',,,/  ji`  :.,•`.,, 

1
r      /

r/`    ,:'/   ,.,

e;, 
f
fF;   ',:-  i      .,,r;` .,     C,,,/

r i  
r o.     .s . i  ,     .

ae
i   e o:.     

f    

r:•   r   -  
i,''   ,   or'  r'     ;r i ,s;:- .  ;•

f
r

rI i 1: Id//  • s

w
A

j
l

y;    
1

r
I      "   

e. r.S,,,; 

II
r,+     ,.      

r s,,       i
t
I

ry

i       ° 
I

i

i I

i   .

599



600



ITEM 5. 1

CITI( MAIVAGER' S REPORT

Ma4Y 14, 201, CITY COUIVCIL REGlJL14R I EETI IG

ITEM: PIJ LIC HEARIN a   ( PU LISWED fVO ICE)  TO

CONSIDER 201  CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES

11PDATIE

I ECOMNIENDATION: Council to Consider the Following:
1.       Hold a Public Hearing; anel
2.       A Resolutaon / dopting the City of l.athrop

201 Capital Facilities Fees Study U adate

SUMMAItIr:

Capital Facilities Fees ( CFF) are necessary to provide a source of revenue by which
new development within the City will contribute a fair and proportionate share of the
cost of providing infrastructure and community facilities.  As new development occurs

throughout the City, it is critical that fees in the CFF program be regularly updated
to ensure that CFF rates keep up with the rising costs of infrastructure, facilities, and
land.  The CFF program is being updated to adjust existing fees for inflationary
fluctuations, updated project costs, and establishing a new fee for the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan ( CLSP) area.

Staff requests that City Council hold a public hearing, consider all information and

public testimony and, if determined to be appropriate, adopt a resolution updating
the Capital Facilities Fees Program.

ACfCC FtO U N D:

The City of Lathrop has prepared numerous planning documents and is constructing
and/ or acquiring various infrastructures to accommodate the service needs of both
existing and anticipated residents and businesses.   A variety of financing vehicles
have been utilized to pay for needed infrastructure and community amenities.   One

of the main financing vehicles is CFFs.

The City of Lathrop originally established CFFs for transportation, culture and leisure,
and municipal service facilities in November 1990.   The fees were subsequently
updated and expanded to other types of services/ facilities on several occasions,

including the establishment of a regional transportation impact fee for the West
Lathrop Specific Plan area in 1997.

On September 2, 2003 the City Council adopted the 2003 Capital Facilities Program.
This fee program was established to include new development for the area west of

I- 5,   mainly Mossdale Village and River Islands.  This is to ensure that new

development is responsible for paying its fair and proportionate share of the cost of
providing the public facilities and infrastructure.

601



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

In November 2004, the City Council approved entitlements for the CLSP area.  On

August 16, 2005, the City Council adopted the 2005 Capital Facilities Fees Program.
Since 2005, the City has inflated these fees annually based on Engineering News
Record ( ENR) 20- City Construction Cost Index ( ENR 20- City CCI).

On August 3, 2015, the City Council approved entitlements for the South Lathrop
Specific Plan ( SLSP) area. In March 2018, the City Council added a chapter to the
Lathrop Municipal Code establishing CFFs for the SLSP area.

The City retained Goodwin Consulting Group ( Goodwin) to provide an update to the

CFFs adopted in 2005.  Goodwin prepared the 2018 Capital Facilities Fees Study
Update  (" Fee Study"),  included as Attachment  " B",  adjusting existing fees for
inflation, updating project costs and establishing a new fee for the CLSP area. The
State of California Mitigation Fee Act ( also known as " AB 1600," Government Code

sections 66000, et seq.), identifies the required findings which must be made by the
City in any action establishing, increasing, or imposing a development impact fee as
a condition of approval of a development project, as described in the Fee Study. Many
of the CFFs in the City' s fee program were already updated by staff for 2018 based
on ENR 20- City CCI. Also, the City is restricted by development agreements, with
certain developments, which limit the annual increase of their CFFs to only the rate
of inflation. As a result, only the following fees were updated in the Fee Study:

West/ Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF - for CLSP, Mossdale Village

not including the Mossdale Landing developments),  and River Islands

Stewart Tract)

Surface Water Supply CFF - for East Lathrop, SLSP, CLSP, and Mossdale Village
not including the Mossdale Landing developments)

Water System CFF - for East Lathrop ( including North Harlan and Crossroads)

Sewer/ Recycled Water System CFF - for CLSP only

WEST/ CENTRAL LATHROP REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION CFF

The West/ Central Lathrop Regional Transportation ( WCLRT) CFF was created in 2003
to supplement funding for transportation facilities needed for the West Lathrop
Specific Plan Area. The capital improvement plan for the WCLRT CFF includes 28

improvement projects.  In conjunction with updating this CFF,  City staff reviewed
current cost estimates of transportation facilities versus the cost estimates inflated
by ENR 20- City CCI since 2003. City staff found that all project costs were consistent
with current estimated costs to construct these facilities with the exception of the

Louise/ I- 5 interchange. The Louise/ I- 5 interchange project was estimated to cost

11, 564, 000 in 2005, and now the current estimated cost to construct this facility is
39, 200, 000. In order to be able to fund this facility in the future, the interchange

cost needs to be updated in the CFF program to $ 39. 2 million. As a result, this Fee

602



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

Study includes an increase to the rates for the WCLRT CFF for CLSP, Mossdale Village
and River Islands areas.

The table below shows the proposed WCLRT CFF for the four project areas.

West/ Central Lathrop Regional Transuortation CFFs

Proposed Current Proposed Current

Mossdale Mossdale Mossdale Mossdale Proposed Current Proposed Current

V' lage Village Landings Laudings Central Central River River

Land Use no DA)  ( no DA)  DiB'erence  ( with DA)
Z  (

with DA)
Z

Lathmp Lathrop Difference Islands Islands Difference

Residential- Per Unit

Smgle Famfly 3, 473    $ 2,928     $ 545      $ 2, 624 No Change :  $ 3,412   $ 3, 273     $ 139     $ 3,998   $ 3,807   $ 191

Muki-Fam y 2, 142    $ 1, 800     $ 342      $ 1, 613 No Change :  $ 2,098   $ 2, 010     $ 88     $ 2,454   $ 2,335   $ 119

Non-ResidenHal- Per 1, 000 SF

Service/ Office Commercial     $ 4, 983    $ 4,206     $ 777      $ 3, 769 No Change   $ 3, 176   $ 3, 046 5130     $ 3, 668   $ 3,492   $ 176

Reta 7Commercial 5, 501    $ 4,641     $ 861      $ 4, 159 No Change '  $ 4,348   $ 4, 169     $ 179     $ 6,644   $ 6,330   $ 314

1.   CFF applies to new development within Mossdale Village, excluding the Mossdale Landings. There is no
development agreement for this area.

2.   Mossdale Landings CFF is adjusted by the City for inflation only. It should be noted that the CFF for Mossdale
Village does not apply to Mossdale Landing developments since their development agreements limit CFF
increases to annual ENR 20- City CCI inflation adjustments.

SURFACE WATER SUPPLY FACILITIES

In 2003, the City issued  $ 32, 530, 000 in revenue bonds to fund a portion of the

construction cost for Phase 1 of the South County Surface Water Supply Project. Debt
service on these bonds is paid by existing ratepayers and by new growth areas that
receive a share of the water supply capacity.   Existing ratepayers pay their
proportionate share of the debt service through their monthly water bills.  River

Islands and Mossdale Village fund their respective shares of the bond debt service

through separate community facilities districts, and CLSP and other new growth areas
will fund their share of the debt service through CFF payments.

In 2013, the 2003 Bonds were refinanced with a lower interest through the 2013

Subordinate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. In June 2017, the 2013 Bonds were
again refinanced at an even lower interest rate through the 2017 Loan Agreement.

Because the Surface Water Supply CFF is based on the present value of debt service
payments, the Surface Water Supply CFF needed to be updated for existing infill
development in East Lathrop, new development in the CLSP area, and other future
development areas.  The table below summarizes the Surface Water Supply CFFs
based on water meter size.

603



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUWCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

Surface Water Supolv CFFs

Proposed Curcent Proposed Current Proposed Current

Central Lathrop Central Lathrop Future Dev' t Future Dev' t ExisHng InSll Existing InSll
Full-Cost Full-Cost Full-Cost Full-Cost Buy-In Buy-In

MeterSizc Fee  Fee
1 Difference Fee= Fee

2 Difference Fee; Fee
3 Difference

5/ 8" Meter      $ 5, 744 3, 692       $ 2, 052 x       $ 4, 242       $ 3, 639       $ 603 ;    $ 2,489 747      $ 1, 742

3/ 4" Meter      $ 8, 616 5, 538       $ 3, 078 .       $ 6, 363       $ 5,458       $ 905 ;    $ 3, 733 1, 122      $ 2, 611

1" Meter       $ 14,360 9, 230       $ 5, 130 `      $ 10, 605       $ 9, 097      $ 1, 508 ;    $ 6,222 1, 869      $ 4, 353

11/ 2" Meter   $ 28, 720 18,460      $ 10,260 $      $ 21, 210      $ 18, 195      $ 3, 015 '   $ 12, 444 3, 739      $ 8, 705

2" Meter       $ 45, 952 29, 536      $ 16,416 :      $ 33, 936      $ 29, 112      $ 4, 824;",   $ 19, 910 5, 981     $ 13, 929

3" Meter       $ 86, 160 55, 380      $ 30,780 .':'      $ 63, 630      $ 54, 585      $ 9,045 z   $ 37,332       $ 11, 214     $ 26, 118

4" Meter      $ 143, 600 92, 300      $ 51, 300      $ 106,050      $ 90,975     $ 15, 075 '   $ 62,220       $ 18, 692     $ 43, 528

6" Meter      $ 287, 200 184,600     $ 102,600       $ 212, 100     $ 181, 949     $ 30, 151 =,;  $ 124,440       $ 37, 382     $ 87, 058

8" Meter      $ 459, 520 295, 360     $ 164, 160 :°     $ 339,360     $ 291, 119     $ 48, 241  '  $ 199, 105       $ 59, 812    $ 139,293

10° Meter     $ 832, 880 535, 340     $ 297,540 ''     $ 615, 090     $ 527, 653     $ 87,437 :  $ 360, 877      $ 108,408    $ 252, 469

1.   Applies to new development in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan. Those paying this fee would NOT pay the
South County Surface Water Supply Project( SCSWSP) facilities charge in their monthly water bill.

2.   Applies to future development areas. Those paying this fee would NOT pay the SCSWSP facilities charge in
their monthly water bill.

3.   Applies to existing infill areas. New connections paying this fee would also pay the SCSWSP facilties charge
in their monthly water bill.

As shown in the table above rates have increased as follows:

CLSP area rates have increased by approximately 56% over current CFF rates

Mossdale Village area for future development increased by about 17%
Existing Infill area rates for East Lathrop have increased by 233%.

Much of the increase in these areas is due to the updated water consumption rate

estimate for the City,  which increased by about 33%  from 320 gpd/ EDU to 430

gpd/ EDU.

In 2007, the Reed Group updated the CLSP surface water CFF and estimated a CFF
of $ 4, 090 for fiscal year 2017- 18 ( compared to $ 5, 744 in this 2018).   Connection

fees in CLSP assume 100% use of surface water, rather than using the two- thirds
surface water and one- third ground water assumption in the rest of the City. This
was done to pay off the bonds sooner since the City was responsible for paying these
bonds if the developer stops paying. This CFF rate calculated in 2007 assumed water
consumption at 320 gpd or about 66% of the current estimated consumption rate of

430 gpd/ EDU.  The significant increase can be attributed to the increase in expected

water consumption ( 430 gpd vs. 320 gpd) and increases of the present value of debt

service payments required because today' s interest are so low.  Effectively,  more

money is needed today in order to make future debt service payments, since funds
in City' s bank accrues little interest.

604



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

MAY 14, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

Infill development in East Lathrop pays for surface water with a surcharge on their
monthly water bill. The infill CFF simply calculates the missed water bill surcharge
payments as a connection fee.  The CFF increased significantly by approximately
233% ($ 747 vs.  $ 2, 489 per EDU). The 2005 CFF calculation assumed 66% of the

current estimated surface water consumption rate of 290 gpd. Therefore, the large
increase was due to the increase in expected surface water consumption ( 290 gpd

vs. 216 gpd) and the continued increase in missed surcharge payments.

The infill water buy- in CFF calculation includes the cumulative past water bill
surcharge payments, so this fee will increase annually at a rate that is higher than
inflation. The annual ENR increases the City applied to this CFF did not keep up with
the cumulative increases from the surcharge payments and as a result, the 2018 CFF
update created this substantial fee difference ( 233%).

WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES

The Water System CFF includes four separate components. These include 1) an East

Lathrop Water System Buy- In CFF,  2)  a Well Improvement CFF for West/ Central

Lathrop to fund the costs of arsenic treatment for groundwater wells and for a portion
of the cost of a standby well,  3)  a Water Storage CFF for the Mossdale Landing
developments to construct a 1. 0 MG water storage reservoir,   and 4)   a

Reimbursement CFF for the Crossroads area.  The City does not currently have
updated costs for the West/ Central Lathrop Well Improvement CFF or the Mossdale
Landing Water Storage CFF, so these CFFs were updated recently by the City for
inflation only.  This Fee Study does update the East Lathrop Buy- In CFF and the
Crossroads Reimbursement CFF.

The table below shows the Water System CFF schedules for East Lathrop,  North

Harlan, Crossroads, West/ Central Lathrop, and Mossdale Landing.

Water Svstem CFFs

Propased Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current

East Ea4 North North Crosvoads Cro roads WestlCentral WesHCentral Mossdale Mossdale

Lathrop Lathrap HadanWlD HarlaoWlD WaterSystem WaterSystem Lathrop- Well' Lathrop- Well Landing Landing

Water System Water System Water Sy em Water System Reimbursement Reimbursement Improvement Improvement Water Storage Water Storag

BuyIn CFF Buy-In CFf Diff.    Buydn CFF BuyIn CFF Diff. CFF CFF Diff.       CFF       CFF CFF
2 GFF 2

518" Meter   $ 1, 231      $ 3,456    ($ 2,225) ;   $ 1, 157      $ 3,248    ($ 2,091) .;   $ 1, 392       $ 4, 256     ($ 2, 864) '    $ 756 NoChange      $ 895 NoChange

314" Meter   $ 1, 647      $ 5,185    ($ 3,338)     $ 1, 735      $ 4,872    ($ 3, 137)     $ 2,088       $ 6, 384     ($ 4,296) .   $ 1, 135 No Change  -;   $ 1, 343 No Change

1" Meter   $ 3, W8      $ 8, 640    ($ 5,562) `   $ 2,892      $ 8,120    ($ 5,228)     $ 3, 480       $ 10, 640    ($ 7, 162)     $ 1, 891 No Change  ;   $ 2, 238 No Change

112" Meter   $ 6, 155      $ 17,279   ($ 11, 124)'   $ 5,785      $ 16,239   ($ 10,454)     $ 6, 959       $ 21, 279    ($ 14,320)    $ 3, 782 No Change      $ 4,477 No Change

2" Meter   $ 9, 848      $ 27,647   ($ 17, 799)''   $ 9,256      $ 25, 983   ($ 16, 727) ,   $ 11, 134      $ 34, 046    ($ 22,912) `   $ 6, 051 No Change      $ 7, 162 No Change

3" Meter  $ 18,466     $ 51, 838   ($ 33, 372)„  $ 17,354     $ 48,718   ($ 31, 364)     $ 20,877      $ 63,836    ($ 42,959)    $ 11, 345 No Change     $ 13,430 No Change

4" Meter  $ 30,776     $ 86,397   ($ 55, 621) '  $ 28,924     $ 81, 196   ($ 52,272) '   $ 34,795      $ 106, 393    ($ 71, 598) `  $ 18,909 No Change     $ 22, 383 No Change

6" Meter  $ 61, 552     $ 172,793   ($ 111, 241)'  $ 57,847     $ 162, 392   ($ 104,545)`'   $ 69,591      $ 212,787   ($ 143, 196).  $ 37,817 No Change     $ 44,766 No Change

8" Meter  $ 98,483     $ 276,469   ($ 177, 986);  $ 92,555     $ 259, 827   ($ 167, 272)    $ 111, 345      $ 340, 459   ($ 229,114):   $ 60,5D7 No Change  .   $ 71, 625 No Change

10" Meter  $ 178,501     $ 501, 1W   ($ 322, 599)   $ 167,756    $ 470, 936   ($ 303, 180)'`   $ 201, 813      $ 617, 082   ($ 415,269);  $ 109, 670 NoChange     $ 129, 820 NoChange

1.  Water system CFF was adjusted by the ENR 20- City CCI in ] an- 2018 by staff.

605



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 6

MAY 14, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE      , 

2.   New development within Mossdale Landing developments would pay both the well improvement
and water storage CFFs.

The Water System CFFs, including the Buy- In fees for East Lathrop and North Harlan
and the Reimbursement CFF for Crossroads, each decreased by about two- thirds of
their current CFF rates.  The main reason for this is that the water systems distribute
the groundwater supply to the East Lathrop area.  Groundwater will make up

approximately one- third of the water supply to this area at buildout of the City and
the new established Surface Water Infill CFF will supply two- thirds.  Therefore one-

third of the present value of the existing facilities and debt. service for East Lathrop,
North Harlan, and Crossroads is incorporated in the CFF calculations, and as a result,

the CFF rates have decreased by approximately two- thirds. The net result is that the
total Surface Water and Groundwater connection fees for infill development have
reduced by 12%.

SEWER/ RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES

Saybrook CLSP, LLC ( Saybrook"), the developer of the CLSP area, has constructed

sewer and recycled water backbone facilities that will serve the CLSP area. Facilities

include a pump station, force mains, sewer pipelines, and recycled water pipelines.
The total cost of these facilities in 2018 dollars is $ 11. 6 million. In order for the City
to reimburse the developer for oversizing these facilities, a sewer/ recycled water CFF
specific to the CLSP development area must be created. This Fee Study establishes
the new Sewer/ Recycled Water CFF for the CLSP area.  Since Saybrook has

constructed the sewer and recycled water facilities,  CFF revenue will be used to

reimburse the developer. The table below summarizes the Sewer/ Recycled Water
CFFs.

Sewer/ Recvcled Water CFFs

Land LJse Fee

Residential

Suigle Faniily 1, 915 perUnit

Multi-Family 1, i29 periffi it

Non-Residenti l

Gon iercial 353 per 1_ 000 sf

Industrial 212 per 1. 000 sf

FEE SCHEDULE

The CFF fee schedule includes eight separate development areas with each having a
different fee schedule. In March 2018, the City adopted new CFFs for the SLSP area,
and they have been added to the CFF schedule. The City inflated all CFFs in January
2018 based on the ENR 20- City CCI of 10, 873 for December 2017.  Prior to this

606



CITY NIAIVAGER' S REPORT Page 7

M 11( 14, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGUL IR MEETINC;

201 C PIT/AL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

increase, the CFFs were based on the August 2016 ENR 20- City CCI value of 10, 385.
Based on the increased value of the ENR 20- City CCI since August 2016, the City
increased the fees in its CFF program by approximately 4. 7% in 2018. The City also
levies a 3. 0% administration fee to the cumulative total of all its CFFs to pay for the
administrative duties associated with the CFF program.

REA50N FOFi iZECOMMENDATIOIV:

The purpose of the CFF Program is to provide a source of revenue by which new
development within the City will contribute a fair and proportionate share of the cost
of providing infrastructure and community facilities. The CFF Program also limits the
impact that new development will have on existing residents and businesses with
respect to infrastructure, community facilities, and the provision of services.  It is

necessary to adjust these fees based on inflation and updated project costs in order
for the City to keep pace with the rising costs of construction and administration.

FISC L IMP CT:

The CFF update is funded by the administrative fee collected from developers for the
costs associated with annual program accounting, monitoring, and reporting as well
as periodic review and updates. The Administrative Fee is equal to 3% of the total

CFFs charged for each development project. There is no fiscal impact on the City
because the 3%  administration fee covers all City costs to administer the CFF
program.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Adopting the City of Lathrop 2018 Capital Facilities Fees Study
Update

B.  City of Lathrop 2018 Capital Facilities Fees Study Update prepared by Goodwin
Consulting Group dated May 3, 2018

607



CITY MAIV GER' S REPORT Page 8

MAY 14, 2018 CITY CAUNCIL REGULAFa MEETING

2018 CAPIT L FACILITIES FEES UPDATE

APPROV LS:

S- ' s- 1 

Jay    . Da ids Date

Principa Engineer

o /
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City 6ngineer

Cari James Date

Finance Dire to

5 1

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D• i
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

608



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ADOPTING THE CITY OF LATHROP 2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES

FEES STUDY UPDATE

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop originally established Capital Facilities Fees
CFFs)  for transportation,  culture and leisure,  and municipal services facilities in

November 1990; and

WHEREAS,  the CFFs are to provide a source of revenue by which new.
development within the City will contribute a fair and proportionate share of the
cost of providing infrastructure and community facilities; and

WHEREAS,  on September 2,  2003,  the City Council adopted the 2003
Capital Facilities Program; and

WHEREAS, on August 16, 2005, the City Council adopted the 2005 Capital
Facilities Fees Program which is currently implemented in the City of Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2018, the City Council adopted an ordinance to add
Chapter 3. 25:  South Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility Fees to the Municipal
Code; and

WHEREAS, as new development occurs throughout the City it is critical that
fees in the CFF program be regularly updated to ensure that CFF rates keep up with
the rising costs of infrastructure, facilities, and land; and

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a professional services agreement with
Goodwin Consulting Group  ( GCG)  to prepare an update to the fees in the CFF

Program; and

WHEREAS,  GCG prepared the 2018 Capital Facilities Fees Study Update
Fee Study") dated May 3, 2018, updating some fees in the existing CFF program

to adjust existing fees for inflationary fliactuations based on Engineering News
Record 20- Gity Construction Cost Index ( ENR 20- City CCI), updating other fees to
adjust for the change in interest rates that impact the present value calculation that

determines funds needed to make future debt services payments, project costs and

adding a new sewer/ recycled water fee for the Central Lathrop Specific Plan area;
and

WHEREAS, the State of California Mitigation Fee Act  ( also known as AB

1600," Government Code sections 66000, et seq.), identifies the required findings

which must be made by the City in any action establishing, increasing, or imposing
a development impact fee as a condition of approval of a development project, as
described in the Fee Study; and

609



WHEREAS,  the Fee Study is based upon the analysis,  input and active

participation of City staff, GCG, and various reports and studies as described in the
Fee Study; and

WHEREAS,  notice of public hearing of this Resolution was published as
required by the Mitigation Fee Act, California Government Code sections 66000 et
seq; and

WHEREAS,   there is no fiscal impact on the City because the 3%

administration fee covers all City costs to administer the CFF program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the Capital Facilities Fees,  dated May 3,  2018

attached as Attachment " B" to the City Council Staff Report of May 14, 2018 and

incorporated herein by this reference and Council hereby adds the 2018 Capital
Facilities Fees to the Capital Facility Fee Program based on findings required by the
State of California Mitigation Fee Act ( also known as " AB 1600," Government Code

sections 66000, et seq.).

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 14tn
day of May 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:     

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

r

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk       Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

610



0  !,

GOODIMIN COIVSULTIIVG GROUP

CITY OF LATHROP

2018 APITAL FACILITIES

FEES STUD' UPDATE

xy

a- a' ma      
b, y

N",  .   .`;r    r r
g

11 ` "
s'3 X

s p a i  
z

s               
it,y/,       ." v        ?,'

9       :
k 3 

y       

Y Ox 3 ` h .

t

9r"/     ...  
ri/r

9    r

Y

b      
t

i...    „ i4, t./.

4' r` U . p;`.•

1VIay 3, 2018

333 UNIVERSITY AVE, SUITE 160 • SACRAMENTO, CA 95825

PHONE: ( 91 6) 561 -0890 • FAX: ( 91 6) 561 -0891
WWW. GOODWINCONSULTINGGROUP. NET

611



CITY OF LA' HROP

2018 CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES STUI) UPDATE

I'ABLE OF CONTENTS

Section PaQe

ExecutiveSummary........................................................................................................... i

1.       Introduction .........................................................................................................................1

2.       Development Areas in the City............................................................................................3

3.       Fee Methodology.................................................................................................................5

4.       West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation Capital Facilities Fee................................ 7

5.       Surface Water Supply Capital Facilities Fee..................................................................... 14
f

6.       Water Supply Capital Facilities Fee .................................................................................. 23

7.       Sewer System Capital Facilities Fee.................................................................................. 30

8.       CIP Update foc the Culture and Leisure Facilities.............................................................33

9.       Nexus Findings .................................................................................................................. 38

10.      Fee Program Administration..............................................................................................40

Maps

Exhibit 1 — Project Site Location.....................................................................................................4

Appendix

Appendix— Sewer System Capital Facilities Costs

612



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PURPOSE OF THE CFF UPDATE

The City of Lathrop (" City") retained Goodwin Consulting Group to assist it in updating the

City' s Capital Facilities Fee (" CFF") program.  As new developinent occurs throughout the City

it is critical that fees in the CFF program be updated regularly to ensure that CFF rates keep up

with the rising costs of infrastructure, facilities, and land.

Many of the Capital Facilities Fees in the City' s fee program have been updated for 2018 based
on the Engineering News Record ( ENR) 20- City Construction Cost Index (" ENR 20- City CCI)

and are presented in this City of Lathrop 2018 Capital Facilities Fees Study Update (" Fee

Study") to summarize all the fees in the CFF program.  The City is restricted by development

agreements for certain developments to limit the annual increase of their CFFs to only the rate of

inflation, as determined by the change in the ENR 20- City CCI.  As a result, only the following

fees are updated in this Fee Study:

West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF - for Central Lathrop Specific Plan

area ( CLSP), Mossdale Village ( not including the Mossdale Landing developments), and

River Islands ( Stewart Tract)

Surface Water Supply CFF - for East Lathrop, South Lathrop Specific Plan ( SLSP),

CLSP, and Mossdale Village (not including the Mossdale Landing developments)
Water System CFF - for East Lathrop ( including North Harlan and Crossroads)

Sewer/Recycled Water System CFF - for CLSP only

WEST/ CENTRAL LATHROP REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION CFF

The West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF was created in 2003 to supplement

funding for transportation facilities needed for the West Lathrop Specific Plan Area.  The capital

improvement plan for the West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF includes 28
improvement projects.    In conjunction with updating this CFF,  City staff reviewed the
transportation facilities and their costs and inflated them to 2018 dollars based on the ENR 20-

City CCI.  City staff found that all project costs were consistent with current estimated costs to
construct these facilities with the exception of the Louise/ I- 5 interchange.   The Louise/ I- 5

interchange project was estimated to cost $ 11, 564, 000 in 2005 and $ 16. 9 million in 2018, if

inflated by the ENR 20- City CCI.  However based on a City staff estimate, the current cost to
construct this facility is $ 39,200, 000.  In order to be able to fund this facility in the future, City

staff determined that the interchange cost needs to be updated in the CFF program to the $ 39. 2

City ofLathrop i Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

613



million cost. As a result, this Fee Study includes updated CFF rates for the West/Central Lathrop
Regional Transportation CFF for the three areas that are subject to this CFF; specifically, CLSP,

Mossdale Village (only those areas without a development agreement), and River Islands.

SURFACE WATER SUPPLY FACILITIES

In 2003 the City issued $ 32, 530, 000 revenues bonds to fund a portion of the construction cost for

Phase 1 of the South County Surface Water Supply Project. Debt serve on these bonds is paid by

existing ratepayers and by new growth areas that receive a share of the water supply capacity.

Existing ratepayers pay their proportionate share of the debt service through their monthly water
bills.  River Islands and Mossdale Village fund their respective shares of the bond debt service

through separate community facilities districts; and CLSP and other new growth areas will fiind
their share of the debt service through CFF payments.

In 2013 the 2003 Bonds were refunded. The existing ratepayers, the CLSP area, and other fitture

development' s shares of the 2003 remaining bond principal were refunded through the 2013
Subordinate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds.  In June 2017 the City refunded the 2013 Bonds
through the 2017 Loan Agreement.  Because the Surface Water Supply CFF is based on the

present value of debt service payments, the Surface Water Supply CFF needed to be updated for

existing infill development in East Lathrop, new development in the CLSP, and other future
development areas. This Fee Study updates the Surface Water Supply CFF for these areas.

WATER SYSTEM FACILTTIES

The Water System CFF includes four separate components.  These include 1) an East Lathrop

Water System Buy-In CFF, 2) a Well Improvement CFF for West/Central Lathrop to fund the
costs of arsenic treatment for groundwater wells and for a portion of the cost of a standby well,

3) a Water Storage CFF for the Mossdale Landing developments to construct a 1. 0 MG water
storage reservoir, and 4) a Reimbursement CFF for the Crossroads area.   The City does not

currently have updated costs for the West/Central Lathrop Well Improvement CFF or the

Mossdale Landing Water Storage CFF so these CFFs have been updated recently by the City for
inflation only.   This Fee Study does update the East Lathrop Buy-In CFF and the Crossroads
Reimbursement CFF.

SEWER FACILITIES

Saybrook CLSP, LLC (" Saybrook"), the developer of the CLSP area, has constructed sewer and

recycled water backbone facilities that will serve the CLSP area.   Facilities include a pump
station, force mains, sewer pipelines, and recycled water pipelines.   The total cost of these

facilities in 2018 dollars is $ 11. 6 million.  In order for the City to reimburse the developer for

City ofLathrop ii Capital Facilities Fee Update Stz dy

614



oversizing these facilities, a sewer/ recycled water CFF specific to the CLSP development area

must be created. This Fee Study creates the new Sewer/Recycled Water CFF for the CLSP area.

FEE SCHEDULE

Table ES- 1 summarizes the fees in the CFF progcam and includes the proposed CFFs that have

been created or updated in this Fee Study.   The CFF fee schedule includes eight separate

development areas with each having a different fee schedule.  In February 2018 the City adopted
new CFFs for the South Lathrop Specific Plan and this area is added to the CFF schedule.  The

City inflated all CFF fees in January 2018 based on the Engineering News Record 20- City
Construction Cost Index value of 10, 873 for December 2017. Prior to this increase, the CFF fees

were based on the August 2016 20- City CCI value of 10, 385.  Based on the increased value of

the ENR 20- City CCI since August 2016, the City increased the fees in its CFF program by

approximately 4.7% in 2018.   The City also levies a 3. 0% administration fee to the cumulative

total of all its CFFs to pay for the administrative duties associated with the CFF program.  T11is

3. 0% administration fee would be added on top of the City CFFs presented in Table ES- 1.

City ofLathrop iii Capital Facilities Fee Update Stz dy

615



Table ES- 1  - Fee SummarV

Service Area       

I I South    Mossdale  Mossdale    

IFee East Cross-   No. Harlan Lathrop 1 Village   Landings   Central E Stewart  
Component Unit    Lathrop   roads Improv. Dist. Specific PI.   ( no DA)  ( with DA)

Z Lathrop     Tract   

3      -
J m 4,.    4       .-.-,..   

t;  ye""'"  :.: i
CulWre and Leisure GFF

I Park Sub Component            -             ,
V       '    

i       

w   

r      Single Family Residential DU $ 5 526k `       5, 526 i     $ 5, 526    $ 5, 524
J    $

6 072   Pro ect, .)
w

YI       
Multi- Famil Residential`    DU    $ 3 947 = 3, 947 3, 9477  $ 3 945      $ 4 338 Developer ;

I Y k._ e.

j Faciliry Sub-Component I I  i___  

Single Family
Residentialr

DU    _ $ 3 386 3, 386    _            $ 3, 386i    $ 2, 218     $ 3, 386i_   $ 3 386

Multi- Family Residential DU 2 417 2, 417    `    2, 417  _$ 1, 584     $ 2, 417      $ 2, 417I
i

Total Culture and Leisure CFF I
m..-- -----      Ef------

Single Family Residential DU S 912 8, 91 8, 912     $ 7,742      $ 9, 458      $ 3, 386t f

I Multi Family Residential DU f    $ 6 364 6, 364    6 364=    $ 5 529      $ 6 755   

Ty  $

2 4 7

MuniapalSrce Facrirues CFF
4

r, y„    ;          ,_        ;. u

Single Family Residential    DU    __ $ 3 793r 3, 793  3, 793    $ 3,725     $ 3 793_
2_ $

3, 793r
Multi- Family Residentiali DU 2, 709f 2, 709

j     $
2, 709    $ 2, 662      $ 2, 709      $ 2, 709

SerNcelRetail I 1 000 sf f    $ 2 471     $ 2 471I      $ 2 471       $ 2 471  $ 2 471    $ 2 419      $ 2 471      $ 2 471

OtherNonResidentia1 1000sf I  $ 1496     $ 1496f      $ 1496      $ 1496     $ 1496   $ 1464      $ 1496   $ 1496

m      -. c         :   s        g. J_
SurfaceWaferSupplyCFF

a a.?.  5. +;
E

sa,. . v_,_.:     

L 5/ 8" meter     $ 2489   $ 2,489      $ 2, 489       $ 2489;-$ 4, 242 5744€ '      

A.

L__ 1" Fire Sec.     $ 2 489; .   ^`        $ 2, 489I     $ 4, 242  5, 744

3/ 4" meter i    $ 3, 733I    $ 3, 733      $ 3, 733       $ 3, 733_  $ 6, 363    ' ' ` 8 616E ,°°,.      ,'L.._..--- 
1" meter      $ 6, 222I    $ 6, 222      $ 6, 222       $ 6, 222    $ 10,605 14 360   

i1 1/ 2" meter   $ 12, 444   $ 12, 444     $ 12, 444      $ 12, 444I    $ 21, 210€ Funded       $ ze z  
Punded

i..-- ---       -...-  ----i---..-- r--- -,.---       -----  through  ,      througfi,  -
2" meter     $ 19, 910 _ $ 19, 910     $ 19, 910      $ 19, 910    $ 33, 936 

ossdale  $ 45, 952 Riverlslands-
I 3" meter     $ 37, 332    $ 37, 332i     $ 37, 332      $ 37, 332    $ 63 630k -° CFD  .      $$ 
166  ',CFD   (

4" meter     $ 62, 220r  $ 62, 220     $ 62, 220      $ 62, 220i   $ 106, 050`      143, 600 = r
t'------------    

6" meter    $ 124,440  $ 124, 440    $ 124,440     $ 124, 440'   $ 212, 100 287 200'. - 

8 meter    $ 199, 105   $ 199, 105    $ 199, 105     $ 199, 105j   $ 339, 360 459520`

i._..._.     - 

e .     
E,    ,   

V

x

Ii 10 meter   $ 360 877  $ 360 877    $ 360 877     $ 360 877i   $ 615
090t

832 880  °

LVatefSysfem BUy!/ 1 CFF
6  '  ;      :    ;         `' '    ''. a` s' s : ''- -' a"

x._ E_.      . o._.        ......_

i 5/ 8" meter     $ 1 231 1
157F E i-w. m.      

I-      (...:     ___- €  ,;.      .::     _ ...,_      : J»_    _.. 
I 1" Fire S c.    $ 1 231 C'       1, 157

3/ 4" meter     $ 1 847r 1      $ 1 735      Ii--  m. .>..       ._-...__..   .  

1" meter      $ 3, 078;       2, 892

11/ 2" meter    $ 6155'       5755€     

2" meter      $ 9 848`, f$ 9 256

I 3" meter     $ 18 466 17 354€ 

4" meter     $ 30 776            $ 28 924      

61, 552 57, 847

8„ meter    $ 98 4834 92 55       
M  T,   

1
a._._._._-. M._    

10" meter   $ 178, 501`  "   
m ,   $

167, 756

iWaterSystem Rermbursement CFF i :  .';     '       *. i,:.`' '
x....,._...   ._.. ti.      _    ...,,?,  -   ____.  t`   ...     ' sz,F.. _-

i 5/ 8" meter ' I    $ 1, 392i  : 
1" Fire S c.   E

3l4" meter_..       j    $ 2, 088 
r.       I 1" meter _:           $ 3, 480t

j 1 1/ 2' meter'.' 6, 959F

2" meter --      i   $ 11, 134      
m     

i
3" meter t

ZO,

S77k
4

T

1

4" meter  ,    34, 795i
i 6" meter 69,591 j

8" meter  '       '  $ 111, 345  E

i
I      , r L4 _..     _.

I I 10" meter 1  $ 201, 813 

i

City ofLathrop iv Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

616



TASLE ES- 1 - Fee Su nmarv ( ontinued)

j Service Area

South    Mossdale Mossdale- I---_-       '      J-
IFee East Cross-    No. Harlan Lathrap Village Landings   Central Stewart I
IComponent Unit I Lathrop   roads  Improv. Dist. Specific PI. I  ( no DA)  ( with DA) Zj Lathrop Tract   

NaterSystem West/Central LaYhrop Well ImprovementCFF 7
s-     ,,-.     _-..  s._       s'=-     _"

w       '    
v,   '

5/ 8" meter E 756      $ 756       $ 756       $ 756
f I

r
1' Fire S t 756      $ 756 756 756

I_ _ ---     -      '___     {    I E -     
3/ 4" meter[ i     $ 1, 135     $ 1, 135)     $ 1, 135_ $ 1, 135i

1" meter i I     $ 1, 891     $ 1, 891,      $ 1, 891       $ 1, 891i

1 1/ 2" meter  `       ,:
mm       

I     $ 3 782E    $ 3,782i      $ 3, 782!      $ 3, 782

2' meter   6, 051    $ 6, 0511      $ 6, 051       $ 6 051I
f ..

I
3" meter 11 345   $ 11, 345    $ 11, 345     $ 11 345

E._,         f

j 4" meter   ^       #  18, 909   $ 18, 909i    $ 18, 909     $ 18, 909
T    ___.     

6" meter  `      37, 817   $ 37, 817i     $ 37, 817_   $ 37,517

i
E 8" meter        '= 60, 507    $ 60,507    $ 60, 507     $ 60, 507

I 10" meter  .
f

109 670  $ 109 670   $ 109 670    $ 109, 670Is

WaferSysfem;- WaterStbrageCFFB.      f . v` , ,.:, a
5/ 8" meter 

f.

T $

895            .       : ' 7

t1" Fire S     895   

3/4" meter 1, 343
I...

1" meter 2, 238

1 1/ 2" meter,  `       i 4,47T i

2" meter `  7, 162i
i'  _      €' t

3" meter   -               13, 430   j
4„ meter ;  t 22, 383i
6" meter 44, 766'   

S" meter  
LL;      ;  k 71 6251

y y,

J-   
820'          (  I

L_    __.__ -':-
10" meter 129

Office Commercial 1, 000 sf -       ` 988`,

Limited Industrial 1, 000 sf j :' 467;''.       `: I

I Warehouse  1 000 sf
i

133: j

SeweilRecycled lNafer Sysfem. CFF s f°      ;,            ' ,.    

3 '.. '''' ' ,,€„     ,
z"

5/ 8" meter     $ 5 538,  

r              =:_
s n. r-    , .       ,.,...,.:.,..,  a

5 538 r. 1, 083    $ 1, 083  `
y,  

i 1" Fire S, c.     $ 5 538,       5 538 1, 083    $ 1, 083`       

3/ 4" meter     $ 8, 306x.`-       8 306i,.  1, 623`       
i

j 1" meter     $ 13, 844t,      13844; .'.' 2, 706i    $ 2,706
1._ i

1 1/ 2" meter   $ 27, 688       27 668 :  1     $ 5, 410    $ 5,410 i

2" meter     $ 44, 301E`      44, 301j 8, 657     $ 8, 657. , i

I 3" meter     $ S3 064_.      83 064r .       ;    $ 16, 232   $ 16, 232

4" meter    $ 138 440j 138 440 Funded by _`$ z 052    $ 27,052 Funded by r
6 meter    $ 276,579.='  `      $ 276, 879  . Froject, !    $ 54, 104    $ 54, 104i Project
v._. a_       

DeveloI 8" meter    $ 443,007, r-    ,     $ 443, 007.      Pe a,    $ 86, 566    $ 66, 566P,   Developar' 

10" meter   $ 802 950'         $ 802 950       158, 903$ 156,903,    
e..._ m_,:..,.-...._......, .._........... ........._....-.   , -

Single Family Residential    DU s`       1, 915 I

Multi- Family Residential DU 1     $ 1, 329  '  

Commercial 1, 000sf 353+' i

Industrial 1, 000 sf  „         212 r
Manteca WQCF)    ISU  `  $ 8 466       8 466r j

I__....  ,_ n_:     ...,,,.     ..__„

All New De lopment gpd   €  40. 95 t I

Recycled=Wafe, 0'utFalf CFF
rr:     .;,. . '  ,`

t. w __`''_:           g-,_ ,.   .      x

5/ 8" meter    4 i 45 45       $ 45 45_   $ 45j
1' Fire Svc.       

Jl-.----.  $ 45i  _ $ 45       $ 45 45 49
f-

I 3/ 4" meter ,   , 
Y' yn;_     $

69 69     $69   --- $ 69I      $ 69

1„ meter    114      $ 114E      $ 114       $ 114 114

i---- 1 1/ 2' 

meteriT
y__    $ 227I      $ 22i  $227---   $ 227 227

2" meter 363       $ 363      $ 363 363 363
o.  , .

3" meter i  '      683       $ 683      $ 683       $ 683       $ 683

4" meter        1, 138     $ 1, 138     $ 1, 138      $ 1, 138       $ 1, 138

6" meter   ,  
J  $

2, 275     $ 2, 275    $ 2, 275     $ 2, 275      $ 2, 275

8" meter 6     $3, 640     $ 3,640-.    $ 3, 640      $ 3, 640
E..:     1,'     .,.__..   _..,_.._------------------       I

I-      10" meter  ;;       6, 598)     $ 6, 598    $ 6, 598i     $ 6, 598      $ 6, 598I
I--  I f r- T

City ofLathrop v Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

617



Table ES- 1 - Fee Summarv (Continued)

i Service Area       

I South Mossdale Mossdale I
Fee East     Cross-   No. Harlan  Lathrop Village  Landing

Z
Central    Stewart

Component Unit Lathrop roads I Improv. Dist. Specific PI.   ( no DA)   ( with DA) p Lathrop r Tract

12 t3 r'r       ,. c  --—     r a^.,  - z,".

Storm Drainage CFF F z    .              Y  . t.,_      ...       ,.  

Low Density Residential    DU    $ 894 894 341      $ 341    

Medium Density Residential DU        

W   $

234      $ 234   

High Density Residen    DU    ;   183      $ 183 `  ',       ;
1:    

Senrice Commercial Acre       $ 6 144' 6 1M 4 231     $ 4 231 1.

Freeway Commercial   Acre   ^$ 11
0254     

11 025

Waterfront Resort Commercial Acre   ' '     ,  
A ea of Funded bY i

I Neighborhood Commercial Acre 2, 729' 1 g2 7zg—?-_  
Benefit Project., i

I Assessment Developer
Limited Industrial- Zone# 5 Acre   _ $ 8 576G: S 576

Limited Industrial- Other Zones Acre 4 780,' 1        $ 4 780I..—,_..__._      I--      ...      ....
e,:.--.—     ,..      

i

General Industrial Acre 5 804        5 804    

Transit Station( if on Lathrop Road)    Acre 5, 461 5 461 -   

Fire Station( if on Yosemite A,enue)    Acre 6, 144,      $ 6 144 ; '

Area of Benefit# 6   Acre I    $ 2 382 1
6 ..       ,     

Crossroads- Onsite Acre     '       $ 12 732       F j

TCrossroads- Offsite Acre    '       I  

Office Commercial 1, 000 sf - r 380  " T

Limited Industrial 1, 000 sf i' r       ':
129F

Warehouse  1 000 sf j 129E

C--,  '` .      .   
14  -..      ''` 4-t,     

r  
y   '^'  ,    ,'     '' i     t,_  =%`'  ""t"      -'}.€ 5 i s,-*- s ^ 5..   s     . 

oca/ Trarisportaf on CFF      '«  „,  '  :__   R          .  s >     
s 

s     r e,` ``          '

s '

c.      R.....,. z.,.;..., w s:,.,. a., e , a       ,.  7 T    ".".``       _
e.      ...       

f ..,,
a y      .. .

1 Single Family Residentiall DU    _^ $ 3 558F; 3 558r   ; j
I^ 

mm

Multi- Family Residentialf DU 2, 616k'.      M1_ $ 2 616

f

Office Commercial 1, 000 sf      $ 4 859p` 4, 859      $ 15 631 t

Retail Commercial 1, 000 sf      $ 4 859 W 4, 859      $ 15 631:,  E
Industrial 1, OOOsf      $ 1431  $ 1068      $ 1431I      $ 4516       :   r`.  iY

Warehouse 1, 000 sf 466     
f I

Commercial Acre i j   $ 29 417  i
WLSP_Regronal Transporfat on lmpact Fee( RT/F}°  j

Single Family Residential    DU    ; „ 343°      $ 343 343       $ 343

i Multi- Family Residential DU    , r 401       $ 401 401 I       $ 401

Senrice/ Office Commercial 1, 000 sf ;' 

V

s      $ 532      $ 532 532j       $ 532

Retail Commeraal l 000 sf     1 918     $ 1 918      $ 1 918      $ 1 918

INLS m ènt
FepY¢

a.-.._'   

f.rc`.     z`   ,,.,   , 4 a
s'

Acre 2, 001     $ 2, 001
i

INesf/Cenfra! Lathro` Tran ortahon CFF?
6         '        

g

x:„-
s p a...,

p.,`  ..,_..• z= ,,„  s `,  K_._,.. n ri*',.,. a,,.'''_

Single Family Residential DU          - 3, 473 

w$

2<$ 3 412    $ 3 998
L  

MuRi- Family Residential DU
n

2, 142    $ 1, 613E     $ 2, 098I      $ 2, 454

Service/ Office Commercial 1, 000 sf I i, 4, 983i    $ 3, 769      $ 3, 176      $ 3, 668I
Retail Commercial 1 000 sf 5 502     $ 4 159      $ 4 348      $ 6 644

OffsrteRoadwaylmprovementsCFF :.             `      `     `     +        '           -` '
u.::.. z_..._. .. .._.,..,.         ,._...., s.   ..  s

Single Family Residential DU        142 1
Multi- Family Residential DU    

T

98,

I Service/ Office Commercial 1, 000 sf r,. .   133,

Retail Commercial 1, 000 sf "     
u        

182;

I..__ _.,      ____.=____.__ W`___ _: __ _.'—__:=

Ciry ofLathrop vi Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

618



Table S- 1 - Fee Summarv (Continued)

Service Areai
South Mossdale ( Mossdale j

Fee East Cross-    No. Harlan Lathrop    Village   Landings Central I Stewart  
iComponent Unit i Lathrop I roads  Improv. Dist. l Specific PI.   ( no DA)  '( with DA)

2  
Lathrop Tract   

i i I 1 1 A,  l I       ,_  Y

San Joaqu n CountyRTIFCFF' 
a,:.     _.... __...   ::,      fi.   ,....._,   a,     _..

Single Family Residentiali DU    ;    $ 3, 312(  3 312  ^ 3, 312'    $ 3 312     $ 3, 312      $ 3, 312

Multi Family Residential€    DU I    $ 1 987f 1 987l   ' 1, 987    $ 1, 987     $ 1, 987      $ 1, 987
f

Office Commercial'  1 000 sf      $ 1 660 1 6601      $ 1 660     $ 1, 660    $ 1, 660      $ 1, 660  _
Y_$

1, 660

Retail Commercial  1, 000 sf   $ 1 320i 1, 320      $ 1, 320;     $ 1 3201    $ 1, 320      $ 1, 320      $ 1, 320
F       '     

Industrial 1, 000 sf      $ 1 000 1, 000       $ 1, 000'     $ 1, OOOf    $ 1, 000     $ 1, 0001      $ 1, 000
E

N          

Warehouse  1 000 sf    $ 420`.  420' ^  $ 420      $ 4204   $ 420i       $ 420      $ 420

Counfy Facrlrbes CFF f7
m       

y    

Single Family Residential    DU i    $ 2 434 2 434 2, 434

Multi-Family Residential!    DU    ;    $ 1 807 1 807 1, 807

Service/ Office Commercial 1, 000 sf fi     $

610t4      ,
LL      $

610  $ 610      $ 610e `

Retail Gommercial  1, 000 sf i      $ 400;  400 400°      $ 400          

Industriali 1, 000 sf I      $ 110E 110 110'      $ 110 X
Warehouse  1, 000 sf       $ 110  d       $ 110 110       $ 110  

Environmental Mitigat on,CFF t8
t x  ,

Low Density Residential!    DU     ` 
T   

1991      $ 199  
v„  

E
v

Medium Density Residential    DU I 113j      $ 113

High Density Residential DU           41       $ 41

Commercial   Acre f -.     
T'

954      $ 954
rt ff

AG Mrt gation CFF `   i

I_
6

Acre      2 796    $ 2 796      ^      $ 4 194_ „$ 3 0
Economlc`

DevelopmentFeei(
Measure D). 

h. .        a,_      _    

m  . 

Residential De. elopment    DU    ( • 
T, mm  , 

i      $ 5,000

Levee lmp̀act Fee+ s.      
u. r. H       ,, s  

Single Famil ResidenUal  Acre       $ 17, 0541   $ 17, 054     $ 17 054I     $ 17,054    $ 17, 054i   $ 17, 054     $ 17 054i y       —— I 1
Multi- Family Residentiall.   Acre I   $ 18, 667    $ 18, 667     $ 18, 667      $ 18, 667`    $ 18, 667j   $ 18, 667     $ 18, 667=, -

Commercial;_ Acre   ;   $ 19, 236'I   $ 19, 236     $ 19, 236      $ 19, 236    $ 19, 236i   $ 19, 236     $ 19 236
3-------    T  ._..

Industrial;   Acre   ;   $ 15, 080F   $ 15, 080$ 15, 080      $ 15, 080    $ 15, 0801   $ 15, 080     $ 15 O80L----------------;  
i I I I i I

W'.'.'   

I

Each service area listed is separate and distinct from the others. Crossroads and North Harlan ID are within East Lathrop but in limited instances CFFs differ.

Mossdale Landings" include Mossdale Landing, Mossdale Landing East, and Mossdale Landing South and are in Mossdale Village. De, elopment agreements in

these areas place limits on increasing the CFF rates.

3 Includes neighborhood, community, linear parks, library, youth center, and senior center. This fee has been di ided into two components so that fee payments,
wai, ers, credits, and reimbursements for parks and facilities can be administered separately. This CFF reflects a recent adjustment by the City for inflation only.

4 Includes police, animal control, city hall, corporation yard, perfomting arts center, and wireless network facilities. Applies to the entire City. Wireless network costs
are excluded from the Mossdale Landings de lopments CFF calculation. This CFF reflects a recent adjustment by the City for inflation only.

5 Surface Water Supply CFF for infill areas( East Lathrop) assumes customers will also pay SCSWSP facilities charge in monthly water bills. Surface Water Supply
CFF for growth areas( Central Lathrop and parts of Mossdale Village that are outside the CFD) reflects the full cost of the surface water supply project. See the
surface water section of this report for details and possible exclusions.

s The Water System CFF for East Lathrop is a buy- in fee reFlecting the value of existing water system assets. North Harlan fee reFlects credit for North Harlan ID
costs.

West/ Central Lathrop Water System CFF is for well impro. ements and reflects the cost of future arsenic treatment and a share of standby well capacity. This Water
System CFF reflects a recent adjustment by the City for inflation only.

B The Mossdale Landings Water System CFF is for a water storage tank; this CFF was adjusted by the City recently for inflation only. The Water System CFF for
SLSP is for water storage facility impro nements only; the SLSP Water System CFF was determined in a separate CFF fee study adopted in 2018.

9 East Lathrop sewer collection system CFF is a buy- in fee reflecting ralue of existing sewer system assets. Existing ISU charge for Manteca WQCF treatment
capacity is retained. All Sewer System CFFs, except for CLSP, were adjusted by the City for inflation only.
Mossdale Village Sewer System CFF reflects sewer collection and recycled water distribution costs within Mossdale Village. It is in addition to the recycled water

outfall CFF.

Recycled water CFF applies to West/ Central Lathrop and SLSP and is based on the estimated cost of a recycled water outfall to San Joaquin Ri. er. This fee was
recently adjusted by the City for inflation only.

z All Storm Drainage CFFs, except for SLSP, were recently adjusted by the City for inflation only; the SLSP Storm Drainge CFF was determined in a separate CFF
fee study adopted in 2018.

t3 Mossdale Village Storm Drainage CFF reflects the cost of a storm drainage outfall.

Local transportation CFF for East Lathrop was recently adjusted by the City for inflation only.

15 West Lathrop Specific Plan Regional Transportation Impact Fee was originally adopted in 1997." fhis CFF was recently adjusted by the City for inflation only.

s West/ Central Lathrop TranspoAation CFF reflects transportation project analysis and is net of estimated WLSP RTIF re nues. The CFFs for the Mossdale Village,
CLSP, and the Stewart Tract reflect the updated cost forthe Louise A enue interchange. Due to the limitation for increasing Mossdale Landings CFFs, the
Mossdale Landing CFF was adjusted by the City recently for inflation only.

County Facilities CFF was updated by San Joaquin County, effecti, e April 2, 2018.

18 EnHommental mitigation CFFs for Mossdale Village and Mossdale Landings include land and fencing costs for brush rabbit habitat.
9 The Le e impact fee became effecti. e 6n 4/ 7/ 17; this fee was adjusted recently by the City for inflation only.

City ofLathrop vii Capital Facilities Fee Update Stardy

619



F'EE ADJUSTMENTS

The Capital Facilities Fees may be adjusted in future years to reflect revised facility standards,
receipt of fiinding from alternative sources ( i. e., state or federal grants), revised costs, or changes

in land uses, densities, or development plans. In addition to such adjustments, each year the CFF

will be adjusted by the change in the ENR 20- City Construction Cost Index over the prior
calendar year.  This Fee Study adjusted facilities costs in this report based on the ENR 20- City
CCI value for December 2018, which is 10, 873.   For inflating facilities costs that are in the

City' s 2005 CFF Fee Study, this Fee Study applied the ENR 20- City CCI values of 6, 695 ( July
2003) for costs that were established in 2003 and the ENR 20- City CCI value of 7, 422 ( July

2005) for costs that were established in 2005.

City ofLathrop viii Capita! Facilities Fee Update Stzrdy

620



1. INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND

The City of Lathrop is located in the Sacramento central valley, approximately 58 miles south of
Sacramento and 80 miles east of San Francisco.   When the City incorporated in 1989, its

population was approximately 6, 500; as of January 2017, the California Department of Finance

estimates the City' s population is 23, 110.

In 1990 the City adopted its original Capital Facilities Fees program to fund growth in the City.
In 1994 the City updated the CFF and included additional fees in the program.  In subsequent

years the City added other fees to the CFF program.  For example, in 1997 it added the West

Lathrop Specific Plan Regional Transportation Impact Fee, which was developed in coordination
the San Joaquin Council of Governments and area developers.  In 2003 a comprehensive effort

was undertaken to update the CFF program to include new planning areas in the western part of
the City and establish new fees for these areas.   In 2005 the CFF program was again updated to

include additional facilities and updated fee calculations.  In subsequent years additional minor

changes to the fee program were made. For example an agriculture fee was added in 2005.  Also

in 2005, the City adopted San Joaquin County' s Regional Transportation Impact Fee. In 2007,
the City added an offsite roadway improvement fee for the CLSP development.  In April 2017

the City adopted the Interim Levee Impact Fee to fund the design and construction of the levee
system improvements for Reclamation District 17.  Lastly, in February 2018 the City adopted

CFFs for the South Lathrop Specific Plan area.

FEES CALCULATED IN THIS CFF STUDY UPDATE

Most of the City' s Capital Facilities Fees shown in Table ES- 1 were updated by the City based
on the increase in ENR 20- City CCI from August 2016 to December 2017.  The ENR 20- City
CCI increased by 4. 7%, from 10, 385 to 10, 873 over this period and the City applied this rate

increase to its CFF program. The City is restricted through development agreements with certain
developments that limit the annual increase of their CFFs to the rate of inflation, as determined

by the ENR 20- City CCL However, for this Fee Study the following fees have been updated:

West/ Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF - for Central Lathrop Specific Plan
area ( CLSP), Mossdale Village ( not including the Mossdale Landing developments), and

River Islands ( Stewart Tract)

Surface Water Supply CFF - for East Lathrop, South Lathrop Specific Plan ( SLSP),

CLSP, and Mossdale Village (not including the Mossdale Landing developments)

Water System CFF - for East Lathrop ( including North Harlan and Crossroads)

City ofLathrop 1 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

621



Sewer/Recycled Water System CFF - for CLSP only

MITIGATION FEE ACT( A 1600

The Mitigation Fee Act, commonly known as Assembly Bill ( AB) 1600, was enacted by the
State of California in 1987 and created Section 66000 et. seq. of the Government Code.  AB

1600 requires that all public agencies satisfy the following requicements when establishing,

increasing, or imposing a fee as a condition of approval foc a developinent project:

1.       Identify the purpose of the fee
2.       Identify the use to which the fee will be put
3.       Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between:

A.  The fee' s use and the type of development project on which the fee is

imposed

B.  The need for the public facility and the type of development project on
which the fee is imposed

C.  The amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility or portion of

the public facility attributable to the development on which the fee is
imposed

The purpose of this Fee Study is to demonstrate that the fees calculated herein comply with the
Mitigation Fee Act.    The assumptions,  methodologies,  facility standards,  costs,  and cost

allocation factors that were used to establish the nexus between the fees and the development on

which the fees will be levied are summarized in subsequent chapters of this report.

ORGANIZATION OF REPORT

The remainder of this report has been organized into the following chapters:

Chapter 2 Identifies the major development projects in the City
Chapter 3 Provides an explanation of the fee methodology used to calculate

the fees in the this Fee Study
Chapters 4- 7 Provide details of the fee calculations for transportation, surface

water supply, water system, and sewer/recycled water CFFs
Chapter 8 Presents changes to the capital improvement plan for facilities in

the Culture and Leisure Facilities subcomponent fee

Chapter 9 Discusses the nexus findings for the CFFs

Chapter 10 Addresses implementation of the updates to the fee program, fi ture

fee adjustments, and administrative duties required by the fee law

City ofLathrop 2 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

622



2.       DEVELOPMENT AREAS IN THE CITY

Lathrop has several major development areas throughout the City.    Following is a brief
description of those developments.  At full build out these areas may produce approximately

18, 000 residential units and over 16 million square feet of nonresidential building space.

Mossda[ e Villczge

Located west of I- 5 interstate and east of the San Joaquin River, the Mossdale Village Planning

Areas include Mossdale Landing, Mossdale Landing East, Mossdale Landing South, and the
Silveria property.   When fully developed these planning areas, totaling about 1, 160 acres, will

have approximately 3, 000 residential units and 1, 500, 000 square feet of retail and service
commercial building space.    The Mossdale Landing developments are in the latter stages of
development.

Iliver Islands

River Islands is located west of the I- 5 interstate and I701' Il of I-205 and pai-tially abuts the
Mossdale Village development.  River Islands has nearly 5, 000 acres and is planned for 11, 000
homes and over 250 acres of commercial development.  River Islands is in its early stage of
development.

Centpnl Lat/zrop Specific d' lan 4rea

CLSP abuts the northern boundary of Mossdale Village and includes 1, 521 acres that are planned

for 5, 100 to 6, 800 residential units and approximately 5, 000, 000 square feet of retail and office
space.   CLSP is in the initial stage of development - some backbone infrastructure has been

constructed but no building pertnits have been issued at this time.

SOl[ tI1 LLlPI2Yop Specific Plan

SLSP is a commercial/ industrial development totaling approximately 315 acres.     The

development is east of interstate I- 5 and south of State Route 120.  The majority of the acreage,

about 246.4 acres, is planned for warehouse and light industrial and about 10 acres of retail.

The maximum estimated building square footage for SLSP is 4,214,000.

Lathrop Gateway Specific Plan

LGSP is also a commercial/ industrial development that abuts, and is east of, the South Lathrop
Specific Plan area and is located to the east of interstate I- 5 and north of State Route 120.  LGSP

is approximately 384 acres and is planned for cominercial/ industrial development.    The

maximum estimated building square footage for LGSP is 5, 400,000.

City ofLathrop 3 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

623



Exhibit 1 — Proiect Site Locations

1, 

7 Stockton

4

t-

r_.__.__...
r-'

r
L

r.,      J .

y/
r-••    

r'
c

s 5

a1o.

L

99

CLSPArea

J3

J.:_ J, 

Mossdale Viilage Area T--- r----""    '" `"""'   ' t

p     1__
a    

I

B.       j I
d`

dd'/   i MantecaSB L:athro:   
3

cOr
120

d j
t

120 ts
o
9      If      f

l_________  ,.

05

l S,       City of Lathrop Planning
d      

Area Boundary

Tracy J o°
i

EsPLath op) 

1

l      I 
Sub-Plan Area# 2 as
Expressed in the Water

5 ro Master P4an

l   :  West Cen( ral Lathrop)

Additional Portion of
Sub-Pian Area# 2 as

i
J

Expressed in fhe City

r l,       Generai Plan

i Sub-Plan Area# 3
Stewart Tract

City ofLathrop 4 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stzrdy

624



3.       FEE METHODOLOGY

When impact fees are calculated, an analysis must be presented in enough detail to demonstrate

that a logical and thorough consideration was applied in the process of determining how the fees
relate to the impacts from new development.  Various findings pursuant to the impact fee statute

must be made to ensure that a reasonable relationship exists between the fee amount and the

impact caused by development on which the fee will be levied.  Following is a discussion of the

method used in this Fee Study to allocate facilities costs to development and determine the fees
in the fee program.

FEE METHODOLOGY

The plan- based fee methodology is used in this Fee Study.   This methodology is used for
facilities that must be designed based on future demand projections within a geographic location.

Typically, a formal plan such as a specific plan, facilities needs assessment, or master plan
identifies and supports the level of facilities required to serve the plan area.  This plan would

typically consider the existing facilities already in place and determine what additional facilities
would be necessary to accommodate new development.     For example,  the need for

transportation- related improvements depends specifically on the projected number of trips that
must be accommodated on specific roadways.   An analysis of existing facilities, geographic

constraints, and current levels of service must be completed in order to identify the fi ture facility
needs.  This information is analyzed in conjunction with a projection of the amount and location

of future development in the plan area to determine the adequacy of existing facilities and the
demand for new improvements that will be required.   Depending on the level of existing

facilities, the plan- based fee methodology may allocate planned facilities costs to either fiiture
development only or to future and existing development.  The steps to calculate a fee under the

plan- based fee methodology include the following:

Step 1 Identify existing facilities and estimate firture demand for facilities at build out of
the plan area

Step 2 Determine facilities needed to serve anticipated growth in the plan area

Step 3 Estimate the gross cost of facilities needed to serve the future development in the

plan area

City ofLathrop 5 Capital F'acilities Fee Update Study

625



Step 4 Subtract the gross cost of any facilities included in the facilities plan that will cure

an existing deficiency in service or will serve other developinent areas

Step 5 Subtract revenues available fi om alternative filnding sources, if any, to identify a
net facilities cost that will be allocateci to future development.

Step 6 Select cost allocation factors ( e. g., trips generated, gallons per day) that will be

used to allocate facility costs on a proportional impact basis; apply cost allocation
factors to each of the land use categories based on their relative service demand or

impact on each type of facility

Step 7 Estimate the total impact from fiiture development by inultiplying the total

number of units/ acres/ square feet for each respective land use by its cost

allocation factor.  Sum the total cost allocation factors for each land use category

Step 8 Determine the percentage distribution of the cost allocation factors for each land

use category by dividing the total of the cost allocation factors for each land use

category by the total of all cost allocation factors for all land use categories

Step 9 Multiply the percent distribution for each land use category, as determined in Step

8, by the total facilities cost to deterinine the portion of the facility cost that is

allocated to each land use category

Step 10 Divide the facilities cost that is allocated to each land use category, as determined

in Step 9, by the number of units or per 1, 000 square feet of building space, to
determine the facilities fees

City ofLathrop 6 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stz dy

626



4.       T'VEST/ CENTRAL L ITHROP ZEGIONAL TRANSPORTATION CI'F

This section of the report identifies the facilities, costs, and the CFF rates required to fund the

transportation facilities in the West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF program.

BACICGROUND

The West/ Central Lathrop Regional Transportation  ( WCLRT) CFF was created in 2003 to

supplement the existing WLSP Regional Transportation Itnpact Fee ( RTIF).   The RTIP was

created in 1997 to mitigate the transportation impacts from developments in the West Lathrop
Specific Plan area ( WLSP).  The WLSP area includes the Mossdale Village, CLSP, and River

Islands developments.  The WCLRT CFF provides a revenue source for funding transportation

facilities that include specific transportation projects serving development areas west of the I- 5

highway.

FACILITIES AND COSTS

Table 4- 1 on the following page identifies the transportation facilities in the WCLRT CFF
program and shows their costs in 2005 dollars and also in 2018 dollars - inflated based on the

ENR 20- City CCI as of December 2017.  City staff reviewed the inflated costs to determine if

they were sufficient to fi nd the cost of constructing the projects in today' s dollars.   Staff

identified the Louise/ I- 5 interchange, whose inflated cost was significantly lower than the
project' s current estimated construction cost.  For example, the Louise/ I- 5 interchange project

was estimated to cost $ 11, 564,000 in 2005; its current updated 2018 cost is $ 16. 9 million when

inflated by the ENR 20- City CCI.  However based on the City' s estimate, the current cost to
constcuct this facility is $ 39,200, 000.   In order to fund this facility in the future, City staff
determined that the cost of this interchange needs to be updated in the CFF pro.gram to $ 39. 2

million cost.   As a result, the $ 39. 2 million cost is incorporated into the calculation of the

proposed WCLRT CFF.    Table 4- 1 on the following page shows the total cost of the
transportation facilities in the WCLRT CFF program in current 2018 dollars is $ 281. 5 million.

City ofLathrop 7 Capital Facilities Fee Update Sta dy

627



Table 4- 1 - Transportation Facilities and Costs

Project Cost Project Cost

No.  Route Project Limits Description 2005$)     ( 2018$)

1 ArborA,enue
Between Macathur Dri, e and Widen roadway to 4 lanes with left tum at all intersections      $

g 38, 000  $ 13,387, 000
Paradise A.enue and dm.eways

Between Paradise A nue and Construcf a 41ane roadway with left tum lanes at all
2 Golden Valley Parkway

paradise Cut intersections and drieeways includes Paradise Cut bridge     $
30, 203, 000  $ 44, 246,000

3 Golden Valley Paricway
Between Paradise cut and San Construct a 41ane diNded arterial. Includes San Joaquin Ri er  $

z0, 745, 000  $ 30, 391, 000
Joaquin Ri er Bridge.

Between San Joaquin Ri, er and
4 Golden Valley Parkway

Ri, er Edge A enue
Construct a 41ane di ided arterial. 2, 754, 000   $ 4, 035,000

5 Golden Valley Partiway
Between Ri, er Edge Aeenue and

Conslruct a 6- lane diuded arterial. 5, 627, 000   $ 8, 243,000
Ri, er Island Parkway.

6 Golden Valley Parkway
Between River Island Parkway and

Construct a 6- lane diUded arterial. 6, 046, 000   $ 8, 857,000
Lathrop Road

7 Golden Valley Parkway
Btw. Lathrop Road and Central

Construct a 4/ 6 di ided arterial.   4, 740, 000   $ 6, 944,000
Lathrop Specific Plan north border

8
Golden Valley Parlcway/   Between Central Lathrop Specific

Construct a improeed 2- lane arterial.       1, 430,000   $ 2, 095, 000
Manthey Road Plan north border and Roth Road.

9
Roth Road Interchange

Roth Road Interchange
Signalize and impro.e ramp intersections, include 4lanes in      $

752, 000   $ 1, 102, 000
Impro, ements interchange area.

Lathrop Road Interchange
Lathrop Road Interchange

Signalize and improee ramp intersections, include 8 lanes in   $
Z5, 370, 000  $ 37, 166, 000

Improeements interchange area.

11 Lathrop Road
Between Golden Valley Parkway

Construct a 6-lane diUded arterial.   958, 000   $ 1, 403, 000
and I- 5

12
Louise A, enue Interchange

Louise Aeenue Interchange
Construct S lanes in interchange area, expand ramps,

564, 000  $ 39, 200, 000
Impro ments upgrade signals as required.

13 Rieer Island Parkway
Between Golden Valley Parkway

Contstruct a 6- lane diNded arterial.  758,000   $ 1, 110, 000
and I- 5

14 Rieer Island Parkway
Belween Golden Valley Parkway

Construct a 6-lane diuded arterial. 1, 517,000   $ 2, 222, 000
and McKee A. enue

15 Rieer Island Parkway
Between McKee Aeenue and San Construct a 41ane ditided aRerial. Includes San Joaquin Ri, er   $

9 y58,000  $ 14, 588, 000
Joaquin Rieer Bridge.

A Ri. er Island Parkway
Between San Joaquin Rieer and

Construct a 41ane diNded arterial. 1, 590,000   $ 2,329,000
Broad Street

B Broad Street
Between Ri, er Island Parkway and

Construct a 41ane diNded arterial. 2, 435,000   $ 3, 567,000
South Ri, er Island Parkway

C S. Riuer Island Paricway
Between Broad Street and Golden

Construct a 41ane diNded arterial. 2, 357,000   $ 3,453,000
Valley Parkway.
Between Ri, er South Island

D Broad Street Parkway and Golden Valley Construct a 41ane diNded arterial. 1, 831, 000   $ 2,682,000

Parkwav

Paradise Aeenue
Construct new diagnonal ramps, signalize ramp intersections,

16
Interchange Impro, ements

Paradise Avenue Interchange add left tum lanes on all approaches to new signalized 20, 800, 000  $ 30, 471, 000

intersections, maintain 2- lane oeerpass.

17 Paradise Aeenue
Between I- 205 and Golden Valley Widen roadway to 4 lanes with left tum at all intersections       $

985, 000   $ 1, 443,000
Parkway and dm,eways

19
Macarthur Driu  

MacaRhur Driee Interchange Construct interchange impro.ements 11, 032, 000  $ 16, 162, 000
Interchange Impro ements

20 Macarthur Driee Between I- 205 and Arbor Aeenue Widen Roadway to 4 lanes.      1, 369, 000   $ 2, 006, 000

21
ArborA,enue and

Traffic Signal Construct new traffic signals.       472, 000    $ 691, 000
Macarthu Dri. e

22
Golden Valley Parkway and

Traffic Signal Construct new traffic signals.       472, 000    $ 691, 000
Paradise Aeenue

Z3
Golden Valley Parkway and

Traffic Signal Construct new traffic signals.       472, 000    $ 691, 000
Ri. er Island Parkway

24
Golden Valley Parkway and

Traffic Signal Construct new traffic signals.       472, 000    $ 691, 000
Lathrop Road

Z5
Rieer Isla d Parkway and

Traffic Signal Construct new traffic signals.       277, 000    $ 406,000
Broad Street

zs
S. Ri, er Island Parkway

Traffic Signal Construct new traific signals.       277, 000    $ 406,000
and Broad Street

27
Golden Valley Parkway and

Trafic Signal Construct new traffic signals.       277, 000    $ 406, 000
Broad Street

28
Golden Valley Parkway and

Traffic Signal Construct new tratfic signals.       277, 000    $ 406, 000
S. Ri er Island Parkway

Total 176, 955, 000 $ 281, 490, 000

City ofLathrop 8 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stz dy

628



Table 4-2 shows the updated total cost of the transportation facilities in the WCLSP CFF

program is $ 281. 5 million. An estimated $ 96.2 million in fee revernie is expected to be collected

through the WLSP RTIF program for seven transportation projects that are in both of these

transportation fee programs.    This amount will be used to reduce the total cost of the

transportation projects to be fimded through WCLSP CFF and would leave a net cost of$ 185. 3

million to be allocated to developments in the City through the WCLSP CFF program.

The cost allocation percentages shown in Table 4- 2 are based on a traffic model analysis

conducted by TJKM in 2003 and were applied in the WCLSP CFF calculation in the 2005 Fee

Study. Costs are allocated based on trip generation from the following five zones:

1.  Area A= Central Lathrop Specific Plan area
2.  Area B = Mossdale Village

3.  Area C= River Islands

4.  Area D = East Lathrop
5.  Area E= Areas outside the City

Based on the trip generation allocation, the CLSP area is allocated approximately $ 34. 9 million

of the transportation project costs, or about 19% of the total $ 185. 3 million cost; Mossdale

Village is allocated $ 20. 2 million, or about 11% of the total cost; and River Islands is allocated

59. 9 million, or about 32% of the total cost.  The remaining 38% of the cost, approximately

70. 3 million, is allocated to East Lathrop and areas outside of the City and therefore this portion
of the total cost cannot be collected and will need to be funded through other sources.

City ofLc throp 9 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stardy

629



Table 4- 2 - Transportation Facilities Cost Allocation

Less:' 97 Net

Project Cost RTIF Project Cost Contribution to Projects by Area     Net Project Cost 6y Area
No.       ( 2018$)      ( 2018$)     ( 2018$)    A B C D E Total A B C Total

1     $ 13, 387, 000 0  $ 13, 387, 000 11. 1%  7. 1%  48. 5% 2. 0%  31. 3%   100%      $ 1, 487, 444     $ 946, 555  $ 6, 490,666   $ 8, 924,665

2     $ 44,246, 000  ($ 27, 688, 000) $ 16, 558, 000 14. 0%  2. 0%  45. 0% 18. 0%  21. 0%   100%      $ 2, 318, 120     $ 331, 160  $ 7, 451, 099  $ 10, 100,379

3     $ 30, 391, 000  ($ 19, 018, 000) $ 11, 373, 000 19. 1%  17. 3% 48. 2% 4.5%   10. 9%   100%      $ 2, 171, 210   $ 1, 964, 427  $ 5, 479, 719   $ 9, 615,355

4      $ 4, 035, 000   ($ 2, 525, 000)  $ 1, 510, 000 13. 1%  21. 2% 59. 1% 5. 8%  0. 7%   100%       $ 196,394     $ 319, 635    $ 892, 773~ $ 1, 410,802

5      $ 8, 243, 000   ($ 5, 158, 000)  $ 3, 085, 000 19. 4%  19. 4% 50.7% 9. 0%   1. 5%   100%       $ 598,582     $ 598, 582  $ 1, 565, 522   $ 2, 762,687

6      $ 8, 857, 000   ($ 5,543, 000)  $ 3, 314, 000 49. 1% 20.9% 20.2% 7.4%  2. 5%   100%      $ 1, 626, 503     $ 691, 263    $ 670, 933   $ 2, 988,699

7      $ 6, 944, 000 0   $ 6, 944, 000 69.9%  8. 1%  7. 4%  14. 0%  0. 7%   100%      $ 4, 850, 587     $ 561, 647    $ 510, 587   $ 5, 922, 821

8      $ 2, 095, 000 0   $ 2, 095, 000 68.9%  0. 9%  1. 9%  25.5% 2. 8%   100%      $ 1, 442, 782     $ 19, 763     $ 39, 529   $ 1, 502,074

9      $ 1, 102, 000 0   $ 1, 102, 000 16. 6%  4. 1%  5. 5%  23.0%  50, 9%   100%       $ 183, 152     $ 45,513     $ 60, 059    $ 288,724

10    $ 37, 166, 000   ($ 5, 795, 000) $ 31, 371, 000 30. 9%  5, 3%  6. 8%  32.9% 24. 1%   100%      $ 9, 696, 776   $ 1, 646, 978  $ 2, 133, 227  $ 13,476, 981

11     $ 1, 403, 000 0   $ 1, 403,000 59. 9%  4. 4%  5. 8%  27.7% 2. 2%    100%       $ 839, 751      $ 61, 445     $ 81, 928    $ 983, 124

12    $ 39, 200, 000 0  $ 39, 200,000 6.2%   16.7% 25.6% 18. 7% 32. 7%   100%      $ 2, 446, 081   $ 6, 558, 159 $ 10, 023, 441  $ 19, 027, 681

13     $ 1, 110, 000 0   $ 1, 110,000 9.8%  27. 0% 40.2% 18. 0% 4. 9%   100%       $ 109, 180     $ 300, 246    $ 445, 820    $ 855, 246

14     $ 2, 222, 000 0   $ 2, 222,000 17. 9%  17. 9% 47. 1% 11. 4%  5. 7%   100%       $ 396, 786     $ 396, 786  $ 1, 047, 514   $ 1, 841, 086

15    $ 14, 588, 000 0  $ 14, 588,000 18. 4%  12. 9% 55.8% 7. 5%  5. 4%   100%      $ 2, 679, 428   $ 1, 885, 523  $ 8, 137, 524  $ 12, 702, 475

A      $ 2, 329, 000 0   $ 2, 329,000 18. 9%  12. 8% 55.4% 7. 4%  5. 4%   100%       $ 440, 647     $ 299, 044  $ 1, 290,499   $ 2, 030, 189

B      $ 3, 567, 000 0   $ 3, 567, 000 12. 4%  15. 7% 59.5% 4. 1%  8. 3%   100%       $ 442, 308     $ 560, 019  $ 2, 122,722   $ 3, 125, 049

C      $ 3, 453,000 0   $ 3, 453,000 3. 0%  34.8% 59.8% 1. 8%  0.6%   100%       $ 105, 275   $ 1, 200, 128  $ 2, 063,378   $ 3, 368, 780

D      $ 2, 682,000 0   $ 2, 682,000 10. 9%  9. 1%  63.6% 3. 6%   12.7%   100%       $ 292, 606     $ 244,062  $ 1, 706,556   $ 2,243, 224

16    $ 30,471, 000  ($ 30,471, 000) 0 5.7%   6. 1%  47.9% 2. 6%  37. 7%   100%     0 0 0 0

17     $ 1, 443,000 0   $ 1, 443, 000 7. 0%   7. 0%  62.0% 1. 0%  23. 0%   100%       $ 101, 010     $ 101, 010    $ 894,660   $ 1, 096, 680

19    $ 16, 162, 000 0  $ 16, 162,000 8.5%  4.4%  24.2% 2. 9%  60. 1%   100%      $ 1, 375, 386.    $ 704,663  $ 3, 909,588   $ 5, 989, 637

20     $ 2, 006,000 0   $ 2, 006,000 10. 0%  7. 0%  43.0% 2. 0%  38. 0%   100%       $ 200,600     $ 140,420    $ 862,580   $ 1, 203,600

21       $ 691, 000 0    $ 691, 000 9. 5%  6. 4%  40.8% 2. 1%  41. 3%   100% 65,714     $ 43, 879    $ 281, 997    $ 391, 589

22      $ 691, 000 0    $ 691, 000 9. 4%  8. 2%  61. 1% 1. 4%   19. 9%   100% 65,023     $ 56,593    $ 421, 856    $ 543,472

23      $ 691, 000 0    $ 691, 000  24.0%  26.7% 33. 1% 12. 3% 4.0%   100% 

T  $

165,840     $ 184, 152    $ 228,652  $ 578,644

24      $ 691, 000 0    $ 691, 000 62. 5%  8. 7%  8. 8%  18.3%  1. 6%   100%       $ 432, 152     $ 60,325     $ 60,877    $ 553,353

25      $ 406,000 0    $ 406, 000 17. 1%  12. 4% 61. 1% 6. 4%  3. 0%   100% 69,548     $ 50,385    $ 247,903    $ 367,836

26      $ 406,000 0    $ 406, 000 8. 8%   14. 7% 64.4% 3. 2%  8. 9%   100% 35,526     $ 59,804    $ 261, 545    $ 356,874

27      $ 406,000 0    $ 406, 000 8. 7%   15. 0% 64.6% 5. 7%  6.2%    100% 35, 159     $ 60,778    $ 262,074    $ 358,011

28      $ 406,000 0    $ 406, 000 7. 2%  22.3% 63.3% 6. 2%   1. 0%    100% 29,273     $ 90,416    $ 257,079    $ 376,768

Total $ 281, 490,000  ($ 96, 198, 000) $ 185,292, 000 34, 900, 842  $ 20, 183,359 $ 59, 902,306 $ 114, 986,507

1 Area A= CLSP

Area B= Mossdale Village

Area C= Stewart TractlRi er Islands

Area D= East Lathrop

Area E= Areas outside the City

City ofLathrop 10 Capital Facilities Fee Update Sta dy

630



COST ALLOCATION

The costs allocated to CLSP, Mossdale Village, and River Islands are further allocated to the

development planned in each of these three areas.  This cost allocation methodology used in this
Fee Study is the same that was used in the 2005 Fee Study.  Development estimates for each of

the three project areas are multiplied by the adjusted PM peak hour trip rates to determine total

trip volume.  PM Peak hour trips are adjusted by reducing the trip totals for Retail and Office
development by 60% and 20%, respectively, to account for pass- by and diverted trips that are
linked to other trips.  Reducing these trip totals ensures that trip generation estimates on the
roadways is not overestimated.  Based on adjusted PM Peak Hour trip volume, an allocation of
the total cost is calculated for each land use category.   The cost per unit was calculated by

dividing the total units into the total allocated cost for each land use category.  Tables 4- 3 to 4- 5

show the cost per unit or per 1, 000 square feet for each project area.   The cost per unit or per

1, 000 building square feet is also the WCLSP CFF rate for each land use category.

Table 4- 3

CLSP - Cost Allocation

Adjusted PM Adjusted PM Cost per

Units/      Peak Hour Peak Hour Percent Total Unit/

Land Use Bldg SF Trip Rate Trip Volume Allocation Costs Bldg SF

Area A- CLSP Cost 34, 900, 842

Dwelling

Residential Unitsepr Unit epr Unit

Single Family 5, 966 1. 01 6, 026 58. 33%   $ 20,357,417       $ 3, 412

Multi-Family 488 0. 62 303 2. 93%    $ 1, 023, 614       $ 2, 098

Subtotal- Residential 6, 454 6, 329 61. 26%   $ 21, 381, 031

Non-ResidenEial Bldg SF per 1, 000 SF Per 1, 000 SF

Service/Office Commercial 2, 922, 903 0. 94 2, 748 26. 60%    $ 9, 283,469       $ 3, 176

Retail Commercial 974, 301 1. 29 1, 254 12. 14%    $ 4,236, 343       $ 4,348

Subtotal- Non- Residential 3, 897, 204 4, 002 38.74%   $ 13, 519, 811

Total 10, 331 100. 00%   $ 34,900, 842

City ofLathrop 11 Capita! Facilities Fee Update Study

631



I'able 4- 4

Mossdale VillaQe- Cost Allocation

Adjusted PM Adjusted PM Cost per

Units/      Peak Hour Peak Hour Percent Total Unit/

Land Use     Bldg SF Trip Rate Trip Volume Allocation Costs Bldg SF

Area B- MV Cost 20, 183, 359

Dwelling

Residential Unitsepr Unit epr Unit

Single Family 3, 605 1. 01 3, 641 62. 04%   $ 12, 521, 317       $ 3,473

Multi- Family 122 0. 62 76 1. 29%       $ 261, 362       $ 2, 142

Subtotal- Residential 3, 727 3, 717 63.33%   $ 12, 782,680

Non-Residential Bldg SF per 1, 000 SF Per 1, 000 SF

Service/ Office Commercial 344, 396 1. 45 499 8. 50°/o    $ 1, 716,050       $ 4, 983

Retail Commercial 1, 033, 189 1. 60 1, 653 28. 16%     $ 5, 684,630       $ 5, 502

Subtotal- Non- Residential 1, 377, 585 2, 152 36.67%    $ 7,400,680

Total 5, 869 100. 00%   $ 20, 183,359

able 4- 5

River Islands - Cost Allocation

Adjusted PM Adjusted PM Cost per

Units/      PeakHour PeakHour Percent Total Unit/

Land Use Bldg SF Trip Rate Trip Volume Allocation Costs Bldg SF

Area C- RI Cost 59, 902, 306

Dwelling

Residential Unitsepr Unit epr Unif

Single Family 9, 371 1. 01 9, 465 62. 54%   $ 37, 463, 680       $ 3, 998

Multi-Family 1, 629 0. 62 1, 010 6. 67%     $ 3, 997, 709       $ 2, 454

Subtotal- Residential 11, 000 10, 475 69. 22%   $ 41, 461, 389

Non-Residenfial Bldg SF per 1, 000 SF Per 1, 000 SF

Service/Office Commercial 4,267, 000 0. 93 3, 954 26. 13%   $ 15, 650,437       $ 3, 668

Retail Commercial 420, 000 1. 68 705 4. 66%    $ 2, 790,480       $ 6, 644

Subtotal- Non- Residential 4, 687, 000 4, 659 30.78%   $ 18, 440, 917

Total 15, 134 100. 00%   $ 59, 902, 306

City ofLnthrop 12 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stzrdy

632



WEST/ CENTRAL LATHROP 2EGIONAL TRANSPORTATION FEE

Table 4- 6 shows the proposed WCLRT CFF for the four project areas.  It should be noted that

the CFF for Mossdale Village does not apply to Mossdale Landing developments since their

development agceements limit CFF increases to annual ENR 20- City CCI inflation adjustments.

Table 4- 6

West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF

Mossdale Mossdale

Vilinge L ndings Central River

Land Use no DA)
1

with DA)
Z L: throp Isllnds

Residential

Single Family 3 473 per Unit Z( 24 per Unit 3 412 per Unit 3 998 per Unit

Multi-Family 2 142 perUnit 1 613 perUnit Z Q9$ perUnit 2 454 perUnit

Non- Residential

Senrice/ Office Commercial    $ 4, 983 per t, 000 sf     $ 3, 769 pe, 000 sf       $ 3, 176 per, 000 sf$ 3, 668 per, 000 se

Retaii Commercial S, SOZ per l, 000 5e     $ 4, 159 per l, 000 se       $ 4 348 per l, 000 se     $ 6 644 per I, 000 5e

CFF applies to newdevelopment within Mossdale Village, excluding the Mossdale Landings.

z Mossdale Landings CFF is adjusted by the City for inflation only.

City ofLathrop 13 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stirdy

633



S.       SURFACE WATER SUPPLY CFF

This section of the report discusses the proposed surface water supply capital facilities, costs, and

the Surface Water Supply CFF rates renuired to fund a these facilities.

SURFACE WATER SUPPLY CAPITAL FACILITIES

In 1995 the City entered into a water supply development agreeinent with the South San Joaquin

Irrigation District ( SSJID) to purchase treated surface water through the South County Surface
Water Supply Project ( SCSW:SP).  The City' s groundwater supplies were limited and surface
water would be required to meet fiiture demand from new development planned in the City.  In

2005 the SCSWSP became operational and began supplying water to the City.   SCSWSP

facilities include water treatment plant improvements, pipelines, pump stations, and storage
reservoir improvements.  The City of Lathrop' s share of the total $ 148. 3 million Phase 1 cost is

estimated to be approximately $43. 7 million.

Phase 1 of the water project will supply the City with 7. 15 million gallons per day ( MGD) of
treated water and Phase 2 would increase the total to 10. 52 MGD.  Of the Phase 1 total, 3. 08

MGD was allocated to the River Islands development; 1. 34 MGD was allocated to existing City
ratepayers; 0. 69 MGD was allocated to the Mossdale Village development;  1. 91 MGD was

allocated to CLSP; and 013 MGD was allocated to other future development areas.  In 2013 the

City sold 1. 0 MGD of its surface water supply capacity to the City of Tracy and as a result,
CLSP' s Phase 1 surface water supply allocation was reduced to 0. 91 MGD.

SCSWSP FINANCING

In 2003 the City issued $ 32, 530,000 revenues bonds (" 2003 Bonds") to fund a portion of the

construction cost of Phase 1 of the SCSWSP.  Debt serve was to be paid by existing ratepayers
and new developments that receive a share of the surface water allocation.  Existing ratepayers
were to pay their fair share of the debt service through their monthly water bills.  River Islands

and Mossdale Landing funded their respective shares of the bond debt service through separate

community facilities districts.  CLSP was to fund its share of the debt service through payments

prescribed in their development agreement.  The share of the debt service for each development

area was based on the proportionate share of the surface water that was allocated to each.

Mossdale Village' s debt service allocation also reflected the cost of a new well that benefits the

Mossdale development.       .

City ofLathrop 14 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

634



In 2013 the 2003 Bonds were refunded.  The existing ratepayers' and CLSP' s shares of the 2003

remaining bond principal were refunded through the 2013 Subordinate Water Revenue

Refunding Bonds (" 2013 Bonds").  Mossdale Village' s share of the 2003 Bonds was refunded

through a separate refunding bond issue - the Lathrop Financing Authority Revenue Bonds 2013
Series A.  In June 2017 the City refunded the 2013 Bonds through the 2017 Loan Agreement

2017 Loan"), which is a private banlc loan.

FULL COST AND SUY-IN CFF CALCULATIONS

The 2005 Fee Study identifies two approaches for calculating the Surface Water Supply CFF.

The, full cost approach is based on calculating the present value of all bond debt service
payments.  This approach is applied to new development areas, such as CLSP, and will allow

new development to pay the full cost of its fair share of the surface water supply project.  As a

result, no additional facility charges will be included on new development' s monthly water bill.

The full cost method calculates the Surface Water Supply CFF by taking the sum of the present
value of all debt service payments assigned to a development area.  For the CLSP development,

this means summing the present values of its debt service obligations in past and future years for
the 2003 Bonds and 2013 Bonds and the 2017 Loan.

The second approach to calculate the Surface Water Supply CFF is the Buy-In approach.  The

Buy- In approach is appropriate for infill development in established development areas such as
East Lathrop.   The City determined that existing water service customers will pay for their

surface water supply capacity through a SCSWSP facilities charge included on their monthly
water bills.  New infill development will also be subject to this SCSWSP facilities charge once

they connect to the water system.  However, new infill development must also buy- in to the CFF

program so that it pays its share of past debt service costs that have been paid by existing

customers. Doing this will put new infill development on par with existing customers in terms of
funding their full share of the cost bf facilities.   The buy- in surface water supply CFF is
calculated based on historical debt services costs that are inflated to present value dollars.

CLSP SURFACE WATER SUPPLY CFF CALCULATION

Table 5- 1 shows the full cost calculation of the updated Surface Water Supply CFF for the
CLSP. Past debt service allocations for CLSP for the 2003 Bonds and 2013 Bonds are calculated

to a present value for fiscal year 2017- 18 based on the past historic California Pooled Money
Investment Account (" PMIA")  interest rates.   Future debt service for the 2017 Loan are

discounted to a present value for FY 2017- 18 using on the annualized May 2017 PMIA interest

City ofLathrop I S Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

635



rate of 0. 925%.  The present value of past and future debt service payments allocated to CLSP

equals $ 12. 2 million.   Dividing this total amount by the 0. 91 MGD surface water supply
allocation for CLSP generates a cost of$ 13. 36 per gallon of water.   Multiplying the cost per

gallon by the average water demand per day for a single. family residential unit (SFR) equals the

Surface Water Supply CFF per SFR or per equivalent dwelling unit( EDU).

The 2005 Fee Study stated that based on data from the Nolte Master Plan, the average residential
unit water usage within the City was 320 GPD.  This Fee Study uses the updated water usage

factor of 430 GPD for a SFR unit or per EDU, based on the City' s Integrated Water Resources
Master Plan, dated January 2018.  The City expects that development in CLSP will only use
surface water for Phase 1 development and therefore the full 430 GPD per EDU is applied in the

CFF calculation and not a factor of 290 GPD, which would assume 67. 4% of water usage will

come from surface water and 32. 6% will be from ground water sources.

Based on the 430 GPD water usage factor and the aforementioned debt service schedule, the

Surface Water Supply CFF is $ 5, 744 per SFR unit, which equals 1. 0 EDU and is equal to the

water demand supplied by a 5/ 8 inch water meter.  Since this is a full cost fee calculation, CLSP

development will not have a SCSWSP facilities charge on their monthly water bill.

Table 5- 1 on the following page shows that based on an average water usage rate of 430 GPD
and a total water allotment of 910, 000 GPD, an estimated 2, 116 EDUs of surface water will be

available for future development in CLSP.  A schedule of Surface Water Supply CFFs by water
meter size is presented in Table 5- 1.       

Table 5- 1 also presents an annual schedule of future Surface Water Supply CFFs, however, since
PMIA interest rates will change in future years, the present values of the debt service will change

as well and these fees will therefore rieed to be adjusted based on the actual interest rates.

City ofLathrop 16 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

636



Table 5- 1 Surface Water Supplv CFF - CLSP

2003 and 2013 CLSP Portion-      

and 2017 Water Supply Debt Service Present

Bonds/Loan Bonds and Obligation Total CLSP Value of CLSP Surtace Water

Fiscal Debt Service for Loan Debt Met with Portion of CLSP Portion Supply CFF for

Year Water Users      Service
Z     $

4M Prepay
3 Debt Service of Debt Serv.°

5
CLSP($/ EDU) s

2006-07 1, 098, 173 489, 571     ($ 108, 156)     $ 381, 715 451, 393

2oo7-os 1, 180, 023 526, 383      ($ 94, 305)     $ 432, 077 488,651

2oos-o9 1, 298, 023 579, 020      ($ 94,305)     $ 484,714 520, 847

2oos- 10 1, 294, 973 577, 659      ($ 94, 305)     $ 483, 354 503, 905

2010- 11 1, 295,403 577, 851      ($ 94,305)     $ 483, 546 496,508

2011- 12 1, 294,803 577, 583      ($ 94, 305)     $ 483, 278 493,470

2012- 13 1, 293, 143 576, 843      ($ 94,305)     $ 482, 538 490,687

2o s- a 1, 098, 868 566, 688 0      $ 566, 688 574, 175

2014- 15 1, 102, 803 573, 528 0      $ 573, 528 579, 685

2015- 16 750,215 389, 340 0      $ 389, 340 392,624

2016- 17 750,215 398, 520 0      $ 398, 520 400,720

2017- 18 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 480,449 5, 744

201$- 9 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 476,045 5, 797

2o1s-2o 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 471, 682 5, 851

2020-21 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 467,359 5, 905

2oz1- ZZ 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 463,076 5, 959

2022-23 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 458,832 6, 015

2023-24 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 454,626 6, 070

2a24-25 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 450,459 6, 126

2025-26 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 446,331 6, 183

2026-27 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 442,240 6, 240

2027-2$  947,461 480,449 0      $ 480, 449 438,187 6, 298

2028- 29 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480, 449 434, 171 6, 356

2o29- so 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 430, 192 6, 415

2oso- 31 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 426,249 6, 474

2031- 32 947,461 480,449 0      $ 480,449 422,342 6, 534

Totals 26, 668,553     $ 13, 040, 017     ($ 673,989)   $ 12, 366, 029    $ 12, 154,906

Phase 1 SCSWSP Capacity for CLSP    0. 91 mgd

Present Value Cost of Surtace Water Suppiy Capacity for CLSP 13. 36 9Pd

Demand Met by Surface Water per EDU
8

430 9pd

Potential Development Served by this Capacity 2116 EDUs

Present Value Cost of Water Supply Capacity Per EDU 5, 744 EDU

Proposed CLSP Surtace Water Supply CFF for Growth Areas FY 2017- 18 9

5/ 8" Meter 5, 744 3" Meter 86, 160

3/ 4" Meter 8, 616 4" Meter 143, 600

1" Meter       $ 14, 360 6" Meter 287, 200

1 1/ 2" Meter       $ 28, 720 8" Meter 459, 520

2" Meter       $ 45, 952 10" Meter 832, 880

Debt service schedule( net) from 2006-07 to 2012- 13 is for the$ 17, 595, 000 future de zlopment portion of the 2003 bonds; debt service

schedule from FY2013- 14 to FY2016- 17 is based on CLSP' s portion of the 2013 Subordinate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds; and from
FY2017- 1 S on, the debt service schedule is based on CLSP's portion of the 2017 Loan Agreement.     

z CLSP has been assigned 0. 91 mgd ofthe origina12. 04 mgd capaciryreserved forfuture users.

3 Ps required by Section 7. 05.02. 02( c)( 1) of CLSP DevelopmentAgreement. See" Prior Bond Debt Service" prepared byKelling Northcross&
Nobriga( Finance 5. 015 Iathrop: CLSP- 03BDESC, SER2006 Page 3).

Past debt senrice costs are present-valued based on prior years' Calif. Pooled Money Investmentf count( PMIA) rate for month of May.

5 Future debt service costs are discounted at 0. 925% peryear, which is lhe 2017 MayPMlArate.

6 Surface water supplyCFF for CLSP is based on present value of net debt service allocated to CLSP. Customers paying this fee would NOT
paythe SCSWSP facilities charge on their monthlywater bill. Fees could be adjusted annuallyas shown in lhis table or based on actual

PMIArates orinflation in future years.

Includes 0. 91 mgd( Central Lathrop) ONLY.

8 Based on average single familydemand of430 gpd being entirelymetwith surface water supplies.
9 AS/ 8" meterprovidescapacitytoserve1. 0EDU. Feesforothermetersizesreflectrelativecapacilyofeachmetersize.

City ofLathrop 17 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stz dy

637



FUTURE DEVELOPMENT SURFACE WATER SUPPLY C+'I' CALCULATION

Approximately 0. 13 MGD of surface water capacity will be utilized by future development in the

City' s growth areas.  Table 5- 2 shows the calculation of the updated Surface Water Supply CFF

for this future development allocation.   Past debt seivice allocations for the 2003 Bonds and

2013 Bonds are calculated to a present value for fiscal year 2017- 18 based on the past histocic

PMIA interest rates.  Future debt service for the 2017 Loan are discounted to a present value for

FY 2017- 18 using on the annualized May 2017 PMIA interest rate of 0. 925%. The present value

of past and future debt service payments allocated to fiiture development equals $ 1. 9. million.

Dividing this total amount by the 0. 13 MGD surface water supply generates a cost of$ 14. 64 per
gallon of water.   Multiplying the cost per gallon by the average water demand per day for a

single family residential unit ec uals the Surface Water Supply CFF per SFR or per EDU.

The City expects future development will have ground water supply available for use and
therefore a surface water usage factor of 290 GPD per EDU is applied in the CFF calculation.

The 290 GPD factor is 67. 4% of the 430 GPD factor; the remaining 32. 6% of water demand will

come from ground water sources.

Based on the 290 GPD water usage factor and present value of the debt service allocated to

future development, the Surface Water Supply CFF is equal to $ 4,242 per SFR unit, or per 5/ 8

inch water meter.  Since this is a fiill cost fee calculation, future development will not have a

SCSWSP facilities charge on their monthly water bill.

Table 5- 2 on the following page shows that based on an average water usage rate of 290 GPD
and a total water allotment of 130, 000 GPD, an estimated 449 EDUs of surface water will be

available for future development. A schedule of Surface Water Supply CFFs by water meter size
is also presented in Table 5- 2.

Table 5- 2 presents an annual schedule of firture Surface Water Supply CFFs, however, since
PMIA interest rates will change in future years, the present values of the debt service will change

as well and these fees will therefore need to be adjusted based on the actual interest rates.

City ofLathrop 18 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

638



Table 5- 2 Surface Water Supply CFF -  Future Development

Future

2003 and 2013 Dev. Portion-    Surface Water

and 2017 Water Supply Debt Service Total Present Supply CFF for
Bonds/Loan Bonds and Obligation Future Dev.    Value of Future Future

Fiscal DebtService for Loan Debt Metwith Portion of Dev. Portion Development

Year Water Users      Service
Z     $ 4M Prepay Debt Service of Debt Service.

3 4     ($/ EDU) 5

2oos- o7      $ 1, 098, 173 69,982 0       $ 69, 982 82,756

2oo7- oa      $ 1, 180, 023 75, 198 0       $ 75, 198 85, 044

2ooe- o9      $ 1, 298, 023 82,717 0       $ 82,717 88, 883

2009- 10      $ 1, 294, 973 82, 523 0       $ 82,523 86, 031

2o10- 1i      $ 1, 295,403 82,550 0       $ 82,550 84, 763

201- 12      $ 1, 294, 803 82, 512 0       $ 82,512 84, 252

2012- 13      $ 1, 293, 143 82, 406 0       $ 82,406 83,798

2013- 4      $ 1, 098, 868 83, 179 0       $ 83, 179 84,278

2014- 15      $ 1, 102, 803 82, 725 0       $ 82, 725 83,613

2015- 16 750, 215 56,404 0       $ 56,404 56, 880

2016- 17 750, 215 54, 969 0       $ 54,969 55,273

zo17- 1s 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72,993 72, 993 4,242

2o1e- 1s 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72,993 72,324 4, 281

2o1s-2o 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72,993 71, 661 4, 321

zozo-zi 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72,993 71, 005 4, 361

2oz- z2       $ 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72, 993 70,354 4,401

2022-23 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72, 993 69,709 4,442

2023-24 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72,993 69, 070 4,483

2024-25 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72, 993 68,437 4,524

2025- 26 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72, 993 67,810 4,566

2o2s-27       $ 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72, 993 67, 188 4,608

2027- 28 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72, 993 66,573 4, 651

2o2s-29 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72, 993 65, 962 4,694

2o2s-3o 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72, 993 65,358 4, 738

2030- 31 947,461 72,993 0       $ 72,993 64,759 4, 781

2os1- s2 947,461 72, 993 0       $ 72,993 64, 165 4, 826

Totals      $ 26,668, 553      $ 1, 930, 064 0    $ 1, 930,064 1, 902,940

Phase I SCSWSP Capacity for Future Development
6

0. 13 mgd

Present Value Cost of Surface Water Supply Capacity for Future Dev.   14.64 / gpd

Demand Met by Surtace Water per EDU      290 9pd

Potential Development Served by this Capacity 44g EDUs

Present Value Cost of Water Supply Capacity Per EDU 4 242 / EDU

Proposed Future Development Surtace Water Supply CFF FY 2017-18 8

5/ 8" Meter       $ 4, 242 3" Meter 63, 630

3/ 4" Meter       $ 6, 363 4" Meter 106, 050

1" Meter      $ 10, 605 6" Meter 212, 100

1 1/ 2" Meter      $ 21, 2 0 8" Meter 339, 360

2" Meter      $ 33, 936 10" Meter 615, 090

Debt service schedule( net) from 2006- 07 to 2012- 13 is for ihe$ 17, 595,000 future development portion of the 2003 bonds; debt service schedule

from FY2013- 14 to FY2016- 17 is based on fulure developments' s portion of the 2013 Subordinate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds; and from
FY2017- 18 on, the debt service schedule is based on future, developmenPs portion of the 2017 Loan Agreement.

2 Fulure developmenthas been assigned 0. 13 mgd( 6.37%) ofthe 2. 04 mgd ofcapacityreserved forfuture users and is allocated 6.37% of2003
bond debt senrice and based on the Citys debt allocations, 15. 63% of the debt service for the 2013 Bonds and the 2017 Loan Pgreement.

Past debt service cosls are present-valued based on prioryears' California Pooled MoneylnverstmentPccount( PMIA) rate forthe Month of May.
Future debt service costs are discounted at 0. 925% peryear, which is the 2017 May PMIArate.

5 Surtace water supply CFF for future de, elopment is based on the present value of net debt service allocafed to future development. Customers
paying fhis fee would NOT paythe SCSWSP facilities charge on their utilirybill. Fees could be adjusted annuallyas shown in this table or based
on the actual PMIArates in future years.

6 Includes 0. 3 mgd( future dev.) ONLY.

Based on a, erage single familydemand of 430 gpd( from EKI 2016 Master Plan) and 67.4% offuture demantls being metwith surface water.

e A5/ S" meter provides capacityto serve 1. 0 EDU. Fees for olher meter sizes reflect relati capaciSy of each meter size.

City ofLcrthrop 19 Capita! Facilities Fee Update Study

639



EXISTING INFILL DEVELOPMENT SURFACE WATER SUPPLY CFF CALCULATION

Approximately 1. 34 MGD of surface water supply capacity is allocated to future infill
development in the existing City.  This CFF is applied to infill development in East Lathrop.

Table 5- 3 shows the buy-in fee calculation for the updated Surface Water Supply CFF. The buy-
in fee is calculated based on past costs that have been incurred by existing customers.  Costs

incurred include $ 575, 672 for initial design costs as well as past debt service payments on the

2000 COP bonds, the 2012 Water Loan, which refunded the 2000 COP bonds, the 2003 Bonds,

the 2013 Bonds, and the 2017 Loan.  Once infill development connects to the water system, it

will also be subject to a SCSWSP facilities charge on its monthly water bill.

These past costs are calculated to a present value total for fiscal year 2017- 18 based on the past

historic PMIA interest rates.  Table 5- 3 shows the surface water supply buy- in GFF is $ 2, 489 for
a SFR unit, or per 5/ 8' inch water meter.   Future infill development will have ground water      .

supply available for use and therefore a surface water usage factor of 290 GPD per EDU is
applied in the CFF calculation.  The 290 GPD factor is 67.4% of the 430 GPD average usage per

EDU; the remaining 32. 6% of water usage will be supplied from ground water sources.

Table 5- 3 on the following page shows that based on an average surface water demand rate of
290 GPD and a total infill development water allotment of 1, 340, 000 GPD, an estimated 4, 624

EDUs of surface water will be available for infill development.  A schedule of Surface Water

Supply CFFs by water meter size is also presented in Table 5- 3.

Table 5- 3 also presents a schedule of future Surface Water Supply CFFs.  The annual escalation

rate of the CFF will depend not only on future PMIA interest rates but will also be due to the
accumulated debt service costs and therefore the annual increases will be greater than inflation

rates or PMIA interest rates.

City ofLathrop 20 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

640



Table 5- 3 Surface Water Sunply CFF - Existing Infill Development

Existing Infill's Infill' s Portion Only-

PoAion Only-    WaterSupply Discounted Surface Water

Initial 2000 COPs and 2003& 2013 Bonds Value of Infill Cumulative Supply CFF for
Fiscal Design 2012 Water Loan  & 2017 Loan Debt Annual PoAion of Present Cumulative Existing
Year Costs    De6t Service Z Service' Totals Debt Service°      Value Future Value 6 Infill( S EDU) 6

1999-00   $ 575,672 575,672      $ 575,672      $ 575,672      $ 575,672

2000-Ot 210,374 210,374      $ 200, 192      $ 775,864      $ 515,325

2001- 02 209,053 209,053      $ 187, 339      $ 963,203     $ 1, 074,846

2002-03 205,908 208,908      $ 177, 739     $ 1, 140, 942     $ 1, 341, 022

zoos-aa 208,636 305,768     $ 514,404      $ 425,983    $ 1, 566,925     $ 1, 892, 170

2004-OS 210,046 349,449     $ 559,495      $ 455,270    $ 2, 022, 195    $ 2,485, 138

2005-06 209,448 444,449     $ 653,897      $ 524,605    $ 2, 546,800     $ 3, 174,473

2006-07 208,738 441, 599     $ 650,337      $ 507,262    $ 3, 054,062    $ 3,915,473

2oo7-as 209,725 443,274     $ 652,999      $ 487, 111     $ 3, 541, 173    $ 4,747,135

2008-09 208,666 444,274     $ 652,940      $ 462, 781     $ 4, 003,954    $ 5, 649,204

2009- 10 209,301 439,707     $ 649,008      $ 446,284    $ 4, 450,238     $ 6,471, 756

2010- 11 209,691 439,772     $ 649,463      $ 439,867     $ 4, 890,104    $ 7,220,237

2olt- t2 209,359 439,772     $ 649, 131      $ 437, 194    $ 5, 327,298     $ 7,909,801

2012- 13 77,Zg6 443,857     $ 621, 153      $ 416,630    $ 5, 743,928     $ 8, 563,622

2013- 14 177,296 449,001     $ 626,297      $ 418, 560     $ 6, 162,488     $ 9, 221, 004

2014- 15 177,296 446,550     $ 623,846      $ 415,903    $ 6, 578,392     $ 9, 867,442

2015- 16 177,296 304,471     $ 481, 767      $ 320,452     $ 6, 898, 844   $ 10, 371, 707
2016- 17 177,2g6 296,726     $ 474,022      $ 314, 389     $ 7, 213,232   $ 10, 875,806

2017-18 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 376, 837     $ 7, 590,069   $ 11, 507,156       $ 2, 489

2018- 19 77,Zg6 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 373,383     $ 7, 963,452   $ 12, 184,912       $ 2,635

201s-2o 177, 296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 369, 961     $ 8, 333,413   $ 12,868,937       $ 2,783

2020-21 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 366,570    $ 8, 699,983   $ 13, 559,290       $ 2,933

2021- 22 177, 296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 363,210     $ 9, 063, 193   $ 14,256,028       $ 3,083

2022-23 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 359,881     $ 9,423, 075   $ 14,959,211       $ 3,235

2023-24 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 356,583    $ 9, 779,658    $ 15,668,899       $ 3,389

2024-25 77,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 353,315   $ 10, 132, 973   $ 16,385, 151       $ 3,544

2025-26 77,2g6 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 350,077   $ 10,483, 050   $ 17, 108, 029       $ 3,700

2026-27 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 346,868   $ 10,829,918   $ 17,837,593       $ 3,858

2027-28 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 343,689   $ 11, 173, 607   $ 18, 573,906       $ 4,017

ZozB-z9 177,296 394,019     $ 571, 315      $ 340,539   $ 11, 514, 146   $ 19,317,029       $ 4, 178
2029- 30 394,019     $ 394,019      $ 232,707   $ 11, 746,853   $ 19, 889,730       $ 4,302

2030-31 394,019     $ 394,019      $ 230,574   $ 11, 977,427   $ 20,467,729       $ 4,427

203132 394,019     $ 394,019      $ 228,461    $ 12,205,888   $ 21, 051, 074       $ 4, 553

7oqls    $ 575,672    $ 5,525,981       $ 11, 598, 948   $ 17,700, 601    $ 12,205,888

Phase I SCSWSP Capacityfor Exi ing Ratepayers 1. 34 mgd

Total In-Fill Present Value Cost of Surtace Water Supply Capacity       $ 9. 11 / gpd

Demand Met by Surface Water per EDU
8

290 gpd

Potential Development Served by this Capacity 4,624 EDUs

Buy- In Cost of Water Supply Capacity Per EDU
9

Vafles by Yeaf

Proposed Existinq Infill Surface Water Supplv CFF FY 2017-18 s, io

SIS" Meter       $ 2, 489 3" Meter       $ 37, 332

314" Meter       $ 3, 733 4" Meter       $ 62,220

1" Meter       $ fi, 222 6" Meter      $ 124,440

1 1! 2" Meter      $ 12, 444 8" Meter      $ 199, 105

2" Meter      $ 19, 910 10" Meter 5360, 877

Preliminarydesigncostspaidwithavailablewalersystemresen es.

Design and propertyacquisition costs financed using a porlion of2000ACOPs. Amounts shown are lhe pottion( 69. 1%) atlnbuted to the SCSWSP, less the amount ofdebt ser ice

paid by Ri, er Is lands( 32.69%). Debt s ervice reflects the refunding of lhe 2000A COPs by the 2012 Water Loan in FY 2012- 13.

3 E sling Ratepayer portion o( 2003 Water Re, enue Bond, 2013 Subordinate Waler Re nue Refunding Bonds, and 2017 Loan Agreement debtservice.
Debl service payments discounled l0 1999 dollars based on actual PMIAretes for Mayofthe prioryears. Future debt service costs are discounted at 0. 925% peryear, which is the

2017 May PMIA rete.
s Includes cumulati. e debt service costs in future value dollars, escalated bythe actual PMIArete for fhe month of Mayforeach paslyear.

8 Future CFF rates are projected based on Ihe May2017 PMlArate of 0. 925%. The Citymayelectto update the future fee retes based on actual PMIArate or in0ation rate in Nture

yzars. New connections paying this fee would also paythe SCSWSP facilities charge in lheir monthlywaler bill.

SCSWSP capacityallocated to ebsting ratepayers.

a Based on a, erage single familydemand of430 gpd( from EKI2016 Master Plan) and 67.4% offuture waterdemand assumed to be met with surtace water.( 15. 62 mgd total and
5. 09 mgd Bom wells.

sA5/8" meterproHdescapaciryloserve7. 0EDU. FeesforothermetersizesreFledrelati capacityofeachmelersize.  

10 Would applyto infill areas within East Lathrop.

City ofLathrop 21 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

641



SURFACE dVATER SUPPLY Cg+'F

Table 5- 4 summarizes the Surface Water Supply CFFs based on water meter size.

Table 5- 4

Surface Water SupplV Capital Facilities Fees

Central Lathrop Future Development Existing Infill
Full-Cos t Full-Cos t B uy-In

Meter Size Fee
1

Fee
Z

Fee
3

5/ 8" Meter 5, 744 PerUnit 4 242 perUnit 2 489 perUnit

3/ 4" Meter 8, 616 perunit 6, 363 perUait 3, 733 perUnit

1" Meter 14, 360 per Unit 10, 605 per Unit 222 per Unit

1 1/ 2" Meter 28,720 Per Unit 21, 210 per Unit 12, 444 per Unit

2" Meter 45, 952 perUnit 33, 936 per Unit 19, 910 Per Unit

3" Meter 86, 160 per Unit 63, 630 per Unit 37, 332 per Unit

4" Meter 143, 600 perUnit 106, 050 perUnit 2 22p perUnit

6" Meter 287,200 PerUnit 212, 100 perUnit       $ 124, 440 perUnit

8" Meter 459, 520 per Unit 339, 360 per Unit       $ 199, 105 per Unit

10" Meter 832, 880 Per Unit 615, 090 per Unit       $ 360, 877 per Unit

Applies to new development in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan. Those paying this fee would NOT pay the
SCSWSP facilities charge in their monthly water bill.

z Applies to future development areas. Those paying this fee vould NOT pay the SCSW SP facilities charge in

their monthly water bill.

3 Applies to existing infill areas. New connections paying this fee would also pay the SCSWSP facilities charge in
their monthly water bill.

City ofLathrop 22 Capital Facilities Fee Update Sta dy

642



6 WATER SYSTEM CFF

This section of the report identifies the facilities, costs, and the CFF rates requi• ed to fimd water

system facilities in the City.

WATER SYSTEM CFF APPROACH AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Water System CFF inclttdes four separate CFF components.   These include 1) an East

Lathrop water system Buy-In CFF, 2) a Well Improvement CFF for West/Central Lathrop to
fi nd the costs of arsenic treatment for groundwater wells and for a portion of the cost of a

standby well, 3) a Water Storage CFF for the Mossdale Landing developments to construct a 1. 0
MG water storage reservoir, and 4) a Reimbursement CFF for the Crossroads area.  The City

does not curcently have updated costs for the West/ Central Lathrop Well Improvement CFF or

the Mossdale Landing Water Stocage CFF so these fees have been updated recently by the City

for inflation only.

EAST LATHROP WATER SYSTEM BUY- IN CFF

Since the water system for East Lathrop is mostly complete and any additions are to rehabilitate

or upgrade the distribution system, a buy- in approach is used to determine this .CFF for fiiture
infill developinent.  The buy- in approach essentially puts a value on all existing water system

assets and any past debt interest payments or associated costs and divides these assets and costs

by the number of users ( EDUs) in the system to calculate the cost per user.  The cost per system

user is then the basis of the buy- in CFF.

EAST LATHROP WATER SYSTEM C+ F CALCULATION

Table 6- 1 shows the water system facilities in East Lathrop.  Several water system facilities have

been added to the list since the 2005 Fee Study. The facilities list includes the original cost when

the facility was purchased or constructed, the replacetnent cost based on ENR CCI index
inflation, and a depreciated replacement cost that incorporates straight- line cost depreciation

based on the facilities' service life.   Based on these factors, Table 6- 1 shows the tota( East

Lathrop depreciated replacement cost of the water system facilities is $ 7. 4 million.

City ofLathrop 23 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

643



Table 6- 1 Water Svstem Capital Facilities for East Lathrop

Year Service Original Depreciated Replacement Depreciated

Description Added Life( yrs)       Cost Cost Cost Repl. Cost

Land

Land as per F/ S of Wtr. Distr.       1990 WA   $ 170, 389    $ 170,389     $ 391, 513    $ 391, 513

Buildings

Public Works Building 1990 22    $ 35, 516 0      $ 81, 607 0

Water System

BoosterStation 1989 40    $ 18, 610      $ 5, 583      $ 43, 845     $ 13, 154

Phase1 2000 20    $ 15, 141      $ 2,271      $ 26, 391      $ 3, 959

Pumps& Improv. to Wells 1994 20  $ 4, 146,473 0   $ 8, 336, 650 0

Premia Pump ----     ---      -------      1995 20   $ 423, 880 0     $ 848, 462 0

Alartn System 1999 8     $ 1, 588 0       $ 2, 859 0

Badger Meters- McBail Homes 1997 15     $ 2, 228 0       $ 4, 134 0

Telemetry System Phase 1 1999 20    $ 39, 969      $ 3, 997      $ 71, 963      $ 7, 196

Chlorine Feed Pump& Mixers 1999 10     $ 3,702 0       $ 6, 665 0

Project 93-13 1999 40  $ 2, 241, 764  $ 1, 232, 970   $ 4, 036, 215  $ 2, 219, 918

Harlan Rd. Realignment 2000    20   $ 420, 114     $ 63,017     $ 732, 270    $ 109, 840

WaterSystem 2001 20    $ 17, 843      $ 3,569      $ 30, 707      $ 6, 141

SCADA System 2001 20     $ 3,404       $ 681       $ 5, 858      $ 1, 172

Project 93-12 2001     20     $ 2, 703       $ 541       $ 4, 652       $ 930

IMG ReserwirTelemetry 2001 20    $ 55, 162     $ 11, 032      $ 94, 931     $ 18, 986

Master Plan EIR 2001 40    $ 74,571     $ 44,743     $ 128, 333     $ 77, 000

North Harlan Improv. District 2000 40   $ 632,397    $ 363, 628   $ 1, 102, 285    $ 633, 814

Upgrade water line PW0106 2002 20    $ 77, 622    $ 19, 406     $ 129, 208     $ 32, 302

Pump Accessories 2004 20       $ 760       $ 266       $ 1, 162       $ 407

Baoster Pump# 2 2004 20    $ 18, 300      $ 6, 405      $ 27, 989      $ 9,796

10" Magmeter 2004 20    $ 10, 548      $ 3, 692      $ 16, 133      $ 5, 646

Data Collector-Upgr. Handhelds 2004 20     $ 7, 650      $ 2, 678      $ 11, 700      $ 4,095

Well# 9 Pump 2004 20    $ 13, 891      $ 4, 862      $ 21, 246      $ 7,436

StennerPeristalticPump 2004 20     $ 1, 149       $ 402       $ 1, 757       $ 615

Pump Test Kit 2004 20     $ 1, 810       $ 634       $ 2, 768       $ 969

Connection Fee Study 2004 20    $ 26, 523      $ 9, 283      $ 40, 566     $ 14, 198

PW0301- Well 10 2009 40  $ 1, 945,293  $ 1, 556,234   $ 2, 465, 746  $ 1, 972, 597

PW1505- Well 10 Emergency Power& PGE Impro,ement 2015 40   $ 104, 119     $ 98, 913     $ 112, 769    $ 107, 131

PW0506- Well 7 Security Upgrade 2005 20    $ 69, 175     $ 27, 670     $ 101, 436     $ 40, 574

Well 6& 7- Variable Frequency Driees Installation( VFD) 2008 20    $ 29,560     $ 16, 258      $ 39,268     $ 21, 597

Well S- Variable Frequency Driees 2006 20     $ 6, 481      $ 2, 917       $ 9, 152      $ 4, 118

PW0601- Well 6, 7, 8 and 9- Securily Upgrade 2006 20    $ 41, 381     $ 18, 621      $ 58,433     $ 26,295

PW0820- BoosterStationRehabilitationl& 3 2008 20   $ 00, 000     $ 55, 000     $ 132, 841     $ 73, 062

PW0504- Booster Station 1& 2- Paint 2008 20   $ 231, 350    $ 127, 242     $ 307, 326    $ 169,029

Booster Station 3- Variable Frequency Dri es 2012 20    $ 37, 590     $ 28, 193      $ 43, 991     $ 32, 993

PWO505- Update SCADA System 2007 20   $ 488, 608    $ 244, 304     $ 669, 182    $ 334, 591

PW0211- Shilling Water Line Replacement 2009 40   $ 143, 571    $ 114, 856     $ 181, 982    $ 145,586

PW1018- SCADA Impro, ement to add GRP 3 2010 20   $ 187, 621    $ 121, 954     $ 231, 687    $ 150,596

PW1105- SCADA Radio Antenna Tower and Equipment
Z012 20   $ 142, 263    $ 106, 697     $ 166,486    $ 124,864

Relocation

Tower Installation- Corp Yard and Community Center 2014 40    $ 11, 843     $ 10, 955      $ 13, 140     $ 12, 154

Tower Antenna and Installation- Stonebridge 2014 40     $ 7, 891      $ 7, 300       $ 8,755      $ 8, 099

PW0808- PotableWaterTechnicalStudy 2007 40   $ 480, 167    $ 360, 125     $ 657,621    $ 493, 216

SaeeMart 12" Pipeline 2008 40    $ 47, 200     $ 36, 580      $ 62,701     $ 48, 593

4 Fire Hydrants 2008 40    $ 12, 000      $ 9, 300      $ 15, 941     $ 12, 354

Harley Da idson 8" Water Pipe, 6" Water Pipe, and 2 Hydrants 2008 40     $ 7, 765      $ 6, 018      $ 10, 315      $ 7, 994

athrop rossing 68 3 ater Pipe, 120 8'  ater Pipe,  
2008 40    $ 38, 100     $ 29, 528      $ 50,612     $ 39, 224

770 12" Water Pipe, and 2 Hvdrants

Fixed Asset Reeords Totals 12, 595, 686   $ 4, 928, 712   $ 21, 541, 255  $ 7, 383, 758

Inflated using CCI Vom June ofthe yearthe assetwas added to December2017.

Cily ofLathrop 2       Capital Facilities Fee Update Stucly

644



Past debt service interest costs are also included in the Buy- In CFF calculation.  These costs are

inflated to present value dollars using the consumer price index (" CPI") and added to the CFF

calculation.  Table 6- 2 below shows the debt used to fund East Lathrop water system facilities.
This debt includes the 1993 COPs, a CSCDA loan, 2000 bonds, a portion of the 2000A COPs,

and the 2012 water loan.  The sum total of the present value of the interest on these bonds is

approximately $ 5. 0 million.  In addition, past debt issuance costs were also inflated to current

dollars based on the CPI index and included in the Buy- In CFF calculation.  The total present

value of past debt issuance costs is $ 974,233.

Table 6- 2 Historical Water Debt Service Payments

1993 COPs CSCDA Loan 2000 Bonds      2000A COPs   2012 Water Loan

Fiscal Net Interest Net Interest PV of Int.

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest qpplieable  Principal Interest qppiicable
2 CPI Payments

1ss3- s4 93, 850   $ 13,046   $ 27, 774 148.0    $ 205,079

1994- 95 131, 976  $ 13,887   $ 26,933 152.5    $ 260,042

1995- 96 131, 976  $ 14,783   $ 26,037 156.7    $ 251, 645

19ss- s7 131, 976  $ 15,736   $ 25,084 160.3    $ 244,510

1ss7- sa 131, 976  $ 16,752   $ 24,068 163.0    $ 238,904

19sa- 99    35,000 $ 131, 976  $ 17, 832   $ 22, 988 166.2    $ 232,683

199s- Oo $ Z, z40,000 $ 130,296  $ 18, 983   $ 21, 838 172.4    $ 220,218

2000-01 20, 207   $ 20, 613 43,200  $ 110,000  $ 470, 231   $ 145,486 178. 0    $ 293,435

2001- 02 21, 510   $ 19, 310  $ 15, 685  $ 67, 121  $ 120,000  $ 456, 588   $ 141, 265 179. 9    $ 315,856

2ao2-o3 287, 872  $ 17, 922  $ 30, 000  $ 65, 668  $ 125,000  $ 451, 188   $ 139,594 183.7    $ 303,219

2003- 04 30, 000  $ 63, 813  $ 130, 000  $ 445, 438   $ 137, 815 189.7    $ 265,245

2004- 05 30,000  $ 61, 938  $ 140,000  $ 439, 328   $ 135, 925 194.5    $ 253,868

2005-06 35, 000  $ 59,906  $ 145,000  $ 432, 678   $ 133, 867 202.9    $ 238,329

2006-07 35,000  $ 57, 719  $ 150,000  $ 425, 718   $ 131, 714 208.4    $ 226,893

2oa7- oa q0, 000  $ 55, 375  $ 160, 000  $ 418, 443   $ 129,463 218.8    $ 210,804

2008- 09 40, 000  $ 52, 875  $ 165, 000  $ 410, 523   $ 127, 012 215.7    $ 208, 127

2009-10 40, 000  $ 50, 375  $ 175, 000  $ 402, 273   $ 124,460 218.0    $ 200, 173

2010-11 45, 000  $ 47, 719  $ 185, 000  $ 393, 348   $ 121, 699 225.7    $ 187,305

2ot7- i2 50, 000  $ 44,531     $ 0     $ 191, 216   $ 59, 161      $ 0 0 0 229.5    $ 112,764

2a72- i3 50, 000  $ 40,969 252,797   $ 236,203   $ 73,079 233.5    $ 121, 887

2a13- 14 55, 000  $ 37, 228 283, 199   $ 205,801   $ 63, 673 238.3    $ 105,647

2014-15 60, 000  $ 33, 131 293, 198   $ 195,802   $ 60,580 238.6     $ 97,997

20 5-16 60, 000  $ 28, 856 303,550   $ 185,450   $ 57, 377 241. 0     $ 89,287

2016-17 65, 000  $ 24,403 314,267   $ 174,733   $ 54, 061 245.0     $ 79,937

2ot7-ie 70, 000  $ 19, 594 325,363   $ 163,637   $ 50, 628 249.6     $ 71, 540

Totals  $ Z, 275,000 $ 864, 026  $ 440, 608  $ 232,567 $ 750, 885 $ 854,440 $ 1, 605, 000 $ 4, 936, 968 $ 1, 527,460 $ 1, 772,374 $ 1, 161, 626  $ 359, 398 5, 035,396

Limited061igationlmpmvementBonds( ortheNorihHadanWalerlmpmvemenlDisVict.

The 2000ACOPs proNded 52,240,000[ o refund Ue 1993 COPs and 55,000,000( or SCSWSP developmentcos not relaled to he EaslLa hrop watersystem buy-in CFF; therefore only30. 9% o( Ihe interestis applicahle
to the water system buy-in CFF. The 2000ACOPs were refinanced in Ppri12012 hythe 2012 Water Loan; only 30. 9% of the interest fiom ihe 2012 Water Loan is applicable to the watersystem huy-in CFF.
Exdudes pallon of2000ACOP interestcost related to the SCSWSP.

Existing water system funds balances are also considered to be water system assets and therefore
are added to the calculation of the Water System Buy- In CFF.   The City reports that Water
System Capital Replacement Reserve ( Fund 560) has an existing balance of $3, 400, 829 and

Water System CFF Fund ( Fund 561) has a fund balance of$ 1, 747, 002.

Lastly, any outstanding bond principal balance is subtracted from the total water system value to

reflect that this cost is still outstanding and therefore reduces the net value of the system.

City ofLathrop 25 Capital Facilities Fee Update Sta dy

645



Table 6- 3 below shows the Buy- In CFF calculation for East Lathrop.  The total valuation of the

water system is approximately $ 16. 9 million.  This total valuation is divided by 13, 712, which

City staff estimates is the capacity of the water system in East Lathrop.  This results in a Buy- In

CFF of$ 1, 231 per SFR or EDU.  CFF rates by water meter size are presented in the table below.

CFF rates for North Harlan are reduced since property assessments in this area fund water

system improvements and therefore North Harlan development receives a credit for their filnding

contribution.

Table 6- 3 Water Svstem Buy-In C' F - East Lathrop

Depreciated Replacement Cost of Water System Assets 7, 383,758

Plus: Available Water System CFF Reserves ( Fund 561)     1, 747,002

Plus: Available Capital Replacement Reserves ( Fund 560)   3, 400,829

Plus: PV of Past Interest on Debt
z 5, 035, 396

Plus: PV of Past Debt Issuance Costs 3 974,233

Less: Outstanding Principal on Debt Obligations
4 1, 661, 570)

Total Water System Valuation 16, 879, 648

Estimated System Capacity- Number of 5/ 8" Equiv. Meters
5 13, 712

Water System Buy- In CFF for East Lathrop 1, 231

Water System Buy- in CFF in No. Harlan Water ID
6 1, 157

Water System Buy- In Captial Facilities Fees

East Lathrop iVorth Harlan

5/ 8" Meter 1, 231 1, 157

3/ 4" Meter 1, 847 1, 735

1" Meter 3, 078 2, 892

1 1/ 2" Meter 6, 155 5, 785

2" Meter 9, 848 9, 256

3" Meter 18,466 17, 354

4" Meter 30, 776 28, 924

6" fVleter 61, 552 57, 847

8" Meter 98, 483 92,555

10" Meter 178, 501 167, 756

As ofApril 2018.

z Presentvalue of interest payments on 1993 COPs, CSCDA loan, 2000 Bonds, the portions of

the 2000 COPs and 2012 Water Loan allocable to the water system.

3 Presentvalue of issuance costs of the 1993 COPs, CSCDAIoan, 2000 Bonds, the portions of

the 2000 COPs and 2012 Water Loan allocable to the water system. Only 30. 9% of the

issuance costs are applicable to the Water System buy-in CFF.

4 Outstanding principal from 2000 Bonds and the portion ofthe 2012 Water Loan allocable to
thewatersystem.

5 Based on Citystaffestimate.

6 Adjusted to add back2000 Bonds outstanding balance and reduce bythe presentvalue of
payments toward North Harlan WaterlmprovementDistrict.

City ofLathrop 26 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

646



CROSSROADS WATER SYSTEM 12EIMBURSEMENT CFF

The Crossroads water system includes a 1. 0 MG water storage tank, a well, booster pump

station, transmission main, and a water distribution system.  The total original cost of this system

was approximately $ 1. 9 million.  Table 6- 4 on the following page shows that the replacement

cost in today' s dollars is approximately $ 3. 8 million, based on the ENR CCI index. But applying
straight-line depreciation, based on the service life of the flcilities, reduces the total value of the

water system to approximately $ 1. 8 million.

The Crossroads Water System Reimbursement CFF was originally adopted by the City in 1995
for the purpose of reimbursing the developer for constructing the watec system facilities.  Under

the terms of the reimbursement agreement, interest accruing at a cate of 8. 0% per year is added to

the outstanding balance.

WATER SYSTEM REIMBURSEMENT CFF CALCULATION

Table 6- 4 shows the calculation of the Crossroads Water System Reimburseinent CFF. The total

cost of the water system facilities, $ 1. 8 million, is added to the accumulated interest, $ 3. 4

million, to arrive at a total water system valuation of approximately $ 5. 2 million. This amount is

divided by the system capacity, 608, 000 GPD, to produce a cost of$ 8. 54 per gallon of water.

Based on actual historical water use, the City had estimated that average water usage in
Crossroads is 500 GPD for a 5/ 8" water meter.  The City assumes that by build out of the City

approximately two-thirds of Crossroads' water usage will be supplied through surface water and
one- third will be supplied with groundwater.  Based on this assumption, the average share that is

groundwater supplied per 5/ 8" water meter is 163 GPD.   The Reimbursement CFF is calculated

by multiplying the  $ 8. 54 cost per gallon by 163 GPD,  which produces a Water System

Reimbursement CFF of$ 1, 392 per 5/ 8" meter.

City ofLathrop 27 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

647



Table 6- 4 Crossroads Water System Reimbursement CFF

Year Service Original Depreciated Replacement Depreciated

Asset No.     Description Added Life( yrs) Cost Cost Cost   Repl. Cost

130-00 1 MG WaterTank 1993 40    $ 205, 813       $ 82, 325       $ 425, 438      $ 170, 175

131- 00 Pump House 1993 40    $ 247,508       $ 99, 003       $ 511, 626      $ 204, 651

132-00 Well House 1993 40    $ 318,936      $ 127, 574       $ 659, 276      $ 263, 710

135-00      Transmission Line 1993 40    $ 192, 500       $ 77, 000       $ 397, 919      $ 159, 167

136-00 Well No. 9 Construction 1993 40     $ 49, 155  $ 19, 662     $ 101, 609

J   $

40, 644

137-00 Carpenter Waterline 1993 40     $ 18,360 7, 344 37, 952 15, 181

138-00      Inspect./ A&E/ Misc.  1993       40 $ 50, 000 $ 20, 000  $ 103, 356 41, 342

139-00 Contingencies 1993 40    $ 162, 341 64, 936       $ 335, 577      $ 134, 231

140-00 Construction Supervision 1993 40    $ 124,461 49, 784       $ 257, 275      $ 102, 910

141- 00 Land for Well& Tank Site 1993 N/ A    $ 180, 680      $ 180, 680       $ 373,485      $ 373, 485

142-00 Legal Fees 1993 40       $ 4, 033 1, 613 8, 337 3, 335

145-00 Testing 1993 40     $ 26,583       $ 10, 633 54,950 21, 980

150-00 Water Master Plan 1993 40     $ 24, 760 9, 904 51, 182 20,473

151- 00 Engineering 1993 40    $ 192, 945       $ 77, 178       $ 398, 839      $ 159, 535

152-00 City and Railroad Fees 1993 40     $ 53, 651 21, 460       $ 110, 903 44, 361

Fixed Asset Record Totals 1, 851, 726      $ 849, 098     $ 3, 827,722     $ 1, 755, 180

Interest Through March 2018( on outstanding balance owned)      3, 391, 149

Additional Interest Through May 2018( on outstanding balance owned)       45,215

Total Water System Valuation 5, 191, 544

Crossroads Water System Capacity( gpd)    608, 000

Crossroads Water System Reimbursement CFF($/ gpd)     8. 54

Water Demand( gpd) Met by Ground Water per 5/ 8" Meter
2 163

Cost of Ground Water Supply Capacity per 5/ 8" Meter 1, 392

Crossroads Water Svstem Reimbursement CFF Z

5/ 8" Meter 1, 392

3/ 4" Meter 2, 088

1" Meter 3, 480

1 1/ 2" Meter 6, 959

2" Meter      $ 11, 134

3" Meter       $ 20, 877

4" Meter       $ 34,795

6" Meter       $ 69, 591

8" Meter     $ 111, 345

10" Meter     $ 201, 813

Interestaccrues at8% peryearon the oustanding balanceto be reimbursed underterms ofthe reimbursementagreement. lntereston
the outstanding balance owed is accrued through May2018. Accrued interest provided bythe City Finance Department.

z Based on 500 gpd for a 5/ 8" water meter and assuming groundwaterwill supply 32. 6% ofthis amount and surface water supplying the

remaining 67.4% ofwater demand. Fees for larger meters are scaled based on relative capacity.

City ofLathrop 28 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stauly

648



WAT R SYSTEM CFF SCHEDULES

Table 6- 5 shows the Water System CFF schedules for East Lathrop, North Harlan, Crossroads,
West/Central Lathrop, and Mossdale Landing.   CFFs for West/Central Lathrop and Mossdale

Landing show the recently updated rates as increased by the City to reflect the ENR 20- City CCI

index change since the City last updated tlie CFF rates in 2017.

Table 6- 5 Summary of Water Svstem CFFs

North Crossroads West/Central Mossdale

East Lathrop Harlan WID Water System Lathrop - Well Landing

Water System Water System Reimbursement Improvement Water Storage

Buy- In CFF Buy-In CFF CFF CFF       CFF Z

5/ 8" Meter 1, 231 1, 157 1, 392 756 895

3/ 4" Meter 1, 847 1, 735 2, 088 1, 135 1, 343

1" Meter 3, 078 2, 892 3, 480 1, 891 2, 238

1 1/ 2" Meter 6, 155 5, 785 6, 959 3, 782 4, 477

2" Meter 9, 848 9, 256 11, 134 6, 051 7, 162

3" Meter 18,466 17, 354 20, 877 11, 345 13, 430

4" Meter 30,776 28, 924 34,795 18, 909 22, 383

6" Meter 61, 552 57, 847 69, 591 37, 817 44,766

8" Meter 98,483 92, 555 111, 345 60, 507 71, 625

10" Meter       $ 178,501 167, 756 201, 813 109, 670 129, 820

Watersystem CFFwas adjusted bythe Cityfor inflation only.

z New developmentwithin Mossdale Landings developments would pay both the well improvement and water storage CFFs.

City ofLathrop 29 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

649



7.       SEWER/RECYCLED WATER CAPITAL FACILITIES FEE

This section of the report identifies the sewer and recycled watec facilities, costs, and CFF cates

required to fund reimbursement costs for oversizing the sewer and recycled water facilities in the
CLSP area.

ACILITIES AND COSTS

Tables 1 through 3 in the appendix of this report provide details of the sewer and recycled water

backbone facilities and costs that have been constructed or fitnded by Saybrook to serve the
CLSP area.  Facilities include a pump station, force mains, sewer pipelines, and recycled water
pipelines. Table 7- 1 shows the total cost of these facilities in 2018 dollars is $ 11. 6 million.

Table 7- 1

Sewer/Recycled Water Capital acilities for CLSP

Project Cost Project Cost

Wo.    Improvement 2017 $)      2018 $)

1 Portion of Pump Station and Force Mains      5, 302, 500 5, 475, 000

2 Sanitary Sewer Mains 2, 849, 175 2, 942, 000

3 Recycled Water Mains 3, 095,280 3, 196, 000

Total 11, 246, 955 11, 613, 000

1. Includes 1/ 4 ofthe total pump station cost.

City ofLathrop 30 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

650



COST ALLOCATION FACTORS

The allocation of the CLSP sewer and recycled water facilities is based on the wastewatec flow

factors provided by the City and summarized in Table 7-2 below.   Wastewater flow is a

reasonable method of allocating sewer facilities costs since it accurately measures the demand

placed on the sewer system by various types of development.

Table 7- 2

Sewer Cost Allocation Factors

Wastewater

Land Use Flow Factor

Low Density Residential 245 gpd/ du

Medium Density Residential 170 gpd/ du

High Density Residential 170 gpd/ du

Commercial 590 gpd/ ac

Industrial 355 gpd/ac

Sources: CityofLathrop

CLSP SEWER/ RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES CFF CALCULATION

Table 7- 3 summarizes the cost allocation of the sewer and recycled water facilities costs.  The

estimated development in CLSP includes 5, 144 single family units and approximately 5. 0
million square feet of commercial developinent.  The residential developtnent estimate varies

from the CLSP EIR which shows nearly 6, 800 units as potentially developing in the CLSP.
However development densities in approved tentative maps for CLSP show residential

developtnent at lower densities than were originally contemplated.   As a result, the costs

allocation shown in Table 7- 3 includes the lower density residential estimates.  If these densities

change in fiiture years, the CFF should be updated to account for the revised development plans.

City ofLnthrop 31 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stzrdy

651



Table 7- 3

Sewer/Recycled Water Cost 1 llocation

Wastewater Wastewater Cost per

Units/  .    -  Flow Flow Daily Percent Cost Unit/

Land Use Bldg SF Factor Volume Allocation Aliocation Bldg SF

Total Improvement Cost $ 11, 613, 000

Dwelling GPD

Residential Units er Unit GPD epr Unit

Single Family 5, 144 245 1, 260,280 84.8%     $ 9, 850,660      $ 1, 915

Multi-Family 0 170 0 0. 0%     0      $ 1, 329

Subtotal- Residential 5, 144 1, 260, 280 84. 8%     $ 9, 850, 660

Building GPD Per

Non-Residentia! Acres Sq• Fiepr acre GPD 1, 000 SF

Commercial 382. 2 4, 994, 000 590 225,471 15. 2%     $ 1, 762,340 353

Industrial 0. 0 0 355 0 0. 0%     0 212

Total 1, 485, 751 100. 0%   $ 11, 613,000

CLSP SEWER/ RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES CFF

The sewer and recycled water facilities, or portions of facilities, identified in this chapter will

serve the CLSP area and therefore the Sewer/Recycled Water CFF calculated here is to be

charged only to development in the CLSP area.   Table 7- 4 summarizes the Sewec/Recycled

Water CFFs.  Since the sewer and recycled water facilities have been constructed by Saybrook,
CFF revenue will be used to reimburse the developer.

Table 7- 4

Sewer/Recvcled Water Capital Facilities Fees

Land Use Fee

Residential

Single Family 1, 915 per Unit

Multi-Family 1, 329 perUnit

Non-Residential

Commercial 353 per 1, 000 sf

Industrial 212 per 1, 000 sf

City ofLathrop 32 Capita! Facilities Fee Upclate Stzrdy

652



S.  CIP UPDATE FOR THE CULTUREAND LEISURE FACILITIES

In 2014 the City completed construction of the Lathrop Generations Center.  The Generation

Center building includes a 4, 200 square foot public library and a 5, 300 square foot youth and
teen center.  Additionally, the 5. 76 acre site on Spartan Way includes play equipment, a skate

park, parkour course, outdoor stage, turf seating, landscaping and irrigation, and a parlcing lot. In
2012, the City received a $ 5. 0 million grant to help fund the facility.  The 5. 76 acre site itself

was purchased by the City from Saybrook at a cost of $6. 00 per square foot, for a total of

approximately $ 1. 5 million.

While the CFF program includes a teen center and library facility space in the Culture and
Leisure Facilities CFF, it does not include sufficient land associated with the teen center or

library facilities to be able to provide CFF funding for acquiring the 5. 76 acre site.

ADJUSTMENT OF THE CULTURE AND LEISURE FACILITIES CIP

Public agencies regularly update their impact fee capital improvement plans.   Fee program

updates, as is being done through this Fee Study, provide public agencies the opportunity to
reevaluate the planned facilities to determine whether their facilities are still needed or whether

the size or amenities associated with their facilities need to be revised or adjusted to their

changing needs.  With this fee program update, City staff has determined that the 5. 76 acres of
land associated with the Generation Center should be included in the CFF program.  However,

due to development agreement limitations regarding increasing the CFF fees or adding new

facilities to the fee program, the City will need to reduce the size of another Culture and Leisure

facility such that there is no net increase in the CFF rates for the Culture and Leisure Facilities
sub- component.

LIBRARY FACILITY

The Culture and Leisure CFF includes 32,700 square feet of library space to serve the population
at build out of the City.  This is based on a level of service equal to 500 square feet of space per

1, 000 residents.  City staff feels that this level of service can be reduced without significantly

impacting future library services.  By reducing the library square footage standard to 475 square

feet per 1, 000 residents such that the total library space will be 31, 100 square feet at build out,

the City will be able to include the cost of the 5. 76 acres of the Generation Center land in the

CFF program without increasing the overall Culture and Leisure Facility sub- component of the
Culture and Leisure CFF.  Tables 8- 1 through 8- 3 show, the calculations behind the change in

facilities while keeping the Culture and Leisure CFF rates the same as they currently are in the

City ofLathrop 33 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stardy

653



CFF program.  Table 8- 1 below shows the total cost of the 31, 100 square feet of library facilities
is $ 18, 361, 000.

Table 8- 1

Undated L,ibrary Facilities Space at Build Out

Facility Needs

Building Requirements ( sfl '  31, 100

Land Requirements ( acres)       1. 88

Cost per

Square SF Total

Cost Estimate Footage 2018 $       Cost

Land 81, 750 6. 00 490, 500

Land Improvements 81, 750 6. 00 490, 500

Subtotal - Land and Land Improvements 981, 000

Basic Building 31, 100 325    $ 10, 102, 510

Special Construction & Equip 31, 100 65     $ 2, 020,502

Subtotal - Construction 12, 123, 012

Contingencies ( 12% of Construction)  1, 454,761

Engr., CM, Fees, Etc. ( 28% of Const. and Contingencies) 3, 801, 777
m_..____---._. r.e.._.._.._._ 

Subtotal - Contingencies & Soft Costs 5, 256, 538

Total Library Costs ( 2018 $)    18, 360,551

Total Library Costs( Rouncied)      18, 361, 000

Updated estimate of required libraryfacilities.

City ofLathrop 3 1 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

654



Table 8- 2 shows the total cost of teen/ youth center, including the cost of the 5. 76 acres of land.

The total cost of the building and land is $ 6, 053, 000.

Table 8- 2

U dated Teen/Youth Facilities Space at Build Out

Facility Needs

Building Requirements ( sfl 7, 500

Land Acquisition (acres) 
2 5. 76

Cost per

Square SF Total

Cost Estimate Footage 20(   18 $)    Cost

Land
Z 250, 735 6. 00 1, 504,410

Land Improvements
3 30, 000 6. 00 180, 000

Subtotal - Land and Land Impro ements 1, 684,410

Basic Building 7, 500 325 2, 437, 875

Spec. Constr. & Equip 7, 500 81 609, 469

Subtotal - Construction       
Y     

3, 047,344

Contingencies ( 12% of Construction) 365, 681

Engr., CM, Fees, Etc. ( 28% of Const. and Contingencies)       955, 647

Subtotal - Contingencies & Soft Costs
T  

1, 321, 328

Total Youth Center Costs ( 2018 $)  6, 053, 082

Total Youth Center Costs( Rounded)    6, 053, 000

Updated teen/ youth center facilities.

z Based on the actual land acquired for$ 1. 5 million.

3 Land Improvements forthe building site associated with the youth centeronly.

City ofLathrop 35 Capita! Facilities Fee Update Stzrcfy

655



Table 8- 3 shows the updated fee calculation of the Culture and Leisure Facilities sub- component.

Facilities costs have been inflated to 2018 dollars based on the ENR 20- city construction cost

index of 10, 873 as of December 2017. The CFF for a single family residence is $ 3, 386 per unit

and $ 2,417 per multifamily unit. These CFF rates are equal to the Culture and Leisure Facilities

subcomponent that is in effect for 2018.

Table 8- 3

Culture and Leisure Facilities and CFF Sub- Comnonent

Culture and Estimated

Leisure Cost Buildout Cost per

Facility Quantity 2018 $) Population Resident

Community Pool 1 4, 872, 000     -    65,400 74. 50

Gym 7, 500 SF 4,549, 000 65,400 70

Sports Complex 2 6, 496, 000 65,400 99

Library 31, 100 SF 18, 361, 000 65,400 281

Senior Center 19, 600 SF 11, 452, 000 65,400 175

Youth Center 7, 500 SF 6, 053, 000 65,400 93

Community Center 7, 800 SF 4,069, 000 9, 750     417

Total Facilities 55,852, 000 1, 209

Fee Calculation Culture

Leisure

Persons Costper Facilities

ReSldenfla! per Household Resident Fee

Single Family 2. 8 1, 209 3, 386

Multi- Family 2. 0 1, 209 2, 417

The e ansion to the CommunityCenter is onlyprojected to accommodate an additional 9, 750

City ofLathrop 36 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

656



REMAINING I.IBRARY AND' OUTH FACILITIES

With the construction of the Lathrop Generations Center, the total cemaining library and youth

center facilities needed by build out of the City are reduced; the CFF program assumes a buildout
population of 65, 400 for the City.   Table 8- 4 below summarizes the required facilities, the

existing facilities that were constructed at the Generations Center, and the remaining facilities

that need to be constructed in the firture to serve the City' s build out population.     

For library facilities, 31, 100 square feet of building space is required by build out.  With the

construction of the 4,200 square foot library at the Generations Center, 26, 900 square feet of

library building space remains to be constructed on 1. 62 acres of land.  For the youth center,

5, 300 square foot of space are in the Generations Center leaving 2,200 square feet of youth

center building space remaining to be constructed on 0. 13 acres of land.

Table 8- 4

Library and Youth Center Net RemaininQ Facilities by Build Out

LibrarV Facilities

Land (acres)    Building (sfl
Requirements by Buildout     1. 88 31, 100

Existing Library Facilities
Z 0. 25 4 200

Net Remaining Library Building Requirements 1. 62 26, 900

Youth Center Facilities

Requirements by Buildout
3

0. 43 7, 500

Existing Youth Center Facilities
Z

0. 30 5 300

Net Remaining Youth Center Building Requirements 0. 13 2, 200

Updated estimate ofrequired libraryfacilities.

2 Libraryspace atthe Generations Center.

3 Youth centerspace atthe Generations Center.

City ofLathrop 37 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stzrdy

657



9.  NEXUS FINDINGS

Development in the City will create a need for additional public facilities as well as expansion of

existing facilities to serve future residents and employees.   The CFF program will provide

funding for public facilities in accordance with the policies and goals set forth by the City.  As

required pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, the CFFs calculated in this Fee Study meet the

nexus requirements of the law, as outlined below.

NEXUS TEST

Purpose of the Fees

The purpose of the CFFs is to provide funding for the infrastructure and facilities identified in

this Fee Study.

Use of Fee

CFF revenue will be used to fund future development' s fair share of the cost of infrastructure and

facilities that have been identified by the City as necessary to serve new development in the City.

Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the public facility
and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed.

New residential and non- residential development will generate additional demand for the

infrastructure and facilities identified in this Fee Study.     The facilities,  infrastructure

improvements, and capacity enhancements included in this Fee Study will ensure that the City

will maintain the desired level of service standards that are identified for the facility categories

included in this Fee Study.

Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee' s use and the type of
development project on which the fee is imposed.

CFF revenue collected will fund the facilities included in this Fee Study.  These facilities will

serve development in the City and the proposed fees in this Fee Study are a fair-share cost
allocation based on the impact that future development will have on these facilities and

improvements.  Separate CFF accounts will be established to ensure that fee revenue is applied

to the infrastructure and facilities for which it is collected.

City ofLathrop 38 Capital Facilities Fee Update Stzrdy

658



Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the

cost of the public facility or portion of the public facility attributable to the development on
which the fee is imposed.

A reasonable relationship between the amount of each CFF and the cost of the public facility, or

portion thereof, is established in this Fee Study through the use of cost allocation factors to
estimate the derriand for a facility or, the impact that a land use will have on a facility.  For

example, the cost allocation for the Sewer/Recycled Water Fee is based on the gallons per day of
wastewater generated for each specific land use.  The wastewater generation rates, which differ

between land use categories,  measure each land use' s impact on sewer facilities and

infrastructure.  As a result, each land use category or development type is allocated its fair share

of the cost based on its impact, as identified by its cost allocation factor.

By assigning the demand for infrastructure and facilities based on the cost allocation factors for

each land use and quantifying that demand in the calculation of the CFFs,  a reasonable

relationship is established between the amount of the fee and the cost of the facilities attributable

to the different types of development in the City.

City ofLathrop 39 Capitczl Facilities Fee Update Study

659



10.  FEE PROGRAMADMINISTRATION

FEE IMPLEMENTATION

According to the California Government Code, prior to levying a new fee or increasing an

existing fee, a public agency must hold at least one open and public meeting.  At least 10 days

prior to this meeting, the agency must make data on facility costs and funding sources available
to the public.  Notice of the time and place of the meeting, and a general explanation of the

matter, are to be published in accordance with Section 6062a of the Government Code, which

states that publication of notice shall be posted over a 10- day period in a newspaper regularly
published once a week or more.  Two publications, with at least five days intervening between

the dates of the first and last publication, not counting such publication dates, are sufficient. The

Fee Study and fees established herein will be adopted through a City ordinance and resolution.

Once the fee program is adopted by the Lathrop City Council, it shall becotne effective no

sooner than sixty days after the final legislative action.

FEE ADJiJSTMENTS

The CFFs will be adjusted in future years to reflect revised facility standards, receipt of funding
from alternative sources ( i. e., state or federal grants), revised costs, or changes in land uses or

development plans .  In addition to such adjustments, each year the CFF Fees will be adjusted by

the change in the Engineering News Record 20- City CCI over the prior calendar year.  This Fee

Study adjusted costs in this report based on the ENR 20- City CCI value for December 2018,

which is 10, 873. For inflating facilities costs that are in the City' s 2005 CFF Fee Study, this Fee

Study applied ENR 20- City CCI values of 6, 695 ( July 2003) for costs that were established in

2003 and an ENR 20- City CCI value of 7, 422 ( July 2005) for costs established in 2005.

ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES

The Government Code requires a public agency to report, every year and every fifth year, certain
financial information regarding their impact fees.   Within 180 days after the last day of each

fiscal year the public agency must make the following information available for the past fiscal
year:

a)      A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fiind

b)      The amount of fee revenue

c)      The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund

City ofLathrop 40 Capita! Facilities Fee Update Study

660



d)      The amount of fee revenue collected and interest earned

e)      An identification of each public improveinent on which fees were expended and

the amount of expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage
of the cost of public improvement that was funded with fees

An identification of an approximate date by which time construction on the

improvemetit will coinmence if the local agency determines that sufficient fiinds

have been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public improvement

g)      A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or fi nd,

when it will be repaid and at what interest rate

h)      The amount of any refiinds made once it is detennined that sufficient monies have
been collected to fund all projects

The public agency must make this information available for public review and must also present

it at the next regularly scheduled public meeting not less than 15 days after this information is
made available to the public.

FIFTH-YEAR ADNIINISTRATIVE DUTIES

For the fifth year following the first deposit into the fee account and every five years thereafter,

the public agency must make the following findings with respect to any remaining funds in the
fee accounts:

a)      Identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put
b)      Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which

it is charged

c)      Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing
incomplete improvements

d)      Designate the approximate dates on which funding is expected to be deposited
into the appropriate accounts or funds

As with the annual report, the five-year report must be made public within 180 days after the end

of the public agency' s fiscal year and must be reviewed at the next regularly scheduled public

meeting.  The public agency must make these findings; otherwise the law states that the City
must refund the fee revenue to the then current owners of the development project.

City ofLathrop 41 Capital Facilities Fee Update Study

661



APPENDIX f1

S'ewe System C pital Facilities Costs

662



Table 1

PUMP STATION AND FORCE MAINS

CFF AREA

UNIT
ITEM

ITEM UfVIT
COST

QTY SUB-      REMARKS

TOTAL

A. Sewer System Work

Pump Station Construction Work LS    $ 1, 750,000 1  $ 1, 750, 000 1/ 4 of the total pump station cost

14" SSFM LF 65.00 11900    $ 773, 500

18" SSFM LF 85.00 11900  $ 1, 011, 500

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL 3, 535,000

F. Right of Way Acquisition SF 2. 00 o

G. Contingences 30%       1, 060, 500

H. Design/ Plan Check I Bonding I 20% 707, 000

Staking/ Inspection

TOTAL 5, 302, 500

663



Table 2

OVERSIZED SEWER M,41NS

All Sanitary Sewer Gravity Lines larger than 12"
CFF AREA

UNIT
ITEM

ITEM UiVIT
COST

QTY SUB-      REMARKS

TOTAL

A. Sewer System Work- Constructed by Saybrook
24" Sanitary Sewer LF       $ 105. 00 4000   $ 420,000

18" Sanitary Sewer LF 90. 00 1850    $ 166, 500

14" Sanitary Sewer LF      ,  $ 75.00 1200     $ 90, 000

Dewatering LF 75.00 7050    $ 528, 750

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL 1, 899,450

F. Right of Way Acquisition SF 2.00 0

G. Contingences 30% 569,835

H. Design/ Plan Check/ Bonding/     20% 379,890

Staking/ Inspection

TOTAL 2, 849, 175

664



Table 3

RECYLCED WATER MAINS

All Sanitary Sewer Gravity Lines larger than 12"
CFF AREA

UNIT
ITEM

ITEM UNIT
COST

QTY SUB-   REMARKS

TOTAL

A. Recycled Water System Work- Constructed by Saybrook  `

24" Recycled Water LF 95.00 3400    $ 323,000

20" Recycled Water LF 80. 00 6350    $ 508,000

10" Recycled Water LF 40.00 3300   $ 132, 000

6" Recycled Water LF 24.00 5100    $ 122,400

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL 2, 063,520

F. Right of Way Acquisition SF 2. 00 o

G. Contingences 30% 619,056

H. Design/ Plan Check/ Bonding I 20% 412,704

Staking/ Inspection

TOTAL 3, 095,280

665



1

666


	2018-05-14 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2018-05-14 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of April 9, 2018
	2018-05-14 Item 4.3 Treasurers Report March 2018
	2018-05-14 Item 4.4 Second Reading & Adopting Amendment to LMC Title 10 Vehicles & Traffic, Chpt 10.24 Parking, Sec 10.24.160, Violation Penalty
	2018-05-14 Item 4.5 Ratification of the San Joaquin Council of Governments Annual Financial Plan
	2018-05-14 Item 4.6 Bay Alarm Company Security, Fire Alarm, Access Control, and Equipment Installation and Maintenance Service Agreement
	2018-05-14 Item 4.7 Adjustment to the Republic Services Solid Waste Collection Rates for Fiscal Year 2018-2019
	2018-05-14 Item 4.8 Amendment with WGR Southwest, INC. to Provide Compliance Support Services for The City Storm Water Discharge Permit SD 14-10
	2018-05-14 Item 4.9 Approve Basin Boundary Modification Request for Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Complaince CIP PW 16-04
	2018-05-14 Item 4.10 Approve Agreement with DeNovo Planning Group for IWRMP Environmental Consutling, Contract Amendment No. 4 with EKI PW 10-10 & WW 15-08
	2018-05-14 Item 4.11 Agreement with Hydrofocus, Inc. for Wastewater Discharge Requirements Permit Compliance
	2018-05-14 Item 4.12 Approval of FM & SIA for 36 Lots in Tract 3825 Village D within East Village of River Islands
	2018-05-14 Item 4.13 Approval of FM & SIA for 31 Lots in Tract 3874 Village A within East Village of River Islands
	2018-05-14 Item 4.14 Approval of FM & SIA for 24 Lots in Tract 3913 Village O within East Village of River Islands
	2018-05-14 Item 4.15 Vesting Tentative Parcel Map for the Lathrop Towne Centre Project
	2018-05-14 Item 4.16 ISU Sale to Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa
	2018-05-14 Item 4.17 Accept Improvements from Studebaker Brown Electric for Traffic Signals, CIP PS 17-02 & PS 17-05
	2018-05-14 Item 4.18 Ratify Emergency Construction Contract with Teichert Construction for Repairs to the Crossroads Storm Drain System
	2018-05-14 Item 4.19 Approve Amendment to T.O. No. 8 with Charles R. Simpson, DBA Basecamp Environmental
	2018-05-14 Item 4.20 Approve Amendment No. 5 with Veolia to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Operation & Maintenance Agreement
	2018-05-14 Item 4.21 Fiscal Year 2018-19 Project List Associated with Senate Bill 1
	2018-05-14 Item 4.22 Approval of Preliminary Engineers Report & Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for Various Community Facility Districts for FY 2018_19
	2018-05-14 Item 4.23 Approval of Preliminary Engineers Report & Declaring Intention to Levy Annual Assessments for FY 2018_19 LLMD No. 93-1 (Woodfield Park )
	2018-05-14 Item 5.1 Public Hearing to Consider 2018 Capital Facilties Fees Update



